
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH 
SOLANA BEACH CITY COUNCIL, SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT 

AGENCY, PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 

AGENDA
Joint REGULAR Meeting 

Wednesday, June 9, 2021 * 6:00 p.m. 
Teleconference Location Only-City Hall/Council Chambers, 635 S. Highway 101, Solana Beach, California 
This meeting will be conducted in accordance with Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20 related to the COVID-19 virus. 

MEETING LOCATION WILL NOT BE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 
Due to the Executive Order to stay home, in person participation at City Council meetings will not be 
allowed at this time. In accordance with the Executive Order to stay home, there will be no members of 
the public in attendance at Council Meetings. Alternatives to in-person attendance for viewing and 
participating in City Council meetings are being provided under provided below.   

AGENDA MATERIALS  
A full City Council agenda packet including relative supporting documentation is posted online 
www.cityofsolanabeach.org Closed Session Agendas are posted at least 72 hours prior to regular meetings 
and at least 24 hours prior to special meetings.  

WATCH THE MEETING 

• Live web-streaming: Meetings web-stream live on the City’s website on the City’s Public Meetings
webpage. Find the large Live Meeting button.

• Live Broadcast on Local Govt. Channel: Meetings are broadcast live on Cox Communications -
Channel 19 / Spectrum (Time Warner)-Channel 24 / AT&T U-verse Channel 99.

• Archived videos online: The video taping of meetings are maintained as a permanent record and
contain a detailed account of the proceedings. Council meeting tapings are archived and available
for viewing on the City’s Public Meetings webpage.

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

o Written correspondence (supplemental items) regarding an agenda item at an open session
meeting should be submitted to the City Clerk’s Office at clerkoffice@cosb.org with a) Subject line to
include the meeting date b) Include the Agenda Item # as listed on the Agenda.

o Correspondence received after the official posting of the agenda, but before 3:00 p.m. (or 3 hrs. prior
to the meeting start time) on the meeting day, will be distributed to Council and made available
online along with the agenda posting. All submittals received before the start of the meeting will be
made part of the record.

o Written submittals will be added to the record and not read out loud.
o The designated location for viewing supplemental documents is on the City’s website

www.cityofsolanabeach.org on the posted Agenda under the relative Agenda Item.
OR 

Verbal comment participation: If you wish to provide a live verbal comment during the meeting, 
attend the virtual meeting via your computer or call in.  
Before Meeting 
o Sign up (register) to speak at the virtual meeting for the Zoom webinar as early as possible and

at least 3 hours prior to the start of the meeting so that Staff can manage the speaker list.
- Public Participation Link: https://cosb-org.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_lfo_8KK8R6Gkxue9ilyXdw
- Follow the prompts to enter your name and email address and identify the item you are speaking on.

o Join the meeting by locating your confirmation email, that was sent immediately following registration,
which will provide your log-in link.

o Join/Log-In to the meeting at least 15 minutes prior to the start time so that the City Clerk can verify
you are ready to speak before the meeting begins.

o If your computer does not have a mic to speak or you have sound issues, you can use the call-in
audio information (Zoom ID, Participant ID) from a landline or cell phone to join the meeting for the
audio accessibility.

o If you call in as well for better audio, mute your computer's speakers to eliminate feedback so that you
do not have two audios competing when you are speaking.

During Meeting: 
o Choose Gallery View to see the presentations, when applicable.

http://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.ci.solana-2Dbeach.ca.us_index.asp-3FSEC-3DF0F1200D-2D21C6-2D4A88-2D8AE1-2D0BC07C1A81A7-26Type-3DB-5FBASIC&d=DwMFAg&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=1XAsCUuqwK_tji2t0s1uIQ&m=wny2RVfZJ2tN24LkqZmkUWNpwL_peNtTZUBlTBZiMM4&s=WwpcEQpHHkFen6nS6q2waMuQ_VMZ-i1YZ60lD-dYRRE&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.ci.solana-2Dbeach.ca.us_index.asp-3FSEC-3DF0F1200D-2D21C6-2D4A88-2D8AE1-2D0BC07C1A81A7-26Type-3DB-5FBASIC&d=DwMFAg&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=1XAsCUuqwK_tji2t0s1uIQ&m=wny2RVfZJ2tN24LkqZmkUWNpwL_peNtTZUBlTBZiMM4&s=WwpcEQpHHkFen6nS6q2waMuQ_VMZ-i1YZ60lD-dYRRE&e=
mailto:clerkoffice@cosb.org
http://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/
https://cosb-org.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_lfo_8KK8R6Gkxue9ilyXdw


 

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda                  June 9, 2021                 Page 2 of 8  

o Participants will be called upon from those who have Registered and their name is identified by the 
City Clerk calling from the registration list. You will be called on by name and unmuted by the 
meeting organizer and then you may provide comments for the allotted time. Allotted speaker times 
are listed under each Agenda section.  

 

SPECIAL ASSISTANCE NEEDED - AMERICAN DISABILITIES ACT TITLE 2 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, persons with a disability may request an 
agenda in appropriate alternative formats as required by Section 202. Any person with a disability who 
requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting should direct such request to the 
City Clerk’s office (858) 720-2400 clerkoffice@cosb.org at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

CITY COUNCILMEMBERS 

Lesa Heebner, Mayor 

Kristi Becker 
Deputy Mayor 

Kelly Harless 
Councilmember 

David A. Zito 
Councilmember 

District 1 

Jewel Edson 
Councilmember 

District 3 
 

Gregory Wade 
City Manager 

Johanna Canlas 
City Attorney 

Angela Ivey 
City Clerk 

 
 
 

 
SPEAKERS: 
See Public Participation on the first page of the Agenda for publication participation options.  
 
READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS:  
Pursuant to Solana Beach Municipal Code Section 2.04.460, at the time of introduction or adoption of an 
ordinance or adoption of a resolution, the same shall not be read in full unless after the reading of the title, 
further reading is requested by a member of the Council. If any Councilmember so requests, the ordinance 
or resolution shall be read in full. In the absence of such a request, this section shall constitute a waiver by 
the council of such reading. 

 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: 
 

CLOSED SESSION REPORT:  
 

FLAG SALUTE: 
 
PROCLAMATIONS/CERTIFICATES: Ceremonial  

None at the posting of this agenda 

 
PRESENTATIONS: Ceremonial items that do not contain in-depth discussion and no action/direction.  

None at the posting of this agenda 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  
 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS:  
Note to Public: Refer to Public Participation for information on how to submit public comment.   
This portion of the agenda provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the 
City Council on items relating to City business and not appearing on today’s agenda by 
having submitted written comments for the record to be filed with the record or by registering 
to join the virtual meeting online to speak live, per the Public Participation instructions on the 
Agenda.  

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.ci.solana-2Dbeach.ca.us_index.asp-3FSEC-3DF0F1200D-2D21C6-2D4A88-2D8AE1-2D0BC07C1A81A7-26Type-3DB-5FBASIC&d=DwMFaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=1XAsCUuqwK_tji2t0s1uIQ&m=C7WzXfOw2_nkEFMJClT55zZsF4tmIf_7KTn0o1WpYqI&s=3DcsWExM2_nx_xpvFtXslUjphiXd0MDCCF18y_Qy5yU&e=
mailto:EMAILGRP-CityClerksOfc@cosb.org
https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SolanaBeach/


Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda    June 9, 2021          Page 3 of 8  

Comments relating to items on this evening’s agenda are taken at the time the items are 
heard. Pursuant to the Brown Act, no action shall be taken by the City Council on public 
comment items.  Council may refer items to the City Manager for placement on a future 
agenda.  The maximum time allotted for each speaker is THREE MINUTES (SBMC 2.04.190).  

COUNCIL COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS / COMMENTARY: 
An opportunity for City Council to make brief announcements or report on their activities. These items 
are not agendized for official City business with no action or substantive discussion.  

A. CONSENT CALENDAR:  (Action Items) (A.1. - A.12.)
Note to Public: Refer to Public Participation for information on how to submit public comment.   
Items listed on the Consent Calendar are to be acted in a single action of the City Council 
unless pulled for discussion.  
Any member of the public may address the City Council on an item of concern by submitting 
written correspondence for the record to be filed with the record or by registering to join the 
virtual meeting online to speak live, per the Public Participation instructions on the Agenda. 
The maximum time allotted for each speaker is THREE MINUTES (SBMC 2.04.190).  
Those items removed from the Consent Calendar by a member of the Council will be trailed to 
the end of the agenda, while Consent Calendar items removed by the public will be discussed 
immediately after approval of the Consent Calendar. 

A.1. Minutes of the City Council.

Recommendation: That the City Council 

1. Approve the Minutes of City Council meetings held April 28, 2021 and
May 12, 2021.

Item A.1. Report (click here) 
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City 
Clerk’s Office.

A.2.   Register Of Demands. (File 0300-30)

Recommendation: That the City Council 

1. Ratify the list of demands for May 8, 2021 – May 21, 2021.

Item A.2. Report (click here) 
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City 
Clerk’s Office.

A.3.   General Fund Budget Adjustments for Fiscal Year 2020/21. (File 0330-30)

Recommendation: That the City Council 

1. Receive the report listing changes made to the Fiscal Year 2020-2021
General Fund Adopted Budget.

Item A.3. Report (click here) 
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City 
Clerk’s Office. 



 

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda                  June 9, 2021                 Page 4 of 8  

A.4. Fiscal Year 2021/22 Municipal Improvement Districts Benefit (MID) Fees. 
(File 0495-20) 

 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1. Approve Resolution 2021-069, setting the Benefit Charges for MID No. 9C, 
Santa Fe Hills, at $232.10 per unit for FY 2021/22. 

2. Approve Resolution 2021-070, setting the Benefit Charges for MID No. 9E, 
Isla Verde, at $68.74 per unit for FY 2021/22. 

3. Approve Resolution 2021-071, setting the Benefit Charges for MID No. 9H, 
San Elijo Hills # 2, at $289.58 per unit for FY 2021/22. 

4. Approve Resolution 2021-072, setting the Benefit Charges for MID No. 33, 
Highway 101/Railroad Right-of-Way, at $3.12 per unit for FY 2021/22. 
 

Item A.4. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City 
Clerk’s Office. 
 

 

A.5. Fiscal Year 2021/22 Fire Benefit Fee. (File 0390-23) 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1. Adopt Resolution 2021-073: 
a. Setting the FY 2021/22 Fire Benefit Fee at $10.00 per unit, and 
b. Approving the Fee for levying on the tax roll. 

 

Item A.5. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City 
Clerk’s Office. 
 
 

A.6.  WageWorks/HealthEquity Amendment. (File 0520-30) 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1. Adopt Resolution 2021-084 approving and authorizing the City Manager to 
execute the temporary amendment with WageWorks/HealthEquity in order 
to comply with options available under The Consolidated Appropriations Act, 
2021 for Flexible Spending Accounts. 
  

Item A.6. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City 
Clerk’s Office. 
 
 

A.7.  City Hall and Fire Station Water Damage Repair Project. (File 0700-25) 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1. Adopt Resolution 2021-077: 
a. Accepting as complete the City Hall and Fire Station Water Damage 

Repair Project, Bid 2020-02, constructed by War Rhino, Inc. 
b. Authorizing the City Clerk to file a Notice of Completion.  
 

Item A.7. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City 
Clerk’s Office. 



 

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda                  June 9, 2021                 Page 5 of 8  

A.8.  Glenmont Underground Utility District Seed Money & Boundary Revision.  
(File 1010-90) 

 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1. Adopt Resolution 2021-068 approving the additional payment of an amount 
not to exceed $25,000 from the City’s share of CPUC Rule 20A funds in 
seed money to cover the design costs for the preparation of preliminary 
plans and preliminary cost estimate by SDG&E for the revised district 
boundary that would add properties along a portion of Marview Drive and all 
of Ford Avenue to the Glenmont Avenue Underground Utility District. 
 

Item A.8. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City 
Clerk’s Office. 
 
 

A.9.  Streetlight Maintenance and Repairs. (File 0820-60) 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1. Adopt Resolution 2021-067: 
a. Authorizing the City Manager to execute an agreement with Siemens 

Mobility, Inc. for FY 2021/22 for streetlight maintenance and repairs 
services, at an amount not to exceed $65,800. 

b. Authorizing the City Manager to extend the agreement for four additional 
one-year terms, at the City’s option, at an amount not to exceed the 
budgeted amount for each year. 
 

Item A.9. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City 
Clerk’s Office. 
 
 

A.10.  Solana Energy Alliance (SEA) Decertification. (File 1010-45) 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1. Adopt Resolution 2021-085 decertifying Solana Energy Alliance as a 
community choice aggregator. 
 

Item A.10. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City 
Clerk’s Office. 
 
 

A.11.  Community Development Professional Services. (File 0600-05) 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1. Adopt Resolution 2021-078 authorizing the City Manager to execute 
Professional Services Agreements with Data Ticket, Summit Environmental, 
Telecom Law Firm and Warwick Consulting Group. 
 

Item A.11. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City 
Clerk’s Office. 



 

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda                  June 9, 2021                 Page 6 of 8  

A.12.  Building and Safety Plan Review and Inspection Services. (File 0800-20) 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1. Adopt Resolution 2021-079 authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
Professional Services Agreement with EsGil at the fixed rate of 55% of the 
building plan review and permit fees for one (1) year with four (4) additional 
one (1) year optional extensions at the City Manager’s discretion. 
 

Item A.12. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City 
Clerk’s Office. 
 
 

B.  PUBLIC HEARINGS:  (B.1.) 
Note to Public: Refer to Public Participation for information on how to submit public comment.   
Any member of the public may address the City Council on an item of concern by submitting 
written correspondence for the record to be filed with the record or by registering to join the 
virtual meeting online to speak live, per the Public Participation instructions on the Agenda. 
The maximum time allotted for each speaker is THREE MINUTES (SBMC 2.04.190).  
An applicant or designee(s) for a private development/business project, for which the public 
hearing is being held, is allotted a total of fifteen minutes to speak, as per SBMC 2.04.210.  A 
portion of the fifteen minutes may be saved to respond to those who speak in opposition.  All 
other speakers have three minutes each.  
After considering all of the evidence, including written materials and oral testimony, the City 
Council must make a decision supported by findings and the findings must be supported by 
substantial evidence in the record.   
 
 

B.1.    Public Hearing:  512, 516, 524, 538 S. Nardo Ave., Applicant: Ocean Ranch  
Estates, LLC, Case: MOD20-003. (File 0600-40) 

    

The proposed project meets the minimum objective requirements under the 
SBMC, is consistent with the General Plan and may be found, as conditioned, to 
meet the discretionary findings to approve a modification to the approved DRP 
and SUB/TPM. Therefore, Staff recommends that the City Council: 
 

1. Conduct the Public Hearing: Open the Public Hearing, Report Council 
Disclosures, Receive Public Testimony, Close the Public Hearing. 

2. If the City Council makes the requisite findings and approves the project, 
adopt Resolution 2021-054 conditionally approving a modification to the 
DRP and SUB/TPM to relocate the proposed 8-ince sewer line into a newly 
proposed easement and add roadside infiltration swales along Bell Ranch 
Road and an infiltration basin in front of Lot 2 during phase one of the project 
on property at 512 through 538 South Nardo Avenue, Solana Beach. 
 

Item B.1. Report (click here) 
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City 
Clerk’s Office. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda                  June 9, 2021                 Page 7 of 8  

C. STAFF REPORTS:  (C.1.) 
Note to Public: Refer to Public Participation for information on how to submit public comment.   
Any member of the public may address the City Council on an item of concern by submitting 
written correspondence for the record to be filed with the record or by registering to join the 
virtual meeting online to speak live, per the Public Participation instructions on the Agenda. 
The maximum time allotted for each speaker is THREE MINUTES (SBMC 2.04.190).  
 
 

C.1. Fiscal Year (FY) 2021/22 Community Grant Program Requests. (File 0330-25) 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1. Receive the Staff Report, Community Grant applications and consider the 
presentations from the grant applicants. This item will come back to the City 
Council at the June 23, 2021 City Council Meeting for Council’s grant 
allocations. 

 

Item C.1. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City 
Clerk’s Office. 

 
 

WORK PLAN COMMENTS:  
Adopted June 12, 2019 
 
 

COMPENSATION & REIMBURSEMENT DISCLOSURE:  
GC: Article 2.3.  Compensation: 53232.3. (a) Reimbursable expenses shall include, but not be 
limited to, meals, lodging, and travel. 53232.3 (d) Members of a legislative body shall provide 
brief reports on meetings attended at the expense of the local agency “City” at the next regular 
meeting of the legislative body.  
 
 

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS: Council Committees 

REGIONAL COMMITTEES: (outside agencies, appointed by this Council) 
a. City Selection Committee (meets twice a year) Primary-Heebner, Alternate-Edson 
b. Clean Energy Alliance (CEA) JPA: Primary-Becker, Alternate-Zito 
c. County Service Area 17: Primary- Harless, Alternate-Edson 
d. Escondido Creek Watershed Authority: Becker /Staff (no alternate). 
e. League of Ca. Cities’ San Diego County Executive Committee: Primary-Becker, Alternate-  

Harless. Subcommittees determined by its members. 
f. League of Ca. Cities’ Local Legislative Committee: Primary-Harless, Alternate-Becker 
g. League of Ca. Cities’ Coastal Cities Issues Group (CCIG): Primary-Becker, Alternate-

Harless 
h. North County Dispatch JPA: Primary-Harless, Alternate-Becker 
i. North County Transit District: Primary-Edson, Alternate-Harless 
j. Regional Solid Waste Association (RSWA): Primary-Harless, Alternate-Zito 
k. SANDAG: Primary-Heebner, 1st Alternate-Zito, 2nd Alternate-Edson. Subcommittees 

determined by its members. 
l. SANDAG Shoreline Preservation Committee: Primary-Becker, Alternate-Zito 
m. San Dieguito River Valley JPA: Primary-Harless, Alternate-Becker 
n. San Elijo JPA: Primary-Zito, Primary-Becker, Alternate-City Manager 

o. 22nd Agricultural District Association Community Relations Committee: Primary-Edson, 
Primary-Heebner 

 

https://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=584E1192-3850-46EA-B977-088AC3E81E0D&Type=B_BASIC


 

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda                  June 9, 2021                 Page 8 of 8  

STANDING COMMITTEES: (All Primary Members) (Permanent Committees) 
a. Business Liaison Committee – Zito, Edson.  
b. Fire Dept. Management Governance & Organizational Evaluation – Harless, Edson 
c. Highway 101 / Cedros Ave. Development Committee – Edson, Heebner 
d. Parks and Recreation Committee – Zito, Harless  
e. Public Arts Committee – Edson, Heebner 
f. School Relations Committee – Becker, Harless 
g. Solana Beach-Del Mar Relations Committee – Heebner, Edson 

CITIZEN COMMISSION(S)  
a. Climate Action Commission: Primary-Zito, Alternate-Becker 

 
ADJOURN: 
 
 

 

Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting is June 23, 2021 
Always refer the City’s website Event Calendar for Special Meetings or an updated schedule.  

Or Contact City Hall 858-720-2400 
www.cityofsolanabeach.org      

 

 
 
AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH 

§ 
 

I, Angela Ivey, City Clerk of the City of Solana Beach, do hereby certify that this Agenda for the June 9, 
2021 Council Meeting was called by City Council, Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency, 
Public Financing Authority, and the Housing Authority of the City of Solana Beach, California, was 
provided and posted on June 2, 2021 at 5:15 p.m. on the City Bulletin Board at the entrance to the City 
Council Chambers. Said meeting is held at 6:00 p.m., June 9, 2021, in the Council Chambers, at City 
Hall, 635 S. Highway 101, Solana Beach, California.       

        Angela Ivey, City Clerk * City of Solana Beach, CA  

 
CITIZEN CITY COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS: 
Regularly Scheduled, or Special Meetings that have been announced, are posted on each Citizen 
Commission’s Agenda webpage. See the Citizen Commission’s Agenda webpages or the City’s 
Events Calendar for updates.  

o Budget & Finance Commission 
o Climate Action Commission 
o Parks & Recreation Commission 
o Public Arts Commission 
o View Assessment Commission 

 

 

http://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/
https://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=3302C065-5C8A-43D2-88C2-F03C61D1DA2A&Type=B_BASIC
https://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=FA26EC83-8D1C-4941-A3B2-20CA81EDCDDE&Type=B_EV


 

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH 
SOLANA BEACH CITY COUNCIL, SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, 

PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 

 

MINUTES 
Joint – Closed Session 

Wednesday, April 28, 2021    5:00 p.m.  
Teleconference Location Only-City Hall/Council Chambers, 635 S. Highway 101, Solana Beach, California 

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with Governor Newsom’s  

Executive Order N-29-20 related to the COVID-19 virus. 

CITY COUNCILMEMBERS 

Lesa Heebner, Mayor 

Kristi Becker 
Deputy Mayor 

Kelly Harless 
Councilmember 

David A. Zito 
Councilmember 

District 1 

Jewel Edson 
Councilmember 

District 3 
 

Gregory Wade 
City Manager 

Johanna Canlas 
City Attorney 

Angela Ivey 
City Clerk 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Heebner called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS (ONLY): 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 
 

1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS Pursuant to Government Code 
Section 54957.6 Agency designated representative: Gregory Wade 
Employee organizations: Miscellaneous Employees, Marine Safety Unit, and 
Unrepresented Employees. 

2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) 
- Coronado, Imperial Beach, Lemon Grove & Solana Beach v. SANDAG, et al 

(Case No. 37-2020-00033974-CU-MC-CTL) 
3. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2)  - Two (2) Potential case(s).  
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(e)(3) - Claim: RISK.20-21-05  
Cameron Oxberry   

 

No reportable action. 
 

ADJOURN: 
Mayor Heebner adjourned the meeting at 5:50 p.m. 
 
 
Angela Ivey, City Clerk      Approved: ____________________ 

 

Present:           Lesa Heebner, Kristi Becker, Kelly Harless, David A. Zito, Jewel Edson 
Absent:            None 
Also Present:   
        

Gregory Wade, City Manager 
Johanna Canlas, City Attorney 

aivey
Stamp



 

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH 
SOLANA BEACH CITY COUNCIL, SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT 

AGENCY, PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, AND HOUSING AUTHORITY  

 

MINUTES  
Joint REGULAR Meeting 

Wednesday, April 28, 2021 * 6:00 p.m.  
Teleconference Location Only-City Hall/Council Chambers, 635 S. Highway 101, Solana Beach, California 
This meeting will be conducted in accordance with Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20 related to the COVID-19 virus. 

Minutes contain a summary of significant discussions and formal actions taken at a City Council meeting. 
➢ City Council meetings are video recorded and archived as a permanent record. The video recording captures the 

complete proceedings of the meeting and is available for viewing on the City's website.  
➢ Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time prior to meetings for processing new 

submittals. Complete records containing meeting handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records 
Request. 

 

 

CITY COUNCILMEMBERS 

Lesa Heebner, Mayor 

Kristi Becker 
Deputy Mayor 

Kelly Harless 
Councilmember 

David A. Zito 
Councilmember 

District 1 

Jewel Edson 
Councilmember 

District 3 
 

Gregory Wade 
City Manager 

Johanna Canlas 
City Attorney 

Angela Ivey 
City Clerk 

 

 

SPEAKERS: 
See Public Participation on the first page of the Agenda for publication participation options.  
 

READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS:  
Pursuant to Solana Beach Municipal Code Section 2.04.460, at the time of introduction or adoption of an 
ordinance or adoption of a resolution, the same shall not be read in full unless after the reading of the title, 
further reading is requested by a member of the Council. If any Councilmember so requests, the ordinance 
or resolution shall be read in full. In the absence of such a request, this section shall constitute a waiver by 
the council of such reading. 
 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Heebner called the meeting to order at 6:04 p.m. 
 

Present:  Lesa Heebner, Kristi Becker, Kelly Harless, David A. Zito, Jewel Edson 

Absent:   None 
Also 
Present: 
          

Greg Wade, City Manager 
Johanna Canlas, City Attorney 
Angela Ivey, City Clerk 
Dan King, Assistant City Manager  
Mo Sammak, City Engineer/Public Works Dir. 
Ryan Smith, Finance Dir.  
Joseph Lim, Community Development Dir. 

 

CLOSED SESSION REPORT: None 

 

FLAG SALUTE: 
 

PRESENTATIONS: Ceremonial items that do not contain in-depth discussion and no action/direction.  

Congressman Mike Levin spoke about the American Rescue Plan, vaccinations, loss of 

http://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=F5D45D10-70CE-4291-A27C-7BD633FC6742&Type=B_BASIC
http://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=F5D45D10-70CE-4291-A27C-7BD633FC6742&Type=B_BASIC
https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SolanaBeach/


 

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes                  April 28, 2021                 Page 2 of 10  

loved ones, jobs, businesses and more, serving on the Veterans Affairs Committee 
regarding the unemployment and rapid retraining program, funding for all cities including 
small cities, direct funding for schools to reduce class sizes, modifying spaces, 
ventilation, and personal protection equipment. He spoke about the American Jobs Plan 
and comprehensive recovery legislation based on infrastructure development, clean 
energy innovation and jobs growth, and his recent support for an Agricultural Affairs 
Rescue Act affecting the Del Mar Fairgrounds, which had layoffs due to financial loss.  
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  
Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Becker to 
approve. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. Noes: None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS:  
Note to Public: Refer to Public Participation for information on how to submit public comment.   
This portion of the agenda provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the 
City Council on items relating to City business and not appearing on today’s agenda by 
having submitted written comments for the record to be filed with the record or by registering 
to join the virtual meeting online to speak live, per the Public Participation instructions on the 
Agenda.  
Comments relating to items on this evening’s agenda are taken at the time the items are 
heard. Pursuant to the Brown Act, no action shall be taken by the City Council on public 
comment items.  Council may refer items to the City Manager for placement on a future 
agenda.  The maximum time allotted for each speaker is THREE MINUTES (SBMC 2.04.190).  
 

Jim Hiraoka spoke about Council and the Planning department review of the policies 
around solar and the permitting process, that they are ambiguous and contradictory, that 
the 346 Glenmont project went through the View Assessment Commission Development 
Review Permit (DRP) and Structure Development Permit (SDP) process when the 
applicants stated that solar panels were not part of the project, that since then a massive 
solar array had been erected at the project, that the Planning department stated that 
solar permits were not subject to the discretionary review of the DRP and SDP, that it did 
not make sense that Solana Beach residents had no effective way to comment on solar 
panels, that the View Assessment Commission process applies to “construction that is or 
adds to an existing structure that would be over 16 ft.in height” and required for 
“commercial construction for additions of 500 sq. ft. or more, or an increase to the 
building envelope,” that a solar panel or modular array that exceeds the maximum 
building height is not considered a small residential rooftop solar system, and requesting 
that the City review these inconsistencies that has provided for solar or another structure 
additions not being displayed on discretionary plans.  
 
Jill Cooper spoke about Bike Walk Solana’s Self-Guided Scavenger Hunt event that 
encourages Solana Beach residents to think outside the car which takes place in the 
month of May, and that a score card can be completed and submitted to be entered into 
a raffle for a grand prize of an e-bike donated by San Diego Electric Bike.  
 

COUNCIL COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS / COMMENTARY: 
An opportunity for City Council to make brief announcements or report on their activities. These items 
are not agendized for official City business with no action or substantive discussion.  
 
 

A. CONSENT CALENDAR:  (Action Items) (A.1. - A.4.) 



 

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes                  April 28, 2021                 Page 3 of 10  

Note to Public: Refer to Public Participation for information on how to submit public comment.   
Items listed on the Consent Calendar are to be acted in a single action of the City Council 
unless pulled for discussion.  
Any member of the public may address the City Council on an item of concern by submitting 
written correspondence for the record to be filed with the record or by registering to join the 
virtual meeting online to speak live, per the Public Participation instructions on the Agenda. 
The maximum time allotted for each speaker is THREE MINUTES (SBMC 2.04.190).  
Those items removed from the Consent Calendar by a member of the Council will be trailed to 
the end of the agenda, while Consent Calendar items removed by the public will be discussed 
immediately after approval of the Consent Calendar. 
 
 

A.1.   Register Of Demands. (File 0300-30) 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1.  Ratify the list of demands for March 27, 2021 – April 09, 2021. 
 

Item A.1. Report (click here)  
Motion: Moved by Deputy Mayor Becker and second by Councilmember Harless to 
approve. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. Noes: None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

A.2.   General Fund Budget Adjustments for Fiscal Year 2020/21. (File 0330-30)  
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1. Receive the report listing changes made to the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 
General Fund Adopted Budget. 

 

Item A.2. Report (click here)  
Motion: Moved by Deputy Mayor Becker and second by Councilmember Harless to 
approve. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. Noes: None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

A.3.  Citywide Street Sweeping Services. (File 0820-35) 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1. Adopt Resolution 2021-047 
a. Authorizing the City Manager to execute a Professional Services 

Agreement with CleanStreet, LLC for Citywide Street Sweeping 
Services for FY 2021/22 for a not-to-exceed amount of $50,000. 

b. Authorizing the City Manager, at his sole discretion, to extend the 
Professional Service Agreement with CleanStreet for up to four 
additional one-year terms, with an annual 1% escalator clause for year 2 
and a 2% escalator clause for years 3 through 5.  
 

Item A.3. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the 
City Clerk’s Office. 

Motion: Moved by Deputy Mayor Becker and second by Councilmember Harless to 
approve. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. Noes: None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 

https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_A.1._Report_(click_here)_4-28-21-O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_A.2._Report_(click_here)_4-28-21-O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_A.3._Report_(click_here)_4-28-21-O.pdf


 

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes                  April 28, 2021                 Page 4 of 10  

A.4. Solid Waste Rate Review Prop 218 Notification. (File 1030-15) 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1.  Adopt Resolution 2021-053 setting the Solid Waste Rate Review Public 
Hearing protest vote for June 23, 2021. 

 

Item A.4. Report (click here)  
Item A.4. Updated Report # 1 (added 4-27-21 at 5pm)  
Item A.4. Updated Report #2 (added 4-28-21 at 10:40am) 
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City 
Clerk’s Office. 

Motion: Moved by Deputy Mayor Becker and second by Councilmember Harless to 
approve. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. Noes: None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

B.  PUBLIC HEARINGS:  (B.1. – B.3.) 
Note to Public: Refer to Public Participation for information on how to submit public comment.   
Any member of the public may address the City Council on an item of concern by submitting 
written correspondence for the record to be filed with the record or by registering to join the 
virtual meeting online to speak live, per the Public Participation instructions on the Agenda. 
The maximum time allotted for each speaker is THREE MINUTES (SBMC 2.04.190).  
An applicant or designee(s) for a private development/business project, for which the public 
hearing is being held, is allotted a total of fifteen minutes to speak, as per SBMC 2.04.210.  A 
portion of the fifteen minutes may be saved to respond to those who speak in opposition.  All 
other speakers have three minutes each.  
After considering all of the evidence, including written materials and oral testimony, the City 
Council must make a decision supported by findings and the findings must be supported by 
substantial evidence in the record.   
 
 

B.1. Public Hearing:  112 S. Cedros Ave., Applicant: Local Roots Kombucha, 
Case: CUP 20-001. (File 0600-40) 
 

The proposed project meets the minimum objective requirements under the 
SBMC, is consistent with the General Plan and may be found, as conditioned, to 
meet the discretionary findings required as discussed in this report to approve a 
CUP.  Therefore, Staff recommends that the City Council: 
 

1. Conduct the Public Hearing: Open the Public Hearing, Report Council 
Disclosures, Receive Public Testimony, and Close the Public Hearing. 

2. Find the project exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
pursuant to Section 15303 of the State CEQA Guidelines; and 

3. If the City Council makes the requisite findings and approves the project, 
adopt Resolution 2021-048 conditionally approving a CUP for the project to 
allow for alcohol sales for on- and off-site consumption and a shared parking 
agreement at 112 South Cedros Avenue. 

 

Item B.1. Report (click here) 
Item B.1. Updated Report #1 (added 4-28-21 at 9:00am) 
Item B.1. Supplemental Docs (upd. 4-28-21 at 9:40am) 
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City 
Clerk’s Office. 
 

https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_A.4._Report_(click_here)_4-28-21-O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_A.4._Staff_Report_Update_1.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_A.4._Staff_Report_Update_1.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_A.4._Staff_Report_Update_2_-_O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_B.1._Report_(click_here)_4-28-21-O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_B.1._Updated_Report_1_(4-28_845am)_-_O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_B.1._Supplemental_Docs_(upd._4-28_at_940am)_-_O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_B.1._Supplemental_Docs_(upd._4-28_at_940am)_-_O.pdf


 

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes                  April 28, 2021                 Page 5 of 10  

Greg Wade, City Manager, introduced the item. 
 
Joe Lim, Community Development Dir., presented a PowerPoint (on file).  
 
Mayor Heebner opened the public hearing. 
 
Council disclosures. 
 
Gary Cohen, Applicant’s architect, presented a PowerPoint (on file) and reviewed the 
project including layout, materials, parking.  
 
Council, Mr. Cohen, and Ryan White, Applicants, discussed the project, working hours, 
parking, and that their production facility was located in Vista. 
 
Jo Carmichael, Applicant, continued the PowerPoint (on file) and discussed their 
discovery of kombucha, their organic, plant-based, tea-based product, the kombucha 
market, renderings of the store front.  
 
Jeff Kohn, Epic Investment, said that he owns the building, that the lease goes to 
2027, and that the Beal operation does not work during off hours but are out showing 
homes, and that he held the space for about a year to accommodate this business.  
 
Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Becker to close 
the public hearing. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. Noes: 
None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Council and Applicants discussed the parking study, the blue folder submittals in support 
of the business, and the use of recyclable aluminum cans.  
 
Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Becker to 
approve Staff recommendation. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, 
Edson. Noes: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

B.2. Public Hearing:  330 S. Cedros Ave., Applicant: Brad Wise, Trust 
Restaurant Group, Case: MOD21-001.   (File 0600-40) 
 

The proposed project meets the minimum objective requirements under the 
SBMC, is consistent with the General Plan and may be found, as conditioned, to 
meet the discretionary findings to approve a modification to the approve DRP, 
CUP, SDP and MEC.  Therefore, Staff recommends that the City Council: 

 

1. Conduct the Public Hearing: Open the Public Hearing, Report Council 
disclosures, Receive Public Testimony, Close the Public Hearing. 

2. Find the project exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
pursuant to Section 15301 (Existing Facilities) of the State CEQA 
Guidelines.  

3. If the City Council makes the requisite findings and approves the project, 
adopt Resolution 2021-050 conditionally approving a modification to the 
approved DRP, SDP, CUP, MEC and CSP for a mixed use development at 
330 S. Cedros Avenue, Solana Beach. 
 



 

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes                  April 28, 2021                 Page 6 of 10  

Item B.2. Report (click here)  
Item B.2. Updated Report #1 (added 4-27-21) 
Item B.2. Supplemental Docs (upd. 4-26-21 at 5:45pm) 
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City 
Clerk’s Office. 
 
Deputy Mayor Becker stated that she had property within 1,000 ft., but that she could 
remain impartial.   
 
Greg Wade, City Manager, introduced the item.  
 
Corey Andrews, Principal Planner, presented a PowerPoint (on file).  
 
Mayor Heebner opened the public hearing.  
 
Council disclosures.  
 
Nuwan Ranasinghe, Architect, GTC, stated that this was specifically related to the 
awning that was not providing enough shading, that they were proposing a large 
simple structure of fabric on top to provide shade for patrons, and requested the 
exception since they are 10 ft. set back and the structure would protrude 5 ft. into the 
set back.  
 
Brad Wise, Applicant, partner of Trust Group and the chef said that they were familiar 
with outdoor eating establishments since they have several others and were respectful 
to the neighbors, and that they were sensitive to the aesthetics of the area.  
 
Council and Applicant discussed that drop down walls would not be used in the 
summer but possible during the winter months, that amplified music was not allowed 
under their ABC license and that their atmosphere was ambient music, the original 
approval shared parking because their peak hours were at lunch time, whether to 
consider a corrugated metal awning to keep with the area’s aesthetics or stay with the 
proposed fabric, and the operating days of the week and maybe the weekends.  
 
Motion: Moved by Councilmember Zito and second by Councilmember Edson to close 
the public hearing. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. Noes: 
None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Council discussed the awning, rolling walls for weather, consider adding a bike rack 
nearby so they would not use the restaurants posts, consider requiring the corrugated 
awnings since it is an industrial looking building, and that the metal awning might be 
louder if it were raining.  
 
Motion: Moved by Councilmember Harless and second by Deputy Mayor Becker to re-
open the public hearing. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. 
Noes: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Council and Applicants discussed that the applicant currently had a corrugated awning 
½ of this size and the rain and wind sounds like a drum, that the metal heats up in the 
sun and affects the patrons below, and the wear and tear of the ocean nearby requires 

https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_B.2._Report_(click_here)_4-28-21-O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_B.2._Updated_Report_1_-_O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_B.2._Updated_Report_1_-_O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_B.2._Supplemental_Docs_(upd._4-26)_-_O.pdf


 

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes                  April 28, 2021                 Page 7 of 10  

more upkeep.  
 
Motion: Moved by Deputy Mayor Becker and second by Councilmember Edson to close 
the public hearing. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. Noes: 
None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Becker to 
approve Staff recommendation. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, 
Edson. Noes: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Mayor Heebner recessed the meeting for a break at 7:47 p.m. and reconvened at  7:51 
p.m.  
 
 

B.3. Public Hearing:  330 S. Cedros Ave., Applicant: RAF Pacifica Group, 
Sotheby’s, Case: MOD21-002.   (File 0600-40) 

 

The proposed project meets the minimum objective requirements under the SBMC, 
is consistent with the General Plan and may be found, as conditioned, to meet the 
discretionary findings to approve a modification to the approved DRP, CUP, SDP 
and MEC. Therefore, Staff recommends that the City Council: 
 

1. Conduct the Public Hearing: Open the Public Hearing, Report Council 
Disclosures, Receive Public Testimony, Close the Public Hearing. 

2. Find the project exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
pursuant to Section 15301 (Existing Facilities) of the State CEQA 
Guidelines.  

3. If the City Council makes the requisite findings and approves the project, 
adopt Resolution 2021-051 conditionally approving a modification to the 
approved DRP, SDP, CUP, MEC and CSP for a mixed-use development at 
330 S. Cedros Avenue, Solana Beach.  

 

Item B.3. Report (click here) 
Item B.3. Updated Report # 1 (added 4-27-21)  
Item B.3. Supplemental Docs (upd. 4-28-21 at 2:30pm) 
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City 
Clerk’s Office. 
 
Greg Wade, City Manager, introduced the item and that the application was a 
consideration to change the use form the approve use of retail to an office use.  
 
Deputy Mayor Becker stated disclosure within 1,000 ft of the property but can make an 
unbiased decision. 
 
Corey Andrews, Principal Planner, presented a PowerPoint (on file) reviewing the 
proposal for a modification to the site from the original 2016 project approval to allow a 
retail tenant space to be converted to office space for the use as a real estate gallery 
or real estate office.   
 
Mayor Heebner opened the public hearing. 
 
Council disclosures.  

https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_B.3._Report_(click_here)_4-28-21-O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_B.3._Updated_Report_1.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_B.3._Updated_Report_1.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_B.3._Supplemental_Docs_(4-28_at_230pm)_-_O.pdf


 

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes                  April 28, 2021                 Page 8 of 10  

 
Tiffany English, Applicant, presented a PowerPoint (on file), and said that Pacific 
Sotheby’s currently has an office space on the second floor northwest corner of the 
building above the restaurant, and that this space would be utilized for their global 
gallery and would not be a traditional office space, that it would have a concierge 
atmosphere with a community focus and a retail environment, and that it would not 
have homes posted in the windows or real estate transaction meetings, a full gallery 
space in the front with a global gallery specialist, coffee bar and conference room, and 
that they have had a similar space approved in La Jolla.  
 
Ryan Secrist, Applicant, continued the PowerPoint (on file) and spoke about 
reorganizing the model of the Sotheby’s International Realty, their partnership with an 
auction house that would feature local arts, bringing in a New York concept to Solana 
Beach, that the space was meant to greet the public, that many owners in Solana 
Beach have 2nd homes elsewhere, that no flyers or private offices for agents would be 
in this space, and that the model would fit in with Cedros Design District.  
 
Council and Applicants discussed that the items displayed in the gallery may be  
diamonds, watches, digital auctions, other retail items purchased online, their own 
wine and champagne for sale, that they intended to partner with local businesses to 
showcase them a week or month, bring in local artists who could sell their art, that the 
PowerPoint labeled as open office instead of a retail space, that they were told that 
they could not label office space as retail to comply with the City’s Municipal Code, that 
a conference room was a meeting space, that the function of an agent meeting with a 
customer would be upstairs in the office and not in this retail space, that it would act as 
a storefront to value the art and approve to sale, auction online and showcase it at this 
space, they have a vast database of Solana Beach residents and surrounding 
businesses, the intent to be an interactive experience, that there would be no sales tax 
except retail estate or property tax, and that the public submittals were in opposition to 
the modification.  
 
Ryan Secrist, Applicant, said that the challenge is the community thinks of real estate 
as stacked paper and messy offices with flyers in the window with multiple agents and 
that this is a change in the model with their partnership with the auction house and that 
it is a retail experience for customers rather than an agents’ office.  
 
Motion: Moved by Councilmember Harless and second by Deputy Mayor Becker to 
close the public hearing. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. 
Noes: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Council discussed that the concept was not clear how this space would be retail space 
rather than real estate office even though there are options to purchase auction items, 
that it was a great company but this concept was not clear enough to make the 
findings, that it was a creative idea, that the City does not have enough retail space, 
the local business owners made good points, interesting concept, whether it would add 
to pedestrian activity, that the modification findings had to meet relationship with 
adjacent land uses which were all retail, that it has to ensure compatibility and be 
complimentary with the existing development, that an office in this space would cause 
a gap in the retail, that retail owners in the area did not support this business concept 
and expressed significant objection, the space being specifically designed and 



 

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes                  April 28, 2021                 Page 9 of 10  

approved as retail, that it was important to maintain the unique walkable retail area, 
and that the Special Commercial Zone required that this area be preserved and 
perpetuate a unique pedestrian oriented commercial center with specialty retail shops 
and residential lofts.   
 
Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Becker to deny 
the project modification request. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, 
Edson. Noes: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
C. STAFF REPORTS:  (C.1. – C.2.) 
Note to Public: Refer to Public Participation for information on how to submit public comment.   
Any member of the public may address the City Council on an item of concern by submitting 
written correspondence for the record to be filed with the record or by registering to join the 
virtual meeting online to speak live, per the Public Participation instructions on the Agenda. 
The maximum time allotted for each speaker is THREE MINUTES (SBMC 2.04.190).  
 

C.1. COVID TUP (Temporary Use Permit) Policy Extension. (File 0230-20)  
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1. Consider approval of Resolution 2021-049 authorizing extension of the 
Temporary Use Permit Policy until a specified date or until the emergency 
public health order limiting indoor dining and social distancing requirements 
is lifted. 

 

Item C.1. Report (click here)  
Item C.1. Supplemental Docs (upd. 4-28-21 at 2:00pm) 
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City 
Clerk’s Office. 

 
Greg Wade, City Manager, introduced the item. 
 
Joe Lim, Community Development Dir., presented a PowerPoint (on file)  
 
Tom Van Betten, General partner of Saddle Bar, said that on behalf of Pill Box, Station 
Sushi, Tea’s Café, Crust, Red Tracton’s, Pamplemousse and Solana Beach Chamber 
of Commerce, as well as others, they request the extension of the Temporary Use 
Permit allowing for outdoor dining patios, that a major realization during COVID was 
that local bars and restaurants are amenities to the community, the expense of running 
these venues and many businesses had folded, that they want to ensure better 
operations for customers, and invest in more professional, sturdy, and safe outdoor 
structures, that the downside of parking had become less of an issue with rideshare, 
electric bikes and walking, and that it appeared that people were willing to forgo 
convenience rather than see another leave sign in their neighborhood.  
 
Larna Hartnack said that since COVID her family had safely visited outdoor dining, 
enjoyed the sunshine and the local food, that restaurants had complied with 
requirements, that Solana Beach restaurants deserve this outdoor space to make up 
for the last year of loss, and that she wanted to help keep local restaurants and other 
business that make Solana Beach a live and vibrant place.  
 
Johanna Canlas, City Attorney, said that the temporary nature of the TUP is because 

https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_C.1._Report_(click_here)_4-28-21-O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_C.1._Supplemental_Docs_(Upd._4-28-21_at_146pm)_-_O.pdf


 

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes                  April 28, 2021                 Page 10 of 10  

of the public health order and the existing emergency and that if Council wanted to 
pilot a program outside of the emergency order which may end June 15th, then Staff 
would need to come back with some alternate plans.  
 
Council and Staff discussed favor for supporting the extension of the TUP which has 
been a benefit to businesses, that future consideration would need to be evaluated in 
depth as parking issues affect surrounding neighborhoods, outdoor dining was festive 
and draws in customers to other local businesses, and to look into something more 
permanent to allow for more outdoor seating. 
 
Motion: Moved by Councilmember Zito and second by Councilmember Edson to 
approve the TUP extension. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, 
Edson. Noes: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

C.2. Citizen Commission Vacancies: Public Arts Commission and Parks & 
Recreation Commission Appointments.  (File 0120-06) 

 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1. Consider the application(s) submitted and make an appointment to the 
vacancy on the Public Arts Commission and the Parks & Recreation 
Commission with terms until January 2022. 
 

Item C.2. Report (click here)   
Item C.2. Updated Report #1 (added 4-28-21 at 1:40pm)_ 
Item C.2. Supplemental Docs (upd 4-28-21 at 2:00pm) 
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City 
Clerk’s Office. 

 
Council discussed the deadline and additional vacancy and to continue the item to the May 
12th Council meeting. Council reached consensus to postpone the item to the May 12th 
Council meeting. 
 
WORK PLAN COMMENTS:  
Adopted June 12, 2019 
 

COMPENSATION & REIMBURSEMENT DISCLOSURE:  
GC: Article 2.3.  Compensation: 53232.3. (a) Reimbursable expenses shall include, but not be 
limited to, meals, lodging, and travel. 53232.3 (d) Members of a legislative body shall provide 
brief reports on meetings attended at the expense of the local agency “City” at the next regular 
meeting of the legislative body.  
 
 

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS: Council Committees 

REGIONAL COMMITTEES: (outside agencies, appointed by this Council) 
STANDING COMMITTEES: (All Primary Members) (Permanent Committees) 
CITIZEN COMMISSION(S)  
 
ADJOURN: 
Mayor Heebner adjourned the meeting at 9:13 p.m. 
 
Angela Ivey, City Clerk     Council approved: ____________ 

https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_C.2._Report_(click_here)_4-28-21-O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_C.2._Staff_Report_Update_1_-_O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_C.2._Supplemental_Docs_(4-28_at_145pm)_-_O.pdf
https://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=584E1192-3850-46EA-B977-088AC3E81E0D&Type=B_BASIC


 

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH 
SOLANA BEACH CITY COUNCIL, SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, 

PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 

 

MINUTES 
Joint – Closed Session 

Wednesday, May 12, 2021    5:00 p.m.  
Teleconference Location Only-City Hall/Council Chambers, 635 S. Highway 101, Solana Beach, California 

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with Governor Newsom’s  

Executive Order N-29-20 related to the COVID-19 virus. 
 

CITY COUNCILMEMBERS 

Lesa Heebner, Mayor 

Kristi Becker 
Deputy Mayor 

Kelly Harless 
Councilmember 

David A. Zito 
Councilmember 

District 1 

Jewel Edson 
Councilmember 

District 3 
 

Gregory Wade 
City Manager 

Johanna Canlas 
City Attorney 

Angela Ivey 
City Clerk 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Heebner called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS (ONLY): 
Report to Council Chambers and submit speaker slips to the City Clerk before 
the meeting recesses to closed session. 

 

CLOSED SESSION: 
 

1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) - Two (2) Potential case(s).  
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(e)(3) - Claim: RISK.20-21-05, Cameron 
Oxberry   

2. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 
Agency designated representative: Gregory Wade 
Employee organizations: Miscellaneous Employees, Marine Safety Unit, and Unrepresented 
Employees. 

 
No reportable action. 

 
ADJOURN: 
Mayor Heebner adjourned the meeting at 5:59 p.m. 
 
 
Angela Ivey, City Clerk      Approved: ____________________ 

Present:           Lesa Heebner, Kristi Becker, Kelly Harless, David A. Zito, Jewel Edson 
Absent:            None 
Also Present:   
        

Gregory Wade, City Manager 
Johanna Canlas, City Attorney 

' i 

I J 



 

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH 
SOLANA BEACH CITY COUNCIL, SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT 

AGENCY, PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, AND HOUSING AUTHORITY  

 

MINUTES 
Joint REGULAR Meeting 

Wednesday, May 12, 2021 * 6:00 p.m.  
Teleconference Location Only-City Hall/Council Chambers, 635 S. Highway 101, Solana Beach, California 
This meeting will be conducted in accordance with Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20 related to the COVID-19 virus. 

 

Minutes contain a summary of significant discussions and formal actions taken at a City Council meeting. 
➢ City Council meetings are video recorded and archived as a permanent record. The video recording captures the 

complete proceedings of the meeting and is available for viewing on the City's website.  
➢ Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time prior to meetings for processing new 

submittals. Complete records containing meeting handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records 
Request. 

 

CITY COUNCILMEMBERS 

Lesa Heebner, Mayor 

Kristi Becker 
Deputy Mayor 

Kelly Harless 
Councilmember 

David A. Zito 
Councilmember 

District 1 

Jewel Edson 
Councilmember 

District 3 
 

Gregory Wade 
City Manager 

Johanna Canlas 
City Attorney 

Angela Ivey 
City Clerk 

 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Heebner called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m. 
 

Present:  Lesa Heebner, Kristi Becker, Kelly Harless, David A. Zito, Jewel Edson 

Absent:   None 
Also 
Present: 
          

Greg Wade, City Manager 
Johanna Canlas, City Attorney 
Angela Ivey, City Clerk 
Dan King, Assistant City Manager  
Mo Sammak, City Engineer/Public Works Dir. 
Ryan Smith, Finance Dir.  
Joseph Lim, Community Development Dir. 

 

CLOSED SESSION REPORT:  
 

FLAG SALUTE: 
 

PROCLAMATIONS/CERTIFICATES: Ceremonial  
 

National Bike Month 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  
Motion: Moved by Deputy Mayor Becker and second by Councilmember Harless to 
approve. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. Noes: None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: None 

http://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=F5D45D10-70CE-4291-A27C-7BD633FC6742&Type=B_BASIC
http://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=F5D45D10-70CE-4291-A27C-7BD633FC6742&Type=B_BASIC


 

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda                  May 12, 2021                 Page 2 of 6  

 

COUNCIL COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS / COMMENTARY: 
An opportunity for City Council to make brief announcements or report on their activities. These items 
are not agendized for official City business with no action or substantive discussion.  

 
A. CONSENT CALENDAR:  (Action Items) (A.1. - A.6.) 
Note to Public: Refer to Public Participation for information on how to submit public comment.   
Items listed on the Consent Calendar are to be acted in a single action of the City Council 
unless pulled for discussion.  
Any member of the public may address the City Council on an item of concern by submitting 
written correspondence for the record to be filed with the record or by registering to join the 
virtual meeting online to speak live, per the Public Participation instructions on the Agenda. 
The maximum time allotted for each speaker is THREE MINUTES (SBMC 2.04.190).  
Those items removed from the Consent Calendar by a member of the Council will be trailed to 
the end of the agenda, while Consent Calendar items removed by the public will be discussed 
immediately after approval of the Consent Calendar. 
 
 

A.1. Minutes of the City Council.  
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1. Approve the Minutes of the March 24, 2021 and April 14, 2021 City Council 
Meetings. 

Minutes http://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=F0F1200D-21C6-4A88-8AE1-0BC07C1A81A7&Type=B_BASIC 

 

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Becker to 
approve. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. Noes: None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

A.2.   Register Of Demands. (File 0300-30) 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1.  Ratify the list of demands for April 10, 2021 – April 23, 2021. 
 

Item A.2. Report (click here)  
Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Becker to 
approve. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. Noes: None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

A.3.   General Fund Budget Adjustments for Fiscal Year 2020/21. (File 0330-30)  
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1. Receive the report listing changes made to the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 
General Fund Adopted Budget. 

 

Item A.3. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City 
Clerk’s Office. 

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Becker to 
approve. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. Noes: None. 

http://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=F0F1200D-21C6-4A88-8AE1-0BC07C1A81A7&Type=B_BASIC
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_A.2._Report_(click_here)_-_5-12-21_O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_A.3._Report_(click_here)_-_5-12-21_O.pdf


 

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda                  May 12, 2021                 Page 3 of 6  

Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

A.4.  City of Kindness Council Subcommittee. (File 0160-80) 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1. Consider adoption of Resolution 2021-059 forming a temporary City of 
Kindness Council Subcommittee for the upcoming fiscal year and appointing 
Mayor Heebner and Councilmember Zito to the City of Kindness Council 
Subcommittee with the Subcommittee and appointments concluding on June 
30, 2022. 

 

Item A.4. Report (click here)  
Item A.4. Supplemental Docs (upd. 5-12-21 at 3:25pm) 
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the 
City Clerk’s Office. 

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Becker to 
approve. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. Noes: None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

A.5. Quarterly Investment Report. (File 0350-44) 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1. Accept and File the Cash and Investment Report for the quarter ended 
March 31, 2021. 
 

Item A.5. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City 
Clerk’s Office. 

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Becker to 
approve. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. Noes: None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

A.6. Resolution of Denial - 330 S. Cedros Ave., Applicant: RAF Pacifica Group, 
Case: MOD21-002 (File 0600-40) 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1. Adopt Resolution 2021-057 denying the request for a Modification to the 
approved Development Review Permit, Structure Development Permit, 
Conditional Use Permit, Minor Exception, and Comprehensive Sign Plan for 
the conversion of a commercial retail tenant space to a commercial office 
tenant space in the mixed-use project at 330 S. Cedros Avenue, Solana 
Beach. 

 

Item A.6. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City 
Clerk’s Office. 

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Becker to 
approve. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. Noes: None. 

https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_A.4._Report_(click_here)_-_5-12-21_O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_A.4._Supplemental_Docs_(upd._5-12-21_at_325pm)_-_O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_A.5._Report_(click_here)_-_5-12-21_O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_A.6._Report_(click_here)_-_5-12-21_O.pdf


 

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda                  May 12, 2021                 Page 4 of 6  

Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

B.  PUBLIC HEARINGS: (None) 
 
 

C. STAFF REPORTS:  (C.1. – C.3.) 
Note to Public: Refer to Public Participation for information on how to submit public comment.   
Any member of the public may address the City Council on an item of concern by submitting 
written correspondence for the record to be filed with the record or by registering to join the 
virtual meeting online to speak live, per the Public Participation instructions on the Agenda. 
The maximum time allotted for each speaker is THREE MINUTES (SBMC 2.04.190).  

 
C.1. Sewer Service Charges. (File 1040-70)  
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1. Approve Resolution 2021-060 to maintain sewer service charges at their 
current level for the next five fiscal years through FY 2025/26 and approve the 
Reserve Policy. 

 

Item C.1. Report (click here)  
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City 
Clerk’s Office. 

 
Greg Wade, City Manager, introduced the item. 
 
Ryan Smith, Finance Director, presented a PowerPoint (on file).  
 
Council and Staff discussed the capital reserve requirements under the new policy, 
how waiving rate increases may affect the overall forecasting for future Capital 
Improvement Projects (CIP) and projected negative cash flow, consider maintaining an 
annual 1% increase rather than larger increases at a later date to catch up, and to 
bring back an annual update and review for consideration of whether an increase is 
necessary.  
 
Motion: Moved by Councilmember Zito and second by Deputy Mayor Becker to 
approve. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. Noes: None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

C.2. Website Redesign Services.  (File 0190-60) 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1. Approve Resolution 2021-055 authorizing the City Manager to sign an 
agreement with 360Civic for website redesign services for three years and 
authorizing extensions of the agreement for hosting and maintenance 
services for up to two additional years.   

 

Item C.2. Report (click here) 
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City 
Clerk’s Office. 

https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_C.1._Report_(click_here)_-_5-12-21_O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_C.1._Report_(click_here)_-_5-12-21_O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_C.2._Report_(click_here)_-_5-12-21_O.pdf


 

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda                  May 12, 2021                 Page 5 of 6  

 
Greg Wade, City Manager, introduced the item. 
 
Rimga Viskanta, Sr. Management Analyst, presented a PowerPoint (on file).  
 
Council and Ron Zayas, 360Civic, discussed using language translations with Google 
translate or professionally translated pages, the timeline to get the project completed 
would be approximately 4-6 months, they do not use design templates and design their 
own, and the annual cost is for hosting and development and a staging server, new 
functionalities and system upgrades, ADA changes, and security. Discussion continued 
regarding the 360Civic does not have offshore employees and only use their own 
employees, training and support were free for the life of the website, 24/7 emergency 
access, data privacy and security, search engine, and the company’s municipal 
experience.  
 
Motion: Moved by Councilmember Harless and second by Councilmember Edson to 
approve. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. Noes: None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

C.3. Citizen Commission Vacancies: Public Arts Commission and Parks & 
Recreation Commission Appointments.  (File 0120-06) 

 

Recommendation: That the City Council  
 

1. Consider the application(s) submitted and make an appointment to the 
vacancy on the Public Arts Commission with a term ending January 2022 and 
make two appointments to the vacancies on the Parks & Recreation 
Commission with terms until January 2022 and January 2023. 
 

Item C.3. Report (click here)  
Item C.3. Updated Report #1 (upd. 5-10-21 at 845am) 
Item C.3. Supplemental Docs (upd. 5-10-21 at 845am) 
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new 
submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City 
Clerk’s Office. 

 
Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Councilmember Harless to 
appoint Jeanie Grischy to the Public Arts Commission until 2023, James Lally to the 
Parks & Recreation Commission until 2023, and Jim Sagona to the Parks & Recreation 
Commission until 2022. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. 
Noes: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

WORK PLAN COMMENTS:  
Adopted June 12, 2019 

 
COMPENSATION & REIMBURSEMENT DISCLOSURE:  
GC: Article 2.3.  Compensation: 53232.3. (a) Reimbursable expenses shall include, but not be 
limited to, meals, lodging, and travel. 53232.3 (d) Members of a legislative body shall provide 
brief reports on meetings attended at the expense of the local agency “City” at the next regular 
meeting of the legislative body.  

https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_C.3._Report_(click_here)_-_5-12-21_O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_C.3._Updated_Report_1_-_O.pdf
https://solanabeach.govoffice3.com/vertical/Sites/%7B840804C2-F869-4904-9AE3-720581350CE7%7D/uploads/Item_C.3._Supplemental_Docs_(5-9-21)_-_O.pdf


 

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda                  May 12, 2021                 Page 6 of 6  

 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS: Council Committees 

REGIONAL COMMITTEES: (outside agencies, appointed by this Council) 
STANDING COMMITTEES: (All Primary Members) (Permanent Committees) 
CITIZEN COMMISSION(S)  
 
ADJOURN: 
Mayor Heebner adjourned the meeting at 7:20 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
Angela Ivey, City Clerk   Council Approved: __________________ 

https://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=584E1192-3850-46EA-B977-088AC3E81E0D&Type=B_BASIC


CITY COUNCIL ACTION: ____________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

AGENDA ITEM # A.2. 

STAFF REPORT 
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers 
FROM: Gregory Wade, City Manager 
MEETING DATE:  June 9, 2021  
ORIGINATING DEPT: Finance 
SUBJECT:  Register of Demands 

BACKGROUND: 

Section 3.04.020 of the Solana Beach Municipal Code requires that the City Council ratify a 
register of demands which represents all financial demands made upon the City for the 
applicable period. 

DISCUSSION: 

Staff certifies that the register of demands has been reviewed for accuracy, that funds are 
available to pay the above demands, and that the demands comply with the adopted budget.  

CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT: 

Not a project as defined by CEQA. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The register of demands for May 8, 2021 through May 21, 2021 reflects total expenditures of 
$738,248.35 from various City sources. 

Register of Demands- 05/08/21 through 05/21/21
Check Register-Disbursement Fund (Attachment 1) $ 403,728.17            
Council Payroll May 13, 2021 4,766.55 
Federal & State Taxes May 13, 2021 397.82 
Net Payroll May 14, 2021 219,574.42            
Federal & State Taxes May 14, 2021 62,152.33              
PERS Retirement (EFT) May 18, 2021 47,629.06              

TOTAL $ 738,248.35            



June 9, 2021 
Register of Demands 

Page 2 of 2 

 

WORK PLAN: 
 
N/A 
 
OPTIONS:  
 

• Ratify the register of demands. 
• Do not ratify and provide direction. 

 
DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council ratify the above register of demands.  
 
CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Department Recommendation. 
 
 
________________________  
Gregory Wade, City Manager  
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Check Register – Disbursement Fund 
 

 



PENTAMATION                                                                                                        PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 05/24/2021                                      CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA                                     ACCTPA21
TIME: 08:43:02                                   CHECK REGISTER − DISBURSEMENT FUND

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.ck_date between ’20210508 00:00:00.000’ and ’20210521 00:00:00.000’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 11/21

     FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             

CASH ACCT CHECK NO  ISSUE DT VENDOR   NAME                     BUDGET UNIT      −−−−−DESCRIPTION−−−−−−  SALES TAX            AMOUNT

1011        98990   05/13/21 3069     JOSHUA BLEA              00165006530      MILEAGE−04/25/21             0.00             28.00

1011        98991   05/13/21 2555     BOB HOFFMAN VIDEO PRODUC 00150005450      CEA MTNGS− 11/19/20          0.00            672.00
1011        98991   05/13/21 2555     BOB HOFFMAN VIDEO PRODUC 00150005450      CEA MTNG−02/18/21            0.00            672.00
1011        98991   05/13/21 2555     BOB HOFFMAN VIDEO PRODUC 00150005450      COUNCL MTG−10/14−12/9        0.00          4,200.00
1011        98991   05/13/21 2555     BOB HOFFMAN VIDEO PRODUC 00150005450      COUNCIL MTG−1/13−4/14        0.00          5,208.00
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00         10,752.00

1011        98992   05/13/21 372      EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT D 00150005400      SUI PPE 03/31/21             0.00          4,013.82

1011        98993   05/13/21 50       OFFICE DEPOT INC         00150005350      PAPER                        0.00             67.23
1011        98993   05/13/21 50       OFFICE DEPOT INC         00150005350      SPONGES                      0.00              4.08
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00             71.31

1011        98994   05/13/21 4797     PAMELA ELLIOTT LANDSCAPE 21355005550      DRP19007/970 AVOCADO         0.00            450.00
1011        98994   05/13/21 4797     PAMELA ELLIOTT LANDSCAPE 21355005550      DRP20004/840 AVOCADO         0.00            600.00
1011        98994   05/13/21 4797     PAMELA ELLIOTT LANDSCAPE 21355005550      1714.29/661 S NARDO          0.00          1,200.00
1011        98994   05/13/21 4797     PAMELA ELLIOTT LANDSCAPE 21355005550      1717.34/652 STEVENS          0.00            250.00
1011        98994   05/13/21 4797     PAMELA ELLIOTT LANDSCAPE 21355005550      DRP20014/506 PACIFIC         0.00            300.00
1011        98994   05/13/21 4797     PAMELA ELLIOTT LANDSCAPE 21355005550      DRP21003/521 CANYON          0.00            300.00
1011        98994   05/13/21 4797     PAMELA ELLIOTT LANDSCAPE 21355005550      DRP20007/778 W SOLANA        0.00            300.00
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00          3,400.00

1011        98995   05/13/21 5547     PRIMO INVESTIGATIONS     00150005400      BCKGRND CK−PARAMEDICS        0.00          1,500.00

1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006530      011695000 0402−043021        0.00            124.95
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006550      011695000 0402−043021        0.00             73.39
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 50900007700      005506014 0402−043021        0.00            671.79
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006520      005506014 0402−043021        0.00            223.93
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560      005506001 0302−043021        0.00             74.42
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560      005506004 0302−043021        0.00             74.42
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560      005506009 0302−043021        0.00             74.42
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560      012448001 0302−043021        0.00             82.85
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560      005506013 0302−043021        0.00             97.40
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560      005979001 0302−043021        0.00            103.54
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 20875007580      005506003 0302−043021        0.00            129.56
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560      012448000 0302−043021        0.00            130.83
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560      005506007 0302−043021        0.00            136.20
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560      005506010 0302−043021        0.00            141.05
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560      005506006 0302−043021        0.00            147.89
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560      005506000 0302−043021        0.00            227.17
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560      005506005 0302−043021        0.00            233.43
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560      005506011 0302−043021        0.00            296.12
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560      005506002 0302−043021        0.00            300.97
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006570      005506008 0302−043021        0.00            364.02
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 20375007510      005979000 0302−043021        0.00            520.60
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560      005506012 0302−043021        0.00          1,513.47
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 20475007520      005979017 0402−043021        0.00             59.55
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 20475007520      005979018 0402−043021        0.00             93.48
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 20475007520      005979021 0402−043021        0.00            266.20
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 20475007520      005979019 0402−043021        0.00            297.06
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560      005506018 0402−043021        0.00            345.37

mbavin
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 1



PENTAMATION                                                                                                        PAGE NUMBER:    2
DATE: 05/24/2021                                      CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA                                     ACCTPA21
TIME: 08:43:02                                   CHECK REGISTER − DISBURSEMENT FUND

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.ck_date between ’20210508 00:00:00.000’ and ’20210521 00:00:00.000’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 11/21

     FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             

CASH ACCT CHECK NO  ISSUE DT VENDOR   NAME                     BUDGET UNIT      −−−−−DESCRIPTION−−−−−−  SALES TAX            AMOUNT

1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 20475007520      005979024 0402−043021        0.00            352.91
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 20475007520      005979015 0402−043021        0.00            466.01
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 20475007520      005979023 0402−043021        0.00            503.71
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 20475007520      005979025 0402−043021        0.00            635.66
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 20475007520      005979016 0402−043021        0.00            760.07
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 20475007520      005979020 0402−043021        0.00            805.31
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 20475007520      005979014 0402−043021        0.00            846.78
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 20475007520      005979026 0402−043021        0.00            880.71
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 20475007520      005979022 0402−043021        0.00            918.41
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00165006560      005506019 0402−043021        0.00          1,182.15
1011        98997   05/13/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 20875007580      005506020 0402−043021        0.00          1,206.16
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00         15,361.96

1011        98998   05/13/21 156      SHARP REES−STEALY MEDICA 00150005400      PRE−EMPLOYMENT SCREEN        0.00          1,587.00

1011        98999   05/13/21 5890     TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 13550005300      IMPLMNTN−NON−HR−APR          0.00          2,560.00
1011        98999   05/13/21 5890     TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 13550005200      50/50 WRK SPLT−APR           0.00            210.00
1011        98999   05/13/21 5890     TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 13550005300      50/50 WRK SPLT−APR           0.00            490.00
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00          3,260.00

1011        99000   05/13/21 5952     WAR RHINO INC.           45994076510      9407.21 CH DFRD MNT          0.00          5,773.47
1011        99000   05/13/21 5952     WAR RHINO INC.           45993956510      9395.21 FS DFRD MNT          0.00          1,983.97
1011        99000   05/13/21 5952     WAR RHINO INC.           45994076510      9407.21 CH DFRD MNT RT       0.00            303.60
1011        99000   05/13/21 5952     WAR RHINO INC.           45993956510      9395.21 FS DFRD MNT RT       0.00            104.69
1011        99000   05/13/21 5952     WAR RHINO INC.           45994076510      9407.21 CH MNT CNTG          0.00         23,750.00
1011        99000   05/13/21 5952     WAR RHINO INC.           45993956510      9395.21 FS MNT CNTG          0.00         14,250.00
1011        99000   05/13/21 5952     WAR RHINO INC.           45994076510      9407.21 CH CNTG RTN          0.00          1,250.00
1011        99000   05/13/21 5952     WAR RHINO INC.           45993956510      9395.20 FS CNTG RTN          0.00            750.00
1011        99000   05/13/21 5952     WAR RHINO INC.           459              9407.21 CH CNTG RTN          0.00         −1,250.00
1011        99000   05/13/21 5952     WAR RHINO INC.           459              9395.20 FS CNTG RTN          0.00           −750.00
1011        99000   05/13/21 5952     WAR RHINO INC.           459              9407.21 CH DFRD MNT R        0.00           −303.60
1011        99000   05/13/21 5952     WAR RHINO INC.           459              9395.21 FS DFRD MNT R        0.00           −104.69
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00         45,757.44

1011        99001   05/13/21 4844     WARWICK GROUP CONSULTANT 45099266190      9926.21 PROF SVC−APR         0.00          4,945.00

1011        99002   05/13/21 5594     WEX BANK                 00160006120      CR EXEMPT TAX−OCT            0.00            −70.71
1011        99002   05/13/21 5594     WEX BANK                 00160006120      AUTO FUEL−OCT                0.00            970.25
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00            899.54

1011        99003   05/13/21 5916     WEX FLEET UNIVERSAL      00165006560      AUTO FUEL−03/08−04/07        0.00             63.93
1011        99003   05/13/21 5916     WEX FLEET UNIVERSAL      00170007110      AUTO FUEL−03/08−04/07        0.00             64.04
1011        99003   05/13/21 5916     WEX FLEET UNIVERSAL      00165006570      AUTO FUEL−03/08−04/07        0.00            106.56
1011        99003   05/13/21 5916     WEX FLEET UNIVERSAL      00165006510      AUTO FUEL−03/08−04/07        0.00            117.21
1011        99003   05/13/21 5916     WEX FLEET UNIVERSAL      50900007700      AUTO FUEL−03/08−04/07        0.00            127.88
1011        99003   05/13/21 5916     WEX FLEET UNIVERSAL      00160006120      AUTO FUEL−03/08−04/07        0.00            287.57
1011        99003   05/13/21 5916     WEX FLEET UNIVERSAL      00160006140      AUTO FUEL−03/08−04/07        0.00            306.68
1011        99003   05/13/21 5916     WEX FLEET UNIVERSAL      00165006530      AUTO FUEL−03/08−04/07        0.00            309.03
1011        99003   05/13/21 5916     WEX FLEET UNIVERSAL      00165006520      AUTO FUEL−03/08−04/07        0.00            340.99
1011        99003   05/13/21 5916     WEX FLEET UNIVERSAL      00160006170      AUTO FUEL−03/08−04/07        0.00            696.17
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00          2,420.06



PENTAMATION                                                                                                        PAGE NUMBER:    3
DATE: 05/24/2021                                      CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA                                     ACCTPA21
TIME: 08:43:02                                   CHECK REGISTER − DISBURSEMENT FUND

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.ck_date between ’20210508 00:00:00.000’ and ’20210521 00:00:00.000’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 11/21

     FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             

CASH ACCT CHECK NO  ISSUE DT VENDOR   NAME                     BUDGET UNIT      −−−−−DESCRIPTION−−−−−−  SALES TAX            AMOUNT

1011        99004   05/13/21 2189     WILLDAN                  67185008510      RVN BND BRBRA/GRNDS          0.00            750.00
1011        99004   05/13/21 2189     WILLDAN                  67285008520      RVN BND PACIFIC              0.00            250.00
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00          1,000.00

1011        99005   05/20/21 4706     24 HOUR ELEVATOR, INC    00165006570      ELVTR MAINT−MAY              0.00            168.00

1011        99006   05/20/21 1135     AFFORDABLE PIPELINE SERV 50900007700      J−SEWER CLEANING             0.00            575.00
1011        99006   05/20/21 1135     AFFORDABLE PIPELINE SERV 50900007700      E−SEWER CLEAN−9,702          0.00          4,851.00
1011        99006   05/20/21 1135     AFFORDABLE PIPELINE SERV 00165006520      H−STORM DRAIN MAINT          0.00          1,140.00
1011        99006   05/20/21 1135     AFFORDABLE PIPELINE SERV 00165006520      0−STORM DRAIN MAINT          0.00          2,580.00
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00          9,146.00

1011        99007   05/20/21 2124     AMIGO CUSTOM SCREENPRINT 25560006180      JR GRD UNI−SHIRTS            0.00          4,628.94

1011        99008   05/20/21 4832     AT&T CALNET 3            00160006170      9391053651 2/25−3/24         0.00            232.00
1011        99008   05/20/21 4832     AT&T CALNET 3            00160006170      9391012281 2/25−3/24         0.00             68.77
1011        99008   05/20/21 4832     AT&T CALNET 3            00160006120      9391059865 4/01−4/30         0.00            398.80
1011        99008   05/20/21 4832     AT&T CALNET 3            00160006170      9391053651 3/25−4/24         0.00            234.42
1011        99008   05/20/21 4832     AT&T CALNET 3            00160006170      9391012281 3/25−4/24         0.00             70.15
1011        99008   05/20/21 4832     AT&T CALNET 3            00150005450      9391012278 2/24−3/23         0.00          3,521.99
1011        99008   05/20/21 4832     AT&T CALNET 3            00150005450      9391012282 2/24−3/23         0.00             22.25
1011        99008   05/20/21 4832     AT&T CALNET 3            00150005450      9391053641 2/24−3/23         0.00            166.16
1011        99008   05/20/21 4832     AT&T CALNET 3            00150005450      9391062899 2/24−3/23         0.00            166.16
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00          4,880.70

1011        99009   05/20/21 1914     US BANK                  00160006170      WINDOW HINGE                 0.00              7.55
1011        99009   05/20/21 1914     US BANK                  00160006120      SHIPPING−RTN PARTS           0.00             10.71
1011        99009   05/20/21 1914     US BANK                  00150005450      CABLES                       0.00             16.14
1011        99009   05/20/21 1914     US BANK                  27060006170      GLUCOSE GEL                  0.00             34.46
1011        99009   05/20/21 1914     US BANK                  00150005450      USB HEADSET                  0.00             75.40
1011        99009   05/20/21 1914     US BANK                  00160006120      FITNESS STRAPS/COLLRS        0.00             91.07
1011        99009   05/20/21 1914     US BANK                  00160006170      MICROWAVE                    0.00            129.29
1011        99009   05/20/21 1914     US BANK                  00150005450      CABLES/KEYBRD/MOUSE          0.00            138.28
1011        99009   05/20/21 1914     US BANK                  13550005450      ZOOM SUB                     0.00            140.00
1011        99009   05/20/21 1914     US BANK                  13550005450      ADOBE SUB                    0.00            200.53
1011        99009   05/20/21 1914     US BANK                  00160006120      WEBBING/CARABINERS           0.00            683.47
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00          1,526.90

1011        99010   05/20/21 688      CALIFORNIA COASTAL COALI 00160006190      MMBRSHP JAN21−DEC21          0.00          1,000.00

1011        99011   05/20/21 5307     CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHO 55000007750      FY21 CAL−CCA QTR−3           0.00          2,350.00
1011        99011   05/20/21 5307     CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHO 55000007750      FY21 CAL−CCA QTR−4           0.00          2,350.00
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00          4,700.00

1011        99012   05/20/21 5822     CALIFORNIA OFFICE CLEANI 00165006570      CLEANING SUPPLIES−APR        0.00            150.00
1011        99012   05/20/21 5822     CALIFORNIA OFFICE CLEANI 00165006570      JANITORIAL SVC−APR           0.00          7,945.00
1011        99012   05/20/21 5822     CALIFORNIA OFFICE CLEANI 00165006570      COVID−19 CLN−APR             0.00          3,519.00
1011        99012   05/20/21 5822     CALIFORNIA OFFICE CLEANI 00165006570      JANITORIAL SVC−APR           0.00            155.00
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00         11,769.00

1011        99013   05/20/21 3551     CITY NATIONAL BANK       31700007210      ABAG#11−022:12/01            0.00          4,890.90
1011        99013   05/20/21 3551     CITY NATIONAL BANK       32000007220      CHVRN#12−015:06/08           0.00          7,492.44



PENTAMATION                                                                                                        PAGE NUMBER:    4
DATE: 05/24/2021                                      CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA                                     ACCTPA21
TIME: 08:43:02                                   CHECK REGISTER − DISBURSEMENT FUND

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.ck_date between ’20210508 00:00:00.000’ and ’20210521 00:00:00.000’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 11/21

     FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             

CASH ACCT CHECK NO  ISSUE DT VENDOR   NAME                     BUDGET UNIT      −−−−−DESCRIPTION−−−−−−  SALES TAX            AMOUNT

1011        99013   05/20/21 3551     CITY NATIONAL BANK       32000007220      CHVRN#12−015:06/08           0.00         27,694.57
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00         40,077.91

1011        99014   05/20/21 5924     CLEAN EARTH ENVIROMENTAL 00165006520      HHW−MAR                      0.00            823.06
1011        99014   05/20/21 5924     CLEAN EARTH ENVIROMENTAL 00165006520      HHW−FEB                      0.00          1,021.26
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00          1,844.32

1011        99015   05/20/21 5171     CORELOGIC SOLUTIONS, LLC 00155005550      PROPERTY PRO DATA−MAY        0.00             96.83

1011        99016   05/20/21 3902     CORODATA RECORDS MANAGEM 00150005150      RECORDS STRG−APR             0.00            634.23

1011        99017   05/20/21 2165     CULLIGAN  OF SAN DIEGO   00160006170      DRNKNG WTR SVC−MAY           0.00             48.83

1011        99018   05/20/21 739      DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE    00160006140      FINGERPRINT APP−APR          0.00             32.00
1011        99018   05/20/21 739      DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE    00160006150      FINGERPRINT APP−APR          0.00             64.00
1011        99018   05/20/21 739      DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE    00150005400      FINGERPRINT APP−APR          0.00             96.00
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00            192.00

1011        99019   05/20/21 213      DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTA 00165006540      MAINT − JAN−MAR 21           0.00            756.84
1011        99019   05/20/21 213      DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTA 00165006540      ELECT − JAN−MAR 21           0.00            404.23
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00          1,161.07

1011        99020   05/20/21 5674     EMANUELS JONES AND ASSOC 00150005200      PROF SVC−MAY                 0.00          2,500.00

1011        99021   05/20/21 5836     ENVIROMENTAL TESTING & T 45993956510      ENVIROMENTAL TEST−FS         0.00            500.00
1011        99021   05/20/21 5836     ENVIROMENTAL TESTING & T 45993956510      ENVIROMENTAL TEST−FS         0.00            500.00
1011        99021   05/20/21 5836     ENVIROMENTAL TESTING & T 45993956510      ENVIROMENTAL TEST−FS         0.00            560.00
1011        99021   05/20/21 5836     ENVIROMENTAL TESTING & T 45993956510      ENVIROMENTAL TEST−FS         0.00            560.00
1011        99021   05/20/21 5836     ENVIROMENTAL TESTING & T 45994076510      ENVIROMENTAL TEST−CH         0.00            500.00
1011        99021   05/20/21 5836     ENVIROMENTAL TESTING & T 45994076510      ENVIROMENTAL TEST−CH         0.00            500.00
1011        99021   05/20/21 5836     ENVIROMENTAL TESTING & T 45994076510      ENVIROMENTAL TEST−CH         0.00            500.00
1011        99021   05/20/21 5836     ENVIROMENTAL TESTING & T 45994076510      ENVIROMENTAL TEST−CH         0.00            500.00
1011        99021   05/20/21 5836     ENVIROMENTAL TESTING & T 45994076510      ENVIROMENTAL TEST−CH         0.00            700.00
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00          4,820.00

1011        99022   05/20/21 94       ESGIL CORPORATION        00155005560      BLDG PRMT −MAR               0.00         31,466.46

1011        99023   05/20/21 5676     FAILSAFE TESTING, LLC    00160006120      T−237 ANNUAL INSPECTN        0.00          1,100.00

1011        99024   05/20/21 5135     FIRE STATION OUTFITTERS  13560006120      2 RECLINERS                  0.00          1,454.63

1011        99025   05/20/21 4169     FIRE STATS, LLC          00160006120      FIRE DATA−JAN21−MAR21        0.00            459.00

1011        99026   05/20/21 5399     INBOUND DESIGN INC.      55000007750      SEA WEBSITE MANT−MAY         0.00             49.00

1011        99027   05/20/21 1679     INTERNT’L INSTIT. MUNICI 00150005150      ANNUAL MEMBRSHP−IVEY         0.00            200.00
1011        99027   05/20/21 1679     INTERNT’L INSTIT. MUNICI 00150005150      ANNUAL MMBRSHP−BAVIN         0.00            155.00
1011        99027   05/20/21 1679     INTERNT’L INSTIT. MUNICI 00150005150      ANNL MMBRSHP−ARMBRUST        0.00            140.00
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00            495.00

1011        99028   05/20/21 1075     IRON MOUNTAIN            00150005150      RECORDS STRG−MAR             0.00            842.74



PENTAMATION                                                                                                        PAGE NUMBER:    5
DATE: 05/24/2021                                      CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA                                     ACCTPA21
TIME: 08:43:02                                   CHECK REGISTER − DISBURSEMENT FUND

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.ck_date between ’20210508 00:00:00.000’ and ’20210521 00:00:00.000’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 11/21

     FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             

CASH ACCT CHECK NO  ISSUE DT VENDOR   NAME                     BUDGET UNIT      −−−−−DESCRIPTION−−−−−−  SALES TAX            AMOUNT

1011        99029   05/20/21 1565     LOCAL GOVERNMENT PUBLICA 00150005150      CA LAND USE−2021 UPDT        0.00            143.56

1011        99030   05/20/21 2106     MIKHAIL OGAWA ENGINEERIN 00165006520      STRMWTR PRK MNGMT−OCT        0.00            243.25

1011        99031   05/20/21 5407     PJ CASTORENA, INC.       55000007750      CCA WKLY−4/14 & 4/21         0.00            104.88

1011        99032   05/20/21 111      MISSION LINEN & UNIFORM  50900007700      LAUNDRY−PUB WORKS            0.00              9.54
1011        99032   05/20/21 111      MISSION LINEN & UNIFORM  00165006520      LAUNDRY−PUB WORKS            0.00             13.35
1011        99032   05/20/21 111      MISSION LINEN & UNIFORM  00165006560      LAUNDRY−PUB WORKS            0.00             13.35
1011        99032   05/20/21 111      MISSION LINEN & UNIFORM  50900007700      LAUNDRY−PUB WORKS            0.00             14.12
1011        99032   05/20/21 111      MISSION LINEN & UNIFORM  00165006520      LAUNDRY−PUB WORKS            0.00             19.76
1011        99032   05/20/21 111      MISSION LINEN & UNIFORM  00165006560      LAUNDRY−PUB WORKS            0.00             19.77
1011        99032   05/20/21 111      MISSION LINEN & UNIFORM  00165006530      LAUNDRY−PUB WORKS            0.00             20.98
1011        99032   05/20/21 111      MISSION LINEN & UNIFORM  00165006530      LAUNDRY−PUB WORKS            0.00             31.07
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00            141.94

1011        99033   05/20/21 4708     MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERV 00160006120      KEVLLAR−TOTH                 0.00            661.59
1011        99033   05/20/21 4708     MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERV 00160006120      HEAD STRP/LENS KIT           0.00            315.11
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00            976.70

1011        99034   05/20/21 4522     NISSHO OF CALIFORNIA     00165006560      AS NEEDED RPR−4/28−LC        0.00          1,841.69

1011        99035   05/20/21 66       NORTH COUNTY DISPATCH (J 00160006120      FY21 DISPATCH SVC Q3         0.00         26,083.72

1011        99036   05/20/21 2019     NORTH COUNTY EVS, INC    00160006120      ON CALL REPAIR−02/18         0.00            466.16
1011        99036   05/20/21 2019     NORTH COUNTY EVS, INC    00160006120      ON CALL REPAIR−05/05         0.00            710.00
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00          1,176.16

1011        99037   05/20/21 5361     HABITAT PROTECTION, INC  00160006130      DEAD ANML RVML−04/17         0.00            350.00
1011        99037   05/20/21 5361     HABITAT PROTECTION, INC  00160006130      DEAD ANML RVML−04/24         0.00          1,927.73
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00          2,277.73

1011        99038   05/20/21 5354     PILLSBURY WINTHROP SHAW  00150005250      PROF SVC−JAN                 0.00          2,655.00

1011        99039   05/20/21 5998     READY REFRESH BY NESTLE  00165006570      DRINKING WATER−PW−APR        0.00              5.39
1011        99039   05/20/21 5998     READY REFRESH BY NESTLE  00165006570      DRINKING WATER−PW−APR        0.00             30.30
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00             35.69

1011        99040   05/20/21 141      SANTA FE IRRIGATION DIST 00160006120      005512000 0302−043021        0.00            567.72

1011        99041   05/20/21 1073     SEASIDE HEATING & AIR CO 00165006570      HVAC MAINT−APR−FC            0.00             65.00
1011        99041   05/20/21 1073     SEASIDE HEATING & AIR CO 00165006570      HVAC MAINT−APR−MS            0.00             65.00
1011        99041   05/20/21 1073     SEASIDE HEATING & AIR CO 00165006570      HVAC MAINT−APR−FS            0.00            120.00
1011        99041   05/20/21 1073     SEASIDE HEATING & AIR CO 00165006570      HVAC MAINT−APR−LC            0.00            120.00
1011        99041   05/20/21 1073     SEASIDE HEATING & AIR CO 00165006570      HVAC MAINT−APR−CH            0.00            245.00
1011        99041   05/20/21 1073     SEASIDE HEATING & AIR CO 00165006570      AS NEEDED RPR−LC−4/06        0.00            158.00
1011        99041   05/20/21 1073     SEASIDE HEATING & AIR CO 00165006570      AS NEEDED RPR−LC−4/05        0.00            275.00
1011        99041   05/20/21 1073     SEASIDE HEATING & AIR CO 00165006570      AS NEEDED RPR−MS−4/06        0.00            295.00
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00          1,343.00

1011        99042   05/20/21 31       SOLANA BEACH CHAMBER OF  25055005570      Q3 VISITOR CENTER            0.00          3,750.00



PENTAMATION                                                                                                        PAGE NUMBER:    6
DATE: 05/24/2021                                      CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA                                     ACCTPA21
TIME: 08:43:02                                   CHECK REGISTER − DISBURSEMENT FUND

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.ck_date between ’20210508 00:00:00.000’ and ’20210521 00:00:00.000’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 11/21

     FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             

CASH ACCT CHECK NO  ISSUE DT VENDOR   NAME                     BUDGET UNIT      −−−−−DESCRIPTION−−−−−−  SALES TAX            AMOUNT

1011        99043   05/20/21 1231     STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME 00150005150      WALL CLOCK                   0.00             42.55
1011        99043   05/20/21 1231     STAPLES CONTRACT & COMME 00150005150      LABELS/WIPES/NOTE PAD        0.00            144.07
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00            186.62

1011        99044   05/20/21 1789     DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRIAL 00165006570      FY21 OSIP WRKR COMP          0.00            225.00

1011        99045   05/20/21 4840     STC TRAFFIC, INC         00165006540      ONCALL TRFFC−MAR             0.00          1,305.00
1011        99045   05/20/21 4840     STC TRAFFIC, INC         20293306510      CIP19−TRFIC SGNL ASMNT       0.00          2,870.00
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00          4,175.00

1011        99046   05/20/21 5699     SUNBELT RENTALS, INC.    00165006560      TILLER−LC                    0.00            104.93

1011        99047   05/20/21 5961     TOSDAL APC               55000007750      SEA PROF SVC−APR             0.00          1,459.00

1011        99048   05/20/21 3980     TURNOUT MAINTENANCE COMP 00160006120      CLN−COAT/PNTS−TOTH           0.00            156.98

1011        99049   05/20/21 40       UNDERGROUND SVC ALERT OF 00165006510      DIG ALERT−APR                0.00            118.90
1011        99049   05/20/21 40       UNDERGROUND SVC ALERT OF 00165006510      CA ST REGLTRY−APR            0.00             54.29
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00            173.19

1011        99050   05/20/21 30       VERIZON WIRELESS−SD      00160006140      CODES CELL 3/24−4/23         0.00            141.53
1011        99050   05/20/21 30       VERIZON WIRELESS−SD      21100007600      PW CELL 04/02−05/01          0.00              5.80
1011        99050   05/20/21 30       VERIZON WIRELESS−SD      50900007700      PW CELL 04/02−05/01          0.00              5.80
1011        99050   05/20/21 30       VERIZON WIRELESS−SD      00165006540      PW CELL 04/02−05/01          0.00             15.95
1011        99050   05/20/21 30       VERIZON WIRELESS−SD      00165006560      PW CELL 04/02−05/01          0.00             15.95
1011        99050   05/20/21 30       VERIZON WIRELESS−SD      00165006510      PW CELL 04/02−05/01          0.00             20.28
1011        99050   05/20/21 30       VERIZON WIRELESS−SD      00165006520      PW CELL 04/02−05/01          0.00             20.30
1011        99050   05/20/21 30       VERIZON WIRELESS−SD      00165006530      PW CELL 04/02−05/01          0.00             20.30
1011        99050   05/20/21 30       VERIZON WIRELESS−SD      00160006120      FIRE CELL 03/29−04/28        0.00            462.74
1011        99050   05/20/21 30       VERIZON WIRELESS−SD      27060006120      FIRE IPAD 03/29−04/28        0.00            114.03
1011        99050   05/20/21 30       VERIZON WIRELESS−SD      00160006120      BC CELL 03/29−04/28          0.00             63.75
1011        99050   05/20/21 30       VERIZON WIRELESS−SD      00160006170      MS IPADS −03/29−04/28        0.00            152.04
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00          1,038.47

1011        99051   05/20/21 2823     WELLS FARGO BANK         65278007820      INT 2017TA BND 06/01         0.00         39,503.52
1011        99051   05/20/21 2823     WELLS FARGO BANK         65278007820      PRIN 2017TA BND 06/01        0.00         61,500.00
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00        101,003.52

1011     V9000280   05/13/21 11       ICMA PLAN 302817         001              PLAN NUMBER: 302817          0.00         13,503.52
1011     V9000280   05/13/21 11       ICMA PLAN 302817         001              ICMA PD 05/13/21             0.00          6,536.20
TOTAL CHECK                                                                                                  0.00         20,039.72

1011     V9000281   05/13/21 3859     ICMA RHS 801939          001              PLAN NUMBER: 801939          0.00          1,993.01

1011     V9000282   05/13/21 13       SOLANA BEACH FIREFIGHTER 001              FD DUES PD 05/14/21          0.00            813.50

1011     V9000283   05/13/21 3066     SUMMIT ENVIRONMENTAL GRO 45999036190      9903 PROF SVC LCP−APR        0.00          2,875.00

1011     V9000284   05/20/21 5320     BAYSHORE CONSULTING GROU 55000007750      CCA PROF SVC−APR             0.00            900.00

1011     V9000285   05/20/21 2260     REDFLEX TRAFFIC SYSTEMS, 00165006540      RED LIGHT CAMERA−APR         0.00          7,158.00



PENTAMATION                                                                                                        PAGE NUMBER:    7
DATE: 05/24/2021                                      CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, CA                                     ACCTPA21
TIME: 08:43:02                                   CHECK REGISTER − DISBURSEMENT FUND

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.ck_date between ’20210508 00:00:00.000’ and ’20210521 00:00:00.000’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 11/21

     FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             

CASH ACCT CHECK NO  ISSUE DT VENDOR   NAME                     BUDGET UNIT      −−−−−DESCRIPTION−−−−−−  SALES TAX            AMOUNT

1011     V9000286   05/20/21 4080     JENNIFER REED            00150005350      ADMIN SVC−APR                0.00             27.50

TOTAL CASH ACCOUNT                                                                                           0.00        403,728.17

TOTAL FUND                                                                                                   0.00        403,728.17

TOTAL REPORT                                                                                                 0.00        403,728.17



COUNCIL ACTION: 
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________ 

AGENDA ITEM # A.3. 

STAFF REPORT 
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers  
FROM: Gregory Wade, City Manager  
MEETING DATE:  June 9, 2021 
ORIGINATING DEPT: Finance  
SUBJECT: Report on Changes Made to the General Fund Adopted 

Budget for Fiscal Year 2020/21 

BACKGROUND: 

Staff provides a report at each Council meeting that lists changes made to the current 
Fiscal Year (FY) General Fund Adopted Budget. 

The information provided in this Staff Report lists the changes made through May 26, 
2021.   

DISCUSSION: 

The following table reports the revenue, expenditures, and transfers for 1) the Adopted 
General Fund Budget approved by Council on June 12, 2019 (Resolution 2019-085) and 
2) any resolutions passed by Council that amended the Adopted General Fund Budget.

GENERAL FUND - ADOPTED BUDGET PLUS CHANGES 
 As of May 26, 2021  

 Action  Description  Revenues   Expenditures 
 Transfers 
from GF  Net Surplus  

 Reso 2019-085   Adopted Budget     19,827,600      (19,602,500)        (151,100)  (1)   $       74,000  
 Reso 2020-101   FY2020/21 Amended         (495,000)           361,000           80,000   (2)            20,000  
 Reso 2021-021   Mid-Year Budget Adjustments         354,000          (354,993) - 19,007

(1) Transfers to:  151,100 
       Debt Service for Public Facilities          151,100 

(2) Transfer to:   (80,000) 
       City CIP Fund          (80,000) 



June 9, 2021 
General Fund Budget Changes -FY 2021 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 
CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT: 
 
Not a project as defined by CEQA 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
N/A 
 
WORK PLAN:  
 
N/A 
 
OPTIONS:  

 
∙ Receive the report. 
∙ Do not accept the report 

 
DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council receive the report listing changes made to the 
FY 2020-2021 General Fund Adopted Budget. 

 
CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Department Recommendation 
 
 
 
_________________________________  
Gregory Wade, City Manager 



CITY COUNCIL ACTION: 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM A.4. 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH 

  
 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers  
FROM:  Gregory Wade, City Manager 
MEETING DATE:  June 9, 2021 
ORIGINATING DEPT: Finance  

 SUBJECT:  Consideration of Resolutions 2021-069 Through 2021-072 
Approving the Fiscal Year (FY) Municipal Improvement 
Districts Benefit (MID) Fees 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The four Municipal Improvement Districts (MIDs) in Solana Beach were originally formed 
pursuant to Government Code Section 25210.1 as County Service Areas (CSAs) prior to 
the incorporation of the City.  The CSAs were formed by the County Board of Supervisors 
on the following dates: 
 
    Date Established 
 MID No. 9C Santa Fe Hills 03-24-69 
 MID No. 33  Highway 101/Railroad Right-of-Way  08-03-71   
 MID No. 9E Isla Verde 12-18-74   
 MID No. 9H San Elijo #2 10-10-77   
 
Upon formation, the County also entered into landscaping and maintenance agreements 
with the homeowners associations and members of these CSAs under which the County 
provided various extended services and these CSAs provided a means to fund the 
extended services, which included landscaping and maintenance of streets, medians, 
slopes, certain drainage facilities, and appurtenant improvements in various areas of the 
County.  These CSAs were further established so that local property owners within the 
prescribed boundaries of the special districts would be provided extended services.  
 
After the landscaping and maintenance agreements with the County expired according to 
their terms, the CSAs functioned more like pass through entities, with the homeowners 
associations performing the services and getting reimbursed from the benefit fees (with 
the exception of MID No. 33).  The property owners share the cost of the maintenance 
through service charges based on the benefit received.  Upon incorporation, the City took 
over the management of the benefit fee assessments for these MIDs.  
 
This item is before the Council to consider approval of the attached resolutions which set 



June 9, 2021 
FY 2021/22 MID Benefit Fees 

Page 2 of 4 

 

the benefit fees for the four MIDs and authorize the fees to be placed on the County 
Assessor Rolls.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
When the CSAs were formed, property owners within the boundary of the service area 
desired these extended miscellaneous services.  These services were benefits received 
by the property owners and not originally supported by general revenues of the County. 
They are also not supported by the City’s General Fund.  
 
These service areas were established as an alternate means of providing landscape 
maintenance services.  The homeowners’ associations contract with a private landscape 
contractor to provide the actual landscaping services. 
 
As a result of the City’s July 1, 1986 incorporation, the CSAs were dissolved and replaced 
by the new "Municipal Improvement Districts" (MIDs).   As part of the incorporation 
process, the City Council assumed the role of the Board of Supervisors for the new MIDs. 
The City has managed the MIDs since incorporation. 
 
With the exception of MID No. 33, the City provides three of the four districts with 
budgetary information upon which the annual fees are based.  The City provides a 
service to these homeowners’ associations by translating each budget into a unit cost per 
parcel, and then levying the required amount on the tax roll each year.  The City also 
performs monthly inspections of the landscaping work and responds to complaints and 
inquiries. 
 
The City receives a fee for providing the services to set and collect the landscape 
maintenance fee, conduct a monthly landscape inspection, track the income and interest 
earnings, process monthly payments, and compile the annual accounting information and 
provide it to the homeowners’ associations.  The City also reviews each budget to ensure 
that all charges are related to the provision of extended services or administration of the 
MIDs.   
 
MID No. 33 is the only MID for which services are not provided by a homeowners’ 
association.  The oversight responsibility for the landscape maintenance is provided by 
the City's Public Works Department.  A budget is produced each year by the City to 
provide funds for landscape maintenance within the service area.  The assessment area 
for MID No. 33 includes all parcels west of Interstate 5 to the Pacific Ocean and from the 
San Elijo Lagoon south to Via de la Valle/Border Avenue. 
 
The MID No. 33 service area was authorized in order to provide landscape improvement 
and maintenance for Highway 101 medians and the railroad right-of-way that is 
appurtenant to Highway 101.  These landscaped medians were installed using funding 
provided by the County for select system roads which also require continued 
maintenance.  MID No. 33 provides an alternate funding source for this public service in 
Solana Beach; however, this revenue is significantly less than the actual costs to maintain 



June 9, 2021 
FY 2021/22 MID Benefit Fees 

Page 3 of 4 

 

these areas.  The maintenance is provided under contract with a landscape maintenance 
contractor as well as City Staff.  
 
Because the MIDs were created prior to Proposition 218, the MID charges for MID No. 
9C, No. 9E, No. 9H, and No. 33 may be levied as proposed without additional 
requirements so long as the amount of the charge does not exceed pre-November 1996 
levels. The charges proposed are at the same rates they were since their inception and 
are not being raised. 
 
Since there is no legal requirement for a public hearing, the City has instead published a 
“Notice of Setting Various Fees for the Municipal Improvement Districts” notifying residents 
that they have the right to request that this item be removed from the consent agenda for 
discussion if required.  That notice was published in the local newspaper on May 11, 2021.  
In addition, emails were sent to the President of each Homeowner’s Association notifying 
them that the hearing to set the annual MID fees and place on the tax roll was scheduled 
for June 9, 2021. 
 
Staff therefore recommends that the City Council approve the annual fees as outlined in 
the attached resolutions as follows: for MID No. 9C (Santa Fe Hills) at $232.10 per unit; 
MID No. 9E (Isla Verde) at $68.74 per unit; for MID No. 9H (San Elijo Hills #2) at $289.58 
per unit; and for MID No. 33 at $3.12 per unit ($.06 per timeshare week). 
 
CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT: 
 
Not a project as defined by CEQA. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The fee for each MID will generate the total annual benefit charge revenue, as shown 
below, to service the MID:                                                                                                           
                   FEE    _       REVENUE 
MID No. 9C - Santa Fe Hills                      $232.10 per unit      $320,400 
MID No. 9E - Isla Verde                $  68.74 per unit           $    6,000 
MID No. 9H - San Elijo Hills #2        $289.58 per unit           $119,400 
MID No. 33 - Highway 101/Railroad Right-of-Way $    3.12 per unit          $144,400 
 
WORK PLAN:  
 
N/A 
 
OPTIONS: 
 

• Approve Staff recommendation. 

• Do not approve Staff recommendation and provide direction. 
 



June 9, 2021 
FY 2021/22 MID Benefit Fees 

Page 4 of 4 

 

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council: 
 

1. Approve Resolution 2021-069, setting the Benefit Charges for MID No. 9C, Santa 
Fe Hills, at $232.10 per unit for FY 2021/22. 
 

2. Approve Resolution 2021-070, setting the Benefit Charges for MID No. 9E, Isla 
Verde, at $68.74 per unit for FY 2021/22. 
 

3. Approve Resolution 2021-071, setting the Benefit Charges for MID No. 9H, San 
Elijo Hills # 2, at $289.58 per unit for FY 2021/22. 
 

4. Approve Resolution 2021-072, setting the Benefit Charges for MID No. 33, 
Highway 101/Railroad Right-of-Way, at $3.12 per unit for FY 2021/22. 

 

 
CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve Department Recommendation. 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Gregory Wade, City Manager 
 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Resolution 2021-069 – MID 9C 
2. Resolution 2021-070 – MID 9E 
3. Resolution 2021-071 – MID 9H 
4. Resolution 2021-072 – MID 33 



                                                                                              ATTACHMENT 1 

RESOLUTION 2021-069 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA, SETTING THE 
BENEFIT CHARGES FOR MUNICIPAL IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT NUMBER 9C FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021/22 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council considered a report concerning the benefit charge to 

be levied within the Municipal Improvement District Number 9C, Santa Fe Hills (the 
“District”) pursuant to an Ordinance previously approved by the voters on March 24, 1969; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that charges for landscape 

maintenance service be shown as a separate item on property tax bills and collected at 
the same time and in the same manner as ordinary county ad valorem taxes and caused 
to be prepared and filed, written reports describing real property receiving landscape 
maintenance services within the District; and 

 
WHEREAS, the charges for the parcels within the District for Fiscal Year 2021/22 

have been computed in conformity with the procedure set forth in, and charges described 
by, applicable ordinances and resolutions of the Solana Beach City Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, the charges are at the same rates they were since their inception and 

are not being raised; and 
 
WHEREAS, the amount paid to the homeowners’ association from charges or 

taxes levied in the District shall include the reasonably estimated cost of the work or 
improvement to be done in the District by the homeowners’ association for the ensuing 
fiscal year, plus incidental expenses directly related to the provision of extended services 
or administration of the District; and   

 
WHEREAS, services shall be provided by the homeowners' association in 

accordance with the contract last approved by the County of San Diego with the 
homeowners’ association providing the services, not the County or other entity.  The City 
of Solana Beach will continue providing management and inspection services; and 

 
WHEREAS, payments to the homeowners’ association for service shall be made 

in twelve equal monthly installments and payment for incidental expenses shall be made 
upon submission of a statement.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California, 

resolves as follows: 
 

1. The foregoing recitations are true and correct. 
 



 Resolution 2021-069 

  FY 2021/22 MID - #9C Benefit Fee 

                                                                                                                                                      Page 2 of 2 
 

2. The benefit unit charge for Municipal Improvement District No. 9C, Santa 
Fe Hills, for Fiscal Year 2021/22 will be $232.10 per unit, as listed on 
Attachment No. 1 of this Resolution and confirmed by the City Council, and 
will be filed with the Auditor and Controller of the County of San Diego. 

 
3. The San Diego County Auditor shall place on the County Assessor Roll, 

opposite each parcel of land within the District, the levy amount of $232.10 
per unit, as set forth in Attachment No. 1 of this Resolution, and such levies 
shall be collected at the same time and in the same manner as ordinary ad 
valorem property taxes of the City for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 
2021. 

 
4. The City Clerk’s Designee, Koppel & Gruber Public Finance, is hereby 

authorized and directed to file the levy with the San Diego County Auditor 
subsequent to the adoption of this Resolution. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of June 2021, at a regularly scheduled 

meeting of the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California by the following vote: 
      

AYES:   Councilmembers –  
NOES:   Councilmembers –  
ABSENT:   Councilmembers – 
ABSTAIN:  Councilmembers – 
      
 
 
 

______________________________ 
LESA HEEBNER, Mayor 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 

________________________________  _______________________________ 
JOHANNA N. CANLAS, City Attorney  ANGELA IVEY, City Clerk 

 
       

 



 

 

 

 
 
 Exhibit 1 

Resolution 2021-069 
 
 

 M.I.D. FEES  
 

2017-2018 through 2021-2022 
 
 

 2017-
2018 

BUDGET 

2017-
2018 
FEES 

2018-
2019 

BUDGET 

2018-
2019 
FEES 

2019-
2020 

BUDGET 

2019-
2020 
FEES 

2020-
2021 

BUDGET 

2020-
2021 
FEES 

2021-
2022 

BUDGET 

2021-
2022 
FEES 

           

Highway 101 - 
MID No. 33 

   124,800     3.12    127,000     3.12    140,300     3.12    142,900     3.12 144,400     3.12 

Santa Fe Hills - 
MID No. 9C 

300,300 232.10 304,300 232.10 313,200 232.10 317,700 232.10 320,400 232.10 

Isla Verde - 
MID No. 9E 

    6,000  68.74     6,000  68.74     6,000  68.74     6,000  68.74 6,000  68.74 

San Elijo Hills #2 
- 
MID No. 9H 

 103,600    289.58  101,000    289.58  116,700    289.58  118,300    289.58 119,400    289.58 

 



                                                    ATTACHMENT 2 

RESOLUTION 2021-070 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA, SETTING THE 
BENEFIT CHARGES FOR MUNICIPAL IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT NUMBER 9E FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021/22 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council considered a report concerning the benefit charge to 

be levied within the Municipal Improvement District Number 9E, Isla Verde (the “District”) 
pursuant to an Ordinance previously approved by the voters on December 18, 1974; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that charges for landscape 

maintenance service be shown as a separate item on property tax bills and collected at 
the same time and in the same manner as ordinary county ad valorem taxes and caused 
to be prepared and filed, written reports describing real property receiving landscape 
maintenance services within the District; and 

 
WHEREAS, the charges for the parcels within the District for Fiscal Year 2021/22 

have been computed in conformity with the procedure set forth in, and charges described 
by, applicable ordinances and resolutions of the Solana Beach City Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, the charges are at the same rates they were since their inception and 

are not being raised; and 
 
WHEREAS, the amount paid to the homeowner’s association from charges or 

taxes levied in the District shall include the reasonably estimated cost of the work or 
improvement to be done in the District by the homeowner’s association for the ensuing 
fiscal year, plus incidental expenses directly related to the provision of extended services 
or administration of the District; and   

 
WHEREAS, services shall be provided by the homeowners' association in 

accordance with the contract last approved by the County of San Diego with the 
homeowners’ association providing the services, not the County or other entity.  The City 
of Solana Beach will continue providing management and inspection services; and 

 
WHEREAS, payments to the homeowner’s association for service shall be made 

in twelve equal monthly installments and payment for incidental expenses shall be made 
upon submission of a statement.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California, 

resolves as follows: 
 
 1. The foregoing recitations are true and correct. 
 

 2. The benefit unit charge for Municipal Improvement District No. 9E, Isla 
Verde, for Fiscal Year 2021/22 will be $68.74 per unit, as listed on 



Resolution 2021-070 

  FY 2021/22 MID - #9E Benefit Fee 

                                                                                                                                                      Page 2 of 2 
 

Attachment No. 1 of this Resolution and confirmed by the City Council, 
and will be filed with the Auditor and Controller of the County of San 
Diego. 

 
3. The San Diego County Auditor shall place on the County Assessor 

Roll, opposite each parcel of land within the District, the levy amount of 
$68.74 per unit, as set forth in Attachment No. 1 of this Resolution, and 
such levies shall be collected at the same time and in the same 
manner as ordinary ad valorem property taxes of the City for the fiscal 
year commencing July 1, 2021. 

 

  4. The City Clerk’s Designee, Koppel & Gruber Public Finance, is hereby 
authorized and directed to file the levy with the San Diego County 
Auditor subsequent to the adoption of this Resolution. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of June 2021, at a regularly 

scheduled meeting of the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California by 
the following vote: 

      
AYES:   Councilmembers –  
NOES:   Councilmembers –  
ABSENT:   Councilmembers – 
ABSTAIN:  Councilmembers – 
      
 
 
 

______________________________ 
LESA HEEBNER, Mayor 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 

_______________________________     _____________________________    
JOHANNA N. CANLAS, City Attorney  ANGELA IVEY, City Clerk 

 
       

 



 

                                                                                         
 

 

 
 
 Exhibit 1 

Resolution 2021-070 
 
 

 M.I.D. FEES  
 

2017-2018 through 2021-2022 
 
 

 2017-
2018 

BUDGET 

2017-
2018 
FEES 

2018-
2019 

BUDGET 

2018-
2019 
FEES 

2019-
2020 

BUDGET 

2019-
2020 
FEES 

2020-
2021 

BUDGET 

2020-
2021 
FEES 

2021-
2022 

BUDGET 

2021-
2022 
FEES 

           

Highway 101 - 
MID No. 33 

   124,800     3.12    127,000     3.12    140,300     3.12    142,900     3.12 144,400     3.12 

Santa Fe Hills - 
MID No. 9C 

300,300 232.10 304,300 232.10 313,200 232.10 317,700 232.10 320,400 232.10 

Isla Verde - 
MID No. 9E 

    6,000  68.74     6,000  68.74     6,000  68.74     6,000  68.74 6,000  68.74 

San Elijo Hills #2 
- 
MID No. 9H 

 103,600    289.58  101,000    289.58  116,700    289.58  118,300    289.58 119,400    289.58 

 



                                                    ATTACHMENT 3 

RESOLUTION 2021-071 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA, SETTING THE 
BENEFIT CHARGES FOR MUNICIPAL IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT NUMBER 9H FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021/22 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council considered a report concerning the benefit charge to 

be levied within the Municipal Improvement District Number 9H, San Elijo Hills #2 (the 
“District”) pursuant to an Ordinance previously approved by the voters on October 10, 
1977; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that charges for landscape 
maintenance service be shown as a separate item on property tax bills and collected at 
the same time and in the same manner as ordinary county ad valorem taxes and caused 
to be prepared and filed, written reports describing real property receiving landscape 
maintenance services within the District; and 

 
WHEREAS, the charges for the parcels within the District for Fiscal Year 2021/22  

have been computed in conformity with the procedure set forth in, and charges described 
by, applicable ordinances and resolutions of the Solana Beach City Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, the charges are at the same rates they were since their inception and 

are not being raised; and 
 
WHEREAS, the amount paid to the homeowners’ association from charges or 

taxes levied in the District shall include the reasonably estimated cost of the work or 
improvement to be done in the District by the homeowner’s association for the ensuing 
fiscal year, plus incidental expenses directly related to the provision of extended services 
or administration of the District; and   

 
WHEREAS, services shall be provided by the homeowners' association in 

accordance with the contract last approved by the County of San Diego with the 
homeowners’ association providing the services, not the County or other entity.  The City 
of Solana Beach will continue providing management and inspection services; and 

 

WHEREAS, payments to the homeowner’s association for service shall be made 
in twelve equal monthly installments and payment for incidental expenses shall be made 
upon submission of a statement.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California, 

resolves as follows: 
 
 1. The foregoing recitations are true and correct. 
 
 2. The benefit unit charge for Municipal Improvement District No. 9H, 



 Resolution 2021-071 

FY 2021/22 MID - #9H Benefit Fee 

                                                                                                                                                      Page 2 of 2 
 

San Elijo Hills #2, for Fiscal Year 2021/22 will be $289.58 per unit, as 
listed on Attachment No. 1 of this Resolution and confirmed by the 
City Council, and will be filed with the Auditor and Controller of the 
County of San Diego. 

 
 3. The San Diego County Auditor shall place on the County Assessor 

Roll, opposite each parcel of land within the District, the levy amount of 
$289.58 per unit, as set forth in Attachment No. 1 of this Resolution, 
and such levies shall be collected at the same time and in the same 
manner as ordinary ad valorem property taxes of the City for the fiscal 
year commencing July 1, 2021. 

 
 4. The City Clerk’s Designee, Koppel & Gruber Public Finance, is 

hereby authorized and directed to file the levy with the San Diego 
County Auditor subsequent to the adoption of this Resolution. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of June 2021, at a regularly scheduled 

meeting of the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California by the following vote: 
      

AYES:   Councilmembers –  
NOES:   Councilmembers –  
ABSENT:   Councilmembers – 
ABSTAIN:  Councilmembers – 
      
 
 
 

______________________________ 
LESA HEEBNER, Mayor 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 

________________________________              ______________________________ 
JOHANNA N. CANLAS, City Attorney  ANGELA IVEY, City Clerk 

 
     



 

 

 
 
 Exhibit 1 

Resolution 2021-071 
 
 

 M.I.D. FEES  
 

2017-2018 through 2021-2022 
 
 

 2017-
2018 

BUDGET 

2017-
2018 
FEES 

2018-
2019 

BUDGET 

2018-
2019 
FEES 

2019-
2020 

BUDGET 

2019-
2020 
FEES 

2020-
2021 

BUDGET 

2020-
2021 
FEES 

2021-
2022 

BUDGET 

2021-
2022 
FEES 

           

Highway 101 - 
MID No. 33 

   124,800     3.12    127,000     3.12    140,300     3.12    142,900     3.12 144,400     3.12 

Santa Fe Hills - 
MID No. 9C 

300,300 232.10 304,300 232.10 313,200 232.10 317,700 232.10 320,400 232.10 

Isla Verde - 
MID No. 9E 

    6,000  68.74     6,000  68.74     6,000  68.74     6,000  68.74 6,000  68.74 

San Elijo Hills #2 
- 
MID No. 9H 

 103,600    289.58  101,000    289.58  116,700    289.58  118,300    289.58 119,400    289.58 

 



                                                      ATTACHMENT 4 

 RESOLUTION 2021-072 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA, SETTING THE 
BENEFIT CHARGES FOR MUNICIPAL IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT # 33 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021/22 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council considered a report concerning the benefit charge to 
be levied within the Municipal Improvement District Number 33, Highway 101/Railroad 
Right-of-Way, pursuant to an Ordinance previously approved by the voters on August 3, 
1971; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that charges for providing landscape 

maintenance service be shown as a separate item on property tax bills and collected at the 
same time and in the same manner as ordinary county ad valorem taxes and caused to be 
prepared and filed, written reports describing real property receiving landscape 
maintenance services within the District; and 

 
WHEREAS, the charges for the parcels within the District for Fiscal Year 2021/22 

have been computed in conformity with the procedure set forth in, and charges described 
by, applicable ordinances and resolutions of the Solana Beach City Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, the charges are at the same rates they were since their inception and 

are not being raised. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California, 

resolves as follows: 
 
 1. The foregoing recitations are true and correct. 
 
 2. The benefit unit charge for Municipal Improvement District No. 33, Highway 

101/Railroad Right-of-Way, for Fiscal Year 2021/22 will be $3.12 per unit, as 
listed on Attachment No. 1 of this Resolution and confirmed by the City Council, 
and will be filed with the Auditor and Controller of the County of San Diego. 

 
 3. The San Diego County Auditor shall place on the County Assessor Roll, 

opposite each parcel of land within the District, the levy amount of $3.12 per 
unit, as set forth in Attachment No. 1 of this Resolution, and such levies shall be 
collected at the same time and in the same manner as ordinary ad valorem 
property taxes of the City for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2021. 

 
 4. The City Clerk’s Designee, Koppel & Gruber Public Finance, is hereby 

authorized and directed to file the levy with the San Diego County Auditor 
subsequent to the adoption of this Resolution. 



 Resolution 2021-072 
FY 2021/22 MID - #33 Benefit Fee 

                                                                                                                                                      Page 2 of 2 
 

                                    

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of June 2021, at a regularly scheduled 

meeting of the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California by the following vote: 
      

AYES:   Councilmembers –  
NOES:   Councilmembers –  
ABSENT:   Councilmembers – 
ABSTAIN:  Councilmembers – 
      
 
 
 

______________________________ 
LESA HEEBNER, Mayor 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________  _______________________________ 
JOHANNA N. CANLAS, City Attorney  ANGELA IVEY, City Clerk 

 
       



 

                                                                                             
       

 

 
 Exhibit 1 

Resolution 2021-072 
 
 

 M.I.D. FEES  
 

2017-2018 through 2021-2022 
 
 

 2017-
2018 

BUDGET 

2017-
2018 
FEES 

2018-
2019 

BUDGET 

2018-
2019 
FEES 

2019-
2020 

BUDGET 

2019-
2020 
FEES 

2020-
2021 

BUDGET 

2020-
2021 
FEES 

2021-
2022 

BUDGET 

2021-
2022 
FEES 

           

Highway 101 - 
MID No. 33 

   124,800     3.12    127,000     3.12    140,300     3.12    142,900     3.12 144,400     3.12 

Santa Fe Hills - 
MID No. 9C 

300,300 232.10 304,300 232.10 313,200 232.10 317,700 232.10 320,400 232.10 

Isla Verde - 
MID No. 9E 

    6,000  68.74     6,000  68.74     6,000  68.74     6,000  68.74 6,000  68.74 

San Elijo Hills #2 
- 
MID No. 9H 

 103,600    289.58  101,000    289.58  116,700    289.58  118,300    289.58 119,400    289.58 

 



CITY COUNCIL ACTION: 
______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 

AGENDA ITEM # A.5. 

STAFF REPORT 
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers  
FROM: Gregory Wade, City Manager  
MEETING DATE:  June 9, 2021 
ORIGINATING DEPT: Finance 
SUBJECT:  Consideration of Resolution 2021-073 Adopting the Fiscal 

Year 2021/22 Fire Benefit Fee 

BACKGROUND 

On April 8, 1980, voters in the Solana Beach Fire Protection District (District) approved a Fire 
Benefit Fee (Fee) by more than a two-thirds vote in an amount not to exceed $10.00 per unit 
of benefit per year, on real property within the boundaries of the District. The District was 
subsequently merged with the City of Solana Beach (City), and the City now has the 
responsibility of administering this Fee.  Because the Fee was adopted by the voters before 
the passage of Proposition 218, it is not subject to its requirements. 

There is no legal requirement for a public hearing, however, the City has published a “Notice 
of Setting the Fire Benefit Fee” (Notice) to notify residents that they have the right to request 
that this item be removed from the consent agenda for discussion.  The Notice was published 
in the local newspaper on May 11, 2021. 

This item is before Council to consider approval of Resolution 2021-073 which sets the Fire 
Benefit Fee and authorizes the fee to be placed on the County Assessment rolls. 

DISCUSSION 

Each year, the City Council is required to formally set the Fire Benefit Fee for levying on 
the tax roll. Staff is recommending that the Fee remain at the same level for Fiscal Year 
(FY) 2021/22 at $10.00 per benefit unit. This Fee has not been increased since it was 
approved by voters in 1980.  In order to increase the Fire Benefit Fee, the City would need 
a public vote with two-thirds of the voters approving any increase.  

Properties in the City would be charged an annual amount for the Fire Benefit Fee at 
$10.00 per benefit unit according to the schedule outlined on the next page. 



June 9, 2021 
FY 2021/22 Fire Benefit Fee 

Page 2 of 2 

ACTUAL LAND USE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF UNITS OF BENEFIT 

Unimproved 2 units per 1 acre and/or portion of 1 acre, 
up to 20 units per parcel 

Residential 5 units per dwelling unit 
Commercial 15 units per 1 acre and/or portion of 1 acre 
Industrial 20 units per 1 acre and/or portion of 1 acre 
Timeshares 1 unit per timeshare week (1/5 of residential) 

CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT: 

Not a project as defined by CEQA. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The $10.00 per benefit unit fee raises approximately $450,000 per year that is used to assist 
in funding Fire Department operating expenses projected at $5,467,870 for FY 2021/22. 

WORK PLAN: 

N/A 

OPTIONS: 

• Approve Staff recommendation.
• Do not approve Staff recommendation and provide direction.

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council consider adoption of Resolution 2021-073: 

1. Setting the FY 2021/22 Fire Benefit Fee at $10.00 per unit, and

2. Approving the Fee for levying on the tax roll.

CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION 

Approve Department Recommendation. 

__________________________________ 
Gregory Wade, City Manager  

Attachments: 

1. Resolution 2021-073



RESOLUTION 2021-073 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA, ESTABLISHING THE 
FISCAL YEAR 2021/22 FIRE BENEFIT FEE AS 
AUTHORIZED BY THE VOTERS AT $10.00 PER BENEFIT 
UNIT 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Solana Beach has merged with the Solana Fire 
Protection District; and 

  
 WHEREAS, the voters of the Solana Fire Protection District on April 8, 1980, 
approved the following proposition: 

 
Shall the Solana Fire Protection District establish and impose standby 
or availability charges, not to exceed $10.00 per unit of benefit per 
year, on all real property (except that of federal, state, or local 
governmental agencies) within the boundaries of said Fire Protection 
District, the collection of which charges shall not decrease the 
appropriations limit of said Fire Protection District in any year for a 
period of four years from the effective date hereof, and which charges 
shall be established by the Board of Directors of said Fire Protection 
District from time to time, subject, however, to the following maximum 
units of benefit: 

 
 Actual Land Use Maximum Number of Units of Benefit 
     
 Unimproved  2 units per 1 acre and/or portion of 1 acre,  
    up to 20 units per parcel 
 
 Residential  5 units per dwelling unit 
 
 Commercial  15 units per 1 acre and/or portion of 1 acre 
 
 Industrial  20 units per 1 acre and/or portion of 1 acre; 
    and 

  
 Timeshares 1 unit per timeshare week (1/5 of residential) 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Solana Beach, as successor to the Solana Fire 
Protection District, is authorized to continue to levy the fire benefit fee; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the amount of the fire benefit fee remains unchanged. 

  
 NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, 

mbavin
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 1



Resolution 2021-073 
 FY 2021/22 Fire Benefit Fee 

Page 2 of 2 

California, resolves as follows: 

1. The foregoing recitations are true and correct.

2. The fire benefit charge is hereby set at $10.00 per benefit unit for all
land use categories set forth above, as confirmed by this Board and
will be filed with the Auditor and Controller of the County of San
Diego.

3. The San Diego County Auditor shall place on the County
Assessment Roll, opposite each parcel of land, the amount of levy
so apportioned by the method of apportionment formula, as set
forth above, and such levies shall be collected at the same time and
in the same manner as ordinary ad valorem property taxes of the
City for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2021.

4. The City Clerk’s Designee, Koppel & Gruber Public Finance, is
hereby authorized and directed to file the levy with the San Diego
County Auditor subsequent to the adoption of this Resolution.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of June 2021, at a regularly 
scheduled meeting of the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California by 
the following vote: 

AYES:   Councilmembers – 
NOES:   Councilmembers – 
ABSENT:   Councilmembers – 
ABSTAIN:  Councilmembers – 

__________________________ 
LESA HEEBNER, Mayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST: 

___________  _____________   __________________________ 
JOHANNA N. CANLAS, City Attorney ANGELA IVEY, City Clerk 



CITY COUNCIL ACTION: 
______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 

AGENDA ITEM # A.6. 

STAFF REPORT 
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers 
FROM: Gregory Wade, City Manager 
MEETING DATE:  June 9, 2021 
ORIGINATING DEPT: Human Resources Department 
SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution 2021-084 to Temporarily 

Amend the City’s Section 125 Flexible Benefit Plan with 
WageWorks/HeathEquity Under the Consolidated 
Appropriations Act, 2021 

BACKGROUND: 

The City has been contracting with WageWorks/HealthEquity to administer its Section 
125 Cafeteria/Flexible Spending Account Plan (FSA).  Due to the nature of the COVID-
19 public health emergency and unanticipated changes in the availability of certain 
medical care and dependent care, employees are likely to have unused health FSA 
amounts or dependent care FSA amounts at the end of plan years, or grace periods, 
ending in 2020.  

To provide related relief, the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021 (CAA), was signed 
into law on December 27, 2020. As provided in two Internal Revenue Service (IRS) 
Notices 2020-29 and 2021-15, the CAA provides substantial flexibility for the operation of 
health and dependent care Flexible Spending Accounts (FSAs), which include the 
following: 1) expanded carryover or grace period, 2) Mid-Year Election Change Flexibility, 
3) health FSA spend down relief, and 5) dependent care FSA age limit relief.  In an effort
to provide relief to employees, the City would like to take advantage of the benefit options
offered under the CAA.

This item is before Council to consider the adoption of Resolution 2021-084 (Attachment 
1) to temporarily amend the City’s Flexible Spending Account Summary Plan Description
with WageWorks/HealthEquity to reflect the relief options provided under the CAA.

DISCUSSION: 

Section 125 cafeteria plan is a written plan maintained by an employer under which all 
participants are  employees, and all participants may choose among two or more benefits 
consisting of cash and qualified benefits. Qualified benefits that may be provided under a 



June 9, 2021 
WageWorks/HealthEquity Amendment-Options Offered Under CAA 

Page 2 of 4 

Section 125 cafeteria plan include, but are not limited to, employer-provided accident and 
health plans, health FSAs (HFSA), and dependent care FSAs (DCFSA).  

The City offers all eligible employees both the HFSA and the DCFSA benefit under its 
Section 125 cafeteria plan. A HFSA is a pre-tax benefit account used to pay for eligible 
medical, dental, and vision care expenses that are not covered by an insurance plan or 
elsewhere. A DCFSA is a pre-tax benefit account used to pay for dependent care 
services, such as preschool, summer day camp, before or after school programs, and 
child or elder daycare. The City’s third-party administrator (TPA) for this benefit is 
WageWorks/HealthEquity. 

To provide relief due to COVID-19, the CAA was signed into law on December 27, 2020. 
As outlined in IRS Notices 2020-29 (Attachment 2) and 2021-15 (Attachment 3) , the CAA 
provides temporary special rules for HFSAs and DCFSAs under Section 125 cafeteria 
plans. The temporary FSA provisions include the following: 

Expanded Carry-Over or Grace Period 

Under the CAA, HFSAs and DCFSAs may permit participants to carryover any unused 
funds from the 2020 plan year to the plan year ending in 2021. Similarly, HFSAs and 
DCFSAs may permit participants to carryover unused funds from the 2021 plan year to 
the plan year ending in 2022. 

Alternatively, HFSAs and DCFSAs that include a grace period, as opposed to a carryover 
provision, may extend the 2020 and/or 2021 grace periods from up to two months and 15 
days after the end of the plan year to 12 months after the end of the plan year. 

Mid-Year Election Change Flexibility 

Ordinarily, cafeteria plan elections are irrevocable during a plan year, unless a participant 
experiences an IRS-approved status change event such as marriage, birth, divorce, or 
change in employment status. The CAA temporarily permits cafeteria plans to allow 
participants to make prospective mid-year election changes with respect to HFSAs and 
DCFSAs (i.e., to elect an account, increase or decrease contributions, or drop an 
account) for plan years ending in 2021 for any reason, without a qualified status change 
event. 

Health FSA Spend Down Relief 

Allows employees who cease participating in a HFSA during calendar year 2020 or 2021 
(including termination/separation of employment) to continue to spend down unused 
account balances through the end of the plan year in which their participation ceased, 
including any grace period. 



June 9, 2021 
WageWorks/HealthEquity Amendment-Options Offered Under CAA 

Page 3 of 4 

Dependent Care FSA Age Limit Relief 

The CAA provides for a carryover rule for dependents who aged-out of a DCFSA during 
calendar year 2020. Generally, dependent care expenses are only eligible for 
reimbursement if the expense relates to care of dependent children aged 13 and under. 
The CAA increased the maximum age limit for reimbursement of dependent care 
expenses from 13 to 14 for calendar year 2020. It also allows the increased age limit for 
amounts carried over from the end of the 2020 plan year to the 2021 plan year for the 
dependent who aged-out. 

As governed by applicable State and Federal laws and regulations, 
WageWorks/HealthEquity will continue to administer the City’s Section 125 cafeteria 
plan/FSAs for Plan Year 2021. The amendment to the City’s current HFSA and DCFSA 
plans will reflect the temporary changes outlined in the IRS Notices, 2020-29 and 2021-
15 per the CCA for Plan Years ending in 2020 and 2021.  

Staff recommends for the City Council to approve and authorize the City Manager to 
execute the temporary amendment as outlined in the IRS Notices 2020-29 and 2021-15 
with WageWorks/HealthEquity as reflected on the “Summary of Material Modifications to 
Your Summary Plan Description” document (Attachment 4). 

CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT: 

Not a project under CEQA. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

For Plan Years ending in 2020 and 2021, there are no changes to the fee structure 
between the City and WageWorks/HealthEquity.  

WORKPLAN: N/A 

OPTIONS: 

• Approve Staff recommendation.
• Do not approve Staff recommendation and provide alternative direction.

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution 2021-084 approving and 
authorizing the City Manager to execute the temporary amendment with 
WageWorks/HealthEquity in order to comply with options available under The 
Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021 for Flexible Spending Accounts. 



June 9, 2021 
WageWorks/HealthEquity Amendment-Options Offered Under CAA 

Page 4 of 4 

CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Department Recommendation.  

_________________________ 
Gregory Wade, City Manager 

Attachment 1: Resolution 2021-084 
Attachment 2: IRS Notice – 2020-29 
Attachment 3: IRS Notice – 2021-15 
Attachment 4: Summary of Material Modifications to Your Summary Plan Description 
Document 



 
  RESOLUTION 2021-084 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING A 
TEMPORARY AMENDMENT TO THE CITY’S SECTION 125 
FLEXIBLE BENEFIT PLAN WITH WAGEWORKS/HEALTH 
EQUITY UNDER THE CONSOLIDATED 
APPROPRIATIONS ACT, 2021 

 
WHEREAS, the City has been contracting with WageWorks/HealthEquity to 

administer its Section 125 Cafeteria Plan/Flexible Spending Account Plan; and   
 
 WHEREAS, due to the nature of the COVID-19 public health emergency and 
unanticipated changes in the availability of certain medical care and dependent care, 
employees are likely to have unused funds in their health and/or dependent care flexible 
spending accounts at the end of plan years 2020 and 2021; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021 (CAA), was signed into law 
on December 27, 2020 to provide temporary special rules for health and dependent care 
flexible spending accounts under Section 125 cafeteria plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to temporarily amend its Flexible Benefit Plan with 
WageWorks/HealthEquity as permitted under the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the temporary amendments are outlined in the “Summary of Material 
Modification to Your Summary Plan Description” document, with an effective date of 
January 1, 2020.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach does resolve as 
follows: 

 
1. That the foregoing recitations are true and correct. 

 
2.   That the City Council approves the adoption of the amended Summary Plan 

Description for the City’s Flexible Benefit Plan with WageWorks/HealthEquity to 
incorporate provisions of the Consolidated Appropriation Act, 2021, effective 
January 1, 2020.  

 
3.   That the City Council authorizes the City Manager to execute the agreement with 

WageWorks/HealthEquity on behalf of the City. 
 

4.   That the City Manager or his designee is authorized to take any and all actions 
necessary to implement the Plan, and to set up adequate accounting and 
administrative procedures to provide benefits under the Plan. 

mbavin
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 1



Resolution 2021-084 
WageWorks/HealthEquity Amendment - CAA 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 

 
5. That the City Manager or his designee shall act as soon as possible to notify 

employees of the adoption of the Cafeteria Plan by delivering to each employee a 
copy of the summary description of the plan in the form of the Summary Plan 
Description as approved. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of June 2021, at a regularly scheduled 

meeting of the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California by the following vote: 
      

AYES:   Councilmembers –  
NOES:   Councilmembers –  
ABSTAIN:  Councilmembers – 
ABSENT:   Councilmembers – 

 
 
________________________________ 
LESA HEEBNER, Mayor 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
JOHANNA N. CANLAS, City Attorney  ANGELA IVEY, City Clerk 



COVID-19 GUIDANCE UNDER § 125 CAFETERIA PLANS AND RELATED TO HIGH 

DEDUCTIBLE HEALTH PLANS 

Notice 2020-29 

 

I. PURPOSE AND OVERVIEW 

To assist with the nation’s response to the 2019 Novel Coronavirus outbreak 

(COVID-19), this notice provides for increased flexibility with respect to mid-year 

elections under a § 125 cafeteria plan during calendar year 2020 related to employer-

sponsored health coverage, health Flexible Spending Arrangements (health FSAs), and 

dependent care assistance programs. This notice also provides increased flexibility with 

respect to grace periods to apply unused amounts in health FSAs to medical care 

expenses incurred through December 31, 2020, and unused amounts in dependent 

care assistance programs to dependent care expenses incurred through December 31, 

2020. 

As described more fully below, this notice provides that – 

• For mid-year elections made during calendar year 2020, a § 125 cafeteria 

plan may permit employees who are eligible to make salary reduction 

contributions under the plan to:  (1) with respect to employer-sponsored 

health coverage, (a) make a new election on a prospective basis, if the 

employee initially declined to elect employer-sponsored health coverage; 

(b) revoke an existing election and make a new election to enroll in different 

health coverage sponsored by the same employer on a prospective basis; 

mbavin
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 2



 
 

2 
 

and (c) revoke an existing election on a prospective basis, provided that the 

employee attests in writing that the employee is enrolled, or immediately will 

enroll, in other health coverage not sponsored by the employer; (2) revoke an 

election, make a new election, or decrease or increase an existing election 

applicable to a health FSA on a prospective basis; and (3) revoke an election, 

make a new election, or decrease or increase an existing election regarding a 

dependent care assistance program on a prospective basis; 

• For unused amounts remaining in a health FSA or a dependent care 

assistance program under the § 125 cafeteria plan as of the end of a grace 

period or plan year ending in 2020, a § 125 cafeteria plan may permit 

employees to apply those unused amounts to pay or reimburse medical care 

expenses or dependent care expenses, respectively, incurred through 

December 31, 2020; and 

• The relief provided in Notice 2020-15, 2020-14 IRB 559 regarding high 

deductible health plans (HDHPs) and expenses related to COVID-19, and in 

section 3701 of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act 

(CARES Act) (P.L. 116-136, 134 Stat. 281 (March 27, 2020)) regarding an 

exemption for telehealth services, may be applied retroactively to January 1, 

2020. 

II. BACKGROUND 

A. Elections Under a § 125 Cafeteria Plan 

Section 125(d)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (Code) defines a § 125 cafeteria 

plan as a written plan maintained by an employer under which all participants are 



 
 

3 
 

employees, and all participants may choose among two or more benefits consisting of 

cash and qualified benefits. Subject to certain exceptions, § 125(f) defines a qualified 

benefit as any benefit which, with the application of § 125(a), is not includable in the 

gross income of the employee by reason of an express provision of the Code. Qualified 

benefits that may be provided under a § 125 cafeteria plan include employer-provided 

accident and health plans excludable under §§ 106 and 105(b), health FSAs excludable 

under §§ 106 and 105(b), and dependent care assistance programs excludable under 

§ 129. 

Elections regarding qualified benefits under a § 125 cafeteria plan generally must 

be irrevocable and must be made prior to the first day of the plan year, except as 

provided under Treas. Reg. § 1.125-4.1 Treas. Reg. § 1.125-4 provides that a § 125 

cafeteria plan may permit an employee to revoke an election during a period of 

coverage and to make a new election under certain circumstances, such as if the 

employee experiences a change in status or there are significant changes in the cost of 

coverage. Section 125 does not require a § 125 cafeteria plan to permit the mid-year 

election changes allowed under Treas. Reg. § 1.125-4. 

Due to the nature of the public health emergency posed by COVID-19 and 

unanticipated changes in the need for medical care, some employers have indicated a 

willingness to offer employees who initially declined to elect employer-sponsored health 

coverage an opportunity to elect health coverage or allow employees enrolled in 

 
1 In contrast, for qualified transportation fringe benefits under § 132(f) (which pursuant to § 125(f)(1) may 

not be offered under a § 125 cafeteria plan), Treas. Reg. § 1.132-9, Q&A 14 provides that employees 
may change or revoke compensation reduction elections related to the qualified transportation fringe 
benefits under § 132(f) before the employee is able currently to receive the cash or other taxable amount 
at the employee’s discretion (generally before the beginning of a pay period). 



 
 

4 
 

employer-sponsored health coverage to enroll in different health coverage offered by 

the same employer or drop their existing employer-sponsored health coverage to enroll 

in other health coverage not offered by their employer (for example, coverage offered by 

their spouse’s employer). In addition, some employees may have an increase or 

decrease in medical expenses due to unanticipated changes in the need for or 

availability of medical care and may wish to increase or decrease amounts in their 

health FSAs. Further, some employees may have an increase or decrease in the need 

for dependent care assistance due to the unanticipated closure of schools and child 

care providers and changes to the employee’s work location or schedule. Depending on 

an employee’s circumstances, the exceptions set forth in Treas. Reg. § 1.125-4 may not 

apply with respect to election changes that employees may wish to request for 

employer-sponsored health coverage, health FSAs, and dependent care assistance 

programs for reasons related to the COVID-19 public health emergency. 

B. Health FSAs and Dependent Care Assistance Programs 

Under the carryover rule, a § 125 cafeteria plan may permit the carryover of 

unused amounts remaining in a health FSA as of the end of a plan year to pay or 

reimburse a participant for medical care expenses incurred during the following plan 

year, subject to the carryover limit (currently $550). See Notice 2013-71, 2013-47 IRB 

532, and Notice 2020-33, 2020-22 IRB ___. Under the grace period rule, a § 125 

cafeteria plan may permit a participant to apply unused amounts (including amounts 

remaining in a health FSA or dependent care assistance program) at the end of a plan 

year to pay expenses incurred for those same qualified benefits during the period of up 

to two months and 15 days immediately following the end of the plan year. See 



 
 

5 
 

Notice 2005-42, 2005-1 C.B. 1204, and Prop. Treas. Reg. § 1.125-1(e). For a health 

FSA, a § 125 cafeteria plan may adopt a carryover or a grace period (or neither), but 

may not adopt both features. See Notice 2013-71. 

Due to the nature of the public health emergency posed by COVID-19, in 

particular unanticipated changes in the availability of certain medical care and 

dependent care, employees may be more likely to have unused health FSA amounts or 

dependent care assistance program amounts (or have larger unused health FSA 

amounts or dependent care assistance program amounts) as of the end of plan years, 

or grace periods, ending in 2020 and may wish to have an extended period during 

which to apply their unused health FSA amounts or dependent care assistance program 

amounts to pay or reimburse medical care expenses or dependent care expenses.  

C. Impact of Health FSA Reimbursements on Eligibility to Contribute to 

an HSA  

Section 223 permits eligible individuals to establish and contribute to health 

savings accounts (HSAs). Pursuant to § 223(c)(1)(A), an eligible individual is, with 

respect to any month, any individual if (i) such individual is covered under an HDHP as 

of the first day of such month, and (ii) such individual is not, while covered under an 

HDHP, covered under any health plan which is not an HDHP, and which provides 

coverage for any benefit which is covered under the HDHP. An HDHP is a health plan 

that satisfies the minimum annual deductible requirement and maximum out-of-pocket 

expenses requirement under § 223(c)(2)(A). 



 
 

6 
 

Coverage by a general purpose health FSA is coverage by a health plan that 

disqualifies an otherwise eligible individual from contributing to an HSA, although 

coverage by a limited purpose health FSA would not do so.2 See Rev. Rul. 2004-45, 

2004-1 C.B. 971. Similarly, a telemedicine arrangement generally constitutes a health 

plan or insurance that provides coverage before the minimum annual deductible is met, 

and provides coverage that is not disregarded coverage or preventive care, which would 

generally disqualify an otherwise eligible individual from contributing to an HSA. 

However, section 3701 of the CARES Act amended § 223 of the Code to temporarily 

allow HSA-eligible HDHPs to cover telehealth and other remote care services. See 

section IV.B. of this notice for more details. 

III. RELIEF 

A. Elections Under a § 125 Cafeteria Plan 

This notice provides temporary flexibility for § 125 cafeteria plans to permit 

employees to make certain prospective mid-year election changes for employer-

sponsored health coverage, health FSAs, and dependent care assistance programs 

during calendar year 2020 that the plan chooses to permit. Specifically, an employer, in 

its discretion, may amend one or more of its § 125 cafeteria plans (including limiting the 

period during which election changes may be made) to allow each employee who is 

eligible to make salary reduction contributions under the plan to make prospective 

 
2 Notice 2005-86, 2005-49 IRB 1075 clarifies that coverage by a general purpose health FSA during a 
grace period is health coverage that disqualifies an otherwise eligible individual from contributing to an 
HSA during that period. However, Notice 2005-86 provides methods an employer can use to amend the 
health FSA for the grace period so it does not disqualify employees from contributing to an HSA during 
that period. 

 



 
 

7 
 

election changes (including an initial election) during calendar year 2020 regarding 

employer-sponsored health coverage, a health FSA, or a dependent care assistance 

program, regardless of whether the basis for the election change satisfies the criteria 

set forth in Treas. Reg. § 1.125-4. In particular, an employer may amend one or more of 

its § 125 cafeteria plans to allow employees to:  (1) make a new election for employer-

sponsored health coverage on a prospective basis, if the employee initially declined to 

elect employer-sponsored health coverage; (2) revoke an existing election for employer-

sponsored health coverage and make a new election to enroll in different health 

coverage sponsored by the same employer on a prospective basis (including changing 

enrollment from self-only coverage to family coverage); (3) revoke an existing election 

for employer-sponsored health coverage on a prospective basis, provided that the 

employee attests in writing that the employee is enrolled, or immediately will enroll, in 

other health coverage not sponsored by the employer; (4) revoke an election, make a 

new election, or decrease or increase an existing election regarding a health FSA on a 

prospective basis; and (5) revoke an election, make a new election, or decrease or 

increase an existing election regarding a dependent care assistance program on a 

prospective basis. 

To accept an employee’s revocation of an existing election for employer-

sponsored health coverage, the employer must receive from the employee an 

attestation in writing that the employee is enrolled, or immediately will enroll, in other 

comprehensive health coverage not sponsored by the employer. The employer may rely 

on the written attestation provided by the employee, unless the employer has actual 

knowledge that the employee is not, or will not be, enrolled in other comprehensive 



 
 

8 
 

health coverage not sponsored by the employer. The following is an example of an 

acceptable written attestation: 

Name:  _______________________ (and other identifying information 
requested by the employer for administrative purposes). 
 
I attest that I am enrolled in, or immediately will enroll in, one of the following 
types of coverage: (1) employer-sponsored health coverage through the 
employer of my spouse or parent; (2) individual health insurance coverage 
enrolled in through the Health Insurance Marketplace (also known as the 
Health Insurance Exchange); (3) Medicaid; (4) Medicare; (5) TRICARE; (6) 
Civilian Health and Medical Program of the Department of Veterans Affairs 
(CHAMPVA); or (7) other coverage that provides comprehensive health 
benefits (for example, health insurance purchased directly from an 
insurance company or health insurance provided through a student health 
plan). 
 
Signature:  ______________________ 

 
An employer utilizing this relief under § 125 is not required to provide unlimited 

election changes but may, in its discretion, determine the extent to which such election 

changes are permitted and applied, provided that any permitted election changes are 

applied on a prospective basis only, and the changes to the plan’s election 

requirements do not result in failure to comply with the nondiscrimination rules 

applicable to § 125 cafeteria plans. In determining the extent to which election changes 

are permitted and applied, an employer may wish to consider the potential for adverse 

selection of health coverage by employees. To prevent adverse selection of health 

coverage, an employer may wish to limit elections to circumstances in which an 

employee’s coverage will be increased or improved as a result of the election (for 

example, by electing to switch from self-only coverage to family coverage, or from a low 

option plan covering in-network expenses only to a high option plan covering expenses 

in or out of network). Changes to the plan may also implicate other applicable laws, 



 
 

9 
 

such as notice requirements under Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security 

Act of 1974, with which any changes should comply. With respect to mid-year election 

changes for employer-sponsored coverage, this relief applies to both employers 

sponsoring self-insured plans and employers sponsoring insured plans. With respect to 

health FSAs, this relief applies to all health FSAs, including limited purpose health FSAs 

compatible with HSAs. In addition, with respect to health FSAs and dependent care 

assistance programs, employers are permitted to limit mid-year elections to amounts no 

less than amounts already reimbursed. 

This relief may be applied retroactively to periods prior to the issuance of this 

notice and on or after January 1, 2020, to address a § 125 cafeteria plan that, prior to 

the issuance of this notice, permitted mid-year election changes for employer-

sponsored health coverage, health FSAs, or dependent care assistance programs that 

otherwise are consistent with the requirements for the relief provided in this notice. 

B. Extended Claims Period for Health FSAs and Dependent Care 

Assistance Programs 

This notice also provides flexibility for a § 125 cafeteria plan to provide an 

extended period to apply unused amounts remaining in a health FSA or dependent care 

assistance program to pay or reimburse medical care expenses or dependent care 

expenses. Specifically, an employer, in its discretion, may amend one or more of its 

§ 125 cafeteria plans to permit employees to apply unused amounts remaining in a 

health FSA or a dependent care assistance program as of the end of a grace period 

ending in 2020 or a plan year ending in 2020 to pay or reimburse expenses incurred for 

the same qualified benefit through December 31, 2020. For example, if an employer 



 
 

10 
 

sponsors a § 125 cafeteria plan with a health FSA that has a calendar year plan year 

and provides for a grace period ending on March 15 immediately following the end of 

each plan year, the employer may amend the plan to permit employees to apply unused 

amounts remaining in an employee’s health FSA as of March 15, 2020, to reimburse the 

employee for medical care expenses incurred through December 31, 2020.3 This relief 

applies to all health FSAs, including limited purpose health FSAs compatible with HSAs. 

However, health FSA amounts may only be used for medical care expenses, and 

dependent care assistance program amounts may only be used for dependent care 

expenses. The extension of time for incurring claims is available both to § 125 cafeteria 

plans that have a grace period, and plans that provide for a carryover, notwithstanding 

Notice 2013-71, which otherwise continues in effect and provides that health FSAs can 

either adopt a grace period or provide for a carryover amount but cannot have both. The 

following examples illustrate how a plan with a July 1 plan year that allows a $500 

carryover would implement the extended period for incurring claims allowed by this 

notice: 

Example 1.  Employer provides a health FSA under a § 125 cafeteria plan that allows a 
$500 carryover for the 2019 plan year (July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020). Pursuant to this 
notice and Notice 2020-33, Employer amends the plan to adopt a $550 (indexed) 
carryover beginning with the 2020 plan year, and also amends the plan to adopt the 
temporary extended period for incurring claims with respect to the 2019 plan year, 
allowing for claims incurred prior to January 1, 2021, to be paid with respect to amounts 
from the 2019 plan year. 
 
Employee A has a remaining balance in his health FSA for the 2019 plan year of $2,000 
on June 30, 2020, because a scheduled non-emergency procedure was postponed. For 
the 2020 plan year beginning July 1, 2020, Employee A elects to contribute $2,000 to 
his health FSA. Employee A is able to reschedule the procedure before December 31, 

 
3 Certain plans would not need the relief provided in this notice. For example, a plan with a plan year 
ending on or after October 31, 2020, continues to be able to provide a grace period of up to two months 
and 15 days, which would allow the reimbursement of claims incurred after December 31, 2020.  



 
 

11 
 

2020 and, between July 1, 2020 and December 31, 2020, incurs $1,900 in medical care 
expenses. The health FSA may reimburse Employee A $1,900 from the $2,000 
remaining in his health FSA at the end of the 2019 plan year, leaving $100 unused from 
the 2019 plan year. Under the plan terms that provide for a carryover, Employee A is 
allowed to use the remaining $100 in his health FSA until June 30, 2021, to reimburse 
claims incurred during the 2020 plan year. Employee A may be reimbursed for up to 
$2,100 ($2,000 contributed to the health FSA for the 2020 plan year plus $100 
carryover from the 2019 plan year) for medical care expenses incurred between 
January 1, 2021 and June 30, 2021. In addition, Employee A may carry over to the 
2021 plan year beginning July 1, 2021 up to $550 of any remaining portion of that 
$2,100 after claims are processed for the 2020 plan year that began July 1, 2020. A 
grace period is not available for the plan year ending June 30, 2021. 
 
Example 2.  Same facts as Example 1, except that Employee B has a remaining 
balance in his health FSA for the 2019 plan year of $1,250 on June 30, 2020. For the 
2020 plan year beginning July 1, 2020, Employee B elects to contribute $1,200 to his 
health FSA. Between July 1, 2020 and December 31, 2020, Employee B incurs $600 in 
medical care expenses. The health FSA may reimburse Employee B $600 from the 
$1,250 remaining in his health FSA at the end of the 2019 plan year, leaving $650 
unused from the 2019 plan year. Under the plan terms, Employee B is allowed to use 
$5004 of the $650 unused amount from the 2019 plan year to reimburse claims incurred 
during the 2020 plan year, and the remaining $150 will be forfeited. Employee B may be 
reimbursed for up to $1,700 ($1,200 contributed to the health FSA for the 2020 plan 
year plus $500 carryover from the 2019 plan year) for medical care expenses incurred 
between January 1, 2021 and June 30, 2021. In addition, Employee B may carry over to 
the 2021 plan year beginning July 1, 2021 up to $550 of any remaining unused portion 
of that $1,700 after claims are processed for the 2020 plan year that began July 1, 
2020. A grace period is not available for the plan year ending June 30, 2021. 
 

The extension of the period for incurring claims that may be reimbursed by the 

health FSA is an extension of coverage by a health plan that is not an HDHP for 

purposes of determining whether an eligible individual qualifies to make contributions to 

an HSA (except in the case of an HSA-compatible health FSA, such as a limited 

purpose health FSA). See section II.C. of this notice. Thus, an individual who had 

unused amounts remaining at the end of a plan year or grace period ending in 2020 and 

 
4 The maximum unused amount remaining in a health FSA from a plan year beginning in 2019 allowed to 

be carried over to the immediately following plan year beginning in 2020 is $500, whereas the maximum 
unused amount remaining in a health FSA from a plan year beginning in 2020 allowed to be carried over 
to the immediately following plan year beginning in 2021 is $550 (20 percent of $2,750, the indexed 2020 
limit under § 125(i)). See Notice 2020-33. 



 
 

12 
 

who is allowed an extended period to incur expenses under a health FSA pursuant to a 

plan amended in accordance with this notice will not be eligible to contribute to an HSA 

during the extended period (except in the case of an HSA-compatible health FSA, 

including a health FSA that is amended to be HSA-compatible). 

The relief set forth in this notice may be applied on or after January 1, 2020 and 

on or before December 31, 2020, provided that any elections made in accordance with 

this notice apply only on a prospective basis. 

C. Plan Amendments 

An employer that decides to amend one or more of its § 125 cafeteria plans to 

provide for mid-year election changes for employer-sponsored health coverage, health 

FSAs, or dependent care assistance programs in a manner consistent with this notice or 

to provide for an extended period to apply unused amounts remaining in a health FSA 

or a dependent care assistance program to pay or reimburse medical care expenses or 

dependent care expenses in a manner consistent with this notice must adopt a plan 

amendment. In addition, an employer that decides to amend its health FSA to provide 

for an increase in the carryover of unused amounts to the following year in a manner 

consistent with Notice 2020-33, for the 2020 plan year or plan years thereafter, must 

adopt a plan amendment. 

An amendment for the 2020 plan year must be adopted on or before 

December 31, 2021, and may be effective retroactively to January 1, 2020, provided 

that the § 125 cafeteria plan operates in accordance with this notice or Notice 2020-33 

or both, as applicable, and the employer informs all employees eligible to participate in 



 
 

13 
 

the § 125 cafeteria plan of the changes to the plan. Any amendment adopted pursuant 

to this notice must apply only to mid-year elections made during calendar year 2020, or 

to an extended period to apply unused health FSA amounts or dependent care 

assistance program amounts for the payment or reimbursement of medical care 

expenses or dependent care expenses incurred through December 31, 2020. 

IV. MISCELLANEOUS 

A. HDHPs and Application of Notice 2020-15 

Notice 2020-15 provides that a health plan that otherwise satisfies the 

requirements to be an HDHP under § 223(c)(2)(A) will not fail to be an HDHP merely 

because the health plan provides medical care services and items purchased related to 

testing for and treatment of COVID-19 prior to the satisfaction of the applicable 

minimum deductible. This notice clarifies that the relief provided in Notice 2020-15 

regarding HDHPs and expenses related to testing for and treatment of COVID-19 

applies with respect to reimbursements of expenses incurred on or after January 1, 

2020. This notice further clarifies that the panel of diagnostic testing for influenza A & B, 

norovirus and other coronaviruses, and respiratory syncytial virus (RSV) and any items 

or services required to be covered with zero cost sharing under section 6001 of the 

Families First Coronavirus Response Act (P.L. 116-127, 134 Stat. 178 (March 18, 

2020)), as amended by the CARES Act, are part of testing and treatment for COVID-19 

for purposes of Notice 2020-15. 

 

 



 
 

14 
 

B. HDHPs and Application of Section 3701 of the CARES Act 

Section 3701 of the CARES Act amends § 223(c) of the Code to provide a 

temporary safe harbor for providing coverage for telehealth and other remote care 

services. As added by the CARES Act, § 223(c)(2)(E) of the Code allows HSA-eligible 

HDHPs to cover telehealth and other remote care services without a deductible or with 

a deductible below the minimum annual deductible otherwise required by § 223(c)(2)(A) 

of the Code. Section 3701 of the CARES Act also amends § 223(c)(1)(B)(ii) of the Code 

to include telehealth and other remote care services as categories of coverage that are 

disregarded for purposes of determining whether an individual who has other health 

plan coverage in addition to an HDHP is an eligible individual who may make tax-

favored contributions to his or her HSA under § 223 of the Code. Thus, an otherwise 

eligible individual with coverage under an HDHP may also receive coverage for 

telehealth and other remote care services outside the HDHP and before satisfying the 

deductible of the HDHP and still contribute to an HSA. The amendments to § 223 of the 

Code under section 3701 of the CARES Act are effective March 27, 2020, and apply to 

plan years beginning on or before December 31, 2021. This notice provides that 

treatment of telehealth and other remote care services under section 3701 of the 

CARES Act applies with respect to services provided on or after January 1, 2020, with 

respect to plan years beginning on or before December 31, 2021. Therefore, for 

example, an otherwise eligible individual with coverage under an HDHP who also 

received coverage beginning February 15, 2020 for telehealth and other remote care 

services under an arrangement that is not an HDHP and before satisfying the deductible 

for the HDHP will not be disqualified from contributing to an HSA during 2020. 



 
 

15 
 

V. DRAFTING INFORMATION 

The principal author of this notice is Jennifer Solomon of the Office of Associate 

Chief Counsel (Employee Benefits, Exempt Organizations, and Employment Taxes), 

though other Treasury Department and IRS officials participated in its development. For 

further information on the provisions of this notice, contact Jennifer Solomon at (202) 

317-5500 (not a toll-free number). 

 



1 
 

ADDITIONAL RELIEF FOR CORONAVIRUS DISEASE (COVID-19) UNDER § 125 

CAFETERIA PLANS 

Notice 2021-15 

I. PURPOSE AND OVERVIEW 

This notice clarifies the application of § 214 of the Taxpayer Certainty and 

Disaster Tax Relief Act of 2020 (the Act), recently enacted as Division EE of the 

Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2021, Pub. L. 116-260, 134 Stat. 1182 (Dec. 27, 

2020), which provides temporary special rules for health flexible spending arrangements 

(health FSAs) and dependent care assistance programs1 under § 125 cafeteria plans.  

As described more fully below, § 214 of the Act: 

• Provides flexibility with respect to carryovers of unused amounts from the 

2020 and 2021 plan years; 

• Extends the permissible period for incurring claims for plan years ending in 

2020 and 2021; 

• Provides a special rule regarding post-termination reimbursements from 

health FSAs during plan years 2020 and 2021; 

• Provides a special claims period and carryover rule for dependent care 

assistance programs when a dependent “ages out” during the COVID-19 

public health emergency; and  

 
1 Although § 214 of the Act refers to “dependent care flexible spending arrangements,” this notice uses 
the term “dependent care assistance programs.”  

mbavin
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 3



2 
 

• Allows certain mid-year election changes for health FSAs and dependent care 

assistance programs for plan years ending in 2021. 

This notice also provides additional relief with respect to mid-year elections for 

plan years ending in 2021.  Specifically, with respect to employer-sponsored health 

coverage, a § 125 cafeteria plan may permit employees who are eligible to make salary 

reduction contributions under the plan to take any of the following actions for plan years 

ending in 2021:  (1) make a new election on a prospective basis, if the employee initially 

declined to elect employer-sponsored health coverage; (2) revoke an existing election 

and make a new election to enroll in different health coverage sponsored by the same 

employer on a prospective basis; and (3) revoke an existing election on a prospective 

basis, provided that the employee attests in writing that the employee is enrolled, or 

immediately will enroll, in other health coverage not sponsored by the employer. 

The notice also provides relief with respect to the effective date of amendments 

to § 125 cafeteria plans and health reimbursement arrangements (HRAs) to implement 

the expansion of allowed expenses for health FSAs and HRAs by the Coronavirus Aid, 

Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), Pub. L. 116-136, 134 Stat. 281 (March 

27, 2020) to include over-the-counter drugs without prescriptions and menstrual care 

products.  

II. BACKGROUND 

A. Elections Under a § 125 Cafeteria Plan 

Section 125(d)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (Code) defines a § 125 cafeteria 

plan as a written plan maintained by an employer under which all participants are 



3 
 

employees, and all participants may choose among two or more benefits consisting of 

cash and qualified benefits.  Subject to certain exceptions, § 125(f) defines a qualified 

benefit as any benefit which, with the application of § 125(a), is not includable in the 

gross income of the employee by reason of an express provision of the Code.  Qualified 

benefits that may be provided under a § 125 cafeteria plan include, but are not limited 

to, employer-provided accident and health plans excludable under §§ 105(b) and 106, 

health FSAs excludable under §§ 105(b) and 106, and dependent care assistance 

programs excludable under § 129. 

Elections regarding qualified benefits under a § 125 cafeteria plan generally must 

be irrevocable and must be made prior to the first day of the plan year, except as 

provided under Treas. Reg. § 1.125-4.  Treas. Reg. § 1.125-4 provides that a § 125 

cafeteria plan may permit an employee to revoke an election during a period of 

coverage and to make a new election under certain circumstances, such as if the 

employee experiences a change in status or there are significant changes in the cost of 

coverage.  Section 125 does not require a § 125 cafeteria plan to permit the mid-year 

election changes allowed under Treas. Reg. § 1.125-4. 

B. Health FSAs and Dependent Care Assistance Programs – Carryovers 

and Grace Periods 

A § 125 cafeteria plan may permit the carryover of unused amounts remaining in 

a health FSA as of the end of a plan year to pay or reimburse a participant for medical 

care expenses incurred during the following plan year, subject to the carryover limit (the 



4 
 

carryover rule).2  See Notice 2013-71, 2013-47 IRB 532, and Notice 2020-33, 2020-22 

IRB 868.  In the alternative, a § 125 cafeteria plan may permit a participant to apply 

unused amounts (including amounts remaining in a health FSA or dependent care 

assistance program) at the end of the plan year to pay expenses incurred for those 

same qualified benefits during a period of up to two months and 15 days immediately 

following the end of the plan year (the grace period rule).  See Notice 2005-42, 2005-1 

C.B. 1204, and Prop. Treas. Reg. § 1.125-1(e).  For a health FSA, a § 125 cafeteria 

plan may adopt a carryover or a grace period (or neither) but may not adopt both 

features.  See Notice 2013-71.  Under generally applicable rules, without regard to 

§ 214 of the Act, a § 125 cafeteria plan may not adopt a carryover for a dependent care 

assistance program. 

In Notice 2020-29, 2020-22 IRB 864, the Department of the Treasury (Treasury 

Department) and the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) explained that, due to the nature 

of the COVID-19 public health emergency and unanticipated changes in the availability 

of certain medical care and dependent care, employees may be more likely to have 

unused health FSA amounts or dependent care assistance program amounts at the end 

of plan years, or grace periods, ending in 2020.  To provide related relief, Notice 2020-

29 extended, to the end of calendar year 2020, the period during which employees 

could be permitted to apply unused health FSA amounts and dependent care 

assistance program amounts remaining as of the end of a grace period or plan year 

 
2 The maximum unused amount remaining in a health FSA from a plan year beginning in 2020 allowed to 
be carried over to the plan year beginning in 2021 is $550 (20 percent of $2,750, the indexed 2020 limit 
under § 125(i)). 



5 
 

ending in 2020 to pay or reimburse medical care expenses or dependent care 

expenses.  

C. Impact of Health FSA Reimbursements on Eligibility to Contribute to an 

HSA 

Section 223 of the Code permits eligible individuals to establish and contribute to 

health savings accounts (HSAs).  Pursuant to § 223(c)(1)(A), an eligible individual is, 

with respect to any month, any individual if (i) the individual is covered under a high 

deductible health plan (HDHP) as of the first day of the month, and (ii) the individual is 

not, while covered under an HDHP, covered under any health plan which is not an 

HDHP and which provides coverage for any benefit which is covered under the HDHP. 

An HDHP is a health plan that satisfies the minimum annual deductible requirement and 

maximum out-of-pocket expenses requirement under § 223(c)(2)(A).  Coverage by a 

general purpose health FSA disqualifies an otherwise eligible individual from 

contributing to an HSA, although coverage by an HSA-compatible health FSA, such as 

a limited purpose health FSA or a post-deductible health FSA, would not do so.3  See 

Rev. Rul. 2004-45, 2004-1 C.B. 971.  

III. GUIDANCE RELATED TO SECTION 214 OF THE ACT 

A. Section 214 Carryovers for Health FSAs and Dependent Care Assistance 

Programs 

 
3 Notice 2005-86, 2005-49 IRB 1075, clarifies that coverage by a general purpose health FSA during a 
grace period is health coverage that disqualifies an otherwise eligible individual from contributing to an 
HSA during that period. However, Notice 2005-86 provides methods an employer can use to amend the 
health FSA for the grace period so it does not disqualify employees from contributing to an HSA during 
that period.  For a more detailed discussion of these options, see section III.F. of this notice. 



6 
 

 Section 214 of the Act temporarily increases flexibility for a § 125 cafeteria plan 

to provide a carryover of unused amounts remaining in a health FSA or dependent care 

assistance program to pay or reimburse medical care expenses or dependent care 

expenses in a subsequent plan year.4  Specifically, § 214(a) of the Act provides that, for 

plan years ending in 2020, a plan that includes a health FSA or dependent care 

assistance program shall not fail to be treated as a cafeteria plan merely because the 

plan or arrangement permits participants to carry over (under rules similar to current 

rules for health FSAs) any unused benefits or contributions from that plan year to the 

plan year ending in 2021.  Section 214(b) of the Act provides a similar rule for plan 

years ending in 2021, permitting the carryover of any unused benefits or contributions 

from that plan year to the plan year ending in 2022.  (Collectively, the relief provided in 

§ 214(a) and (b) of the Act related to carryovers is referred to in this notice as the § 214 

carryover.)  Thus, an employer, in its discretion, may amend one or more of its § 125 

cafeteria plans to provide a carryover of all or part of the unused amounts remaining in 

 
4  Except as provided in § 214 of the Act, a § 125 cafeteria plan may not adopt a carryover for a 
dependent care assistance program. 



7 
 

a health FSA or a dependent care assistance program as of the end of a plan year 

ending in 2020 or 20215 to the immediately subsequent plan year.6   

 For example, if an employer sponsored a calendar year § 125 cafeteria plan in 

2020 with a health FSA that provides for a $550 carryover, the employer may amend 

the plan to carry over the entire unused amount remaining in an employee’s health FSA 

as of December 31, 2020, to the 2021 plan year (even if that amount exceeds $550).  

The employer also may amend the plan to carry over the entire unused amount 

remaining in an employee’s health FSA as of December 31, 2021, to the 2022 plan 

year.  This relief applies to all health FSAs, including HSA-compatible health FSAs, and 

also applies to all dependent care assistance programs.  However, health FSA amounts 

may be used only for medical care expenses, and dependent care assistance program 

amounts may be used only for dependent care expenses.  The § 214 carryover is 

available to § 125 cafeteria plans that currently have a grace period or provide for a 

 
5 All amounts available on the last day of the 2020 or 2021 plan year are available to carry over, 
regardless of the source of the amounts.  Thus, for example, a $500 amount carried over from a 2019 
calendar plan year to the 2020 calendar plan year that remains unused is available to be carried over to 
the 2021 calendar plan year, and a $500 amount carried over from a 2019 non-calendar plan year to a 
2020 non-calendar plan year that remains unused is available to be carried over to the 2021 non-calendar 
plan year.  For employers with plan years or grace periods ending in 2020 that, pursuant to Notice 2020-
29, adopted the extended claims period until December 31, 2020, amounts made available during that 
extended claims period that remain unused as of December 31, 2020, are available to be carried over 
pursuant to § 214 of the Act.  However, if a plan did not provide for a carryover for its 2019 plan year, the 
extension of the runout period to submit 2019 claims for health FSAs until after the COVID-19 emergency 
period pursuant to the joint notice of relief, Extension of Certain Timeframes for Employee Benefit Plans, 
Participants, and Beneficiaries Affected by the COVID-19 Outbreak, issued by the Treasury Department 
and the Department of Labor, under § 7508A(b) of the Code (85 FR 26351) does not otherwise permit the 
carryover of unused 2019 amounts to the 2020 plan year. 
6 An employer adopting the § 214 carryover may, in its discretion, require employees to enroll in the 
health FSA or dependent care assistance program with a minimum election amount to have access to the 
unused amounts from the prior plan year.  See Q&A 24 of Notice 2015-87, 2015-52 IRB 889.  If an 
employer adopts both the § 214 carryover from the 2020 calendar year to the 2021 plan year and the 
flexibility for mid-year election changes, and an employee later elects to participate in the health FSA or 
dependent care assistance program mid-year on a prospective basis, the § 214 carryover amount may be 
made available to reimburse employee expenses retroactive to January 1, 2021, as discussed in more 
detail in section III.E. of this notice. 



8 
 

carryover, as well as plans that currently do not have a grace period or provide for a 

carryover, notwithstanding Notice 2013-71, which otherwise continues in effect and 

provides that health FSAs can either adopt a grace period or provide for a carryover 

amount but cannot have both.7  In addition, an employer may limit the carryover to an 

amount less than all unused amounts and may limit the carryover to apply only up to a 

specified date during the plan year.8 

 For purposes of determining whether an eligible individual qualifies to make 

contributions to an HSA, the carryover of unused amounts to the 2021 plan year or the 

2022 plan year is an extension of the coverage by a health plan that is not an HDHP 

(except in the case of an HSA-compatible health FSA, such as a limited purpose health 

FSA).  Therefore, an individual is not eligible to make contributions to an HSA during a 

month in which the individual participates in a general purpose health FSA to which 

unused amounts are carried over pursuant to § 214 of the Act.9  See section III.F. of this 

notice for information regarding the conversion of a general purpose health FSA to an 

HSA-compatible health FSA to permit individuals with a health FSA carryover to qualify 

to make contributions to an HSA.  Employers may also amend their plans to allow 

 
7 For example, if a § 125 cafeteria plan provides for a carryover from the 2022 plan year to the 2023 plan 
year, the plan may not provide a grace period for the 2022 plan year. 
8 Amounts carried over or available during an extended period in accordance with § 214(c) of the Act are 
not taken into account in determining whether a health FSA satisfies the maximum benefit payable limit 
condition under the excepted benefits regulations (Treas. Reg. § 54.9831-1(c)(3)(v)).  See Q&A 6 in 
FAQs About Affordable Care Act Implementation (Part XIX) (May 2, 2014), available at 
https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/EBSA/about-ebsa/our-activities/resource-center/faqs/aca-part-
xix.pdf. 
9 An individual continues to participate in the general purpose health FSA for the entire coverage period of 
the health FSA, even if the health FSA’s funds are exhausted before the end of the coverage period, 
subject to the special rule for health FSA grace periods under § 223(c)(1)(B)(iii)(I). 



9 
 

employees, on an employee-by-employee basis, to opt out of the carryover to preserve 

their HSA eligibility.10    

B. Extended Claims Periods for Health FSAs and Dependent Care 

Assistance Programs, and Post-Termination Reimbursements from 

Health FSAs 

Section 214 of the Act temporarily provides flexibility for a § 125 cafeteria plan to 

provide an extended period to apply unused amounts remaining in a health FSA or 

dependent care assistance program to pay or reimburse medical care expenses or 

dependent care expenses, respectively.  Specifically, § 214(c)(1) of the Act provides 

that a plan that includes a health FSA or dependent care assistance program shall not 

fail to be treated as a cafeteria plan merely because the plan or arrangement extends 

the grace period for a plan year ending in 2020 or 2021 to 12 months after the end of 

that plan year, with respect to unused benefits or contributions remaining in a health 

FSA or a dependent care assistance program.   

Thus, an employer, in its discretion, may amend one or more of its § 125 

cafeteria plans to permit employees to apply any unused amounts remaining in a health 

FSA or a dependent care assistance program as of the end of a plan year ending in 

2020 or 2021 to reimburse expenses incurred for the same qualified benefit (medical 

care or dependent care) up to 12 months after the end of the plan year.  For example, if 

an employer sponsored a calendar year § 125 cafeteria plan in 2020 with a health FSA, 

the employer may amend the plan to permit employees to apply the entire unused 

 
10 See Chief Counsel Advice memorandum 201413005 (Feb. 12, 2014), available at 
https://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-wd/1413005.pdf. 



10 
 

amount remaining in their health FSAs as of December 31, 2020, to reimburse 

employees for medical care expenses incurred through December 31, 2021.   

In addition, § 214(c)(2) of the Act provides that a plan that includes a health FSA 

shall not fail to be treated as a cafeteria plan merely because the plan or arrangement 

allows (under rules similar to the rules applicable to dependent care assistance 

programs)11 an employee who ceases participation in the plan during calendar year 

2020 or 2021 to continue to receive reimbursements from unused benefits or 

contributions through the end of the plan year in which participation ceased (including 

any grace period, taking into account any modification of a grace period permitted under 

§ 214(c)(1) of the Act).   

The relief provided under § 214(c) of the Act applies to all health FSAs, including 

HSA-compatible health FSAs.  An employer may choose to adopt an extended period 

for incurring claims that is less than 12 months, and an employer may choose to adopt a 

period that ends before the end of the plan year, during which employees who have 

ceased participation in a plan may continue to receive reimbursements.  The extension 

of time for incurring claims pursuant to § 214(c)(1) of the Act is available to § 125 

cafeteria plans that currently have a grace period or provide for a carryover, as well as 

plans that currently do not have a grace period or provide for a carryover, 

notwithstanding Notice 2013-71, which otherwise continues in effect and provides that 

health FSAs can either adopt a grace period or provide for a carryover amount but 

 
11 See Prop. Treas. Reg. § 1.125-6(a)(4)(v), which provides that, at the employer’s option, the written 
cafeteria plan may provide that dependent care expenses incurred after the date an employee ceases 
participation in the cafeteria plan (for example, after termination of employment) and through the last day 
of that plan year (or grace period immediately after that plan year) may be reimbursed from unused 
benefits, if all of the requirements of § 129 are satisfied. 



11 
 

cannot have both.  Finally, health FSA amounts may be used only for medical care 

expenses, and dependent care assistance program amounts may be used only for 

dependent care expenses.    

The extension of the period for incurring claims that may be reimbursed by a 

health FSA is an extension of the coverage by a health plan that is not an HDHP in 

determining whether an individual is eligible to make contributions to an HSA (except in 

the case of an HSA-compatible health FSA).  Therefore, an individual is not eligible to 

make contributions to an HSA if the individual participates in a general purpose health 

FSA, including during any extended period in which the participant can incur claims 

pursuant to § 214(c) of the Act.  This restriction on making contributions to an HSA if 

amounts remain available in a general purpose health FSA applies not only to current 

participants in the health FSA but also to individuals who remain eligible to incur claims 

but have ceased participation in the health FSA as the result of termination of 

employment, change in employment status, or a new election during calendar year 

2020 or 2021.  See section III.F. of this notice for information regarding the conversion 

of a general purpose health FSA to an HSA-compatible health FSA.  Employers also 

are permitted to amend their plans to allow employees, on an employee-by-employee 

basis, to opt out of any extended period for incurring claims in plan years ending in 2021 

and 2022, to preserve their HSA eligibility.   

With respect to the extension of the period for incurring claims for an employee 

who ceases to be a participant, the employer, in its discretion, is permitted to limit the 

unused amounts in the health FSA to the amount of salary reduction contributions the 

employee had made from the beginning of the plan year in which the employee ceased 



12 
 

to be a participant up to the date the employee ceased to be a participant.  This option 

is available for an employee who ceases to be a participant as the result of termination 

of employment, change in employment status, or a new election during calendar year 

2020 or 2021.  Finally, the extension period is limited to the end of the plan year in 

which participation ceased (including any grace period, taking into account any 

modification of a grace period permitted under § 214(c)(1) of the Act). 

C. Interaction of § 214 Carryovers and Extended Periods for Incurring 

Claims 

As a practical matter, in most cases the flexibility provided by the § 214 carryover 

and the extension of grace periods under § 214(c)(1) of the Act provide the same relief, 

as both provisions allow all unused benefits remaining for plan years ending in 2020 

and 2021 to be made available for the same benefit (medical care expenses or 

dependent care expenses) incurred in the immediately subsequent plan year ending in 

2021 and 2022, respectively.12  However, the relief available to employees may vary 

depending on whether an employer adopts either the extended grace period under 

§ 214(c)(1) or the § 214 carryover, because the two types of relief interact differently 

with an extended period for incurring claims available under § 214(c)(2).  An employer 

 
12 Notice 2005-42 provides that unused amounts available during a grace period are forfeited at the end 
of the grace period; however, that is a function of the grace period being limited to 2½ months.  Thus, 
under the rules providing for a 2½ month grace period, unused amounts from year 1 available during a 
grace period in year 2 are no longer available at the end of year 2 and cannot be made available for any 
subsequent grace period in year 3.  In contrast, because § 214(c) of the Act provides for a 12-month 
grace period, it is possible that some or all of the unused amounts available in a grace period at the 
beginning of a plan year will remain available at the end of that plan year, in which case they may be 
made available in the next grace period.  Specifically, amounts available on the last day of a plan year 
due to a 12-month grace period adopted pursuant to § 214(c) are not required to be forfeited, and the 
plan terms may allow the unused amounts to be made available for expenses incurred during a grace 
period in the following plan year. 



13 
 

that adopts a grace period under § 214(c)(1) may also allow employees who have 

ceased participation in a plan in an earlier plan year to further extend a period for 

incurring claims until the end of the subsequent plan year under § 214(c)(2), but this 

additional extended period for incurring claims is not available for employees who 

ceased participation in the earlier plan year and whose employers have adopted the 

§ 214 carryover instead.  Therefore, consistent with current guidance,13 an employer 

may not amend its plan to adopt both the § 214 carryover and the extended grace 

period under § 214(c)(1) for a particular plan year for a particular health FSA or 

dependent care assistance program, and an amendment must specify which option is 

adopted for the applicable plan years.14  See section III.H. of this notice for information 

regarding plan amendments.  Subject to the nondiscrimination rules under §§ 125 and 

129, an employer is permitted to adopt this relief for some, but not all, health FSA or 

dependent care assistance program participants.15  Amounts carried over or available 

during an extended claims period will not be taken into account for purposes of the 

nondiscrimination rules applicable to § 125 cafeteria plans and to dependent care 

assistance programs under § 129.   

The otherwise applicable rules regarding carryovers and grace periods will apply 

for plan years ending in or after 2022.  For a plan that provides for a grace period for the 

 
13 See Notice 2013-71. 
14 Note that, if an employer adopts a plan amendment pursuant to § 214 of the Act and this notice that 
provides that the amendment supersedes normal operations for the duration of the period for which the 
plan adopts the relief, an employer is not required to also delete an existing plan provision that provides 
for a $550 carryover or a 2½ month grace period. 
15 An employer also may choose to adopt one type of relief, or no relief, under § 214 of the Act for a 
health FSA and a different type of relief, or no relief, for a dependent care assistance program.  An 
employer that offers multiple health FSAs or dependent care assistance programs may also adopt 
differing relief for each particular health FSA or dependent care assistance program. 
 



14 
 

plan year ending in 2022, the grace period would allow a participant to use all unused 

amounts remaining at the end of the plan year ending in 2022 for expenses incurred 

during the first two and one-half months of the plan year ending in 2023.  For a plan that 

provides for a carryover for the plan year ending in 2022, the carryover would allow the 

participant to use up to $550 (or, if greater, 20 percent of the indexed contribution limit 

under § 125(i)) of unused amounts remaining at the end of the 2022 plan year for 

expenses incurred during any month of the plan year ending in 2023.  In accordance 

with the otherwise applicable rules, for plan years ending in or after 2022, the carryover 

is available only for a health FSA and is not available for a dependent care assistance 

program.  The following examples illustrate the application of these rules and assume 

that the applicable carryover limit continues to be $550 for all relevant periods: 

Example 1. Employer provides a health FSA under a calendar year § 125 cafeteria plan 
that allows a $550 carryover from one plan year to the next.  Pursuant to § 214 of the 
Act, Employer amends the plan to adopt a 12-month temporary extended period for 
incurring claims with respect to the 2020 plan year, allowing for claims incurred on or 
after January 1, 2021, but prior to January 1, 2022, to be paid with amounts remaining 
from the 2020 plan year.  
 
As of December 31, 2020, Employee A has a remaining balance of $2,000 in a health 
FSA for the 2020 plan year.  For the 2021 plan year, Employee A elects to contribute 
$2,000 to a health FSA.  Between January 1, 2021 and December 31, 2021, 
Employee A incurs $3,300 in medical care expenses.  The health FSA may reimburse 
Employee A $3,300, leaving $700 in the health FSA as of December 31, 2021.   
 
Pursuant to § 214 of the Act, Employer amends the plan to adopt the temporary 
extended period for incurring claims with respect to the 2021 plan year, allowing for 
claims incurred on or after January 1, 2022, but prior to January 1, 2023, to be paid with 
amounts remaining at the end of the 2021 plan year.  For the 2022 plan year, 
Employee A elects to contribute $1,500 to a health FSA.  Between January 1, 2022, and 
December 31, 2022, Employee A incurs $1,200 in medical care expenses.  The health 
FSA may reimburse Employee A $1,200, leaving $1,000 in the health FSA as of 
December 31, 2022.  Under the plan terms that provide for a $550 carryover from the 
2022 plan year to the 2023 plan year, Employee A is allowed to use $550 of the 
remaining $1,000 in the health FSA during the 2023 plan year to reimburse expenses 
incurred on or after January 1, 2023, and before January 1, 2024.  The $450 remaining 



15 
 

as of December 31, 2022, is forfeited.  A 2½ month grace period is not available for the 
plan year ending December 31, 2023, because the plan provides for a carryover. 
 
Example 2. Employer provides a health FSA under a non-calendar year (July 1 to June 
30) § 125 cafeteria plan that allows a $550 carryover from one plan year to the next.  
Pursuant to § 214 of the Act, Employer amends the plan to adopt a 12-month temporary 
extended period for incurring claims with respect to the 2020 plan year, allowing claims 
incurred on or after July 1, 2021, but prior to July 1, 2022, to be paid with amounts from 
the 2020 plan year (which ends on June 30, 2021). 
 
For the 2020 plan year, Employee B elects to contribute $1,800 to a health FSA.  As of 
June 30, 2021, Employee B has a remaining balance in the health FSA for the 2020 
plan year of $1,800.  For the 2021 plan year, Employee B elects to contribute $1,000 to 
a health FSA.  Between July 1, 2021, and June 30, 2022, Employee B incurs $2,000 in 
medical care expenses.  The health FSA may reimburse Employee B $2,000, leaving 
$800 in the health FSA as of June 30, 2022.  Under the plan terms that provide for a 
carryover, Employee B is allowed to use $550 of the remaining $800 in the health FSA 
during the 2022 plan year to reimburse expenses incurred on or after July 1, 2022, but 
prior to July 1, 2023.  The $250 remaining as of June 30, 2022, is forfeited.  A 2½ month 
grace period is not available for the plan year ending June 30, 2022, because the plan 
provides for a carryover. 

Example 3. Employer provides a dependent care assistance program under a calendar 
year § 125 cafeteria plan.  Pursuant to § 214 of the Act, Employer amends the plan to 
adopt a 12-month temporary extended period for incurring claims with respect to the 
2020 plan year, allowing for claims incurred on or after January 1, 2021, but prior to 
January 1, 2022, to be paid with amounts remaining from the 2020 plan year.  

As of December 31, 2020, Employee C has a remaining balance of $4,000 in a 
dependent care assistance program for the 2020 plan year.  For the 2021 plan year, 
Employee C elects to contribute $3,000 to a dependent care assistance program.  
Between January 1, 2021, and December 31, 2021, Employee C incurs $6,000 in 
dependent care expenses.  The dependent care assistance program may reimburse 
Employee C $6,000, leaving $1,000 in the dependent care assistance program as of 
December 31, 2021.   

Pursuant to § 214 of the Act, Employer amends the plan to adopt a 12-month temporary 
extended period for incurring claims with respect to the 2021 plan year, allowing for 
claims incurred on or after January 1, 2022, but prior to January 1, 2023, to be paid with 
amounts remaining at the end of the 2021 plan year.  For the 2022 plan year, 
Employee C elects to contribute $2,000 to a dependent care assistance program.  
Between January 1, 2022, and December 31, 2022, Employee C incurs $2,800 in 
dependent care expenses.  The dependent care assistance program may reimburse 
Employee C $2,800, leaving $200 in the dependent care assistance program as of 
December 31, 2022.  A carryover is not available for a dependent care assistance 
program from the 2022 plan year to the 2023 plan year.  Employer adopts a 2½ month 



16 
 

grace period for the 2022 plan year, during which the $200 remaining as of 
December 31, 2022, may be applied to reimburse dependent care expenses incurred 
during the grace period.  

 
D. Special Age Limit Relief Applicable to Carryover Relief for Dependent 

Care Assistance Programs 

Section 214(d)(1) of the Act provides that in the case of certain employees, 

§ 21(b)(1)(A) of the Code shall be applied by substituting ‘‘age 14’’ for ‘‘age 13’’ for 

purposes of determining the dependent care assistance which may be paid or 

reimbursed during (A) the last plan year with respect to which the end of the regular 

enrollment period for such plan year was on or before January 31, 2020, and (B) in the 

case of an employee who has an unused balance in a dependent care assistance 

program for such plan year (determined as of the close of the last day on which, under 

the terms of the plan, claims for reimbursement may be made with respect to such plan 

year), the subsequent plan year.16  Regarding the subsequent plan year, § 214(d)(2) of 

the Act provides that § 214(d)(1) shall only apply to so much of the amounts paid for 

dependent care assistance with respect to the dependents referred to in 

§ 214(d)(3)(B)(ii) as does not exceed the unused balance described in § 214(d)(3)(B)(ii). 

Only certain employees are eligible for this relief.  Section 214(d)(3) of the Act 

provides that, for purposes of this relief, the term ‘‘eligible employee’’ means any 

 
16 Section 129(a) generally excludes from an employee’s gross income amounts paid or incurred by the 
employer for “dependent care assistance” provided to the employee if the assistance is furnished 
pursuant to a dependent care assistance program.  Section 129(e) provides that “dependent care 
assistance” means the payment of, or provision of, those services, which if paid for by the employee 
would be considered employment-related services under § 21(b)(2).  Generally, and assuming the 
requirements of §§ 21 and 129 otherwise are satisfied, “dependent care assistance” includes expenses 
incurred for the care of a dependent child who is under age 13 that enable an employee to be gainfully 
employed. 



17 
 

employee who (A) is enrolled in a dependent care assistance program for the last plan 

year with respect to which the end of the regular enrollment period for the plan year was 

on or before January 31, 2020, and (B) has one or more dependents (as defined in 

§ 152(a)(1) of the Code) who attain the age of 13 either (i) during that plan year, or (ii) in 

the case of an employee who (after the application of § 214 of the Act) has unused 

dependent care amounts for that plan year (determined as of the close of the last day 

on which, under the terms of the plan, claims for reimbursement may be made with 

respect to that plan year), during the subsequent plan year.  Thus, an employer, in its 

discretion, may amend one or more of its § 125 cafeteria plans17 in accordance with 

§ 214(d) of the Act.18 

This special age limit relief for certain dependents is separate from the general 

carryover and extended claims periods relief available under § 214(a), (b) and (c) of the 

Act.  An employer that adopts the special age limit relief provided in § 214(d)(3)(B)(ii) of 

the Act is not required to adopt the carryover provided in § 214(a) of the Act or an 

extended period for incurring claims (for example, the relief provided in § 214(c)(1) of 

the Act) in order to adopt the special age limit relief.  Thus, an employer, in its 

discretion, may amend one or more of its § 125 cafeteria plans to adopt any or all of the 

relief provided in § 214 of the Act, and an employer that adopts any or all of the relief 

provided in § 214(a), (b) and (c) of the Act is not required to adopt the special age limit 

relief provided in § 214(d) of the Act, and vice-versa.     

 
17 References in this notice to amendments to § 125 cafeteria plans include any necessary amendments 
to plans under § 129, as applicable.  
18 Without regard to § 214 of the Act, employers are permitted to limit reimbursable expenses to expenses 
incurred for the care of a dependent child who is under age 13 or who is under a specified age that is less 
than age 13. 



18 
 

If an employer sponsors a § 125 cafeteria plan with a dependent care assistance 

program and amends the plan to substitute “under age 14” for “under age 13” for 

purposes of determining the dependent care assistance expenses that may be paid or 

reimbursed, then all amounts from the most recent plan year with respect to which the 

end of the regular enrollment period was on or before January 31, 2020, may be applied 

to dependent care expenses for a dependent who attained age 13 during that plan year.  

In addition, employers may allow employees to carry over all unused amounts from that 

plan year (the first plan year) to reimburse dependent care expenses during the 

subsequent plan year for a dependent that attained age 13 during the first plan year 

(until that dependent attains age 14) and for a dependent who attains age 13 during the 

subsequent plan year.  This special age limit relief for dependent care assistance 

programs does not apply to any unused amounts carried over from the subsequent plan 

year.  This special age limit relief rule also does not permit an employer to reimburse 

expenses for a child who is age 14 years or older. 

Example 1.  Employer provides a dependent care assistance program under a § 125 
cafeteria plan with a non-calendar plan year.  The regular enrollment period for the 2020 
plan year (March 1, 2020, through February 28, 2021) ended on January 31, 2020.  
Employee elected to enroll in the dependent care assistance program for the 2020 plan 
year, electing to contribute the maximum $5,000 allowed.  Employee’s Dependent turns 
age 13 on February 1, 2021.  As of January 31, 2021, Employee has incurred no 
qualifying expenses for the 2020 plan year.  However, Employee anticipates incurring 
dependent care expenses during February 2021, which is during the 2020 plan year. 
 
Employer amends its § 125 cafeteria plan by substituting “under age 14” for “under age 
13” for the 2020 and 2021 plan years, making that change applicable to all amounts 
permitted under § 214(d) of the Act, and does not adopt any other relief provided by 
§ 214 of the Act.  Employee incurs $5,000 in dependent care expenses in February 
2021 for Dependent, who at that time is age 13.  The $5,000 in dependent care 
expenses may be reimbursed by the dependent care assistance program for the 2020 
plan year. 
 



19 
 

Example 2. Employer provides a dependent care assistance program under a § 125 
cafeteria plan with a non-calendar plan year.  The regular enrollment period for the 2020 
plan year (March 1, 2020, through February 28, 2021) ended on January 31, 2020.  
Employee elected to enroll in the dependent care assistance program for the 2020 plan 
year, electing to contribute $4,000.  Employee’s Dependent turns age 13 on February 1, 
2021.  As of January 31, 2021, Employee has incurred no qualifying expenses for the 
2020 plan year.  However, Employee anticipates incurring dependent care expenses 
during the summer of 2021, which is during the 2021 plan year. 
 
Employer amends its § 125 cafeteria plan to adopt the relief provided by § 214(d) of the 
Act by substituting “under age 14” for “under age 13” for the 2020 and 2021 plan years, 
making that change applicable to all amounts permitted under § 214(d) of the Act.  
Employer allows employees until the end of the next plan year to incur claims and does 
not adopt any other relief provided by § 214 of the Act.  Employee elects to contribute 
$500 for the 2021 plan year.  Employee incurs $4,200 in dependent care expenses from 
June through August 2021 for Dependent, who during that time is age 13.  For the 2021 
plan year (March 1, 2021, through February 28, 2022), $4,000 of the $4,200 in 
dependent care expenses may be reimbursed by the dependent care assistance 
program for Dependent.  ($4,000 is the unused amount from the 2020 plan year that 
may be applied to reimburse dependent care expenses during the subsequent plan year 
for a dependent that attained age 13 during the preceding plan year, until that 
dependent attains age 14, so the remaining $200 in dependent care expenses for 
Dependent may not be reimbursed.)  Employee does not incur any other dependent 
care expenses during the 2021 plan year.  The $500 remaining in the dependent care 
assistance program as of February 28, 2022, is forfeited. 
 
 

E. Elections Under a § 125 Cafeteria Plan 

Section 214 of the Act provides that § 125 cafeteria plans may permit employees 

to make prospective mid-year election changes for health FSAs and dependent care 

assistance programs for plan years ending in 2021.  Specifically, § 214(e) of the Act 

provides that for plan years ending in 2021, a plan that includes a health FSA or 

dependent care assistance program shall not fail to be treated as a cafeteria plan 

merely because the plan or arrangement allows an employee to make an election to 

modify prospectively the amount (but not in excess of any applicable dollar limitation) of 

the employee’s contributions to the arrangement (without regard to any change in 

status).  Thus, an employer, in its discretion, may amend one or more of its § 125 



20 
 

cafeteria plans to allow each employee who is eligible to make salary reduction 

contributions under the plan to make prospective election changes for plan years ending 

in 2021 regarding a health FSA or dependent care assistance program, regardless of 

whether the basis for the election change satisfies the criteria set forth in Treas. Reg. 

§ 1.125-4.  In particular, subject to the limitations discussed later in this section, an 

employer may amend one or more of its § 125 cafeteria plans to allow employees, on a 

prospective basis, to (1) revoke an election, make one or more elections, or increase or 

decrease an existing election, for plan years ending in 2021 regarding a health FSA, or 

(2) revoke an election, make one or more elections, or increase or decrease an existing 

election, for plan years ending in 2021 regarding a dependent care assistance program.  

Prospective election changes may include an initial election to enroll in a health FSA or 

dependent care assistance program for the year, for example, to gain use of the § 214 

carryover or extended period for incurring claims pursuant to § 214 of the Act if the 

employee initially declined to enroll in the health FSA or dependent care assistance 

program for the year.  An employer adopting this relief may limit the period during which 

election changes may be made. 

In addition, similar to relief provided by Notice 2020-29, an employer may amend 

one or more of its § 125 cafeteria plans to allow employees to:  (1) make a new election 

for employer-sponsored health coverage19 on a prospective basis, if the employee 

initially declined to elect employer-sponsored health coverage; (2) revoke an existing 

election for employer-sponsored health coverage and make a new election to enroll in 

different health coverage sponsored by the same employer on a prospective basis 

 
19 The term “health coverage” in this notice refers to health, dental, or vision coverage. 



21 
 

(including changing enrollment from self-only coverage to family coverage);20 (3) revoke 

an existing election for employer-sponsored health coverage on a prospective basis, 

provided that the employee attests in writing that the employee is enrolled, or 

immediately will enroll, in other health coverage not sponsored by the employer. 

To accept an employee’s revocation of an existing election for employer-

sponsored health coverage when the employee does not make a new election to enroll 

in different health coverage sponsored by the employer, the employer must receive from 

the employee an attestation in writing that the employee is enrolled, or immediately will 

enroll, in other comprehensive health coverage not sponsored by the employer.21 The 

employer may rely on the written attestation provided by the employee, unless the 

employer has actual knowledge that the employee is not, or will not be, enrolled in other 

comprehensive health coverage not sponsored by the employer. The following is an 

example of an acceptable written attestation: 

Name:  _______________________ (and other identifying information 
requested by the employer for administrative purposes). 
 
I attest that I am enrolled in, or immediately will enroll in, one of the following 
types of coverage: (1) employer-sponsored health coverage through the 
employer of my spouse or parent; (2) individual health insurance coverage 
enrolled in through the Health Insurance Marketplace (also known as the 
Health Insurance Exchange); (3) Medicaid; (4) Medicare; (5) TRICARE; 
(6)  Civilian Health and Medical Program of the Department of Veterans 
Affairs (CHAMPVA); or (7) other coverage that provides comprehensive 

 
20 The ability to amend a plan to allow an employee to revoke an existing election for employer-sponsored 
health coverage and make a new election to enroll in different health coverage sponsored by the same 
employer may include allowing employees to change from one type of health plan (such as a health 
maintenance organization (HMO)) to another (such as a preferred provider organization (PPO)).  An 
employer also may choose to limit the ability of employees to change from one type of health plan to 
another.  For example, an employer may choose to restrict the election to allow employees to change 
only from a narrow network plan to a broader network plan or to allow only employees who previously 
elected a particular plan to elect to move to a different plan. 
21 An employee revoking an existing election for comprehensive health coverage may not revoke the 
election by attesting to enrollment in coverage solely for dental or vision benefits.  



22 
 

health benefits (for example, health insurance purchased directly from an 
insurance company or health insurance provided through a student health 
plan). 
 
Signature:  ______________________ 
 

 An employer using the relief provided under § 214(e) of the Act and this notice is 

not required to provide unlimited election changes but may, in its discretion, determine 

the extent to which election changes are permitted, provided that any permitted election 

changes are applied on a prospective basis only (with the exception of elections related 

to previously contributed amounts as part of the relief provided under § 214(a), (b) and 

(c)(1) of the Act, as discussed elsewhere in this section III.E.).  In addition, except for 

changes in election requirements that, pursuant to § 214(a), (b), (c) and (d) of the Act, 

allow employees to carry over amounts, have amounts available during an extended 

claims period, or have amounts available to reimburse dependent care expenses for 

certain dependents who attain age 13, as described in sections III.A. through D. of this 

notice, any change to the plan’s election requirements may not result in the failure of the 

plan to comply with the nondiscrimination rules applicable to § 125 cafeteria plans.  In 

determining the extent to which election changes are permitted and applied, an 

employer may wish to consider the potential for adverse selection of health coverage by 

employees.  To prevent this result, an employer may wish to limit elections to 

circumstances in which an employee’s coverage will be increased or improved as a 

result of the election (for example, by electing to switch from self-only coverage to family 

coverage, or from a low option plan covering in-network expenses only to a high option 

plan covering expenses in or out of network).    



23 
 

With respect to mid-year election changes for employer-sponsored coverage, this 

relief applies both to employers sponsoring self-insured plans and to employers 

sponsoring insured plans.  With respect to health FSAs, this relief applies to all health 

FSAs, including HSA-compatible health FSAs.  In addition, with respect to health FSAs 

and dependent care assistance programs, employers are permitted to limit mid-year 

election changes to amounts no less than amounts already reimbursed and to certain 

types of mid-year election changes, such as decreases in elections only.  Employers 

also are permitted to allow mid-year election changes without a status change22 up to a 

certain date during the plan year but require a status change after that date (for 

example, no status change is required if an election is changed before March 31, 2021, 

but a status change is required if an election is changed after that date), and to limit the 

number of election changes during the plan year that are not associated with a status 

change (for example, allow only one election change in the 2021 plan year without a 

status change).  Although salary reductions may be applied only prospectively under 

any revised election, employers may allow amounts available under the health FSA or 

dependent care assistance program after the revised election to be used for any 

medical care expense or dependent care expense, respectively, incurred on or after 

January 1, 2021, through the end of a plan year ending in 2021.  Amounts available 

after the revised election may include contributions, carryover amounts, and amounts 

available under an extended period for incurring claims.  This relief extends to expenses 

incurred by employees who were not enrolled in the health FSA or dependent care 

assistance program on January 1, 2021.  This relief does not allow unused amounts to 

 
22 See Treas. Reg. § 1.125-4. 



24 
 

be paid to an employee in cash or paid to an employee in the form of any taxable or 

nontaxable benefit without regard to whether the employee incurs medical care 

expenses or dependent care expenses during the period of coverage. 

If an employer adopts the § 214 carryover or the extended period for incurring 

claims permitted by § 214(c)(1) of the Act, the annual limits under §§ 125(i) and 129(a) 

apply to amounts contributed to a health FSA or dependent care assistance program for 

a particular year, and not to amounts reimbursed or otherwise available for 

reimbursement from a health FSA or dependent care assistance program in a particular 

plan or calendar year.  Thus, unused amounts carried over from prior years or available 

during an extended period for incurring claims are not taken into account in determining 

the annual limit applicable for the following year.   

If a health FSA or dependent care assistance program election is revoked, the 

treatment of amounts previously contributed to a § 125 cafeteria plan on a pre-tax basis 

to fund a health FSA or dependent care assistance program are subject to the terms of 

the plan, which must apply uniformly to all participants in the plan.  The plan may 

provide that amounts contributed before the election is revoked remain available to 

reimburse medical care expenses or dependent care expenses incurred for the rest of 

the plan year.  Alternatively, the plan may provide that if the election is revoked, 

amounts contributed before the revocation will be available only to reimburse eligible 

expenses incurred before the revocation takes effect (and not later incurred expenses), 

or that amounts contributed before the revocation will be forfeited.  An employer, in its 

discretion, may allow employees to elect to revoke elections under a health FSA or 

dependent care assistance program as of a future specified date.   



25 
 

Regarding health FSAs, if the plan provides that revocation of the election 

terminates participation in the health FSA, and that no subsequent reimbursements will 

be available under the health FSA regardless of when the expense is incurred, following 

the revocation, the health FSA will no longer be treated as health coverage that 

disqualifies an otherwise eligible individual from contributing to an HSA.  In that case, an 

otherwise eligible individual may begin contributing to an HSA as soon as the 

termination of participation (including the lack of continued availability of 

reimbursements in the health FSA) is effective.  Similarly, if under the terms of the plan, 

the health FSA reimburses only expenses incurred before the date of the revocation, 

following the revocation, the health FSA will not be treated as health coverage that 

disqualifies an otherwise eligible individual from contributing to an HSA for months after 

the date of the revocation and an otherwise eligible individual may begin contributing to 

an HSA. 

Example 1.  During the regular enrollment period for the 2021 calendar plan year, 
employee elects to contribute $1,200 to a health FSA for the year.  The plan allows the 
employee to revoke or change the election by March 1, 2021.  The employee makes a 
prospective election to revoke the election effective March 1, at which time the 
employee has contributed $200 to the health FSA.  Under the terms of the plan, 
amounts contributed before the revocation of the election remain available to reimburse 
medical care expenses incurred for the rest of the plan year and, therefore, the 
employee may use the $200 previously contributed to the health FSA to reimburse 
medical care expenses incurred throughout 2021.  Consequently, the employee has 
coverage by the health FSA for 2021 and will not be eligible to contribute to an HSA for 
calendar year 2021 even if otherwise eligible (that is, covered by an HDHP), unless the 
plan allows the employee to opt out of this extended period for incurring claims, and the 
employee opts out of this period. 
 
Example 2.  During the regular enrollment period for the 2021 calendar plan year, 
Employee elects to contribute $1,200 to a health FSA for the year.  The plan allows the 
employee to revoke or change the election by March 1, 2021.  The employee makes a 
prospective election to revoke the election effective March 1, at which time the 
employee has contributed $200 to the health FSA.  Under the terms of the plan, 
revocation of the election means that the employee may use the $200 that was 



26 
 

contributed to the health FSA prior to March 1 to reimburse only medical care expenses 
incurred prior to March 1.  The coverage during January and February will not make the 
employee ineligible to contribute to an HSA during the rest of the plan year if otherwise 
eligible.   

 

F. Changes Between HSA-compatible and General Purpose Health FSAs 

and HSA Contributions 

Under the relief provided by this notice and § 214 of the Act, § 125 cafeteria 

plans may be amended to allow an employee to make a mid-year election to be covered 

by a general purpose health FSA for part of the year and an HSA-compatible health 

FSA for part of the year.23  Eligibility to contribute to an HSA is determined on a month-

by-month basis under § 223 of the Code.  If an employee begins the year with an HSA-

compatible health FSA and is otherwise an eligible individual under § 223(c)(1) and then 

elects coverage under a general purpose health FSA, the employee’s permissible HSA 

contribution is based on the number of months that the employee was covered under 

the HSA-compatible health FSA and an HDHP and was otherwise an eligible individual.  

Only those expenses both allowed by the HSA-compatible health FSA and incurred 

during the months in which the employee was covered by the HSA-compatible health 

FSA may be reimbursed by that health FSA.  Although unused amounts in the HSA-

compatible health FSA may be added to the general purpose health FSA, the general 

purpose health FSA may reimburse only allowable medical care expenses incurred after 

the change in coverage.  

 
23 In addition, employers are permitted to amend their plans to offer employees a choice between an 
HSA-compatible health FSA or general purpose health FSA during the period to which the § 214 
carryover or the extended period for incurring claims applies, on an employee-by-employee basis.  Also, 
employers are permitted to implement a plan design in which employees who elect an HDHP are 
automatically enrolled in an HSA-compatible health FSA.  To the extent changes result in an employee 
being ineligible for an HSA mid-year on a prospective basis, the employee would not be rendered HSA-
ineligible for the earlier part of the plan year. 



27 
 

If an employee begins the year with a general purpose health FSA and then 

elects coverage by an HDHP and an HSA-compatible health FSA, the employee’s 

permissible HSA contribution is based on the number of months that the employee is an 

eligible individual.24  Any allowable medical care expense incurred during the months 

before the change in coverage may be reimbursed by the general purpose health FSA.  

Although unused amounts in the general purpose health FSA may be added to the 

HSA-compatible health FSA, only expenses both allowed by the HSA-compatible health 

FSA and incurred during months after the change in coverage may be reimbursed by 

the HSA-compatible health FSA.   

Finally, if an employee is covered under an HDHP at the beginning of the plan 

year without a health FSA and then elects coverage by a plan that is not an HDHP and 

coverage by a health FSA that can be used to reimburse medical expenses incurred 

while the employee was covered by the HDHP, the health FSA must be operated as an 

HSA-compatible health FSA for the months that the employee was otherwise an eligible 

individual under § 223(c)(1) in order for the employee to contribute to an HSA with 

respect to those months. Therefore, only the expenses both allowed by an HSA-

compatible health FSA and incurred during those months before the change may be 

reimbursed.  For months after the change in coverage, the health FSA may be operated 

as a general purpose health FSA and may reimburse any allowable medical care 

expense incurred during that later period. 

 
24  Alternatively, pursuant to § 223(b)(8), an employee that is an eligible individual during the last month of 
the year will be treated for purposes of the HSA contribution limitation as having been an eligible 
individual for the entire year, even if the individual was not otherwise an eligible individual for the entire 
year, provided, generally, that the eligible individual remains an eligible individual (including through 
enrollment in an HDHP) for the entire next year. 



28 
 

In each of these cases, the maximum reimbursements for the combined health 

FSAs for the year are limited to the amount of salary reduction elected for the year 

(subject to the $2,750 limit under § 125(i) of the Code (as indexed)) plus any available 

unused amounts from prior years (including unused amounts carried over or available 

due to plan amendments under § 214 of the Act) and any nonelective employer 

contributions. 

G. Interaction with COBRA 

In certain circumstances, § 4980B permits qualified beneficiaries who lose 

coverage under a group health plan, including under a health FSA, to elect continuation 

health coverage under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 

(COBRA continuation coverage).  See Treas. Reg. § 54.4980B-2, Q&A 8.  For COBRA 

purposes, a qualified beneficiary generally includes the covered employee, the spouse 

of the covered employee, or the dependent child of the covered employee, if the 

employee had coverage under the plan on the day before the employee experiences a 

qualifying event and would have a loss of coverage but for the COBRA continuation 

coverage.  See § 4980B(g) and Treas. Reg. § 54.4980B-3, Q&A 1.  For COBRA 

purposes, a qualifying event includes certain events, such as the termination of the 

employee or a reduction of hours, that would result in a loss of coverage but for the 

COBRA continuation coverage, and a loss of coverage means ceasing to be covered 

under the same terms and conditions as in effect immediately before a qualifying event.  

See § 4980B(f)(3) and Treas. Reg. § 54.4980B-4, Q&A 1.  If an individual is otherwise a 

qualified beneficiary with respect to coverage by a health FSA, a limited extension of 

coverage to the individual pursuant to § 214(c)(2) of the Act will not prevent the 



29 
 

individual from having a loss of coverage resulting in a qualifying event (for example, by 

termination of employment or reduction in hours of a covered employee), and the 

relevant employer will be required to provide a notice of the right to elect COBRA 

continuation coverage to the individual.25   

For example, if an employer allows an employee who ceases to be a participant 

as the result of termination of employment or change in employment status to be 

reimbursed for expenses incurred after the termination or reduction in hours through 

access to the amount of salary reduction contributions that have been made as of the 

date the employee ceased being a participant, this event would constitute a COBRA 

qualifying event subject to notice requirements.  As a further example, if an employee 

elected to contribute $2,400 to a health FSA, terminated employment on January 31 

after making $200 in salary reduction contributions, and as a result of the termination 

was no longer permitted to contribute to the health FSA other than by electing COBRA 

continuation coverage, the employer may allow the employee to request reimbursement 

for up to $200, or the employee may elect COBRA continuation coverage to have 

access to $2,400 by paying the applicable COBRA premium of $200 per month on an 

after-tax basis. 

Nonetheless, regardless of whether an individual is offered or elects COBRA 

continuation coverage, if an employer allows the individual the limited extension of 

coverage pursuant to § 214(c)(2) of the Act, the health FSA may reimburse expenses 

 
25 An individual who ceases to be covered by a health FSA due to an election to revoke participation in a 
health FSA, while qualifying for the limited extension of coverage pursuant to § 214(c)(2) of the Act, would 
not have a qualifying event satisfying the requirement to be a qualified beneficiary.  See Treas. Reg. 
§ 54.4980B-4, Q&A 1. 



30 
 

incurred after the termination of participation and through the end of the plan year.  The 

health FSA also may reimburse expenses incurred during any period to which unused 

amounts are carried over or during any grace period provided under the plan. 

Additionally, if an employer adopts a § 214 carryover or extended period for 

incurring claims pursuant to § 214(c)(1) of the Act, the maximum amount that a health 

FSA may require to be paid as the applicable COBRA premium does not include 

unused amounts carried over or available during the extended period for incurring 

claims.  Thus, if a qualified beneficiary is allowed a § 214 carryover to a later plan year 

or an extended period for incurring claims, the applicable COBRA premium payable to 

provide access to the carryover amounts or the amounts attributable to the extended 

period for incurring claims for that later year or for the extended period for incurring 

claims is zero.  See Q&A 23 of Notice 2015-87.  In addition, amounts carried over or 

available during the extended period for incurring claims are included in the amount of 

the benefit that a qualified beneficiary is entitled to receive during the remainder of a 

plan year in which a qualifying event occurs.  See Q&A 21 of Notice 2015-87. 

Finally, notwithstanding the special rule of § 214(c)(2) of the Act, an employer is 

not required to allow individuals who cease participation in the plan to continue to 

receive reimbursements from unused benefits in a health FSA if the individual does not 

qualify for and elect COBRA continuation coverage.  An employer is not obligated to 

amend its plan to make the relief permitted under § 214(c)(2) of the Act available to all 

employees.  Instead, employees for whom the extension of coverage under § 214(c)(2) 

of the Act is unavailable remain eligible to elect COBRA, as do employees for whom the 

extended coverage is available.    



31 
 

H. Plan Amendments 

An employer that decides to implement the relief provided under § 214 of the Act 

for one or more of its § 125 cafeteria plans (including plans that do not currently have a 

grace period or permit a carryover) must adopt a plan amendment to do so.  

Section 214(g) of the Act provides that a plan that includes a health FSA or dependent 

care assistance program shall not fail to be treated as a cafeteria plan merely because 

the plan or arrangement is amended pursuant to a provision under § 214 of the Act and 

the amendment is retroactive, if (1) the amendment is adopted not later than the last 

day of the first calendar year beginning after the end of the plan year in which the 

amendment is effective, and (2) the plan or arrangement is operated consistent with the 

terms of the amendment during the period beginning on the effective date of the 

amendment and ending on the date the amendment is adopted.  For example, if an 

employer sponsors a calendar year § 125 cafeteria plan with a health FSA that provides 

for a $550 carryover (from 2020 to 2021) and amends the plan to carry over the entire 

unused amount remaining in employees’ health FSAs as of December 31, 2020, to the 

2021 plan year, the amendment must be adopted by December 31, 2021.  An 

amendment for the 2020 plan year of a non-calendar year plan, however, must be 

adopted by December 31, 2022, because the last day of the first calendar year 

beginning after the end of the 2020 plan year that ends in 2021 is the last day of 2022. 

 An amendment pursuant to § 214 and this notice may be effective retroactively to 

the beginning of the applicable plan year, provided that the § 125 cafeteria plan 

operates in accordance with the terms of the amendment during the period beginning on 

the effective date of the amendment and ending on the date the amendment is adopted, 



32 
 

and the employer informs all employees eligible to participate in the § 125 cafeteria plan 

of the changes to the plan.  Changes to the plan may also implicate requirements under 

other applicable laws, such as notice requirements under Title I of the Employee 

Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.  Except for amendments that, pursuant to 

§ 214(a), (b), (c), and (d) of the Act, allow employees to carry over amounts, have 

amounts available during an extended claims period, or have amounts available to 

reimburse dependent care expenses for certain dependents who attain age 13, as 

described in sections III.A. through D. of this notice, all permissible amendments are 

subject to the nondiscrimination rules under §§ 125 and 129 of the Code. 

I. Reporting Requirements for Dependent Care Assistance Programs 

With respect to Form W-2, “Wage and Tax Statement,” amounts contributed to a 

dependent care assistance program are required to be reported in Box 10 of Form W-2.  

Under current guidance (Notice 2005-61, 2005-39 IRB 607), employers may report in 

Box 10 for a year the salary reduction amount elected by the employee for the year for 

dependent care assistance (plus any employer matching contributions) and are not 

required to adjust the amount reported in Box 10 to take into account amounts that 

remain available in a grace period.  This rule continues to apply with respect to 

employers who amend their § 125 cafeteria plans to provide for the temporary flexibility 

provided by § 214 of the Act.  For this purpose, any amount carried forward from 2019 

and used in 2020, whether a § 214 carryover or an extended period for incurring claims, 

is treated as an amount that remains available in a grace period.  With respect to 

Form 2441, “Child and Dependent Care Expenses,” any amounts carried forward from 

2019 are similarly treated as amounts carried over and used during the grace period 



33 
 

when completing Part III of the form.  The Treasury Department and the IRS anticipate 

that for the 2021 and 2022 Forms W-2 and 2441, instructions will provide for similar 

rules that dependent care amounts carried forward from prior years pursuant to § 214 of 

the Act will be treated as amounts remaining available during a grace period for 

reporting purposes and no change to the reporting requirements will be necessary. 

IV. GUIDANCE RELATED TO SECTION 3702 OF THE CARES ACT 

Section 3702 of the CARES Act amended the Code to allow expenses incurred 

for menstrual care products to be treated as incurred for medical care with respect to 

health FSAs and HRAs, as well as HSAs and Archer medical savings accounts (MSAs).  

In addition, the provision allows health FSAs and HRAs, as well as HSAs and Archer 

MSAs, to reimburse expenses incurred for over-the-counter drugs without regard to 

whether the drug has been prescribed.  As enacted, the expansion applies to expenses 

incurred after December 31, 2019.26 

Generally, the exclusion under § 105(b) for reimbursements of medical expenses 

by an employer applies only if the plan covered the expense on the date the expense 

was incurred.  See Treas. Reg. § 1.105-5.  Furthermore, Proposed Treasury Regulation 

§ 1.125-1(c)(5), implementing § 125 of the Code, provides that amendments adding 

new benefits to a cafeteria plan may allow payment or reimbursement of expenses for 

those benefits only to the extent those expenses are incurred after the later of the 

 
26 Section 3702 of the CARES Act amends §§ 220, 223 and 106 of the Code.  In addition to removing 
statutory language at §§ 220(d), 223(d) and 106(f) of the Code which limited the excludable expenses 
under those provisions to prescribed drugs and insulin, § 3702(a) and (b) of the CARES Act amended 
§§ 220 and 223 of the Code to provide that for purposes of Archer MSAs and HSAs, amounts paid for 
menstrual care products shall be treated as paid for medical care.  Similarly, § 3702(c) of the CARES Act 
adds a new subsection (f) to § 106 of the Code providing that, for purposes of §§ 106 and 105 of the 
Code, expenses incurred for menstrual care products are treated as incurred for medical care. 



34 
 

amendment’s adoption date or effective date.  Notwithstanding the general rule under 

§ 105(b), and notwithstanding any inconsistency with the proposed regulations under 

§ 125, upon which taxpayers may rely prior to the issuance of final regulations, health 

FSAs and HRAs may be amended pursuant to this notice to provide for reimbursements 

of expenses for menstrual care products and over-the-counter drugs without 

prescriptions incurred for any period beginning on or after January 1, 2020, and such an 

amendment will not result in a failure of the reimbursement to be excludable from 

income under § 105(b) or for the cafeteria plan to fail to meet the requirements of § 125.  

This relief includes amendments made prior to the issuance of this notice.  

V. DRAFTING INFORMATION 

 The principal author of this notice is Jennifer Solomon of the Office of Associate 

Chief Counsel (Employee Benefits, Exempt Organizations, and Employment Taxes), 

though other Treasury Department and IRS officials participated in its development.  For 

further information on the provisions of this notice, contact Jennifer Solomon at (202) 

317-5500 (not a toll-free number). 



CITY OF SOLANA BEACH FLEXIBLE BENEFITS PLAN 
SUMMARY OF MATERIAL MODIFICATIONS TO YOUR  

SUMMARY PLAN DESCRIPTION 
 

City of Solana Beach Flexible Benefits Plan 
 
This document summarizes important changes to your City of Solana Beach Flexible Benefits Plan and should be 
kept with your Summary Plan Description (SPD) for future reference.

With respect to the current Plan Information in your SPD, effective January 1, 2020, City of Solana Beach amended its 
Plan to temporarily adopt the changes listed below: 

Carryover of Unused Funds for Health Flexible Spending Arrangements (HFSAs) and Dependent Care Flexible 
Spending arrangements (DCFSA): 
For plan years ending in 2020 and 2021, a plan that includes a HFSA or DCFSA may allow any unused benefits or 
contributions remaining in either arrangement to be carried over from such plan year to the plan year ending in 2021. 
Note: This effectively eliminates any cap on carryover of unused funds that previously existed for the 2020 and 2021 
plan years. It also applies, for the first time, to Dependent Care FSAs. 
 
The Extensions will apply to the following Plan(s): 
  
Health FSA    2020 plan year   2021 plan year  

DCFSA    2020 plan year   2021 plan year 
 
 
Spend-Down for Health FSA: 
A plan that includes a HFSA may allow (similar to the rules applicable to DCFSA) an employee who ceases participation 
in the plan during calendar year 2020 or 2021 (for example, due to termination of employment) to continue to receive 
reimbursements from unused benefits or contributions for expenses incurred through the end of the plan year in which 
such participant ceased participation (including any extended grace period permitted in the temporary Act).  
 
The spend-down provision will apply to the following Plan(s): 
 
Health FSA   2020 plan year   2021 plan year  
 
 
Prospective Changes in Elections (Without a Change in Status): 
For plan years ending in 2021, a plan that includes a HFSA or DCFSA may allow an employee to make an election to 
prospectively modify the amount (but not in excess of any applicable dollar limitation) of such employee’s contributions 
to any HFSA or DCFSA (without regard to any change in status).  

HFSA      2021 plan year 

DCFSA      2021 plan year 

Special carry forward rule for dependent care FSA where dependents aged out during the pandemic.  
An “eligible employee” may be reimbursed for an eligible dependent who is not yet age 14 (previously age 13) for 
purposes of determining the dependent care assistance which may be paid or reimbursed with respect to such employee 
under the dependent care FSA.  The term “eligible employee” is defined as any employee who (A) is enrolled in a 
DCFSA for the last plan year with respect to which the end of the regular enrollment period for such plan year was on 
or before January 31, 2020; and (B) has one or more dependents (as defined in Internal Revenue Code § 152(a)(1)) who 
attain the age of 13— (i) during such plan year, or (ii) in the case of an employee who (after the application of this 
section) has an unused balance in the employee’s account under such arrangement for such plan year (determined as of 
the close of the last day on which, under the terms of the plan, claims for reimbursement may be made with respect to 
such plan year), the subsequent plan year. 

mbavin
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 4



City of Solana Beach 

The undersigned, being an authorized representative of City of Solana Beach (the "Employer") hereby 
adopt the following changes by Resolution 2021-084 

The Amendment to the City of Solana Beach Flexible Benefits Plan (the Amendment) is hereby 
approved and adopted, and that an authorized representative of the Employer is hereby authorized 
and directed to execute and deliver to the Administrator of the Plan one or more counterparts of the 
Amendment. 

The undersigned further certifies that attached hereto is a copy of the Amendment approved and 
adopted in the foregoing resolution. 

 

 
______________________________________                ____________________________________ 
Gregory Wade, City Manager                                         Date  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CITY COUNCIL ACTION: 
______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 

AGENDA ITEM # A.7. 

STAFF REPORT 
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers  
FROM: Gregory Wade, City Manager 
MEETING DATE:  June 9, 2021 
ORIGINATING DEPT: Engineering Department 
SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution 2021-077 Accepting the City 

Hall and Fire Station Water Damage Repair Project as 
Complete and Authorizing the City Clerk to File a Notice 
of Completion  

BACKGROUND: 

The City Hall and Fire Station buildings are both relatively old and are in need of regular 
maintenance. During the past several months, Staff become aware of rain water intrusion 
inside both buildings. In January 2020, a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) was 
executed with ET&T Indoor Environmental (ET&T) to conduct a visual inspection in the 
accessible areas of the City Hall and Fire Station buildings for signs of water damage and 
elevated moisture. In addition, air samples were collected in representative areas and 
outside the buildings for qualitative comparison purposes. At the end of the inspections, 
ET&T prepared a report for each building. 

The result of the inspections was that water damage and elevated moisture levels were 
found at several enclosed locations at City Hall. At these locations, the recommendation 
was to have exploratory cuts of drywalls made for more in-depth investigation. At the Fire 
Station, two areas were recommended to have exploratory cuts made for investigation in 
areas where water damage and elevated moisture levels were detected.  It is important 
to note that the analysis determined that there was no immediate threat to public health. 
Additionally, the analysis verified that the air quality in both facilities was equal to or better 
than that of the outside, ambient environment. The reports concluded that both facilities 
met safety standards for occupancy.  

In an effort to observe economies of scale, Staff developed a construction project to repair 
the water damaged areas for both buildings as well as replacement of carpet for the first 
floor at City Hall and painting of the living quarters and replacement of window coverings 
on the second floor of Fire Station building. The project was advertised for construction 



June 9, 2021 
City Hall & Fire Station Repair Project – NOC 

Page 2 of 3 

bids in May 2020, bids were opened in June 2020 and a construction contract was 
awarded on July 8, 2020 to War Rhino, Inc. for $83,096.77 and a project contingency 
amount of $25,000. 

Due to the nature of the work and unforeseen additional work and expenditures, the City 
Council increased the construction contingency by $110,000, to a total of $135,000 for a 
total project cost of 218,096.77, and authorized the City Manager to execute change 
orders up to the amount of the construction contingency. 

This item is before the City Council for the consideration of Resolution 2021-077 
(Attachment 1), which accepts the project as complete and directs the City Clerk to file a 
Notice of Completion (NOC).   

DISCUSSION: 

War Rhino, Inc. completed all work on this project in accordance with the approved plans 
and specifications of Bid No. 2020-02 to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. There were 
five change orders issued on the project, in the amount of $135,000, that compensated 
the contractor for areas that contained more extensive water damage than previously 
anticipated by the visual inspection in the accessible areas performed before the project 
was advertised for construction bids. The change orders also included three areas that 
contained water damage that were repaired as part of this project that were not identified 
in the preliminary visual inspections, so these areas were not part of the initial construction 
contract. These three areas were the City Clerk’s Office, the storage area above the City 
Council Chambers and the Code Compliance closet at the Fire Station. 

The City will release the retention ($10,904.84) thirty-five (35) days after the Notice of 
Completion is approved by the City Council. 

CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT: 

This project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to 
Section 15301(a) of the State CEQA Guidelines. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The Capital Improvement Program (CIP) appropriated $90,000 in CIP-08 for deferred 
maintenance at City Hall and $55,000 in CIP-16 for deferred maintenance at the Fire 
Station for a total of $145,000. The original construction contract with War Rhino, Inc. was 
for $83,096.75 and a contingency amount of $25,000, for total anticipated contract 
amount of $108,096.75. During construction of the project, the City Council increased the 
construction contingency and appropriated additional funds by $110,000 for a total 
construction contract amount of $218,096.75. 



June 9, 2021 
City Hall & Fire Station Repair Project – NOC 

Page 3 of 3 

In addition to the total construction amount detailed above, a PSA with ET&T was 
executed to verify that all water damaged areas had been satisfactorily eliminated. The 
agreement with ET&T was for a not to exceed amount of $20,000. Only $9,200 was spent, 
which leaves a balance of $10,800. 

WORK PLAN: 

This project is not identified in the FY 2020/21 Work Plan. 

OPTIONS: 

• Adopt Staff recommendation.

• Deny Staff recommendation and provide direction.

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution 2021-077: 

1. Accepting as complete the City Hall and Fire Station Water Damage Repair
Project, Bid 2020-02, constructed by War Rhino, Inc.

2. Authorizing the City Clerk to file a Notice of Completion.

CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Department Recommendation. 

_________________________ 
Gregory Wade, City Manager 

Attachments: 

1. Resolution No. 2021-077



ATTACHMENT 1 

RESOLUTION 2021-077 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA, ACCEPTING AS 
COMPLETE THE CITY HALL AND FIRE STATION WATER 
DAMAGE REPAIR PROJECT, BID 2020-02, AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY CLERK TO FILE A NOTICE OF 
COMPLETION 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Hall and Fire Station Water Damage Repair Project, Bid 
2020-02, awarded by the City Council on July 8, 2020, was completed in accordance with 
the plans and specifications included as part of the construction contract with War Rhino 
Inc. to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 
 
 WHEREAS, due to the nature of the work and unforeseen additional work and 
expenditures, the City Council increased the construction contingency by $110,000, to a 
total of $135,000 for a total project cost of 218,096.77, and authorized the City Manager 
to execute change orders up to the amount of the construction contingency. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California, does 
resolve as follows: 
 

1. That the above recitations are true and correct. 
 
2. That the City Council accepts as complete the City Hall and Fire Station 

Water Damage Repair Project, Bid 2020-02, constructed by War Rhino, Inc. 
 
3. That the City Council authorizes the City Clerk to file a Notice of Completion 

for the project. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of June, 2021, at a regularly scheduled 
meeting of the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California by the following vote: 
 

AYES: Councilmembers –  
NOES: Councilmembers –  
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers – 
ABSENT: Councilmembers – 
 
      ______________________________ 

LESA HEEBNER, Mayor 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________  _______________________________ 
JOHANNA N. CANLAS, City Attorney  ANGELA IVEY, City Clerk  



COUNCIL ACTION: 
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________ 

AGENDA ITEM # A.8. 

STAFF REPORT 
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers  
FROM: Gregory Wade, City Manager  
MEETING DATE:  June 9, 2021 
ORIGINATING DEPT: Engineering Department 
SUBJECT:  Council Consideration of Resolution 2021-068 Approving 

the Revised District Boundary and Additional Seed Money 
for the Glenmont Underground Utility District  

BACKGROUND: 

In October 2016, City Staff received a petition from residents along all of Glenmont 
Avenue, Rawl Place, Mar Vista Drive and parts of Canyon Drive, Marview Drive and 
Marview Lane for the formation of a district to underground the existing overhead utility 
lines along all or parts of these streets. After receiving the petition and verifying that the 
70% threshold was met, Staff started the process by engaging San Diego Gas & 
Electric (SDG&E) to verify the boundary of the district and to provide a cost estimate for 
design of the undergrounding project (herein referred to as the Glenmont Underground 
Utility District or Glenmont UUD). In March 2017, Staff presented to and received 
approval from the City Council for Resolution 2017-039, approving $44,679 for seed 
funding from the City’s allocation of 20A funding. The seed funds were based on 
SDG&E’s estimate for preparation of the design plans for the subject district.  

Since that time, the proponent of the Glenmont UUD has expanded the boundaries of 
the District to include additional properties along Marview Drive and Ford Avenue. 
SDG&E’s cost estimate for preparation of the design plans has subsequently been 
increased.  

This item is before the City Council to consider Resolution 2021-068 (Attachment 1) 
approving the revised boundaries of the proposed Glenmont UUD (Attachment 2) and 
use of additional seed funding from the City’s allocation of 20A funding for the 
preliminary design costs associated with the revised Glenmont UUD. 



June 9, 2021 
Approve Additional Seed Money for Glenmont UUD and Revised District Boundary 

Page 2 of 3 
 
 

DISCUSSION: 
 
In accordance with Council Policy No. 13 (Attachment 3), California Public Utility 
Commission’s (CPUC) Rule 20A, funding may be used to pay SDG&E for preliminary 
engineering costs.  Per Council Policy No. 13, the maximum amount to be allocated as 
“seed” or “front” money from CPUC Rule 20A funds shall be 100% of the initial design 
cost with a maximum of $25.00 per linear foot of overhead infrastructure proposed to be 
undergrounded as determined by SDG&E. Please note that as of April 2021, the 
balance of the City’s share of CPUC Rule 20A funds is currently $1,342,440. 
 
The neighborhood coordinators for the Glenmont UUD requested a revision to the 
original boundary that was approved in March 2017. Specifically, the neighborhood 
coordinators have requested 31 additional properties be included in the Glenmont UUD 
boundary. The additional properties are located along a portion of Marview Drive and all 
of Ford Avenue as shown in Attachment 2 to this report. Consistent with the provisions 
of Council Policy No. 13, 70% of the additional properties are in support of forming the 
district. Following the implementation procedures set forth in Council Policy No. 13, 
SDG&E was notified of the proposed changes to the assessment district. SDG&E 
performed an initial assessment of the revised district boundaries and requested 
additional funding to revise the design of the engineering plans.  
 
Per Council Policy No. 13, the City Council may approve seed money to be used for the 
preparation of preliminary plans and a preliminary cost estimate by SDG&E. Staff and 
SDG&E believe an additional amount not to exceed $25,000 would be sufficient for 
preliminary design to incorporate the additional properties into the Glenmont UUD. This 
amount would still comply with the provisions of Council Policy No. 13 that allows for a 
maximum of $25.00 per linear foot of overhead infrastructure to be removed. 
 
The entire SDG&E design fee can be funded from the Rule 20A allocations. If the 
district is ultimately formed, then the Rule 20A funds would be paid back to the City’s 
Rule 20A account from the proceeds collected from the property owners within the 
district. If the district fails to be formed, the Rule 20A funds would not be recovered. In 
either case, no General Fund money would be at risk. 
 
CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT: 
 
Underground Utility District projects are exempt from the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15302(d) of the State CEQA Guidelines. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
There are not any specific fiscal impacts associated with this Staff Report, however, 
Staff time dedicated to this an other UUD projects is incurred. The amount of additional 
seed money requested to pay SDG&E for the preliminary design plans and cost 
estimate is not to exceed $25,000 and would be paid from the City’s share of CPUC 
Rule 20A funds pursuant to City Council Policy No. 13. If the district is ultimately 



June 9, 2021 
Approve Additional Seed Money for Glenmont UUD and Revised District Boundary 

Page 3 of 3 
 
 

formed, then the Rule 20A funds would be paid back to the City Rule 20A account with 
the proceeds collected from the property owners within the district.  If the district fails, 
the Rule 20A funds would be lost. In either case, no General Fund money would be at 
risk. 
 
WORK PLAN: 
 
This project is not identified in the Fiscal Year (FY) 2020/21 Work Plan. 
 
OPTIONS: 
 

• Approve an amount not to exceed $25,000 in additional seed money from the 
CPUC Rule 20A funds. 

• Don’t approve the request for additional seed money. 
• Provide direction. 

 
DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the City Council adopt Resolution 2021-068 approving the additional 
payment of an amount not to exceed $25,000 from the City’s share of CPUC Rule 20A 
funds in seed money to cover the design costs for the preparation of preliminary plans 
and preliminary cost estimate by SDG&E for the revised district boundary that would 
add properties along a portion of Marview Drive and all of Ford Avenue to the Glenmont 
Avenue Underground Utility District.  
 
CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Department Recommendation. 
 
 
_________________________  
Gregory Wade, City Manager   
 
Attachments: 
 
1. Resolution 2021-068 
2. Map of properties included in proposed Glenmont UUD  
3. Council Policy No. 13 

 



 
ATTACHMENT 1 

RESOLUTION 2021-068 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE 
BOUNDARY REVISION AND PAYMENT OF AN AMOUNT 
NOT TO EXCEED $25,000 FROM THE CITY’S SHARE OF 
CPUC RULE 20A FUNDS IN SEED MONEY FOR THE 
GLENMONT UNDERGROUND UTILITY DISTRICT 

 
WHEREAS, per Council Policy No. 13, the City Council may approve seed money 

to pay for the preparation of preliminary plans and a preliminary cost estimate by SDG&E.  
The Policy allows for the allocation of California Public Utilities Commission Rule 20A 
funds for 100% of the seed money needed, up to $25.00 per linear foot of overhead wires 
being removed; and 
 

WHEREAS, in March 2017, City Staff received a petition from residents along all of 
Glenmont Avenue, Rawl Place, Mar Vista Drive and parts of Canyon Drive, Marview Drive 
and Marview Lane for formation of a district to underground the exiting overhead utility lines 
along all or parts of these streets (herein referred to as the Glenmont Underground Utility 
District); and 
 

WHEREAS, the petition submitted by the Glenmont Avenue Underground Utility 
District requesting the formation of the underground district was consistent with the 
provisions of Council Policy No. 13 and contained signatures from 70% of the properties 
within the proposed boundaries of the district that were in support of forming the district; and 

 
WHEREAS, in March 2017, City Council adopted Resolution 2017-039 approving 

$44,679 seed funding from the City’s allocation of 20A funding; and 
 

WHEREAS, after the first petition was approved, the neighborhood coordinator 
requested the addition of 31 properties along a part of Marview Drive and all of Ford Avenue 
in the Glenmont Underground Utility District; and 

 
WHEREAS, in order for the additional properties to be included in the proposed 

Glenmont Underground Utility District, SDG&E requires an additional design fee that will be 
used to revise the design drawings already prepared. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California, does 
resolve as follows:  
 

1. That the above recitations are true and correct. 
 
2. That the City Council approves the additional payment of an amount not to 

exceed $25,000 from the City’s share of CPUC Rule 20A funds in seed 
money to cover the design costs for the preparation of preliminary plans and 



Resolution 2021-068 
Approve Seed Money and Boundary Revision for Glenmont UUD 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 

preliminary cost estimate by SDG&E for the revised district boundary that 
would add properties along a portion of Marview Drive and all of Ford 
Avenue to the Glenmont Avenue Underground Utility District. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of June, 2021, at a regularly scheduled 

meeting of the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California by the following vote: 
 

AYES: Councilmembers –  
NOES: Councilmembers –  
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers – 
ABSENT: Councilmembers – 

 
 
      ______________________________ 

LESA HEEBNER, Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________  _______________________________ 
JOHANNA N. CANLAS, City Attorney  ANGELA IVEY, City Clerk 



O
ri

g
in

a
l 
B

o
u

n
d

a
ry

 –
1
2
/2

9
/2

0
1
6

R
e
v
is

e
d

 B
o

u
n

d
a
ry

 –
1
1
/2

1
/2

0
1
9

O
ri
g
in

a
l 
B

o
u
n
d
a
ry

R
e
v
is

e
d
 B

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 (
a
d
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 t
o
 O

ri
g
in

a
l 
B

o
u
n
d
a
ry

)

L
E

G
E

N
D

0 

_.---
_,,- r---~ 

7 \ I--_._, ... 
I 
I 
I 

9 : 1--------..1 
I 
I 
I 
L---~ 
I 
I 

7 : 

9 

3 

5 

/ 

__ ,,,,,, 

;~~\ 

660 427 

654 435 

646 645 

638 639 

630 629 

622 625 

612 615 

602 605 

>. 
o!: 
<( 
:;;! 642 

I 
• t-------1 

: 632 C"l Ol 

: t-----f '4 ~ * 
I 
J 624 
: 1----.--~~-,--~---u;J 
: ..,,. 
: <o 509 525 
: J----+-------+-----,1,-f" 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

6'7. 
0 507 521 

l-YNW000---------~ 540 So 

7 

9 

5 

5 

5 

~ 
0 

! 
~ 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

550 

536 

530 

522 

514 

508 

440 

535 
530 

529 
526 

521 

517 516 

505 510 

501 

0 

: t---;r---~(;v 

I 
I -----~----

461 

<Xl 

"' "<t 

I 
I 
I 

st 
~ ';;), 
at 

~ 
I 

633 

623 

452 

448 

434 

422 

412 I 
I 
I 

347 I 
I 
I 
I 

339 I 
I 
I 

331 

323 
----lk--r-'-r-t-"F"s'~ -=-----......, ......... -----1 

---
..... , ... .,. ... ... ,' 

--
517 

315 

...... i,J------ ', 
.,,....... I 

_..,, I 

......... \ 
,.. ...... , ...... -- \ 

I 

0 D 
N 

I
CJ -D:: 
1-
U) -Q 

~ -.... -1-
:, 
Q 
z 
:, 
0 
D:: 
c., 
D:: 
w 
Q 
z 
:, 
.... 
ct 
1-w 
1-z 
0 
:!E z 
w .... 
c., 

dgoldberg
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2



Council Policy 13 
  Page 1 of 5 

PURPOSE: To establish a policy to underground the existing overhead lines in 
residential neighborhoods, to promote the benefit of undergrounding and encourage the 
formation of undergrounding districts at the neighborhood level.   

BACKGROUND: From time to time residents in the City request information from 
staff about the process for undergrounding utilities in their neighborhood.  Due to 
California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) 20A guidelines on what constitutes a 20A 
conversion district, many times these residential neighborhoods don’t qualify for Rule 
20A funding.  CPUC Rule 20A funds are the set-aside funds from a portion of SDG&E 
revenues, received from the City of Solana Beach, for undergrounding electric utilities. 
In general, Rule 20A requires that the funds be used for projects in high traffic or public 
use areas (see Rule 20A packet).  The City’s Rule 20A funds are used to underground 
utility lines on Major Arterials and commercial Collector Streets.  Rule 20B projects are 
resident-initiated utility undergrounding assessment districts.  Rule 20A funds may be 
used to “seed” or “front” preliminary engineering costs for Rule 20B projects, but the 
funds must be reimbursed to the Rule 20A account upon successful completion of a 
Rule 20B district. 

POLICY: 

The City Council establishes the following policy for the formation of 20B utility 
underground districts. 

1. General Provisions

It is the desire of the City Council to be responsive to residents who agree to be 
assessed for utility undergrounding, as well as to respect those who do not wish to pay 
for utility undergrounding. 

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH Policy No. 13 

COUNCIL POLICY 

Adopted:   08/19/2003 Resolution 2003-110 
Revised:   04/26/2006 Resolution 2006-066 
Revised:      10/27/2010 Resolution 2010-152 
Revised:   04/13/2016 by minute order 
Effective:    04/13/2016 

GENERAL SUBJECT:  Utility Undergrounding Policy 

SPECIFIC SUBJECT:  Utility Undergrounding Policy for Municipality-Initiated 
Assessment Districts, Rule 20B 

dgoldberg
Typewritten Text
      Attachment 3 



Council Policy 13 
  Page 2 of 5 

Therefore; 

a) The City will respond to the requests of those desiring undergrounding, rather
than initiating utility undergrounding districts.

b) Initially, the City Council will require a 70% showing of support of property
owners benefiting from the assessment district before any “seed” or “front”
money will be appropriated.

c) A majority vote of the property owners, by assessment, is necessary before the
City may form a utility district.

d) All utility undergrounding districts shall comply with all applicable laws, including,
but not limited to the California Constitution and applicable state codes.

2. Funding shall be as follows:

a. Proposed underground conversion area will be a 20B assessment district.
One hundred percent (100%) of the cost will be assessed to property
owners.

b. Assessment payments may be made in cash or spread out up to 20 years.
c. Assessment payments will be billed on the County Tax Bill.
d. Property owner is responsible for the connections from the property line to

the private service panel.
e. Any “seed” or “front” money in formation of the district that come from Rule

20A funds shall be reimbursed to the City by the property owners within
the conversion boundary in the event of formation of the assessment
district.

f. Maximum amount to be allocated as “seed” of “front” money from CPUC
Rule 20A funds shall be 100% of the initial design cost with a maximum of
twenty-five dollars ($25.00) per linear foot of overhead infrastructure
proposed to be undergrounded as determined by SDG&E.

3. Implementation Procedures

a. Generally the neighborhood that initiates the process of utility
undergrounding assigns a Neighborhood Coordinator and circulates the
City-approved petition among property owners.  The City Council
approved petition is attached to this policy.  The Neighborhood
Coordinator will prepare the boundary map of the properties proposed to
be in the district per the results of the circulated petition.

b. 70% of the property owners included in the proposed district must sign the
approved petition in order to begin the process for forming the assessment
district.

c. If 70% of the property owners in the proposed district approve formation of
the assessment district, the Neighborhood Coordinator may submit the
petitions to the City Engineering Department for verification.



 

Council Policy 13 
                                                                                                                       Page 3 of 5 

 

 

 
d. A representative from City Staff will notify SDG&E of the proposed 

assessment district and will provide SDG&E with a map showing the 
boundaries of the assessment district.  SDG&E will then provide the City 
with a “ballpark” cost estimate to convert the overhead electric lines to 
underground. Based on the existing layout of the electrical infrastructure, 
the proposed assessment boundaries may be modified by SDG&E. 

 
e. After signatures are verified by the Engineering Department, the City 

Council shall be requested to approve “seed” money to pay for the 
preparation of preliminary plans and preliminary cost estimate by SDG&E.  
This preliminary cost estimate will be more accurate than the earlier 
“ballpark” estimate. 

 
f. With the new preliminary costs (from SDG&E), the Neighborhood 

Coordinator will circulate a second petition within the proposed district for 
a further count of signatures based on the preliminary cost estimate for 
each property owner.  A petition of the property owners in the proposed 
district must indicate that at least 70% wish to go forward with the 
formation process.  Proposed boundaries of the district are submitted with 
the petition. 

 
g. If 70% of the property owners in the proposed district sign the petition in 

step (f), Staff will require a deposit to retain an assessment engineer. The 
deposit amount will be calculated by multiplying the total number of 
properties in the proposed district by $500, with a minimum amount of 
$20,000. The City will refund the excess deposit amounts after the final 
bond counsel and assessment engineer costs are determined. 
Expenditures are controlled by the City.  A reimbursement agreement 
between the City and district proponents shall govern the deposited funds. 

 
h. Using the above (g) information, Bond Counsel prepares the petition and 

drafts the reimbursement agreement between the City and proponents of 
the project.  Residents within the proposed boundaries of the assessment 
district then submit the required deposit utilizing the formula listed above 
(g). 

 
i. To formally initiate the assessment district, the Bond Counsel reviews the 

petition and prepares a resolution initiating proceedings to consider 
formation of the district for City Council approval. 

 
j. Next, the City Council approves the reimbursement agreement, accepts 

the petition, approves the boundary map and declares its intention to form 
the district and orders the preparation of an Engineer’s Report. 

 
k. The Assessment Engineer’s Report will include a map of the district 

boundary, a description of the improvements, an estimate of the total 



 

Council Policy 13 
                                                                                                                       Page 4 of 5 

 

 

costs of the improvements, the methodology by which the special benefit 
is determined and the assessments are to be spread, as well as the 
amount to be assessed upon each parcel. 

 
l. City Council approves by resolution the Engineer’s Report and sets the 

time, date and location of the Public Hearing. 
 
m. Public Hearing and Assessment ballots are mailed.  The notice will contain 

the estimated total assessment amount chargeable to the district, the 
amount chargeable to the record owner’s parcel, the basis for 
assessment, information regarding the Public Hearing, and summary of 
the procedures for the completion, return, and tabulations of the 
assessment ballots. 

 
n. The City Council conducts a Public Hearing at which the City Council 

considers objections, if any, to the proposed assessment.  Following 
closure of the Public Hearing, the City Clerk tabulates ballots and reports 
to the City Council.  Assessment ballots are weighted on the basis of the 
dollar amount assessed to each parcel for which the ballot is submitted.  If 
a majority (50% plus 1) of the weighted assessment or more than 40% of 
the total parcels ballots returned opposes the proposed assessment, the 
City Council may not levy the assessment.  If a majority of the weighted 
assessment and 60% of the total parcels ballots returned are in favor, the 
City Council, in its discretion, may adopt a resolution declaring the 
amounts of the tabulation of assessment ballots, approve the Engineer’s 
Report, authorize the proposed improvement described in the report, 
confirm the assessment and direct the City Clerk to file an assessment 
diagram and notice of assessment with the County Recorder’s Office. 

 
o. The City Clerk records a Notice of Assessment with the County 

Recorder’s office.  The Finance Director then mails a statement of 
assessment to each property to be assessed. 

 
p. Property Owners have the option to pay all or portion of the assessment 

during the cash collection period – 30 days. 
 
q. Following closure of the cash collection period, all uncollected assessment 

will be levied against the properties over a number of years and collected 
on the tax roll. 

 
r. City Council will authorize the issuance of bonds. 
 

 s.         The City shall provide at least 15 days written notice prior to construction  
 stating that at their own cost, every person owning, operating, leasing, 

occupying or renting a building or structure within a district shall construct 
and provide that portion of the service connection on his property 
necessary to connect to the UUD facilities.  Such work may be done by 



 

Council Policy 13 
                                                                                                                       Page 5 of 5 

 

 

the contractor, or the public utility, public agency or city performing the 
conversion work, and the cost thereof included in the assessment to be 
levied upon such lot or parcel provided, that the owner shall execute a 
written request therefor and file the same with the City.  Any such request 
shall expressly authorize the contractor, public utility, public agency or city, 
and their respective officers, agents and employees to enter upon such lot 
or parcel for such purpose and shall waive any right of protest or objection 
in respect of the doing of such work and the inclusion of the cost thereof in 
said assessment. 

 
t.       Any written request executed pursuant to section 2(s) shall be filed with 

the City not later than the date fixed for commencement of construction of 
the conversion. A written request executed after such date shall not be 
accepted for filing by the City unless it shall contain the written approval of 
the contractor, public utility, public agency or city which is authorized to 
perform such work or improvement. 

 
u. In the event any person does not comply with subsections 2(s) and 2(t), 

the city engineer shall provide written notice to the property, via posting 
and U.S. mail, that power to that property shall be disconnected and all 
overhead services wires and associated facilities will be removed.  Such 
notice shall be provided at least five days prior to disconnection and 
removal. 

 
v. After provision of the notice in subsection 2(u), the if there is still no 

compliance with subsections 2(s) and 2(t), the city engineer shall have the 
authority to order the disconnection and removal of any and all overhead 
service wires and associated facilities providing utility to that property.  
Any costs of future reconnection to the property shall be at the cost of the 
owner, operator, lessee, occupier or renter of that property. 

 
w. Utility companies will prepare the project design plans and complete 

construction. 
 
x. If a property owner sells the property or passes away during the 

assessment process, the Neighborhood Coordinator(s) must notify the 
City immediately, so that the City can properly notify the new owner or 
estate representative of the ongoing UUD process. 

 
 
Attachments:  1. Petition 



 
 

 

 
Attachment 1 

 
PETITION REQUESTING FORMATION OF AN ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 

TO FINANCE THE COSTS OF UNDERGROUNDING EXISTING 
OVERHEAD UTILITIES 

Location of Proposed Assessment District ____________________________________ 
       Proposed Area or Street(s) 
First / Second Petition (circle one) 
By signing this petition, the signer acknowledges: 

1. Support to initiate the proceedings (in the case of first petition) or, continue the 

proceedings (in the case of a second petition) for the formation of an assessment 

district at the above-listed Proposed Area/Street(s). 

2. Signer is the legal owner of a property within the Proposed Area/Street(s). 

3. Signer has been advised that historically, the proposed assessment for previous 

Underground Utility Districts in the City have averaged approximately $20,000 

per property. 

 
DATE 

SIGNED 

 
NAME OF 

PROPERTY OWNER 
(print or type) 

 
SIGNATURE OF 

PROPERTY 
OWNER(S) 

 
PROPERTY 
ADDRESS 

 
E-MAIL ADDRESS 

     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
 



COUNCIL ACTION: 
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________ 

AGENDA ITEM # A.9. 

STAFF REPORT 
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers  
FROM: Gregory Wade, City Manager  
MEETING DATE:  June 9, 2021 
ORIGINATING DEPT: Engineering Department 
SUBJECT:  Consideration of Resolution No. 2021-067 – Approving a 

Professional Services Agreement for Streetlight 
Maintenance and Repairs and Authorize an Extension of 
the Agreement for Up to Four Additional Years 

BACKGROUND: 

In 2016, the City entered into a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Siemens 
Industry, Inc., which later changed their name to Siemens Mobility, Inc. (Siemens), to 
maintain the City-owned streetlights. The agreement and all approved extensions of the 
agreement with Siemens expire on June 30, 2021.   

The scope of work for the streetlight maintenance and repairs agreement includes 
routine maintenance including the cleaning of all streetlight lenses that are owned by 
the City once per year. The majority of the work under the agreement is for “on-call, as-
needed” services to repair streetlights (primarily replace bulbs) as well as to repair 
damage to streetlights caused by storms, vehicle accidents or vandalism. It should be 
noted that approximately one-third (274 out of 801) of the streetlights in the City are 
owned by San Diego Gas and Electric (SDG&E). Those lights are maintained by 
SDG&E as part of the payment the City makes to SDG&E for each SDG&E owned 
streetlight. 

In March 2021, a Request for Proposals (RFP) was posted with an electronic bid 
service, eBidboard. This item is before the City Council for the consideration of 
Resolution 2021-067 (Attachment 1) to authorize a PSA with Siemens for one year with 
the option to extend the agreement for up to four additional one-year terms. 



June 9, 2021 
Approve PSA for Streetlight Maintenance and Repairs 

Page 2 of 3 

DISCUSSION: 
 
On March 10, 2021, a RFP was issued to solicit proposals from qualified contractors to 
provide maintenance and repair services on the City’s streetlights. The City received 
five proposals from the following service providers:    
 

• Bear Electrical Solutions, Inc. 
• CTE, Inc. 
• Saturn Electric, Inc. 
• Siemens Mobility, Inc. 
• Southwest Traffic Signal Service, Inc. 

 
All service providers were asked to provide unit prices for a variety of tasks that would 
potentially be performed throughout the life of this contract as opposed to a total 
contract amount. A list of these tasks is included as Attachment 2. Please note that 
some tasks are considered routine, some are preventative and some are reactionary 
maintenance and repairs. Not all tasks would be performed during any given year. 
While the cost for services is not a predominant factor in selection of qualified service 
providers, the hourly rates for equipment and labor offered by Siemens are very 
comparable with those offered by other proposers and consistent with the current rates 
in the industry. The contract amount is based on Staff’s experience in performing the 
required and preventive maintenance while allowing for limited reactionary repairs and 
corrective measures for unforeseen incidents such as automobile accidents that may 
damage the City’s streetlight facilities.   
 
Among the five proposals received, Siemens demonstrated a better understanding of 
the City’s infrastructure and the required preventative maintenance needs. Siemens has 
provided similar services for the City in the past and Staff is very satisfied with their 
performance. Staff is recommending that the City enter into an agreement with Siemens 
for streetlight maintenance and repair services.  
 
Siemens has significant experience in streetlight maintenance and institutional 
knowledge and understanding of the City’s streetlight system. The City has been 
satisfied with the work performed by Siemens on the previous contract and their 
proposal is consistent with the other four proposals received. If approved, Siemens can 
immediately start the routine maintenance of the City’s streetlight system seamlessly 
with no learning curve. 
 
CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT:  
 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
In the Fiscal Year (FY) 2021/22 Proposed Budget, a total of $65,800 has been 
budgeted in the Street Light Maintenance Professional Services Account for the 



June 9, 2021 
Approve PSA for Streetlight Maintenance and Repairs 

Page 3 of 3 

maintenance and repairs agreement. The agreement would consist of $15,800 for minor 
repairs such as lens cleaning and bulb replacement, $20,000 for replacements due to 
storms or vehicle accident and $30,000 for utility location mark-outs primarily for the 
increased number of construction activities for utility installations throughout City 
streets. Funding for this contract would come from the City’s Street Light Maintenance 
Assessment District. 
 
Staff recommends a not-to-exceed agreement in the amount of $65,800 for FY 2021/22 
and requests that the City Council authorize the City Manager to approve extensions of 
the agreement for four additional one-year terms in an amount not to exceed the 
amount budgeted each year. 
 
WORKPLAN:  
 
N/A 
 
OPTIONS:  
 

• Approve Staff recommendation. 
 

• Deny Staff recommendation and provide direction. 
 
DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution 2021-067: 
 

1. Authorizing the City Manager to execute an agreement with Siemens Mobility, 
Inc. for FY 2021/22 for streetlight maintenance and repairs services, at an 
amount not to exceed $65,800. 
 

2. Authorizing the City Manager to extend the agreement for four additional one-
year terms, at the City’s option, at an amount not to exceed the budgeted 
amount for each year.   

 
CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Department Recommendation. 
 
 
_________________________  
Gregory Wade, City Manager   
 
Attachments:   
 

1. Resolution No. 2021-067   
2. Scope of Work from the Request for Proposals 



ATTACHMENT 1 

RESOLUTION 2021-067 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA, TO AWARD A ONE 
YEAR AGREEMENT TO SIEMENS MOBILITY, INC. FOR 
STREETLIGHT MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS AND 
AUTHORIZE AN EXTENSION OF THE AGREEMENT FOR 
UP TO FOUR ADDITIONAL ONE YEAR TERMS 

 
 WHEREAS, the City issued a Request for Proposals to solicit proposals from 
qualified streetlight maintenance providers for City-wide streetlight maintenance 
services, and the City received five proposals that were evaluated by Staff; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after reviewing all five proposals, Staff has determined that the 
services and cost offered by Siemens Mobility, Inc. for streetlight maintenance and 
repairs best serve the needs of the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the agreement would consist of $15,800 for minor repairs such as 
lens cleaning and bulb replacement, $20,000 for replacements due to storms or vehicle 
accident and $30,000 for utility location mark-outs primarily for the increased number of 
construction activities for utility installations throughout City streets; and 
 
 WHEREAS, sufficient funds for the agreement have been identified in the Fiscal 
Year (FY) 2021/22 Proposed Budget for this proposed Professional Services 
Agreement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California, 
does resolve as follows:  
 

1. That the above recitations are true. 
 

2. That the City Council authorizes the City Manager to execute an 
agreement with Siemens Mobility, Inc. for FY 2021/22 for streetlight 
maintenance and repairs services, at an amount not to exceed $65,800. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution 2021-067 
Streetlight Maintenance PSA 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 

3. That the City Council authorizes the City Manage to extend the agreement 
for four additional one-year terms, at the City’s option, at an amount not to 
exceed the budgeted amount for each year. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of June, 2021, at a regularly scheduled 
meeting of the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California by the following vote: 

      
AYES: Councilmembers –  
NOES: Councilmembers –  
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers – 
ABSENT: Councilmembers – 
      
 

______________________________ 
LESA HEEBNER, Mayor 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________  _______________________________ 
JOHANNA N. CANLAS, City Attorney  ANGELA IVEY, City Clerk 



City of Solana Beach 
Request for Proposals/Scope of Services – Streetlights/Safety Lights 
Page 1 of 5 

 

Page 1 of 5 
 

EXHIBIT “A”  

Preliminary Scope of Work - Proposed Fee Schedule 

A. GENERAL: 

1. Intent of City 
It is the intent of the City that the streetlights are functioning properly at all 
times. Through the work associated with this scope of work, the service 
provider will be responsible for the working operations of all City-owned 
streetlights. 

 

2. Terms of Contract 
The contract shall be in effect for a year from the notice to proceed date 
for a period of 1 year. 
 

3. Business Certificate 
A City Business Certificate is required and can be obtained through the 
Finance Department. A link to the Business certificate application can be 
found be at: 
http://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=64DCE7C8-57B5-
4CE4-90CC-EFF3A553B5EE  
 

4. Extension Option 
The City reserves the right to offer an option to extend the contract for a 
period of up to four additional one-year periods. 
 

5. Notice to Proceed 
The City will issue a NOTICE TO PROCEED with the maintenance 
contractor only after the agreement has been properly executed and 
submitted to the City and all insurance documentation is provided. 
 

6. Correspondence 
All correspondence shall be addressed to the City of Solana Beach, 
Department of Public Works, 635 S. Highway 101, Solana Beach, CA  
92075. 

 

7. Cancellation of Contract 
The City of Solana Beach may suspend or cancel the contract at any time 
by giving sixty (60) days written notice to the Contractor. 

 

8. Supervision 
All work shall meet with the approval of the Public Works Supervisor or his 
representative. There shall be a monthly report showing all work 
completed during prior month and mailed to the attention of the Public 
Works Operations Manager along with the monthly invoice. 

 

http://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=64DCE7C8-57B5-4CE4-90CC-EFF3A553B5EE
http://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=64DCE7C8-57B5-4CE4-90CC-EFF3A553B5EE
dgoldberg
Rectangle

dgoldberg
Rectangle

dgoldberg
Text Box
Attachment 2



City of Solana Beach 
Request for Proposals/Scope of Services – Streetlights/Safety Lights 
Page 2 of 5 

 

Page 2 of 5 
 

Proposed Fee Schedule 

Complete and submit the following proposal 

ITEM  SERVICE QUANTITY BID 

A Supervisor's labor (per hour) 
 

 $ 

B Technician labor (per hour) 
 

 $ 

C Laborer labor (per hour) 
 

 $ 

D Service truck (per hour)  
 

 $ 

E Compressor (per hour) 
 

 $ 

F Aerial truck (per hour)  
 

 $ 

G Material mark up above invoice 
 

 % 

H Cree LED Driver 53 Watt 
 

15 ea $ 

I Cree LED Driver 101 Watt 
 

15 ea $ 

J Cree LED Fixture 53 Watt 
 

15 ea $ 

K Cree LED Fixture 101 Watt 
 

15 ea $ 

Cobra Heads   

 Fixture Type A – Cree: BXSP A O 3 P A U S U – 
101 Watt 

46 ea $ 

 Fixture Type B – Cree: BXSP A O 3 B A U S U – 
101 Watt 

139 ea $ 

 Fixture Type C – Cree: BXSP A O 3 A A U S U -   
53 Watt 

229 ea $ 

 Fixture Type D – Cree: BXSP A O 3 A A U S U -   
53 Watt 

17 ea $ 

 Fixture Type E – Cree: BXSP A O 2 B A U S U  -  
53 Watt 

4 ea $ 

Total 435 ea  

Decorative    

 Type H Lithonia Kadi 49B350/40K –  58 Watt 6 ea $ 

 Type G LED 8026-DL.PT120/277 – 100 Watt 6 ea $ 

 Type F LED 8024-DL PT120/277 –   45 Watt 78 ea $ 

Total 90 ea  

 Install partial or full shield, complete 
 

6 ea $ 

 Semi-annual inspections of all street lights to be 
conducted during evening hours 

2 ea $ 

 Replace complete concrete light pole, including, 
footings, anchor bolts, pole, mast arm and 
luminaire (complete in place). 

2 ea $ 

dgoldberg
Rectangle

dgoldberg
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL ACTION: 
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________ 

AGENDA ITEM # A.10. 

STAFF REPORT 
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers  
FROM: Gregory Wade, City Manager 
MEETING DATE:  June 9, 2021 
ORIGINATING DEPT: City Manager 
SUBJECT:  Consideration of Adoption of Resolution 2021 – 085 

Decertifying Solana Energy Alliance 

BACKGROUND: 

Community Choice Aggregation (CCA), authorized by Assembly Bill 117, is a state law 
that allows cities, counties and other authorized entities to aggregate electricity demand 
within their jurisdictions in order to purchase and/or generate alternative energy supplies 
for residents and businesses within their jurisdiction while maintaining the existing 
electricity provider for transmission and distribution services. The goal of a CCA is to 
provide a higher percentage of renewable energy electricity at competitive and 
potentially cheaper rates than existing Investor Owned Utilities (IOUs), while giving 
consumers local choices and promoting the development of renewable power sources 
and programs and local job growth.   

The City of Solana Beach’s (City) CCA, Solana Energy Alliance (SEA), was established 
by the City Council through adoption of Ordinance 483 on December 13, 2017 and 
began serving customers in June 2018.  SEA was the first CCA to launch in San Diego 
Gas & Electric territory.  

In October 2019, the City Council adopted Resolution 2019-136 approving the Joint 
Powers Agreement that created the Clean Energy Alliance Joint Powers Authority 
(CEA), along with the cities of Carlsbad and Del Mar. In December 2019, the City 
Council adopted Resolution 2019-156 approving an amendment to the SEA 
Implementation Plan, which reflected Solana Beach’s intention to join CEA and 
transition its customers during CEA’s enrollment in May 2021.  As of May 31, all SEA 
customers are now taking service from CEA. 

This item is before Council to consider adoption of Resolution 2021 – 085 decertifying 
SEA as a community choice aggregator.   



June 9, 2021 
SEA Decertification 

Page 2 of 3 

DISCUSSION: 

The filing of SEA’s Amended Implementation Plan with the California Public Utilities 
Commission (CPUC) notified the CPUC of Solana Beach’s intent to transition its 
customers from SEA to CEA.  Now that all customers have successfully been 
transferred, it is appropriate to officially decertify SEA as a community choice 
aggregator. Once approved, the resolution and request to be decertified will be 
submitted to the CPUC. 

This is the final official action for the City Council to take related to the transition from 
SEA to CEA, and relieves SEA of certain compliance requirements, including release of 
the $147,000 financial security requirement. 

CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT: 

The action being considered by the City Council is exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) because it is not a “project” under Section 
15378(b)(5) of CEQA Guidelines. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The decertification will result in SEA no longer being subject to the financial security 
requirement and provide the ability for Solana Beach to seek release of the $147,000 
letter of credit. 

WORK PLAN: 

Environmental Sustainability – Policy Development – Implement Solana Energy 
Alliance. 

OPTIONS: 

 Approve Staff recommendation
 Do not approve Staff recommendation
 Provide alternative direction to Staff

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the City Council adopt Resolution 2021–085 decertifying Solana 
Energy Alliance as a community choice aggregator.   



June 9, 2021 
SEA Decertification 

Page 3 of 3 

CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Department Recommendation. 

_________________________ 
Gregory Wade, City Manager 

Attachments: 

1. Resolution 2021 – 085



RESOLUTION 2021 – 085 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, 
CALIFORNIA, DECERTIFYING SOLANA 
ENERGY ALLIANCE AS A COMMUNITY 
CHOICE AGGREGATOR 

WHEREAS, at its regular meeting on December 13, 2017, the City Council 
adopted Ordinance 483 establishing the Solana Energy Alliance; and 

WHEREAS, at its regular meeting on October 9, 2019, the City Council adopted 
Resolution 2019-136 approving the Joint Powers Agreement establishing the Clean 
Energy Alliance; and 

WHEREAS, at the December 11, 2019, the City Council adopted Resolution 2019-
156 approving the Solana Energy Alliance Amended Implementation Plan reflecting its 
intent to transition customers from Solana Energy Alliance to Clean Energy Alliance in 
May 2021; and 

WHEREAS, effective May 31, 2021, all Solana Energy Alliance customers have 
transitioned to Clean Energy Alliance, and Solana Energy Alliance is no longer serving 
customers; and 

WHEREAS, Solana Beach now desires to decertify Solana Energy Alliance as a 
community choice aggregator. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California, does 
resolve as follows: 

1. That the above recitations are true and correct.
2. That Solana Energy Alliance is to be decertified as a community

choice aggregator.
3. Decertification is to become effective immediately.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of June 2021, at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California, by the following vote: 

AYES:  Councilmembers – 
NOES: Councilmembers – 
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers – 
ABSENT: Councilmembers – 

_____________________________ 
LESA HEEBNER, Mayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST: 

______________________________ __________________________ 
JOHANNA N. CANLAS, City Attorney ANGELA IVEY, City Clerk 

mbavin
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 1



COUNCIL ACTION: 
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________ 

AGENDA ITEM # A.11. 

STAFF REPORT 
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers  
FROM: Gregory Wade, City Manager  
MEETING DATE:  June 6, 2021 
ORIGINATING DEPT: Community Development Department 
SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution 2021-78 to Enter Into 

Professional Service Agreements with Data Ticket, 
Summit Environmental, Telecomm Law Firm, and 
Warwick Group Consultants for various Professional 
Services 

BACKGROUND: 

The Community Development Department has contracted with various professional 
consultants to perform specialized services that include, but are not limited to, shoreline 
monitoring services, beach renourishment, local coastal program implementation, 
professional telecommunication consulting services, lobbying for sand replenishment 
and beach renourishment projects, and citation processing services.  The City has 
contracted with Summit Environmental, Telecom Law, Warwick Group and Data Ticket 
for the past several years to assist with these specialized services.  Each of these 
contracts are due to expire with no additional extensions on June 30, 2021. 

This item is before Council to consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into 
agreements with Summit Environmental, Warwick Group Consultants, Telecom Law 
Firm and Data Ticket for professional services as outlined in the attached contracts.   

DISCUSSION: 

To assist the City with the “Community Character Priorities” identified in the Work Plan 
(Items A.2, Local Coastal Program and A.3, Beach Sand Replenishment and Monitoring 
Program), the City has entered into a Professional Services Agreements (PSAs) with 
Summit Environmental and Warwick Group Consultants to assist with sand 
replenishment, beach renourishment and local coastal program implementation.  
Summit Environmental has provided professional planning and project management for 



June 9, 2021 
Professional Service Agreements 

Page 2 of 4

the City’s Local Coastal Plan (LCP) and as-needed Sand Replenishment/Shoreline 
program/protection projects. Continuity and historical knowledge to move these 
programs and projects forward make Summit Environmental’s experience and ability to 
perform these services highly desirable and unique. The contract rates are outlined in 
the Scope of Services in Attachment 2. 

The City has contracted with Warwick Group Cosultants to provide federal public affairs 
consulting to seek federal appropriation for various City projects including, but not 
limited to, the City’s Beach Sand Replenishment and Monitoring Program, Shoreline 
Restoration Project, Recycled Water System Expansion, and Marine Safety Center 
Replacement. The contract rates are outlined in the Scope of Services in Attachment 3. 

The City has contracted with Telecom Law Firm to review wireless telecommunication 
projects and distributed antenna system projects tendered to the City for lease or for 
zoning purposes for the past several years.  Services include, but are not limited to, 
determining and reporting on an applicant’s project need, project design, alternative site 
analysis, project aesthetics, radio frequency emissions safety, collocation 
considerations and other matters within the consultant’s expertise. Costs for services 
are paid for by the applicants and therefore services are typically only needed as 
applications are submitted. Contract rates are the same as in previous years and are 
reflected in the Scope of Services in Attachment 4. 

Data Ticket, Inc. has provided parking citation services for the City of Solana Beach for 
many years.  These services include, but are not limited to, manual and electronic 
parking citation processing, collections, Franchise Tax Board processing, and 
adjudication.  The contract rates are outlined in the Scope of Services in Attachment 5. 

The aforementioned professional services are highly specialized with very few 
consultants that are available to provide such services and none with the history and 
knowledge of the City of Solana Beach and our specific needs. Pursuant to Solana 
Beach Municipal Code (SBMC) section 3.08.140, because of their unique nature, it is in 
the best interest of the public, as allowed by state law, that contracts for professional 
services such as attorneys, planning consultants, public relations consultants, and other 
professional or consultant services of a similar nature, be selected on the basis of 
demonstrated competence and on the professional qualifications necessary for the 
satisfactory performance of the services required, negotiated between parties rather 
than on the basis of cost alone. Summit Environmental, Warwick Group Consultants, 
Telecom Law Firm and Data Ticket have demonstrated the competence and 
qualifications to satisfactorily perform the services at a fair and reasonable price.  
Furthermore, because of their past experience with the City, these consultants are 
uniquely qualified to provide the services to the City.  Pursuant to SBMC section 
3.08.130(D), it would not be in the public’s interest to engage alternative consultants. 

Staff has prepared a resolution requesting City Council to consider authorizing the City 
Manager to enter into professional service agreements with Data Ticket, Summit 
Environmental, Telecom Law Firm and Warwick Consulting Group.  



June 9, 2021 
Professional Service Agreements 

Page 3 of 4

CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT: 

This is not a project under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The costs for services by these consultants are outlined in detail in the attached scope 
of services and fees by each professional service provider. The cost for parking citation 
services by Data Ticket is based and covered by the revenue generated by each 
parking citation.  The services provided by Telecom Law Firm are primarily paid for by 
applicants processing wireless communication facility applications.  As FCC and other 
wireless communication facility regulations emerge the City does periodically utilize 
Telecom Law Firm to provide expert advice and drafting ordinance, policy and 
agreement language related to wireless communication facilities.  The cost for those 
services are provided on an hourly basis and shall not exceed $10,000 per year. 
Warwick Group Consultants proposes to continue the aforementioned professional 
services for an amount not-to-exceed $59,340 per year.  Summit Environmental Group 
proposes to provide services for an amount not-to-exceed $132,480 per year.  

WORK PLAN: 

These efforts will further the implementation of Community Character and 
Environmental Sustainability Priorities listed in the City’s 2019-2020 Work Plan.  Those 
priorities include the ongoing protection of beach sand replenishment projects identified 
in the Community Character Priority Items A.2, Local Coastal Program; A.3, Beach 
Sand Replenishment and Retention Program. 

OPTIONS: 

∙ Authorize Staff recommendation.
∙ Do not authorize Staff recommendation.
∙ Provide alternative direction to Staff.

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that the City Council consider adoption of Resolution No. 2021-078 
(Attachment 1) authorizing the City Manager to execute Professional Services 
Agreements with Data Ticket, Summit Environmental, Telecom Law Firm and Warwick 
Consulting Group. 



June 9, 2021 
Professional Service Agreements 

Page 4 of 4

CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Department Recommendation. 

_________________________ 
Gregory Wade, City Manager  

Attachments:  

1. Resolution No. 2021-078
2. Professional Services Agreement – Summit Environmental
3. Professional Services Agreement – Warwick Consulting Group
4. Professional Services Agreement – Telecom Law Firm
5. Professional Services Agreement – Data Ticket



 
  RESOLUTION 2021-078 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENTS WITH DATA 
TICKET, INC., SUMMIT ENVIRONMENTAL, TELECOM 
LAW FIRM AND WARWICK GROUP CONSULTING  

 
 WHEREAS, the Community Development Department is in need of various 
specialized professional services for City projects and for 3rd party review of new 
wireless facility development projects; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the current contracts with the specialized firms currently providing 
such services, Data Ticket, Summit Environmental, Telecom Law Firm and Warwick 
Consulting Group, are due to expire June 30, 2021; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has found that these professional service providers have 
provided excellent services for many years; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Solana Beach Municipal Code (SBMC) section 3.08.140, 
because of their unique nature, it is in the best interest of the public, as allowed by state 
law, that contracts for professional services such as attorneys, planning consultants, 
public relations consultants, and other professional or consultant services of a similar 
nature, be selected on the basis of demonstrated competence and on the professional 
qualifications necessary for the satisfactory performance of the services required, 
negotiated between parties rather than on the basis of cost alone; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Summit Environmental, Warwick Group Consultants, Telecom Law 
Firm and Data Ticket have demonstrated the competence and qualifications to 
satisfactorily perform the services at a fair and reasonable price.  Furthermore, because 
of their past experience with the City, these consultants are uniquely qualified to provide 
the services to the City and no other firms possess the necessary history and 
knowledge of the City’s need, and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to SBMC section 3.08.130(D), it would not be in the public’s 
interest to engage alternative consultants; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City wishes to enter new contracts with these highly qualified 
firms. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach does resolve as 
follows: 

 
1. That the foregoing recitations are true and correct. 

 

mbavin
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 1



Resolution 2021-078 
Planning Contracts 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 

2. That the City Council authorizes the City Manager to execute professional 
service agreements with Data Ticket, Inc., Summit Environmental, Telecom Law 
Firm and Warwick Group Consultants to provide various professional services as 
outlined in the respective Scopes of Work and Fee Schedules. 
 

3. That the City Council authorizes the City Manager, in his discretion, to extend all 
the agreements for four additional one-year terms, at the City’s sole option. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of June, 2021, at a regularly scheduled 

meeting of the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California by the following vote: 
      

AYES:   Councilmembers –  
NOES:   Councilmembers –  
ABSTAIN:  Councilmembers – 
ABSENT:   Councilmembers – 

 
 
________________________________ 
LESA HEEBNER, Mayor 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
JOHANNA N. CANLAS, City Attorney  ANGELA IVEY, City Clerk 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 1 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

City of Solana Beach 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
FOR CITATION PROCESSING SERVICES 

 THIS Professional Services Agreement (“AGREEMENT”) is made and entered into this 1st day of 
July, 2021 by and between the CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, a municipal corporation (“CITY”), and, DATA 
TICKET, INC., a California Corporation, (“CONSULTANT”) (collectively “PARTIES”). 

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to employ a CONSULTANT to furnish citation processing services 
(“PROFESSIONAL SERVICES”) for parking enforcement (“PROJECT”); and 

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that CONSULTANT is qualified by experience and ability 
to perform the services desired by CITY, and CONSULTANT is willing to perform such services; and 

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT will conduct all the work as described and detailed in this 
AGREEMENT to be provided to the CITY. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the PARTIES hereto mutually covenant and agree with each other as 
follows: 

1. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES. 
1.1. Scope of Services. The CONSULTANT shall perform the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES as set 

forth in the written Scope of Services, attached as Exhibit “A” Scope of Services and Fee, at the 
direction of the CITY. CITY shall provide CONSULTANT access to appropriate staff and 
resources for the coordination and completion of the projects under this AGREEMENT.  

1.2. Project Coordinator. The Community Development Director is hereby designated as the 
Project Coordinator for CITY and will monitor the progress and execution of this AGREEMENT. 
CONSULTANT shall assign a single Project Director to provide supervision and have overall 
responsibility for the progress and execution of this AGREEMENT for CONSULTANT. Marjorie 
A. Fleming is hereby designated as the Project Director for CONSULTANT. 

1.3. City Modification of Scope of Services. CITY may order changes to the Scope of Services 
within the general scope of this AGREEMENT consisting of additions, deletions, or other 
revisions. If such changes cause a change in the CONSULTANT’s cost of, or time required for, 
completion of the Scope of Services, an equitable adjustment to CONSULTANT’s compensation 
and/or contract time shall be made, subject to the CITY’S approval. All such changes to the 
scope, schedule, or compensation shall be authorized in writing, executed by CONSULTANT 
and CITY. 

2. DURATION OF AGREEMENT. 
2.1. Term. The term of this AGREEMENT shall be for a period of one (1) year beginning from the 

date of execution of the AGREEMENT. Time is of the essence in the performance of work under 
this AGREEMENT, unless otherwise specified. 

2.2. Extensions.  If marked, the CITY shall have the option to extend the AGREEMENT for four 
(4) additional one (1) year periods or parts thereof for an open-ended amount, funded by pass-
through fees collected from property owners at the time of project application submittal per 
AGREEMENT year. Extensions shall be in the sole discretion of the City Manager and shall be 
based upon CONSULTANT’s satisfactory past performance, CITY needs, and appropriation of 
funds by the City Council. The CITY shall give written notice to CONSULTANT prior to exercising 
the option.  

[8J 

mbavin
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 2



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 2 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

2.3. Delay. Any delay occasioned by causes beyond the control of CONSULTANT may merit an 
extension of time for the completion of the Scope of Services. When such delay occurs, 
CONSULTANT shall immediately notify the Project Coordinator in writing of the cause and the 
extent of the delay, whereupon the Project Coordinator shall ascertain the facts and the extent 
of the delay and grant an extension of time for the completion of the PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES when justified by the circumstances. 

2.4. City’s Right to Terminate for Default. Should CONSULTANT be in material default of any 
covenant or condition hereof, CITY may immediately terminate this AGREEMENT for cause if 
CONSULTANT fails to cure the default within ten (10) calendar days of receiving written notice 
of the default. 

2.5. City’s Right to Terminate without Cause. Without limiting its rights in the event of 
CONSULTANT’s default, CITY may terminate this AGREEMENT, without cause, by giving 
written notice to CONSULTANT. Such termination shall be effective upon receipt of the written 
notice. CONSULTANT shall be compensated for all effort and material expended on behalf of 
CITY under the terms of this AGREEMENT, up to and including the effective date of termination. 
All personal property remaining in CITY facilities or on CITY property thirty (30) days after the 
expiration or termination of this AGREEMENT shall be, at CITY’s election, considered the 
property of CITY. 

2.6. Consultant may terminate this AGREEMENT, without cause by giving thirty (30) days’ notice to 
CITY.  Consultant may, at its election, terminate or suspend performance under this 
AGREEMENT should CITY be in default of any covenant or condition hereof if CITY fails to cure 
the default within ten (10) calendar days of receiving written notice of default.  The time to perform 
services under this AGREEMENT shall be extended for any period of suspension. 

3. COMPENSATION. 
3.1. Total Amount. The total cost for all work described in the Scope of Services and Fee (Exhibit 

“A”) shall be for an open-ended amount, funded by pass-through fees collected from the property 
owners at the time of application submittal. CONSULTANT shall bill the CITY for work provided 
and shall present a written request for such payment monthly.  

3.2. Additional Services. CITY may, as the need arises or in the event of an emergency, request 
additional services of CONSULTANT. Should such additional services be required, CITY and 
CONSULTANT shall agree to the cost prior to commencement of these services in writing, 
executed by CONSULTANT and CITY. 

3.3. Costs. Any costs billed to the CITY shall be in accordance with any terms negotiated and 
incorporated herein as part of Exhibit “A” Scope of Services and Fee.  

4. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  
4.1. CONSULTANT is, for all purposes arising out of this AGREEMENT, an independent contractor. 

The CONSULTANT has and shall retain the right to exercise full control and supervision of all 
persons assisting the CONSULTANT in the performance of said services hereunder, the CITY 
only being concerned with the finished results of the work being performed. Neither 
CONSULTANT nor CONSULTANT’s employees shall in any event be entitled to any benefits to 
which CITY employees are entitled, including, but not limited to, overtime, retirement benefits, 
workers’ compensation benefits, injury leave or other leave benefits. CONSULTANT is solely 
responsible for all such matters, as well as compliance with social security and income tax 
withholding and all other regulations and laws governing such matters. 

4.2  PERS Eligibility Indemnification.  In the event that CONSULTANT’s employee providing services 
under this Agreement claims or is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction or the California 
Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) to be eligible for enrollment in PERS of the CITY, 
Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless CITY for the payment of any employer 
and employee contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of the employee as well as for payment 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 3 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

of any penalties and interest on such contributions which would otherwise be the responsibility 
of the CITY.  Notwithstanding any other agency, state or federal policy, rule, regulation, law or 
ordinance to the contrary, CONSULTANT’s employees providing service under this Agreement 
shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any claims to, any 
compensation and benefit including but not limited to eligibility to enroll in PERS as an employee 
of CITY and entitlement to any contributions to be paid by CITY for employer contributions and/or 
employee contributions for PERS benefits.  This is a continuing obligation that survives the 
termination of this contract. 

5. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE.  
While performing the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, CONSULTANT shall exercise the reasonable 
professional care and skill customarily exercised by reputable members of CONSULTANT’s profession 
practicing in the metropolitan Southern California Area, and will use reasonable diligence and best judgment 
while exercising its professional skill and expertise. 

6. WARRANTY OF CONSULTANT’S LICENSE.  
CONSULTANT warrants that CONSULTANT is properly licensed with the applicable government 
agency(ies) for any PROFESSIONAL SERVICES that require a license. If the CONSULTANT lacks such 
license, this AGREEMENT is void and of no effect. 

7. AUDIT OF RECORDS.  
7.1. At any time during normal business hours and as often as may be deemed reasonably necessary 

the CONSULTANT shall make available to a representative of CITY for examination all of its 
records with respect to all matters covered by this AGREEMENT and shall permit CITY to audit, 
examine and/or reproduce such records. CONSULTANT shall retain such financial and program 
service records for at least four (4) years after termination or final payment under this 
AGREEMENT. 

7.2. The CONSULTANT shall include the CITY's right under this section in any and all of their 
subcontracts, and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all subcontractors. 

8. CONFIDENTIALITY AND SECURITY.  
8.1. Confidential Work Product. All professional services performed by CONSULTANT, including 

but not limited to all drafts, data, correspondence, proposals, reports, research and estimates 
compiled or composed by CONSULTANT, pursuant to this AGREEMENT, are for the sole use 
of the CITY, its agents and employees. Neither the documents nor their contents shall be 
released to any third party without the prior written consent of the CITY. This provision does not 
apply to information that (a) was publicly known, or otherwise known to CONSULTANT, at the 
time that it was disclosed to CONSULTANT by the CITY, (b) subsequently becomes publicly 
known through no act or omission of CONSULTANT, (c) otherwise becomes known to 
CONSULTANT other than through disclosure by the CITY, or (d) is required to be disclosed by 
court order or other legal demand requiring disclosure, in which case, CONSULTANT shall notify 
CITY in writing as soon as possible and before responding to such court order or legal demand. 
Except for any subcontractors that may be allowed upon prior agreement, neither the documents 
nor their contents shall be released to any third party without the prior written consent of the 
CITY. The sole purpose of this section is to prevent disclosure of CITY’s confidential and 
proprietary information by CONSULTANT or subcontractors. 

8.2. Confidentiality. Both parties recognize that their respective employees and agents, in the 
course of performance of this AGREEMENT, may be exposed to confidential information and 
that disclosure of such information could violate the rights of private individuals and entities, 
including the parties and third parties.  Confidential information is nonpublic information that a 
reasonable person would believe to be confidential and includes, without limitation, personal 
identifying information (e.g., social security numbers) and trade secrets, each as defined by 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 4 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

applicable state law, and all other information protected by applicable law (“Confidential 
Information”). The party receiving Confidential Information (“Receiving Party”) of the other 
(“Disclosing Party”) shall not, and shall cause its employees and agents who are authorized to 
receive Confidential Information, not to, use Confidential Information for any purpose except as 
necessary to implement, perform or enforce this AGREEMENT or comply with its legal 
obligations.  Receiving Party will use the same reasonable efforts to protect the Confidential 
Information of Disclosing Party as it uses to protect its own proprietary information and data.  The 
Receiving Party will not disclose or release Confidential Information to any third person without 
the prior written consent of the Disclosing Party, except for where required by law or for 
authorized employees or agents of the Receiving Party.  Prior to disclosing the Confidential 
Information to its authorized employees or agents, Receiving Party shall inform them of the 
confidential nature of the Confidential Information and require them to abide by the terms of this 
AGREEMENT. Receiving Party will promptly notify Disclosing Party if Receiving Party discovers 
any improper use or disclosure of Confidential Information and will promptly commence all 
reasonable efforts to investigate and correct the causes of such improper use or disclosure.  If 
Receiving Party believes the Confidential Information must be disclosed under applicable law, 
Receiving Party may do so provided that, to the extent permitted by law, the other party is given 
a reasonable notice and opportunity to contest such disclosure or obtain a protective order.  
Confidential Information does not include information that: (i)  is or becomes known to the public 
without fault or breach of the Receiving Party; (ii) the Disclosing Party regularly discloses to third 
parties without restriction on disclosure; or (iii) the Receiving Party obtains from a third party 
without restriction on disclosure and without breach of a non-disclosure obligation.  Confidential 
Information does not include any information that is required to be provided to the public pursuant 
to the laws of the United States and/or California such as the California Public Records Act, due 
to the nature of CITY being a local governmental agency.  The non-disclosure and non-use 
obligations of this AGREEMENT will remain in full force with respect to each item of Confidential 
Information for a period of ten (10) years after the Receiving Party’s receipt of that item. 

8.3. Security.   
8.3.1. Implementation. CONSULTANT shall implement commercially reasonable 

administrative, technical and physical safeguards designed to: (i) ensure the security 
and confidentiality of data and information provided by the CITY or used in 
connection with providing services under this AGREEMENT, including data or 
information about third parties (“CITY’S Data”); (ii) protect against any anticipated 
threats or hazards to the security or integrity of CITY’S Data; and (iii) protect against 
unauthorized access to or use of CITY’S Data.  CONSULTANT shall review and test 
such safeguards on no less than an annual basis. 

8.3.2. Network. If CONSULTANT makes CITY’S Data accessible through the Internet or 
other networked environment, CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for all 
aspects of Internet use, and shall maintain, in connection with the operation or use 
of CITY’S Data, adequate technical and procedural access controls and system 
security requirements and devices, necessary for data privacy, confidentiality, 
integrity, authorization, authentication and non-repudiation and virus detection and 
eradication. 

8.3.3. Personal Data.  If CONSULTANT processes or otherwise has access to any 
personal data or personal information on CITY’s behalf when performing 
CONSULTANT’s services and obligations under this AGREEMENT, then: (i) CITY 
shall be the data controller (where “data controller” means an entity which alone or 
jointly with others determines purposes for which and the manner in which any 
personal data are, or are to be, processed) and CONSULTANT shall be a data 
processor (where “data processor” means an entity which processes the data only 
on behalf of the data controller and not for any purposes of its own); (ii) CITY shall 
ensure that it has obtained all necessary consents and it is entitled to transfer the 
relevant personal data or personal information to CONSULTANT so that 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 5 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

CONSULTANT may lawfully use, process and transfer the personal data and 
personal information in accordance with this AGREEMENT on CITY’s behalf in order 
for CONSULTANT to provide the services and perform its other obligations under 
this AGREEMENT; (iii) CONSULTANT shall process the personal data and personal 
information only in accordance with any lawful and reasonable instructions given by 
CITY from time to time and in accordance with the terms of this AGREEMENT; and 
(iv) each party shall take appropriate technical and organizational measures against 
unauthorized or unlawful processing of the personal data and personal information 
or its accidental loss, destruction or damage so that, having regard to the state of 
technological development and the cost of implementing any measures, the 
measures taken ensure a level of security appropriate to the harm that might result 
from such unauthorized or unlawful processing or accidental loss, destruction or 
damage in relation to the personal data and personal information and the nature of 
the personal data and personal information being protected.  If necessary, the parties 
will cooperate to document these measures taken. 

8.3.4. Information Security. CONSULTANT represents and warrants that its collection, 
access, use, storage, disposal and disclosure of Confidential Information accessed 
and/or collected from CITY does and will comply with all applicable federal and state 
privacy and data protection laws. In the event of any security breach, CONSULTANT 
shall: (a) Provide CITY with the name and contact information for an employee who 
shall serve as CITY’s primary security contact and shall be available to assist CITY 
twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week as a contact in resolving 
obligations associated with a security breach; and (b) Notify CITY of a security breach 
as soon as practicable, but no later than twenty-four (24) hours after CONSULTANT 
becomes aware of it. Immediately following CONSULTANT’s notification to CITY of 
a security breach, the parties shall coordinate with each other to investigate the 
security breach.  CONSULTANT agrees to fully cooperate with CITY in CITY’s 
handling of the matter. CONSULTANT shall use best efforts to immediately remedy 
any security breach and prevent any further security breach at CONSULTANT’s own 
expense in accordance with applicable privacy rights, laws, regulations and 
standards.  CONSULTANT agrees to provide, at its expense, up to one year of credit 
monitoring services to third parties impacted by any data breach involving the loss of 
personally identifiable information.  

8.4. Indemnity.  CONSULTANT shall defend (with counsel acceptable to CITY), indemnify and hold 
CITY harmless from and against all claims, actions, proceedings, losses, costs (including 
attorney fees and other charges), liabilities, damages, judgments, settlements, and court 
awarded attorney’s fees resulting from, arising out of or related to a security or data breach 
unless the breach is proven to be caused solely by CITY.  The terms of this section shall survive 
termination of this AGREEMENT. For purposes of this provision, “security breach” means any 
act or omission that compromises either the security, confidentiality, or integrity of Confidential 
Information or the physical, technical, administrative or organizational safeguards put in place by 
CONSULTANT or any authorized persons that relate to the protection of the security, 
confidentiality or integrity of Confidential Information or a breach or alleged breach of this 
AGREEMENT relating to such privacy practices or privacy obligations imposed by any applicable 
law. 

8.5. Notice and Remedy of Breaches.  Each party shall promptly give notice to the other of any 
actual or suspected breach by it of any of the provisions of Section 8 of this AGREEMENT, 
whether or not intentional, and the breaching party shall, at its expense, take all steps reasonably 
requested by the other party to prevent or remedy the breach. 

8.6. Enforcement.  Each party acknowledges that any breach of any of the provisions of Section 8 
of this AGREEMENT may result in irreparable injury to the other for which money damages would 
not adequately compensate.  If there is a breach, then the injured party shall be entitled, in 
addition to all other rights and remedies which it may have, to have a decree of specific 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 6 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

performance or an injunction issued by any competent court, requiring the breach to be cured or 
enjoining all persons involved from continuing the breach. 

9. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.  
9.1. CONSULTANT shall at all times comply with all federal, state and local conflict of interest laws, 

regulations, and policies applicable to public contracts and procurement practices, including but 
not limited to California Government Code Section 81000 et seq. (Political Reform Act) and 
Section 1090 et seq. CONSULTANT shall immediately disqualify itself and shall not use its official 
position to influence in any way any matter coming before the CITY in which the CONSULTANT 
has a financial interest as defined in Government Code Section 87103. CONSULTANT 
represents that it has no knowledge of any financial interests which would require it to disqualify 
itself from any matter on which it might perform services for the CITY. 

9.2. If, in performing the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES set forth in this AGREEMENT, the 
CONSULTANT makes, or participates in, a “governmental decision” as described in Title 2, 
Section 18700.3(a) of the California Code of Regulations, or performs the same or substantially 
all the same duties for the CITY that would otherwise be performed by a CITY employee holding 
a position specified in the department's conflict of interest code, the CONSULTANT shall be 
subject to a conflict of interest code requiring the completion of one or more statements of 
economic interests disclosing the CONSULTANT’s relevant financial interests. 

9.3.  If checked, the CONSULTANT shall comply with all of the reporting requirements of the 
Political Reform Act. Specifically, the CONSULTANT shall file a Fair Political Practices 
Commission Form 700 (Assuming Office Statement) within thirty (30) calendar days of the CITY’s 
determination that the CONSULTANT is subject to a conflict of interest code. The CONSULTANT 
shall also file a Form 700 (Annual Statement) on or before April 1 of each year of the 
AGREEMENT, disclosing any financial interests held during the previous calendar year for which 
the CONSULTANT was subject to a conflict of interest code. 

9.4. CITY represents that pursuant to California Government Code Section 1090 et seq., none of its 
elected officials, officers, or employees has an interest in this AGREEMENT. 

10. DISPOSITION AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.  
10.1. All documents, data, studies, drawings, maps, models, photographs and reports prepared by 

CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT, whether paper or electronic, shall become the property 
of CITY for use with respect to this PROJECT, and shall be turned over to the CITY upon 
completion of the PROJECT or any phase thereof, as contemplated by this AGREEMENT.  

10.2. Contemporaneously with the transfer of documents, the CONSULTANT hereby assigns to the 
CITY and CONSULTANT thereby expressly waives and disclaims, any copyright in, and the right 
to reproduce, all written material, drawings, plans, specifications or other work prepared under 
this AGREEMENT, except upon the CITY’s prior authorization regarding reproduction, which 
authorization shall not be unreasonably withheld. The CONSULTANT shall, upon request of the 
CITY, execute any further document(s) necessary to further effectuate this waiver and 
disclaimer. 

10.3. Other than as stated in sections 10.1 and 10.2 above, each party acknowledges and agrees that 
each party is the sole and exclusive owner of all right, title and interest in and to its other services, 
products, software, source and object code, specifications, designs, techniques, concepts, 
improvements, discoveries, and inventions, including all intellectual property rights thereto, 
including without limitation and modifications, improvements or derivative works thereof, created 
prior to, or independently, during the term of this Agreement.  This Agreement does not affect 
the ownership of each party’s pre-existing, intellectual property.  Each party further 
acknowledges that it acquires no rights under this Agreement to the other party’s pre-existing 
intellectual property, other than any limited right explicitly ranted in this Agreement under section 
10.1 and 10.2. 

~ 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 7 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

11. INSURANCE 
11.1. CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain for the duration of the AGREEMENT insurance 

against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in 
connection with the performance of the work hereunder and the results of that work by the 
CONSULTANT, their agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. Insurance shall be 
placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than “A” and “VII” unless 
otherwise approved in writing by the CITY’s Risk Manager. 

11.2. CONSULTANT’s liabilities, including but not limited to CONSULTANT’s indemnity obligations, 
under this AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed limited in any way to the insurance coverage 
required herein. All policies of insurance required hereunder must provide that the CITY is 
entitled to thirty (30) days prior written notice of cancellation or non-renewal of the policy or 
policies, or ten (10) days prior written notice for cancellation due to non-payment of premium. 
Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a material element of this AGREEMENT. 

11.3. Types and Amounts Required. CONSULTANT shall maintain, at minimum, the following 
insurance coverage for the duration of this AGREEMENT: 
11.3.1. Commercial General Liability (CGL). If checked the CONSULTANT shall 

maintain CGL Insurance written on an ISO Occurrence form or equivalent providing 
coverage at least as broad which shall cover liability arising from any and all personal 
injury or property damage in the amount of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence and subject 
to an annual aggregate of $2,000,000.00. There shall be no endorsement or 
modification of the CGL limiting the scope of coverage for either insured vs. insured 
claims or contractual liability. All defense costs shall be outside the limits of the policy. 

11.3.2. Commercial Automobile Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall maintain 
Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance for all of the CONSULTANT's 
automobiles including owned, hired and non-owned automobiles, automobile 
insurance written on an ISO form CA 00 01 12 90 or a later version of this form or an 
equivalent form providing coverage at least as broad for bodily injury and property 
damage for a combined single limit of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence. Insurance 
certificate shall reflect coverage for any automobile (any auto). 

11.3.3. Workers' Compensation. If checked the CONSULTANT shall maintain Worker’s 
Compensation insurance for all of the CONSULTANT's employees who are subject 
to this AGREEMENT and to the extent required by applicable state or federal law, a 
Workers' Compensation policy providing at minimum $1,000,000.00 employers' 
liability coverage. The CONSULTANT shall provide an endorsement that the insurer 
waives the right of subrogation against the CITY and its respective elected officials, 
officers, employees, agents and representatives. 

11.3.4. Professional Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall also maintain 
Professional Liability (errors and omissions) coverage with a limit of $1,000,000 per 
claim and $2,000,000 annual aggregate. The CONSULTANT shall ensure both that 
(1) the policy retroactive date is on or before the date of commencement of the Scope 
of Services; and (2) the policy will be maintained in force for a period of three years 
after substantial completion of the Scope of Services or termination of this 
AGREEMENT whichever occurs last. The CONSULTANT agrees that for the time 
period defined above, there will be no changes or endorsements to the policy that 
increase the CITY's exposure to loss. All defense costs shall be outside the limits of 
the policy. 

11.3.5. Cyber Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall also maintain Cyber Liability  
coverage on an occurrence basis with a limit of $2,000,000 per occurrence or claim 
and $2,000,000 annual aggregate.  Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond 
to the duties and obligations as are undertaken by CONSULTANT in this 
AGREEMENT and shall include claims involving infringement of intellectual property, 

□ 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 8 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

infringement of copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy violations, 
information theft, damage to or destruction of electronic information, release of 
private information, alteration of electronic information, extortion and network 
security. The policy shall provide coverage for breach response costs as well as 
regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses with limits 
sufficient to respond to such obligations.  All defense costs shall be outside the limits 
of the policy. 

11.4. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions are the 
responsibility of the CONSULTANT and must be declared to and approved by the CITY. At the 
option of the CITY, either (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured 
retentions as respects the CITY, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers, or (2) the 
CONSULTANT shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the CITY guaranteeing 
payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses. 

11.5. Additional Required Provisions. The commercial general liability and automobile liability 
policies shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 
11.5.1. The CITY, its officers, officials, employees, and representatives shall be named as 

additional insureds. The CITY's additional insured status must be reflected on 
additional insured endorsement form (20 10 1185 or 20 10 1001 and 20 37 1001) 
which shall be submitted to the CITY.  

11.5.2. The policies are primary and non-contributory to any insurance that may be carried 
by the CITY, as reflected in an endorsement which shall be submitted to the CITY. 

11.6. Verification of Coverage. CONSULTANT shall furnish the CITY with original certificates and 
amendatory endorsements effecting coverage required by this Section 11. The endorsement 
should be on forms provided by the CITY or on other than the CITY’s forms provided those 
endorsements conform to CITY requirements. All certificates and endorsements are to be 
received and approved by the CITY before work commences. The CITY reserves the right to 
require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements 
affecting the coverage required by these specifications at any time. 

12. INDEMNIFICATION.  
CONSULTANT agrees to indemnify, defend (with counsel acceptable to CITY), and hold harmless the CITY, 
and its officers, officials, agents and employees from any and all claims, demands, costs or liabilities that 
arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONSULTANT, 
its employees, agents, and subcontractors in the performance of or failure to perform services or obligations 
under this AGREEMENT. CONSULTANT’s duty to indemnify under this section shall not include liability for 
damages for death or bodily injury to persons, injury to property, or other loss, damage or expense arising 
from the sole negligence or willful misconduct by the CITY or its elected officials, officers, agents, and 
employees. CONSULTANT's indemnification obligations shall not be limited by the insurance provisions of 
this AGREEMENT. The PARTIES expressly agree that any payment, attorney's fees, costs or expense CITY 
incurs or makes to or on behalf of an injured employee under the CITY's self-administered workers' 
compensation is included as a loss, expense, or cost for the purposes of this section, and that this section 
will survive the expiration or early termination of this AGREEMENT. 

13. SUBCONTRACTORS.  
13.1. The CONSULTANT’s hiring or retaining of third parties (i.e. subcontractors) to perform services 

related to the PROJECT is subject to prior approval by the CITY.  
13.2. All contracts entered into between the CONSULTANT and its subcontractor shall also provide 

that each subcontractor shall obtain insurance policies which shall be kept in full force and effect 
during any and all work on this PROJECT and for the duration of this AGREEMENT. The 
CONSULTANT shall require the subcontractor to obtain, all policies described in Section 11 in 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 9 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

the amounts required by the CITY, which shall not be greater than the amounts required of the 
CONSULTANT.  

13.3. In any dispute between the CONSULTANT and its subcontractor, the CITY shall not be made a 
party to any judicial or administrative proceeding to resolve the dispute. The CONSULTANT 
agrees to defend and indemnify the CITY as described in Section 12 of this AGREEMENT should 
the CITY be made a party to any judicial or administrative proceeding to resolve any such 
dispute. 

14. NON-DISCRIMINATION.  
CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, 
race, color, age, religion, ancestry, national origin, military or veteran status, disability, medical condition, 
genetic information, gender expression, marital status, or sexual orientation. CONSULTANT shall take 
affirmative action to insure that applicants are employed and that employees are treated during employment 
without regard to their sex, race, color, age, religion, ancestry, national origin, military or veteran status, 
disability, medical condition, genetic information, gender expression, marital status, or sexual orientation and 
shall make reasonable accommodation to qualified individuals with disabilities or medical conditions. Such 
action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, 
recruitment, or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, 
and selection for training, including apprenticeship. CONSULTANT agrees to post in conspicuous places 
available to employees and applicants for employment any notices provided by CITY setting forth the 
provisions of this non-discrimination clause. 

15. NOTICES.  
All communications to either party by the other party shall be delivered to the persons listed below. Any such 
written communications by mail shall be conclusively deemed to have been received by the addressee five 
(5) calendar days after the deposit thereof in the United States mail, postage prepaid and properly addressed 
as noted below. 

Joseph Lim, Community Development Director 
City of Solana Beach 
635 S. Highway 101 

Solana Beach, CA 92075 

Marjorie A. Fleming, President 
Data Ticket, Inc. 

4600 Campus Drive, Ste. 200 
Newport Beach, CA 92660 

16. ASSIGNABILITY.  
This AGREEMENT and any portion thereof shall not be assigned or transferred, nor shall any of the 
CONSULTANT’s duties be delegated or sub-contracted, without the express written consent of the CITY.  

17. RESPONSIBILITY FOR EQUIPMENT.  
CITY shall not be responsible nor held liable for any damage to persons or property consequent upon the 
use, misuse, or failure of any equipment used by CONSULTANT or any of CONSULTANT’s employees or 
subcontractors, even if such equipment has been furnished, rented, or loaned to CONSULTANT by CITY. 
The acceptance or use of any such equipment by CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s employees, or 
subcontractors shall be construed to mean that CONSULTANT accepts full responsibility for and agrees to 
exonerate, indemnify and hold harmless CITY from and against any and all claims for any damage 
whatsoever resulting from the use, misuse, or failure of such equipment. 

18. CALIFORNIA LAW; VENUE.  
This AGREEMENT shall be construed and interpreted according to the laws of the State of California. Any 
action brought to enforce or interpret any portion of this AGREEMENT shall be brought in the county of San 
Diego, California. CONSULTANT hereby waives any and all rights it might have pursuant to California Code 
of Civil Procedure Section 394. 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 10 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

19. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.  
The Consultant shall comply with all laws, ordinances, regulations, and policies of the federal, state, and 
local governments applicable to this AGREEMENT whether now in force or subsequently enacted. This 
includes maintaining a City of Solana Beach Business Certificate. 

20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  
This AGREEMENT sets forth the entire understanding of the PARTIES with respect to the subject matters 
herein. There are no other understandings, terms or other agreements expressed or implied, oral or written, 
except as set forth herein. No change, alteration, or modification of the terms or conditions of this 
AGREEMENT, and no verbal understanding of the PARTIES, their officers, agents, or employees shall be 
valid unless agreed to in writing by both PARTIES.  

21. NO WAIVER.  
No failure of either the City or the Consultant to insist upon the strict performance by the other of any 
covenant, term or condition of this AGREEMENT, nor any failure to exercise any right or remedy consequent 
upon a breach of any covenant, term, or condition of this AGREEMENT shall constitute a waiver of any such 
breach of such covenant, term or condition. 

22. SEVERABILITY.  
The unenforceability, invalidity, or illegality of any provision of this AGREEMENT shall not render any other 
provision unenforceable, invalid, or illegal. 

23. DRAFTING AMBIGUITIES.  
The PARTIES agree that they are aware that they have the right to be advised by counsel with respect to 
the negotiations, terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT, and the decision of whether or not to seek 
advice of counsel with respect to this AGREEMENT is a decision which is the sole responsibility of each 
Party. This AGREEMENT shall not be construed in favor of or against either Party by reason of the extent 
to which each Party participated in the drafting of the AGREEMENT. 

24. CONFLICTS BETWEEN TERMS.  
If an apparent conflict or inconsistency exists between the main body of this AGREEMENT and the Exhibits, 
the main body of this AGREEMENT shall control. If a conflict exists between an applicable federal, state, or 
local law, rule, regulation, order, or code and this AGREEMENT, the law, rule, regulation, order, or code 
shall control. Varying degrees of stringency among the main body of this AGREEMENT, the Exhibits, and 
laws, rules, regulations, orders, or codes are not deemed conflicts, and the most stringent requirement shall 
control. Each Party shall notify the other immediately upon the identification of any apparent conflict or 
inconsistency concerning this AGREEMENT. 

25. EXHIBITS INCORPORATED.  
All Exhibits referenced in this AGREEMENT are incorporated into the AGREEMENT by this reference. 

26. SIGNING AUTHORITY.  
26.1. The representative for each Party signing on behalf of a corporation, partnership, joint venture, 

association, or governmental entity hereby declares that authority has been obtained to sign on 
behalf of the corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, or entity and agrees to hold the 
other Party or PARTIES hereto harmless if it is later determined that such authority does not 
exist. 

26.2. If checked, a proper notary acknowledgement of execution by CONSULTANT must be 
attached. □ 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 11 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

27. WAIVER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES.  

Neither party shall have any claim or right against the other, whether in contract, warranty, tor (including 
negligence), strict liability or otherwise, for any special, indirect, incidental, or consequential damages of any 
king or nature, whatsoever, such as but not limited to loss of revenue, loss of profits on revenue, loss of 
customers or contracts, loss of use of equipment or loss of data, work interruption, increased cost of work or 
cost of any financing, howsoever, caused, even if same were reasonable foreseeable; provide, however, the 
forgoing shall not apply to with respect to indemnity obligation under the AGREEMENT. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES hereto have executed this AGREEMENT the day and year 
first hereinabove written. 

 

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, a municipal 
corporation  

CONSULTANT, a California Corporation  

 

By: 
 

By: 

City Manager, Gregory Wade  Signature 

 
 

Marjorie A. Fleming 
President 

ATTEST: 
 

 

City Clerk. Angela Ivey   

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
 

 

Joseph Lim, Community Development Director 
 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

City Attorney, Johanna N. Canlas 
 

 

 
  



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 12 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

SCOPE OF SERVICES AND FEE 
 



 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@DataTicket.com 

EXHIBIT B – SOLANA BEACH PARKING CITATION FEE SCHEDULE  

04/22/21 

 

Manual & Electronic Parking Citation Processing: $0.65 
Services for the above-mentioned items include: 
 On-site data entry of manually written citations performed within 48 hours of receipt 
 On-site quality assurance verification of manually entered citations 
 Scanning of all manually written citations onto our network for storage and ease of retrieval  
 Bi-monthly shredding of manually written citations  
 Automated citation transmission into Data Ticket’s Citation Management Solution 24/7 
 Automated confirmation email detailing successfully transmitted citations 
 Automated transmission of photos attached to citations 
 
Courtesy Notice: $0.73 (due to postage increases) 
Services for the above-mentioned item include: 
 Semi-custom Courtesy Notice that is printed on an 8 ½ x 11” piece of paper and provided in a 

window envelope sent to the registered owner of a vehicle  
 All notices are attached to the citation online and are viewable via the web 
 All notices sent via 1st Class Mail 
 All notices include a return envelope in which the responsible party may submit payment 
 This cost will increase as the US Postal Service increases the 1st Class postage rate 
 This charge is only incurred if the individual does not pay off the windshield and a notice is 

sent to the individual.  
 
Fee for Each Payment Entered: $.25 per payment 
 
Out-of-State Collections: 30% of revenue collected 
 This fee will cover all expenses associated with obtaining out-of-state registered owner 

information and will be due when a citation is paid 
 Data Ticket is a recognized Strategic Partner with NLETs; should the Agency have an 

assigned ORI, Data Ticket will request usage of the ORI for reference/audit purposes only.  
Data Ticket utilizes its own ORI for transactional purposes  

 This fee is not combined with any other contingency fee. For example, if a citation is rolled to 
a delinquent status, only 30% of revenue collected will be charged 

 If Data Ticket does not collect on a citation that is issued to an out of state plate, the Agency 
does not owe this fee. 

 
Delinquent Collections: 30% of revenue collected 
 This fee will be assessed when a citation is ninety (90) days past the citation issue date, or 

when a second (2nd) notice is sent if sooner than ninety (90) days, assuming a first notice has 
been sent to the registered owner and the citation is not on hold for any reason 

 In addition to the Courtesy Notice, three Delinquent Notices will be sent to the registered 
owner 

 All notices are sent via First Class mail and all notices are printed on an 8 ½ x 11” sheet of 
paper and folded into a window envelope; in addition, a window envelope is provided for the 
recipient to return payment 

 All notices are attached to the citation online and are viewable via the web 
 If Data Ticket does not collect on a citation that is delinquent, the Agency does not owe this 

fee 
 Notices will be sent via 1st Class Mail, and Data Ticket will be responsible for the cost incurred 

DATA 
TICKET inc. 



 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@DataTicket.com 

EXHIBIT B – SOLANA BEACH PARKING CITATION FEE SCHEDULE  

04/22/21 

Franchise Tax Board Processing: 
SSN Look-up $3.00 per SSN 
 This fee will be assessed to lookup a social security number associated with a particular 

registered owner and address 
 This charge is charged per unique SSN, not per citation 
 
FTB Collections: 15% of revenue collected 
 This fee is charged if a citation is paid at the Franchise Tax Board 
 This charge is not combined with any other charge; for example, if a citation is rolled to 

delinquent status and paid at FTB, only the 15% of revenue collected will be charged 
 Data Ticket will send an FTB Notice to the Patron as required by the Interagency Intercept 

Program; this notice will be sent via 1st Class Mail 
 All notices are attached to the citation online and are viewable via the web 
 Data Ticket will pay for the Agency’s cost to participate in the FTB program; annually, FTB will 

send an invoice to the Agency for the number of debts placed at FTB; the Agency will simply 
provide this invoice to Data Ticket and Data Ticket will pay it in full 

 If Data Ticket does not collect on a citation that is at FTB, the Agency does not owe the 
collection fee 

 Data Ticket will send an FTB Notice to the Patron as required by the Interagency Intercept 
Program; this notice will be sent via 1st Class Mail 

 
Adjudication:  
1st Level Review Hold & Scanning of Review Request $0.50 per citation 
 Data Ticket will review all documentation received by the Appellant and determine whether the 

request received within the required timeframe 
 If the request was received within the required timeframe, Data Ticket’s Adjudication 

Department will place the citation on an Administrative Review Request Hold and scan all 
received documentation into the Citation Management Solution so it is displayed on the web 
for the Agency’s Staff 

 If the request is received outside the required timeframe, the Agency will have the option to 
proceed as though the request was received within the timeframe or it may elect to have Data 
Ticket send a “time expired letter” rejecting the appeal  

 
1st Level Review Disposition Letters $1.11 per letter (due to postage increases) 
 Data Ticket will send a custom disposition letter to the Appellant via 1st Class Mail 
 All letters are attached to the citation online and are viewable via the web  
 Disposition letters will be sent Monday - Friday 
 
2nd Level Hearing Hold, Scanning & Scheduling of Hearing  
& 3rd Level Hold $0.50 per citation 
 Data Ticket will review all documentation received by the Appellant and determine whether the 

request received within the required timeframe 
 If the request was received within the required timeframe, Data Ticket’s Adjudication 

Department will place the citation on an Administrative Hearing Request Hold and scan all 
received documentation into the Solution so that it is displayed on the web for the Agency’s 
Staff and the Hearing Officer 

DATA 
TICKET inc. 



 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@DataTicket.com 

EXHIBIT B – SOLANA BEACH PARKING CITATION FEE SCHEDULE  

04/22/21 

 If the request is received outside the required timeframe, the Agency will have the option to 
proceed as though the request was received within the timeframe or it may elect to have Data 
Ticket send a “time expired letter” rejecting the appeal 

 Data Ticket will work with the designated Hearing Officer to schedule the Hearing based on 
either a pre-determined schedule or an ad hoc basis, depending on the Agency’s schedule 

 
2nd Level Hearing Disposition - Optional $70.00 per hour 
 Data Ticket’s independent, certified, insured hearing officers will be provided to the to perform 

in-person, phone and written hearings 
 Each hearing request will be reviewed, heard or read, and all required research will be 

performed  
 The Hearing Officer will enter a judgment into the Citation Processing System for viewing by 

the Agency, Appellant and Data Ticket 
 Hearings will be scheduled  
 The Agency will incur costs associated with mileage as defined by Federal guidelines 
 Data Ticket will work with the Agency to arrange for the use of a conference room at a Agency 

location or the Agency may elect to have citations heard at a centralized location within the 
County 

 Minimum four hours per visit for in-person hearings.  Visits will be scheduled no less than 90 
every 90 days 

 
2nd Level Hearing Schedule & Disposition Letters    $1.11 per letter (due to postage increases) 
 Data Ticket will send a custom disposition letter to the Appellant via 1st Class Mail 
 All letters are attached to the citation online and are viewable via the web  
 Disposition letters will be sent Monday – Friday 

 
Acceptance and Scanning of Indigent Payment Plan Requests: 
(Approval/Denial by Data Ticket)  $5.00 per request 
 

OR 

Accepting and Scanning of Indigent Payment Plan Requests:   
(Approval/Denial by City) - Optional  $2.00 per request 

 
AND 
 

Indigent Payment Plan/Denial Letters:  $0.85 per letter 
 
Additional Correspondence $1.11 per letter (due to postage increases) 
 Printing & Sending daily 
 Electronic attachment to the citation 
 Windowed #10 envelope and return #9 envelope 
 Inclusive of Overpayment Letter 
 
Joint / Escrow Banking Services - Optional $100.00 per month 
Services for the above-mentioned item include: 
 Daily deposits of funds to the Agency’s escrow account 
 Online, real-time reconciliation reports that tie directly to the bank statement 

DATA 
TICKET inc. 



 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@DataTicket.com 

EXHIBIT B – SOLANA BEACH PARKING CITATION FEE SCHEDULE  

04/22/21 

 Processing of all credit card charge-backs and Insufficient Funds  
 Month-end reconciliation of all funds collected  
 Disbursement of County / State Surcharges at month-end 
 Payment of Data Ticket’s invoice 
 Disbursement of the net remittance to the Agency 
 Scanning of all payments directly to joint bank account daily using remote check deposit 
 The Agency will be responsible for the purchase of banking supplies, including checks and 

endorsement stamps; these fees typically run $200.00 per year 
 
Charge-backs and NSF’s – Optional $4.00 per issued instance 
 Data Ticket will process credit card charge-backs and NSFs when notified of each occurrence 
 Once processed, Data Ticket will send a custom letter to the individual detailing the returned 

item and the amount due on the citation 
 
Refunds - Optional $5.00 per issued instance 
 Data Ticket will process refunds when notified of each need 
 In the event the Agency utilizes Joint Banking Data Ticket will verify, generate and send each 

refund due 
 Refunds will be issued weekly  
 Refunds will be sent via 1st Class Mail 
 
Online Access for the Agency’s Patrons: Included 
The Agency’s Patrons will have the ability to perform the following functions online: 

 View real-time citation(s) data 
 Pay for a single or many citation(s) 
 Request a 1st Level Administrative Review and attach up to three documents 

supporting their position 
 Request a 2nd Level Administrative Hearing Request and attach up to three 

documents supporting their position 
 Print a receipt 
 View pictures of the citation taken by the issuing officer (if the Agency allows) 

 
Online Access for the Agency’s Staff: Included 
Access to the Agency’s data is based on unique usernames and passwords assigned to 
each individual who requires access to the system. Data Ticket does not limit the number 
of individuals who have access to the system and the number and types of access can 
change at any point with a simple email request to Data Ticket.  

Our Solution is setup to maintain a complete audit trail for each and every transaction in 
the system so that the username is displayed next to every transaction in the system, 
indicating who performed the transaction and when.  
 
Dependent on the access rights provided to each Agency Staff member, the following 
capabilities are available:  

 View real-time citation(s) data, including pictures taken by the Issuing Officer 

DATA 
TICKET inc. 



 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@DataTicket.com 

EXHIBIT B – SOLANA BEACH PARKING CITATION FEE SCHEDULE  

04/22/21 

 Accept payment via VISA, MasterCard, Discover and American Express credit/debit 
cards 

 Accept payment via Cash, Check or Money Order  
 Process NSFs and Refunds 
 Reduce or increase violation amounts, dismiss citations, void citations and place a 

citation on hold  
 Change citation data, including violations, date, time, plate, location, comments, 

make, model, color, registration expiration date and others 
 Perform Administrative Reviews online by entering the disposition directly online 
 Generate a time expired or letter of non responsibility for a citation in the adjudication 

process 
 View the complete reason for the Review Request and supporting documentation 

provided by the Appellant directly online  
 Edit Appellant information 
 Upload disposition documents sent to the Agency via US Mail 
 Add a note to a citation and see all comments added to the citation 
 View the reason for the 2nd Level Administrative Hearing Request online and view the 

supporting documentation provided by the Appellant, directly online 
 Print a receipt with or without registered owner information 

 
Reporting: Included 
 Data Ticket offers many reports online as well as a Customized reporting application 

for our Clients to generate, print and re-print 24/7. We provide real-time reports that 
can be generated for any timeframe required and we provide pre-processed/month-
end reports that reflect the month-end view of data.  

 All reports are available online and because we do not purge data unless specifically 
requested to do so by a Client, the data is available as long as the Agency is a Client.  

 All reports are generated in HTML so our Clients can copy and paste the data into 
Excel for data manipulation purposes.  

 If the Agency were to request a report that was not already available, Data Ticket 
would work with the Agency to design the report and provide it to the Agency at no 
cost. 

Manual Payment Processing: Included 
 Manually received payments (checks, cash, money orders and credit card payments 

sent via US Mail) are received at our PO Box in Newport Beach where a bonded and 
insured courier picks up the mail daily and delivers it to our Newport Beach office 

 On-site Mail Department opens, sorts and batches the payments before providing 
them to our on-site Data Entry Department 

 After double-blind entry of each payment, the citations are updated by our Quality 
Assurance team 

 Payments are then provided to our Accounting Department where daily deposit slips 
are completed and provided to a bonded, insured courier who takes them to the bank 

 
Registered Owner Information: Included 
 Registered owner information for all citations issued on California license plates 

DATA 
TICKET inc. 



 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@DataTicket.com 

EXHIBIT B – SOLANA BEACH PARKING CITATION FEE SCHEDULE  

04/22/21 

 Turnaround time for acquisition of California registered owner information is same day 
 Registered owner information for all citations issued on out of state license plates 
 Data Ticket is a recognized Strategic Partner with NLETs and has access to 

registered owner information nationwide through the NLETs service 
 Access to this system requires the use of the County’s ORI for tracking purposes only; 

Data Ticket will utilize its own ORI for actually acquiring the out of state data 
 Turnaround time for acquisition of out of state registered owner information using 

NLETs is same day 
 
CA DMV Holds and Releases: Included 
 California DMV Holds and Release performed daily via an online connection 
 Holds and releases can also be performed real-time, upon request 
 Citation amounts placed on hold are updated daily in the event a partial payment is 

made 

 
Customer Service: Included 
 Data Ticket provides a live, bi-lingual, on-site Customer Service Department that is 

fully trained to answer questions related to citation issuance, payment, adjudication, 
fix-it tickets, sign-offs, FTB, advanced credit reporting collections and more 

 All calls are recorded to quality assurance and recordings can be sent to the Agency 
at any time for review.   

 Data Ticket’s IVR is bi-lingual and accessible via several toll-free numbers; the IVR 
provides real-time information to the caller regarding current status, including the 
amount due 

 The IVR accepts VISA, MasterCard, Discover, and American Express 
 
Web Presence: Included 
 Data Ticket’s Solution is 100% web-based and Section 508 Compliant and is provided 

at:  www.CitationProcessingCenter.com; this is a generic website in the sense that it is 
not Agency branded. This website allows for the Agency and the Agency’s Patrons to 
access citations online 

 If the Agency prefers to have an Agency branded website, one in which the look and 
feel mimics that of the Agency’s website, Data Ticket can and will provide this feature 
to the Agency. 

 
Conversion: Included 
 Data Ticket will convert the citations currently with the Agency’s existing vendor at no 

cost to the Agency 
 Citations that have not had a payment and do not have a registered owner will 

immediately be sent to the appropriate DMV so as to obtain a registered owner 

DATA 
TICKET inc. 



 

2603 Main Street, Suite 300 
Irvine, CA 92614 

949 428-7241 - Phone 
ClientServices@DataTicket.com 

PROPOSAL FOR THE CITY OF SOLANA BEACH 

04/22/21 

Credit / Debit Card Processing $3.50 per transaction 
 Data Ticket is PCI Compliant and provides for the ability to pay via Visa, MasterCard, 

Discover, and American Express on our website, www.CitationProcessingCenter.com, 
via our toll-free, bi-lingual Customer Service Representatives, and via our toll-free, bi-
lingual IVR Solution 

 There is no charge to the Agency for credit / debit card processing; however, the 
Patron is charged $3.50 per transaction; this means the Patron can pay for a single or 
many citations at once and incur a single $3.50 fee 

 
Payment Plan Processing $15.00 per transaction 
 An administrative fee will be assessed to Patrons who wish to participate in a 

payment plan 
 This fee will cover the cost of the payment plan initiation, and the cost of a 

confirmation letter that is sent to the Patron confirming the details of the payment plan 
 The Agency will have the ability to determine whether Payment Plans are accepted 

and, if so, what the parameters for payment will be 
 
Credit Card Chargeback Processing $30.00 per transaction 
 If a chargeback occurs, a fee will be charged to the Patron for the processing of the 

chargeback 
 No fee will be charged to the Agency 

 
Cost Increases: 

Postal Rate Increase Offset – If postal rates increase during the term of the agreement, 
fees to DTI shall be raised immediately to offset the effect of the actual postal rate 
increase. 

 
CPI Increases – There will be NO CPI increases for the duration of the agreement. 
 
 
 

DATA 
TICKET inc. 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 1 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

City of Solana Beach 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

FOR SPECIALTY PLANNING SERVICES 

 THIS Professional Services Agreement (“AGREEMENT”) is made and entered into this 1st day of 

July, 2021 by and between the CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, a municipal corporation (“CITY”), and, Summit 

Environmental Group, a California Corporation, (“CONSULTANT”) (collectively “PARTIES”). 

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to employ a CONSULTANT to furnish specialty planning services 

(“PROFESSIONAL SERVICES”) for sand replenishment, coastal program management, sand 

compatibility and opportunistic use program, and local coastal program implementation (“PROJECT”); 

and 

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that CONSULTANT is qualified by experience and ability 

to perform the services desired by CITY, and CONSULTANT is willing to perform such services; and 

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT will conduct all the work as described and detailed in this 

AGREEMENT to be provided to the CITY. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the PARTIES hereto mutually covenant and agree with each other as 

follows: 

1. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES. 

1.1. Scope of Services. The CONSULTANT shall perform the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES as set 
forth in the written Scope of Services, attached as Exhibit “A” Scope of Services and Fee, at the 
direction of the CITY. CITY shall provide CONSULTANT access to appropriate staff and 
resources for the coordination and completion of the projects under this AGREEMENT.  

1.2. Project Coordinator. The Community Development Director is hereby designated as the 
Project Coordinator for CITY and will monitor the progress and execution of this AGREEMENT. 
CONSULTANT shall assign a single Project Director to provide supervision and have overall 

responsibility for the progress and execution of this AGREEMENT for CONSULTANT. Leslea 
Meyerhoff is hereby designated as the Project Director for CONSULTANT. 

1.3. City Modification of Scope of Services. CITY may order changes to the Scope of Services 
within the general scope of this AGREEMENT consisting of additions, deletions, or other 
revisions. If such changes cause a change in the CONSULTANT’s cost of, or time required for, 
completion of the Scope of Services, an equitable adjustment to CONSULTANT’s compensation 
and/or contract time shall be made, subject to the CITY’S approval. All such changes to the 
scope, schedule, or compensation shall be authorized in writing, executed by CONSULTANT 
and CITY. 

2. DURATION OF AGREEMENT. 

2.1. Term. The term of this AGREEMENT shall be for a period of one (1) year beginning from the 
date of execution of the AGREEMENT. Time is of the essence in the performance of work under 
this AGREEMENT, unless otherwise specified. 

2.2. Extensions.  If marked, the CITY shall have the option to extend the AGREEMENT for four 

(4) additional one (1) year period(s) or parts thereof for an amount not to exceed $132,480 
per AGREEMENT year. Extensions shall be in the sole discretion of the City Manager and shall 
be based upon CONSULTANT’s satisfactory past performance, CITY needs, and appropriation 
of funds by the City Council. The CITY shall give written notice to CONSULTANT prior to 
exercising the option.  

~ 

mbavin
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 3



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 2 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

2.3. Delay. Any delay occasioned by causes beyond the control of CONSULTANT may merit an 
extension of time for the completion of the Scope of Services. When such delay occurs, 
CONSULTANT shall immediately notify the Project Coordinator in writing of the cause and the 
extent of the delay, whereupon the Project Coordinator shall ascertain the facts and the extent 
of the delay and grant an extension of time for the completion of the PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES when justified by the circumstances. 

2.4. City’s Right to Terminate for Default. Should CONSULTANT be in material default of any 
covenant or condition hereof, CITY may immediately terminate this AGREEMENT for cause if 
CONSULTANT fails to cure the default within ten (10) calendar days of receiving written notice 
of the default. 

2.5. City’s Right to Terminate without Cause. Without limiting its rights in the event of 
CONSULTANT’s default, CITY may terminate this AGREEMENT, without cause, by giving 
written notice to CONSULTANT. Such termination shall be effective upon receipt of the written 
notice. CONSULTANT shall be compensated for all effort and material expended on behalf of 
CITY under the terms of this AGREEMENT, up to and including the effective date of termination. 
All personal property remaining in CITY facilities or on CITY property thirty (30) days after the 
expiration or termination of this AGREEMENT shall be, at CITY’s election, considered the 
property of CITY. 

2.6. Consultant may terminate this AGREEMENT, without cause by giving thirty (30) days’ notice to 
CITY.  Consultant may, at its election, terminate or suspend performance under this 
AGREEMENT should CITY be in default of any covenant or condition hereof if CITY fails to cure 
the default within ten (10) calendar days of receiving written notice of default.  The time to perform 
services under this AGREEMENT shall be extended for any period of suspension. 

3. COMPENSATION. 

3.1. Total Amount. The total cost for all work described in the Scope of Services and Fee (Exhibit 
“A”) shall not exceed one hundred thirty-two thousand four hundred eighty dollars ($132,480) 
without prior written authorization from CITY. CONSULTANT shall bill the CITY for work 
provided and shall present a written request for such payment monthly.  

3.2. Additional Services. CITY may, as the need arises or in the event of an emergency, request 
additional services of CONSULTANT. Should such additional services be required, CITY and 
CONSULTANT shall agree to the cost prior to commencement of these services in writing, 
executed by CONSULTANT and CITY. 

3.3. Costs. Any costs billed to the CITY shall be in accordance with any terms negotiated and 
incorporated herein as part of Exhibit “A” Scope of Services and Fee.  

4. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  

4.1. CONSULTANT is, for all purposes arising out of this AGREEMENT, an independent contractor. 
The CONSULTANT has and shall retain the right to exercise full control and supervision of all 
persons assisting the CONSULTANT in the performance of said services hereunder, the CITY 
only being concerned with the finished results of the work being performed. Neither 
CONSULTANT nor CONSULTANT’s employees shall in any event be entitled to any benefits to 
which CITY employees are entitled, including, but not limited to, overtime, retirement benefits, 
workers’ compensation benefits, injury leave or other leave benefits. CONSULTANT is solely 
responsible for all such matters, as well as compliance with social security and income tax 
withholding and all other regulations and laws governing such matters. 

4.2  PERS Eligibility Indemnification.  In the event that CONSULTANT’s employee providing services 
under this Agreement claims or is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction or the California 
Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) to be eligible for enrollment in PERS of the CITY, 
Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless CITY for the payment of any employer 
and employee contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of the employee as well as for payment 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 3 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

of any penalties and interest on such contributions which would otherwise be the responsibility 
of the CITY.  Notwithstanding any other agency, state or federal policy, rule, regulation, law or 
ordinance to the contrary, CONSULTANT’s employees providing service under this Agreement 
shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any claims to, any 
compensation and benefit including but not limited to eligibility to enroll in PERS as an employee 
of CITY and entitlement to any contributions to be paid by CITY for employer contributions and/or 
employee contributions for PERS benefits.  This is a continuing obligation that survives the 
termination of this contract. 

5. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE.  

While performing the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, CONSULTANT shall exercise the reasonable 
professional care and skill customarily exercised by reputable members of CONSULTANT’s profession 
practicing in the metropolitan Southern California Area, and will use reasonable diligence and best judgment 
while exercising its professional skill and expertise. 

6. WARRANTY OF CONSULTANT’S LICENSE.  

CONSULTANT warrants that CONSULTANT is properly licensed with the applicable government 
agency(ies) for any PROFESSIONAL SERVICES that require a license. If the CONSULTANT lacks such 
license, this AGREEMENT is void and of no effect. 

7. AUDIT OF RECORDS.  

7.1. At any time during normal business hours and as often as may be deemed reasonably necessary 
the CONSULTANT shall make available to a representative of CITY for examination all of its 
records with respect to all matters covered by this AGREEMENT and shall permit CITY to audit, 
examine and/or reproduce such records. CONSULTANT shall retain such financial and program 
service records for at least four (4) years after termination or final payment under this 
AGREEMENT. 

7.2. The CONSULTANT shall include the CITY's right under this section in any and all of their 
subcontracts, and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all subcontractors. 

8. CONFIDENTIALITY AND SECURITY.  

8.1. Confidential Work Product. All professional services performed by CONSULTANT, including 
but not limited to all drafts, data, correspondence, proposals, reports, research and estimates 
compiled or composed by CONSULTANT, pursuant to this AGREEMENT, are for the sole use 
of the CITY, its agents and employees. Neither the documents nor their contents shall be 
released to any third party without the prior written consent of the CITY. This provision does not 
apply to information that (a) was publicly known, or otherwise known to CONSULTANT, at the 
time that it was disclosed to CONSULTANT by the CITY, (b) subsequently becomes publicly 
known through no act or omission of CONSULTANT, (c) otherwise becomes known to 
CONSULTANT other than through disclosure by the CITY, or (d) is required to be disclosed by 
court order or other legal demand requiring disclosure, in which case, CONSULTANT shall notify 
CITY in writing as soon as possible and before responding to such court order or legal demand. 
Except for any subcontractors that may be allowed upon prior agreement, neither the documents 
nor their contents shall be released to any third party without the prior written consent of the 
CITY. The sole purpose of this section is to prevent disclosure of CITY’s confidential and 
proprietary information by CONSULTANT or subcontractors. 

8.2. Confidentiality. Both parties recognize that their respective employees and agents, in the 
course of performance of this AGREEMENT, may be exposed to confidential information and 
that disclosure of such information could violate the rights of private individuals and entities, 
including the parties and third parties.  Confidential information is nonpublic information that a 
reasonable person would believe to be confidential and includes, without limitation, personal 
identifying information (e.g., social security numbers) and trade secrets, each as defined by 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 4 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

applicable state law, and all other information protected by applicable law (“Confidential 
Information”). The party receiving Confidential Information (“Receiving Party”) of the other 
(“Disclosing Party”) shall not, and shall cause its employees and agents who are authorized to 
receive Confidential Information, not to, use Confidential Information for any purpose except as 
necessary to implement, perform or enforce this AGREEMENT or comply with its legal 
obligations.  Receiving Party will use the same reasonable efforts to protect the Confidential 
Information of Disclosing Party as it uses to protect its own proprietary information and data.  The 
Receiving Party will not disclose or release Confidential Information to any third person without 
the prior written consent of the Disclosing Party, except for where required by law or for 
authorized employees or agents of the Receiving Party.  Prior to disclosing the Confidential 
Information to its authorized employees or agents, Receiving Party shall inform them of the 
confidential nature of the Confidential Information and require them to abide by the terms of this 
AGREEMENT. Receiving Party will promptly notify Disclosing Party if Receiving Party discovers 
any improper use or disclosure of Confidential Information and will promptly commence all 
reasonable efforts to investigate and correct the causes of such improper use or disclosure.  If 
Receiving Party believes the Confidential Information must be disclosed under applicable law, 
Receiving Party may do so provided that, to the extent permitted by law, the other party is given 
a reasonable notice and opportunity to contest such disclosure or obtain a protective order.  
Confidential Information does not include information that: (i)  is or becomes known to the public 
without fault or breach of the Receiving Party; (ii) the Disclosing Party regularly discloses to third 
parties without restriction on disclosure; or (iii) the Receiving Party obtains from a third party 
without restriction on disclosure and without breach of a non-disclosure obligation.  Confidential 
Information does not include any information that is required to be provided to the public pursuant 
to the laws of the United States and/or California such as the California Public Records Act, due 
to the nature of CITY being a local governmental agency.  The non-disclosure and non-use 
obligations of this AGREEMENT will remain in full force with respect to each item of Confidential 
Information for a period of ten (10) years after the Receiving Party’s receipt of that item. 

8.3. Security.   

8.3.1. Implementation. CONSULTANT shall implement commercially reasonable 
administrative, technical and physical safeguards designed to: (i) ensure the security 
and confidentiality of data and information provided by the CITY or used in 
connection with providing services under this AGREEMENT, including data or 
information about third parties (“CITY’S Data”); (ii) protect against any anticipated 
threats or hazards to the security or integrity of CITY’S Data; and (iii) protect against 
unauthorized access to or use of CITY’S Data.  CONSULTANT shall review and test 
such safeguards on no less than an annual basis. 

8.3.2. Network. If CONSULTANT makes CITY’S Data accessible through the Internet or 
other networked environment, CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for all 
aspects of Internet use, and shall maintain, in connection with the operation or use 
of CITY’S Data, adequate technical and procedural access controls and system 
security requirements and devices, necessary for data privacy, confidentiality, 
integrity, authorization, authentication and non-repudiation and virus detection and 
eradication. 

8.3.3. Personal Data.  If CONSULTANT processes or otherwise has access to any 
personal data or personal information on CITY’s behalf when performing 
CONSULTANT’s services and obligations under this AGREEMENT, then: (i) CITY 
shall be the data controller (where “data controller” means an entity which alone or 
jointly with others determines purposes for which and the manner in which any 
personal data are, or are to be, processed) and CONSULTANT shall be a data 
processor (where “data processor” means an entity which processes the data only 
on behalf of the data controller and not for any purposes of its own); (ii) CITY shall 
ensure that it has obtained all necessary consents and it is entitled to transfer the 
relevant personal data or personal information to CONSULTANT so that 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 5 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

CONSULTANT may lawfully use, process and transfer the personal data and 
personal information in accordance with this AGREEMENT on CITY’s behalf in order 
for CONSULTANT to provide the services and perform its other obligations under 
this AGREEMENT; (iii) CONSULTANT shall process the personal data and personal 
information only in accordance with any lawful and reasonable instructions given by 
CITY from time to time and in accordance with the terms of this AGREEMENT; and 
(iv) each party shall take appropriate technical and organizational measures against 
unauthorized or unlawful processing of the personal data and personal information 
or its accidental loss, destruction or damage so that, having regard to the state of 
technological development and the cost of implementing any measures, the 
measures taken ensure a level of security appropriate to the harm that might result 
from such unauthorized or unlawful processing or accidental loss, destruction or 
damage in relation to the personal data and personal information and the nature of 
the personal data and personal information being protected.  If necessary, the parties 
will cooperate to document these measures taken. 

8.3.4. Information Security. CONSULTANT represents and warrants that its collection, 
access, use, storage, disposal and disclosure of Confidential Information accessed 
and/or collected from CITY does and will comply with all applicable federal and state 
privacy and data protection laws. In the event of any security breach, CONSULTANT 
shall: (a) Provide CITY with the name and contact information for an employee who 
shall serve as CITY’s primary security contact and shall be available to assist CITY 
twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week as a contact in resolving 
obligations associated with a security breach; and (b) Notify CITY of a security breach 
as soon as practicable, but no later than twenty-four (24) hours after CONSULTANT 
becomes aware of it. Immediately following CONSULTANT’s notification to CITY of 
a security breach, the parties shall coordinate with each other to investigate the 
security breach.  CONSULTANT agrees to fully cooperate with CITY in CITY’s 
handling of the matter. CONSULTANT shall use best efforts to immediately remedy 
any security breach and prevent any further security breach at CONSULTANT’s own 
expense in accordance with applicable privacy rights, laws, regulations and 
standards.  CONSULTANT agrees to provide, at its expense, up to one year of credit 
monitoring services to third parties impacted by any data breach involving the loss of 
personally identifiable information.  

8.4. Indemnity.  CONSULTANT shall defend (with counsel acceptable to CITY), indemnify and hold 
CITY harmless from and against all claims, actions, proceedings, losses, costs (including 
attorney fees and other charges), liabilities, damages, judgments, settlements, and court 
awarded attorney’s fees resulting from, arising out of or related to a security or data breach 
unless the breach is proven to be caused solely by CITY.  The terms of this section shall survive 
termination of this AGREEMENT. For purposes of this provision, “security breach” means any 
act or omission that compromises either the security, confidentiality, or integrity of Confidential 
Information or the physical, technical, administrative or organizational safeguards put in place by 
CONSULTANT or any authorized persons that relate to the protection of the security, 
confidentiality or integrity of Confidential Information or a breach or alleged breach of this 
AGREEMENT relating to such privacy practices or privacy obligations imposed by any applicable 
law. 

8.5. Notice and Remedy of Breaches.  Each party shall promptly give notice to the other of any 
actual or suspected breach by it of any of the provisions of Section 8 of this AGREEMENT, 
whether or not intentional, and the breaching party shall, at its expense, take all steps reasonably 
requested by the other party to prevent or remedy the breach. 

8.6. Enforcement.  Each party acknowledges that any breach of any of the provisions of Section 8 
of this AGREEMENT may result in irreparable injury to the other for which money damages would 
not adequately compensate.  If there is a breach, then the injured party shall be entitled, in 
addition to all other rights and remedies which it may have, to have a decree of specific 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 6 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

performance or an injunction issued by any competent court, requiring the breach to be cured or 
enjoining all persons involved from continuing the breach. 

9. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.  

9.1. CONSULTANT shall at all times comply with all federal, state and local conflict of interest laws, 
regulations, and policies applicable to public contracts and procurement practices, including but 
not limited to California Government Code Section 81000 et seq. (Political Reform Act) and 
Section 1090 et seq. CONSULTANT shall immediately disqualify itself and shall not use its official 
position to influence in any way any matter coming before the CITY in which the CONSULTANT 
has a financial interest as defined in Government Code Section 87103. CONSULTANT 
represents that it has no knowledge of any financial interests which would require it to disqualify 
itself from any matter on which it might perform services for the CITY. 

9.2. If, in performing the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES set forth in this AGREEMENT, the 
CONSULTANT makes, or participates in, a “governmental decision” as described in Title 2, 
Section 18700.3(a) of the California Code of Regulations, or performs the same or substantially 
all the same duties for the CITY that would otherwise be performed by a CITY employee holding 
a position specified in the department's conflict of interest code, the CONSULTANT shall be 
subject to a conflict of interest code requiring the completion of one or more statements of 
economic interests disclosing the CONSULTANT’s relevant financial interests. 

9.3.  If checked, the CONSULTANT shall comply with all of the reporting requirements of the 
Political Reform Act. Specifically, the CONSULTANT shall file a Fair Political Practices 
Commission Form 700 (Assuming Office Statement) within thirty (30) calendar days of the CITY’s 
determination that the CONSULTANT is subject to a conflict of interest code. The CONSULTANT 
shall also file a Form 700 (Annual Statement) on or before April 1 of each year of the 
AGREEMENT, disclosing any financial interests held during the previous calendar year for which 
the CONSULTANT was subject to a conflict of interest code. 

9.4. CITY represents that pursuant to California Government Code Section 1090 et seq., none of its 
elected officials, officers, or employees has an interest in this AGREEMENT. 

10. DISPOSITION AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.  

10.1. All documents, data, studies, drawings, maps, models, photographs and reports prepared by 
CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT, whether paper or electronic, shall become the property 
of CITY for use with respect to this PROJECT, and shall be turned over to the CITY upon 
completion of the PROJECT or any phase thereof, as contemplated by this AGREEMENT.  

10.2. Contemporaneously with the transfer of documents, the CONSULTANT hereby assigns to the 
CITY and CONSULTANT thereby expressly waives and disclaims, any copyright in, and the right 
to reproduce, all written material, drawings, plans, specifications or other work prepared under 
this AGREEMENT, except upon the CITY’s prior authorization regarding reproduction, which 
authorization shall not be unreasonably withheld. The CONSULTANT shall, upon request of the 
CITY, execute any further document(s) necessary to further effectuate this waiver and 
disclaimer. 

10.3. Other than as stated in sections 10.1 and 10.2 above, each party acknowledges and agrees that 
each party is the sole and exclusive owner of all right, title and interest in and to its other services, 
products, software, source and object code, specifications, designs, techniques, concepts, 
improvements, discoveries, and inventions, including all intellectual property rights thereto, 
including without limitation and modifications, improvements or derivative works thereof, created 
prior to, or independently, during the term of this Agreement.  This Agreement does not affect 
the ownership of each party’s pre-existing, intellectual property.  Each party further 
acknowledges that it acquires no rights under this Agreement to the other party’s pre-existing 
intellectual property, other than any limited right explicitly ranted in this Agreement under section 
10.1 and 10.2. 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 7 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

11. INSURANCE 

11.1. CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain for the duration of the AGREEMENT insurance 
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in 
connection with the performance of the work hereunder and the results of that work by the 
CONSULTANT, their agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. Insurance shall be 
placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than “A” and “VII” unless 
otherwise approved in writing by the CITY’s Risk Manager. 

11.2. CONSULTANT’s liabilities, including but not limited to CONSULTANT’s indemnity obligations, 
under this AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed limited in any way to the insurance coverage 
required herein. All policies of insurance required hereunder must provide that the CITY is 
entitled to thirty (30) days prior written notice of cancellation or non-renewal of the policy or 
policies, or ten (10) days prior written notice for cancellation due to non-payment of premium. 
Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a material element of this AGREEMENT. 

11.3. Types and Amounts Required. CONSULTANT shall maintain, at minimum, the following 
insurance coverage for the duration of this AGREEMENT: 

11.3.1. Commercial General Liability (CGL). If checked the CONSULTANT shall 
maintain CGL Insurance written on an ISO Occurrence form or equivalent providing 
coverage at least as broad which shall cover liability arising from any and all personal 
injury or property damage in the amount of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence and subject 
to an annual aggregate of $2,000,000.00. There shall be no endorsement or 
modification of the CGL limiting the scope of coverage for either insured vs. insured 
claims or contractual liability. All defense costs shall be outside the limits of the policy. 

11.3.2. Commercial Automobile Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall maintain 
Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance for all of the CONSULTANT's 
automobiles including owned, hired and non-owned automobiles, automobile 
insurance written on an ISO form CA 00 01 12 90 or a later version of this form or an 
equivalent form providing coverage at least as broad for bodily injury and property 
damage for a combined single limit of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence. Insurance 
certificate shall reflect coverage for any automobile (any auto). 

11.3.3. Workers' Compensation. If checked the CONSULTANT shall maintain Worker’s 
Compensation insurance for all of the CONSULTANT's employees who are subject 
to this AGREEMENT and to the extent required by applicable state or federal law, a 
Workers' Compensation policy providing at minimum $1,000,000.00 employers' 
liability coverage. The CONSULTANT shall provide an endorsement that the insurer 
waives the right of subrogation against the CITY and its respective elected officials, 
officers, employees, agents and representatives. 

11.3.4. Professional Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall also maintain 
Professional Liability (errors and omissions) coverage with a limit of $1,000,000 per 
claim and $2,000,000 annual aggregate. The CONSULTANT shall ensure both that 
(1) the policy retroactive date is on or before the date of commencement of the Scope 
of Services; and (2) the policy will be maintained in force for a period of three years 
after substantial completion of the Scope of Services or termination of this 
AGREEMENT whichever occurs last. The CONSULTANT agrees that for the time 
period defined above, there will be no changes or endorsements to the policy that 
increase the CITY's exposure to loss. All defense costs shall be outside the limits of 
the policy. 

11.3.5. Cyber Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall also maintain Cyber Liability  
coverage on an occurrence basis with a limit of $2,000,000 per occurrence or claim 
and $2,000,000 annual aggregate.  Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond 
to the duties and obligations as are undertaken by CONSULTANT in this 
AGREEMENT and shall include claims involving infringement of intellectual property, 

□ 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 8 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

infringement of copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy violations, 
information theft, damage to or destruction of electronic information, release of 
private information, alteration of electronic information, extortion and network 
security. The policy shall provide coverage for breach response costs as well as 
regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses with limits 
sufficient to respond to such obligations.  All defense costs shall be outside the limits 
of the policy. 

11.4. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions are the 
responsibility of the CONSULTANT and must be declared to and approved by the CITY. At the 
option of the CITY, either (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured 
retentions as respects the CITY, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers, or (2) the 
CONSULTANT shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the CITY guaranteeing 
payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses. 

11.5. Additional Required Provisions. The commercial general liability and automobile liability 
policies shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

11.5.1. The CITY, its officers, officials, employees, and representatives shall be named as 
additional insureds. The CITY's additional insured status must be reflected on 
additional insured endorsement form (20 10 1185 or 20 10 1001 and 20 37 1001) 
which shall be submitted to the CITY.  

11.5.2. The policies are primary and non-contributory to any insurance that may be carried 
by the CITY, as reflected in an endorsement which shall be submitted to the CITY. 

11.6. Verification of Coverage. CONSULTANT shall furnish the CITY with original certificates and 
amendatory endorsements effecting coverage required by this Section 11. The endorsement 
should be on forms provided by the CITY or on other than the CITY’s forms provided those 
endorsements conform to CITY requirements. All certificates and endorsements are to be 
received and approved by the CITY before work commences. The CITY reserves the right to 
require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements 
affecting the coverage required by these specifications at any time. 

12. INDEMNIFICATION.  

CONSULTANT agrees to indemnify, defend (with counsel acceptable to CITY), and hold harmless the CITY, 
and its officers, officials, agents and employees from any and all claims, demands, costs or liabilities that 
arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONSULTANT, 
its employees, agents, and subcontractors in the performance of or failure to perform services or obligations 
under this AGREEMENT. CONSULTANT’s duty to indemnify under this section shall not include liability for 
damages for death or bodily injury to persons, injury to property, or other loss, damage or expense arising 
from the sole negligence or willful misconduct by the CITY or its elected officials, officers, agents, and 
employees. CONSULTANT's indemnification obligations shall not be limited by the insurance provisions of 
this AGREEMENT. The PARTIES expressly agree that any payment, attorney's fees, costs or expense CITY 
incurs or makes to or on behalf of an injured employee under the CITY's self-administered workers' 
compensation is included as a loss, expense, or cost for the purposes of this section, and that this section 
will survive the expiration or early termination of this AGREEMENT. 

13. SUBCONTRACTORS.  

13.1. The CONSULTANT’s hiring or retaining of third parties (i.e. subcontractors) to perform services 
related to the PROJECT is subject to prior approval by the CITY.  

13.2. All contracts entered into between the CONSULTANT and its subcontractor shall also provide 
that each subcontractor shall obtain insurance policies which shall be kept in full force and effect 
during any and all work on this PROJECT and for the duration of this AGREEMENT. The 
CONSULTANT shall require the subcontractor to obtain, all policies described in Section 11 in 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 9 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

the amounts required by the CITY, which shall not be greater than the amounts required of the 
CONSULTANT.  

13.3. In any dispute between the CONSULTANT and its subcontractor, the CITY shall not be made a 
party to any judicial or administrative proceeding to resolve the dispute. The CONSULTANT 
agrees to defend and indemnify the CITY as described in Section 12 of this AGREEMENT should 
the CITY be made a party to any judicial or administrative proceeding to resolve any such 
dispute. 

14. NON-DISCRIMINATION.  

CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, 
race, color, age, religion, ancestry, national origin, military or veteran status, disability, medical condition, 
genetic information, gender expression, marital status, or sexual orientation. CONSULTANT shall take 
affirmative action to insure that applicants are employed and that employees are treated during employment 
without regard to their sex, race, color, age, religion, ancestry, national origin, military or veteran status, 
disability, medical condition, genetic information, gender expression, marital status, or sexual orientation and 
shall make reasonable accommodation to qualified individuals with disabilities or medical conditions. Such 
action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, 
recruitment, or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, 
and selection for training, including apprenticeship. CONSULTANT agrees to post in conspicuous places 
available to employees and applicants for employment any notices provided by CITY setting forth the 
provisions of this non-discrimination clause. 

15. NOTICES.  

All communications to either party by the other party shall be delivered to the persons listed below. Any such 
written communications by mail shall be conclusively deemed to have been received by the addressee five 
(5) calendar days after the deposit thereof in the United States mail, postage prepaid and properly addressed 
as noted below. 

Joseph Lim, Community Development Director 

City of Solana Beach 

635 S. Highway 101 

Solana Beach, CA 92075 

Leslea Meyerhoff 

Summit Environmental Group, Inc. 

2810 Cazadero Drive 

Carlsbad, CA 92009 

16. ASSIGNABILITY.  

This AGREEMENT and any portion thereof shall not be assigned or transferred, nor shall any of the 
CONSULTANT’s duties be delegated or sub-contracted, without the express written consent of the CITY.  

17. RESPONSIBILITY FOR EQUIPMENT.  

CITY shall not be responsible nor held liable for any damage to persons or property consequent upon the 
use, misuse, or failure of any equipment used by CONSULTANT or any of CONSULTANT’s employees or 
subcontractors, even if such equipment has been furnished, rented, or loaned to CONSULTANT by CITY. 
The acceptance or use of any such equipment by CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s employees, or 
subcontractors shall be construed to mean that CONSULTANT accepts full responsibility for and agrees to 
exonerate, indemnify and hold harmless CITY from and against any and all claims for any damage 
whatsoever resulting from the use, misuse, or failure of such equipment. 

18. CALIFORNIA LAW; VENUE.  

This AGREEMENT shall be construed and interpreted according to the laws of the State of California. Any 
action brought to enforce or interpret any portion of this AGREEMENT shall be brought in the county of San 
Diego, California. CONSULTANT hereby waives any and all rights it might have pursuant to California Code 
of Civil Procedure Section 394. 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 10 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

19. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.  

The Consultant shall comply with all laws, ordinances, regulations, and policies of the federal, state, and 
local governments applicable to this AGREEMENT whether now in force or subsequently enacted. This 
includes maintaining a City of Solana Beach Business Certificate. 

20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  

This AGREEMENT sets forth the entire understanding of the PARTIES with respect to the subject matters 
herein. There are no other understandings, terms or other agreements expressed or implied, oral or written, 
except as set forth herein. No change, alteration, or modification of the terms or conditions of this 
AGREEMENT, and no verbal understanding of the PARTIES, their officers, agents, or employees shall be 
valid unless agreed to in writing by both PARTIES.  

21. NO WAIVER.  

No failure of either the City or the Consultant to insist upon the strict performance by the other of any 
covenant, term or condition of this AGREEMENT, nor any failure to exercise any right or remedy consequent 
upon a breach of any covenant, term, or condition of this AGREEMENT shall constitute a waiver of any such 
breach of such covenant, term or condition. 

22. SEVERABILITY.  

The unenforceability, invalidity, or illegality of any provision of this AGREEMENT shall not render any other 
provision unenforceable, invalid, or illegal. 

23. DRAFTING AMBIGUITIES.  

The PARTIES agree that they are aware that they have the right to be advised by counsel with respect to 
the negotiations, terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT, and the decision of whether or not to seek 
advice of counsel with respect to this AGREEMENT is a decision which is the sole responsibility of each 
Party. This AGREEMENT shall not be construed in favor of or against either Party by reason of the extent 
to which each Party participated in the drafting of the AGREEMENT. 

24. CONFLICTS BETWEEN TERMS.  

If an apparent conflict or inconsistency exists between the main body of this AGREEMENT and the Exhibits, 
the main body of this AGREEMENT shall control. If a conflict exists between an applicable federal, state, or 
local law, rule, regulation, order, or code and this AGREEMENT, the law, rule, regulation, order, or code 
shall control. Varying degrees of stringency among the main body of this AGREEMENT, the Exhibits, and 
laws, rules, regulations, orders, or codes are not deemed conflicts, and the most stringent requirement shall 
control. Each Party shall notify the other immediately upon the identification of any apparent conflict or 
inconsistency concerning this AGREEMENT. 

25. EXHIBITS INCORPORATED.  

All Exhibits referenced in this AGREEMENT are incorporated into the AGREEMENT by this reference. 

26. SIGNING AUTHORITY.  

26.1. The representative for each Party signing on behalf of a corporation, partnership, joint venture, 
association, or governmental entity hereby declares that authority has been obtained to sign on 
behalf of the corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, or entity and agrees to hold the 
other Party or PARTIES hereto harmless if it is later determined that such authority does not 
exist. 

26.2. If checked, a proper notary acknowledgement of execution by CONSULTANT must be 
attached. 
□ 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 11 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

27. WAIVER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES.  

Neither party shall have any claim or right against the other, whether in contract, warranty, tor (including 

negligence), strict liability or otherwise, for any special, indirect, incidental, or consequential damages of any 

king or nature, whatsoever, such as but not limited to loss of revenue, loss of profits on revenue, loss of 

customers or contracts, loss of use of equipment or loss of data, work interruption, increased cost of work or 

cost of any financing, howsoever, caused, even if same were reasonable foreseeable; provide, however, the 

forgoing shall not apply to with respect to indemnity obligation under the AGREEMENT. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES hereto have executed this AGREEMENT the day and year 

first hereinabove written. 

 

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, a municipal 

corporation  

CONSULTANT, a California Corporation  

 

By: 

 

By: 

City Manager, Gregory Wade  Signature 

 

 

Leslea Meyerhoff 
Principal 

ATTEST: 

 

 

City Clerk. Angela Ivey   

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

 

 

Joseph Lim, Community Development Director 
 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

City Attorney, Johanna N. Canlas 

 

 

 
  



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 12 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

SCOPE OF SERVICES AND FEE 

 



 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
Summit Environmental Group, Inc.  

Cell: 760-845-8028  ▪  Office: 760-804-8144   ▪   Facsimile: 760-804-9744 

 
 
 
 
 
DATE:  April 21, 2020 
TO:  Joseph Lim, AICP, Community Development Director  
CC:   Corey Andrews, Principal Planner 
FROM:  Leslea Meyerhoff, AICP, Principal, Summit Environmental Group 
RE:   Scope of Work and Budget for FY 2021-2022 and FY 2022-2023 
__________________________________________________________________ 
As requested for budget planning purposes for the next two year budget cycle (Fiscal 
Years (FY) 21/22 and 22/23), I have prepared a list of City projects which are divided 
into the ACOE (USACE) Sand Replenishment CIP and Local Coastal Program (LCP) 
CIP.  For each CIP, I have provided a list of tasks that are ongoing or will be initiated 
in the next two fiscal years. The task list is followed by Tables 1 & 2 which provide 
projected monthly average time commitments needed to complete the work based on 
past performance.  The hourly rate is $115 and is fixed for the duration of this 
contract as a continued professional courtesy to the City.   
 
ACOE SAND REPLENISHMENT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 50-Year Coastal Storm Reduction Project  

• Project management for PED including coordination and support pre-
construction monitoring requirements anticipated to begin in Fall 2021 and 
completed in Fall 2022. 

• Regular/ongoing project conference/management calls, emails and other 
related communications in support of the PED and construction phase. 

• Coordination with Project Team including City Staff, City of Encinitas Staff, 
USACE and State Parks Staff and other as needed. 

• Coordination on federal and State funding requests and grants with State 
Parks and City and work in kind credit request reimbursements. 

• Coordination to develop the Construction phase Project Partnership 
Agreement, Design and Cost Share agreements and construction PMP / 
workplan including permitting and environmental support.   

 
Coastal Program Management  

• Participation at Staff Subgroup meetings for SANDAG Shoreline Preservation 
Working Group and SANDAG Shoreline Preservation Working Group. 

• Beach profile coordination and monitoring support with Coastal Frontiers.  
• Prepare CIP Staff Report bi-monthly updates & Shorelines quarterly updates 

and FY Council Workplan updates as needed. 
• Participation in League of California Cities - Coastal Cities Issues Group. 
• Other tasks as requested by City Staff.  
 

Sand Compatibility and Opportunistic Use Program (SCOUP) 
• Identification of potential candidate projects in the City and region. 



 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
Summit Environmental Group, Inc.  

Cell: 760-845-8028  ▪  Office: 760-804-8144   ▪   Facsimile: 760-804-9744 

• Coordination with City and applicants on regulatory permit requirements. 
• Coordination with applicants to prepare Sampling and Analysis Programs 

(SAPs) to determine suitability of export for beach replenishment.   
• Coordination of SAP Results (SAPR) report to refine project details 
• Coordination of Pre-project notification report (PNR) for details and logistics 
• Coordination with SCOUP permitting agencies regarding PNR 
• Support City monitoring requirements and City monitoring efforts 
• SCOUP project implementation; post-construction monitoring and reporting. 
• Permit renewal to be initiated in FY 22 prior to permit expiration dates in 2023 

 
LOCAL COASTAL PROGRAM CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM  
Local Coastal Program, Local Implementation Plan and LUP Amendment 

• Coordination with City Staff on LIP revisions to text and exhibits to ensure IP 
is implemented consistent with the Certified LUP.  

• Preparation of updated public review draft and final approval Draft IP 
• CCC submittal and processing of City adopted Draft IP. 
• Coordination with City Staff and CCC on processing a bundled LUP 

Amendment to update the Chapter 3 ESHA map/texts and Chapter 5 land 
use, zoning and overlay exhibits. 

• Various LCP-related Work Plan task implementation items. 
• Other related LCP compliance and review tasks as needed. 

 
TABLE 1:  CIP PROJECT SUPPORT  

FY 2021-2022 
 

Programs and Projects 
Average 
Monthly 

Hours/Fee  

Annual 
Fee 

ACOE Sand Replenishment CIP 
• ACOE Shoreline Protection Project 
• Coastal Program Management  
• SCOUP  

 
40 / $4,600 
16 / $1,840 

8 / $920 

     
$55,200 
$22,080 
$11,040 

Local Coastal Program CIP 32 / $3,680 $44,160 
Total 96 / $11,040    $132,480 
 

TABLE 2:  CIP PROJECT SUPPORT  
FY 2022-2023 

 
Programs and Projects 

Average 
Monthly 

Hours/Fee  

Annual 
Fee 

ACOE Sand Replenishment CIP 
• ACOE Shoreline Protection Project 
• Coastal Program Management  
• SCOUP  

 
40 / $4,600 
16 / $1,840 

8 / $920 

     
$55,200 
$22,080 
$11,040 

Local Coastal Program CIP 32 / $3,680 $44,160 
Total 96 / $11,040    $132,480 



 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
Summit Environmental Group, Inc.  

Cell: 760-845-8028  ▪  Office: 760-804-8144   ▪   Facsimile: 760-804-9744 

 
AS - NEEDED PLANNING SERVICES SUPPORT  
 
As requested for budget planning purposes for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 and FY 2022-
2023, I have prepared a list of professional services / planning staff support tasks that 
we provide to the City of Solana Beach.  The list of programs and tasks is followed by 
Table 3 that provides anticipated monthly average hours consistent with past efforts. 
The hourly rate for these services is $115 and remains fixed for the duration of this 
contract as a continued professional courtesy to the City. 
 
Professional services including project discretionary permit application processing, 
developer-deposit and City sponsored project CEQA documentation will continue to 
be available to the City as part of this agreement or under a separate agreement.   
 

• Support City Planning and Engineering/Public Works Staff in determining 
CEQA compliance needs for CIP, current or advanced planning projects. 

• Preparation of CEQA documentation for City projects such as the Marine 
Safety Center redevelopment project and others as assigned.  

• As-needed support for City Staff in processing current planning projects as 
directed by Staff, the Community Development Director or City Manager. 

• Coordinate with City Engineer and Third-Party Geotechnical reviewer on 
pending projects and review of Staff Reports, resolutions and presentations.      

• City Council Meetings, Staff Reports and presentations related to the projects 
as outlined in this scope of work and as assigned. 

• Other tasks as requested by the City. 
 

 
TABLE 3:  AS-NEEDED / ADJUNCT PLANNING STAFF SUPPORT SERVICES  

FY 2021-2023 
 
 

Average 
Hours Per 

Month 

Annual 
Fee 

Planning Services FY 2021-2022 
 

12 $16,560 

Planning Services FY 2022-2023 
 

12 $16,560 

 



Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 1 of 13 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018

City of Solana Beach 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

FOR TELECOMMUNICATION CONSULTING SERVICES 

THIS Professional Services Agreement (“AGREEMENT”) is made and entered into this 1st day of 

July, 2021 by and between the CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, a municipal corporation (“CITY”), and, Telecom 

Law Firm, PC, a California Corporation, (“CONSULTANT”) (collectively “PARTIES”). 

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to employ a CONSULTANT to furnish professional 

telecommunication consulting services (“PROFESSIONAL SERVICES”) for various wireless 

communication facilities permit applications on an as needed basis as outline in Exhibit A: Scope of 

Services (“PROJECT”); and 

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that CONSULTANT is qualified by experience and ability 

to perform the services desired by CITY, and CONSULTANT is willing to perform such services; and 

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT will conduct all the work as described and detailed in this 

AGREEMENT to be provided to the CITY. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the PARTIES hereto mutually covenant and agree with each other as 

follows: 

1. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.

1.1. Scope of Services. The CONSULTANT shall perform the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES as set 
forth in the written Scope of Services, attached as Exhibit “A” Scope of Services and Fee, at the 
direction of the CITY. CITY shall provide CONSULTANT access to appropriate staff and 
resources for the coordination and completion of the projects under this AGREEMENT.  

1.2. Project Coordinator. The Community Development Director is hereby designated as the 
Project Coordinator for CITY and will monitor the progress and execution of this AGREEMENT. 
CONSULTANT shall assign a single Project Director to provide supervision and have overall 

responsibility for the progress and execution of this AGREEMENT for CONSULTANT. Jonathan 
Kramer is hereby designated as the Project Director for CONSULTANT. 

1.3. City Modification of Scope of Services. CITY may order changes to the Scope of Services 
within the general scope of this AGREEMENT consisting of additions, deletions, or other 
revisions. If such changes cause a change in the CONSULTANT’s cost of, or time required for, 
completion of the Scope of Services, an equitable adjustment to CONSULTANT’s compensation 
and/or contract time shall be made, subject to the CITY’S approval. All such changes to the 
scope, schedule, or compensation shall be authorized in writing, executed by CONSULTANT 
and CITY. 

2. DURATION OF AGREEMENT.

2.1. Term. The term of this AGREEMENT shall be for a period of one (1) year beginning from the 
date of execution of the AGREEMENT. Time is of the essence in the performance of work under 
this AGREEMENT, unless otherwise specified. 

2.2. Extensions.  If marked, the CITY shall have the option to extend the AGREEMENT for four 
(4) additional one (1) year periods or parts thereof for an open-ended amount, funded by pass-
through fees collected from property owners at the time of project application submittal per
AGREEMENT year. Extensions shall be in the sole discretion of the City Manager and shall be
based upon CONSULTANT’s satisfactory past performance, CITY needs, and appropriation of

~ 

mbavin
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 4



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 2 of 13 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

funds by the City Council. The CITY shall give written notice to CONSULTANT prior to exercising 
the option.  

2.3. Delay. Any delay occasioned by causes beyond the control of CONSULTANT may merit an 
extension of time for the completion of the Scope of Services. When such delay occurs, 
CONSULTANT shall immediately notify the Project Coordinator in writing of the cause and the 
extent of the delay, whereupon the Project Coordinator shall ascertain the facts and the extent 
of the delay and grant an extension of time for the completion of the PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES when justified by the circumstances. 

2.4. City’s Right to Terminate for Default. Should CONSULTANT be in material default of any 
covenant or condition hereof, CITY may immediately terminate this AGREEMENT for cause if 
CONSULTANT fails to cure the default within ten (10) calendar days of receiving written notice 
of the default. 

2.5. City’s Right to Terminate without Cause. Without limiting its rights in the event of 
CONSULTANT’s default, CITY may terminate this AGREEMENT, without cause, by giving 
written notice to CONSULTANT. Such termination shall be effective upon receipt of the written 
notice. CONSULTANT shall be compensated for all effort and material expended on behalf of 
CITY under the terms of this AGREEMENT, up to and including the effective date of termination. 
All personal property remaining in CITY facilities or on CITY property thirty (30) days after the 
expiration or termination of this AGREEMENT shall be, at CITY’s election, considered the 
property of CITY. 

2.6. Consultant may terminate this AGREEMENT, without cause by giving thirty (30) days’ notice to 
CITY.  Consultant may, at its election, terminate or suspend performance under this 
AGREEMENT should CITY be in default of any covenant or condition hereof if CITY fails to cure 
the default within ten (10) calendar days of receiving written notice of default.  The time to perform 
services under this AGREEMENT shall be extended for any period of suspension. 

3. COMPENSATION. 

3.1. Total Amount. The total cost for all work described in the Scope of Services and Fee (Exhibit 
“A”) shall be for an open-ended amount, funded by pass-through fees collected from the property 
owners at the time of application submittal. CONSULTANT shall bill the CITY for work provided 
and shall present a written request for such payment monthly.  

3.2. Additional Services. CITY may, as the need arises or in the event of an emergency, request 
additional services of CONSULTANT. Should such additional services be required, CITY and 
CONSULTANT shall agree to the cost prior to commencement of these services in writing, 
executed by CONSULTANT and CITY. 

3.3. Costs. Any costs billed to the CITY shall be in accordance with any terms negotiated and 
incorporated herein as part of Exhibit “A” Scope of Services and Fee.  

4. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  

4.1. CONSULTANT is, for all purposes arising out of this AGREEMENT, an independent contractor. 
The CONSULTANT has and shall retain the right to exercise full control and supervision of all 
persons assisting the CONSULTANT in the performance of said services hereunder, the CITY 
only being concerned with the finished results of the work being performed. Neither 
CONSULTANT nor CONSULTANT’s employees shall in any event be entitled to any benefits to 
which CITY employees are entitled, including, but not limited to, overtime, retirement benefits, 
workers’ compensation benefits, injury leave or other leave benefits. CONSULTANT is solely 
responsible for all such matters, as well as compliance with social security and income tax 
withholding and all other regulations and laws governing such matters. 

4.2  PERS Eligibility Indemnification.  In the event that CONSULTANT’s employee providing services 
under this Agreement claims or is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction or the California 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 3 of 13 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) to be eligible for enrollment in PERS of the CITY, 
Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless CITY for the payment of any employer 
and employee contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of the employee as well as for payment 
of any penalties and interest on such contributions which would otherwise be the responsibility 
of the CITY.  Notwithstanding any other agency, state or federal policy, rule, regulation, law or 
ordinance to the contrary, CONSULTANT’s employees providing service under this Agreement 
shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any claims to, any 
compensation and benefit including but not limited to eligibility to enroll in PERS as an employee 
of CITY and entitlement to any contributions to be paid by CITY for employer contributions and/or 
employee contributions for PERS benefits.  This is a continuing obligation that survives the 
termination of this contract. 

5. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE.  

While performing the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, CONSULTANT shall exercise the reasonable 
professional care and skill customarily exercised by reputable members of CONSULTANT’s profession 
practicing in the metropolitan Southern California Area, and will use reasonable diligence and best judgment 
while exercising its professional skill and expertise. 

6. WARRANTY OF CONSULTANT’S LICENSE.  

CONSULTANT warrants that CONSULTANT is properly licensed with the applicable government 
agency(ies) for any PROFESSIONAL SERVICES that require a license. If the CONSULTANT lacks such 
license, this AGREEMENT is void and of no effect. 

7. AUDIT OF RECORDS.  

7.1. At any time during normal business hours and as often as may be deemed reasonably necessary 
the CONSULTANT shall make available to a representative of CITY for examination all of its 
records with respect to all matters covered by this AGREEMENT and shall permit CITY to audit, 
examine and/or reproduce such records. CONSULTANT shall retain such financial and program 
service records for at least four (4) years after termination or final payment under this 
AGREEMENT. 

7.2. The CONSULTANT shall include the CITY's right under this section in any and all of their 
subcontracts, and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all subcontractors. 

8. CONFIDENTIALITY AND SECURITY.  

8.1. Confidential Work Product. All professional services performed by CONSULTANT, including 
but not limited to all drafts, data, correspondence, proposals, reports, research and estimates 
compiled or composed by CONSULTANT, pursuant to this AGREEMENT, are for the sole use 
of the CITY, its agents and employees. Neither the documents nor their contents shall be 
released to any third party without the prior written consent of the CITY. This provision does not 
apply to information that (a) was publicly known, or otherwise known to CONSULTANT, at the 
time that it was disclosed to CONSULTANT by the CITY, (b) subsequently becomes publicly 
known through no act or omission of CONSULTANT, (c) otherwise becomes known to 
CONSULTANT other than through disclosure by the CITY, or (d) is required to be disclosed by 
court order or other legal demand requiring disclosure, in which case, CONSULTANT shall notify 
CITY in writing as soon as possible and before responding to such court order or legal demand. 
Except for any subcontractors that may be allowed upon prior agreement, neither the documents 
nor their contents shall be released to any third party without the prior written consent of the 
CITY. The sole purpose of this section is to prevent disclosure of CITY’s confidential and 
proprietary information by CONSULTANT or subcontractors. 

8.2. Confidentiality. Both parties recognize that their respective employees and agents, in the 
course of performance of this AGREEMENT, may be exposed to confidential information and 
that disclosure of such information could violate the rights of private individuals and entities, 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 4 of 13 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

including the parties and third parties.  Confidential information is nonpublic information that a 
reasonable person would believe to be confidential and includes, without limitation, personal 
identifying information (e.g., social security numbers) and trade secrets, each as defined by 
applicable state law, and all other information protected by applicable law (“Confidential 
Information”). The party receiving Confidential Information (“Receiving Party”) of the other 
(“Disclosing Party”) shall not, and shall cause its employees and agents who are authorized to 
receive Confidential Information, not to, use Confidential Information for any purpose except as 
necessary to implement, perform or enforce this AGREEMENT or comply with its legal 
obligations.  Receiving Party will use the same reasonable efforts to protect the Confidential 
Information of Disclosing Party as it uses to protect its own proprietary information and data.  The 
Receiving Party will not disclose or release Confidential Information to any third person without 
the prior written consent of the Disclosing Party, except for where required by law or for 
authorized employees or agents of the Receiving Party.  Prior to disclosing the Confidential 
Information to its authorized employees or agents, Receiving Party shall inform them of the 
confidential nature of the Confidential Information and require them to abide by the terms of this 
AGREEMENT. Receiving Party will promptly notify Disclosing Party if Receiving Party discovers 
any improper use or disclosure of Confidential Information and will promptly commence all 
reasonable efforts to investigate and correct the causes of such improper use or disclosure.  If 
Receiving Party believes the Confidential Information must be disclosed under applicable law, 
Receiving Party may do so provided that, to the extent permitted by law, the other party is given 
a reasonable notice and opportunity to contest such disclosure or obtain a protective order.  
Confidential Information does not include information that: (i)  is or becomes known to the public 
without fault or breach of the Receiving Party; (ii) the Disclosing Party regularly discloses to third 
parties without restriction on disclosure; or (iii) the Receiving Party obtains from a third party 
without restriction on disclosure and without breach of a non-disclosure obligation.  Confidential 
Information does not include any information that is required to be provided to the public pursuant 
to the laws of the United States and/or California such as the California Public Records Act, due 
to the nature of CITY being a local governmental agency.  The non-disclosure and non-use 
obligations of this AGREEMENT will remain in full force with respect to each item of Confidential 
Information for a period of ten (10) years after the Receiving Party’s receipt of that item. 

8.3. Security.   

8.3.1. Implementation. CONSULTANT shall implement commercially reasonable 
administrative, technical and physical safeguards designed to: (i) ensure the security 
and confidentiality of data and information provided by the CITY or used in 
connection with providing services under this AGREEMENT, including data or 
information about third parties (“CITY’S Data”); (ii) protect against any anticipated 
threats or hazards to the security or integrity of CITY’S Data; and (iii) protect against 
unauthorized access to or use of CITY’S Data.  CONSULTANT shall review and test 
such safeguards on no less than an annual basis. 

8.3.2. Network. If CONSULTANT makes CITY’S Data accessible through the Internet or 
other networked environment, CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for all 
aspects of Internet use, and shall maintain, in connection with the operation or use 
of CITY’S Data, adequate technical and procedural access controls and system 
security requirements and devices, necessary for data privacy, confidentiality, 
integrity, authorization, authentication and non-repudiation and virus detection and 
eradication. 

8.3.3. Personal Data.  If CONSULTANT processes or otherwise has access to any 
personal data or personal information on CITY’s behalf when performing 
CONSULTANT’s services and obligations under this AGREEMENT, then: (i) CITY 
shall be the data controller (where “data controller” means an entity which alone or 
jointly with others determines purposes for which and the manner in which any 
personal data are, or are to be, processed) and CONSULTANT shall be a data 
processor (where “data processor” means an entity which processes the data only 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 5 of 13 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

on behalf of the data controller and not for any purposes of its own); (ii) CITY shall 
ensure that it has obtained all necessary consents and it is entitled to transfer the 
relevant personal data or personal information to CONSULTANT so that 
CONSULTANT may lawfully use, process and transfer the personal data and 
personal information in accordance with this AGREEMENT on CITY’s behalf in order 
for CONSULTANT to provide the services and perform its other obligations under 
this AGREEMENT; (iii) CONSULTANT shall process the personal data and personal 
information only in accordance with any lawful and reasonable instructions given by 
CITY from time to time and in accordance with the terms of this AGREEMENT; and 
(iv) each party shall take appropriate technical and organizational measures against 
unauthorized or unlawful processing of the personal data and personal information 
or its accidental loss, destruction or damage so that, having regard to the state of 
technological development and the cost of implementing any measures, the 
measures taken ensure a level of security appropriate to the harm that might result 
from such unauthorized or unlawful processing or accidental loss, destruction or 
damage in relation to the personal data and personal information and the nature of 
the personal data and personal information being protected.  If necessary, the parties 
will cooperate to document these measures taken. 

8.3.4. Information Security. CONSULTANT represents and warrants that its collection, 
access, use, storage, disposal and disclosure of Confidential Information accessed 
and/or collected from CITY does and will comply with all applicable federal and state 
privacy and data protection laws. In the event of any security breach, CONSULTANT 
shall: (a) Provide CITY with the name and contact information for an employee who 
shall serve as CITY’s primary security contact and shall be available to assist CITY 
twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week as a contact in resolving 
obligations associated with a security breach; and (b) Notify CITY of a security breach 
as soon as practicable, but no later than twenty-four (24) hours after CONSULTANT 
becomes aware of it. Immediately following CONSULTANT’s notification to CITY of 
a security breach, the parties shall coordinate with each other to investigate the 
security breach.  CONSULTANT agrees to fully cooperate with CITY in CITY’s 
handling of the matter. CONSULTANT shall use best efforts to immediately remedy 
any security breach and prevent any further security breach at CONSULTANT’s own 
expense in accordance with applicable privacy rights, laws, regulations and 
standards.  CONSULTANT agrees to provide, at its expense, up to one year of credit 
monitoring services to third parties impacted by any data breach involving the loss of 
personally identifiable information.  

8.4. Indemnity.  CONSULTANT shall defend (with counsel acceptable to CITY), indemnify and hold 
CITY harmless from and against all claims, actions, proceedings, losses, costs (including 
attorney fees and other charges), liabilities, damages, judgments, settlements, and court 
awarded attorney’s fees resulting from, arising out of or related to a security or data breach 
unless the breach is proven to be caused solely by CITY.  The terms of this section shall survive 
termination of this AGREEMENT. For purposes of this provision, “security breach” means any 
act or omission that compromises either the security, confidentiality, or integrity of Confidential 
Information or the physical, technical, administrative or organizational safeguards put in place by 
CONSULTANT or any authorized persons that relate to the protection of the security, 
confidentiality or integrity of Confidential Information or a breach or alleged breach of this 
AGREEMENT relating to such privacy practices or privacy obligations imposed by any applicable 
law. 

8.5. Notice and Remedy of Breaches.  Each party shall promptly give notice to the other of any 
actual or suspected breach by it of any of the provisions of Section 8 of this AGREEMENT, 
whether or not intentional, and the breaching party shall, at its expense, take all steps reasonably 
requested by the other party to prevent or remedy the breach. 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 6 of 13 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

8.6. Enforcement.  Each party acknowledges that any breach of any of the provisions of Section 8 
of this AGREEMENT may result in irreparable injury to the other for which money damages would 
not adequately compensate.  If there is a breach, then the injured party shall be entitled, in 
addition to all other rights and remedies which it may have, to have a decree of specific 
performance or an injunction issued by any competent court, requiring the breach to be cured or 
enjoining all persons involved from continuing the breach. 

9. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.  

9.1. CONSULTANT shall at all times comply with all federal, state and local conflict of interest laws, 
regulations, and policies applicable to public contracts and procurement practices, including but 
not limited to California Government Code Section 81000 et seq. (Political Reform Act) and 
Section 1090 et seq. CONSULTANT shall immediately disqualify itself and shall not use its official 
position to influence in any way any matter coming before the CITY in which the CONSULTANT 
has a financial interest as defined in Government Code Section 87103. CONSULTANT 
represents that it has no knowledge of any financial interests which would require it to disqualify 
itself from any matter on which it might perform services for the CITY. 

9.2. If, in performing the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES set forth in this AGREEMENT, the 
CONSULTANT makes, or participates in, a “governmental decision” as described in Title 2, 
Section 18700.3(a) of the California Code of Regulations, or performs the same or substantially 
all the same duties for the CITY that would otherwise be performed by a CITY employee holding 
a position specified in the department's conflict of interest code, the CONSULTANT shall be 
subject to a conflict of interest code requiring the completion of one or more statements of 
economic interests disclosing the CONSULTANT’s relevant financial interests. 

9.3.  If checked, the CONSULTANT shall comply with all of the reporting requirements of the 
Political Reform Act. Specifically, the CONSULTANT shall file a Fair Political Practices 
Commission Form 700 (Assuming Office Statement) within thirty (30) calendar days of the CITY’s 
determination that the CONSULTANT is subject to a conflict of interest code. The CONSULTANT 
shall also file a Form 700 (Annual Statement) on or before April 1 of each year of the 
AGREEMENT, disclosing any financial interests held during the previous calendar year for which 
the CONSULTANT was subject to a conflict of interest code. 

9.4. CITY represents that pursuant to California Government Code Section 1090 et seq., none of its 
elected officials, officers, or employees has an interest in this AGREEMENT. 

10. DISPOSITION AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.  

10.1. All documents, data, studies, drawings, maps, models, photographs and reports prepared by 
CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT, whether paper or electronic, shall become the property 
of CITY for use with respect to this PROJECT, and shall be turned over to the CITY upon 
completion of the PROJECT or any phase thereof, as contemplated by this AGREEMENT.  

10.2. Contemporaneously with the transfer of documents, the CONSULTANT hereby assigns to the 
CITY and CONSULTANT thereby expressly waives and disclaims, any copyright in, and the right 
to reproduce, all written material, drawings, plans, specifications or other work prepared under 
this AGREEMENT, except upon the CITY’s prior authorization regarding reproduction, which 
authorization shall not be unreasonably withheld. The CONSULTANT shall, upon request of the 
CITY, execute any further document(s) necessary to further effectuate this waiver and 
disclaimer. 

10.3. Other than as stated in sections 10.1 and 10.2 above, each party acknowledges and agrees that 
each party is the sole and exclusive owner of all right, title and interest in and to its other services, 
products, software, source and object code, specifications, designs, techniques, concepts, 
improvements, discoveries, and inventions, including all intellectual property rights thereto, 
including without limitation and modifications, improvements or derivative works thereof, created 
prior to, or independently, during the term of this Agreement.  This Agreement does not affect 

~ 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 7 of 13 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

the ownership of each party’s pre-existing, intellectual property.  Each party further 
acknowledges that it acquires no rights under this Agreement to the other party’s pre-existing 
intellectual property, other than any limited right explicitly ranted in this Agreement under section 
10.1 and 10.2. 

11. INSURANCE 

11.1. CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain for the duration of the AGREEMENT insurance 
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in 
connection with the performance of the work hereunder and the results of that work by the 
CONSULTANT, their agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. Insurance shall be 
placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than “A” and “VII” unless 
otherwise approved in writing by the CITY’s Risk Manager. 

11.2. CONSULTANT’s liabilities, including but not limited to CONSULTANT’s indemnity obligations, 
under this AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed limited in any way to the insurance coverage 
required herein. All policies of insurance required hereunder must provide that the CITY is 
entitled to thirty (30) days prior written notice of cancellation or non-renewal of the policy or 
policies, or ten (10) days prior written notice for cancellation due to non-payment of premium. 
Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a material element of this AGREEMENT. 

11.3. Types and Amounts Required. CONSULTANT shall maintain, at minimum, the following 
insurance coverage for the duration of this AGREEMENT: 

11.3.1. Commercial General Liability (CGL). If checked the CONSULTANT shall 
maintain CGL Insurance written on an ISO Occurrence form or equivalent providing 
coverage at least as broad which shall cover liability arising from any and all personal 
injury or property damage in the amount of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence and subject 
to an annual aggregate of $2,000,000.00. There shall be no endorsement or 
modification of the CGL limiting the scope of coverage for either insured vs. insured 
claims or contractual liability. All defense costs shall be outside the limits of the policy. 

11.3.2. Commercial Automobile Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall maintain 
Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance for all of the CONSULTANT's 
automobiles including owned, hired and non-owned automobiles, automobile 
insurance written on an ISO form CA 00 01 12 90 or a later version of this form or an 
equivalent form providing coverage at least as broad for bodily injury and property 
damage for a combined single limit of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence. Insurance 
certificate shall reflect coverage for any automobile (any auto). 

11.3.3. Workers' Compensation. If checked the CONSULTANT shall maintain Worker’s 
Compensation insurance for all of the CONSULTANT's employees who are subject 
to this AGREEMENT and to the extent required by applicable state or federal law, a 
Workers' Compensation policy providing at minimum $1,000,000.00 employers' 
liability coverage. The CONSULTANT shall provide an endorsement that the insurer 
waives the right of subrogation against the CITY and its respective elected officials, 
officers, employees, agents and representatives. 

11.3.4. Professional Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall also maintain 
Professional Liability (errors and omissions) coverage with a limit of $1,000,000 per 
claim and $2,000,000 annual aggregate. The CONSULTANT shall ensure both that 
(1) the policy retroactive date is on or before the date of commencement of the Scope 
of Services; and (2) the policy will be maintained in force for a period of three years 
after substantial completion of the Scope of Services or termination of this 
AGREEMENT whichever occurs last. The CONSULTANT agrees that for the time 
period defined above, there will be no changes or endorsements to the policy that 
increase the CITY's exposure to loss. All defense costs shall be outside the limits of 
the policy. 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 8 of 13 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

11.3.5. Cyber Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall also maintain Cyber Liability  
coverage on an occurrence basis with a limit of $2,000,000 per occurrence or claim 
and $2,000,000 annual aggregate.  Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond 
to the duties and obligations as are undertaken by CONSULTANT in this 
AGREEMENT and shall include claims involving infringement of intellectual property, 
infringement of copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy violations, 
information theft, damage to or destruction of electronic information, release of 
private information, alteration of electronic information, extortion and network 
security. The policy shall provide coverage for breach response costs as well as 
regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses with limits 
sufficient to respond to such obligations.  All defense costs shall be outside the limits 
of the policy. 

11.4. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions are the 
responsibility of the CONSULTANT and must be declared to and approved by the CITY. At the 
option of the CITY, either (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured 
retentions as respects the CITY, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers, or (2) the 
CONSULTANT shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the CITY guaranteeing 
payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses. 

11.5. Additional Required Provisions. The commercial general liability and automobile liability 
policies shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

11.5.1. The CITY, its officers, officials, employees, and representatives shall be named as 
additional insureds. The CITY's additional insured status must be reflected on 
additional insured endorsement form (20 10 1185 or 20 10 1001 and 20 37 1001) 
which shall be submitted to the CITY.  

11.5.2. The policies are primary and non-contributory to any insurance that may be carried 
by the CITY, as reflected in an endorsement which shall be submitted to the CITY. 

11.6. Verification of Coverage. CONSULTANT shall furnish the CITY with original certificates and 
amendatory endorsements effecting coverage required by this Section 11. The endorsement 
should be on forms provided by the CITY or on other than the CITY’s forms provided those 
endorsements conform to CITY requirements. All certificates and endorsements are to be 
received and approved by the CITY before work commences. The CITY reserves the right to 
require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements 
affecting the coverage required by these specifications at any time. 

12. INDEMNIFICATION.  

CONSULTANT agrees to indemnify, defend (with counsel acceptable to CITY), and hold harmless the CITY, 
and its officers, officials, agents and employees from any and all claims, demands, costs or liabilities that 
arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONSULTANT, 
its employees, agents, and subcontractors in the performance of or failure to perform services or obligations 
under this AGREEMENT. CONSULTANT’s duty to indemnify under this section shall not include liability for 
damages for death or bodily injury to persons, injury to property, or other loss, damage or expense arising 
from the sole negligence or willful misconduct by the CITY or its elected officials, officers, agents, and 
employees. CONSULTANT's indemnification obligations shall not be limited by the insurance provisions of 
this AGREEMENT. The PARTIES expressly agree that any payment, attorney's fees, costs or expense CITY 
incurs or makes to or on behalf of an injured employee under the CITY's self-administered workers' 
compensation is included as a loss, expense, or cost for the purposes of this section, and that this section 
will survive the expiration or early termination of this AGREEMENT. 

13. SUBCONTRACTORS.  

13.1. The CONSULTANT’s hiring or retaining of third parties (i.e. subcontractors) to perform services 
related to the PROJECT is subject to prior approval by the CITY.  

□ 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 9 of 13 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

13.2. All contracts entered into between the CONSULTANT and its subcontractor shall also provide 
that each subcontractor shall obtain insurance policies which shall be kept in full force and effect 
during any and all work on this PROJECT and for the duration of this AGREEMENT. The 
CONSULTANT shall require the subcontractor to obtain, all policies described in Section 11 in 
the amounts required by the CITY, which shall not be greater than the amounts required of the 
CONSULTANT.  

13.3. In any dispute between the CONSULTANT and its subcontractor, the CITY shall not be made a 
party to any judicial or administrative proceeding to resolve the dispute. The CONSULTANT 
agrees to defend and indemnify the CITY as described in Section 12 of this AGREEMENT should 
the CITY be made a party to any judicial or administrative proceeding to resolve any such 
dispute. 

14. NON-DISCRIMINATION.  

CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, 
race, color, age, religion, ancestry, national origin, military or veteran status, disability, medical condition, 
genetic information, gender expression, marital status, or sexual orientation. CONSULTANT shall take 
affirmative action to insure that applicants are employed and that employees are treated during employment 
without regard to their sex, race, color, age, religion, ancestry, national origin, military or veteran status, 
disability, medical condition, genetic information, gender expression, marital status, or sexual orientation and 
shall make reasonable accommodation to qualified individuals with disabilities or medical conditions. Such 
action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, 
recruitment, or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, 
and selection for training, including apprenticeship. CONSULTANT agrees to post in conspicuous places 
available to employees and applicants for employment any notices provided by CITY setting forth the 
provisions of this non-discrimination clause. 

15. NOTICES.  

All communications to either party by the other party shall be delivered to the persons listed below. Any such 
written communications by mail shall be conclusively deemed to have been received by the addressee five 
(5) calendar days after the deposit thereof in the United States mail, postage prepaid and properly addressed 
as noted below. 

Joseph Lim, Community Development Director 

City of Solana Beach 

635 S. Highway 101 

Solana Beach, CA 92075 

Jonathan Kramer, President 

Telecom Law Firm, PC 

2001 South Barrington Avenue, Ste. 306 

Los Angeles, CA 90025 

16. ASSIGNABILITY.  

This AGREEMENT and any portion thereof shall not be assigned or transferred, nor shall any of the 
CONSULTANT’s duties be delegated or sub-contracted, without the express written consent of the CITY.  

17. RESPONSIBILITY FOR EQUIPMENT.  

CITY shall not be responsible nor held liable for any damage to persons or property consequent upon the 
use, misuse, or failure of any equipment used by CONSULTANT or any of CONSULTANT’s employees or 
subcontractors, even if such equipment has been furnished, rented, or loaned to CONSULTANT by CITY. 
The acceptance or use of any such equipment by CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s employees, or 
subcontractors shall be construed to mean that CONSULTANT accepts full responsibility for and agrees to 
exonerate, indemnify and hold harmless CITY from and against any and all claims for any damage 
whatsoever resulting from the use, misuse, or failure of such equipment. 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 10 of 13 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

18. CALIFORNIA LAW; VENUE.  

This AGREEMENT shall be construed and interpreted according to the laws of the State of California. Any 
action brought to enforce or interpret any portion of this AGREEMENT shall be brought in the county of San 
Diego, California. CONSULTANT hereby waives any and all rights it might have pursuant to California Code 
of Civil Procedure Section 394. 

19. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.  

The Consultant shall comply with all laws, ordinances, regulations, and policies of the federal, state, and 
local governments applicable to this AGREEMENT whether now in force or subsequently enacted. This 
includes maintaining a City of Solana Beach Business Certificate. 

20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  

This AGREEMENT sets forth the entire understanding of the PARTIES with respect to the subject matters 
herein. There are no other understandings, terms or other agreements expressed or implied, oral or written, 
except as set forth herein. No change, alteration, or modification of the terms or conditions of this 
AGREEMENT, and no verbal understanding of the PARTIES, their officers, agents, or employees shall be 
valid unless agreed to in writing by both PARTIES.  

21. NO WAIVER.  

No failure of either the City or the Consultant to insist upon the strict performance by the other of any 
covenant, term or condition of this AGREEMENT, nor any failure to exercise any right or remedy consequent 
upon a breach of any covenant, term, or condition of this AGREEMENT shall constitute a waiver of any such 
breach of such covenant, term or condition. 

22. SEVERABILITY.  

The unenforceability, invalidity, or illegality of any provision of this AGREEMENT shall not render any other 
provision unenforceable, invalid, or illegal. 

23. DRAFTING AMBIGUITIES.  

The PARTIES agree that they are aware that they have the right to be advised by counsel with respect to 
the negotiations, terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT, and the decision of whether or not to seek 
advice of counsel with respect to this AGREEMENT is a decision which is the sole responsibility of each 
Party. This AGREEMENT shall not be construed in favor of or against either Party by reason of the extent 
to which each Party participated in the drafting of the AGREEMENT. 

24. CONFLICTS BETWEEN TERMS.  

If an apparent conflict or inconsistency exists between the main body of this AGREEMENT and the Exhibits, 
the main body of this AGREEMENT shall control. If a conflict exists between an applicable federal, state, or 
local law, rule, regulation, order, or code and this AGREEMENT, the law, rule, regulation, order, or code 
shall control. Varying degrees of stringency among the main body of this AGREEMENT, the Exhibits, and 
laws, rules, regulations, orders, or codes are not deemed conflicts, and the most stringent requirement shall 
control. Each Party shall notify the other immediately upon the identification of any apparent conflict or 
inconsistency concerning this AGREEMENT. 

25. EXHIBITS INCORPORATED.  

All Exhibits referenced in this AGREEMENT are incorporated into the AGREEMENT by this reference. 

26. SIGNING AUTHORITY.  

26.1. The representative for each Party signing on behalf of a corporation, partnership, joint venture, 
association, or governmental entity hereby declares that authority has been obtained to sign on 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 11 of 13 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

behalf of the corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, or entity and agrees to hold the 
other Party or PARTIES hereto harmless if it is later determined that such authority does not 
exist. 

26.2. If checked, a proper notary acknowledgement of execution by CONSULTANT must be 
attached. 

27. WAIVER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES.  

Neither party shall have any claim or right against the other, whether in contract, warranty, tor (including 

negligence), strict liability or otherwise, for any special, indirect, incidental, or consequential damages of any 

king or nature, whatsoever, such as but not limited to loss of revenue, loss of profits on revenue, loss of 

customers or contracts, loss of use of equipment or loss of data, work interruption, increased cost of work or 

cost of any financing, howsoever, caused, even if same were reasonable foreseeable; provide, however, the 

forgoing shall not apply to with respect to indemnity obligation under the AGREEMENT. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES hereto have executed this AGREEMENT the day and year 

first hereinabove written. 

 

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, a municipal 

corporation  

CONSULTANT, a California Corporation  

 

By: 

 

By: 

City Manager, Gregory Wade  Signature 

 

 

Jonathan Kramer 
President 

ATTEST: 

 

 

City Clerk. Angela Ivey   

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

 

 

Joseph Lim, Community Development Director 
 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

City Attorney, Johanna N. Canlas 

 

 

□ 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 12 of 13 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

 
  



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 13 of 13 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

SCOPE OF SERVICES AND FEE 

 



Exhibit A 
SCOPE OF WORK  

 
Upon the request of the City of Solana Beach, Consultant will provide technical 
and regulatory advice to City concerning applications for telecommunications 
facilities as follows: 
 
A. Wireless Siting Application Reviews: 
 
At the City’s request and within Consultant’s expertise as a wireless site application 
reviewer, Consultant will review wireless siting applications and provide the City 
with a written analysis as described within the below sections. 
 
1. Memorandum/Memoranda Content: 
 
a. Completeness Review for Wireless Projects: 
 
Upon receipt of a wireless application by the Consultant directly from the City, 
Consultant will identify the regulatory classification under which the project should 
be processed (i.e., Section 6409(a); SWF; standby power generator; major 
modification; etc.). Also, conduct a completeness review of the wireless application 
to evaluate its completeness with the City’s requirements and wireless policies. If 
there are incomplete items, the Consultant will send the City a “Completeness 
Review” by email or an attachment to an email. This portion of the work entails 
reviewing all submitted wireless application materials to the City as well as federal 
and state shot clock calculations. 
 
b. Project Memorandum: 
 
Once an application is determined by the City or deemed by law to be complete, 
per the City’s request, Consultant may provide the following services: 
 
i. Section 6409(a) Analysis: review section 6409(a) standards; draft analysis and 
recommendations. 
 
ii. SWF Analysis: review SWF standards; draft analysis and recommendations.  
 
iii. Power Generator Analysis: review power generator standards; draft analysis 
and recommendations.  
 
iv. Design Analysis: discuss design matters, if any, that may reduce the impact of 
the proposed site configuration; compare proposed design for compliance with City 
wireless ordinance and policy requirements; draft analysis and recommendations. 
 



v. Alternative Sites Analysis: evaluate time, place, and manner considerations for 
wireless sites; compare proposed location for compliance with City wireless 
ordinance and policy requirements; draft analysis and recommendations. 
vi. Radio Frequency FCC Compliance Analysis: assess the planned compliance 
with federal radio frequency exposure guidelines established by the Federal 
Communications Commission; draft analysis and recommendations. 
 
2. Work Product Revision: 
 
At City’s option, without an additional fee, Consultant shall prepare one revision or 
one follow-up to the TLF work product. All subsequent revisions or follow-ups are 
charged on an hourly basis per Exhibit B. 
 
3. Consultation Time: 
 
i. Consultant will provide consultation by telephone and/or through e-mail with the 
City per project at no additional cost for the flat fee portion of each project. 
 
ii. For any project where hourly charges apply (e.g., after the flat fee portion of a 
project), hourly fees per Exhibit B for consultations via telephone and/or email will 
apply. 
 
Both parties to this Agreement agree that every wireless project is unique as to 
location and design, and some projects may not proceed all the way to an approval 
or denial, or the project at a given location may be moved by an applicant to a 
different location. In those cases, an entirely new project review will be provided 
under a separate project and fee. 
 
B. Attendance at Meetings: 
 
As requested by City, and subject to Consultant’s availability, Consultant will attend 
meetings in person or by video link. For in-person meeting attendance travel time 
will be billed from Consultant’s office to and back from the City.  

 
C. General Consultation: 
 
At the City’s request, Consultant will engage with the City about any non-privileged 
communications within the competence of Consultant as determined by 
Consultant in any form on a time available basis of Consultant.  



Exhibit B 
FEE SCHEDULE 

 
 

The Consultant consults with and is responsible to the City. The City is responsible 
payment of for Consultant invoices.  Payment of Consultant’s invoices is not contingent 
upon the City receiving any deposit or reimbursement from any party. 
 
To allow the City to select those specific services desired on a flat fee(s) basis, or to have 
a project fully reviewed on a flat fee basis, TLF offers our services as set out below. The 
flat fees exclude hourly work such as meeting attendance as discussed below. 
 
In all cases project hours are not reported by Consultant for flat fee portion of flat fee 
projects. Consultant shall perform all flat-rate services as follows: 
 
I. A La Carte Service Fees:  
 

A. Services Provided on an A La Carte Basis 
 
• Exhibit A(1)(a) Completeness Review for Wireless Projects for a fixed fee of    
   $1,600.00 per project. 
 
• Exhibit A(1)(b)(i) Section 6409(a) Analysis for a fixed fee of $1,000.00 per project. 
 
• Exhibit A(1)(b)(ii) SWF Analysis for a fixed fee of $1,0000.00 per project.  
 
• Exhibit A(1)(b)(iii) Power Generator Analysis for a fixed fee of $1,200.00 per  
   project.  
 
• Exhibit A(1)(b)(iv) Design Analysis for a fixed fee of $1,000.00 per project. 
 
• Exhibit A(1)(b)(v) Alternative Sites Analysis for a fixed fee of $1,000.00 per  
   project. 
 
• Exhibit A(1)(b)(vi) Radio Frequency FCC Compliance Analysis for a fixed fee of  
  $1,900.00 per project. 

 
B. Services Provided on an All-Inclusive Basis 

 
• Exhibit A(1)(a)(b)(i)(ii)(iii)(iv)(v) All Applicable sections for Completeness Review 
for Wireless Projects; Section 6409(a) Analysis; SWF; Design Analysis; Alternative 
Sites Analysis; and Radio Frequency FCC Compliance Analysis for a fixed fee of 
$2,645.00 per project.  
 



The City has the option to choose from any or all of the A La Carte services, or it 
may select the All Inclusive Basis, which is discounted over the A La Carte 
offerings. 
 
Flat fee projects are billed to the City as a single unit on the first project invoice, 
which is issued upon submission of Consultant’s first review work product. The flat 
fee (and any subsequent hourly fees) are fully earned by and payable to 
Consultant once the Consultant has provided its first review work product to the 
City, even when the project is subsequently cancelled, abandoned, transferred to 
a different location. 

 
II. Hourly Fees: Consultant shall perform all services, outside of the Flat Fee scope, and 
all other extra services not described in the Scope of Work but mutually agreed upon by 
City and Consultant, on an hourly fee basis as follows: 

 
Personnel Rate: 
Per Partner or Senior Project Manager $ 330 
Per Associate/Of Counsel or Project Manager $ 280 
Per Paralegal or Senior Project Assistant $ 195 
Per Assistant or Project Assistant $ 95 
 
All time is billed in 0.1-hour (6 minute) units rounded up to the next 0.1-hour unit. 
 
There will not be any reimbursable expenses other than the travel expenses to and 
from the city and the Consultant’s LA office. 
 
3. Annual Fee Adjustment. There will not be an annual fee adjustment for the 5-
year term of this fee agreement.  
 
4. Expenses: City will reimburse the Consultant for all ordinary costs and expenses 
reasonably incurred by Consultant in performance of the services provided by 
Consultant to City pursuant to this proposal. 
 
 



 Exhibit C 
PROJECT TIME SCHEDULE 

 
 

Due to FCC shot clock time limitations, all wireless projects must be submitted to  
Consultant by the City in searchable PDF documents within two calendar days of 
receipt by the City from the Applicant (excluding holidays and City closures).  
 
Accordingly, Consultant urges City to enforce a wireless application requirement 
that obligates the applicant to tender the entire wireless application, including all 
exhibits and attachments, in searchable PDF format, as well as in paper form. 
 
Consultant shall complete all of the services identified within the Scope of Work 
the following timeline(s): 
 
For work within Exhibit A section (A)(1)(a): 
• nine (9) calendar days for an initial review of a wireless application that is 
submitted by the applicant as a SWF or a standby-power generator; or 
 
• twenty-one (21) calendar days for an initial review of a wireless application that 
is submitted by the applicant as a Non-SWF; or 
 
• nine (9) calendar days for a resubmittal review of a wireless application that was 
deemed incomplete for either SWF or Non-SWF. 
 
For work within Exhibit A section (A)(1)(b): 
 
• fourteen (14) calendar days for project memorandums. 
 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 1 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

City of Solana Beach 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

FOR TELECOMMUNICATION CONSULTING SERVICES 

 THIS Professional Services Agreement (“AGREEMENT”) is made and entered into this 1st day of 

July, 2021 by and between the CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, a municipal corporation (“CITY”), and, Telecom 

Law Firm, PC, a California Corporation, (“CONSULTANT”) (collectively “PARTIES”). 

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to employ a CONSULTANT to furnish professional 

telecommunication consulting services (“PROFESSIONAL SERVICES”) for City wireless facility 

projects (“PROJECT”); and 

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that CONSULTANT is qualified by experience and ability 

to perform the services desired by CITY, and CONSULTANT is willing to perform such services; and 

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT will conduct all the work as described and detailed in this 

AGREEMENT to be provided to the CITY. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the PARTIES hereto mutually covenant and agree with each other as 

follows: 

1. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES. 

1.1. Scope of Services. The CONSULTANT shall perform the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES as set 
forth in the written Scope of Services, attached as Exhibit “A” Scope of Services and Fee, at the 
direction of the CITY. CITY shall provide CONSULTANT access to appropriate staff and 
resources for the coordination and completion of the projects under this AGREEMENT.  

1.2. Project Coordinator. The Community Development Director is hereby designated as the 
Project Coordinator for CITY and will monitor the progress and execution of this AGREEMENT. 
CONSULTANT shall assign a single Project Director to provide supervision and have overall 

responsibility for the progress and execution of this AGREEMENT for CONSULTANT. Jonathan 
Kramer is hereby designated as the Project Director for CONSULTANT. 

1.3. City Modification of Scope of Services. CITY may order changes to the Scope of Services 
within the general scope of this AGREEMENT consisting of additions, deletions, or other 
revisions. If such changes cause a change in the CONSULTANT’s cost of, or time required for, 
completion of the Scope of Services, an equitable adjustment to CONSULTANT’s compensation 
and/or contract time shall be made, subject to the CITY’S approval. All such changes to the 
scope, schedule, or compensation shall be authorized in writing, executed by CONSULTANT 
and CITY. 

2. DURATION OF AGREEMENT. 

2.1. Term. The term of this AGREEMENT shall be for a period of one (1) year beginning from the 
date of execution of the AGREEMENT. Time is of the essence in the performance of work under 
this AGREEMENT, unless otherwise specified. 

2.2. Extensions.  If marked, the CITY shall have the option to extend the AGREEMENT for four 

(4) additional one (1) year period(s) or parts thereof for an amount not to exceed $4,000 per 
AGREEMENT year. Extensions shall be in the sole discretion of the City Manager and shall be 
based upon CONSULTANT’s satisfactory past performance, CITY needs, and appropriation of 
funds by the City Council. The CITY shall give written notice to CONSULTANT prior to exercising 
the option.  

~ 

mbavin
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 5



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 2 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

2.3. Delay. Any delay occasioned by causes beyond the control of CONSULTANT may merit an 
extension of time for the completion of the Scope of Services. When such delay occurs, 
CONSULTANT shall immediately notify the Project Coordinator in writing of the cause and the 
extent of the delay, whereupon the Project Coordinator shall ascertain the facts and the extent 
of the delay and grant an extension of time for the completion of the PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES when justified by the circumstances. 

2.4. City’s Right to Terminate for Default. Should CONSULTANT be in material default of any 
covenant or condition hereof, CITY may immediately terminate this AGREEMENT for cause if 
CONSULTANT fails to cure the default within ten (10) calendar days of receiving written notice 
of the default. 

2.5. City’s Right to Terminate without Cause. Without limiting its rights in the event of 
CONSULTANT’s default, CITY may terminate this AGREEMENT, without cause, by giving 
written notice to CONSULTANT. Such termination shall be effective upon receipt of the written 
notice. CONSULTANT shall be compensated for all effort and material expended on behalf of 
CITY under the terms of this AGREEMENT, up to and including the effective date of termination. 
All personal property remaining in CITY facilities or on CITY property thirty (30) days after the 
expiration or termination of this AGREEMENT shall be, at CITY’s election, considered the 
property of CITY. 

2.6. Consultant may terminate this AGREEMENT, without cause by giving thirty (30) days’ notice to 
CITY.  Consultant may, at its election, terminate or suspend performance under this 
AGREEMENT should CITY be in default of any covenant or condition hereof if CITY fails to cure 
the default within ten (10) calendar days of receiving written notice of default.  The time to perform 
services under this AGREEMENT shall be extended for any period of suspension. 

3. COMPENSATION. 

3.1. Total Amount. The total cost for all work described in the Scope of Services and Fee (Exhibit 
“A”) shall not exceed four thousand  dollars ($4,000) without prior written authorization from 
CITY. CONSULTANT shall bill the CITY for work provided and shall present a written request 
for such payment monthly.  

3.2. Additional Services. CITY may, as the need arises or in the event of an emergency, request 
additional services of CONSULTANT. Should such additional services be required, CITY and 
CONSULTANT shall agree to the cost prior to commencement of these services in writing, 
executed by CONSULTANT and CITY. 

3.3. Costs. Any costs billed to the CITY shall be in accordance with any terms negotiated and 
incorporated herein as part of Exhibit “A” Scope of Services and Fee.  

4. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  

4.1. CONSULTANT is, for all purposes arising out of this AGREEMENT, an independent contractor. 
The CONSULTANT has and shall retain the right to exercise full control and supervision of all 
persons assisting the CONSULTANT in the performance of said services hereunder, the CITY 
only being concerned with the finished results of the work being performed. Neither 
CONSULTANT nor CONSULTANT’s employees shall in any event be entitled to any benefits to 
which CITY employees are entitled, including, but not limited to, overtime, retirement benefits, 
workers’ compensation benefits, injury leave or other leave benefits. CONSULTANT is solely 
responsible for all such matters, as well as compliance with social security and income tax 
withholding and all other regulations and laws governing such matters. 

4.2  PERS Eligibility Indemnification.  In the event that CONSULTANT’s employee providing services 
under this Agreement claims or is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction or the California 
Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) to be eligible for enrollment in PERS of the CITY, 
Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless CITY for the payment of any employer 
and employee contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of the employee as well as for payment 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 3 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

of any penalties and interest on such contributions which would otherwise be the responsibility 
of the CITY.  Notwithstanding any other agency, state or federal policy, rule, regulation, law or 
ordinance to the contrary, CONSULTANT’s employees providing service under this Agreement 
shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any claims to, any 
compensation and benefit including but not limited to eligibility to enroll in PERS as an employee 
of CITY and entitlement to any contributions to be paid by CITY for employer contributions and/or 
employee contributions for PERS benefits.  This is a continuing obligation that survives the 
termination of this contract. 

5. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE.  

While performing the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, CONSULTANT shall exercise the reasonable 
professional care and skill customarily exercised by reputable members of CONSULTANT’s profession 
practicing in the metropolitan Southern California Area, and will use reasonable diligence and best judgment 
while exercising its professional skill and expertise. 

6. WARRANTY OF CONSULTANT’S LICENSE.  

CONSULTANT warrants that CONSULTANT is properly licensed with the applicable government 
agency(ies) for any PROFESSIONAL SERVICES that require a license. If the CONSULTANT lacks such 
license, this AGREEMENT is void and of no effect. 

7. AUDIT OF RECORDS.  

7.1. At any time during normal business hours and as often as may be deemed reasonably necessary 
the CONSULTANT shall make available to a representative of CITY for examination all of its 
records with respect to all matters covered by this AGREEMENT and shall permit CITY to audit, 
examine and/or reproduce such records. CONSULTANT shall retain such financial and program 
service records for at least four (4) years after termination or final payment under this 
AGREEMENT. 

7.2. The CONSULTANT shall include the CITY's right under this section in any and all of their 
subcontracts, and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all subcontractors. 

8. CONFIDENTIALITY AND SECURITY.  

8.1. Confidential Work Product. All professional services performed by CONSULTANT, including 
but not limited to all drafts, data, correspondence, proposals, reports, research and estimates 
compiled or composed by CONSULTANT, pursuant to this AGREEMENT, are for the sole use 
of the CITY, its agents and employees. Neither the documents nor their contents shall be 
released to any third party without the prior written consent of the CITY. This provision does not 
apply to information that (a) was publicly known, or otherwise known to CONSULTANT, at the 
time that it was disclosed to CONSULTANT by the CITY, (b) subsequently becomes publicly 
known through no act or omission of CONSULTANT, (c) otherwise becomes known to 
CONSULTANT other than through disclosure by the CITY, or (d) is required to be disclosed by 
court order or other legal demand requiring disclosure, in which case, CONSULTANT shall notify 
CITY in writing as soon as possible and before responding to such court order or legal demand. 
Except for any subcontractors that may be allowed upon prior agreement, neither the documents 
nor their contents shall be released to any third party without the prior written consent of the 
CITY. The sole purpose of this section is to prevent disclosure of CITY’s confidential and 
proprietary information by CONSULTANT or subcontractors. 

8.2. Confidentiality. Both parties recognize that their respective employees and agents, in the 
course of performance of this AGREEMENT, may be exposed to confidential information and 
that disclosure of such information could violate the rights of private individuals and entities, 
including the parties and third parties.  Confidential information is nonpublic information that a 
reasonable person would believe to be confidential and includes, without limitation, personal 
identifying information (e.g., social security numbers) and trade secrets, each as defined by 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 4 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

applicable state law, and all other information protected by applicable law (“Confidential 
Information”). The party receiving Confidential Information (“Receiving Party”) of the other 
(“Disclosing Party”) shall not, and shall cause its employees and agents who are authorized to 
receive Confidential Information, not to, use Confidential Information for any purpose except as 
necessary to implement, perform or enforce this AGREEMENT or comply with its legal 
obligations.  Receiving Party will use the same reasonable efforts to protect the Confidential 
Information of Disclosing Party as it uses to protect its own proprietary information and data.  The 
Receiving Party will not disclose or release Confidential Information to any third person without 
the prior written consent of the Disclosing Party, except for where required by law or for 
authorized employees or agents of the Receiving Party.  Prior to disclosing the Confidential 
Information to its authorized employees or agents, Receiving Party shall inform them of the 
confidential nature of the Confidential Information and require them to abide by the terms of this 
AGREEMENT. Receiving Party will promptly notify Disclosing Party if Receiving Party discovers 
any improper use or disclosure of Confidential Information and will promptly commence all 
reasonable efforts to investigate and correct the causes of such improper use or disclosure.  If 
Receiving Party believes the Confidential Information must be disclosed under applicable law, 
Receiving Party may do so provided that, to the extent permitted by law, the other party is given 
a reasonable notice and opportunity to contest such disclosure or obtain a protective order.  
Confidential Information does not include information that: (i)  is or becomes known to the public 
without fault or breach of the Receiving Party; (ii) the Disclosing Party regularly discloses to third 
parties without restriction on disclosure; or (iii) the Receiving Party obtains from a third party 
without restriction on disclosure and without breach of a non-disclosure obligation.  Confidential 
Information does not include any information that is required to be provided to the public pursuant 
to the laws of the United States and/or California such as the California Public Records Act, due 
to the nature of CITY being a local governmental agency.  The non-disclosure and non-use 
obligations of this AGREEMENT will remain in full force with respect to each item of Confidential 
Information for a period of ten (10) years after the Receiving Party’s receipt of that item. 

8.3. Security.   

8.3.1. Implementation. CONSULTANT shall implement commercially reasonable 
administrative, technical and physical safeguards designed to: (i) ensure the security 
and confidentiality of data and information provided by the CITY or used in 
connection with providing services under this AGREEMENT, including data or 
information about third parties (“CITY’S Data”); (ii) protect against any anticipated 
threats or hazards to the security or integrity of CITY’S Data; and (iii) protect against 
unauthorized access to or use of CITY’S Data.  CONSULTANT shall review and test 
such safeguards on no less than an annual basis. 

8.3.2. Network. If CONSULTANT makes CITY’S Data accessible through the Internet or 
other networked environment, CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for all 
aspects of Internet use, and shall maintain, in connection with the operation or use 
of CITY’S Data, adequate technical and procedural access controls and system 
security requirements and devices, necessary for data privacy, confidentiality, 
integrity, authorization, authentication and non-repudiation and virus detection and 
eradication. 

8.3.3. Personal Data.  If CONSULTANT processes or otherwise has access to any 
personal data or personal information on CITY’s behalf when performing 
CONSULTANT’s services and obligations under this AGREEMENT, then: (i) CITY 
shall be the data controller (where “data controller” means an entity which alone or 
jointly with others determines purposes for which and the manner in which any 
personal data are, or are to be, processed) and CONSULTANT shall be a data 
processor (where “data processor” means an entity which processes the data only 
on behalf of the data controller and not for any purposes of its own); (ii) CITY shall 
ensure that it has obtained all necessary consents and it is entitled to transfer the 
relevant personal data or personal information to CONSULTANT so that 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 5 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

CONSULTANT may lawfully use, process and transfer the personal data and 
personal information in accordance with this AGREEMENT on CITY’s behalf in order 
for CONSULTANT to provide the services and perform its other obligations under 
this AGREEMENT; (iii) CONSULTANT shall process the personal data and personal 
information only in accordance with any lawful and reasonable instructions given by 
CITY from time to time and in accordance with the terms of this AGREEMENT; and 
(iv) each party shall take appropriate technical and organizational measures against 
unauthorized or unlawful processing of the personal data and personal information 
or its accidental loss, destruction or damage so that, having regard to the state of 
technological development and the cost of implementing any measures, the 
measures taken ensure a level of security appropriate to the harm that might result 
from such unauthorized or unlawful processing or accidental loss, destruction or 
damage in relation to the personal data and personal information and the nature of 
the personal data and personal information being protected.  If necessary, the parties 
will cooperate to document these measures taken. 

8.3.4. Information Security. CONSULTANT represents and warrants that its collection, 
access, use, storage, disposal and disclosure of Confidential Information accessed 
and/or collected from CITY does and will comply with all applicable federal and state 
privacy and data protection laws. In the event of any security breach, CONSULTANT 
shall: (a) Provide CITY with the name and contact information for an employee who 
shall serve as CITY’s primary security contact and shall be available to assist CITY 
twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week as a contact in resolving 
obligations associated with a security breach; and (b) Notify CITY of a security breach 
as soon as practicable, but no later than twenty-four (24) hours after CONSULTANT 
becomes aware of it. Immediately following CONSULTANT’s notification to CITY of 
a security breach, the parties shall coordinate with each other to investigate the 
security breach.  CONSULTANT agrees to fully cooperate with CITY in CITY’s 
handling of the matter. CONSULTANT shall use best efforts to immediately remedy 
any security breach and prevent any further security breach at CONSULTANT’s own 
expense in accordance with applicable privacy rights, laws, regulations and 
standards.  CONSULTANT agrees to provide, at its expense, up to one year of credit 
monitoring services to third parties impacted by any data breach involving the loss of 
personally identifiable information.  

8.4. Indemnity.  CONSULTANT shall defend (with counsel acceptable to CITY), indemnify and hold 
CITY harmless from and against all claims, actions, proceedings, losses, costs (including 
attorney fees and other charges), liabilities, damages, judgments, settlements, and court 
awarded attorney’s fees resulting from, arising out of or related to a security or data breach 
unless the breach is proven to be caused solely by CITY.  The terms of this section shall survive 
termination of this AGREEMENT. For purposes of this provision, “security breach” means any 
act or omission that compromises either the security, confidentiality, or integrity of Confidential 
Information or the physical, technical, administrative or organizational safeguards put in place by 
CONSULTANT or any authorized persons that relate to the protection of the security, 
confidentiality or integrity of Confidential Information or a breach or alleged breach of this 
AGREEMENT relating to such privacy practices or privacy obligations imposed by any applicable 
law. 

8.5. Notice and Remedy of Breaches.  Each party shall promptly give notice to the other of any 
actual or suspected breach by it of any of the provisions of Section 8 of this AGREEMENT, 
whether or not intentional, and the breaching party shall, at its expense, take all steps reasonably 
requested by the other party to prevent or remedy the breach. 

8.6. Enforcement.  Each party acknowledges that any breach of any of the provisions of Section 8 
of this AGREEMENT may result in irreparable injury to the other for which money damages would 
not adequately compensate.  If there is a breach, then the injured party shall be entitled, in 
addition to all other rights and remedies which it may have, to have a decree of specific 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 6 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

performance or an injunction issued by any competent court, requiring the breach to be cured or 
enjoining all persons involved from continuing the breach. 

9. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.  

9.1. CONSULTANT shall at all times comply with all federal, state and local conflict of interest laws, 
regulations, and policies applicable to public contracts and procurement practices, including but 
not limited to California Government Code Section 81000 et seq. (Political Reform Act) and 
Section 1090 et seq. CONSULTANT shall immediately disqualify itself and shall not use its official 
position to influence in any way any matter coming before the CITY in which the CONSULTANT 
has a financial interest as defined in Government Code Section 87103. CONSULTANT 
represents that it has no knowledge of any financial interests which would require it to disqualify 
itself from any matter on which it might perform services for the CITY. 

9.2. If, in performing the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES set forth in this AGREEMENT, the 
CONSULTANT makes, or participates in, a “governmental decision” as described in Title 2, 
Section 18700.3(a) of the California Code of Regulations, or performs the same or substantially 
all the same duties for the CITY that would otherwise be performed by a CITY employee holding 
a position specified in the department's conflict of interest code, the CONSULTANT shall be 
subject to a conflict of interest code requiring the completion of one or more statements of 
economic interests disclosing the CONSULTANT’s relevant financial interests. 

9.3.  If checked, the CONSULTANT shall comply with all of the reporting requirements of the 
Political Reform Act. Specifically, the CONSULTANT shall file a Fair Political Practices 
Commission Form 700 (Assuming Office Statement) within thirty (30) calendar days of the CITY’s 
determination that the CONSULTANT is subject to a conflict of interest code. The CONSULTANT 
shall also file a Form 700 (Annual Statement) on or before April 1 of each year of the 
AGREEMENT, disclosing any financial interests held during the previous calendar year for which 
the CONSULTANT was subject to a conflict of interest code. 

9.4. CITY represents that pursuant to California Government Code Section 1090 et seq., none of its 
elected officials, officers, or employees has an interest in this AGREEMENT. 

10. DISPOSITION AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.  

10.1. All documents, data, studies, drawings, maps, models, photographs and reports prepared by 
CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT, whether paper or electronic, shall become the property 
of CITY for use with respect to this PROJECT, and shall be turned over to the CITY upon 
completion of the PROJECT or any phase thereof, as contemplated by this AGREEMENT.  

10.2. Contemporaneously with the transfer of documents, the CONSULTANT hereby assigns to the 
CITY and CONSULTANT thereby expressly waives and disclaims, any copyright in, and the right 
to reproduce, all written material, drawings, plans, specifications or other work prepared under 
this AGREEMENT, except upon the CITY’s prior authorization regarding reproduction, which 
authorization shall not be unreasonably withheld. The CONSULTANT shall, upon request of the 
CITY, execute any further document(s) necessary to further effectuate this waiver and 
disclaimer. 

10.3. Other than as stated in sections 10.1 and 10.2 above, each party acknowledges and agrees that 
each party is the sole and exclusive owner of all right, title and interest in and to its other services, 
products, software, source and object code, specifications, designs, techniques, concepts, 
improvements, discoveries, and inventions, including all intellectual property rights thereto, 
including without limitation and modifications, improvements or derivative works thereof, created 
prior to, or independently, during the term of this Agreement.  This Agreement does not affect 
the ownership of each party’s pre-existing, intellectual property.  Each party further 
acknowledges that it acquires no rights under this Agreement to the other party’s pre-existing 
intellectual property, other than any limited right explicitly ranted in this Agreement under section 
10.1 and 10.2. 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 7 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

11. INSURANCE 

11.1. CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain for the duration of the AGREEMENT insurance 
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in 
connection with the performance of the work hereunder and the results of that work by the 
CONSULTANT, their agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. Insurance shall be 
placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than “A” and “VII” unless 
otherwise approved in writing by the CITY’s Risk Manager. 

11.2. CONSULTANT’s liabilities, including but not limited to CONSULTANT’s indemnity obligations, 
under this AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed limited in any way to the insurance coverage 
required herein. All policies of insurance required hereunder must provide that the CITY is 
entitled to thirty (30) days prior written notice of cancellation or non-renewal of the policy or 
policies, or ten (10) days prior written notice for cancellation due to non-payment of premium. 
Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a material element of this AGREEMENT. 

11.3. Types and Amounts Required. CONSULTANT shall maintain, at minimum, the following 
insurance coverage for the duration of this AGREEMENT: 

11.3.1. Commercial General Liability (CGL). If checked the CONSULTANT shall 
maintain CGL Insurance written on an ISO Occurrence form or equivalent providing 
coverage at least as broad which shall cover liability arising from any and all personal 
injury or property damage in the amount of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence and subject 
to an annual aggregate of $2,000,000.00. There shall be no endorsement or 
modification of the CGL limiting the scope of coverage for either insured vs. insured 
claims or contractual liability. All defense costs shall be outside the limits of the policy. 

11.3.2. Commercial Automobile Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall maintain 
Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance for all of the CONSULTANT's 
automobiles including owned, hired and non-owned automobiles, automobile 
insurance written on an ISO form CA 00 01 12 90 or a later version of this form or an 
equivalent form providing coverage at least as broad for bodily injury and property 
damage for a combined single limit of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence. Insurance 
certificate shall reflect coverage for any automobile (any auto). 

11.3.3. Workers' Compensation. If checked the CONSULTANT shall maintain Worker’s 
Compensation insurance for all of the CONSULTANT's employees who are subject 
to this AGREEMENT and to the extent required by applicable state or federal law, a 
Workers' Compensation policy providing at minimum $1,000,000.00 employers' 
liability coverage. The CONSULTANT shall provide an endorsement that the insurer 
waives the right of subrogation against the CITY and its respective elected officials, 
officers, employees, agents and representatives. 

11.3.4. Professional Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall also maintain 
Professional Liability (errors and omissions) coverage with a limit of $1,000,000 per 
claim and $2,000,000 annual aggregate. The CONSULTANT shall ensure both that 
(1) the policy retroactive date is on or before the date of commencement of the Scope 
of Services; and (2) the policy will be maintained in force for a period of three years 
after substantial completion of the Scope of Services or termination of this 
AGREEMENT whichever occurs last. The CONSULTANT agrees that for the time 
period defined above, there will be no changes or endorsements to the policy that 
increase the CITY's exposure to loss. All defense costs shall be outside the limits of 
the policy. 

11.3.5. Cyber Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall also maintain Cyber Liability  
coverage on an occurrence basis with a limit of $2,000,000 per occurrence or claim 
and $2,000,000 annual aggregate.  Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond 
to the duties and obligations as are undertaken by CONSULTANT in this 
AGREEMENT and shall include claims involving infringement of intellectual property, 

□ 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 8 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

infringement of copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy violations, 
information theft, damage to or destruction of electronic information, release of 
private information, alteration of electronic information, extortion and network 
security. The policy shall provide coverage for breach response costs as well as 
regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses with limits 
sufficient to respond to such obligations.  All defense costs shall be outside the limits 
of the policy. 

11.4. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions are the 
responsibility of the CONSULTANT and must be declared to and approved by the CITY. At the 
option of the CITY, either (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured 
retentions as respects the CITY, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers, or (2) the 
CONSULTANT shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the CITY guaranteeing 
payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses. 

11.5. Additional Required Provisions. The commercial general liability and automobile liability 
policies shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

11.5.1. The CITY, its officers, officials, employees, and representatives shall be named as 
additional insureds. The CITY's additional insured status must be reflected on 
additional insured endorsement form (20 10 1185 or 20 10 1001 and 20 37 1001) 
which shall be submitted to the CITY.  

11.5.2. The policies are primary and non-contributory to any insurance that may be carried 
by the CITY, as reflected in an endorsement which shall be submitted to the CITY. 

11.6. Verification of Coverage. CONSULTANT shall furnish the CITY with original certificates and 
amendatory endorsements effecting coverage required by this Section 11. The endorsement 
should be on forms provided by the CITY or on other than the CITY’s forms provided those 
endorsements conform to CITY requirements. All certificates and endorsements are to be 
received and approved by the CITY before work commences. The CITY reserves the right to 
require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements 
affecting the coverage required by these specifications at any time. 

12. INDEMNIFICATION.  

CONSULTANT agrees to indemnify, defend (with counsel acceptable to CITY), and hold harmless the CITY, 
and its officers, officials, agents and employees from any and all claims, demands, costs or liabilities that 
arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONSULTANT, 
its employees, agents, and subcontractors in the performance of or failure to perform services or obligations 
under this AGREEMENT. CONSULTANT’s duty to indemnify under this section shall not include liability for 
damages for death or bodily injury to persons, injury to property, or other loss, damage or expense arising 
from the sole negligence or willful misconduct by the CITY or its elected officials, officers, agents, and 
employees. CONSULTANT's indemnification obligations shall not be limited by the insurance provisions of 
this AGREEMENT. The PARTIES expressly agree that any payment, attorney's fees, costs or expense CITY 
incurs or makes to or on behalf of an injured employee under the CITY's self-administered workers' 
compensation is included as a loss, expense, or cost for the purposes of this section, and that this section 
will survive the expiration or early termination of this AGREEMENT. 

13. SUBCONTRACTORS.  

13.1. The CONSULTANT’s hiring or retaining of third parties (i.e. subcontractors) to perform services 
related to the PROJECT is subject to prior approval by the CITY.  

13.2. All contracts entered into between the CONSULTANT and its subcontractor shall also provide 
that each subcontractor shall obtain insurance policies which shall be kept in full force and effect 
during any and all work on this PROJECT and for the duration of this AGREEMENT. The 
CONSULTANT shall require the subcontractor to obtain, all policies described in Section 11 in 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 9 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

the amounts required by the CITY, which shall not be greater than the amounts required of the 
CONSULTANT.  

13.3. In any dispute between the CONSULTANT and its subcontractor, the CITY shall not be made a 
party to any judicial or administrative proceeding to resolve the dispute. The CONSULTANT 
agrees to defend and indemnify the CITY as described in Section 12 of this AGREEMENT should 
the CITY be made a party to any judicial or administrative proceeding to resolve any such 
dispute. 

14. NON-DISCRIMINATION.  

CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, 
race, color, age, religion, ancestry, national origin, military or veteran status, disability, medical condition, 
genetic information, gender expression, marital status, or sexual orientation. CONSULTANT shall take 
affirmative action to insure that applicants are employed and that employees are treated during employment 
without regard to their sex, race, color, age, religion, ancestry, national origin, military or veteran status, 
disability, medical condition, genetic information, gender expression, marital status, or sexual orientation and 
shall make reasonable accommodation to qualified individuals with disabilities or medical conditions. Such 
action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, 
recruitment, or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, 
and selection for training, including apprenticeship. CONSULTANT agrees to post in conspicuous places 
available to employees and applicants for employment any notices provided by CITY setting forth the 
provisions of this non-discrimination clause. 

15. NOTICES.  

All communications to either party by the other party shall be delivered to the persons listed below. Any such 
written communications by mail shall be conclusively deemed to have been received by the addressee five 
(5) calendar days after the deposit thereof in the United States mail, postage prepaid and properly addressed 
as noted below. 

Joseph Lim, Community Development Director 

City of Solana Beach 

635 S. Highway 101 

Solana Beach, CA 92075 

Jonathan Kramer, President 

Telecom Law Firm, PC 

2001 South Barrington AVenue, Ste. 306 

Los Angeles, CA 90025 

16. ASSIGNABILITY.  

This AGREEMENT and any portion thereof shall not be assigned or transferred, nor shall any of the 
CONSULTANT’s duties be delegated or sub-contracted, without the express written consent of the CITY.  

17. RESPONSIBILITY FOR EQUIPMENT.  

CITY shall not be responsible nor held liable for any damage to persons or property consequent upon the 
use, misuse, or failure of any equipment used by CONSULTANT or any of CONSULTANT’s employees or 
subcontractors, even if such equipment has been furnished, rented, or loaned to CONSULTANT by CITY. 
The acceptance or use of any such equipment by CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s employees, or 
subcontractors shall be construed to mean that CONSULTANT accepts full responsibility for and agrees to 
exonerate, indemnify and hold harmless CITY from and against any and all claims for any damage 
whatsoever resulting from the use, misuse, or failure of such equipment. 

18. CALIFORNIA LAW; VENUE.  

This AGREEMENT shall be construed and interpreted according to the laws of the State of California. Any 
action brought to enforce or interpret any portion of this AGREEMENT shall be brought in the county of San 
Diego, California. CONSULTANT hereby waives any and all rights it might have pursuant to California Code 
of Civil Procedure Section 394. 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 10 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

19. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.  

The Consultant shall comply with all laws, ordinances, regulations, and policies of the federal, state, and 
local governments applicable to this AGREEMENT whether now in force or subsequently enacted. This 
includes maintaining a City of Solana Beach Business Certificate. 

20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  

This AGREEMENT sets forth the entire understanding of the PARTIES with respect to the subject matters 
herein. There are no other understandings, terms or other agreements expressed or implied, oral or written, 
except as set forth herein. No change, alteration, or modification of the terms or conditions of this 
AGREEMENT, and no verbal understanding of the PARTIES, their officers, agents, or employees shall be 
valid unless agreed to in writing by both PARTIES.  

21. NO WAIVER.  

No failure of either the City or the Consultant to insist upon the strict performance by the other of any 
covenant, term or condition of this AGREEMENT, nor any failure to exercise any right or remedy consequent 
upon a breach of any covenant, term, or condition of this AGREEMENT shall constitute a waiver of any such 
breach of such covenant, term or condition. 

22. SEVERABILITY.  

The unenforceability, invalidity, or illegality of any provision of this AGREEMENT shall not render any other 
provision unenforceable, invalid, or illegal. 

23. DRAFTING AMBIGUITIES.  

The PARTIES agree that they are aware that they have the right to be advised by counsel with respect to 
the negotiations, terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT, and the decision of whether or not to seek 
advice of counsel with respect to this AGREEMENT is a decision which is the sole responsibility of each 
Party. This AGREEMENT shall not be construed in favor of or against either Party by reason of the extent 
to which each Party participated in the drafting of the AGREEMENT. 

24. CONFLICTS BETWEEN TERMS.  

If an apparent conflict or inconsistency exists between the main body of this AGREEMENT and the Exhibits, 
the main body of this AGREEMENT shall control. If a conflict exists between an applicable federal, state, or 
local law, rule, regulation, order, or code and this AGREEMENT, the law, rule, regulation, order, or code 
shall control. Varying degrees of stringency among the main body of this AGREEMENT, the Exhibits, and 
laws, rules, regulations, orders, or codes are not deemed conflicts, and the most stringent requirement shall 
control. Each Party shall notify the other immediately upon the identification of any apparent conflict or 
inconsistency concerning this AGREEMENT. 

25. EXHIBITS INCORPORATED.  

All Exhibits referenced in this AGREEMENT are incorporated into the AGREEMENT by this reference. 

26. SIGNING AUTHORITY.  

26.1. The representative for each Party signing on behalf of a corporation, partnership, joint venture, 
association, or governmental entity hereby declares that authority has been obtained to sign on 
behalf of the corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, or entity and agrees to hold the 
other Party or PARTIES hereto harmless if it is later determined that such authority does not 
exist. 

26.2. If checked, a proper notary acknowledgement of execution by CONSULTANT must be 
attached. 
□ 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 11 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

27. WAIVER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES.  

Neither party shall have any claim or right against the other, whether in contract, warranty, tor (including 

negligence), strict liability or otherwise, for any special, indirect, incidental, or consequential damages of any 

king or nature, whatsoever, such as but not limited to loss of revenue, loss of profits on revenue, loss of 

customers or contracts, loss of use of equipment or loss of data, work interruption, increased cost of work or 

cost of any financing, howsoever, caused, even if same were reasonable foreseeable; provide, however, the 

forgoing shall not apply to with respect to indemnity obligation under the AGREEMENT. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES hereto have executed this AGREEMENT the day and year 

first hereinabove written. 

 

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, a municipal 

corporation  

CONSULTANT, a California Corporation  

 

By: 

 

By: 

City Manager, Gregory Wade  Signature 

 

 

Jonathan Kramer 
President 

ATTEST: 

 

 

City Clerk. Angela Ivey   

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

 

 

Joseph Lim, Community Development Director 
 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

City Attorney, Johanna N. Canlas 

 

 

 
  



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 12 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

SCOPE OF SERVICES AND FEE 

 



Exhibit A 
SCOPE OF WORK  

 
Upon the request of the City of Solana Beach, Consultant will provide technical 
and regulatory advice to City concerning applications for telecommunications 
facilities as follows: 
 
A. Wireless Siting Application Reviews: 
 
At the City’s request and within Consultant’s expertise as a wireless site application 
reviewer, Consultant will review wireless siting applications and provide the City 
with a written analysis as described within the below sections. 
 
1. Memorandum/Memoranda Content: 
 
a. Completeness Review for Wireless Projects: 
 
Upon receipt of a wireless application by the Consultant directly from the City, 
Consultant will identify the regulatory classification under which the project should 
be processed (i.e., Section 6409(a); SWF; standby power generator; major 
modification; etc.). Also, conduct a completeness review of the wireless application 
to evaluate its completeness with the City’s requirements and wireless policies. If 
there are incomplete items, the Consultant will send the City a “Completeness 
Review” by email or an attachment to an email. This portion of the work entails 
reviewing all submitted wireless application materials to the City as well as federal 
and state shot clock calculations. 
 
b. Project Memorandum: 
 
Once an application is determined by the City or deemed by law to be complete, 
per the City’s request, Consultant may provide the following services: 
 
i. Section 6409(a) Analysis: review section 6409(a) standards; draft analysis and 
recommendations. 
 
ii. SWF Analysis: review SWF standards; draft analysis and recommendations.  
 
iii. Power Generator Analysis: review power generator standards; draft analysis 
and recommendations.  
 
iv. Design Analysis: discuss design matters, if any, that may reduce the impact of 
the proposed site configuration; compare proposed design for compliance with City 
wireless ordinance and policy requirements; draft analysis and recommendations. 
 



v. Alternative Sites Analysis: evaluate time, place, and manner considerations for 
wireless sites; compare proposed location for compliance with City wireless 
ordinance and policy requirements; draft analysis and recommendations. 
vi. Radio Frequency FCC Compliance Analysis: assess the planned compliance 
with federal radio frequency exposure guidelines established by the Federal 
Communications Commission; draft analysis and recommendations. 
 
2. Work Product Revision: 
 
At City’s option, without an additional fee, Consultant shall prepare one revision or 
one follow-up to the TLF work product. All subsequent revisions or follow-ups are 
charged on an hourly basis per Exhibit B. 
 
3. Consultation Time: 
 
i. Consultant will provide consultation by telephone and/or through e-mail with the 
City per project at no additional cost for the flat fee portion of each project. 
 
ii. For any project where hourly charges apply (e.g., after the flat fee portion of a 
project), hourly fees per Exhibit B for consultations via telephone and/or email will 
apply. 
 
Both parties to this Agreement agree that every wireless project is unique as to 
location and design, and some projects may not proceed all the way to an approval 
or denial, or the project at a given location may be moved by an applicant to a 
different location. In those cases, an entirely new project review will be provided 
under a separate project and fee. 
 
B. Attendance at Meetings: 
 
As requested by City, and subject to Consultant’s availability, Consultant will attend 
meetings in person or by video link. For in-person meeting attendance travel time 
will be billed from Consultant’s office to and back from the City.  

 
C. General Consultation: 
 
At the City’s request, Consultant will engage with the City about any non-privileged 
communications within the competence of Consultant as determined by 
Consultant in any form on a time available basis of Consultant.  



Exhibit B 
FEE SCHEDULE 

 
 

The Consultant consults with and is responsible to the City. The City is responsible 
payment of for Consultant invoices.  Payment of Consultant’s invoices is not contingent 
upon the City receiving any deposit or reimbursement from any party. 
 
To allow the City to select those specific services desired on a flat fee(s) basis, or to have 
a project fully reviewed on a flat fee basis, TLF offers our services as set out below. The 
flat fees exclude hourly work such as meeting attendance as discussed below. 
 
In all cases project hours are not reported by Consultant for flat fee portion of flat fee 
projects. Consultant shall perform all flat-rate services as follows: 
 
I. A La Carte Service Fees:  
 

A. Services Provided on an A La Carte Basis 
 
• Exhibit A(1)(a) Completeness Review for Wireless Projects for a fixed fee of    
   $1,600.00 per project. 
 
• Exhibit A(1)(b)(i) Section 6409(a) Analysis for a fixed fee of $1,000.00 per project. 
 
• Exhibit A(1)(b)(ii) SWF Analysis for a fixed fee of $1,0000.00 per project.  
 
• Exhibit A(1)(b)(iii) Power Generator Analysis for a fixed fee of $1,200.00 per  
   project.  
 
• Exhibit A(1)(b)(iv) Design Analysis for a fixed fee of $1,000.00 per project. 
 
• Exhibit A(1)(b)(v) Alternative Sites Analysis for a fixed fee of $1,000.00 per  
   project. 
 
• Exhibit A(1)(b)(vi) Radio Frequency FCC Compliance Analysis for a fixed fee of  
  $1,900.00 per project. 

 
B. Services Provided on an All-Inclusive Basis 

 
• Exhibit A(1)(a)(b)(i)(ii)(iii)(iv)(v) All Applicable sections for Completeness Review 
for Wireless Projects; Section 6409(a) Analysis; SWF; Design Analysis; Alternative 
Sites Analysis; and Radio Frequency FCC Compliance Analysis for a fixed fee of 
$2,645.00 per project.  
 



The City has the option to choose from any or all of the A La Carte services, or it 
may select the All Inclusive Basis, which is discounted over the A La Carte 
offerings. 
 
Flat fee projects are billed to the City as a single unit on the first project invoice, 
which is issued upon submission of Consultant’s first review work product. The flat 
fee (and any subsequent hourly fees) are fully earned by and payable to 
Consultant once the Consultant has provided its first review work product to the 
City, even when the project is subsequently cancelled, abandoned, transferred to 
a different location. 

 
II. Hourly Fees: Consultant shall perform all services, outside of the Flat Fee scope, and 
all other extra services not described in the Scope of Work but mutually agreed upon by 
City and Consultant, on an hourly fee basis as follows: 

 
Personnel Rate: 
Per Partner or Senior Project Manager $ 330 
Per Associate/Of Counsel or Project Manager $ 280 
Per Paralegal or Senior Project Assistant $ 195 
Per Assistant or Project Assistant $ 95 
 
All time is billed in 0.1-hour (6 minute) units rounded up to the next 0.1-hour unit. 
 
There will not be any reimbursable expenses other than the travel expenses to and 
from the city and the Consultant’s LA office. 
 
3. Annual Fee Adjustment. There will not be an annual fee adjustment for the 5-
year term of this fee agreement.  
 
4. Expenses: City will reimburse the Consultant for all ordinary costs and expenses 
reasonably incurred by Consultant in performance of the services provided by 
Consultant to City pursuant to this proposal. 
 
 



 Exhibit C 
PROJECT TIME SCHEDULE 

 
 

Due to FCC shot clock time limitations, all wireless projects must be submitted to  
Consultant by the City in searchable PDF documents within two calendar days of 
receipt by the City from the Applicant (excluding holidays and City closures).  
 
Accordingly, Consultant urges City to enforce a wireless application requirement 
that obligates the applicant to tender the entire wireless application, including all 
exhibits and attachments, in searchable PDF format, as well as in paper form. 
 
Consultant shall complete all of the services identified within the Scope of Work 
the following timeline(s): 
 
For work within Exhibit A section (A)(1)(a): 
• nine (9) calendar days for an initial review of a wireless application that is 
submitted by the applicant as a SWF or a standby-power generator; or 
 
• twenty-one (21) calendar days for an initial review of a wireless application that 
is submitted by the applicant as a Non-SWF; or 
 
• nine (9) calendar days for a resubmittal review of a wireless application that was 
deemed incomplete for either SWF or Non-SWF. 
 
For work within Exhibit A section (A)(1)(b): 
 
• fourteen (14) calendar days for project memorandums. 
 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 1 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

City of Solana Beach 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
FOR CITATION PROCESSING SERVICES 

 THIS Professional Services Agreement (“AGREEMENT”) is made and entered into this 1st day of 
July, 2021 by and between the CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, a municipal corporation (“CITY”), and, Warwick 
Group Consultants, a proprietorship, (“CONSULTANT”) (collectively “PARTIES”). 

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to employ a CONSULTANT to furnish federal public affairs 
consulting services (“PROFESSIONAL SERVICES”) to seek federal appropriations for various City 
projects (“PROJECT”); and 

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that CONSULTANT is qualified by experience and ability 
to perform the services desired by CITY, and CONSULTANT is willing to perform such services; and 

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT will conduct all the work as described and detailed in this 
AGREEMENT to be provided to the CITY. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the PARTIES hereto mutually covenant and agree with each other as 
follows: 

1. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES. 
1.1. Scope of Services. The CONSULTANT shall perform the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES as set 

forth in the written Scope of Services, attached as Exhibit “A” Scope of Services and Fee, at the 
direction of the CITY. CITY shall provide CONSULTANT access to appropriate staff and 
resources for the coordination and completion of the projects under this AGREEMENT.  

1.2. Project Coordinator. The Community Development Director is hereby designated as the 
Project Coordinator for CITY and will monitor the progress and execution of this AGREEMENT. 
CONSULTANT shall assign a single Project Director to provide supervision and have overall 
responsibility for the progress and execution of this AGREEMENT for CONSULTANT. Howard 
Marlowe is hereby designated as the Project Director for CONSULTANT. 

1.3. City Modification of Scope of Services. CITY may order changes to the Scope of Services 
within the general scope of this AGREEMENT consisting of additions, deletions, or other 
revisions. If such changes cause a change in the CONSULTANT’s cost of, or time required for, 
completion of the Scope of Services, an equitable adjustment to CONSULTANT’s compensation 
and/or contract time shall be made, subject to the CITY’S approval. All such changes to the 
scope, schedule, or compensation shall be authorized in writing, executed by CONSULTANT 
and CITY. 

2. DURATION OF AGREEMENT. 
2.1. Term. The term of this AGREEMENT shall be for a period of one (1) year beginning from the 

date of execution of the AGREEMENT. Time is of the essence in the performance of work under 
this AGREEMENT, unless otherwise specified. 

2.2. Extensions.  If marked, the CITY shall have the option to extend the AGREEMENT for four 
(4) additional one (1) year periods or parts thereof for an amount not to exceed $59,340 per 
AGREEMENT year. Extensions shall be in the sole discretion of the City Manager and shall be 
based upon CONSULTANT’s satisfactory past performance, CITY needs, and appropriation of 
funds by the City Council. The CITY shall give written notice to CONSULTANT prior to exercising 
the option.  

[8J 

mbavin
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 6



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 2 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

2.3. Delay. Any delay occasioned by causes beyond the control of CONSULTANT may merit an 
extension of time for the completion of the Scope of Services. When such delay occurs, 
CONSULTANT shall immediately notify the Project Coordinator in writing of the cause and the 
extent of the delay, whereupon the Project Coordinator shall ascertain the facts and the extent 
of the delay and grant an extension of time for the completion of the PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES when justified by the circumstances. 

2.4. City’s Right to Terminate for Default. Should CONSULTANT be in material default of any 
covenant or condition hereof, CITY may immediately terminate this AGREEMENT for cause if 
CONSULTANT fails to cure the default within ten (10) calendar days of receiving written notice 
of the default. 

2.5. City’s Right to Terminate without Cause. Without limiting its rights in the event of 
CONSULTANT’s default, CITY may terminate this AGREEMENT, without cause, by giving 
written notice to CONSULTANT. Such termination shall be effective upon receipt of the written 
notice. CONSULTANT shall be compensated for all effort and material expended on behalf of 
CITY under the terms of this AGREEMENT, up to and including the effective date of termination. 
All personal property remaining in CITY facilities or on CITY property thirty (30) days after the 
expiration or termination of this AGREEMENT shall be, at CITY’s election, considered the 
property of CITY. 

2.6. Consultant may terminate this AGREEMENT, without cause by giving thirty (30) days’ notice to 
CITY.  Consultant may, at its election, terminate or suspend performance under this 
AGREEMENT should CITY be in default of any covenant or condition hereof if CITY fails to cure 
the default within ten (10) calendar days of receiving written notice of default.  The time to perform 
services under this AGREEMENT shall be extended for any period of suspension. 

3. COMPENSATION. 
3.1. Total Amount. The total cost for all work described in the Scope of Services and Fee (Exhibit 

“A”) shall not exceed fifty-nine thousand three hundred forty dollars ($59,340) without prior 
written authorization from CITY. CONSULTANT shall bill the CITY for work provided and 
shall present a written request for such payment monthly.  

3.2. Additional Services. CITY may, as the need arises or in the event of an emergency, request 
additional services of CONSULTANT. Should such additional services be required, CITY and 
CONSULTANT shall agree to the cost prior to commencement of these services in writing, 
executed by CONSULTANT and CITY. 

3.3. Costs. Any costs billed to the CITY shall be in accordance with any terms negotiated and 
incorporated herein as part of Exhibit “A” Scope of Services and Fee.  

4. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  
4.1. CONSULTANT is, for all purposes arising out of this AGREEMENT, an independent contractor. 

The CONSULTANT has and shall retain the right to exercise full control and supervision of all 
persons assisting the CONSULTANT in the performance of said services hereunder, the CITY 
only being concerned with the finished results of the work being performed. Neither 
CONSULTANT nor CONSULTANT’s employees shall in any event be entitled to any benefits to 
which CITY employees are entitled, including, but not limited to, overtime, retirement benefits, 
workers’ compensation benefits, injury leave or other leave benefits. CONSULTANT is solely 
responsible for all such matters, as well as compliance with social security and income tax 
withholding and all other regulations and laws governing such matters. 

4.2  PERS Eligibility Indemnification.  In the event that CONSULTANT’s employee providing services 
under this Agreement claims or is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction or the California 
Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) to be eligible for enrollment in PERS of the CITY, 
Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless CITY for the payment of any employer 
and employee contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of the employee as well as for payment 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 3 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

of any penalties and interest on such contributions which would otherwise be the responsibility 
of the CITY.  Notwithstanding any other agency, state or federal policy, rule, regulation, law or 
ordinance to the contrary, CONSULTANT’s employees providing service under this Agreement 
shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any claims to, any 
compensation and benefit including but not limited to eligibility to enroll in PERS as an employee 
of CITY and entitlement to any contributions to be paid by CITY for employer contributions and/or 
employee contributions for PERS benefits.  This is a continuing obligation that survives the 
termination of this contract. 

5. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE.  
While performing the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, CONSULTANT shall exercise the reasonable 
professional care and skill customarily exercised by reputable members of CONSULTANT’s profession 
practicing in the metropolitan Southern California Area, and will use reasonable diligence and best judgment 
while exercising its professional skill and expertise. 

6. WARRANTY OF CONSULTANT’S LICENSE.  
CONSULTANT warrants that CONSULTANT is properly licensed with the applicable government 
agency(ies) for any PROFESSIONAL SERVICES that require a license. If the CONSULTANT lacks such 
license, this AGREEMENT is void and of no effect. 

7. AUDIT OF RECORDS.  
7.1. At any time during normal business hours and as often as may be deemed reasonably necessary 

the CONSULTANT shall make available to a representative of CITY for examination all of its 
records with respect to all matters covered by this AGREEMENT and shall permit CITY to audit, 
examine and/or reproduce such records. CONSULTANT shall retain such financial and program 
service records for at least four (4) years after termination or final payment under this 
AGREEMENT. 

7.2. The CONSULTANT shall include the CITY's right under this section in any and all of their 
subcontracts, and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all subcontractors. 

8. CONFIDENTIALITY AND SECURITY.  
8.1. Confidential Work Product. All professional services performed by CONSULTANT, including 

but not limited to all drafts, data, correspondence, proposals, reports, research and estimates 
compiled or composed by CONSULTANT, pursuant to this AGREEMENT, are for the sole use 
of the CITY, its agents and employees. Neither the documents nor their contents shall be 
released to any third party without the prior written consent of the CITY. This provision does not 
apply to information that (a) was publicly known, or otherwise known to CONSULTANT, at the 
time that it was disclosed to CONSULTANT by the CITY, (b) subsequently becomes publicly 
known through no act or omission of CONSULTANT, (c) otherwise becomes known to 
CONSULTANT other than through disclosure by the CITY, or (d) is required to be disclosed by 
court order or other legal demand requiring disclosure, in which case, CONSULTANT shall notify 
CITY in writing as soon as possible and before responding to such court order or legal demand. 
Except for any subcontractors that may be allowed upon prior agreement, neither the documents 
nor their contents shall be released to any third party without the prior written consent of the 
CITY. The sole purpose of this section is to prevent disclosure of CITY’s confidential and 
proprietary information by CONSULTANT or subcontractors. 

8.2. Confidentiality. Both parties recognize that their respective employees and agents, in the 
course of performance of this AGREEMENT, may be exposed to confidential information and 
that disclosure of such information could violate the rights of private individuals and entities, 
including the parties and third parties.  Confidential information is nonpublic information that a 
reasonable person would believe to be confidential and includes, without limitation, personal 
identifying information (e.g., social security numbers) and trade secrets, each as defined by 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 4 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

applicable state law, and all other information protected by applicable law (“Confidential 
Information”). The party receiving Confidential Information (“Receiving Party”) of the other 
(“Disclosing Party”) shall not, and shall cause its employees and agents who are authorized to 
receive Confidential Information, not to, use Confidential Information for any purpose except as 
necessary to implement, perform or enforce this AGREEMENT or comply with its legal 
obligations.  Receiving Party will use the same reasonable efforts to protect the Confidential 
Information of Disclosing Party as it uses to protect its own proprietary information and data.  The 
Receiving Party will not disclose or release Confidential Information to any third person without 
the prior written consent of the Disclosing Party, except for where required by law or for 
authorized employees or agents of the Receiving Party.  Prior to disclosing the Confidential 
Information to its authorized employees or agents, Receiving Party shall inform them of the 
confidential nature of the Confidential Information and require them to abide by the terms of this 
AGREEMENT. Receiving Party will promptly notify Disclosing Party if Receiving Party discovers 
any improper use or disclosure of Confidential Information and will promptly commence all 
reasonable efforts to investigate and correct the causes of such improper use or disclosure.  If 
Receiving Party believes the Confidential Information must be disclosed under applicable law, 
Receiving Party may do so provided that, to the extent permitted by law, the other party is given 
a reasonable notice and opportunity to contest such disclosure or obtain a protective order.  
Confidential Information does not include information that: (i)  is or becomes known to the public 
without fault or breach of the Receiving Party; (ii) the Disclosing Party regularly discloses to third 
parties without restriction on disclosure; or (iii) the Receiving Party obtains from a third party 
without restriction on disclosure and without breach of a non-disclosure obligation.  Confidential 
Information does not include any information that is required to be provided to the public pursuant 
to the laws of the United States and/or California such as the California Public Records Act, due 
to the nature of CITY being a local governmental agency.  The non-disclosure and non-use 
obligations of this AGREEMENT will remain in full force with respect to each item of Confidential 
Information for a period of ten (10) years after the Receiving Party’s receipt of that item. 

8.3. Security.   
8.3.1. Implementation. CONSULTANT shall implement commercially reasonable 

administrative, technical and physical safeguards designed to: (i) ensure the security 
and confidentiality of data and information provided by the CITY or used in 
connection with providing services under this AGREEMENT, including data or 
information about third parties (“CITY’S Data”); (ii) protect against any anticipated 
threats or hazards to the security or integrity of CITY’S Data; and (iii) protect against 
unauthorized access to or use of CITY’S Data.  CONSULTANT shall review and test 
such safeguards on no less than an annual basis. 

8.3.2. Network. If CONSULTANT makes CITY’S Data accessible through the Internet or 
other networked environment, CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for all 
aspects of Internet use, and shall maintain, in connection with the operation or use 
of CITY’S Data, adequate technical and procedural access controls and system 
security requirements and devices, necessary for data privacy, confidentiality, 
integrity, authorization, authentication and non-repudiation and virus detection and 
eradication. 

8.3.3. Personal Data.  If CONSULTANT processes or otherwise has access to any 
personal data or personal information on CITY’s behalf when performing 
CONSULTANT’s services and obligations under this AGREEMENT, then: (i) CITY 
shall be the data controller (where “data controller” means an entity which alone or 
jointly with others determines purposes for which and the manner in which any 
personal data are, or are to be, processed) and CONSULTANT shall be a data 
processor (where “data processor” means an entity which processes the data only 
on behalf of the data controller and not for any purposes of its own); (ii) CITY shall 
ensure that it has obtained all necessary consents and it is entitled to transfer the 
relevant personal data or personal information to CONSULTANT so that 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 5 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

CONSULTANT may lawfully use, process and transfer the personal data and 
personal information in accordance with this AGREEMENT on CITY’s behalf in order 
for CONSULTANT to provide the services and perform its other obligations under 
this AGREEMENT; (iii) CONSULTANT shall process the personal data and personal 
information only in accordance with any lawful and reasonable instructions given by 
CITY from time to time and in accordance with the terms of this AGREEMENT; and 
(iv) each party shall take appropriate technical and organizational measures against 
unauthorized or unlawful processing of the personal data and personal information 
or its accidental loss, destruction or damage so that, having regard to the state of 
technological development and the cost of implementing any measures, the 
measures taken ensure a level of security appropriate to the harm that might result 
from such unauthorized or unlawful processing or accidental loss, destruction or 
damage in relation to the personal data and personal information and the nature of 
the personal data and personal information being protected.  If necessary, the parties 
will cooperate to document these measures taken. 

8.3.4. Information Security. CONSULTANT represents and warrants that its collection, 
access, use, storage, disposal and disclosure of Confidential Information accessed 
and/or collected from CITY does and will comply with all applicable federal and state 
privacy and data protection laws. In the event of any security breach, CONSULTANT 
shall: (a) Provide CITY with the name and contact information for an employee who 
shall serve as CITY’s primary security contact and shall be available to assist CITY 
twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week as a contact in resolving 
obligations associated with a security breach; and (b) Notify CITY of a security breach 
as soon as practicable, but no later than twenty-four (24) hours after CONSULTANT 
becomes aware of it. Immediately following CONSULTANT’s notification to CITY of 
a security breach, the parties shall coordinate with each other to investigate the 
security breach.  CONSULTANT agrees to fully cooperate with CITY in CITY’s 
handling of the matter. CONSULTANT shall use best efforts to immediately remedy 
any security breach and prevent any further security breach at CONSULTANT’s own 
expense in accordance with applicable privacy rights, laws, regulations and 
standards.  CONSULTANT agrees to provide, at its expense, up to one year of credit 
monitoring services to third parties impacted by any data breach involving the loss of 
personally identifiable information.  

8.4. Indemnity.  CONSULTANT shall defend (with counsel acceptable to CITY), indemnify and hold 
CITY harmless from and against all claims, actions, proceedings, losses, costs (including 
attorney fees and other charges), liabilities, damages, judgments, settlements, and court 
awarded attorney’s fees resulting from, arising out of or related to a security or data breach 
unless the breach is proven to be caused solely by CITY.  The terms of this section shall survive 
termination of this AGREEMENT. For purposes of this provision, “security breach” means any 
act or omission that compromises either the security, confidentiality, or integrity of Confidential 
Information or the physical, technical, administrative or organizational safeguards put in place by 
CONSULTANT or any authorized persons that relate to the protection of the security, 
confidentiality or integrity of Confidential Information or a breach or alleged breach of this 
AGREEMENT relating to such privacy practices or privacy obligations imposed by any applicable 
law. 

8.5. Notice and Remedy of Breaches.  Each party shall promptly give notice to the other of any 
actual or suspected breach by it of any of the provisions of Section 8 of this AGREEMENT, 
whether or not intentional, and the breaching party shall, at its expense, take all steps reasonably 
requested by the other party to prevent or remedy the breach. 

8.6. Enforcement.  Each party acknowledges that any breach of any of the provisions of Section 8 
of this AGREEMENT may result in irreparable injury to the other for which money damages would 
not adequately compensate.  If there is a breach, then the injured party shall be entitled, in 
addition to all other rights and remedies which it may have, to have a decree of specific 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 6 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

performance or an injunction issued by any competent court, requiring the breach to be cured or 
enjoining all persons involved from continuing the breach. 

9. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.  
9.1. CONSULTANT shall at all times comply with all federal, state and local conflict of interest laws, 

regulations, and policies applicable to public contracts and procurement practices, including but 
not limited to California Government Code Section 81000 et seq. (Political Reform Act) and 
Section 1090 et seq. CONSULTANT shall immediately disqualify itself and shall not use its official 
position to influence in any way any matter coming before the CITY in which the CONSULTANT 
has a financial interest as defined in Government Code Section 87103. CONSULTANT 
represents that it has no knowledge of any financial interests which would require it to disqualify 
itself from any matter on which it might perform services for the CITY. 

9.2. If, in performing the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES set forth in this AGREEMENT, the 
CONSULTANT makes, or participates in, a “governmental decision” as described in Title 2, 
Section 18700.3(a) of the California Code of Regulations, or performs the same or substantially 
all the same duties for the CITY that would otherwise be performed by a CITY employee holding 
a position specified in the department's conflict of interest code, the CONSULTANT shall be 
subject to a conflict of interest code requiring the completion of one or more statements of 
economic interests disclosing the CONSULTANT’s relevant financial interests. 

9.3.  If checked, the CONSULTANT shall comply with all of the reporting requirements of the 
Political Reform Act. Specifically, the CONSULTANT shall file a Fair Political Practices 
Commission Form 700 (Assuming Office Statement) within thirty (30) calendar days of the CITY’s 
determination that the CONSULTANT is subject to a conflict of interest code. The CONSULTANT 
shall also file a Form 700 (Annual Statement) on or before April 1 of each year of the 
AGREEMENT, disclosing any financial interests held during the previous calendar year for which 
the CONSULTANT was subject to a conflict of interest code. 

9.4. CITY represents that pursuant to California Government Code Section 1090 et seq., none of its 
elected officials, officers, or employees has an interest in this AGREEMENT. 

10. DISPOSITION AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.  
10.1. All documents, data, studies, drawings, maps, models, photographs and reports prepared by 

CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT, whether paper or electronic, shall become the property 
of CITY for use with respect to this PROJECT, and shall be turned over to the CITY upon 
completion of the PROJECT or any phase thereof, as contemplated by this AGREEMENT.  

10.2. Contemporaneously with the transfer of documents, the CONSULTANT hereby assigns to the 
CITY and CONSULTANT thereby expressly waives and disclaims, any copyright in, and the right 
to reproduce, all written material, drawings, plans, specifications or other work prepared under 
this AGREEMENT, except upon the CITY’s prior authorization regarding reproduction, which 
authorization shall not be unreasonably withheld. The CONSULTANT shall, upon request of the 
CITY, execute any further document(s) necessary to further effectuate this waiver and 
disclaimer. 

10.3. Other than as stated in sections 10.1 and 10.2 above, each party acknowledges and agrees that 
each party is the sole and exclusive owner of all right, title and interest in and to its other services, 
products, software, source and object code, specifications, designs, techniques, concepts, 
improvements, discoveries, and inventions, including all intellectual property rights thereto, 
including without limitation and modifications, improvements or derivative works thereof, created 
prior to, or independently, during the term of this Agreement.  This Agreement does not affect 
the ownership of each party’s pre-existing, intellectual property.  Each party further 
acknowledges that it acquires no rights under this Agreement to the other party’s pre-existing 
intellectual property, other than any limited right explicitly ranted in this Agreement under section 
10.1 and 10.2. 

~ 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 7 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

11. INSURANCE 
11.1. CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain for the duration of the AGREEMENT insurance 

against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in 
connection with the performance of the work hereunder and the results of that work by the 
CONSULTANT, their agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. Insurance shall be 
placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than “A” and “VII” unless 
otherwise approved in writing by the CITY’s Risk Manager. 

11.2. CONSULTANT’s liabilities, including but not limited to CONSULTANT’s indemnity obligations, 
under this AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed limited in any way to the insurance coverage 
required herein. All policies of insurance required hereunder must provide that the CITY is 
entitled to thirty (30) days prior written notice of cancellation or non-renewal of the policy or 
policies, or ten (10) days prior written notice for cancellation due to non-payment of premium. 
Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a material element of this AGREEMENT. 

11.3. Types and Amounts Required. CONSULTANT shall maintain, at minimum, the following 
insurance coverage for the duration of this AGREEMENT: 
11.3.1. Commercial General Liability (CGL). If checked the CONSULTANT shall 

maintain CGL Insurance written on an ISO Occurrence form or equivalent providing 
coverage at least as broad which shall cover liability arising from any and all personal 
injury or property damage in the amount of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence and subject 
to an annual aggregate of $2,000,000.00. There shall be no endorsement or 
modification of the CGL limiting the scope of coverage for either insured vs. insured 
claims or contractual liability. All defense costs shall be outside the limits of the policy. 

11.3.2. Commercial Automobile Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall maintain 
Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance for all of the CONSULTANT's 
automobiles including owned, hired and non-owned automobiles, automobile 
insurance written on an ISO form CA 00 01 12 90 or a later version of this form or an 
equivalent form providing coverage at least as broad for bodily injury and property 
damage for a combined single limit of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence. Insurance 
certificate shall reflect coverage for any automobile (any auto). 

11.3.3. Workers' Compensation. If checked the CONSULTANT shall maintain Worker’s 
Compensation insurance for all of the CONSULTANT's employees who are subject 
to this AGREEMENT and to the extent required by applicable state or federal law, a 
Workers' Compensation policy providing at minimum $1,000,000.00 employers' 
liability coverage. The CONSULTANT shall provide an endorsement that the insurer 
waives the right of subrogation against the CITY and its respective elected officials, 
officers, employees, agents and representatives. 

11.3.4. Professional Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall also maintain 
Professional Liability (errors and omissions) coverage with a limit of $1,000,000 per 
claim and $2,000,000 annual aggregate. The CONSULTANT shall ensure both that 
(1) the policy retroactive date is on or before the date of commencement of the Scope 
of Services; and (2) the policy will be maintained in force for a period of three years 
after substantial completion of the Scope of Services or termination of this 
AGREEMENT whichever occurs last. The CONSULTANT agrees that for the time 
period defined above, there will be no changes or endorsements to the policy that 
increase the CITY's exposure to loss. All defense costs shall be outside the limits of 
the policy. 

11.3.5. Cyber Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall also maintain Cyber Liability  
coverage on an occurrence basis with a limit of $2,000,000 per occurrence or claim 
and $2,000,000 annual aggregate.  Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond 
to the duties and obligations as are undertaken by CONSULTANT in this 
AGREEMENT and shall include claims involving infringement of intellectual property, 

□ 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 8 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

infringement of copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy violations, 
information theft, damage to or destruction of electronic information, release of 
private information, alteration of electronic information, extortion and network 
security. The policy shall provide coverage for breach response costs as well as 
regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses with limits 
sufficient to respond to such obligations.  All defense costs shall be outside the limits 
of the policy. 

11.4. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions are the 
responsibility of the CONSULTANT and must be declared to and approved by the CITY. At the 
option of the CITY, either (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured 
retentions as respects the CITY, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers, or (2) the 
CONSULTANT shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the CITY guaranteeing 
payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses. 

11.5. Additional Required Provisions. The commercial general liability and automobile liability 
policies shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 
11.5.1. The CITY, its officers, officials, employees, and representatives shall be named as 

additional insureds. The CITY's additional insured status must be reflected on 
additional insured endorsement form (20 10 1185 or 20 10 1001 and 20 37 1001) 
which shall be submitted to the CITY.  

11.5.2. The policies are primary and non-contributory to any insurance that may be carried 
by the CITY, as reflected in an endorsement which shall be submitted to the CITY. 

11.6. Verification of Coverage. CONSULTANT shall furnish the CITY with original certificates and 
amendatory endorsements effecting coverage required by this Section 11. The endorsement 
should be on forms provided by the CITY or on other than the CITY’s forms provided those 
endorsements conform to CITY requirements. All certificates and endorsements are to be 
received and approved by the CITY before work commences. The CITY reserves the right to 
require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements 
affecting the coverage required by these specifications at any time. 

12. INDEMNIFICATION.  
CONSULTANT agrees to indemnify, defend (with counsel acceptable to CITY), and hold harmless the CITY, 
and its officers, officials, agents and employees from any and all claims, demands, costs or liabilities that 
arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONSULTANT, 
its employees, agents, and subcontractors in the performance of or failure to perform services or obligations 
under this AGREEMENT. CONSULTANT’s duty to indemnify under this section shall not include liability for 
damages for death or bodily injury to persons, injury to property, or other loss, damage or expense arising 
from the sole negligence or willful misconduct by the CITY or its elected officials, officers, agents, and 
employees. CONSULTANT's indemnification obligations shall not be limited by the insurance provisions of 
this AGREEMENT. The PARTIES expressly agree that any payment, attorney's fees, costs or expense CITY 
incurs or makes to or on behalf of an injured employee under the CITY's self-administered workers' 
compensation is included as a loss, expense, or cost for the purposes of this section, and that this section 
will survive the expiration or early termination of this AGREEMENT. 

13. SUBCONTRACTORS.  
13.1. The CONSULTANT’s hiring or retaining of third parties (i.e. subcontractors) to perform services 

related to the PROJECT is subject to prior approval by the CITY.  
13.2. All contracts entered into between the CONSULTANT and its subcontractor shall also provide 

that each subcontractor shall obtain insurance policies which shall be kept in full force and effect 
during any and all work on this PROJECT and for the duration of this AGREEMENT. The 
CONSULTANT shall require the subcontractor to obtain, all policies described in Section 11 in 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 9 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

the amounts required by the CITY, which shall not be greater than the amounts required of the 
CONSULTANT.  

13.3. In any dispute between the CONSULTANT and its subcontractor, the CITY shall not be made a 
party to any judicial or administrative proceeding to resolve the dispute. The CONSULTANT 
agrees to defend and indemnify the CITY as described in Section 12 of this AGREEMENT should 
the CITY be made a party to any judicial or administrative proceeding to resolve any such 
dispute. 

14. NON-DISCRIMINATION.  
CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, 
race, color, age, religion, ancestry, national origin, military or veteran status, disability, medical condition, 
genetic information, gender expression, marital status, or sexual orientation. CONSULTANT shall take 
affirmative action to insure that applicants are employed and that employees are treated during employment 
without regard to their sex, race, color, age, religion, ancestry, national origin, military or veteran status, 
disability, medical condition, genetic information, gender expression, marital status, or sexual orientation and 
shall make reasonable accommodation to qualified individuals with disabilities or medical conditions. Such 
action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, 
recruitment, or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, 
and selection for training, including apprenticeship. CONSULTANT agrees to post in conspicuous places 
available to employees and applicants for employment any notices provided by CITY setting forth the 
provisions of this non-discrimination clause. 

15. NOTICES.  
All communications to either party by the other party shall be delivered to the persons listed below. Any such 
written communications by mail shall be conclusively deemed to have been received by the addressee five 
(5) calendar days after the deposit thereof in the United States mail, postage prepaid and properly addressed 
as noted below. 

Joseph Lim, Community Development Director 
City of Solana Beach 
635 S. Highway 101 

Solana Beach, CA 92075 

Howard Marlowe 
Warwick Group Consultants 

1667 K Street, NW, Suite 480 
Washington, DC 20006 

16. ASSIGNABILITY.  
This AGREEMENT and any portion thereof shall not be assigned or transferred, nor shall any of the 
CONSULTANT’s duties be delegated or sub-contracted, without the express written consent of the CITY.  

17. RESPONSIBILITY FOR EQUIPMENT.  
CITY shall not be responsible nor held liable for any damage to persons or property consequent upon the 
use, misuse, or failure of any equipment used by CONSULTANT or any of CONSULTANT’s employees or 
subcontractors, even if such equipment has been furnished, rented, or loaned to CONSULTANT by CITY. 
The acceptance or use of any such equipment by CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s employees, or 
subcontractors shall be construed to mean that CONSULTANT accepts full responsibility for and agrees to 
exonerate, indemnify and hold harmless CITY from and against any and all claims for any damage 
whatsoever resulting from the use, misuse, or failure of such equipment. 

18. CALIFORNIA LAW; VENUE.  
This AGREEMENT shall be construed and interpreted according to the laws of the State of California. Any 
action brought to enforce or interpret any portion of this AGREEMENT shall be brought in the county of San 
Diego, California. CONSULTANT hereby waives any and all rights it might have pursuant to California Code 
of Civil Procedure Section 394. 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 10 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

19. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.  
The Consultant shall comply with all laws, ordinances, regulations, and policies of the federal, state, and 
local governments applicable to this AGREEMENT whether now in force or subsequently enacted. This 
includes maintaining a City of Solana Beach Business Certificate. 

20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  
This AGREEMENT sets forth the entire understanding of the PARTIES with respect to the subject matters 
herein. There are no other understandings, terms or other agreements expressed or implied, oral or written, 
except as set forth herein. No change, alteration, or modification of the terms or conditions of this 
AGREEMENT, and no verbal understanding of the PARTIES, their officers, agents, or employees shall be 
valid unless agreed to in writing by both PARTIES.  

21. NO WAIVER.  
No failure of either the City or the Consultant to insist upon the strict performance by the other of any 
covenant, term or condition of this AGREEMENT, nor any failure to exercise any right or remedy consequent 
upon a breach of any covenant, term, or condition of this AGREEMENT shall constitute a waiver of any such 
breach of such covenant, term or condition. 

22. SEVERABILITY.  
The unenforceability, invalidity, or illegality of any provision of this AGREEMENT shall not render any other 
provision unenforceable, invalid, or illegal. 

23. DRAFTING AMBIGUITIES.  
The PARTIES agree that they are aware that they have the right to be advised by counsel with respect to 
the negotiations, terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT, and the decision of whether or not to seek 
advice of counsel with respect to this AGREEMENT is a decision which is the sole responsibility of each 
Party. This AGREEMENT shall not be construed in favor of or against either Party by reason of the extent 
to which each Party participated in the drafting of the AGREEMENT. 

24. CONFLICTS BETWEEN TERMS.  
If an apparent conflict or inconsistency exists between the main body of this AGREEMENT and the Exhibits, 
the main body of this AGREEMENT shall control. If a conflict exists between an applicable federal, state, or 
local law, rule, regulation, order, or code and this AGREEMENT, the law, rule, regulation, order, or code 
shall control. Varying degrees of stringency among the main body of this AGREEMENT, the Exhibits, and 
laws, rules, regulations, orders, or codes are not deemed conflicts, and the most stringent requirement shall 
control. Each Party shall notify the other immediately upon the identification of any apparent conflict or 
inconsistency concerning this AGREEMENT. 

25. EXHIBITS INCORPORATED.  
All Exhibits referenced in this AGREEMENT are incorporated into the AGREEMENT by this reference. 

26. SIGNING AUTHORITY.  
26.1. The representative for each Party signing on behalf of a corporation, partnership, joint venture, 

association, or governmental entity hereby declares that authority has been obtained to sign on 
behalf of the corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, or entity and agrees to hold the 
other Party or PARTIES hereto harmless if it is later determined that such authority does not 
exist. 

26.2. If checked, a proper notary acknowledgement of execution by CONSULTANT must be 
attached. □ 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 11 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

27. WAIVER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES.  

Neither party shall have any claim or right against the other, whether in contract, warranty, tor (including 
negligence), strict liability or otherwise, for any special, indirect, incidental, or consequential damages of any 
king or nature, whatsoever, such as but not limited to loss of revenue, loss of profits on revenue, loss of 
customers or contracts, loss of use of equipment or loss of data, work interruption, increased cost of work or 
cost of any financing, howsoever, caused, even if same were reasonable foreseeable; provide, however, the 
forgoing shall not apply to with respect to indemnity obligation under the AGREEMENT. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES hereto have executed this AGREEMENT the day and year 
first hereinabove written. 

 

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, a municipal 
corporation  

CONSULTANT, a California Corporation  

 

By: 
 

By: 

City Manager, Gregory Wade  Signature 

 
 

Howard Marlowe 
President 

ATTEST: 
 

 

City Clerk. Angela Ivey   

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
 

 

Joseph Lim, Community Development Director 
 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

City Attorney, Johanna N. Canlas 
 

 

 
  



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 12 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

SCOPE OF SERVICES AND FEE 
 



April 26, 2021   

Mr. Greg Wade 
City Manager 
City of Solana Beach 
635 S Highway 101 
Solana Beach, CA 92075 

Dear Greg: 

As we near the end of our contract this year, I would like to submit this letter as a proposal to continue 
working with you and your team to seek federal initial construction funding and a New Start designation 
in FY23 from the Corps of Engineers for the City’s beach nourishment project. 

More than 18 years ago, we brought this project to Washington, DC on behalf of the City to gain support 
from your congressional delegation and Corps senior leadership at Headquarters.  The Los Angeles District 
felt the project would not meet their standards because their engineering models were based on East 
Coast beaches where there are no bluffs.  We convinced Headquarters that the bluffs did not mean that 
people, property, and infrastructure were at as much risk as East Coast communities, and the study was 
able to begin. Since then, we have faced and overcome other major challenges that threatened the 
project’s future. We brought in the right personnel, connected with the right folks in the Corps’ leadership, 
and lobbied your Members of Congress to focus attention on your project. The results we have achieved 
over the past two years would not have been possible without your ongoing support and the support of 
your Mayor, city council, and your excellent team members. 

For well over a decade, we have led biweekly Project Delivery Team meetings with the Corps and your 
staff, which, as you know, helps the Corps remain on track and maintain the significant level of 
coordination necessary to advance this project on schedule. Warwick Group was successful in receiving 
$400,000 for the City in the FY20 Work Plan, which initiated the agreements necessary for the project to 
move into the Preconstruction, Engineering, and Design phase (PED). In FY21, Warwick Group was 
successful in receiving not one, but two full years’ worth of funding ($1,500,000) for the Corps of Engineers 
to fully complete the PED phase. This was a major victory because the Corps very rarely provides multi-
year funding. 

We have been in ongoing consultation with the Corps district office and Congressman Levin’s office 
regarding the federal fiscal 2022 budget package. Since the Corps received the full two-years of PED 
funding in FY21, the Congressman will not be making a FY22 request. As you know from your recent 

1717 K Street, NW, Suite 900, Washington, DC 20006 • 202.787.5770 • Fax 202.776.0136 • www.warwickconsultants.net 

A Limited Liability Company

Warwick Group 
CONSULTANTS 
- - 0 - -
Water Resources Policy, Public Finance & Advocacy 



1717 K Street, NW, Suite 900, Washington, DC 20006 • 202.787.5770 • Fax 202.776.0136 • www.warwickconsultants.net 
 

A Limited Liability Company 

communication with David Van Dorpe, the Corps plans to request the full construction amount in FY23 
and a New Start designation. This is a heavy lift for Congressman Levin, who has continued to demonstrate 
an outstanding level of support for your community’s project. We have developed a strong relationship 
with the Congressman’s staff and are an integral part of his advocacy efforts. We believe the level of 
support for this project at Corps Headquarters and within your delegation offers favorable chances of 
receiving both a New Start and initial construction funding in FY23.  
 
There has been increasing competition among beach nourishment projects over the past several years. 
However, according to our research, FY23 is a lighter budget year for beach nourishment funding 
competition. We must begin socializing the need for this project now because there are several other 
projects that are also competing for the small handful of available New Starts that Congress provides each 
year. Additional dredge cost savings are also possible based on the availability of a regional dredge plan 
used by the Portland District of the Corps. We specialize in this type of consulting work as well. Our team 
works closely with the Coastal Planning Center of Expertise (PCX) of the Corps based out of New York 
which has significant influence on decisions made at headquarters.   
 
Our scope of work for the upcoming year includes working directly with Congressman Levin, Senator 
Feinstein, and Senator Padilla to elevate this project and prioritize it with senior members of the Corps 
leadership at Headquarters and the Administration for the FY23 budget year. We are currently waiting for 
an Administration official to lead the Corps and will contact their office as soon as the position is filled. 
We will also consult with Corps district personnel and the Coastal PCX to determine the feasibility of 
coordinating a regional dredge program and making best use of any regionally available sediment to 
reduce total costs.  
 
We have been grateful for the opportunity to represent the City’s beach nourishment needs and would 
like to continue our longstanding partnership for another year. For the next contract period, we propose 
an annual fee of $59,340, which poses no increase from last years figure, which we reduced to limit the 
burden Covid-19 put on the City’s budget. 
 
I hope this proposal meets your approval and that we can continue working together to bring this project 
to the finish line. I hope to make it out to visit you and your staff in the next year. 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Howard Marlowe | President 
Warwick Group Consultants, LLC 
Howard.Marlowe@WarwickConsultants.Net 
(202) 787-5770 
 
  

mailto:Howard.Marlowe@WarwickConsultants.Net


COUNCIL ACTION: 
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________ 

AGENDA ITEM # A.12. 

STAFF REPORT 
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers  
FROM: Gregory Wade, City Manager  
MEETING DATE:  June 9, 2021 
ORIGINATING DEPT: Community Development Department 
SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution 2021-079 to Enter Into a 

Professional Service Agreement with EsGil, LLC for 
Building and Safety Plan Review and Inspection Services 

BACKGROUND: 

EsGil has been providing building plan review and inspection services for the City of 
Solana Beach since 1987.  The most recent professional service agreement (PSA) was 
effective on July 1, 2017 and was extended annually for an additional 4 years according 
to the contract’s terms.  No further time extensions are allowed under the PSA.  Thus, a 
new PSA is needed to continue building department services. 

This item is before Council to consider approving Resolution 2021-079 authorizing the 
City Manager to enter an agreement with EsGil, LLC for professional building and safety 
plan review and inspection services.   

DISCUSSION: 

In an effort to ensure that the City is receiving the best possible services at the best 
possible rate, Staff issued a Request for Qualifications/Proposals (RFQ/P) for building 
and safety services.  On March 1, 2021, the RFQ/P was released seeking proposals 
from qualified consulting firms for building and safety services that would include 
building administration, permit issuance, plan check, inspection, and as-needed support 
for public counter services, code enforcement and other Building code and fee updates. 
The deadline to submit responsive qualifications/proposals was April 15, 2021.  The City 
received seven submittals from qualified firms.  Those firms included 4Leaf, Bureau 
Veritas, Charles Abbott and Associates, CSG, EsGil, True North Compliance and 
Willdan. 



June 9, 2021 
PSA – Building Services 

Page 2 of 3

Staff reviewed all seven submittals and determined that interviews of the top five 
candidate firms were warranted.  The five firms that were interviewed included Bureau 
Veritas, Charles Abbott and Associates, CSG, EsGil and True North Compliance.  While 
all five firms have experience and expertise in providing Building and Safety Services, 
EsGil was determined to be the best candidate with the greatest understanding of the 
needs of the City of Solana Beach.  

Staff does not believe that transitioning to another firm at this time would result in 
improved services and, based on the submitted proposals, EsGil rates continue to be at 
or equal to the lowest rates offered by all consultants that responded.  EsGil continues 
to commit to having staff available for counter hours to be responsive to the public. 
While there is always room for improvement, EsGil has been responsive to City needs 
including, but not limited to, TRAKiT implementation and processing documentation, 
requests for specific staffing during transition to a new permit system, providing fire plan 
review and inspection services when needed, and most recently, seamlessly providing 
counter technician services. 

EsGil’s proposal also included alternatives for inspection services to be either hourly or 
at a set rate. While the option to pay EsGil for inspections on an hourly rate could 
possibly save a little money, the exact number of hours would at best be an estimate 
and could have the potential for costing more than the fixed rate option.  Because of this 
uncertainty, Staff recommends that entering the agreement at a set rate of fifty-five 
percent (55%) of plan check and permit fees for both plan review and inspection 
services. It should be noted that this is a substantially reduced from the previously 
approved contract of seventy-five percent (75%). 

Pursuant to Solana Beach Municipal Code section 3.08.140, because of their unique 
nature, it is in the best interest of the public, as allowed by state law, that contracts for 
professional services such as planning consultants and consultant services of a similar 
nature, be selected on the basis of demonstrated competence and on the professional 
qualifications necessary for the satisfactory performance of the services required, 
negotiated between parties rather than on the basis of cost alone. EsGil has 
demonstrated the competence and qualifications to satisfactorily perform the services at 
a fair and reasonable price. 

CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT: 

This is not a project under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Each year, the City allocates annual funds in its budget based on estimated plan check 
and permit fee activity and allocates fifty-five percent (55%) of the revenue to EsGil. 
The remaining forty-five percent (45%) is retained by the City.  Estimated building plan 
review and permit revenue is $630,000 annually.  If that estimate is accurate, the City 
would pay EsGil $346,500 with the remaining $283,500 being retained by the City.  The 



June 9, 2021 
PSA – Building Services 

Page 3 of 3

portion paid to EsGil pays for building department staff (building official, plans examiner, 
inspector, etc.) which would otherwise be staffed by regular fully-benefited employees of 
the City. Contracting for these services allows the City the flexibility to provide staffing 
based on the actual workload received during the fiscal year. The portion retained by 
the City recovers the cost for both City personnel and non-personnel building 
department expenses. 

WORK PLAN: N/A 

OPTIONS: 

∙ Authorize Staff recommendation.
∙ Do not authorize Staff recommendation.
∙ Provide alternative direction to Staff.

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that the City Council consider adoption of Resolution 2021-079 
(Attachment 1) authorizing the City Manager to execute a Professional Services 
Agreement with EsGil at the fixed rate of 55% of the building plan review and permit 
fees for one (1) year with four (4) additional one (1) year optional extensions at the City 
Manager’s discretion. 

CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Department Recommendation. 

_________________________ 
Gregory Wade, City Manager  

Attachments:  

1. Resolution No. 2021-079
2. Proposed Professional Services Agreement – EsGil



  RESOLUTION 2021-079 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING A 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH ESGIL, 
LLC FOR BUILDING AND SAFETY PLAN REVIEW AND 
INSPECTION SERVICES  

 
 WHEREAS, the Community Development Department has utilized the services of 
EsGil, LLC (EsGil) to provide professional building and safety plan review and 
inspections services for many years; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 1, 2021, a Request for Qualifications/Proposals was 
released seeking proposals from qualified consulting firms for building and safety 
services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Solana Beach Municipal Code section 3.08.140, because 
of their unique nature, it is in the best interest of the public, as allowed by state law, that 
contracts for professional services such as planning consultants and consultant services 
of a similar nature, be selected on the basis of demonstrated competence and on the 
professional qualifications necessary for the satisfactory performance of the services 
required, negotiated between parties rather than on the basis of cost alone; and 
 
 WHEREAS, EsGil was determined to be the best candidate with the greatest 
understanding of the needs of the City of Solana Beach and demonstrated the 
competence and qualifications to satisfactorily perform the services at a fair and 
reasonable price. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach does resolve as 
follows: 

 
1. That the foregoing recitations are true and correct. 

 
2. That the City Manager is authorized to execute a professional service agreement 

with EsGil to provide professional building plan review and inspection services at 
the fixed rate of 55% of the building plan review and permit fees. 
 

3. That the City Council authorizes the City Manager, in his discretion, to extend the 
agreements for four additional one-year terms, at the City’s sole option. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

mbavin
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 1



Resolution 2021-079 
EsGil PSA 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of June, 2021, at a regularly scheduled 
meeting of the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California by the following vote: 
      

AYES:   Councilmembers –  
NOES:   Councilmembers –  
ABSTAIN:  Councilmembers – 
ABSENT:   Councilmembers – 
 
 

______________________________ 
LESA HEEBNER, Mayor 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
JOHANNA N. CANLAS, City Attorney  ANGELA IVEY, City Clerk 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 1 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

City of Solana Beach 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
FOR BUILDING AND SAFETY SERVICES 

 THIS Professional Services Agreement (“AGREEMENT”) is made and entered into this 1st day of 
July, 2021 by and between the CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, a municipal corporation (“CITY”), and, 
EsGil/SAFEbuilt a Corporation, (“CONSULTANT”) (collectively “PARTIES”). 

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to employ a CONSULTANT to furnish Building and Safety 
services (“PROFESSIONAL SERVICES”) for City Plan Review and Inspections (“PROJECT”); and 

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that CONSULTANT is qualified by experience and ability 
to perform the services desired by CITY, and CONSULTANT is willing to perform such services; and 

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT will conduct all the work as described and detailed in this 
AGREEMENT to be provided to the CITY. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the PARTIES hereto mutually covenant and agree with each other as 
follows: 

1. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES. 
1.1. Scope of Services. The CONSULTANT shall perform the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES as set 

forth in the written Scope of Services, attached as Exhibit “A” Scope of Services and Fee, at the 
direction of the CITY. CITY shall provide CONSULTANT access to appropriate staff and 
resources for the coordination and completion of the projects under this AGREEMENT.  

1.2. Project Coordinator. The Community Development Director is hereby designated as the 
Project Coordinator for CITY and will monitor the progress and execution of this AGREEMENT. 
CONSULTANT shall assign a single Project Director to provide supervision and have overall 
responsibility for the progress and execution of this AGREEMENT for CONSULTANT. Ron 
Beehler is hereby designated as the Project Director for CONSULTANT. 

1.3. City Modification of Scope of Services. CITY may order changes to the Scope of Services 
within the general scope of this AGREEMENT consisting of additions, deletions, or other 
revisions. If such changes cause a change in the CONSULTANT’s cost of, or time required for, 
completion of the Scope of Services, an equitable adjustment to CONSULTANT’s compensation 
and/or contract time shall be made, subject to the CITY’S approval. All such changes to the 
scope, schedule, or compensation shall be authorized in writing, executed by CONSULTANT 
and CITY. 

2. DURATION OF AGREEMENT. 
2.1. Term. The term of this AGREEMENT shall be for a period of one (1) year beginning from the 

date of execution of the AGREEMENT. Time is of the essence in the performance of work under 
this AGREEMENT, unless otherwise specified. 

2.2. Extensions.  If marked, the CITY shall have the option to extend the AGREEMENT for four 
(4) additional one (1) year periods or parts thereof for an open-ended amount, funded by pass-
through fees collected from property owners at the time of project application submittal per 
AGREEMENT year. Extensions shall be in the sole discretion of the City Manager and shall be 
based upon CONSULTANT’s satisfactory past performance, CITY needs, and appropriation of 
funds by the City Council. The CITY shall give written notice to CONSULTANT prior to exercising 
the option.  

[8J 

mbavin
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 2



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 2 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

2.3. Delay. Any delay occasioned by causes beyond the control of CONSULTANT may merit an 
extension of time for the completion of the Scope of Services. When such delay occurs, 
CONSULTANT shall immediately notify the Project Coordinator in writing of the cause and the 
extent of the delay, whereupon the Project Coordinator shall ascertain the facts and the extent 
of the delay and grant an extension of time for the completion of the PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES when justified by the circumstances. 

2.4. City’s Right to Terminate for Default. Should CONSULTANT be in material default of any 
covenant or condition hereof, CITY may immediately terminate this AGREEMENT for cause if 
CONSULTANT fails to cure the default within ten (10) calendar days of receiving written notice 
of the default. 

2.5. City’s Right to Terminate without Cause. Without limiting its rights in the event of 
CONSULTANT’s default, CITY may terminate this AGREEMENT, without cause, by giving 
written notice to CONSULTANT. Such termination shall be effective upon receipt of the written 
notice. CONSULTANT shall be compensated for all effort and material expended on behalf of 
CITY under the terms of this AGREEMENT, up to and including the effective date of termination. 
All personal property remaining in CITY facilities or on CITY property thirty (30) days after the 
expiration or termination of this AGREEMENT shall be, at CITY’s election, considered the 
property of CITY. 

2.6. Consultant may terminate this AGREEMENT, without cause by giving thirty (30) days’ notice to 
CITY.  Consultant may, at its election, terminate or suspend performance under this 
AGREEMENT should CITY be in default of any covenant or condition hereof if CITY fails to cure 
the default within ten (10) calendar days of receiving written notice of default.  The time to perform 
services under this AGREEMENT shall be extended for any period of suspension. 

3. COMPENSATION. 
3.1. Total Amount. The total cost for all work described in the Scope of Services and Fee (Exhibit 

“A”) shall be for an open-ended amount, funded by pass-through fees collected from the property 
owners at the time of application submittal. CONSULTANT shall bill the CITY for work provided 
and shall present a written request for such payment monthly.  

3.2. Additional Services. CITY may, as the need arises or in the event of an emergency, request 
additional services of CONSULTANT. Should such additional services be required, CITY and 
CONSULTANT shall agree to the cost prior to commencement of these services in writing, 
executed by CONSULTANT and CITY. 

3.3. Costs. Any costs billed to the CITY shall be in accordance with any terms negotiated and 
incorporated herein as part of Exhibit “A” Scope of Services and Fee.  

4. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  
4.1. CONSULTANT is, for all purposes arising out of this AGREEMENT, an independent contractor. 

The CONSULTANT has and shall retain the right to exercise full control and supervision of all 
persons assisting the CONSULTANT in the performance of said services hereunder, the CITY 
only being concerned with the finished results of the work being performed. Neither 
CONSULTANT nor CONSULTANT’s employees shall in any event be entitled to any benefits to 
which CITY employees are entitled, including, but not limited to, overtime, retirement benefits, 
workers’ compensation benefits, injury leave or other leave benefits. CONSULTANT is solely 
responsible for all such matters, as well as compliance with social security and income tax 
withholding and all other regulations and laws governing such matters. 

4.2  PERS Eligibility Indemnification.  In the event that CONSULTANT’s employee providing services 
under this Agreement claims or is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction or the California 
Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) to be eligible for enrollment in PERS of the CITY, 
Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless CITY for the payment of any employer 
and employee contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of the employee as well as for payment 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 3 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

of any penalties and interest on such contributions which would otherwise be the responsibility 
of the CITY.  Notwithstanding any other agency, state or federal policy, rule, regulation, law or 
ordinance to the contrary, CONSULTANT’s employees providing service under this Agreement 
shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any claims to, any 
compensation and benefit including but not limited to eligibility to enroll in PERS as an employee 
of CITY and entitlement to any contributions to be paid by CITY for employer contributions and/or 
employee contributions for PERS benefits.  This is a continuing obligation that survives the 
termination of this contract. 

5. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE.  
While performing the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, CONSULTANT shall exercise the reasonable 
professional care and skill customarily exercised by reputable members of CONSULTANT’s profession 
practicing in the metropolitan Southern California Area, and will use reasonable diligence and best judgment 
while exercising its professional skill and expertise. 

6. WARRANTY OF CONSULTANT’S LICENSE.  
CONSULTANT warrants that CONSULTANT is properly licensed with the applicable government 
agency(ies) for any PROFESSIONAL SERVICES that require a license. If the CONSULTANT lacks such 
license, this AGREEMENT is void and of no effect. 

7. AUDIT OF RECORDS.  
7.1. At any time during normal business hours and as often as may be deemed reasonably necessary 

the CONSULTANT shall make available to a representative of CITY for examination all of its 
records with respect to all matters covered by this AGREEMENT and shall permit CITY to audit, 
examine and/or reproduce such records. CONSULTANT shall retain such financial and program 
service records for at least four (4) years after termination or final payment under this 
AGREEMENT. 

7.2. The CONSULTANT shall include the CITY's right under this section in any and all of their 
subcontracts, and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all subcontractors. 

8. CONFIDENTIALITY AND SECURITY.  
8.1. Confidential Work Product. All professional services performed by CONSULTANT, including 

but not limited to all drafts, data, correspondence, proposals, reports, research and estimates 
compiled or composed by CONSULTANT, pursuant to this AGREEMENT, are for the sole use 
of the CITY, its agents and employees. Neither the documents nor their contents shall be 
released to any third party without the prior written consent of the CITY. This provision does not 
apply to information that (a) was publicly known, or otherwise known to CONSULTANT, at the 
time that it was disclosed to CONSULTANT by the CITY, (b) subsequently becomes publicly 
known through no act or omission of CONSULTANT, (c) otherwise becomes known to 
CONSULTANT other than through disclosure by the CITY, or (d) is required to be disclosed by 
court order or other legal demand requiring disclosure, in which case, CONSULTANT shall notify 
CITY in writing as soon as possible and before responding to such court order or legal demand. 
Except for any subcontractors that may be allowed upon prior agreement, neither the documents 
nor their contents shall be released to any third party without the prior written consent of the 
CITY. The sole purpose of this section is to prevent disclosure of CITY’s confidential and 
proprietary information by CONSULTANT or subcontractors. 

8.2. Confidentiality. Both parties recognize that their respective employees and agents, in the 
course of performance of this AGREEMENT, may be exposed to confidential information and 
that disclosure of such information could violate the rights of private individuals and entities, 
including the parties and third parties.  Confidential information is nonpublic information that a 
reasonable person would believe to be confidential and includes, without limitation, personal 
identifying information (e.g., social security numbers) and trade secrets, each as defined by 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 4 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

applicable state law, and all other information protected by applicable law (“Confidential 
Information”). The party receiving Confidential Information (“Receiving Party”) of the other 
(“Disclosing Party”) shall not, and shall cause its employees and agents who are authorized to 
receive Confidential Information, not to, use Confidential Information for any purpose except as 
necessary to implement, perform or enforce this AGREEMENT or comply with its legal 
obligations.  Receiving Party will use the same reasonable efforts to protect the Confidential 
Information of Disclosing Party as it uses to protect its own proprietary information and data.  The 
Receiving Party will not disclose or release Confidential Information to any third person without 
the prior written consent of the Disclosing Party, except for where required by law or for 
authorized employees or agents of the Receiving Party.  Prior to disclosing the Confidential 
Information to its authorized employees or agents, Receiving Party shall inform them of the 
confidential nature of the Confidential Information and require them to abide by the terms of this 
AGREEMENT. Receiving Party will promptly notify Disclosing Party if Receiving Party discovers 
any improper use or disclosure of Confidential Information and will promptly commence all 
reasonable efforts to investigate and correct the causes of such improper use or disclosure.  If 
Receiving Party believes the Confidential Information must be disclosed under applicable law, 
Receiving Party may do so provided that, to the extent permitted by law, the other party is given 
a reasonable notice and opportunity to contest such disclosure or obtain a protective order.  
Confidential Information does not include information that: (i)  is or becomes known to the public 
without fault or breach of the Receiving Party; (ii) the Disclosing Party regularly discloses to third 
parties without restriction on disclosure; or (iii) the Receiving Party obtains from a third party 
without restriction on disclosure and without breach of a non-disclosure obligation.  Confidential 
Information does not include any information that is required to be provided to the public pursuant 
to the laws of the United States and/or California such as the California Public Records Act, due 
to the nature of CITY being a local governmental agency.  The non-disclosure and non-use 
obligations of this AGREEMENT will remain in full force with respect to each item of Confidential 
Information for a period of ten (10) years after the Receiving Party’s receipt of that item. 

8.3. Security.   
8.3.1. Implementation. CONSULTANT shall implement commercially reasonable 

administrative, technical and physical safeguards designed to: (i) ensure the security 
and confidentiality of data and information provided by the CITY or used in 
connection with providing services under this AGREEMENT, including data or 
information about third parties (“CITY’S Data”); (ii) protect against any anticipated 
threats or hazards to the security or integrity of CITY’S Data; and (iii) protect against 
unauthorized access to or use of CITY’S Data.  CONSULTANT shall review and test 
such safeguards on no less than an annual basis. 

8.3.2. Network. If CONSULTANT makes CITY’S Data accessible through the Internet or 
other networked environment, CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for all 
aspects of Internet use, and shall maintain, in connection with the operation or use 
of CITY’S Data, adequate technical and procedural access controls and system 
security requirements and devices, necessary for data privacy, confidentiality, 
integrity, authorization, authentication and non-repudiation and virus detection and 
eradication. 

8.3.3. Personal Data.  If CONSULTANT processes or otherwise has access to any 
personal data or personal information on CITY’s behalf when performing 
CONSULTANT’s services and obligations under this AGREEMENT, then: (i) CITY 
shall be the data controller (where “data controller” means an entity which alone or 
jointly with others determines purposes for which and the manner in which any 
personal data are, or are to be, processed) and CONSULTANT shall be a data 
processor (where “data processor” means an entity which processes the data only 
on behalf of the data controller and not for any purposes of its own); (ii) CITY shall 
ensure that it has obtained all necessary consents and it is entitled to transfer the 
relevant personal data or personal information to CONSULTANT so that 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 5 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

CONSULTANT may lawfully use, process and transfer the personal data and 
personal information in accordance with this AGREEMENT on CITY’s behalf in order 
for CONSULTANT to provide the services and perform its other obligations under 
this AGREEMENT; (iii) CONSULTANT shall process the personal data and personal 
information only in accordance with any lawful and reasonable instructions given by 
CITY from time to time and in accordance with the terms of this AGREEMENT; and 
(iv) each party shall take appropriate technical and organizational measures against 
unauthorized or unlawful processing of the personal data and personal information 
or its accidental loss, destruction or damage so that, having regard to the state of 
technological development and the cost of implementing any measures, the 
measures taken ensure a level of security appropriate to the harm that might result 
from such unauthorized or unlawful processing or accidental loss, destruction or 
damage in relation to the personal data and personal information and the nature of 
the personal data and personal information being protected.  If necessary, the parties 
will cooperate to document these measures taken. 

8.3.4. Information Security. CONSULTANT represents and warrants that its collection, 
access, use, storage, disposal and disclosure of Confidential Information accessed 
and/or collected from CITY does and will comply with all applicable federal and state 
privacy and data protection laws. In the event of any security breach, CONSULTANT 
shall: (a) Provide CITY with the name and contact information for an employee who 
shall serve as CITY’s primary security contact and shall be available to assist CITY 
twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week as a contact in resolving 
obligations associated with a security breach; and (b) Notify CITY of a security breach 
as soon as practicable, but no later than twenty-four (24) hours after CONSULTANT 
becomes aware of it. Immediately following CONSULTANT’s notification to CITY of 
a security breach, the parties shall coordinate with each other to investigate the 
security breach.  CONSULTANT agrees to fully cooperate with CITY in CITY’s 
handling of the matter. CONSULTANT shall use best efforts to immediately remedy 
any security breach and prevent any further security breach at CONSULTANT’s own 
expense in accordance with applicable privacy rights, laws, regulations and 
standards.  CONSULTANT agrees to provide, at its expense, up to one year of credit 
monitoring services to third parties impacted by any data breach involving the loss of 
personally identifiable information.  

8.4. Indemnity.  CONSULTANT shall defend (with counsel acceptable to CITY), indemnify and hold 
CITY harmless from and against all claims, actions, proceedings, losses, costs (including 
attorney fees and other charges), liabilities, damages, judgments, settlements, and court 
awarded attorney’s fees resulting from, arising out of or related to a security or data breach 
unless the breach is proven to be caused solely by CITY.  The terms of this section shall survive 
termination of this AGREEMENT. For purposes of this provision, “security breach” means any 
act or omission that compromises either the security, confidentiality, or integrity of Confidential 
Information or the physical, technical, administrative or organizational safeguards put in place by 
CONSULTANT or any authorized persons that relate to the protection of the security, 
confidentiality or integrity of Confidential Information or a breach or alleged breach of this 
AGREEMENT relating to such privacy practices or privacy obligations imposed by any applicable 
law. 

8.5. Notice and Remedy of Breaches.  Each party shall promptly give notice to the other of any 
actual or suspected breach by it of any of the provisions of Section 8 of this AGREEMENT, 
whether or not intentional, and the breaching party shall, at its expense, take all steps reasonably 
requested by the other party to prevent or remedy the breach. 

8.6. Enforcement.  Each party acknowledges that any breach of any of the provisions of Section 8 
of this AGREEMENT may result in irreparable injury to the other for which money damages would 
not adequately compensate.  If there is a breach, then the injured party shall be entitled, in 
addition to all other rights and remedies which it may have, to have a decree of specific 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 6 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

performance or an injunction issued by any competent court, requiring the breach to be cured or 
enjoining all persons involved from continuing the breach. 

9. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.  
9.1. CONSULTANT shall at all times comply with all federal, state and local conflict of interest laws, 

regulations, and policies applicable to public contracts and procurement practices, including but 
not limited to California Government Code Section 81000 et seq. (Political Reform Act) and 
Section 1090 et seq. CONSULTANT shall immediately disqualify itself and shall not use its official 
position to influence in any way any matter coming before the CITY in which the CONSULTANT 
has a financial interest as defined in Government Code Section 87103. CONSULTANT 
represents that it has no knowledge of any financial interests which would require it to disqualify 
itself from any matter on which it might perform services for the CITY. 

9.2. If, in performing the PROFESSIONAL SERVICES set forth in this AGREEMENT, the 
CONSULTANT makes, or participates in, a “governmental decision” as described in Title 2, 
Section 18700.3(a) of the California Code of Regulations, or performs the same or substantially 
all the same duties for the CITY that would otherwise be performed by a CITY employee holding 
a position specified in the department's conflict of interest code, the CONSULTANT shall be 
subject to a conflict of interest code requiring the completion of one or more statements of 
economic interests disclosing the CONSULTANT’s relevant financial interests. 

9.3.  If checked, the CONSULTANT shall comply with all of the reporting requirements of the 
Political Reform Act. Specifically, the CONSULTANT shall file a Fair Political Practices 
Commission Form 700 (Assuming Office Statement) within thirty (30) calendar days of the CITY’s 
determination that the CONSULTANT is subject to a conflict of interest code. The CONSULTANT 
shall also file a Form 700 (Annual Statement) on or before April 1 of each year of the 
AGREEMENT, disclosing any financial interests held during the previous calendar year for which 
the CONSULTANT was subject to a conflict of interest code. 

9.4. CITY represents that pursuant to California Government Code Section 1090 et seq., none of its 
elected officials, officers, or employees has an interest in this AGREEMENT. 

10. DISPOSITION AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.  
10.1. All documents, data, studies, drawings, maps, models, photographs and reports prepared by 

CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT, whether paper or electronic, shall become the property 
of CITY for use with respect to this PROJECT, and shall be turned over to the CITY upon 
completion of the PROJECT or any phase thereof, as contemplated by this AGREEMENT.  

10.2. Contemporaneously with the transfer of documents, the CONSULTANT hereby assigns to the 
CITY and CONSULTANT thereby expressly waives and disclaims, any copyright in, and the right 
to reproduce, all written material, drawings, plans, specifications or other work prepared under 
this AGREEMENT, except upon the CITY’s prior authorization regarding reproduction, which 
authorization shall not be unreasonably withheld. The CONSULTANT shall, upon request of the 
CITY, execute any further document(s) necessary to further effectuate this waiver and 
disclaimer. 

10.3. Other than as stated in sections 10.1 and 10.2 above, each party acknowledges and agrees that 
each party is the sole and exclusive owner of all right, title and interest in and to its other services, 
products, software, source and object code, specifications, designs, techniques, concepts, 
improvements, discoveries, and inventions, including all intellectual property rights thereto, 
including without limitation and modifications, improvements or derivative works thereof, created 
prior to, or independently, during the term of this Agreement.  This Agreement does not affect 
the ownership of each party’s pre-existing, intellectual property.  Each party further 
acknowledges that it acquires no rights under this Agreement to the other party’s pre-existing 
intellectual property, other than any limited right explicitly ranted in this Agreement under section 
10.1 and 10.2. 

~ 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 7 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

11. INSURANCE 
11.1. CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain for the duration of the AGREEMENT insurance 

against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in 
connection with the performance of the work hereunder and the results of that work by the 
CONSULTANT, their agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. Insurance shall be 
placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than “A” and “VII” unless 
otherwise approved in writing by the CITY’s Risk Manager. 

11.2. CONSULTANT’s liabilities, including but not limited to CONSULTANT’s indemnity obligations, 
under this AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed limited in any way to the insurance coverage 
required herein. All policies of insurance required hereunder must provide that the CITY is 
entitled to thirty (30) days prior written notice of cancellation or non-renewal of the policy or 
policies, or ten (10) days prior written notice for cancellation due to non-payment of premium. 
Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a material element of this AGREEMENT. 

11.3. Types and Amounts Required. CONSULTANT shall maintain, at minimum, the following 
insurance coverage for the duration of this AGREEMENT: 
11.3.1. Commercial General Liability (CGL). If checked the CONSULTANT shall 

maintain CGL Insurance written on an ISO Occurrence form or equivalent providing 
coverage at least as broad which shall cover liability arising from any and all personal 
injury or property damage in the amount of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence and subject 
to an annual aggregate of $2,000,000.00. There shall be no endorsement or 
modification of the CGL limiting the scope of coverage for either insured vs. insured 
claims or contractual liability. All defense costs shall be outside the limits of the policy. 

11.3.2. Commercial Automobile Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall maintain 
Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance for all of the CONSULTANT's 
automobiles including owned, hired and non-owned automobiles, automobile 
insurance written on an ISO form CA 00 01 12 90 or a later version of this form or an 
equivalent form providing coverage at least as broad for bodily injury and property 
damage for a combined single limit of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence. Insurance 
certificate shall reflect coverage for any automobile (any auto). 

11.3.3. Workers' Compensation. If checked the CONSULTANT shall maintain Worker’s 
Compensation insurance for all of the CONSULTANT's employees who are subject 
to this AGREEMENT and to the extent required by applicable state or federal law, a 
Workers' Compensation policy providing at minimum $1,000,000.00 employers' 
liability coverage. The CONSULTANT shall provide an endorsement that the insurer 
waives the right of subrogation against the CITY and its respective elected officials, 
officers, employees, agents and representatives. 

11.3.4. Professional Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall also maintain 
Professional Liability (errors and omissions) coverage with a limit of $1,000,000 per 
claim and $2,000,000 annual aggregate. The CONSULTANT shall ensure both that 
(1) the policy retroactive date is on or before the date of commencement of the Scope 
of Services; and (2) the policy will be maintained in force for a period of three years 
after substantial completion of the Scope of Services or termination of this 
AGREEMENT whichever occurs last. The CONSULTANT agrees that for the time 
period defined above, there will be no changes or endorsements to the policy that 
increase the CITY's exposure to loss. All defense costs shall be outside the limits of 
the policy. 

11.3.5. Cyber Liability. If checked the CONSULTANT shall also maintain Cyber Liability  
coverage on an occurrence basis with a limit of $2,000,000 per occurrence or claim 
and $2,000,000 annual aggregate.  Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond 
to the duties and obligations as are undertaken by CONSULTANT in this 
AGREEMENT and shall include claims involving infringement of intellectual property, 

□ 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 8 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

infringement of copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy violations, 
information theft, damage to or destruction of electronic information, release of 
private information, alteration of electronic information, extortion and network 
security. The policy shall provide coverage for breach response costs as well as 
regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses with limits 
sufficient to respond to such obligations.  All defense costs shall be outside the limits 
of the policy. 

11.4. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions are the 
responsibility of the CONSULTANT and must be declared to and approved by the CITY. At the 
option of the CITY, either (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured 
retentions as respects the CITY, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers, or (2) the 
CONSULTANT shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the CITY guaranteeing 
payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses. 

11.5. Additional Required Provisions. The commercial general liability and automobile liability 
policies shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 
11.5.1. The CITY, its officers, officials, employees, and representatives shall be named as 

additional insureds. The CITY's additional insured status must be reflected on 
additional insured endorsement form (20 10 1185 or 20 10 1001 and 20 37 1001) 
which shall be submitted to the CITY.  

11.5.2. The policies are primary and non-contributory to any insurance that may be carried 
by the CITY, as reflected in an endorsement which shall be submitted to the CITY. 

11.6. Verification of Coverage. CONSULTANT shall furnish the CITY with original certificates and 
amendatory endorsements effecting coverage required by this Section 11. The endorsement 
should be on forms provided by the CITY or on other than the CITY’s forms provided those 
endorsements conform to CITY requirements. All certificates and endorsements are to be 
received and approved by the CITY before work commences. The CITY reserves the right to 
require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements 
affecting the coverage required by these specifications at any time. 

12. INDEMNIFICATION.  
CONSULTANT agrees to indemnify, defend (with counsel acceptable to CITY), and hold harmless the CITY, 
and its officers, officials, agents and employees from any and all claims, demands, costs or liabilities that 
arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONSULTANT, 
its employees, agents, and subcontractors in the performance of or failure to perform services or obligations 
under this AGREEMENT. CONSULTANT’s duty to indemnify under this section shall not include liability for 
damages for death or bodily injury to persons, injury to property, or other loss, damage or expense arising 
from the sole negligence or willful misconduct by the CITY or its elected officials, officers, agents, and 
employees. CONSULTANT's indemnification obligations shall not be limited by the insurance provisions of 
this AGREEMENT. The PARTIES expressly agree that any payment, attorney's fees, costs or expense CITY 
incurs or makes to or on behalf of an injured employee under the CITY's self-administered workers' 
compensation is included as a loss, expense, or cost for the purposes of this section, and that this section 
will survive the expiration or early termination of this AGREEMENT. 

13. SUBCONTRACTORS.  
13.1. The CONSULTANT’s hiring or retaining of third parties (i.e. subcontractors) to perform services 

related to the PROJECT is subject to prior approval by the CITY.  
13.2. All contracts entered into between the CONSULTANT and its subcontractor shall also provide 

that each subcontractor shall obtain insurance policies which shall be kept in full force and effect 
during any and all work on this PROJECT and for the duration of this AGREEMENT. The 
CONSULTANT shall require the subcontractor to obtain, all policies described in Section 11 in 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 9 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

the amounts required by the CITY, which shall not be greater than the amounts required of the 
CONSULTANT.  

13.3. In any dispute between the CONSULTANT and its subcontractor, the CITY shall not be made a 
party to any judicial or administrative proceeding to resolve the dispute. The CONSULTANT 
agrees to defend and indemnify the CITY as described in Section 12 of this AGREEMENT should 
the CITY be made a party to any judicial or administrative proceeding to resolve any such 
dispute. 

14. NON-DISCRIMINATION.  
CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, 
race, color, age, religion, ancestry, national origin, military or veteran status, disability, medical condition, 
genetic information, gender expression, marital status, or sexual orientation. CONSULTANT shall take 
affirmative action to insure that applicants are employed and that employees are treated during employment 
without regard to their sex, race, color, age, religion, ancestry, national origin, military or veteran status, 
disability, medical condition, genetic information, gender expression, marital status, or sexual orientation and 
shall make reasonable accommodation to qualified individuals with disabilities or medical conditions. Such 
action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, 
recruitment, or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, 
and selection for training, including apprenticeship. CONSULTANT agrees to post in conspicuous places 
available to employees and applicants for employment any notices provided by CITY setting forth the 
provisions of this non-discrimination clause. 

15. NOTICES.  
All communications to either party by the other party shall be delivered to the persons listed below. Any such 
written communications by mail shall be conclusively deemed to have been received by the addressee five 
(5) calendar days after the deposit thereof in the United States mail, postage prepaid and properly addressed 
as noted below. 

Joseph Lim, Community Development Director 
City of Solana Beach 
635 S. Highway 101 

Solana Beach, CA 92075 

Ron Beehler 
EsGil 

9329 Chesapeake Drive, Suite 268 
San Diego, CA 92123 

16. ASSIGNABILITY.  
This AGREEMENT and any portion thereof shall not be assigned or transferred, nor shall any of the 
CONSULTANT’s duties be delegated or sub-contracted, without the express written consent of the CITY.  

17. RESPONSIBILITY FOR EQUIPMENT.  
CITY shall not be responsible nor held liable for any damage to persons or property consequent upon the 
use, misuse, or failure of any equipment used by CONSULTANT or any of CONSULTANT’s employees or 
subcontractors, even if such equipment has been furnished, rented, or loaned to CONSULTANT by CITY. 
The acceptance or use of any such equipment by CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT’s employees, or 
subcontractors shall be construed to mean that CONSULTANT accepts full responsibility for and agrees to 
exonerate, indemnify and hold harmless CITY from and against any and all claims for any damage 
whatsoever resulting from the use, misuse, or failure of such equipment. 

18. CALIFORNIA LAW; VENUE.  
This AGREEMENT shall be construed and interpreted according to the laws of the State of California. Any 
action brought to enforce or interpret any portion of this AGREEMENT shall be brought in the county of San 
Diego, California. CONSULTANT hereby waives any and all rights it might have pursuant to California Code 
of Civil Procedure Section 394. 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 10 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

19. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.  
The Consultant shall comply with all laws, ordinances, regulations, and policies of the federal, state, and 
local governments applicable to this AGREEMENT whether now in force or subsequently enacted. This 
includes maintaining a City of Solana Beach Business Certificate. 

20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  
This AGREEMENT sets forth the entire understanding of the PARTIES with respect to the subject matters 
herein. There are no other understandings, terms or other agreements expressed or implied, oral or written, 
except as set forth herein. No change, alteration, or modification of the terms or conditions of this 
AGREEMENT, and no verbal understanding of the PARTIES, their officers, agents, or employees shall be 
valid unless agreed to in writing by both PARTIES.  

21. NO WAIVER.  
No failure of either the City or the Consultant to insist upon the strict performance by the other of any 
covenant, term or condition of this AGREEMENT, nor any failure to exercise any right or remedy consequent 
upon a breach of any covenant, term, or condition of this AGREEMENT shall constitute a waiver of any such 
breach of such covenant, term or condition. 

22. SEVERABILITY.  
The unenforceability, invalidity, or illegality of any provision of this AGREEMENT shall not render any other 
provision unenforceable, invalid, or illegal. 

23. DRAFTING AMBIGUITIES.  
The PARTIES agree that they are aware that they have the right to be advised by counsel with respect to 
the negotiations, terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT, and the decision of whether or not to seek 
advice of counsel with respect to this AGREEMENT is a decision which is the sole responsibility of each 
Party. This AGREEMENT shall not be construed in favor of or against either Party by reason of the extent 
to which each Party participated in the drafting of the AGREEMENT. 

24. CONFLICTS BETWEEN TERMS.  
If an apparent conflict or inconsistency exists between the main body of this AGREEMENT and the Exhibits, 
the main body of this AGREEMENT shall control. If a conflict exists between an applicable federal, state, or 
local law, rule, regulation, order, or code and this AGREEMENT, the law, rule, regulation, order, or code 
shall control. Varying degrees of stringency among the main body of this AGREEMENT, the Exhibits, and 
laws, rules, regulations, orders, or codes are not deemed conflicts, and the most stringent requirement shall 
control. Each Party shall notify the other immediately upon the identification of any apparent conflict or 
inconsistency concerning this AGREEMENT. 

25. EXHIBITS INCORPORATED.  
All Exhibits referenced in this AGREEMENT are incorporated into the AGREEMENT by this reference. 

26. SIGNING AUTHORITY.  
26.1. The representative for each Party signing on behalf of a corporation, partnership, joint venture, 

association, or governmental entity hereby declares that authority has been obtained to sign on 
behalf of the corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, or entity and agrees to hold the 
other Party or PARTIES hereto harmless if it is later determined that such authority does not 
exist. 

26.2. If checked, a proper notary acknowledgement of execution by CONSULTANT must be 
attached. □ 



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 11 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

27. WAIVER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES.  

Neither party shall have any claim or right against the other, whether in contract, warranty, tor (including 
negligence), strict liability or otherwise, for any special, indirect, incidental, or consequential damages of any 
king or nature, whatsoever, such as but not limited to loss of revenue, loss of profits on revenue, loss of 
customers or contracts, loss of use of equipment or loss of data, work interruption, increased cost of work or 
cost of any financing, howsoever, caused, even if same were reasonable foreseeable; provide, however, the 
forgoing shall not apply to with respect to indemnity obligation under the AGREEMENT. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES hereto have executed this AGREEMENT the day and year 
first hereinabove written. 

 

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH, a municipal 
corporation  

CONSULTANT, a Corporation  

 

By: 
 

By: 

City Manager, Gregory Wade  Signature 

 
 

Tom Wilkas 
Chief Financial Officer 

ATTEST: 
 

 

City Clerk. Angela Ivey   

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
 

 

Joseph Lim, Community Development Director 
 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

City Attorney, Johanna N. Canlas 
 

 

 
  



 
 

Agreement modified 6/1/2021 Page 12 of 12 City Attorney approved template Sept. 2018 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

SCOPE OF SERVICES AND FEE 
 



SECTION F 

Pricing 

COST OF SERVICES  

We propose both Hourly and Fixed Fee pricing options to the City as follows: 

HOURLY SERVICES 

All services will be provided on an hourly basis utilizing the billing rates included in the Labor Rate 

Schedule included below. 

BUILDING  SERVICES ADMINISTRATION 

Building Official services will be provided on an as-needed basis, and billed at the hourly rates by 

classification detailed in the Labor Rates Schedule below. 

BUILDING  PLAN CHECK 

Comprehensive building plan check services are provided for 55% of the City’s adopted plan check 

fee for the specific project. Costs for expedited plan check services will be 1.5 times the regular fee and 

the proposed plan review completion times will be reduced by half.     

BUILDING  INSPECTION 

Building inspection services will be provided on an as-needed basis, and billed at the hourly rates by 

classification detailed in the Labor Rates Schedule below. 

BUILDING  COUNTER OPERATIONS  (AS NEEDED) 

Permit technician services will be provided on an as-needed basis, and billed at the hourly rates by 

classification detailed in the Labor Rates Schedule below. 

PRELIMINARY PROJECT  REVIEWS RELATED TO DISCRETIONARY  PERMIT PROCESSING 
(AS NEEDED) 

As-needed services for preliminary project reviews related to discretionary permit processing will be 

provided at the City’s request, and will be billed at the hourly rates by classification detailed in the Labor 

Rates Schedule below. 

BACK-UP TO CITY CODE ENFORCEMENT  OFFICER (AS NEEDED) 

As-needed back-up services for the City’s Code Enforcement Officer will be provided at the City’s 

request, and will be billed at the hourly rates by classification detailed in the Labor Rates Schedule 

below. 

 



FIXED FEE SERVICES 

Under this option the following services will be provided to the City and paid as 55% of the total monthly 

building department plan review and permit fees determined as per the City’s adopted fee schedule: 

• Building inspection services to provide next workday inspections for all inspection requests. 

• Building plans examination services as needed. 

• Certified Access Specialists, CASp’s, as needed. 

• Building Official to perform mandated duties of a Building Official, on-call as needed. 

• Maintenance of public information documents to assist permit applicants and permit holders. 

• Participate in and represent the City before local Building Safety professional organizations. 

• Additional related services to be charged hourly in addition to proposed percentage of building 

department plan review and permit fees. 

LABOR RATES SCHEDULE  

The labor rates shown in the table below will be utilized for all services provided on an hourly basis, 

where the use of a percentage of the permit fee or plan check fee is not applicable, or when other related 

services are requested. 

EsGil will bill the City in arrears for services performed, following the end of the month during which the 

services were actually provided, and will provide detailed information in the invoice pertaining to those 

services. 

CLASSIFICATION HOURLY RATE 

CASp Certified Plans Examiner 105.00 

LEED Certified Plans Examiner 95.00 

Licensed Engineer Plans Examiner (Civil, Structural, Mechanical, Electrical) 125.00 

Fire Plans Examiner 100.00 

Building Official 125.00 

ICC Certified Building Inspector 85.00-100.00** 

ICC Certified Plans Examiner 95.00 

ICC Certified Fire Inspector 95.00 

Permit Technician 72.00 

Clerical Support 45.00 

** Billing rate varies based on certification level and experience of selected inspector. 

Rates are increased by a factor of 1.5 for overtime, and for holiday and weekend assignments. 

 



CITY COUNCIL ACTION: 
______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 

AGENDA ITEM # B.1. 

STAFF REPORT 
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers  
FROM: Gregory Wade, City Manager  
MEETING DATE:  June 9, 2021 
ORIGINATING DEPT: Community Development Department  
SUBJECT:  Public Hearing – Request for a Modification to the 

Approved DRP/SUB/TPM for an Eight Lot Subdivision at 
512, 516, 524, 538 S. Nardo Avenue (Applicant: Ocean 
Ranch Estates, LLC, Case No.: MOD20-003 Resolution 
2021-054) 

BACKGROUND: 

The Applicant, Ocean Ranch Estates, LLC, is requesting a modification to the Council 
approval of a Major Subdivision (SUB)/Tentative Parcel Map (TPM) and a Development 
Review Permit (DRP), to subdivide the existing 4.2 acre (gross) parcel into eight individual 
single-family residential lots. The project was approved with the adoption of Resolution 
2019-046 on April 24, 2019.  The property is zoned Low Residential (LR) and is within the 
Scaled Residential Overlay Zone (SROZ) and the Hillside Overlay Zone (HOZ).  

The proposed modification would include relocating the proposed 8-inch sewer main from 
Bell Ranch Road and Nardo Avenue to a 20-foot-wide sewer easement southward along 
the common property line between Lots 2 and 3 of the Ocean Ranch Subdivision to 
connect to the existing sewer main in Nardito Lane. The proposed modification also 
includes adding new roadside infiltration swales and basin along Bell Ranch Road to treat 
run-off during phase one of the project. The infiltration swales and basin would be 
privately maintained by the homeowner’s association (HOA) of the subdivision for the life 
of the subdivision. 

The issue before the Council is whether to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the 
Applicant’s request for a DRP/SUB/TPM modification as contained in Resolution 2021-
054 (Attachment 1). 



June 9, 2021 
MOD20-002 

Ocean Ranch Estates 
Page 2 of 5 

DISCUSSION: 

The proposed modification would include the relocation of the proposed 8-inch sewer 
main for the project from the center of Bell Ranch Road and Nardo Avenue to a 20-foot-
wide sewer easement between Lots 2 and 3 of the Ocean Ranch Subdivision and 
between 612 and 618 Nardito Lane (Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 298-121-35 and 298-
121-36) in order to connect to the existing sewer line within Nardito Lane. Plans illustrating
the proposed modifications have been provided in Attachment 2. The property owners of
612 and 618 Nardito Lane have signed an agreement (Attachment 3) to allow the sewer
line to be constructed on their property through an easement.  In addition, new roadside
infiltration swales along Bell Ranch Road and an infiltration basin in front of Lot 2 would
be constructed during phase one of the project to treat run-off. The infiltration swales and
basin would be privately maintained by the homeowner’s association (HOA) of the
subdivision for the life of the subdivision.

The site plan below shows the proposed location of the sewer easement: 

a,· 30' 

IIPH 
-.111411 

IIPH 
-.1/lf~ 

IIPH 
-.111./111 



June 9, 2021 
MOD20-002 

Ocean Ranch Estates 
Page 3 of 5 

 
 
The proposed roadside infiltration swales and the proposed infiltration basin in front of Lot 
2 are shown in the following plan: 
 

 
 
It should be noted that since the date of the original approval, the Applicant and their 
Engineer have looked at the proposed grading quantities in more detail and determined 
that the total for the project, including the proposed modifications, would be approximately 
1,200 cubic yards less than originally approved. The proposed grading, including that 
required for the proposed modification, would remain balanced and no import/export is 
proposed.   
 
In accordance with Section 17.68.040 (Development Review Permits) of the City of 
Solana Beach Municipal Code, the Council can make the required findings to approve a 
modification with specific attention to the following development review criterion set forth 
in Solana Beach Municipal Code Section 17.68.040.F and required under Development 
Review Permit Finding Number One (17.68.040.H.1): 

 
The proposed development complies with the following development review criterion 
set forth in Solana Beach Municipal Code Section 17.68.040.F:  

 
Grading:  To the extent feasible, natural topography and scenic features of 
the site shall be retained and incorporated into the proposed development. 
Any grading or earth-moving operations in connection with the proposed 
development shall be planned and executed so as to blend with the existing 
terrain both on and adjacent to the site. Existing exposed or disturbed slopes 
shall be landscaped with native or naturalized non-native vegetation and 
existing erosion problems shall be corrected. 

 
The proposed modification would reduce the total grading quantity from 4,800 cubic yards 
of cut and fill to 3,600 cubic yards of cut and fill onsite. As previously noted, the proposed 
modifications would also relocate the sewer connection from the center of Bell Ranch 

~~•'k~TO 1 ~ 
'S a: . A~ TO APN 29tH2Hl3 Iii #3, "iR SIJl5D jg,?'] 
rsFN:r. (F CITY EX. SEIER L11E TO BE AIWatBJI ~ ' '6' 1 
POER PCLE TO BE IE.CCATED. EX aIDEltA Y TO EE 
L11ES TO BE PI.AlBJ TO Mo\TOI Pfll'05ED 
~ AJ..(H'; FralrASE 

.1:~~r' 'M~~ 
IlE PER NS-01 I\ IE~ 1:; 
• 1" PVC FIJE I , IE Wf 182. 

PER NS-01 I I #Ii #2 PER SIJl5D 9H 
I RIN 1B7 

IE 177 

--
1 

I Pfl1'0SED . 
SIJl5D IF ~192.3 

• i-=-- - . 7 . 1E•186.5 

I I -- I 



June 9, 2021 
MOD20-002 

Ocean Ranch Estates 
Page 4 of 5 

 
Road and Nardo Avenue to instead run between Approved Lots 2 and 3 and 612 and 618 
Nardito Lane to connect to the existing line within Nardito Lane and would also install new 
roadside infiltration swales along Bell Ranch Road and an infiltration basin located in front 
of Lot 2 to be installed during phase one of the project.  The HOA will maintain the 
infiltration swales and basin for the life of the subdivision. No other changes to the grading 
that was approved with the original project approval are proposed. 
 
Staff has prepared draft findings for approval of the project in the attached Resolution 
2021-054 for Council’s consideration based upon the information in this report. The 
Applicant shall provide for and adhere to the conditions of the original project approval of 
Resolution 2019-046. Additional project conditions from the Planning, Engineering and 
Fire Departments have been incorporated in the attached Resolution 2021-054. In 
conclusion, the proposed project, as conditioned, could be found to be consistent with the 
Zoning regulations and the General Plan. 
 
The Council may direct Staff to modify the Resolution to reflect the findings and conditions 
it deems appropriate as a result of the Public Hearing process. If the Council determines 
the project is to be denied, Staff will prepare a Resolution of Denial for adoption at a 
subsequent Council meeting.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE: 
 
Notice of the City Council Public Hearing was published in the San Diego Union Tribune 
more than 10 days prior to the public hearing. The same public notice was mailed to 
property owners and occupants within 300 feet of the proposed project site, more than 10 
days prior to the planned Public Hearing date of June 9, 2021.  Staff has not received any 
emails, letters or calls in support or opposition of the proposed modification as of the date 
this report was written.  
 
CEQA COMPLIANCE: 
 
An Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration IS/MND and Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program MMRP was approved with the adoption of Resolution 2019-046 when 
the project was approved on April 24, 2019.  The proposed modifications would not be 
out of the scope of work that was evaluated under the IS/MND and no additional review 
was required under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 
 
WORK PLAN:  N/A 
 
OPTIONS: 
 

• Approve the proposed modification by adopting Resolution 2021-054; 
 

• Approve modification by adopting Resolution 2021-054 with changes as deemed 
appropriate by City Council; or, 
 



June 9, 2021 
MOD20-002 

Ocean Ranch Estates 
Page 5 of 5 

 
• Deny the request to amend the project and direct Staff to bring back a Resolution 

of denial to a later City Council meeting date. 
 

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The proposed project meets the minimum objective requirements under the SBMC, is 
consistent with the General Plan and may be found, as conditioned, to meet the 
discretionary findings to approve a modification to the approved DRP and SUB/TPM.  
Therefore, Staff recommends that the City Council: 
 
1. Conduct the Public Hearing: Open the Public Hearing, Report Council disclosures, 

Receive public testimony, Close the Public Hearing. 
 

2. If the City Council makes the requisite findings and approves the project, adopt 
Resolution 2021-054 conditionally approving a modification to the DRP and 
SUB/TPM to relocate the proposed 8-ince sewer line into a newly proposed 
easement and add roadside infiltration swales along Bell Ranch Road and an 
infiltration basin in front of Lot 2 during phase one of the project on property at 512 
through 538 South Nardo Avenue, Solana Beach. 
 

CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Department Recommendation 
 
 
_________________________  
Gregory Wade, City Manager  
 
Attachments: 
   

1. Resolution No. 2021-054 
2. Revised Plans 
3. Sewer Easement Agreement 

 



RESOLUTION 2021-054 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SOLANA BEACH, CALIFORNIA, CONDITIONALLY 
APPROVING A MODIFICATION TO A PREVIOUSLY 
APPROVED DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PERMIT, AND MAJOR 
SUBDIVISION/TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP TO CREATE EIGHT 
NEW SINGLE FAMILY PARCELS AT 512-538 NARDO 
AVENUE. 

APPLICANT: Ocean Ranch Estates, LLC 
CASE NO.: MOD20-003 

WHEREAS, Ocean Ranch Estates, LLC (hereinafter referred to as “Applicant”) has 
submitted a request for modification to the original project approval of a Development 
Review Permit (DRP), and a Major Subdivision/Tentative Parcel Map at 512- 538 Nardo 
Avenue, pursuant to Title 17 (Zoning), of the Solana Beach Municipal Code (SBMC); and 

WHEREAS, the original project was approved on April 24, 2019 at a City Council 
Public Hearing; and  

WHEREAS, on June 9, 2021, the City Council held a duly noticed Public Hearing to 
consider minor modifications to the project; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Hearing was conducted pursuant to the provisions of SBMC 
17.72.030 of the Solana Beach Zoning Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, at the Public Hearing, the City Council received and considered 
evidence concerning the request for a modification; and  

WHEREAS, an Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration IS/MND and Mitigation 
Monitoring and Reporting Program MMRP was approved with the adoption of Resolution 
2019-046 when the project was approved on April 24, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, the proposed modifications would not be out of the scope of work that 
was evaluated under the IS/MND and no additional review was required under the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and 

WHEREAS, this decision is based upon the evidence presented at the Hearing, and 
any information the City Council gathered by viewing the site and the area as disclosed 
at the hearing. 

NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Solana Beach, California, does 
resolve as follows: 

1. That the foregoing recitations are true and correct.

2. That the request for a modification to relocate the proposed 8-inch sewer line from
Bell Rach Road and Nardo Avenue to be located in a 20-foot-wide sewer easement
between approved Lots 2 and 3 of the Ocean Ranch Subdivision and between 612
and 618 Nardito Lane in order to connect to the existing sewer line in an Nardito

mbavin
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 1



Resolution 2021-054 
MOD20-003 

Ocean Ranch Estates 
Page 2 of 6 

Lane and install new roadside infiltration swales along Bell Ranch Road and an 
infiltration basin in front of Lot 2 of the approved subdivision in order to treat run-
off from phase one of the project with the following conditions applicable to the 
proposed modification: 

3. FINDINGS:

A. In accordance with Section 17.68.040 (Development Review Permits) of the
City of Solana Beach Municipal Code, the Council can make the required
findings to approve a modification with specific attention to the following
development review criteria set forth in Solana Beach Municipal Code Section
17.68.040.F and required under Development Review Permit Finding
Number One (17.68.040.H.1):

II. The proposed development complies with the following development
review criteria set forth in Solana Beach Municipal Code Section
17.68.040.F:

e. Grading:  To the extent feasible, natural topography and scenic
features of the site shall be retained and incorporated into the
proposed development. Any grading or earth-moving operations in
connection with the proposed development shall be planned and
executed so as to blend with the existing terrain both on and
adjacent to the site. Existing exposed or disturbed slopes shall be
landscaped with native or naturalized non-native vegetation and
existing erosion problems shall be corrected.

The proposed modification would reduce the total grading quantity
from 4,800 cubic yards of cut and fill to 3,600 cubic yards of cut and
fill onsite. The proposed modifications would also relocate the
sewer connection from the center of Bell Ranch Road and Nardo
Avenue to instead run between Approved Lots 2 and 3 and 612
and 618 Nardito Lane to connect to the existing line within Nardito
Lane.  The property owners at 612 and 618 Nardito have signed
an agreement to allow a sewer easement on their property.  In
addition, new roadside infiltration swales would be installed along
Bell Ranch Road and an infiltration basin located in front of Lot 2
will remain for the life of the subdivision in order to treat run-off and
will be installed during phase one of the project.  The HOA will
maintain the infiltration swales and basin for the life of the
subdivision. No other changes to the grading that was approved
with the original project approval are proposed.

4. CONDITIONS: Prior to use or development of the property in reliance on this
permit, the Applicant shall provide for and adhere to all the conditions of the original
project approval of Resolution 2019-046 unless otherwise revised below.



Resolution 2021-054 
MOD20-003 

Ocean Ranch Estates 
Page 3 of 6 

A. Community Development Department Conditions:

I. Building Permit plans must be in substantial conformance with the plans
presented to the City Council on June 9, 2021 and located in the project
file dated June 1, 2021.

B. Engineering Department Conditions:

I. Prior to the recordation of the final Map, the Applicant shall construct a
roadside drainage bio-swale along south side of Bell Ranch Road as well
as a separate Bio-detention basin in Lot 2 as shown in the amended
Tentative Map to the Satisfaction of the City Engineer.

a. Prior to the Recordation of the final Map, the Applicant shall record
an Encroachment Maintenance Removal Agreement (EMRA) with
the County of San Diego. The EMRA shall be accompanied with a
scaled drawing that clearly shows the “encroachments” in the right-
of-way. The latest Title Report of the property is also required. The
EMRA shall be recorded against this property for all improvements
in the Public Right-Of-Way.

II. Resolution 2019-046 Condition C.XX shall be deleted and replaced with
the following condition:

Prior to recordation of the final map, the Applicant shall construct the
sanitary sewer for this subdivision as shown on the preliminary grading
plan & tentative map. The Applicant shall grant a 20 ft wide sewer
easement along the common property line between Lot number 2 and Lot
number 3. Additionally, the Applicant shall grant a 20 feet wide easement
along the common property line of 612 Nardito & 618 Nardito Ln as shown
on the amended tentative map submitted on January 19, 2021 to the
satisfaction of the City Engineer.

C. Fire Department Conditions:

I. ACCESS ROAD MINIMUM DIMENSIONS:  Fire apparatus access roads
shall have an unobstructed improved width of not less than 20 feet; curb
line to curb line, and an unobstructed vertical clearance of not less than
13 feet 6 inches.  Exception: Single-Family residential driveways; serving
no more than two single-family dwellings, shall have minimum of 16 feet,
curb line to curb line, of unobstructed improved width. Access roads shall
be designed and maintained to support the imposed loads of not less than
75,000 pounds and shall be provided with an approved paved surface to
provide all-weather driving capabilities.

--



Resolution 2021-054 
MOD20-003 

Ocean Ranch Estates 
Page 4 of 6 

II. DEAD ENDS:  All dead-end fire access roads in excess of 150 feet in
length shall be provided with an approved area for turning around fire
apparatus.  A cul-de-sac shall be provided in residential areas where the
access roadway serves more than four (4) structures.  The minimum
unobstructed paved radius width for a cul-de-sac shall be 36 feet in
residential areas with no parking.

III. RESPONSE MAPS:  Any new development, which necessitates updating
of emergency response maps by virtue of new structures, hydrants,
roadways or similar features, shall be required to provide map updates in
one of the following formats (AutoCad DWG, DXF, ESRI shapefile, ESRI
personal geodatabase, or XML format) and shall be charged a reasonable
fee for updating all response maps.

IV. CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS:  Prior to delivery of combustible building
construction materials to the project site, all of the following conditions
shall be completed to the satisfaction of the Fire Department:

a. All wet and dry utilities shall be installed and approved by the
appropriate inspecting department or agency;

b. As a minimum, the first lift of asphalt paving shall be in place to
provide a permanent all weather surface for emergency vehicles; and

c. Water supply for fire protection (fire hydrants and standpipes) shall be
installed, in service and accepted by the Fire Department and
applicable water district.

V. POSTING OR STRIPING ROADWAYS “NO PARKING FIRE LANE”:  Fire
Department access roadways, when required, shall be properly identified
as per Solana Beach Fire Department standards.  The means by which
fire lanes are designated shall be maintained in a clean and legible
condition at all times and be replaced or repaired when necessary to
provide adequate visibility.

VI. OBSTRUCTION OF ROADWAYS DURING CONSTRUCTION: All
roadways shall be a minimum of 20 feet in width during construction and
maintained free and clear, including the parking of vehicles, in accordance
with the California Fire Code and the Solana Beach Fire Department.

VII. FIRE HYDRANTS AND FIRE FLOWS:  The Applicant shall provide fire
hydrants of a type, number, and location satisfactory to the Solana Beach
Fire Department.  A letter from the water agency serving the area shall be
provided that states the required fire flow is available.  Fire hydrants shall
be of a bronze type.  Multi-family residential or industrial fire hydrants shall
have two (2) 4” inch and two (2) 2 ½” inch NST outlets. Residential fire



Resolution 2021-054 
MOD20-003 

Ocean Ranch Estates 
Page 5 of 6 

hydrants shall have one (1) 4” inch NST outlet, and one (1) 2 ½” inch NST 
outlets.   

5. ENFORCEMENT: Pursuant to SBMC 17.72.120(B) failure to satisfy any and all of
the above-mentioned conditions of approval is subject to the imposition of
penalties as set forth in SBMC Chapters 1.16 and 1.18 in addition to any applicable
revocation proceedings.

6. EXPIRATION: The approval of the modification for the project will expire 24
months from the date of this approval, unless the Applicant has obtained building
permits and have commenced construction prior to that date, and diligently
pursued construction to completion. An extension of the application may be
granted by the City Council.

7. INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT:  The Applicant shall defend, indemnify, and
hold harmless the City, its agents, officers, and employees from any and all claims,
actions, proceedings, damages, judgments, or costs, including attorney’s fees,
against the City or its agents, officers, or employees, relating to the issuance of
this permit including, but not limited to, any action to attack, set aside, void,
challenge, or annul this development approval and any environmental document
or decision.  The City will promptly notify the Applicant of any claim, action, or
proceeding. The City may elect to conduct its own defense, participate in its own
defense, or obtain independent legal counsel in defense of any claim related to
this indemnification. In the event of such election, the Applicant shall pay all of the
costs related thereto, including without limitation reasonable attorney’s fees and
costs. In the event of a disagreement between the City and Applicant regarding
litigation issues, the City shall have the authority to control the litigation and make
litigation related decisions, including, but not limited to, settlement or other
disposition of the matter. However, the Applicant shall not be required to pay or
perform any settlement unless such settlement is approved by the Applicant.

NOTICE TO APPLICANT: Pursuant to Government Code Section 66020, you are 
hereby notified that the 90-day period to protest the imposition of the fees, dedications, 
reservations or other exactions described in this Resolution commences on the 
effective date of this resolution. To protest the imposition of any fee, dedications, 
reservations or other exactions described in this Resolution you must comply with the 
provisions of Government Code Section 66020.  Generally the Resolution is effective 
upon expiration of the tenth day following the date of adoption of this Resolution, 
unless the resolution is appealed or called for review as provided in the Solana Beach 
Zoning Ordinance. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Solana 
Beach, California, held on the 9th day of June 2021, by the following vote: 

AYES:  Councilmembers – 
NOES: Councilmembers – 



Resolution 2021-054 
MOD20-003 

Ocean Ranch Estates 
Page 6 of 6 

ABSENT: Councilmembers – 
ABSTAIN: Councilmembers – 

______________________________ 
LESA HEEBNER, Mayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST: 

_____________________________ _______________________________ 
JOHANNA N. CANLAS, City Attorney ANGELA IVEY, City Clerk 



mbavin
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 2













Memorandum of Umlersfamling 

For 

Sewer Easement 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING ("MOU") is entered into as of 
#_Hi-J!i 1"';-2020, by and between OCEAN RANCH ESTATES, LLC, a California limited liability 

company ("ORE" or "Grantee"), on the one hand, and THE YEN FAMILY TRUST 1-15-07 
AND THE FORTE LIVING TRUST 2-17-05 ("Forte and Yen" or "Grantors") on the other 
hand, collectively referred to as the "pmiies." 

Objectives 

This MOU sets fo1ih the terms and understanding between ORE and Grantors related to a 
Sewer Easement that benefits ORE and its development project. 

A. ORE owns and is developing ce1iain real prope1iy commonly known as 512-538
South Nardo Avenue (the "ORE Prope1iy") in the City of Solana Beach ("City").

B. ORE is Grantors' neighbor who respectively own real prope1iy commonly known as
612 Nardito Lane in the City, Assessor's Parcel Number 298-121-35-00 ("The Yen
Property") and 618 Nardito Lane in the City, Assesor's Parcel Number 298-121-36-
00 ("The Forte Prope1iy").

C. The purpose of this MOU is to set forth the terms upon which the paiiies agree to
work together to (1) grant ORE the Sewer Easement (more pmiicularly described
below) on the Granlors' Property and (2) compensate Grantors for granting ORE the
Sewer Easement.

General Terms 

1. Easement: Subject to the te1ms of this MOU, Grantors agree to grant ORE/Grantee a
non-exclusive easement ("Sewer Easement") on and in the Granto rs' Property for the
purposes of constructing and maintaining sanitary waste from the ORE property to be
conveyed into the public infrastructure. The pmiies agree to execute a recordable
Easement Agreement pursuant to the terms of this MOU upon approval of the Sewer
Easement Plan by the City. In the event that the City of Solana Beach does not
approve the Sewer Easement Plai1, or any other governmental authority does not grant
pe1mission to ORE to complete the subdivision c1mently approved by the City, this
agreement shall be null and void. The Sewer Easement Plan is attached hereto as
Exhibit A.

2. Compensation to Grantors: Grantors have requested, ai1d Grantee agrees that in
consideration for granting the Sewer Easement, Grantee will remove and replace, at
Grai1tee's sole expense, all hard smfaces ctmently used for vehicular access to the
Grantors' respective residences, as fmiher depicted in Exhibit B attached hereto.

mbavin
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 3



Grnntors' shall have sole shared discretion in selecting a paving material and design 
as would reasonably be associated witl1 construction of a new residence in the 
surrounding area, Grantors' wiil indicate their mutual approval in writing before any 
work is to commence, ln event that one or more ofihe Granto rs' fail to provide a 
timely or reasonable acceptance of a replacement driveway material, Grantee shall be 
pennitted to make a selection without further discussion or delay, 

3, D11r�tion: This MOU shall effective upon signing and shall expire in 24 months or 
upon the City's denial of the Sewer Easement Plan proposed herein, whichever comes 
first Upon the City's approval of the Sewer Easement Plan proposed herein, Grantor 
and Grantee shall use all reasonable efforts to record a permanent easement for the 
purposes described herein, Grantors' hereby acknowledge that the constmction and 
development process can be delayed and Grantee is under no obligation to complete 
the work described herein other than as soon as is reasonably practical, ln the event 
ihat Grantor determines that the Sewer Easement through the Grantors' property is 
unnecessaty or infeasible for any reason, or that the ORE Project or any alternative 
project on Grantee's property will pursue an alternative sewer design than the one 
described herein, Grantee shall not be required to complete the improvements 
described in this Memorandum by giving written notice to Grantors of same, 

4, Movement of existing utilities: Grantee hereby discloses that it may be necessary to 
relocate utilities currently serving Grantors' property, including but not limited to 
water, sewer, gas and electric, Grantee will be responsible for at1y relocation and 
reconnection of the existing utilities serving Grantor's prope1ty and keep any service 
interruptions to a minimum, fo the event that service interruption shall resnlt 
loss any utilities overnight ("Overnight Interruption"), Grnntors shall be 
entitled to stay in a hotel 1mtil snch time that service is restored to 
respective residences. Grantee sbali reimburse Grnntors for any reasonable 
costs incurred at a hotel stay. Grantee and its workers will use reaso11ab!e 
efforts to anticipate the need Overnight 11t,1n'm1,ti�m (if :necessary) and give 
Grantees adequate notice to make hotel arrangements which shall paid 
advance directly to the Hotel by Grantee. In the event of an unforeseen 
interruption of utility service caused by Grantee or its workers, sm:h as the 
accidental damage of a utility line, which cannot be restored by 5 P.M, on the 
day of the occ11nence, Grantors shall he entitled lo make reasonable hotel 
accommodations and be reiml:mrsed same by Grantee until service is 
restored. 

5. Bo!lds Insurance: Grantee shall include, to whatever exteni feasible and
practical, the work described herein as part of the improvement work to be
secured by any completion bonds posted for the Ocean Ranch subdivision.
Grantee shall indemnify Gnmtors and hold them harmless from any liability
that may occur while work is performed on Gr:mtors' properties.

the 

be 

in 
of 

their 

for I 
be in 

for 

and 



The parties acknowledge that they have had the opportunity to seek independent advice 
of counsel and enter into this MOU to work together to execute a recordable Easement 
Agreement pursuant to the terms of this MOU. 

THE YEN FAMILY TRUST 1-15-07 

Date 

Trustee Date 

THE FORTE LIVING TRUST 2-17-05 

·.s-�.J-�u
Date 

OCEAN RANCH ESTATES, LLC 
a California limited liability company 

f ustee 

~6vtr Trustee-



EXHIBIT A 

[SEWER EASEMENT SITE PLAN] I I I 



I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 
I 

I 

I 

I 
I 

I 

Exhibit A 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

J 

.I 

: '--'0 c .. �--"T"70CCC'•.Cc,ccc•• ~-"••,--• 7, r,=••" i.,. 

i~,, 
1\ 

,. ~-~ L ------
r "--- -----\. 1 - , - - .... _____ . - • • • • ~ 

·\ . ) ; - ----. -

~ 
~~ 

r 
:;.: 

g 
-



EXHIBITB 

[AREA TO BE REMOVED AND REPLCED] 



Exhibit B 



CITY COUNCIL ACTION: ____________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM C.1. 
 

 

STAFF REPORT 
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH 

  
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers  
FROM:  Gregory Wade, City Manager 
MEETING DATE:  June 9, 2021 
ORIGINATING DEPT: City Manager’s Office 
SUBJECT:  FY 2021/22 Community Grant Program Requests  

 
 
BACKGROUND: 

   
  On May 4, 2004, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2004-68 approving Council Policy 

No. 14 establishing the Community Grant Program (“Grant Program”) and Application 
Guidelines for the Grant Program.  
 
At the February 10, 2021, City Council Meeting, the City Council authorized the Fiscal Year 
(FY) 2021/22 Community Grant Program.  The FY 2021/22 Proposed Budget contains an 
appropriation of $25,000 to fund the Community Grants Program. The City receives a 
$15,000 contribution from EDCO as part of the community enhancement efforts through the 
solid waste Franchise Agreement with the City, which is used to fund a portion of this 
program. 
  
Following the approval of the FY 2021/22 Community Grant Program, Staff distributed a 
request for financial assistance for community grants.  Staff utilized the City’s “e-blast” 
notification system, social media accounts (Facebook and Twitter), and the City’s website to 
notify the community that the request for proposals application period had started.  The 
deadline for submission was May 25, 2021. 

  
This item is before the City Council to review the grant applications received and to allow the 
applicants to make a brief presentation regarding their proposed programs.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The community grant criteria approved by the City Council on February 10, 2021 was 
incorporated into the application guidelines of the “Request for Financial Assistance” 
document for FY 2021/22 (Attachment 1). The highlights of the application are as follows: 
 
Application Criteria 
 

1. Preferences will be given towards non-profits that provide services/goods to Solana 
Beach groups or individuals with special economic needs that are not being met in the 



June 09, 2021 
FY 2021-22 Community Grants Program Requests 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 

economic environment.  These can be non-profits whose funding has been reduced or 
eliminated and are unable to serve the populations in need.  

2. Fair and justifiable program costs (budget required). 
3. Program Originality (new and unique). 
4. Collaboration/Partnerships. 
5. Leverage of matching funds/resources. 
6. Applicants must submit a financial conditions (Balance Sheet) statement as well as the 

applicant(s) revenue/expenditure statements and tax return statements for the prior 
operating year. 

7. Completion of project between date of grant approval through May 31, 2022. 
8. Grant funds are only intended for non-governmental agencies. 

 
Qualifying Criteria for Financial Assistance 
 
The main qualifying criteria for financial assistance under Council Policy No. 14 are 
summarized below: 
 
Non-Profit Organizations 
 

Nonprofit organizations which have officially filed as a nonprofit with the State of California 
and have a 501(c)3 certification must attach a copy of their current year non-profit 
certification form along with a Request for Financial Assistance Application. For organizations 
that are “recognized” nonprofits within the community but have never formally filed with the 
State, the City Council, at its discretion, may consider their application. It has been the 
practice in the past to allow applicants to submit a letter from either the Internal Revenue 
Service (IRS) or the California State Board of Equalization declaring the entity’s tax-exempt 
status for the 501(c)3 certification. 
 

Threshold Qualifying Criteria   
 
Request for Financial Assistance Applications are limited to non-governmental, nonprofit 
organizations serving the Solana Beach community.  Excluded entities include the following:  
County of San Diego, municipal organizations, special or water districts, school districts, 
schools (but not their supporting organizations) and private individuals.  Applicants should 
have a State of California non-profit status certification or be a recognized Solana Beach 
“nonprofit” service, civic or youth organization.  
 
Grant Requests FY 2021/22 
 
The following fourteen (14) applications were received by the City during the solicitation 
period (in alphabetical order). 



June 09, 2021 
FY 2021-22 Community Grants Program Requests 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 

 
Applicant Amount Requested 

Assistance League Rancho San Dieguito $3,000 
BikeWalk Solana  $3,600 
Boys and Girls Club of San Dieguito $5,000 
Casa De Amistad $5,000 
Community Resource Center $5,000 
Disconnect Collective, Inc. $5,000 
Girls on the Run San Diego $5,000 
Jaliscience Folkloric Academy $5,000 
La Colonia Community Foundation $5,000 
Nature Collective $5,000 
North Coast Repertory Theatre $5,000 
Pathways to Citizenship (Formerly NCICC) $4,968 
San Diego Civic & Historical Society  $5,000 
San Diego Green Building Council  $5,000 

Total $66,568 

 
The complete applications are included in a separate attachment that was distributed to 
Council along with the agenda packet prior to the City Council meeting. 
 
Santa Fe Christian (SFC) Schools Cooperation 
 
Eight years ago, the City and SFC created a unique partnership to more efficiently and 
effectively assist the non-profit organizations that specifically serve the La Colonia de Eden 
Gardens community. This partnership, which has included a contribution ranging from 
$10,000 - $15,000 from SFC in past years, has allowed for both the City and SFC to 
maximize its limited resources to provide the most benefit for this underserved population. 
Staff will reach out to SFC to inquire if they will be partnering with the City again this year. 
Once the City receives confirmation of whether or not SFC will participate again this year, 
Staff will relay the information to the Council. 
 
Previous Grant Cycle Update 
 
At the Febraury 10, 2021 Council meeting, Council asked that we provide a grant status 
update regarding any applicant that received funds in our previous cycle. The following 
eleven (11) out of the current fourteen (14) applicants received grants during the previous 
fiscal year grant cycle: 
 

• Assistance League Rancho San Dieguito 
• BikeWalk Solana  
• Boys and Girls Club of San Dieguito 
• Casa De Amistad 
• Community Resource Center 
• Disconnect Collective, Inc. 
• Girls on the Run San Diego 
• Jaliscience Folkloric Academy 



June 09, 2021 
FY 2021-22 Community Grants Program Requests 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 

• La Colonia Community Foundation 
• Nature Collective 
• North Coast Repertory Theatre 
• Pathways to Citizenship (Formerly NCICC) 

 
At time of this report, Staff has received updates from ten (10) of the eleven (11) applicants 
listed above. Of the responses received, only two (2) applicants have indicated they have not 
yet spent all of their respective awards. These applicants are Jaliscience Folkloric Academy 
and La Colonia Community Foundation. 
 
Jaliscience Folkloric Academy has $1,812.06 remaining from their $2,500 grant award. They 
plan to use these funds this calendar year to purchase needed costumes.  
 
La Colonia Community Foundation have not yet utlized grant funds awarded in both FY 
2019/20 and FY 2020/21. The organization was awarded grants for The Adelante Conference 
and The Youth Empowerment Conference, however, due to COVID-19, these conferences 
had to be postponed. These conferences are currently scheduled to take place on September 
11, 2021, and September 18, 2021.  
 
The only applicant that did not provide a recent status update was Casa de Amistad, 
although an update sent on Febraury 10, 2021 did inform Staff that Casa de Amistad was on 
track to spend all of their community grant award by May 30, 2021. Staff will continue to 
follow-up with this applicant for confirmation that the funds were spent. 
 
CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT: 
 
Not a project as defined by CEQA. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
The FY 2021/22 Proposed Budget contains an appropriation in the amount of $25,000 to be 
used to fund community grants, subject to the City Council’s discretion. All fiscal 
appropriations are budgeted under the City Council budget unit 001-5000-5100-6532 – 
Contribution to Other Agencies. 
 
In past years, the Council has authorized an additional $5,000 from the Reserve Public Arts 
Account to be used to fund the North Coast Repertory Theatre grant application. 
 
WORK PLAN:   
 
N/A 
 
OPTIONS: 
 

• Approve Staff recommendation 

• Approve Staff recommendation with modifications 

• Deny Staff recommendation and provide direction 



June 09, 2021 
FY 2021-22 Community Grants Program Requests 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 

 
DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council receive the Staff Report, Community Grant 
applications and consider the presentations from the grant applicants. This item will come 
back to the City Council at the June 23, 2021 City Council Meeting for Council’s grant 
allocations. 
 
CITY MANAGER RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Department Recommendation 
 
 
_________________________  
Gregory Wade, City Manager  
 
Attachments: 
 

1. City of Solana Beach Community Grant Program “Request for Financial Assistance” 
FY 2021/22 

2. Grant Applications  
 
 

 
 



 

City of Solana Beach 
Community Grant Program 

Request for Financial Assistance 
FY 2021-22 

 
APPLICATION GUIDELINES 

 
The City of Solana Beach is soliciting grant applications until 5:00 p.m., Tuesday, May 25, 
2021.  The City Council has a total of $25,000 available for community organizations.  A 
maximum of two grant applications may be submitted per community organization. Grants will 
be awarded with a maximum award of $5,000.  
 
Request for Grants are limited to non-governmental, nonprofit organizations serving the Solana 
Beach community.  Excluded entities include the following: County of San Diego, Municipal 
Organizations, Special or Water Districts, school districts or schools (but not their supporting 
organizations), and private individuals. 
 
Grant Application & Documents Required                                                       
Applicants must complete the attached application form and provide the following documents:  

• Summary of organization’s (overall) budget 
• Proposed program budget detailing costs which are fair and reasonable. 
• Financial Statements including the Balance Sheet and Revenue/Expenditure Statement, 

and the Tax Statements filed for the prior year. 
• W-9 Form 
• California Franchise Tax Board Entity Status Letter showing nonprofit status 

o Non-Profit Organizations  
Organizations which have filed as a nonprofit with the State of California must attach 
a copy of its current year 501 (c) 3 nonprofit certification form.  Organizations that are 
“recognized” nonprofits within the community but have not formally filed with the 
State, will be considered at the City Council’s discretion.  Note, any decision made 
by City Council is final in regards to the community grants process.  

 
Program Requirements; 

• Must serve the residents of Solana Beach. 
• Preferred to be a new program or one that provides a new or unique aspect to an 

existing program.  Funds are available as one-time seed-money to augment a 
community program. 

 
Application Submittal and Deadline: NO LATER THAN 5:00 p.m. Tuesday, May 25, 2021 
 
It is the City’s preference that completed forms be received via email to dking@cosb.org and 
copied to pletts@cosb.org. If email submission is not possible for an applicant, hard copies may 
be dropped off at City Hall 635 South Highway 101, Solana Beach, CA. 92075, Attn: Community 
Grants Program. 
 
Please contact Dan King, Assistant City Manager, at (858) 720-2477 if you need additional 
information.

mailto:dking@cosb.org
mailto:pletts@cosb.org
aivey
Stamp



FY 2020-2021 Community Grant Program Guidelines 
Page 2 

 

 
Applications will be judged and selected on the following criteria: 

 
1. Preferences will be given towards non-profits that provide services/goods to Solana 

Beach groups or individuals with special economic needs that are not being met in the 
economic environment.  These can be non-profits whose funding has been reduced or 
eliminated and are unable to serve these populations in need.  

2. Program costs that are fair and justifiable. 
3. Program originality (new and unique). 
4. Consideration may be given to applications that collaborate or partner with other 

organizations. 
5. Consideration may be given to applications which receive matching funds from other 

organizations. 
6. Consideration may be given to applications as decided by the City Council. 
7. Information provided on application will be used to review prior grant management and 

performance history.  Significant non-compliance issues will be taken into 
consideration and may affect future funding decisions by the City Council. 

 
Grant Award and Expenditures: 
The City Council, at its discretion, may modify the grant award to qualified recipients based on 
qualifying criteria, number of qualified applicants received, and purpose of request to meet 
areas as enumerated by the City Council that benefit the Solana Beach community.  The total of 
all grant awards may not exceed $25,000.   
 
Grants will be funded after the approval of the awards by the City Council.  Expenses must be 
directly related to services or materials of proposed activity during the grant award period (Date 
of Grant Approval through May 31, 2022).  Grantees will be required to maintain records to 
support claimed expenditures and project accomplishments.   Funds for the proposed project 
must not be used to replace or offset funding sources normally available for any portion of the 
project, nor be used by the applicant to fund/supplement its own monetary giving.  
 
Final Report and Receipts: 
The City Manager’s Office will review submitted copies of paid receipts/invoices and a written 
report to ensure that funds were spent in compliance with the approved application.  
Applicant(s) will be required to reimburse the City of Solana Beach all inappropriately spent 
funds. 
 

~ 



FY 2020-2021 Community Grant Program Guidelines 
Page 3 

 

 
 
PROGRAM FY 2021-22 KEY DATES:  
 
April 29, 2021 Distribute Grant Program Application, have it available and solicit for 

applications. 
 
May 25, 2021  DEADLINE for Request for Financial Assistance Applications 

(5:00pm).  The City Manager’s Office will review each application and 
make recommendations based upon:  

 1) Completed application;  
 2) Clear indication of the grant amount requested;  

3) Receipt of grant application before the deadline WITH 
attachments; 

4) Benefit to Solana Beach community and conformity with threshold 
criteria. 

 
June 09, 2021 First Council Review:  All eligible grant applications for Fiscal Year 

2021-22 will be considered by City Council.  Review and public 
comment/presentations will be accepted.   

 
June 23, 2021 Final Council Review: Council makes decision and approves grant 

recipients.  The City Manager will be directed to issue awards to 
recipients.  Announcement of grant award recipients is made to 
community via public notification. 

 
May 1, 2022 Letter will be sent to FY 2021-22 grant recipients reminding them to 

submit their reports and copies of receipts by May 31, 2022.  (Exception 
to the May 31, 2022 completion date can be made with proof of good 
cause.) 

 
May 31, 2022 All FY 2021-22 grant recipients must submit copies of paid 

receipts/invoices and written report, that includes the number of citizens 
served and outcome of grant funded activity.  If no paid 
receipts/invoices are received, recipient will be required to immediately 
reimburse City of Solana Beach grant funds. 

 
All grant recipients’ final reports will be submitted before the City Council for approval of 
expenditures.  If determination is made that funds were expended inappropriately, Council will 
direct Grant recipients to reimburse the City of Solana Beach for the designated amount of 
award. 
 
 



( 

( 

L 

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH 
COMMUNITY GRANT PROGRAM 

Fiscal Vear 2021 /22 

1. ASSISTANCE LEAGUE OF RANCHO SAN DIEGUITO $3,000.00 

2. BIKEWALK SOLANA $3,600.00 

3. BOYS AND GIRLS CLUBS OF SAN DIEGUITO $5,000.00 

4. CASA DE AMISTAD $5,000.00 

5. COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER $5,000.00 

6. DISCONNECT COLLECTIVE $5,000.00 

7. GIRLS ON THE RUN $5,000.00 

8. JALISCIENCE FOLKLORIC ACADEMY $5,000.00 

9. LA COLONIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION $5,000.00 

10.NATURE COLLECTIVE $5,000.00 

11.NORTH COAST REPERTORY THEATER $5,000.00 

12.PATHWAYS TO CITZENSHIP (FORMERLY NCICC) $4,968.00 

13.SAN DIEGO GREEN BUILDING COUNCIL $5,000.00 

14.SOLANA BEACH CIVIC & HISTORICAL SOCIETY $5,000.00 

ATTACHMENT 2 



J 

) 



( 

L 

City of Solana Beach 
Community Grant Program 
Request for Financial Assistance 

FY 2021-22 APPLICATION 
All Applications MUST BE RECEIVED by 5:00 p.m. Tuesday, May 25, 2021, 

Please Print Clearly or Type 
All requests will be determined by the following criteria: 

Name of Organization: Assistance League of Rancho San Dieguito 
Mailing Address: 270 F North El Camino Real, Box 368 
City Encinitas ____________ State CA __ Zip 92024 
Contact Person: Kathy O'Leary 
Daytime Phone: 760-753-1319 
Evening Phone: 760-753-1319 
Email address: alrsd100@gmail.com 

1. W-9 must be attached 

2. 

Summary of organization's budget must be attached 
Proposed program budget must be attached 
Financial and Tax Statements (see Application Guidelines) must be attached 

A copy of the California Franchise Tax Board Entity Status Letter must be attached, 
showing exemption under Section 23701d or Internal Revenue Code section 
501(c)(3) 

3. Has your organization received financial assistance from the City before? 
Yes ·XX No· 
If yes, what activities and which fiscal year? From 2014-2021, we have 
received money for the shoe events at Marshalls for students from St. 
Leo's Head Start Program. 

4. Amount requested for FY 2021-22 $_3~0~0~0~ -----------

5. Proposed Total Program Costs: $_3000 ______________ _ 
(Includes all estimated costs to conduct proposed activity/program.) 

6. Title of Proposed Program/Service: _ 

7. 

Shoes for Preschoolers/Operation School Bell 

Grant funds must be used for services or materials directly associated to proposed 
activity. Please describe how grant funds will be used: 
We invite the preschool children and their families from St. Leo's Head 
Start Program to come to Marshalls in Solana Beach to shop for shoes. 
Each child is able to buy one pair of shoes for school. 
Last year the average cost of a pair of shoes was $40. 
Assistance League members are present to help. 



( 

( 

L 

8. Estimated number of S.B. residents to be served by proposed program:_7=-5=---

9. Program Dates/Location: 
Two or three dates in March 2022 

The Marshalls store is located at 673 Rodolfo Drive, Lomas Santa Fe 
Square, Solana Beach 

10. Anticipated Program Objectives or Accomplishments: 
We invite all the students and their families from the Head Start Program. 
This year all the students attended one of the two shopping dates in April . 
Many of these children have never had a new pair of shoes. This 1s a very 
special opportunity for the children and their families. They know that the 
community cares about them. 

11. How will the organization acknowledge the City's financial contribution to the 
community/ beneficiaries of the proposed activity? 

Assistance League will list the City of Solana Beach Community Grants as 
one of our donors in publicity materials: community newsletter, the 
program for 011c aom1al (11odcaisec, oo our website, at our focioitas Thrift 
Shop and on other grant applications. 

12. Wi ll there be any matching funds or other grants that would be applied to this 
program or service? If awarded this grant, will that enable other funding sources? 

No, there are no matching funds or grants. 
This grant pays for the entire program. 

13. Will volunteers be used for the proposed program or service and, if so, will they 
reduce expenses? 

Our volunteer members will work at the Marshalls store during the 
program. 

They are not paid. 
The staff at Marshalls is not paid by us. 

14. If the proposed program or service is only awarded partial funding, will it still move 
forward? Will the program or service be scaled back and/or is there a threshold at 
which it will not move forward? 

If we do not receive full funding, we will still do the program. 
However, fewer students would be invited. 
If we receive less than$ 1500, we will not do the program. 



Acknowledgment of Responsibility: 
Authorized Signature assumes all responsibility for developing and implementing 
proposed activities or events in this application, including public acknowledgment of the 
City's financial contribution. Authorized signature will comply with all accounting and 
budget procedures outlined by the City. Authorized signature and accompanying group 
will hold harmless the City of Solana Beach from all losses, claims, accidents and 
problems associated, directly or indirectly with the development and implementation of 
proposed activities or events. 

Authorized Signature of Organization Date 

ALL INFORMATION REQUESTED ON THIS APPLICATION MUST BE COMPLETED AS A CONDITION FOR BEING 
CONSIDERED FOR PUBLIC FUNDS BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF SOLANA BEACH. 



r 

Authorized Signature assumes all responsibility for developing and implementing 
proposed activities or events in this application/ including public acknowledgment of the 
City's financial contribution. Authorized signature will comply with all accounting and 
budget procedures outlined by the City. Authorized signature and accompanying group 
will hold harmless the City of Solana Beach from all losses/ claims/ accidents and 
problems associated/ directly or indirectly with the development and implementation of 
proposed activities or events. 

ALL INFORMATION REQUESTED ON THIS APPLICATION MUST BE COMPLETED AS A CONDMON FOR BEING 
CONSIDERED FOR PUBLIC FUNDS BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF SOLANA BEACH. 



Assistance League of Rancho San Dieguito 

Shoes for Preschoolers at Marshall in Solana Beach 

Budget for 2021-2022 

75 preschoolers x $40 each = $3000 



r 
Assistance League of Rancho San Dieguito 
2021-2022 Budget Total 

Income 

4000 · Contributions 

4100 · Grants 

4201 · Thrift Shop 

4300 · Special events 

4500 · Investment Income 

4600 · Member-Only 

Total Income 

Gross Profit 

Expense 

05/14/2021 

5100 · Philanthropic Programs 

5200 · Thrift Shop Expense 

5300 · Fundraisin g Expense 

5600 · Special Events Expense 

5800 · Management & General 

5900 · Member Only expense 

Total Expense 

Net Income 

2021 - 2022 

48,010.00 

25,500.00 

175,000.00 

71 ,300.00 

192.00 

9,735.00 

329,737.00 

329,737.00 

128,285.00 

138,525.00 

1,700.00 

22,500.00 

13,570.00 

6,655.00 

311,235.00 

18,502.00 

r",. ·, 

Page 1 of 1 



( 

( 

l 

0MB No. 1545-0047 

Form 990 
Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax 

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(l) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations) 

► Do not enter social security numbers on \his fonn as it may be fl!ade publi~. 

2019 
(Rev. January 2020) 

0epartmen\ of !he T,easury 
ln\emal Revenue Seivice ► Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. 

Open to Public 
Inspection J 

' I 
, 2020 

A For the 2019 calen ar year, or ax year egmning 
D Employor ldontificallon numb or 

C 
d t b 6/01 2019 and ending 5/31 

B Check ,, applicable: - Assistance League of Rancho San Dieguito 33-0556542 
Address charu.;ie - 270-F North El Camino Real #368 E Telephone number 
Name change - Encinitas, CA 92024 858.232.0678 lnr\ral rc\u,n - r1t.Jl tll!J(n/l1<m1n.ilf0 

,-
G Gross receipts $ 452,965. Amend~ 1e\um - F Name and address of pnnc1pal officer: H(a) Is lhrs a group return for subord,nates?~ Yes 

~No _ Application pending Joy Lappe 
H(b) Are all subo1d1113tcs included? Yos No Same As C Above II "No: attach a llsl. (see ins\ructions) 

I Tax-exempt status: !XI so1(cJ(3l I I SOl(c) ( )◄ (insert no.) I l4947(a)(1) or I I 527 

J Website: ► www . alrsd.org H(c) Group exempt,on number ► 4176 
K Form ot oroanaat,on: IXI Corporahon I I T,ust I I Associa11on I I 0the, ► I L Year of formahon: 1993 I M Stale of legal dom1c11e: CA 
I Part I I Summary 

1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities:Assistance Lea~e volunteers 

Cl) 
0 

transformin_g the lives of_children and adults_thro'!9'h communitrpr(?grams _________ 
C 
C'O --------------------------------- - ------- - - --------------------E 
Cl) - ---- ----□-------- -- -- ---- -- -----------------------------------:> 2 Check this box ► if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its nel assets. 
0 

Number of voling members of the governing body (Part VI, line la). ............ . ................. 3 11 CJ 3 
~ 4 Number of independent vo\mg members of lhe governing body (Part VI, line lb} ............. .. •• ..... 4 11 .,, 
~ 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2019 (Part V, line 2a) . . . . .. . • .... • ........... 5 0 
·:;; 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) ......... . .. . .................. . . .... ...... .... , ... 6 171 =fl 

7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12 ... ......... . .... . ...... .... ...... 7a 0 . <( 

b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, line 39 ..... . . . ..... • ....... . ... ... . .... .. ' 7b 0 • 
Prior Year Current Year 

8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line l h) .......... .• .•.. ... . ' ' ' ... ' ...... .. - ... . . 2 47,158. 300,126. a, 
-:, 9 Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g) . . .. ' ...... '. •••••II'•••••'• .. ,'•••••• C 
Ct) 

10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A). Imes 3, 4, and 7d) .. 120 . 3,218. > ....... . ..... ' .. ... ... 
Ct) 

a: 11 Other revenue (Part VIit, column (A), Imes 5, Gd, Sc, 9c, 10c, and l le} ... ........... 57,891. 5,839. 
12 Total revenue - add Imes 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) ... .. 305,169. 309,183. 
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), Imes 1-3) ..• • o o • • o o o I o I • • • o ~ i 114, 327 . 108,841. 
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) ... .. ... . .... ' ..... 
15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10) ... .. 

en 
a, 
en 
C 

16 a Professional fundra1smg fees (Part IX, column (A), hne 11 e) .. .. '' ' ...... ' ...... ' .... 
- - -CIJ b Total fundra1s1ng expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) ► a. 130,355. >< -

w 
17 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A). Imes 11 a-11 d, 1 lf-24e) .... 165,670 • 161,842. . . .. . ..... . ... .. . . 
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Pait IX, column (A). hne 25) .... . ..... 279,997. 270,683. 
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 fr om line 12 . ... ········ ...... . ...... ' . 25,172. 38 500. 

~g Beginning of Current Year End of Year 
u 

•c 20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) .......... . ... . ., .. , ... .. ... .................. . .... ... . 451,376. 520,099. ~ .! •a 
Total liabilities (Part X, hne 26) . ...... 29,026 . 59,249. :o 21 . ... - .. . ... . . .. . .................. .. . ... 

05 22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20 ... .. . •. ..... . .. . ........... 422,350. 460,850. Z u. 

I Part II I Siqnature Block 
Under penall,es of petJu•y. I d~lare that I have examined tins re1urn. ;nclud1no accompanying sche<lulcs and statements, and lo U,e best of my knowledge and behef, 1t ,s ttue. correct. ond 
complele. Oec1a,at10n o! prepa,er (other than off,ce,} 1s based on all ;nfo,matron of ,-t,,ct, p1epa1er has any knowledge 

Sign 
Here 

Paid 
Preparer 
' Jse Only 

► S1onatu1e of olficer 

► Type o, pnnt name and true 

F,rm's address 
► Katherine Gluck, CPA 
► 703 Pier Ave , B621 

Hermosa Beach, CA 90254 
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions) .. ... . ... . 

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. 

Dale 

F,rm'sEIN ► 

Phone no. 

TE.EA0101L 01/21/20 



Form 990 (2019) Assistance Lea e of Rancho San Die ito 33-0556542 Page 2 

~art,fllS Statement of Program Service Accomplishments 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part 111................................................. X 

1 Briefly describe the organization's mission: 

Assistance Lea~~ _of Rancho San DiE:9Uito is an all-volunteer,_non2rofit organization 
whose members_are_dedicated to makin_g_a positive difference in our communi"9'~ ·------

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the prior 

Form 990 or 990-EZ? ........................................................................................ D No 
Ii "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule 0. 

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services? .... □ 

Yes ~ 

Yes ~ No 
If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule 0. 

4 Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses. 
Section 501 (c)(3) and 501 (c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, 
and revenue, if any, for each program service reported. 

4a (Code: ____ ) (Expenses $ 84,637. including grants of $ 83,769.) (Revenue $ ______ _ 
O2eration_School Bell...J2_rovides new school_clothing for _preschool, _elementary and ___ _ 
middle school_students from families who are identified by their school personnel. __ _ 
This 2ast y_ear the_prog_ram provided clothi~ to l,154_school children_from five local_ 
school districts._ We_clothed_l8, 167 school children since the _prog_ram' s ince2tion in_ 
1998. _ We_also collaborate with other Assistance Lea_gue ch~pi:ers to provide new ____ _ 
school clothing to the children of enlisted families in the Cam_p Pendleton Marine ___ _ 
Base._ Since the 2ro_gram' s inCE:!)i:ion in 2005, we clothed 8,280 students,_including 640 
this 2ast_y_ear. ____________________________________________________ _ 

4 b (Code: ____ ) (Expenses $ 1 7, 0 15. including grants of $ 1 7, 0 0 0 . ) (Revenue $ ______ _ 
The Scholarshil2_ Pro_gram provides scholarsh~:5 to graduating_ seniors and prior:y~ar __ _ 
recipients. _The 2ast y_ear we...J2_rovided a total of_$17,000_to nine_~aduati~ seniors_ 
and five Qrior-_y~ar recipients. __ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ _ _ __ ___ _ _ _ _ _ ___ ___ __ _____ _ _ __ 

4 c (Code: ____ ) (Expenses $ 1 0, 3 3 6 . including grants of $ 8, 0 7 2 . ) (Revenue $ ______ _ 
Assault Survivor Kits_contain_new_clothing_(sweatshirt, sweat2ants and underwear), __ _ 
toiletries and other Sl!l)plies. _ The kits, _which are distributed through local ______ _ 
hospitals, were provided to 550 survivors_last _y~ar and to 5,935 survivors since the _ 
program's_inc~tion in 1998._____________ __ ____ ____________ _ ______ _ 

4 d Other program services (Describe on Schedule 0.) See Schedule 0 
$ (Expenses $ 1 O, 2 4 9 . including grants of ) (Revenue $ 

4 e Total program service expenses ► 122,237. 
BAA TEEA0102L 07/31119 Form 990 (201 9) 



Form 990 (2019) Assistance Lea e of Rancho San Die ito 33-0556542 Page 3 
Checklist of Required Schedules 

Yes No 
Is the organization described in section 501 (c)(3) or 4947(a)(l) (other than a private foundation)? If 'Yes,' complete 
Schedule A .................................................................................................... . X 

2 Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see instructions)? .................... . 2 X 
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates 

for public office? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule C, Part I . ............................................................ . 3 X 
4 Section 501 (cX3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501 (h) election 

in effect during the tax year? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule C, Part II ................................................. . 4 X 
5 Is the organization a section 501 (c)(4), 501 (c)(5), or 501 (c)(6) organization that receives membership dues, 

assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98- 19? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule C, Part Ill ..... . 5 X 
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right 

to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, 
Part I ........................................................................................................... . 6 X 

7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space, the 
environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part II ........................ . 7 X 

8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If 'Yes,' 
complete Schedule D, Part Ill............ . . . . . . . . . .............................................................. . 8 X 

9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a custodian 
for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation 
services? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part IV. ...... ............................................................ . 9 X 

10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments 
or in quasi endowments? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part V. .................................................... . 10 X 

11 If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is 'Yes', then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII, VIII, IX, 
or X as applicable. 

a ~.d /4~;tovJ_a_nizatio_n_ '.~~o'.t. ~~ _a~_o_u.~t. f_m _ 1~_n_d_' _build1_n_g_s.' -~n~ _e_quip_m~nt ~~ -~~rt_ X'. ~i_n_e_ ~ ~:. '.'. '_Y~~•: ~~-~~'.~t~. ~~~~~-u:~ ....... . 11 a X 
b Did the organization report an amount for investments other securities in Part X, line 12, that is 5% or more of its total 

assets reported in Part X, line 16? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part VII .......................................... . 11 b X 

c Did the organization report an amount for investments - program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more of its total 
assets reported in Part X, line 16? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part VIII .............. ............................ . 11 C X 

d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets reported 
in Part X, line 16? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part IX .......................................................... . 11 d X 

e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part X..... ,_l_l_e ____ X_ 

f Did the organization's separate or consolidated iinancial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses X 
the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part X... 1-l_l_f ____ _ 

12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If 'Yes,' complete 
Schedule D, Parts XI and XII. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1-1_2_a-1---1--X-

b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If 'Yes,' and 
if the organization answered 'No' to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XII is optional ................. 1-1_2_b ____ x_ 

13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(l)(A)(ii)? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule E. ...................... 1-1_3---1----1-X-

14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? ........................... 1-1_4_a ____ x_ 
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising, 

business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued 
at $100,000 or more? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule F, Parts I and IV ................................................. . 14b X 

15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for any 
foreign organization? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule F, Parts II and IV. ................................................ . 15 X 

16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistance to 
or for foreign individuals? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule F, Parts Ill and IV ....................... ..................... . 16 X 

17 Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundra1sing services on Part IX, 
column (A), lines 6 and 11 e? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule G, Part I (see instructions) ................................ . 17 X 

18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part VIII, 
lines 1 c and Ba? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule G, Part II . ............................................................ . 18 X 

19 ~~~~Te~;gi~~:i~,/ct%~~om. t_h_a_n _s_1_5_,oo_o_ of ~r~~~ .i~~o~e _from_ ga_mm_g_ ~~tiv~t.ie~ _o~ ~ar_t _v1_11_, _11~~ .9.a~ _1: ::~~·-· ........... . 19 X 

20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule H. .......................... . 20a X 

b If 'Yes' to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? ............... . 20b 

21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance lo any domestic organization or 
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule I, Parts I and II .................... . 21 X 

BAA TEEA0103L 0ii31li9 Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) Assistance Lea ue of Rancho San Die ito 33-0556542 Page 4 

e~ti!}{fi Checklist of Required Schedules (continued) 
Yes No 

22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on Part IX, 
column (A), line 2? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule /, Parts I and Ill ....................... ............................. . 22 X 

23 Did the organization answer 'Yes' to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the organization's current 
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? If 'Yes,' complete 
Schedule J ...................................................................................................... . 23 X 

24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of 

~~~;~t~a$c~~~hu~/;t;f t.~~ Yj:0s ii~~~d JJ~e'. _D~c~~b~~ .3~ .. 2_0.°~: _1:. '_Y~s,_' -~~~~~r. '.i~~~- 2~~- '.~ro~~h. 24~. an_~ ........ . 24a X 
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? ................. . 24b 

c Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to de/ease 
any tax-exempt bonds?........................................................................................... 24c 

t---+---+---
d Did the organization act as an 'on behalf of' issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year?................. 24d 

1---1--1--

25 a Section 501(cX3), 501(cX4), and 501(cX29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit 
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part / ........................... 1--2_5_a+---+--X-

b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior year, and 
that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? If 'Yes,' complete 
Schedule L, Part I.... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25b X -------26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current or 
former officer, director, trustee, key emplore, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35% controlled entity 

26 
X 

or family member of any of these persons. If 'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part II ..................................... 1---1---1--

27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key 
employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee 
member, or to a 35% controlled entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these 
persons? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part Ill.................................................................... 27 X 

28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with on"e of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part IV 
instructions, for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions): 

a A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? If 
'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part IV.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28a X 

1---1---1--

b A family member of any individual described in line 28a? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part IV....................... 28b X 

c A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in lines 28a or 28b? If 
Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part IV.... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28c X 

29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule M.............. 29 X 

30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation 
contributions? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule M....................................................................... 30 X 

1---1---f-=-c-
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule N, Part I...... 31 X 

>---+--+---

32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If 'Yes,' complete 
Schedule N, Part II. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32 X 

33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations sections 
301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part I................................................... 33 X 

,__ ____ _ 
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part II, Ill, or IV, 

and Part V, line 7. . • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • . • . . • . . . . . . . • . . . • • . . . • • . . . . . • . . • . . . . • . . . • . • • • • • . • . • . • • . . • . . . • . . 34 X 
t---+---+---

35 a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)?............................... 35a X 
1---1--1--

b If 'Yes' to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled 
entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(l 3)? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35b 

,__ ____ _ 
36 Section 501(cX3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related 

organization? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2.............. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 36 X 
,__ ____ _ 

37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization and that is 
treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part VI...................... 37 X 

l---+---+---
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11 band 19? 

Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O...................................................... 38 X 
l:?arlY' Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V ....................... . 

1 a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable ............. . 1 a 3 
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line la. Enter -0- if not applicable .......... . 1 b 0 
c Did the organization comply with backup w1thholdina rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming 

(gambling) winnings to prize winners? ......... ~ .................................................................. . 
BAA 1EEA0104L 071 111 



Form 990 (2019) Assistance Lea e of Rancho San Die ito 33-0556542 Page 5 
F!a'rt'l Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (continued) 

2 a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax State-
ments, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return..... 2 a o 

'----'----------=-+= 
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? ............ . 

Note: If the sum of lines 1 a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions) 

3 a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? ....................... . 

b If 'Yes,' has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If 'No' to /me Jb, provide an explanation on Schedule 0 ..................................... . 

4 a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest In, or a signature or other authority over, a 
financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? ........ . 

b If 'Yes,' enter the name of the foreign country ► 

See instructions for filing requirements for FinCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR). 

5 a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? .................. . Sa X 
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party lo a prohibited tax shelter transaction? ........... . Sb X 
c If 'Yes,' to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T?. .................................................... . Sc 

6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the organization 
solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? .................................... . 6a X 

b If 'Yes,' did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts were 
not tax deductible? .............................................................................................. . 6b 

7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c). 

a Did the organization receive a f ayment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and 
services provided to the payor .................................................................................... . 

b If 'Yes,' did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? ......................... . 

c Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required to file 
Form 8282?............ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .................................................. . 

d If 'Yes,' indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year. ......................... L7~dlj ________ ffi~~~~~~ 
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? ......... . 

f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? ............ . 

g If the organizalton received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 
as required? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ........................................................................ . 

h ~~~~ %ii~gtio~ _rn_ceive_d_ a_ ~on_tri·b-~tion_ of c_a_rs'. _b~~'.s,_ a'.r_p_l~n-~~·- ~~ -~t·h-~r- ~:~_icl_e_~•- d'.d _t~~- ~~:~_n_iz~'.i_o_~ _f'.le_ ~ ....... . 
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the sponsoring 

organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? ........................................... . 

9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. 

a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966?....... . ........................ . 

b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? .................... . 

10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter: 

a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII, line 12...................... 1 O a 
1--:--t---------; 

b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club facilities.... 10b ~-~--------
11 Section 501(cX12) organizations. Enter: 

a Gross income from members or shareholders........................................... 11 a 
1--i---------l' 

b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources 
against amounts due or received from them.) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 b 

'----'------------!' 
12a Section 4947(aX1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041? ............ . 

b If 'Yes,' enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year...... 12 bj ~-~---------1 
13 Section 501(cX29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers. 

a Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? ................ . 

Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule 0. 

b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in 
which the organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans............. . . . . . . . . . . . 13 bl 

1-::'"'.::-t--------t;' 
13c c Enter the amount of reserves on hand ..... 

14 a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? .......................... . 

b If 'Yes,' has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If 'No,' provide an explanation on Schedule 0. ............. . 

15 Is the organization sub1ect to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or 
excess parachute payment(s) during the year?. . ........................................ . 
Ii 'Yes,' see 1nstruct1ons and file Form 4720, Schedule N. 

16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? 
If 'Yes,' complete Form 4720, Schedule 0. 

BAA TEEA0105L 07131119 

7e 

7f 

7g 

7h 



Form 990 (2019) Assistance League of Rancho San Dieguito 33-0556542 Page 6 

IB~tf)lli~•I Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each 'Yes' response to lines 2 through lb below, and for 
a 'No' response to line Ba, Bb, or 70b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on 
Schedule 0. See instructions. 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Ix] 

:;ection A. Governing Body and Management 

1 a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year ..... 
If there are material differences in voting rights among members 
of the governing body, or if the governing body delegated broad 
authority lo an executive committee or similar committee, explain on Schedule 0. 

1 a 11 

b Enter the number of voting members included on line la, above, who are independent.... 1 b 11 
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other 

officer, director, trustee, or key employee?......................................................................... 2 ----+---X 
3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision 

of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? ......................... 1--3-+---+-_X_ 
4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents 

since the prior Form 990 was filed? ............................................................................... . 4 X 
5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets? ............ . 5 X 
6 Did the organization have members or stockholders? .............................................................. . 6 X 
7 a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power lo elect or appoint one or more 

members of the governing body? ................................................................................. . 7a X 

b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members, S S h O 
stockholders, or persons other than the governing body? ........................................... -~~- .. . C: ........ . 7b X 

8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by 
the following: See Schedule 0 

a The governing body? ............................................................................................ . 8a X 
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body? .............................................. . 8b X 

9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at the 
organization's mailing address? If 'Yes,' provide the names and addresses on Schedule 0............................ 9 X 

Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required b the Internal Revenue Code.) 
Yes No 

10 a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates?.................................................... 10 a X 
b Ii 'Yes,' did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, afiiliates, and branches to ensure their 

operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes?................................................................ 10 b ------+---11 a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 99,Q to all members of its governing body before filing the form?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 a X 

b Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990. See Schedule O 
12 a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If 'No,' go to line 13 ................................... . 12a X 

b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise 
to conflicts? ..................................................................................................... . 12b X 

c Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If 'Yes,' describe in 
Schedule O how this was done ... . S.ee .. S.chedule .. 0 ......................................................... . 12c X 

13 Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? ........................................................... . 13 X 

14 Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? .............................. . 14 X 

15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent 
persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision? 

a The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management official .................................... . 

b Other officers or key employees of the organization. .............................................................. . 

If 'Yes' to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions). 

16 a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a 
taxable entity during the year? . . . . . . . . . . .................................................. . 

b If 'Yes,' did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its 
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the 
organization's exempt status with respect to such arrangements? ................................................... . 

Section C. Disclosure 
17 List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 1s required to be filed ► _ CA _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _____ _ 
18 Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (Section 501 (c)(3)s only) 

available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply. 

[RI Own website [RI Another's website [RI Upon request O Other (explain on Schedule 0) 

19 Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial statements available to 
the public during the tax year. See Schedule O 

20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records ► 

Marilyn Scheininger 270-F North El Camino Real #368 Encinitas CA 92024 858.232.0678 
BAA TEEA0106L 07131/19 Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) Assistance Lea e of Rancho San Die i to 33-0556542 Page 7 

Rart;\/Jllz.; Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and 
Independent Contractors 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII................. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . D 

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees 
a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the 

crgarnzat1on's tax year. 
• List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of 

compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid. 

• List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of 'key employee.' 
• List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee) 

who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the 
organization and any related organizations. 

• List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000 
of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations. 

0 List all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the 
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations. 

See instructions for the order in which lo list the persons above. 

[Z} Check this box 1f neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee. 

(C) 

(A) (8) Position (do not check more (D) (E) than one box, unless person (F) 
Name and title Average is both an officer and a Reportable Reportable Estimated amount hours director/trustee) compensation from compensation from of other per 

0 "' n :r the organization related od§anizations compensation from week s- 0 ;<;: 6' (W,211099-MISC) (:;'✓-2/1 9-MISC) ~ 0. CJ) 3, "' 3<i:j lhe organization (list any ~< = n '< "2.15 3 and related hours for ~g c Q 
(\) 

~~ organizations related = 3 Q 
!;f2 g "O gi organlza~ a 

tions 2 ~ '< 

"' below )!? & "' dolled ,, ::, 

line) "' s t ,., s 
0. 

(1) Joy LapJle ______ 20 ------
President 0 X X 0. 0. 0. 

_(2) Kathy O'Leary __ 29 ---------- ----
Vice President 0 X X 0. 0. 0. 

_ (3) Darcy Friedman ____________ 11 
Vice President 0 X X 0. 0. 0. 

_(4) Gail_Sachs _______________ 5 , ___ 
Vice President 0 X X 0. 0. 0. 

_(5) Wendy Morris __________ 17 --- ----
Vice President 0 X X 0. 0. 0. 

_ (6) Penelopft_Johnson ____ 4 ------
Secretarv 0 X X 0. 0. 0. 

_[l) CJ Nelson ______ 13 -------- ----
Secretarv 0 X X 0. 0. 0. 

_ (8) Liana Neyer 2 --------------Board Member 0 X X 0. 0. 0. 
_ (9) Marily_n Scheininger ________ 12 

Treasurer 0 X X 0. 0. 0. 
(10) Eunwha Lenehan 7 ------- -- -----

Board Member 0 X X 0. 0. 0. 
J.1])_ Judith White ______________ 8 ---

Board Member 0 X X 0. 0. 0. 
(12)_ Catherine Lemmons-Abrams_ 17 ---

Board Member 0 X X 0. 0. 0. 
(13) I 
--------------- ---------- ----

(14) --------------- ---------- ----

BAA TEEA0107L 07131119 Form 990 (2019) 



F orm 990 (2019) A · t SSlS ance L eaoue 0 f R anc h S 0 an n· iequito 33-05565 4 2 Page 8 

I P:.c1rt'llPI Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued) 

(8) (C) 

(A) 
Position (D) (E) Average (do no! check more than one 

Name and title hours !}ox, unless person is l}o!h an Reportable Reportable 
per officer and a director/trustee) compensation from compensation from week 

(list any Q 5 ::, 0 ;:<: g ;!'.. ci1 the or~nization related o~anizalions 
hours ~~ 

U> 3l ~ "2., 0,V,211 9-MISCJ (:N-211 9-MISC) = 3 for E: n 
"' related ~t = Q 3 ~~ Q 

~ 'CJ g! organiza 
~ • lions 2 l}elow & 
r., 

s <:> Q 
dotted ::, 

line) Q ;::;- g; 
n s 

a. 

(15) -------------------------- -- -

(16) -- ____ ---------------- ----

(17) ---------------------- - --

(18) -------------------- - ----

(19) -------------------------- ----

(20) ---------------------- ----

(21) ______________ -------- ----

(22) -------------------------- - -
(23) _______________ -------- ----

'24) ________ -------------- ----

(25) --- -------------- ------- ----

1 b Subtotal. .. . . . .. . . ....................................................... ► 0 . 0 . 
c Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A ........................ ► 0. 0. 

d Total (add lines 1 b and 1 c) ................................................ ► 0 . 0 . 

(F) 

Estimated amount 
of other 

compensation from 
!he organization 

and related 
organizations 

0. 
0. 
0. 

2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable compensation 

from the organization ► O 

3 Did the or~anization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee 
on line 1 a. If 'Yes,' complete Schedule J for such individual . ....................................................... . 

4 For any individual listed on line 1 a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from 
the organization and related organizations greater than $150,000? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule J for 
such individual . .................................................................................................. . 

5 Did any person listed on line 1 a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual 
for services rendered to the organization? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule J for such person .............................. . 

Section B. Independent Contractors 
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of 

compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year. 

Yes No 

w ~ ~ 
Name and business address Description of services Compensation 

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than 

$100,000 of compensation from the organization ► O 
BAA TEEAOlOSL 07131119 Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) Assistance Lea e of Rancho San Die ito 33--0556542 Page 9 
PartI'YIIJ Statement of Revenue 

Cl) 
:, 
C 
Cl) 
> 
Cl) 

C: 
L. 
Cl) 

.I:. 

0 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII................................................ D 
(A) (B) (C) (D) 

Total revenue Related or Unrelated Revenue 
exempt business excluded from tax 
function revenue under sections 
revenue 512-514 

1 a Federated campaigns ........ . 1 a 
--,--~ 

b Membership dues ............ . 1 b 12 410. 
c Fundraising events .......... . 1 C 11 527. 
d Related organizations ........ . 1 d 

e Government grants (contributions).. 1 e 
f All other contributwns, g1its, grants, and f--+---------r 

similar amounts not included above. . . 1 f 2 7 6 18 9 . 
g Noncash contributions included in 

lines la-lf...................... 1 g 148 057. 
h Total. Add lines 1 a- lf............................... ► 

Business Code 

2a 

3 

4 

5 

-------------------~------+-------+--------+---------+-------

b-------------------1--------+------l---------t-------+-------
C 

------------------~------+---------1---------t--------+-------

d-------------------1--------+------l---------t-------+-------
e 
-------

f All other program service revenue ... 

g Total. Add lines 2a-2f............................... ► 

Investment income (including dividends, interest, and 
other similar amounts).............................. ► ~---=J...:.=-=-~-l-------+--------+---.::::...<-==-=-

lncome from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds.!'":~------+--------+---------+-------
Royalties .......................................... . 

(i) Real (i1) Personal 

6 a Gross rents. . . 1-G_a-+------+-------;<• 
b Less: rental expenses 1-6:..b..:..+-------i--------L 
c Rental income or (loss) LG::...c::...i.. ______ .L.... _____ --1-==---'-'--'-"--'-'--'-'---+-'---"-'-"-'----='----= 
d Net rental income or (loss) ..... 

7 a Gross amount from 
sales of assets 
other than inventory 

,--~=-(i)_S_e-cu-,-,t,-es--,---(,-,)-::O-th-e,--1-,===-,-==t-::-====-,-=;,t:,:,-:-,-:-,-:-,-= 

7a 
b Less: cost or other basis 

and sales expenses 7 b 
~-1--------1--------1 

c Gain or (loss)...... L7:...c::...J.. ______ .1....... _____ +======.::. 
d Net gain or (loss) .................................. . 

,--~------~--,----,-,--,---::,----,,-...,...,.,+-==,....,.,.,....,,,,.,.,..,,..,,.,..,;-t-:,: 
8 a Gross income from fundra1sing events 

(not including $ 11, 5 2 7 • 
of contributwns reported on line 1 c). 

See Part IV, line 18 . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1-S_a-l-----'7:...L..:8::..:8"-'6"-'-l. 

b Less: direct expenses. . . . . . . t..:S~b~~-2:::..L.:::.0.;:4~7-;.:f==~~~~~~~~~~~ 
c Net income or (loss) from fundraising events. . . . . . . . . ► 

9 a Gross income from gaming activities. 
See Part IV, line 19 ............ . 9a 

b Less: direct expenses ...... . 9b 

10 a Gross sales of inventor/, less ..... . 
returns and allowances Oa 141 735. 

b Less: cost of goods sold .... Ob 141 735. 
c Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory .... 

Business Code 
!9 § ~ 11 a _________________ -·l--------l------+-----+-----t-----

ro C b __________________ ·~------~--------+-------1--------+------
{ ) ~ C - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -1----------1-------+-------t-------jl-------
\_ JJ c:: d All other revenue ................... L----------;;:j--------tTTTTTT:;;hTTTTTT~~TTTTTS-: i e Total. Add lines lla-11 d.............. . . . . . . . . . . . . ► 

12 Total revenue. See instructions ...................... ► 309 183. 0. 0. 9 057. 
BAA TEE1'0109L 07131/19 Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) Assistance Lea e of Rancho San Die ito 33-0556542 Page 10 

PartJ),(yi Statement of Functional Expenses 
Section 501 (c)(3) and 501 (c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A). 

Check 1i Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . I I 
(A) (B) (C) (D) 

Do not include amounts reported on lines Total expenses Program service Management and Fundraising 
6b, 7b, Bb, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. expenses general expenses expenses 

Grants and other assistance to domestic 
organizations and domestic governments. 
See Part IV, line 21. ...................... . 

2 Grants and other assistance to domestic 
individuals. See Part IV, line 22 ........... . 

3 Grants and other assistance to foreign 
organizations, foreign governments, and for

8,072. 8,072. 

100,769. 100,769. 

eign individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 161-----------1---------+ 
4 Benefits paid to or for members ........... . 
5 Compensation of current officers, directors, 

trustees, and key employees .............. . 
6 Compensation not included above to 

disqualified persons (as defined under 
section 4958(1)(1 )) and persons described 
in section 4958(c)(3)(B) ................... . 

7 Other salaries and wages ..... . 

s Pension plan accruals and contributions 
(include section 401 (k) and 403(b) 
employer contributions) ................... . 

9 Other employee benefits .................. . 

1 O Payroll laxes... . ........................ . 

11 Fees for services (nonemployees): 

a Management. ............................ . 

b Legal .................................... . 

c Accounting ............................... . 

d Lobbying.. . . . . . ...................... . 

e Professional fundra1sing services. See Part IV, line 17 .. . 

f Investment management fees ............. . 
g Other. (If line llg amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column 

(A) amount, list lme 11 g expenses on Schedule 0.) ... . 
12 Advertising and promotion ................ . 

13 Office expenses .......................... . 

14 Information technology .................... . 

15 Royalties . . . . . . . ................... . 

16 Occupancy .. . 

17 Travel ....... .. 

18 Payments of travel or entertainment 
expenses for any federal, state, or local 
public officials ........................... . 

19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings ... . 
20 Interest. ....................... . 

21 Payments to affiliates ..................... . 

22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization .. . 

23 Insurance ................................ . 
24 Other expenses. Itemize expenses not 

covered above (List miscellaneous expenses 
on line 24e. If line 24e amount exceeds 10% 
of line 25, column (A) amount, list line 24e 
expenses on Schedule 0.) ................ . 

0. 0. 

0. 0. 

4 000. 

641. 

108,358. 

1,960. 653. 

6,025. 
392. 

3,856. 

0. 

0. 

4 000. 

641. 

1,420. 

654. 

6,025. 

600. 

a Prqgram S@p).ie s ________ ....-----.=.,.-=-"-'-4--------=-'-=-=-.!--=-+-----8 347. 8 347. 
b Storage rental __________ +------''-'-''-=-""-'-f------=--~'-"-"-1------' 6 402. 3 774. 1 314. 
c R~airs & maintenance _____ ....------=..z.-'--'~4-----------+-----4 796. 
d ~1:!RPl!~~ - - -------+------'~~~-----~~"-!------' 4 025. 357. 1 488. 
e All other expenses ....................... . 13,040. 265. 1,949. 

25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e .. . 

26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if 
the organization reported in column (B) 
Joint costs from a combined educational 
campaign and fundra1sing solicitation. 
Check here ► D 1f following 
SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720) ............. . 

BAA 

270,683. 122,237. 18,091. 

TEEA0110L 07131119 

0. 

0. 

106,938. 

653. 

392. 
3,256. 

1 314. 
4 796. 
2 180. 

10,826. 
130,355. 

Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) Assistance Lea e of Rancho San Die ito 
33-0556542 Page 11 

RartX,S' Balance Sheet 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X ......... •. • • .. • • • • • • · · • • • · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

(A) (8) 
Beginning of year End of year 

1 Cash - non-interest-bearing ..................... •••••••••••··•··············· 120,889 • 
1 113

,
382 

· 
2 Savings and temporary cash investments .................... • •. • • • • • • • • • · · · · · L----=2:..:3::.:9-:c.L-, ..:::6..:::9.::3:..:·:..i--2--J ____ 3.;;._0_5_,_,_0_1_6_. 

3 Pledges and grants receivable, net ......................... • • • • • • • • • • • • · · · · · · · \----~8:..L, ~0..:::0~0:..:·+...:
3-1--------
4 

4 Accounts receivable, net ........................... •.. . . • • • • • • • • • • • • · • · · · · · · · 1---c,___,,.,...,,~,... 

5 Loans and other receivables from any current or for.mer officer. director .
0 

trustee, key employee, creator or founder. substantial contributor, or 351/o 
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons ................ •••••• 

6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under 

section 4958(f)(l )). and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(8) .............. 1--------+--+---------
7 Notes and loans receivable. net ... 

8 Inventories for sale or use ..................................................... l----...!....::c:..L..::::..:::..:....:-1---+------"--'-...::..;:'---

9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges. ....................................... 1---

Ill .... 
Q) 
Ill 
Ill 
ct 1 O a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other basis. 

Complete Part VI of Schedule D .................. . 10 a 9 946. 

b Less: accumulated depreciation .................. . 10b 9,208. 1,130. 10c 738. 

11 Investments - publicly traded securities ....................................... 1----------+-1_1___, _______ _ 

12 Investments - other securities. See Part IV, line 11 ............................. 1----------1-1_2--1--------

13 lnvestments - program-related. See Part IV, line 11 ............................ 1---------+-1_3-+-------

14 lntangible assets ............................................................. 1----------+-1_4___, _______ _ 

15 Other assets. See Part IV, line 11. ............................................. 1-------=5J-:9:..:2::.c5::....:.... i--15-11-----5.c...t...=.9=2-=3-'--. 

16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 33) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 51, 3 7 6 • 16 5 2 0, 0 9 9 • 

17 
18 
19 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 7 , 8 O 6 • 17 2 2, O 7 3 . 
I------=-'-'-..::..::...:::..;:..+-~-+-----=-=-<...:::..;:...:::...:... 

Grants payable. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 
Deferred revenue ............................................................. i-----1-1-,-2-2-0---;. 1-,-9--1----3-7-, 1-7-6-. 

20 Tax-exempt bond liabilities. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 1---------1---1---------Ill 21 Q) 
E s crow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D........... 21 

~ 22 
:a 
('J 

:.J 
23 

24 

Loans and other payables to any current or former officer. director, trustee. 
key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35% 
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons...................... 22 f---------+---+---------
S e cured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties................. 23 1---------1--+---------U n secured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 1---------1---1---------

25 

26 

0 the r liabilities (including federal income tax. payables to related third parties, 
and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X of Schedule D. 25 f---------+---1---------
T o ta I liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25....................................... 26 

Ill 
Q) 
(.) 

C: 

Organizations that follow F ASB ASC 958, check here ► X 
and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33. 

('J 27 
"/6 
co 28 

Net assets without donor restrictions ............. . 

Net assets with donor restrictions. . . . . . ............................... . 
"1J 
C: 
:I 

LL. 

Organizations that do not follow F ASB ASC 958, check here ► D l--;:,-===~~=+::'±=¼===,,,,;::;~..:::.,:::,,;:...:.., 
and complete lines 29 through 33. 

I.. 
0 29 
Ill 

30 ... 
~ 
Ill 31 
ct 

32 .... 
Q) 

z 33 

Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds................................. 29 
1----------+---+---------

P aid -in or capital surplus. or land, building, or equipment fund . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30 
Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds ............. 1---------+-3-1---l--------
Total net assets or fund balances... . ....................... 1----4-2_2_, _3_5_0 __ -+-3-2--1----4-6_0_,_8_5_0_. 

Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 51, 3 7 6 • 33 5 2 O, O 9 9 . 

BAA TEEA0111L 07131/19 Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) Assistance Lea ue of Rancho San Die ito 33-0556542 Page 12 

Pai-t?~l)f Reconciliation of Net Assets 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI .................................................. n 

1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) ................................................. 1 309 183. 
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) ................................................ 2 270 683. 
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line , ...................................................... 3 38 500. 
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 32, column (A)) ................. 4 422 350. 
5 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments ........................................................... 5 
6 Donated services and use of facilities ................................................................... 6 
7 Investment expenses .................................................................................. 7 
8 Prior period adjustments ............................................................................... 8 

9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain on Schedule 0) ................................... 9 0. 
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 32, 

column (B)) ........................................................................................... 10 460,850. 
! Hart XII I Financial Statements and Reporting 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII .................................................. n 
Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: 0 Cash 1K] Accrual 00ther 

If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked 'Other,' explain 
in Schedule 0. 

2 a Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? ................... . 

If 'Yes,' check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on a 
s2?arate basis, consolidated basis, or both: 
~ Separate basis O Consolidated basis O Both consolidated and separate basis 

b Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant? ................................ . 

If 'Yes,' check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate 
basis, consolidated basis, or both: 

0 Separate basis O Consolidated basis O Both consolidated and separate basis 

c If 'Yes' to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit, 
review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? ....................... . 

If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain 
on Schedule 0. 

3 a As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the Single 
Audit Act and 0MB Circular A• 1337 ............................................................................... . 

b If 'Yes,' did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the required audit 

3a 

or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits........ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 b 

X 

BAA TEEA0112L 01121120 Form 990 (2019) 



SCHEDULE A 
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) 

Public Charity Status and Public Support 
Complete if the organization is a section 501 (cX3) organization or a section 

4947(aX1) nonexempt charitable trust. 
2019 

► Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. 
Department of the Treasury G 
'nternal Revenue Service ► o to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. 

Name of the organization I Employer identification number 

Assistance Lea e of Rancho San Die ito 33-0556542 
Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions. 

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.) 

1 ~ A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(bX1XA)(i). 
2 A school described in section 170(bX1XAXii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ).) 

3 A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(bX1XAXiii). 

4 A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described In section 170(b)(1XAXiii). Enter the hospital's 
name, city, and state: 

5 0 An organization operat;d-f~ ;h; benefit-a~ a-c~ll~g~ ~r-u~i:e~ity ~~n~d-o~ ~p;r;t;d ~;; g~:e~;:n~l-u~it-d;s~r~~ in- - - - - - · 
section 170(bX1XAXiv). (Complete Part II.) 

6 8 A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(bX1XAXv). 
7 

An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described 
in section 170(bX1XAXvi). (Complete Part II.) 

8 0 A community trust described in section 170(bX1XAXvi). (Complete Part II.) 

9 0 An agricultural research organization described in section 170(bX1XAXix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college 
or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or 
university: 

10 iR] An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33-1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts -
from activities related to its exempt functions-subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33-1 /3% of its support from gross 
investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after 
June 30, 1975. See section 509(aX2). (Complete Part Ill.) 

11 D An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(aX4). 

12 D An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of one 
or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(aX2). See section 509(aX3). Check the box in 
lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 121, and 12g. 

a O Type I. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving the supported 
organizat1on(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting organization. You must 
complete Part IV, Sections A and B. 

(A) 

(8) 

(C) 

(D) 

(E) 

b O Type II. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having control or 
management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported organization(s). You 
must complete Part IV, Sections A and C. 

c O Type Ill functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with, its supported 
organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E. 

d O Type Ill non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s) that is not 
functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness requirement (see 
instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V. 

e O Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type I, Type II, Type Ill functionally 
integrated, or Type Ill non-functionally integrated supporting organization. 

f Enter the number of supported organizations ............................................................... . 
g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s). 

(i) Name of supported organization (ii)EIN 
\
iii) Type of organiz.ation 
described on Imes 1-10 

above (see mstruchons)) 

(iv) Is the_ (v) Amount of monetary 
organization listed support (see instructions) 
m ~•our governing 

document? 

Yes No 

(vi) Amount al other 
support (see instructions) 

Total 

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 
TEEA0401L 07103/19 



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 Assistance Lea e of Rancho San Die ito 33-0556542 Page 2 

f>arMlfi Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(bX1XA)(iv) and 170(b)(1XA)(vi) 
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Ill. If the 
organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part Ill.) 

Section A. Public Support 

.;alendar year (or fiscal year 
beginning in) ► 

1 Gifts, grants, contributrnns, and 
membership, fees received. (Do not 
include any unusual grants.) ...... . 

2 Tax revenues levied for the 
organization's benefit and 
either paid to or expended 
on its behalt ................ . 

3 The value of services or 
facilities furnished by a 
governmental unit to the 
organization without charge .. 

4 Total. Add lines 1 through 3 .. 

5 The portion of total 
contributions by each person 
(other than a governmental 
unit or publicly supported 
organization) included on line 1 
that exceeds 2% of the amount 
shown on line 11, column (f) .. 

6 Public support. Subtract line 5 
from line 4 .................. . 

Section B. Total Support 

Calendar year (or fiscal year 
beginning in) ► 

7 Amounts from line 4 ......... . 

8 Gross income from interest, 
dividends, payments received 
on securities loans, rents, 
royalties, and income from 
similar sources .............. . 

9 Net income from unrelated 
business activities, whether or 
not the business is regularly 
carried on. .................. . 

1 O Other income. Do not include 
gain or loss from the sale of 
capital assets (Explain in 
Part VI.) .................... . 

11 Total support. Add lines 7 
through 10 .................. . 

(a) 2015 (b) 2016 

(a) 2015 (b) 2016 

12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) ...... . 

(c) 2017 (d) 2018 (e) 2019 

(c) 2017 (d) 2018 (e) 2019 

(f) Total 

(f) Total 

13 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501 (c)(3) 
organization, check this box and stop here.............................. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ► 0 

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage 
% 14 Public support percentage for 2019 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column (f)).......................... 14 

l---i--i--------
15 Public support percentage from 2018 Schedule A, Part 11, line 14............................................. 15 o, 

lo ~-~------
16a 33-1/3% support test-2019. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33-1/3% or more, check this box 

and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ► D 
b 33-1/3% supporttest-2018. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33-1/3% or more, check this box . 

and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ................................................... ► 0 
17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test-2019. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is 10% 

or more, and if the organization meets the 'facts-and-circumstances' test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how 
the organization meets the 'facts-and-circumstances' test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization. ..... 

b 1 □%-facts-and-circumstances test-201 B. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line 15 is 10% 
or more, and if the organization meets the 'facts-and-circumstances' test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the 
organization meets the 'facts-and-circumstances' test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ............ . 

18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see instructions .. . 

►□ 

BAA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 

TEEA0402L 07/03119 



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 Assistance Lea e of Rancho San Die ito 33-0556542 Page 3 

Paffi]m~: Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section _50~(a)(2) . . . 
· (Complete only if you checked the box on line 1 O of Part I or 1f the organization fatled to qualify under Part 11. If the organization 

fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.) 

Section A. Public Support 
,alendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) ► 

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, 
and membership fees 
received. (Do not include 
any 'unusual grants.') ........ . 

2 Gross receipts from admissions, 
merchandise sold or services 
performed_, or facilities . 
furnished in any act1v1ty that Is 
related to the organization's 
tax-exempt purpose ......... . 

3 Gross receipts from activities 
that are not an unrelated trade 
or business under section 513. 

4 Tax revenues levied for the 
organization's benefit and 
either paid to or expended on 
its behalf ................... . 

5 The value of services or 
facilities furnished by a 
governmental unit to the 
organization without charge .. . 

6 Total. Add lines 1 through 5 .. . 
7a Amounts included on lines 1, 

2, and 3 received from 
disqualified persons ......... . 

b Amounts included on lines 2 
and 3 received from other than 
disqualified persons that 
exceed the greater of $5,000 or 
1, % of the amount on line 13 
for the year. . . . . .......... . 

c Add lines 7a and 7b ......... . 

8 Public support. (Subtract line 
7c from line 6.) .............. . 

5ection B. Total Support 
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) ► 

9 Amounts from line 6 .......... 

1 Oa Gross income from interest, dividends, 
payments received on securities loans, 
rents, royalties, and income from 
similar sources .................. 

b Unrelated business taxable 
income (less section 511 
taxes) from businesses 
acquired after June 30, 1975 .. 

c Add lines 1 Oa and 1 Ob ........ 
11 Net income from unrelated business 

activities not included in line 1 Ob, 
whether or not the business is 
regularly carried on ............... 

12 Other income. Do not include 
gain or loss from the sale of 
capital assets (Explain in 
Part VI.) ..................... 

13 Total support. (Add lines 9, 
1 De, 11, and 12.) ... . . . . . . . . . 

(a) 2015 (b) 2016 (c) 2017 

238 662. 256 625. 240 951. 

37 854. 69 130. 63 101. 

276 516. 325 755. 304 052. 

1 650. 3 400. 3 025. 

(a) 2015 (b) 2016 (c) 2017 

276,516. 325,755. 304,052. 

120. 135. 151. 

120. 135. 151. 

276,636. 325,890. 304,203. 

(d) 2018 (e) 2019 (f) Total 

247 158. 300 126. 1 283 522. 

0. 

77 951. 7 886. 255 922. 

0. 

0. 
325 109. 308 012. 1 539 444. 

1 750. 2 100. 11 925. 

0. 
11 925. 

1 527,519. 

(d) 2018 (e) 2019 (f) Total 

325,109. 308,012. 1,539,444. 

120. 3,218. 3 744. 

0. 
120. 3,218. 3,744. 

0. 

0. 

325,229. 311,230. 1,543,188. 
14 First five years. If the _Form 990 Is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501 (c)(3) 

organization, check this box and stop here . .................................................................................. . ► D 
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage 

16 Public support percentage from 2018 Schedule A, Part Ill, line 15 ........................................... . 

15 Public support percentage for 2019 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)).......................... 15 9 8 . 9 8 % 
f--4-----"...:;_:..;:_.:;___ 

16 99.18 % 
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage 
17 Investment income percentage for 2019 (line 1 Oc, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f))................... 17 0. 24 % 

1----1-----"-'-=-"~-
18 Investment income percentage from 2018 Schedule A, Part 111, line 17........................................ 18 O. 05 % ~-~------
19a 33-1/3% support tests-2019. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33-1 /3%, and line 17 

is not more than 33-1 /3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ........... ► [Rl 
b 33-1/3% support tests-2018. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33-1/3%, and 

line 18 is not more than 33-1 /3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization .... ►► 8 
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions ........... . 

BAA TEEA0403L 07/03119 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 Assistance Lea e of Rancho San Die ito 33-055 6542 
Page 

4 

1Piir:UY''f fig~~~\~go~l~g~n;~~t~~:~ked a box in line 12 on Part I. If you checked 12a of Part I, complete Sections 
A and B. If you checked 12b of Part I, complete Sections A and C: If you checked 12c of Part I, complete 
sections A, D, and E. If you checked 12d of Part I, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.) 

iection A. All Supporting Organizations 

Are all of the organization's supported organization_s listed by name in the o_rganization's governing docume_nts? 
If 'No ' describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by class or purpose, descnbe 
the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 

2 Did the organization have any supported organization that doe~ not have an l~S determination of status under_ se~tion 
509(a)(l) or (2)? If 'Yes,' explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported organization was 
described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 

3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501 (c)(4), (5), or (6)? If 'Yes,' answer (b) 
and (c) below. 

b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501 (c)(4), (5), or (6) and 
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If 'Yes,' describe in Part VI when and how the organization 
made the determination. 

c Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section l 70(c)(2)(8) 
purposes? If 'Yes,' explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 

4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ('foreign supported organization')? If 'Yes' and 
if you checked 72a or 72b in Part I, answer (b) and (c) below. 

b Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether lo make grants to the foreign supported 
organization? If 'Yes,' describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion despite being controlled 
or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations. 

c Did the organization support any foreign supported organization t11at does not have an IRS determination under 
sections 501 (c)(3) and 509(a)(l) or (2)? If 'Yes,' explain in Part VI what controls the organization used to ensure that 
all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 7 70(c)(2)(B) purposes. 

Sa Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If 'Yes,' answer (b) 
and (c) below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part Vt, including (i) the names and EIN numbers of the supported 
organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ii) the reasons for each such action; (iii) the authority under the 
organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action was accomplished (such as by 
amendment to the organizing document). 

b Type I or_Tyfe II only._ Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already designated in the 
organ1zat1on s organizing document? 

c Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control? 

6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) lo 
anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited by one 
or more of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also support or benefit one or more of 
the filing organization's supported organizations? If 'Yes,' provide detail in Part VI. 

7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor 
(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with 
regard to a substantial contributor? If 'Yes,' complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ). 

8 Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described in line 7? If 'Yes,' 
complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ). 

9a Was th_e organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more disqualified persons 
as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described in section 509(a)(l) or (2))? 
If 'Yes,' provide detail in Part VI. 

b Did one_ or more disqualified persons (as d_efined in line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which the 
supporting organization had an interest? Ir 'Yes,' provide detail in Part VI. 

c Did a disqualified person (a_s defined _in line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit from, 
assets 1n which the supporting organization also had an interest? If 'Yes,' provide detail in Part VI. 

10 a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section 4943(f) (regarding 
certain Type II supporting organ1zat1ons. and all Type Ill non-functionally integrated supporting organizations)? If 'Yes,' 
answer 10b below. 

b Did the organization have any excess business holdings 1n the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to determine 
whether the organization had excess business holdings.) . 7 Ob 

1AA TEEAC404L 07103119 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 Assistance Lea e of Rancho San Die ito 33-0556542 
Bartl\/Jt Supporting Organizations (continued) 

11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons? 

a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (b) and (c) below, the 
governing body of a supported organization? 

b A family member of a person described in (a) above? 

c A 35% controlled entity of a person described in (a) or (b) above? If 'Yes' to a, b, or c, provide detail in Part VI. 

Section B. Type I Supporting Organizations 

1 Did the directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint 
or elect at least a majority of the organization's directors or trustees at all times during the tax year? If 'No,' describe in 
Part VI how the supported organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or contra/fed the organization's activities. 
If the organization had more than one supported organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove 
directors or trustees were a/located among the supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, 
applied to such powers during the tax year. 

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported organization(s) 
that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If 'Yes,' explain in Part VI how providing such 
benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated, supervised, or contra/fed the 
supporting organization. 

Section C. Type II Supporting Organizations 

1 Were a maJonty of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a maiority of the directors or trustees 
of each of the organization's supported organization(s)? If 'No,' describe in Part VI how control or management of the 
supporting organization was vested in the same persons that contra/led or managed the supported organization(s). 

Section D. All Type Ill Supporting Organizations 

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the 
organization's tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax 
year, (ii) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the 
organization's governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided? 

2 Were any of the organization's officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported 
organization(s) or (ii) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If 'No,' explain in Part VI how 
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s). 

3 By reason of the relationship described in (2), did the organization's supported organizations have a significant 
voice in the organization's investment policies and in directing the use of the organization's income or assets at 
all times during the tax year? If 'Yes,' describe in Part VI the role the organization's supported organizations played 
in this regard. 

Section E. Type Ill Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations 

1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions). 

a O The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below. 

b D The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below. 

Page 5 

lla 

11 b 

llc 

c O The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a government entity (see instructions). 

2 Activities Test. Answer (a) and (b) below. 

a Did substantially all of the organization's activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of the 
supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If 'Yes,' then in Part VI identify those supported 
organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes, how the organization was 
responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined that these activities constituted 
substantia!ly a/I of its activities. 

b Did the activities described in (a) constitute activities that, but for the organization's involvement, one or more of 
the organization's supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? if 'Yes,' explain in Part VI the reasons for 
the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in these activities but for the 
organization's involvement. 

3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer (a) and (b) below. 

a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or trustees of 
each of the supported organizations? Provide details in Part VI. 

b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of d1rect1on over the policies, programs, and activities of each of its 
supported organizations? If 'Yes,' describe in Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard. 3b 

BAA TEEA0405L 07/03/19 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 Assistance Lea e of Rancho San Die ito 33-0556542 Page 6 

Pa'ft,W~.' Type Ill Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations 

D Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part VI). See 
instructions. All other Type Ill non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E. 

3ection A - Adjusted Net Income 

1 Net short-term capital gain 

2 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 

3 Other gross income (see instructions) 

4 Add lines 1 through 3. 

5 Depreciation and depletion 

6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or collection of gross 
income or for management, conservation, or maintenance of property held for 
production of income (see instructions) 

7 Other expenses (see instructions) 

8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4) 

Section B - Minimum Asset Amount 

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see instructions for short 
tax year or assets held for part of year): 

a Average monthly value of sewrities 

b Average monthly cash balances 

c Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets 

d Total (add lines 1 a, 1 b, and 1 c) 

e Discount claimed for blockage or other 
factors (explain in detail in Part VI): 

2 Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets 

3 Subtract line 2 from line 1 d. 

4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 1-1 /2% of line 3 (for greater amount, 
see instructions). 

5 Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3) 

6 Multiply line 5 by .035. 

7 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 

8 Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6) 

Section C - Distributable Amount 

Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, Column A) 

2 Enter 85% of line 1. 

3 Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, Column A) 

4 Enter greater of line 2 or line 3. 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

la 

lb 

le 

ld 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 Income tax imposed in prior year 5 

6 Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to emergency 
temporary reduction (see instructions). 6 

(A) Prior Year 

(A) Prior Year 

(B) Current Year 
(optional) 

(B) Current Year 
(optional) 

Current Year 

7 D Check here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally integrated Type Ill supporting organization 
(see instructions). 

BAA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 

TEEA0406L 07103119 



ScheduleA(Form990or990-EZ)2019 Assistance Lea e of Rancho San Die ito 33-0556542 Page7 

Parts\'7;~~ Type Ill Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued) 
Section D - Distributions Current Year 

1 Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes 

2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly iurthers exempt purposes of supported organizations, 
in excess of income from activity 

3 Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations 

4 Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets 

5 Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required) 

6 Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions. 

7 Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6. 

8 Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive (provide details 
in Part VI). See instructions. 

9 Distributable amount for 2019 from Section C, line 6 

10 Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount 

Section E - Distribution Allocations (see instructions) 

1 Distributable amount for 2019 from Section C, line 6 

2 Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2019 (reasonable 
cause required - explain in Part VI). See instructions. 

3 Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2019 

a From 2014 .............. . 

b From 2015 .............. . 

c From 2016 ............. . 

dFrom2017 .............. . 

e From 2018 .............. . 

f Total of lines 3a through e 

g Applied to underdistributions of prior years 

h Applied to 2019 distributable amount 

i Carryover from 2014 not applied (see instructions) 

j Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from 31. 

4 Distributions for 2019 from Section D, 
line 7: $ 

a Applied to underdistributions of prior years 

b Applied to 2019 distributable amount 
c Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from 4. 

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2019, if any. 
Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result greater than 
zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions. 

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2019. Subtract lines 3h and 4b 
from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in Part VI. See 
instructions. 

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2020. Add lines 3j and 4c. 

8 Breakdown of line 7: 

a Excess from 2015 ..... . 
b Excess from 2016 ..... . 

c Excess from 2017 ..... . 

d Excess from 2018 ..... . 

e Excess from 2019 ..... . 

(i) 
Excess 

Distributions 

(ii) 
Underdistributions 

Pre-2019 

(iii) 
Distributable 

Amount for 2019 

BAA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 

iEEA0407L 07103119 



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 Assistance Lea e of Rancho San Die ito 33-0556542 Page 8 

Supplem~ntal Information. Provide the exJ)lanations required by Part II, line _10; Par1 II, line 17a or 1 ?b;fart II.I, line 1_2; Part IV, 
t__===section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9c, 11 a, 11 b, and 11 c; Part IV, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part Iv, Section C, line 1; 

BAA 

Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1 c, 2a, 2b, 3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1 e; Part V, 
Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E, lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. 
(See instructions.) 

TEEA040SL 07103/19 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 



Schedule B 

(Form 990, 990-EZ, 
or990-PF) 
Department of the TreasUl}I 
Internal Rovenue Service 

PUBLIC DISCLOSURE COPY 
Schedule of Contributors 

► Attach to Form 990, Form 990-EZ, or Form 990-PF. 
► Go to www.lrs.gov/Form990 for the latest Information. 

0MB No. 1545-0047 

2019 
iamo of the organization Employer ldontlRcallon number 

Assistance Lea e of Rancho San Die ito 33-0556542 
Organization type (check one): 

Filers of: 

Form 990 or 990-EZ 

Form 990-PF 

Section: 

~ 501 (c)( 3 ) (enter number) organization 

D 4947(a)(l) nonexempt charitable trust not treated as a private foundation 

D 527 political organization 

D 501 (c)(3) exempt private foundation 

D 4947(a)(l) nonexempt charitable trust treated as a private foundation 

D 501 (c)(3) taxable private foundation 

Check if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule. 

Note: Only a section 501 (c)(7), (8), or (10) organization can check boxes for both the General Rule and a Special Rule. See instructions. 

General Rule 

D For an organization filing Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF that received, during the year, contributions totaling $5,000 or more (in money 
or property) from any one contributor. Complete Parts I and II. See instructions for determining a contributor's total contributions. 

Special Rules 

~ For an organization described in section 501 (c)(3) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that met the 33-1 /3% support test of the regulations 
under sections 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(l)(A)(vi), that checked Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ), Part II, line 13, 16a, or 1 Gb, and that 
received from any one contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of (1) $5,000; or (2) 2% of the amount on (i) 
Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 h; or (ii) Form 990-EZ, line 1. Complete Parts I and II. 

D For an organization described in section 501 (c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor, 
during the year, total contributions of more than $1,000 exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific, literary, or educational 
purposes, or for the prevention of cruelty to children or animals. Complete Parts I, II, and Ill. 

D For an organization described in section 501 (c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor, 
during the year, contributions exclusively for religious, charitable, etc., purposes, but no such contributions totaled more than 
$1,000. If this box is checked, enter here the total contributions that were received during the year for an exclusively religious, 
charitable, etc., purpose. Don't complete any of the parts unless the General Rule applies to this organization because 
it received nonexc/usive/y religious, charitable, etc., contributions totaling $5,000 or more during the year .. ► $ --------

Caution: An organization that isn't covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules doesn't file Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 
990-PF), but it must answer 'No' on Part IV, line 2, of its Form 990; or check the box on line Hof its Form 990-EZ or on its Form 990-PF, 
Part I, line 2, to certify that it doesn't meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF). 

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF. Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2019) 

TEEA0701 L 08/09/19 



Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2019) 1 1 Page 2 
Name of organization Employer idontilication number 

Assistance League of Rancho San Dieguito 33-0556542 

I Part:! ,I Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part I if additional space is needed. 

(a) (b) (c) (d) 
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total Type of contribution 

contributions 

1 Person IBl - -- ------------------ ------------------- Payroll □ $ ----- 87,300. Non cash □ ~------------------------------- -----
(Complete Part II for 

,__ __ ---------------------------------- noncash contributions.) 

(a) (b) (c) (d) 
No. Name, address, and ZIP+ 4 Total Type of contribution 

contributions 

Person □ - -- 1--------------------------------------- Payroll □ $ Non cash □ 1--- - - ------------ ------------- ----- - ---------

~------ --------------- --------------
(Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

(a) (b) (c) (d) 
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total Type of contribution 

contributions 

Person □ - -- 1--- ----------- -------------------- - Payroll □ $ Noncash □ 1-- ------------------- - --------- --- --- ------

\------------------------ ------- ------
(Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

(a) (b) (c) (d) 
No. Name, address, and ZIP+ 4 Total Type of contribution 

contributions 

Person □ --- 1-- ------- ------------------------ -- Payroll □ $ Noncash □ 1------------------------------------- - -------- -

~---------------------------------- --
(Complete Pari II for 
noncash contributions.) 

(a) (b) (c) (d) 
No. Name, address, and ZIP+ 4 Total Type of contribution 

contributions 

Person □ - - ~------------- -------- ------------- Payroll □ $ Noncash □ 
..._ ______________ 

------- ---- ------- -----------

1--- -- --------------------------------
(Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

(a) (b) 
No. Name, address, and ZIP+ 4 

(c) 
Total 

contributions 

(d) 
Type of contribution 

Person □ --- 1-- --- -------- ---------------------- Payroll □ $ Noncash □ ~------------------------------------- ----- -----

1------------ --------------------------
(Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

BAA TEEA0702l 08109119 Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2019) 



Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2019) 1 1 Page 3 
Name of organization Employer identification number 

Assistance Lea e of Rancho San Die ito 33-0556542 

IBaJjJI' i,;j Noncash Property (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part II if additional space is needed. 

(a) No. 
from 
Part I 

(a) No. 
from 
Part I 

(a) No. 
from 
Part I 

(a) No. 
from 
Part I 

(a) No. 
from 
Part I 

(a) No. 
from 
Part I 

BAA 

(b) 
Description of noncash property given 

N/A 1-------------------------------------------
I- --------------------

(c) 
FMV (or estimate) 
(See instructions.) 

(d) 
Date received 

~---------- ----------------------------- --------------------
(b) 

Description of noncash property given 

1----------
1-------------
1-------

$ 

(b) 
Description of noncash property given 

I---------------------------------------
1------- ---------------------------------- $ 

(b) 
Description of noncash property given 

~------------------------ ---------------
~---------------------------------------- $ 
~--- ------------------------------------

(b) 
Description of noncash property given 

~----------------------------------------

------------------------------------- $ 

(b) 
Description of noncash property given 

~----------------------------------------
~----------------------------------------·$ 
~----------------------------

(c) 
FMV (or estimate) 
(See instructions.) 

(c) 
FMV (or estimate) 
(See instructions.) 

(c) 
FMV (or estimate) 
(See instructions.) 

(c) 
FMV (or estimate) 
(See instructions.) 

(c) 
FMV (or estimate) 
(See instructions.) 

(d) 
Date received 

(d) 
Date received 

(d) 
Date received 

(d) 
Date received 

(d) 
Date received 

Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2019) 

TEEAD703L 08109/19 



Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2019) 1 1 Page 4 
Name of organization Employer identification number 

Assistance Lea e of Rancho San Die ito 33-0556542 
Part~III Exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions to organizations described in section 501(c)(7), (8), 

or (10) that total more than $1,000 for the year from any one contributor. Complete columns (a) through (e) and 

(a) 
No. from 

Part I 

(a) 
No. from 

Part I 

(a) 
No. from 

Part I 

(a) 
No. from 

Part I 

BAA 

the following line entry. For organizations completing Part 111, enter the total of exclusively religious, charitable, etc., 
contributions of $1,000 or less for the year. (Enter this information once. See instructions.) ............. ► $ ..Ni A 
Use duplicate copies of Part Ill if additional space is needed. - - - - - - - -

(b) (c) (d) 
Purpose of gift Use of gift Description of how gift is held 

PL~-------- ___________________________ _ 
----- ----------------------------------- --------------------· 
---------------------- ------------------

(e) 
Transfer of gift 

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee 

~----------------------------------~--------------- ----------· 
I-

~-------- ------------------- -----~-------------- ----- -----· 

(b) 
Purpose of gift 

(c) 
Use of gift 

(d) 
Description of how gift is held 

~---------------------- --------- ------- ------- ------------· 

~---------------------------------------- ---------- ---------· 
(e) 

Transfer of gift 
Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee 

-----------------------------------~-------- ------
1------------- ---------------------~-----------------
~ ------------------------------------------------------

(b) 
Purpose of gift 

(c) 
Use of gift 

(d) 
Description of how gift is held 

------------------------- --------------- ----- --------------· 
~------------------------------- --------
1---- ------------------------- ------

(e) 
Transfer of gift 

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP+ 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee 

-----------------------------------

(b) 
Purpose of gift 

(c) 
Use of gift 

-----------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------
~------------------ ------------- -------

(e) 
Transfer of gift 

(d) 
Description of how gift is held 

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP+ 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee 

-------------- ---------------- ---r------------
~--------- ---------------------- -~-----
~--- --------- --------------------r--------------------------· 

Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2019) 
TEEA0704L 08109119 



SCHEDULED 
(Form 990) 

Supplemental Financial Statements 0MB No. 1545-0047 

Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service 

•ame of the organization 

► Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, 
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, lla, llb, llc, lld, lle, llf, 12a, or 12b. 

► Attach to Form 990. 
► Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. 

2019 

Assistance Lea e of Rancho San Die ito 33-0556542 
~~fl'~Z..·:!1.lOrganizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. 

Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 6. 
(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts 

1 Total number at end of year. ................ 

2 Aggregate value of contributions to (during year) ....... 

3 Aggregate value of grants from (during year) .......... 

4 Aggregate value at end of year .............. 

5 Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds 
are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control?................. . . . . . . . . . . D Yes 

6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only 
for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring 
impermissible private benefit?.......... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . D Yes 

IPartcir.:1 Conservation Easements. 
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 7. 

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply). 

§ Preservation of land for public use (for example, recreation or education) D Preservation of a historically important land area 

Protection of natural habitat D Preservation of a certified historic structure 

Preservation of open space 

2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the 
last day of the tax year. 

l~tjf1, Held at the End of the Tax Year 

a Total number of conservation easements .................................................. . 2a 

b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements ........................................ . 2b 

c Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in (a) ............ . 2c 

d Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 7/25/06, and not on a historic 
structure listed in the National Register .................................................... . 2d 

3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the 
tax year ► 

4 Number of states where property subject lo conservation easement is located ► 

5 Does the organization have a wntten policy regarding the per1od1c monitonng, 1nspeclion, handling of v1olalions, 
and enforcement of the conservation easements 11 holds?.. . .......................................... D Yes D No 

6 Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year 
► 

7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year 
► $ --------

8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(S)(i) 
and section 170(h)(4)(S)(ii)?............................................................................... D Yes 

9 In Part XIII, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement and balance sheet, and 
include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the organization's accounting for 
conservation easements. 

jParflll;'I Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets. 
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 8. 

1 a If the organization elected, as permitted under FASS ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art, 
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide in 
Part XIII the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items. 

b If the organization elected, as permitted under FASS ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art, 
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide the 
following amounts relating lo these items: 

(i) Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 ...... . ........................................... ► $ 

(ii) Assets included in Form 990, Part X ................. . . .......................................... ► $--------
2 If the organization received or held works of art, h1stor1cal treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the following 

amounts required to be reported under FASS ASC 958 relating to these items: 

a Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 ........................................................... ► $ 
b Assets included in Form 990, Part X ..................................................................... ► $--------

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. TEEA3301 L 8122119 Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 



Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 Assistance Lea e of Rancho San Die ito 33-0556542 Page 2 

Part,m · Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued) 

3 Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its collection 
items (check all that apply): 

b Scholarly research e Other 
a § Public exhibition d 8 Loan or exchange program 

------------------------c Preservation for future generations 

4 Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in 
Part XIII. 

5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets D D 
to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's collection?.................... Yes No 

IPa:tUV! Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, 
line 9, or reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21. 

1 a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included 
on Form 990, Part X? .. ..................................................................................... D Yes 

b If 'Yes,' explain the arrangement in Part XIII and complete the following table: 

Amount 

c Beginning balance ........................................................................ . 1 C 

d Additions during the year. ................................................................. . 1 d 

e Distributions during the year ............................................................... . 1 e 

f Ending balance .......................................................................... . 1 f 

2 a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial ac LJ count liability? .... LJ Yes No 

b If 'Yes,' explain the arrangement in Part XIII. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part XIII. .................... LJ 

IPartv,1;1 Endowment Funds. Comolete if the or,::ianization answered 'Yes' on Form 990. Part IV, line 10. 
(a) Current year (b) Prior year (c) Two years back 

1 a Beginning of year balance ..... 

b Contributions .................. 

c Net investment earnings, gains, 
and losses .. . ' .... ' ...... 

d Grants or scholarships ......... 

e Other expenditures for facilities 
and programs ........... . . . . . 

I Administrative expenses ....... 

g End of year balance ........... 

2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1 g, column (a)) held as: 

a Board designated or quasi-endowment ► 

b Permanent endowment ► 

c Term endowment ► ______ % 

9-
0 

The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%. 

% 

(d) Three years back 

3 a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the 
organization by: 
(i) Unrelated organizations ................................................................................... . 

(ii) Related organizations ..................................................................................... . 

b If 'Yes' on line 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R? ............................. . 

4 Describe in Part XIII the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds. 

IPartVII Land, Buildings, and Equipment. 

(e) Four years back 

Yes No 

3a(i) 

3a(ii) 
3b 

Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 11 a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10. 
Description of property (a) Cost or other basis (bi Cost or other (c) Accumulated (d) Book value 

(investment) asis (other) depreciation 

1 a Land ...................................... · ..• :i•·":~'!;-J:.~;~iz;,·;~:111¥/;, 
b Buildings .. . . . .............. ' ........ . .. . . 
c Leasehold improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . 3,188 . 2 683. 505. 
d Equipment. ' .... ' .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,063. 910. 153. 
e Other .............. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,695. 5 615. 80. 

Total. Add lines 1 a through 1 e. (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 70c.) ............. ....... ► 738. 
BAA Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 

TEEA33D2L 8122119 



Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 Assistance Lea e of Rancho San Die ito 33-0556542 Page 3 

Parf:VIE; Investments - Other Securities. N/A 
C I . ·t th . t' omo ete I e orqaniza I0n answere es on d 'Y ' F orm 990, Part IV, line 11 b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12. 

(a) Description of security or category (including name of security) (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value 
(1) Financial derivatives ................................. 
2) Closely held equity interests ......................... 

(3) Other ------------------ ---
(A) ----------------------------(B) ----------------------------(C) ----------------------------(D) 
----------------------------
(E) ----------------------------(F) ----------------------------(G) ------------------- --------
(H) - --------------------------(I) 

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (8) line 12.) .. ► 1~,~~!i}i4",>';;> oc.i,/(•z,-;;t; >•i ·• ""' 
IPart,'iZIIBI lnvestme~ts - Progr~m Related. N/A 

' ' Com lete 1f the or anIzat1on answered Yes on Form 990, Part IV, line l lc. See Form 990, Part X, line 13. 
(a) Description of investment (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value 

(1) 

(2) 
(3) 
(4) 
(5) 
(6) 

(7) 
(8) 
(9) 

(10) 
Total. (Column (b must eoual Form 990. Part X. column (8 line 13.). . ► 

?arf IX"·' Other Assets. N/A 
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 11 d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15. 

(a) Description (b) Book value 
(1) 

(2) 

(3) 
(4) 
(5) 

(6) 
(7) 
(8) 
(9) 

(10) 
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B) line 75.) ............................................. ► 

!Part X ",I Other qabilities. 
' ' Complete 1f the organization answered Yes on Form 990, Part IV, line 11 e or l lf. See Form 990, Part X, line 25. ,. (a) Description of liability (b) Book value 

(1) Federal income taxes 
(2) 
(3) 
(4) 

(5) 
(6) 

(7) 

(8) 

(9) 
(10) 
(11) 

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (8) /me 25.) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ►I 
2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XIII, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that reports the organization's liability for uncertain 
tax positions under FASS ASC 740. Check here 1f the text of the footnote has been provided rn Part XIII. ................................... S.ee .. P.ar.t. XIII ~ 
BAA TEEA3303L 8122119 Schedule D (Fonn 990) 2019 



Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 Assistance Lea e of Rancho San Die ito 33-0556542 
Part XI Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return. N/A 

Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a. 
1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements................. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 

Page 4 

2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12: 1---1--------

a Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 a 
b Donated services and use of facilities. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . t--2-b:--t----------t 

c Recoveries of prior year grants......... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 c 
d Other (Describe in Part XIII.) ................................................ t--2-d-+----------i 

e Add lines 2a through 2d ............................................................................... . 
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 .......... ................................................................... 1-----1--------

4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1: 

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b............. 4 a 
1-:-:-1--------+ 

b Other (Describe in Part XIII.)........ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 b 
'------''-----------i 

c Add lines 4a and 4b. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 c ----------5 Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 72.)............................ 5 

ParfXIF Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return. N/A 
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a. 

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements............................................... 1 
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25: 1-----1--------

a Donated services and use of facilities. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 a 
1---1,-----------1 

b Prior year adjustments. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 b 
c Other losses............................... . .................. t--2-c~-------~• 

d Other (Describe in Part XIII.)................................................ 2d 
'---___J'---------11·· 

e Add lines 2a through 2d . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ....................................... . ----------3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 ............................................................................ . 
1-----1,---------

4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1: 
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b............. 4 a 
b Other (Describe in Part XIII.) .............. ................................ 1--4-b--l--------

c Add lines 4a and 4b . .................................................................................. . 
5 Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 78.) .......................... . 

l---+--------

Part{XIU1 Su plemental Information. 
Provide the descriptions required for Part 11, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part 111, lines 1 a and 4; Part IV, lines 1 band 2b; Part V, 
line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information. 

BAA 

Part X · FASB ASC 740 Footnote 

The Organization has applied the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards 

Codification (ASC) 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. Under ASC 

740-10, nonpublic enterprises, including nonprofit organizations, are required to 

report a tax liability when substantial uncertainties exist as to whether certain 

income is exempt from federal, state and local income tax. As of May 31, 2020, the 

Organization had no substantial uncertain income tax positions. 

Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 

TEEA330.:l S/22119 



SCHEDULE G 
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) 

Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service 

Supplemental Information Regarding Fundraising or Gaming Activities 
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 17, 18, or 19, or if the 

organization entered more than Sl 5,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a. 
► Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. 

► Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. 

0MB No. 1545-0047 

2019 

1ame o! the organization Employer identification number 

Assistance League of Rancho San Dieguito 33-0556542 

lp ""rt>l·'·'•I Fundraising Activities. Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 17. 
. a · • '''· Form 990-EZ filers are not required to complete this part. 

1 Indicate whether the organization raised funds through any of the following activities. Check all that apply. 

a IBJ Mail solicitations e IBJ Solicitation of non-government grants 

b O Internet and email solicitations f IBJ Solicitation of government grants 

c O Phone solicitations g IBJ Special fundraising events 

d D In-person solicitations 

2 a Did the organization have a written or oral agreement with any 1nd1vidual (including officers, directors, trustees, or key 
employees listed in Form 990, Part VII) or entity in connection with professional fundraising services? .................. D Yes IBJ No 

b If 'Yes,' list the 10 highest paid individuals or entities (fundraisers) pursuant to agreements under which the fundraiser is to be 
compensated at least $5,000 by the organization. 

(i) Name and address of individual (iii) Did iundraiser (iv) Gross receipts 
(v) Amount paid to (vi) Amount paid to 

(ii) Activity (or retained by) (or retained by) or entity (iundraiser) have custoct6 or control from activity fundraiser listed in of contri utions? 
column (i) organization 

Yes No 
1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

Total.. ► . . . . .. . . .. .. ................ ' ................... . . . . . . .. .. 
3 List all states in which the organization is registered or licensed to solicit contributions or has been notified ii is exempt from registration 

or licensing. 

0. 

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 
TEEA3701L 08/19119 



Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 Assistance Lea e of Rancho San Die i to 33-0556542 Page 2 

Pal-tll Fundraising Events. Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 18, or reported 
more than $15,000 of fundraising event contributions and gross income on Form 990-EZ lines 1 and 6b. 
List events with gross receipts greater than $5,000. ' 

(a) Event #l (b) Event #2 (c) Other events (d) Total events 

SJ2rinq Fundrai None (add column (a) 
through column (c)) 

R (event type) (event type) (total number) 
E 
V 
E 

1 Gross receipts ......................... 11,527. 11,527. N 
u 
E 

2 Less: Contributions .................... 11,527. 11,527. 

3 Gross income (line 1 minus line 2) ...... 

4 Cash prizes ........................... 

5 Noncash prizes ........................ 
D 
I 

6 Rent/facility costs ...................... R 
E 
C 
T 7 Food and beverages ................... 

E 
X 8 Entertainment. ............ p ............ 
E 
N 

9 Other direct expenses. ................. s 
E 
s 

10 Direct expense summary. Add lines 4 through 9 in column (d) ........................................... ► 

11 Net income summary. Subtract line 10 from line 3, column (d) ........................................... ► 

IPartaml Gaming. Complete if the o~ganization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, 
$15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a. 

line 19, or reported more than 

R 
E 
V 
E 
ll 
u 
E 

E 
D X 
I P 
R E 
E N 
C S 
T E 

s 

(a) Bingo 

1 Gross revenue .. 

2 Cash prizes ...................... . 

(b) Pull tabs/instant 
bingo/progressive 

bingo 
(c) Other gaming 

(d) Total gaming 
(add column (a) 

through column (c)) 

3 Noncash prizes ........................ ~-------+--------+--------!---------

4 Rent/facility costs ..................... . 
1---------..J---------+----------+--------

5 Other direct expenses. ................ . 

Yes % Yes % Yes % 
6 Volunteer labor. ....................... LL.i...:...:.N.:.o _____ _l.JL....L..:..N:.:o:.__ ____ __J..J_.LN..:..o.::...-_____ +-==:;:;; 

7 Direct expense summary. Add lines 2 through 5 in column (d) .......................................... . ► 

8 Net gaming income summary. Subtract line 7 from line 1, column (d) .................................... ► 

9 Enter the state(s) in which the organization conducts gaming activities: -----------------;::::;----:==---a Is the organization licensed to conduct gaming activities in each of these states? .................................. O Yes O No 

b If 'No.' explain: 

10 a Were any of the organization's gaming licenses revoked, suspended, or terminated during the tax year? .......... -~ [J Ye~ - ON; 
b If 'Yes.' explain: ________________________________________________________ _ 

,AA TEEA3702L GS/19119 Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 



Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 Assistance League of Rancho San Dieguito 33-0556542 Page 3 
11 Does the organization conduct gaming activities with nonmembers? ............................................. D Yes 

12 Is the organization a grantor, beneficiary or trustee of a trust, or a member oi a partnership or other entity formed to 
administer charitable gaming? .................................................................................. D Yes 

13 Indicate the percentage of gaming activity conducted in: 

% a The organization's facility .......................................... • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • · · · · · • · · · · · · · · · · · · · 1 13 a I 
b An outside facility. ...................................................................................... f--13-bf--------~-o-

14 Enter the name and address of the person who prepares the organization's gaming/special events books and records:~-~-------

Name► 

Address ► 

15 a Does the organization have a contract with a third party from whom the organization receives gaming revenue? ....... D Yes 

b If 'Yes,' enter the amount of gaming revenue received by the organization► 

of gaming revenue retained by the third party ► $ -----------c If 'Yes,' enter name and address of the third party: 

Name► 

$ and the amount 

--------7 

Address ► 

16 Gaming manager information: 

Name► 

Gaming manager compensation ► $ 

Description of services provided ► 

D Director/officer D Employee D Independent contractor 

17 Mandatory distributions: 

a Is the organization required under state law to make charitable distributions from the gaming proceeds to retain the 
stale gaming license? ............................................................................................ D Yes D No 

b Enter the amount of distributions required under state law to be distributed to other exempt organizations or spent in the 

organization's own exempt activities during the tax year ► $ 
jPart]W I Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part I, line 2b, columns (iii) and (v); 

and Part Ill, lines 9, 9b, 1 Ob, 15b, 15c, 16, and 17b, as applicable. Also provide any additional 
information. See instructions. 

I 
I 

BAA TEEA3703L 08119/19 Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 



SCHEDULE I 
(Form 990) 

Department of the Treasury 
lntcrnnl Revenue Service 

N.ime of the organization 

Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations, 
Governments, and Individuals in the United States 

Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 21 or 22. 
► Attach to Form 990. 

► Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. 

Assistance L~aque of Rancho San Diequito 
Part I, I General Information on Grants and Assistance 

0MB No. 1545-0047 

2019 

Employer identification number 

33-0556542 

Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees' eligibility for the grants or assistance, and 
the selection criteria used to award the grants or assistance?........... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . [Rives □ No 

2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds in the United States. See Part IV 
I Part II I Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Organizations and Domestic Governments. Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on 

Form 990, Part IV, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part II can be duplicated if additional space is needed. 

(a) Name and mJdrcss of organizalron 
or 9ovcmmcnl 

(1) Palomar Heal th ---------
456 E Grand Avenue -----------
Escondido, CA 92025 

(2) 

~ ---------- ---------

(4) 

(5) - -------- -------

(6) --------------------

(7) 

(8) 
---------- ---------

(b) EIN (c) IRC section 
(rf apphcablc) 

(d) Amount of cash grant 

0. 

(c) Amount of non-cash 
assistance 

(f) Method of valuation 
(book, FMV, appraisal, 

other) 

8,072.ICost 

(g) Description of 
noncash assistnnce 

New clothing, 

toiletries, 

supplies 

(h) Purpose of want 
or assistance 

Kits for 

assault victims 

2 Enter total number of section 501 (c)(3} and government organizations listed in the line 1 table................................................................ ► O 

3 Enter total number of other organizations listed in the line 1 table. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ► 1 
BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. TEEA39Dll 07110119 Schedule I (Forni 990) (2019) 



Schedule I (Form 990) (2019) Assistance Lea ue of Rancho San Die uito 33-0556542 Page 2 

Partlll' Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Individuals. Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 22. Part Ill 
can be duplicated if additional space is needed. 

(•) Type of \l«ll1t or assistance (b) Number of (c) Amount of (d) Amount of (c) Method of valuation (book, (f) Description of nonc.c.1sh ()Ss1stance 
rec1µ1cnts cash grant noncash assistance FMV, appraisal, other) 

1 School clothinq 1, 814 83,769. Cost School clothing 

2 Scholarships 15 17,000. FMV 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

!Part lVi I Supplemental Information. Provide the information required in Part I, line 2; Part Ill, column (b); and any other additional information. 

BAA 

Part I, Line 2 - Procedures for Monitoring Use of Grants Funds in U.S. 

Local school district personnel identify children of need. Chapter members monitor 

selection of school clothing for identified children. 

TEEA3902L 07110119 

Schedule I (Form 990) (2019) 



SCHEDULE M 
(Form 990) 

Noncash Contributions 
0MB No. 1545-0047 

► Complete if the organizations answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, lines 29 or 30. 2019 
► Attach to Form 990. 

Department of lhe Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service ► Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. 

,ame of lhe organization Employer identilication number 

Assistance Lea e of Rancho San Die ito 33-0556542 
Types of Property 

1 Art - Works of art. ........................... . 

2 Art - Historical treasures ..................... . 

3 Ari - Fractional interests ..................... . 

4 Books and publications ....................... . 

5 Clothing and household goods ................. . 

6 Cars and other vehicles ....................... . 

7 Boats and planes ............................. . 

8 Intellectual property. .......................... . 

9 Securities - Publicly traded ................... . 

10 Securities - Closely held stock ................ . 

11 Securities - Partnership, LLC, or trust interests. 

12 Securities - Miscellaneous .................... . 

13 Qualified conservation contribution -
Historic structures ............................ . 

14 Qualified conservation contribution - Other ..... 

1 s Real estate - Residential ..................... . 

16 Real estate - Commercial .................... . 

17 Real estate - Other .......................... . 

18 Collectibles .................................. . 

19 Food inventory ............................... . 

(a) 
Check if 

applicable 

(b) 
Number of 

contributions or 
items contributed 

(c) 
Noncash contribution 

amounts reported 
on Form 990, 

Part VIII, line lg 

(d) 
Method of determining 

noncash contribution amounts 

1---------------1--------------------
1-----+------------------1------------
l-----+========-f---------+-----------

X 148,057. 

1---------------1---------+------------
1-----+------------------1------------
1-----+------------------1------------
1------+-----------1---------+------------
1-----+------------------1------------
1---------------1--------------------
1-----+------------------1------------

l-----+------------------+------------
l------+-----------1---------+------------
l-----+-------=-l---------+-----------
l------+------------------+------------
l-----+-------=-l---------+-----------
l------+-----------1---------+------------
l-----+-----------------------------

20 Drugs and medical supplies .................... 1------+-----------1'---------+------------
21 Taxidermy. ................................... . 1-----+-----------l'--------------------
22 Historical artifacts. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .......... . 1------+-----------1'---------+-----------
23 Scientific specimens .......................... . l-----+-----------li---------+------------
24 Archeological artifacts. . ..................... . 

1------+----------,1----------+-----------
( ). ... 25 Other ► 

26 Other ► 

27 Other ► 

28 Other ► 

1-----+-----------li---------+-----------
( ). ... ----- ---------- 1-----+-----------1,----------------------
( ). ... ---------------- 1------+-----------11---------+-----------
( ) ... 

29 Number of Forms 8283 received by the organization during the tax year for contributions for which the 
organization completed Form 8283, Part IV, Donee Acknowledgement................................... 29 ~-~------,---,----

30a During the year, did the organization receive by contribution any property reported in Part I, lines 1 through 28, that 
ii must hold for at least three years from the date of the initial contribution, and which isn't required to be used 
for exempt purposes for the entire holding period? .............................................................. . 

t;;~~ira~~~;~~~=,,.. b If 'Yes,' describe the arrangement in Part II. 
1
._ 

31 Does the organization have a gift acceptance policy that requires the review of any nonstandard contributions? ..... . 
l---!----+---

32 a Does the organization hire or use third parties or related organizations to solicit, process, or sell 
noncash contributions? ....................................................................................... . 

b If 'Yes,' describe in Part II. !-:--,,-=!--=,,,,+=="" 

33 If the organization didn't report an amount in column (c) for a type of property for which column (a) is checked, 
describe in Part II. 

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule M (Form 990) 2019 

TEEA4601L 8i5119 



Schedule M (Form 990) 2019 Assistance Lea e of Rancho San Die ito 33-0556542 Page 2 
Rar:t:11° Supplemental Information. Provide the information required by Part I, lines 30b, 32b, and 33, and whether 

the organization is reporting in Part I, column (b), the number of contributions, the number of items 
received, or a combination of both. Also complete this part for any additional information. 

BAA TEEA4602L 815/19 Schedule M (Form 990) 2019 



SCHEDULE 0 
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) 

Department of the Treasury 
1nternal Revenue Service 

Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ 
Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 

Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information. 
► Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ. 

► Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. 

0MB No. 1545-0"-.47 

2019 

;ame of lhe organization Employer identification numb or 

Assistance Lea e of Rancho San Die ito 

Form 990, Part Ill, Line 4d - Other Program Services Description 

Other Programs primarily include: 

33-0556542 

Kuddles for Kids provides huggable plush toys and snacks to comfort trauma victims, 

which are distributed through local hospitals, fire departments and service 

agencies. Since 1998, the program distributed 11,798 plush toys and 2,500 snacks, 

including 1,054 plush toys and 510 snacks distributed last year. 

Knifty Knitters 

Since 1998, Knifty Knitters has provided 8,200 hand-knitted items, which include: 

1) infant layettes to military personnel and other families in need in our 

community, and 2) hand-knitted scarves to active military personnel and homeless 

teens. 

Jeans for Teens 

Provides gently used clothing, towels and blankets, as well as food, for 

distribution to homeless teen through a local nonprofit. Since 2010, we have helped 

1,177 homeless teens. 

Birthday Bags 

Provides essential supplies for birthday celebrations for elementary school children 

with financial need. Last year, the program donated 200 birthday bags. 

PREP 

Prepares preschoolers for kindergarten by improving English, reading, math, and 

social interaction skills through various games. Since 1998, we tutored 935 
BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. TEEA4901L 08119/19 Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2019) 



Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2019) Page 2 
Name of the organization 

I 
Employer identification number 

Assistance League of Rancho San Dieguito 33-0556542 

BAA 

Form 990, Part Ill, Line 4d - Other Program Services Description 

preschoolers. 

Flowers for Seniors 

Provides bouquets of flowers to seniors in local assisted living facilities. 

Since 2016, the program assembled and delivered 776 bouquets. 

Court Kits provides journals, snacks and personal cards to trauma victims for their 

challenging court appearances. Last year the program distributed 50 kits. 

Form 990, Part VI, Line 7b - Decisions of Governing Body Approval by Members or Shareholders 

Voting members approve, by two-thirds vote of members present, the annual assessment 

for major fundraising activites, all new fundraising events and activities, and all 

new philanthropic programs. The voting membership also approves the annual budget. 

Form 990, Part VI, Line 8 - Explanation of No Contemporaneously Documentation of Meetings 

No committee can act on behalf of the governing body. 

Form 990, Part VI, Line 11 b - Form 990 Review Process 

Board members received a copy of the form 990 prior to its filing with a period open 

for questions and comments. 

Form 990, Part VI, Line 12c - Explanation of Monitoring and Enforcement of Conflicts 

The conflict of interest policy is reviewed annually at a membership meeting. All 

members sign a conflict of interest policy when they pay their annual dues. 

Form 990, Part VI, Line 19 - Other Organization Documents Publicly Available 

Governing documents and the conflict of interest policy are made available upon 

request. 

Part VI, Section 8, Questions 15a-b 

Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2019) 

TEEA4902L 08/19/19 



Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2019) 
Name of the organization Employer ldontlficaUon nwnbor 

Assistance League of Rancho San Dieguito 33-0556542 

The Organization does not have paid personnel, therefore, these questions are not 

applicable. 

Page 2 

BAA Schedule O (Fonn 990 or 990-EZ) (2019) 
TEEA4902L 08/19/19 



I 
j ... 

~ 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 
50 N STREET MIC:44. SACRAMENTO. CALIFORNIA 

,P. 0. BOX 942879, SACRAMENTO, CA 94279-0044) 

TELEPHONE (916) 445-5187 FAX (916) 324-5996 

June 30, 1999 

NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATION 
SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION 

JOHAN KLEHS 
First Dis1ricl. Hayward 

DEAN F. ANDAL 
Second DislrlCI. StOCkton 

CLAUDE PARRISH 
Th~d District. To,rance 

JOHN CHIANG 
Fout1h Oisllict. Los Angoles 

KATHLEEN CONNELL 
Controllar. Saaamento 

E L. SORENSEN. JR. 
Exocutwe Dtreooc 

The Assistance League of Rancho San Dieguito is exempt from payment of state, local, and district sales 
and use taxes when purchasing tangible personal property for the purpose of donation to individuals in a 
distres:5ed finencial co~di~ion. The exemption do~s not apply to purchases that will be used in the 
operation of the organ,zatwn, such as office supplies. 

The Assistance League of Rancho San Dieguito has met the requirements for the exemption by being 
-organized and operated for charitable purposes, having exempt status from income tax by the California 

Franchise Tax Board, and engaging in the relief of poverty and distress. 

The exemption is valid until r~voked. 

Any questions may be directed to the Compliance Planning and Evaluation Section at the above address 
and telephone number. 

Sine;~ 
~esESpeed 

Deputy Director 
Sales and Use Tax Department 

JES:rc 

... 



ASSISTANCE LEAGUE OF RANCHO SAN DIEGUITO 
USE OF SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION 

A copy of the Non-Profit Organization Sales and Use Tax Exemption is attached. Please use this 
copy as a master lo make any more copies you may need. 

With this exemption, no sales lax will be paid on tangible personal property purchased for the 
purpose of donation to individuals in a distressed financial condition. Items expressly included 
are: 

I) Clothing, shoes and personal grooming items for OSB 
2) Clothing and grooming items for ASK 
3) Bears for Hug-a-Bear 
4) Yam for Knifty-Knitter layettes 

Use the exemption only for items specifically listed above. Sales tax must be paid on all 
purchases of supplies, storage containers, and any items that will not be physically given to 
individuals in a distressed financial position. 

Federal Employer ID No.: 
CA Corporate ID No: 
CA Resale Permit No: 
State Charity Registration 

Number: 

33-0556542 
D-1877561 
SR FHB 99-481040 

CT92512 

I,. 



( 

Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Give For m to t h e 

tRev. October 2018) Identification Number and Certification requester. D o not 

Oepartment of lhe Treasury send to the IRS. 
Internal Revenue Service ► Go to www.irs.gov/FormW9 for instructions and the latest Information. 

1 Narre (as shown on your Income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this tine blank. 

Assistance Leag u e of Ranc ho San Dieguito 

2 Business name/disregarded entity name. if different from above 

M 3 Check app,0P(late box lor federal tax classificatoon of the person whose name Is emered on I ne 1. Checi< only one of tile 4 E~amo11ons (codes apply only :o 
a, 

certain entlties not inoividuals· see C) following seven boxes. 
"' instrucuons on page 3): a. 

0 S Corporation 0 Partnersn1p 0 Trus11estate C: D tnd1vldual/sole proprietor or 0 C Corporation 0 . ., smgto-rremoe, LLC Exempt payee code ti! any) 
Cl> C 
C. 0 

D Limited liability company, Enter the tax class•ficetloet tCsC corporatoon. S=S corporat1on. P=Partnershlp) ► ]!;,-.: 
0 

.. ::I Note: Chee~ lhe .ippropliate box In tne line above lo, 1he tax clas,lflcallon of the songle-momber owner Do not check Exemption rrom FATCA reponong 0 la - ., LLC if the LLC os classified as a songle-rrember LLC tha1 os disregarded from 11,e ov.ner unless the owner of tne LLC ,s 
coos (It anyl ·E.: another LLC that is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Ottierwise a slngte-memoer LLC that 

C. 0 Is dIsregaroed from lhe owner should check the appropnate box lor the tax classlflcaoon of Its ownl!I' 
!E 
0 0 Other (sea onstruct1ons) ► 501 (c)(3) lAP,Jl,tl-t,o.tc~~m,nr,r,eaetmll'»r~lJS ., 
C. 5 Address Cnumber, street and apt. or sui1e no.) See onstruCTions. Requesrer's name a'1d address (optlonall Cl) 

QI 270-F North E l Camino Real, #368 a, 
Cl) 

6 City state, and ZIP code 

En cini tas, CA 92024 
7 Lost account number(s) here (opt,onal) 

•!.I-: ill. Taxpayer Ide ntification Numbe r {TIN) 
I Social security number I Enter your TIN in the apP:oproate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on fine 1 to avoid 

backup w 1thhold1ng. For md1vlduals, this Is generally you, socoal security number (SSN). However, for a 
resident alien. sole proprietor, or disregarded entity. see the Instructions for Part I, later. For other 
entmes, 1t Is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number. see How to gar a 
TIN, later. 

DJJ -[D -I I I I I 
or 

Note: If the accm1nt is in more than one name, see the instructions for lone 1. Also see What Name and 
Number To Give the Requester for guldellnes on whose number to enter 

I Employer identification number 

33 - 0556542 

Certification 

Under penalties of perjury, I certify that' 

1 The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting tor a number to be issued to me): and 
2. I am not subject to backup withholding because. (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notif,ed by the Internal Re~enue 

Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all Interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am 
no longer subiect to backup withholding: and 

3. I am a U.S. citJzen or other U.S. person (defined below), and 

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) Indicatong that I am e>-emp t from fATCA reporting is correct. 

Certification instructions. You must cross out rtem 2 above of you have been notified by tt'le IRS that you are currently subjecl to backup withholding because 
you have fa•led lo report all interest and dovldends on your tax return. For real estate transactions. Item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid, 
acqu1s1tion or abandonment of secured property, cancellaI1on of debt, contributions to an 1nd1vidual retirement arrangement ORA), and generally. payments 
other than Interest and dividends. you are not required to sign lhe certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See ttie Instructions for Part II, later. 

Sign 
H ere 

Signature of 
U.S. person ► 

General Instructions 
Section references are 10 the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise 
noted. 

Futu(e developments. For the latest information about developments 
related to Form W-9 and its instructions. such as legislation enacted 
after they were publoshed, go to www.rrs.gov/FormW9. 

Purpose of Form 
An ondiv1dual or entrty (Form W-9 requester) who os required lo file an 
informatoon return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer 
ldentiticauon number (TIN) which may be your social security number 
(SSN), individual taxpayer identof!cation number (ITIN), adoption 
taxpayer identification number (ATIN). or employer identtftcat1on number 
(EIN), to report on an lnformat1on return the amount paid to you, or other 
amount reportable on an Information return. Examples of information 
returns include, but are not limited 10. the following. 

• Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid) 

Cat. No. 10231 X 

Date ► 

• Form 1099-0IV (dividends, lnciulng thofe from stocks or mutual 
funds) 

• Form 1099-MISC (vanous types of income. prizes awards. or gross 
proceeds) 

• Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other 
transactions by brokers) 

• Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions) 

• Form 1099-K (merchant card and third pai1y network transactions) 

• Form 1098 (home mortgage interest). 1098-E (student loan interest), 
1098-T (tuotion) 

• Form 1099-C (canceled debt) 

• Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property) 

Use Form W-9 only 11 you are a U.S. person (including a resident 
alien). to provide your correct TIN. 

If you do not retum Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might 
oe subject 10 backup withholding. See What 1s backup withholding, 
later 

rorm W-9 (Rev. 10·2018) 



( 



( 

l 

City cf Solana Beach 
Community Grnnt Program 

Request for Financial Assistance 
FV2021-22 

Name of Organization: BikeWal!tSolana 

Mailing Address: 1019 San Patricio Driye 

City: Solan<il Be,u:h State: CA Zip: 92075 

Contact Person: Douglas Alden 

Daytime Phone: (858) 344-8255 

Evening Phone: (858) 344-2255 

Email address: mr.douglas.alden@gmail.com 

1. Tour of Solancll Beach Scavenger Hunt 

Tour of Solana ~each Community Ride 

Smart Cycling Classes 

$1500 ($1000 toward e-~ike grand prize) 

$500 

$1500 (2 classes at $800 each) 

2. BikeWalkSolana is an advocacy and education committee thzit operates without a budget and does 

not fil\l:? tax returns. 

3. Has your organization received financial assistance before from the City before? Ves 

FY 2013-2014 Bicycle Safety Rodeo 

4. Amount requested for 2021-2022? $3600 

5. Proposed Total Program Costs: $3600 

6. Title of Proposed Program/Service: Thil'llk Out.side the Car, Discover Solana Beaid1 

7. Grnnt fonds must be used for services or materials directly associated to proposed activity. Please 

describe how grant funds will be used: 

Funds will be used to cover the costs of insurance for lthre community bike ride and smart cycling 

classes, outreach, volunteer safety vests, hiring instructors for Smart Cycling class, and raffle 

prizes. This is a follow on to a successful Tour of Solana Beach ride thi:llt we led in 2019, and 

scavenger ha.mt in 202!. 

8. Estimated number of S.8. residents to be served by proposed program: 500 - 1000 

9. Program Dates/Location: 

2021-2022 - Safe Cycling Classes 

Spring 2022- Tour of Solana Beach Community Bike Ride from la Coionia Pillrk 

Bike Month 2022 (May 1-31) Tour of Solana Beach Scavenger Hunt 

10. Anticipated Program Objectives or Accomplishments: Solana Beach residents who participate in 

BikeWalkSolanc!I activities including two unique Tours of Solana Beach <1nd Safe Cycling dasses will 
be more likely to use active transportation. In addition, participants will leoJm about SB history as 
they e111jO\f a second scavenger hunt. Over 550 people ha11e registered for the 2021 scavenger 

hunt!. BikeWalkSolana plans fr(\/ partner with the Solana Beach Civic and Historical Society for ttae 

Scavenger Hunt which will include historical markers with QR codes placed around the City. 



( 

l 

City of Solaniill Bea,ch 
Community Grant Program 

Request for Finam::ial Assistance 
f't2021-22 

11. How will the organization acknowledge the City's financial contribution to the community/ 

beneficiaries of the proposed activity? The City of Solan<li Beach will be prominently featured on all 

advertising for the event through sodS1I media, the local newspaper, and BikeWalkSolana's 

website. 

12. Will there be any matching funds or other grants that would be applied to this program or service? If 

awarded this grant, will that enable other funding sources? There will be no matching funds, 

however, we were able to leverage this year's Scavenger Hunt, made possible by our la5t grant, to 
get donaticms from locai businesses for additional [Prizes for the raffle. 

13. Will volunteers be used for the proposed program or service and, if so, will they reduce expenses? 
Volunteers will be used for all planning aind event m:tivitiez;. 

14. If the proposed program or service is only awarded partial funding, will it still move forward? Will 

the progrnm or service be scaled bc1c~ and/or is there a threshold at which it will not move forward? 

The program will move forward with partial funding but we would have to seek funds from other 
entities or prh,ate donors to bring the program to fruition. 

Acknowledgment of Responsibility: 

Authorized Signature <!ISSumes eill responsibilify for developing and implementing proposed activities 

or events in this application, including public acknowledgment of the City's fimmdal contribution. 
Authorized signature will comply with all accounting and budget procedures outlined by the City. 

Authorl1ed signature <llnd accompanying group will hold harmless the City of Solanai Beach from all 

losses, claims, accidents an!:d problems associated, directl\f or indirectly with the development and 

impl~ntatio~of 

L,, •/ zc;r;. \ 
Date 

All INFORMATION REQUESTED ON THIS APPLICATION MUST BE COMPLETED AS A CONDITION FOR BEING CONSIDERED FOR 

PUBLIC FUNDS SY THE crrY COUNCIL OF SOI.ANA BEACH 





City of Solana Beach Community Grant Program 

Request for Financial Assistance 

FY 2021-22 Application 

Name of Organization: Boys & Girls Clubs of San Dieguito 

Mailing Address: P .0. Box 230520 

City: Encinitas 

State: CA 

Zip: 92023 

Contact Person: Heather Karpel 

Daytime Phone: (914) 844-8599 

Evening Phone: (914} 844-8599 

Email address: grants@bgcsandieguito.org 

1. W-9 must be attached 

Summary of organization's budget must be attached 

Proposed program budget must be attached 

Financial Statements (see Application Guidelines) must be attached 

2. A copy of the certificate of California Nonprofit Corporation must be attached 

Or, Calif. Non-profit 501 (c) 3 Corporation Certification Number: 

3. Has your organization received financial assistance from the City before? Yes 

If yes, what activities and which fiscal year? 

La Colonia/HTC Mentoring Programs (2018-2020); Summer Program (2015-2017); STEM 

Program {2014); College Nights Program (2013) 

4. Amount requested for FY 2020-21: $5,000 



5. Proposed Total Program Costs: $163,500 

(Includes all estimated costs to conduct proposed activity/program.) 

6. Title of Proposed Program/Service: La Colonia and Harper Teen Center Mentoring Programs 

7. Grant funds must be used for services or materials directly associated to proposed activity. 

Please describe how grant funds will be used: 

Boys & Girls Clubs of San Dieguito's La Colonia Clubhouse and Harper Teen Center serve 

upwards of 11% of the youth in the low-income neighborhood of La Colonia de Eden Gardens. 

Since September of this year, 99-100% of the youth in these two Clubhouses have been 

receiving 100% financial assistance from us to attend our afterschool programming. As 

participants in these programs our youth receive mentoring, tutoring, homework help, 

educational enrichment activities, and education to prevent high-risk behavior such as drug 

use. We are seeking external funding in order to provide this enrichment programming at no

cost to our youth who need it. 

8. Estimated number of S.B. residents to be served by proposed program: 115 

9. Program Dates/Location: 

Our afterschool programs are offered throughout the school year in order to provide structure 

for ouryouth and consistent coverage for working families. Members in our La Colonia 

Clubhouse and Harper Teen Center attend schools in the Solana Beach School District. The 

2021-2022 Solana Beach academic year runs from August 16th to June 3rd
• 

10. Anticipated Program Objectives or Accomplishments: 

Our objectives are: to cover afterschool program costs for all income-qualifying youth so they 

may receive tutoring and educational remediation; provide mentorship and intervention 

programming to reduce the chance of high-risk behavior; offset learning loss from the 

pandemic so that members are able to maintain their grades and remain eligible for 

graduation; help families experiencing disadvantage. 

11. How will the organization acknowledge the City's financial contribution to the 

community/ beneficiaries of the proposed activity? 

We acknowledge our funders through our email outreach which goes out to a listserv of over 

15,000, through our Annual Report which appears on our website, and on our social media such 

as our Facebook page which has close to 3,500 followers. Financial contributions are also 

highlighted in materials sent out to community collaborators. 



12. Will there be any matching funds or other grants that would be applied to this program or 

service? If awarded this grant, will that enable other funding sources? 

Our grant applications are strengthened with every additional source of funding we are able to 

secure and demonstrate. Each award allows us to increase the scope of our programs which 

expands our eligibility for additional opportunities and extends the reach of our other funding 

sources. This year we received support for our Solana Beach Clubhouses from the Goodwin 

Family Foundation and the Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention at the 

Department of Justice. 

13. Will volunteers be used for the proposed program or service and, if so, will they reduce 

expenses? 

Our volunteer base is comprised of retired teachers, parents, members of the community, and 

members of organizations such as the local Rotary. Volunteers lead activities and tutor our 

members. Volunteer assistance reduces our overhead and frees up valuable time for our staff 

to perform administrative tasks. 

14. If the proposed program or service is only awarded partial funding, will it still move 

forward? Will the program or service be scaled back and/or is there a threshold at which it 

will not move forward? 

Our mission is to serve all community youth in need. Even with significant budgetary deficits 

due to COVID-19 we have been able to continue our Financial Assistance Program through 

fundraising events, donor support, and by applying for grant funding. Financial assistance will 

remain a priority in our budget. 



Acknowledgment of Responsibility: 
Authorized Signature assumes all responsibility for developing and implementing 
proposed activities or events in this application, including publlc acknowledgment of the 
City's financial contribution. Authorized signature will comply with all accounting and 
budget procedures outlined by the City. Authorized signature and accompanying group 
will hold harmless the City of Solana Beach from all losses, claims, accidents and 
problems associated, directly or indirectly with the development and implementation of 
proposed activities or events. 

Authorized Signature of Organization Date 

ALL INFORMATION REQUESTED ON THIS APPUCATION MUST BE COMPLETED AS A CONDITION FOR BEING 
CONSIDERED FOR PUBLIC FUNDS BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF SOLANA BEACH. 



Boys 81 Girls Clubs of San Dieguito 
Statement of Activities 
For the Fiscal Year Ending 6/30/2021 

;eneral Contributions 
Donations for La Col_bnia Holiday Gifts 
Corporate Sponsorships 
Board Commitment 
Annual Fund 
other 
Contributions 

Chip in for Kids Golf 
YOY Fundraiser 

' Junior Board Events Revenue (incl. Horseshoe/Cornhole) 
Uncorked 

' 

Other Fundraislng Events 
Community Event and Fundralsln9 Revenue 

Fundraislng Revirmue 

13GCA Grants 
La Colonia Grants 
Other Grants 

Grant Revenue 

Branches 
Camps 
"enter for a Healthy Lifestyle 
.chletlcs 

Aquatics 
Youth Arts Academy 
Bulldogs 
Montessori School 

Program Generated Revenue 

Rental/Interest/Misc Revenue 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 

Sijlaries and Related Expenses: 
Branches 
camps 
Genter for a Healthy Lifestyle 
Athletics 
Aquatics 
Youth Arts Academy 
Bulldogs 
Montessori School 

Program Salaries & Related Expenses 

Administration Salaries & Related Expense 
Total Salaries & Related Expense 

6/30/2021 
Projection 

113,937 
10,046 

319 

Page 1 

560,483 
495 

685,279 

100,505 

25,000 
12,627 

35,742 
173,874 

227,152 

227,152 

479,172 
167,355 

137,292 
1,215,505 

134,858 
170,203 
397,219 

2,701,603 

178,384 

3,966,293 

691,697 
211,376 

18,759 
161,137 
770,186 
104,000 
121,976 
441,153 

2,520,285 

782,305 
3,302,590 

6/30/2021 
Budget 

61,790 
5,000 

60,000 
6,000 

100 
308 

133,198 

2,500 
4,177 

41,875 
48,552 

24,300 

24,300 

464,275 
190,607 

158,690 
1,080,550 

137,528 
209,917 
441,086 

2i682,653 

159,960 

3,048,664 

670,098 
297,646 

15,742 
165,351 
749,349 
103,593 
123;064 
412,564 

2,537,407 

766,136 
3,303,543 



Boys & Girls Clubs of San Dieguito 
Statement of Activities · 
For the Fi.seal Year Ending 6/30/2021 

lrect Mail Expense 
La Colonia Holiday Gift Donation Purchases 

Chip in for Kids Golf Expenses 
YOY Expenses 
Junior Board Expenses (Horseshoe/Cornhole) 
Uncorked 
Other Fundraisfng Event Expenses 
Other Marketing and Fundralsing Expenses 
Community Event and Fundraislng Expense 

Total Fundraislng Expenses 

Grant Expense 

Branch Program Expenses 
Camps 
Center for a Healthy Lifestyle 
Athletics Program Expenses 
Aquc1tics Program Expenses 
Youth Arts Academy Program Expenses 
8ulldogs 
Montessori Program Expenses 
Total Brc1nch Progr<Jm Expenses 

E.xpenses related to Rental Income 

Overhead Expenses 
Annual Audit/Tax Return/CPA 
Equip Leases 
Insurance 
JanHoriaJ/Malnt 
Office Supplies/Postage/Printing 
Merchant Service Charges/Credit Card Processing Fees 
Property Taxes 
Repair & Maintenance 
Staff Events, Licenses/Training, etc 
Utilities & Telephones 
\iebicles 
Technology Expense 
Miscellaneous Administrative Expenses (1) 
Online Registration System 

Total Overhead Expenses 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

6/30/2021 6/30/2021 
Projection Budget 

545 
10,156 7,374 

36,249 
292 

4,651 
4,134 2,500 

50,242 51,318 
14,868 12,150 

110,435 65,968 

7,078 3,838 
4,847 5,103 

7,813 8,889 
78,669 76,404 

1,937 4,125 
1;535 4,500 
2,771 2,800 

104,650 105,659 

42,150 36,600 
31,Q74 30,928 
97,506 94,043 

1 f3,761 129,934 
9,215 10,046 

78,406 87,151 
5,858 3,594 

107,793 151,676 
(2,094) 1,785 

257,570 255,890 
15,031 21,307 
33,276 44,265 
75,260 51,583 

19,162.1 19,504 

8841867 938,205 

4A13,243 4A20,748 

Page 2 



Boys & Girls Clubs of San Diegulto 
Statement of Activities 
For the Flscal Year Ending 6/30/2021 

Special Project Expenses 
Griset Garden Expenses 

Total Special Project Expenses 

Net Income (Loss) after restrictions 

Interest Expense 

Total NET INCOME/(LOSS! after Debt Service 

Other Extraordinary Items: 
Donation from BGCSD Foundation 

Total NET INCOME/(LOSS) 

Capital Expenditures (Cash used) 

Total NET lNCOME/(LOSS) after Other 

1epreclatlon Expense 

Net lncome/(Loss) after Bad Debt/Depreciation 

6/30/2021 
Projection 

284 
284 

(447,234) 

25,492 

(472,726) 

262,636 

(210,089) 

70,000 

(280,089) 

481;575 

(761,664) 

Page 3 

6/30/2021 
Budget 

(1,372,084) 

25,589 

(1,397,674) 

(1,397,674) 

46,887 

{1,444,561) 

481,575 

(1,926,136) 



La Colonia Clubhouse and Harper Teen Center Mentoring Programs 
Projected FY 21-22 Program Budget 

Item Cost 

Financial assistance for approximately 60 $163,500 
youth at our La Colonia Clubhouse and 55 
youth at our Harper Teen Center to participate 
in mentoring programs for the full academic 
year which begins August 2021. 



Boys & Girls Clubs of San Dieguito 
Balance Sheet 

Fobruol)' 2ll, 2021 

ASSETS 

O peratl ng Cash 14,983 
Savings Account 1,429,890 
Restricted Cash 
Accounts Receivable 
Other Current Assets 52,327 

Total Current Assets 1,497,200 

Property and Equipment: 

Land, Buildings and Building Improvements 14,796,981 
Autos, Equipment and Furniture 1,388,018 
Accumulated Depreciation (7,245,375) 

Total Property and Equipment $ 8,939,624 

Due from Foundation 255,027 

Restricted Funds: 

Rose Foundation• CFHL Solana Beach 
Grisel Garden Fune • Encinitas 6,392 
LA84 Foundation for Athletics 50,000 
Del Mar Remodel remaining funds 6,365 
Athletic Donation for Equipment 3,839 

Total Other Assets $ 66,596 

Total Assets $ 10,758,448 

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL 

Current Uabllitias: 

Accounts Payable 103,334 
Payroll and Taxes Payable 103,304 
Deferred Socia! Securtty Taxes 96,238 
PPP Loans 1,571,625 
Accrued Expenses 
Deferred income 162,752 

Total Current Liabilities 2,037,252 

Long-Tenn Liabilities: 

Vacation Accrual 170,400 
Lina of Credit 697,000 
Accrued Expense 
Other Liabilities 66,596 

Total Long-Tenm Liabilities $ 933,997 

Tolal Liabilities $ 2,971,249 

Capital: 7,787,199 

Total Liabilities and Capital $ 10,758,448 

January 31, 2021 

203,233 
693,922 

56,681 

953,836 

14,796,981 
1,381,232 

(7,245,375) 

$ 8,932,838 

256,884 

6,392 
50,000 

6,365 
3,839 

$ 66,596 

$ 10,210,154 

184,903 
104,135 
96,238 

785,800 

155,867 

1,326,942 

170,400 
697,000 

66,596 

$ 933,997 

$ 2,260,939 

7,949,215 

$ 10,210,154 



TAXABLE YEAR California Exempt Organization 
Annual Information Return 

■ 
B2Dll41 12•12-1B 

FORM 

2018 199 
GalimdarYoar 2018 orflsaal yearllaglnnlng (mrn/dd/,Yyyy) 07/01/~018 , and ending (mm/dd/yyyy) 
Corporntlon/QrqanltaUon ni.1110 Callfomlo cotporallon numbar 

BOYS AND GIRLS CLUBS OF $AN DIEGUITO 0516240 
Addltlonnl fnlorn,utlon. S&& irwtruolloM, FSIN 

95-2470435 
Stroot nddtaaa (aulla ar room) PMB no. 

PO BOX 230520 
City I Slate ZIPc<x!e 

ENCINITAS CA 92023 
Forolgn o,:;unlry numa I FOl"llgll prowtno""8totaloounly !'Gte1J111 postal ooq9 

A Flrst Return ......................................................... LI Yes LXJ No J If exempt under R&TC Section 23701d, flas the org:anlzatron 
B Amended Return ••• ,, ............................ ., ............. • D Yes 00 No engaged rn polltlcal activities? Seo Instructions. ............ •DYos Du No 
(l IRC Section 4947(a)(1) trust .................................... D Yes 00 No K Is the organization exempt under A& TC Section 23701rf? •D Yes [X] No 
D Flnal Information Return? lf 'Yes,• enter the gross recel))IS from nonmember sources$ 

• D Dbaolved D $,Jm,nd,rod (WlthdrnwnJ 0 M"1'(10d1Roorg,nlzacl L If organ!zatlon Is a public charity exempt under R& TC 
1:ntDr d.llo: O'Jirn/ddlyyyY) • Section 23701d and m6flts the filing fee exceptlcm, chock 

E Check accountlna method: (1 )□ Ccsh (2JlXJ Accrual (3)0 Other box. No IUlng fee Is required ....................................... • D 
F Federal return fllad? (1) •D ogor(2)• D DOOf'f' (3)•0 soh H (oooi M Is the organization a Limited Llablll!y Company? ............ • D Yes [X] No 

( 4) [X] Other 990 series N Did the organlzat!on fire Form 100 or Filrm 109 to 
a Is th!s n group filing? See Instructions ..................... • D Yes 00 No reportmxable Income? ........................................... ,. •D Yes [X] No 
H Is this organization In a group exemption .................. DYas 00No 0 Is the organization under audit by the IRS or has tile 

If "Yes," what ls tl1e parent's name? IRS au lilted In a prior year? ....................................... • D Yes OD No 
p Is foderal Form 1023/1024 ponding? 

un••••••••••••~••n••• D Yes IX] No 
I Did ths oroe.nlzaUon have any changes to its guldell/106 Date flle<f with IRS 

ilot reoorted to th& FTB? Sae Instructions ........ ,, ..... •D Yes [X] No 
Part I Gomplet&Partl unlea& not required to lllethleform. See Genorallntormalion Band C. 

1 Gf Pss sales or receipts from othor sources. From Side 2, Part II, line 8 ................................................ • 1 5,600,245 00 
2 Gross dues and assessments from members and.a.fflll/ltos ............................................................... • 2 00 

Receipts 
3 ~J~s~~~~\~og~nff~~~JJJ:.n!:J:/~MJ!~''ti~0~ 1 

r:nc
0
eted , ........ , ............. , ,., ......... $..W.Ml .. J. • 3 1,017,18C 00 

and 
4 Thia line m~t b• oornplofod, I/tho l'O<IU!tl• '""" thM $50,000, ••• 0oneml lnforn1atJon a .......................................... • 4 6,623,425 00 

R@YonUO$ 
5 Cost of goods sold .................................................................. • I 6 I loo .. 

,• 

8 Coot or olller basis, and sales expanses of assets sold ..................... • I o I I oo 
7 Tola! costs. Add line 5 and Nna 6 ............................................................................ , .................. ,,,, ... , 7 00 
3 Total aross lncomo. Subtrnct !Ina 7 from Une 4 •••••••H•••••••• •••••••••••>•tH••u••-''''"""•••••Ho, .. HHO><>•••••u,.,, • B 6,623, 42~ 00 
9 Total expenses and disbursements. From Side 2, Part II, lina 18 • 9 6,=104,65~ 00 Exp on sos •HOf••••••••••H••••••••••••U••••••••••••••+•H••h• 

10 Excoss of receipts owr &X)}enses and disbursements. Subtract lln& 9 from fine O ................................. • to -281, ;&j:.; 00 
11 Total pllyrne111s ........................................................................................................................ • 11 00 
12 Usa .tax. See General Information I< • 12 00 •••••••••••••••••u•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••n•••••••••••HHt.,•••••••••••r,Htf•h••••• 

13 Payments balance. If line 111s moro than Una 12, subtract line 12 from Hne 11 .... ,. .. u,, .............. , ............. • 13 00 
Filfng Fee 14 Uoo tax balance. lfllne 12 ls morottian line 11, sutltractnna 11 from line 12 • 14 00 ........................................ 

15 FUlng tea $10 or $25. Soo General lnformauon F ....... ,, ........................................................................ 16 10 00 
16 Ponaltiea and Interest. Seo General Information J 

OOloo•>•••••\l'OI .. I .. 00000f0 ... &00>00••·····h•••••••0 ♦ ,011•····· .. •••••tHH• ♦ 
16 00 

17 Balance due.Add One 12, !Ina 15, al1d line 16. Then subtract line 11 from ll10 result .............................. @ 17 10 00 
it1:;'w.,-.oireot,~~nci'oomplo~1S';,;;;;;;.,,;;;~1 prr,p,r,;(oii;;'ihroi' taxpaye1j'li, baso<I on ;lii'~-tlon-o'i'w'i,i~h·pmpw ha~®)' knowr~:1 

,., 
vutl.:i11 

Sign 
H~re ~hie Data • T•lophone 

:~~'!-& ► EO 

1~
0

3/24/20 
Chooklf • ., .. 

PrtJp(U'llr'•► ••lf-omp!Oyijd►D 1!?00485021 Glgm,tllle 

Paid Rltn'a name • ·•11 s,o;i,. 

Preparer's (CfyouTS, ALDRICH CPAS AND ADVISORS LLP 93-0623286 
Use Onry ~~~► 5946 PRIESTLY DRIVE, SUITE 200 • TGl!lprn,,,., 

and acidroos CARLSBAD-
1 

CA 9 2 0 0 8 (760) 431-8440 
May the FTB discuss this return with the preparer shown abovo? Sae Instructions .................................... •LXJ y.,,, L J No 

■ 022 I 3651184 Farm 199 2018 Side 1 • 



BOYS AND GIRLS CLUBS OF SAN DIEGUITO 95-2470435 
Part II Organizations With llfOBB receipts of moro than $60,000 and private loundallons regard Im of 

amount of gross receipts• oomplelo Purl If orfurtlsh substitute informallan. 

Receipta 
from 
Other 
Sources 

■ 

Schedule l.. Balance Shoat Beglnnln ~ of taxablo ym Enll of t~xa 
Assets (a) (II) (ll) 

1 Cash ' 
.. 579,973 • ....................... , .................... ,, .. 0 

.. 
2 Net accounts receivable : .. ... 

4,980 • ................. ,. ...... , 
3 Net notes recalvable .............................. 

: .. 
.. 

•' 
.. • 

4 lnventorlos , ............................... , ......... .. ' • 
5 Fodernl and stale government oblfaatlons ' 

.. • . . · . 
6 lnvestmonts In other bonds '• .· • ········• .... , .... 
7 r nve stments In stock ,. .. ·: '• ,•, .. • 1»•••••••••••n••••••••••• : 

8 Mortgage loans '. ...... ,, .. , ... , .................... •: ., • 
9 Other l11vestmants 

.. .. • ........... ·---· ....... ,. ·~·· .. ' 
10 a Depreciable assets 15,509,491 '' ... 16,078,~46 H•••••••••-••••••••••••••• : 

b Less accumulated depreciation ............ ( 6,044,924 9,464,567( 6,515,691] 
f1 Land 26,872 " • .. 
12 Other assets ................ , ... STMT ... 5 .. 

' 373,501.l • 
13 Total assets ..................... ., ................ 

.. .. 
10,449,896 

Uabilitlas and net worth ' 
.. . •:. •, .. 

... .. ,·, 

14 Accounts payable ................................. 
·• 595,324 . . • 

16 Contrlbulloos, ylfts, or grants payable .. ,. • ...... .. 
16 Bonds and notes payable . ,. • ••>H•••••••••••••<U 

17 Mortgages payable '' • ......... , .................... 
10 Othar llabOIUas ............... .,.STMT ... 6. l,:.!!20,540 
19 Cap Ital stock or principal fund " • ................ •, 

20 Pnld·fn aroopltol •Ul)Ji!Ja, Attoch raconal)lotion 
•, 

,• • ... , . 

21 Retained earnings or Income fund ............ , . 8,634,032 • .. .. 
22 Total llabllillas and net worth ................ 10,449,896 
Schedule M-1 Reaonellialion of income par books wltk Income per roturn 

Do not complete this schedule If the amount on Schedula L, Hne 13, column (d), Is less than $50,000. 

1 Net Income per books ............ -....................... • -307,254 7 Income recorded on books this year 
2 Federal Income tax • not lnclu dad In this re tum ... STMT ... 7 ... • .. H.,Ohoo••••••--••*HHt>uo••••H•O 

3 Excess of capltal losses over capl!lll gains ......... • 8 Deductions In this return not charged 
4 Income not recorded 011 books this year .... -....... • against book Income this year ..................... • 
IS Expenses rucorded on books thls year not 9 Total Add llne 7 and line 8 .. ····-•······ ··~······· 

deducted In lhfs return u•••••••-•H•••••••••••••••••••• • 10 Net Income per return. 
6 Total. Add lino 1 through !too 6 ........................ -307,2!>4 SUbtract line 9 from Jina 6 •••••••u••••••••••••••• 

■ Side 2 Form 199 2018 3652184 I 

820061 1lM2-i8 

(d) 

173,936 
13,969 

3,250 

'' .. ,. .. 
9,563,255 

26,872 
350,697 

10,131,979 
. ' ·I 

500,439 

1,304,762 

8,326,778 
lU,131,979 

., .. 
-26,021 

-26,021 
.. 

-281,2:-33 

■ 



~\'li_l;t,~ STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 
PO BOX 942867 
SACRAMENTO CA 942671640 

Entity Status Letter 

Date: 5/30/2019 

ESLID: 6218781761 

According to our records, the following entity infonnation is true and accurate as of the date of this letter. 

Entity ID: 0516240 

EntJty Name: THE BOYS AND GIRLS CLUBS OF SAN DIEGUITO 

~ 1. The entity is In good standing with the Franchise Tax Board. 

0 2. The entity is not in good standing with the Franchise Tax Board. 

~ 3. The entity Is currently exempt from tax under Revenue and Taxation Code (R&TC) Section 237D1 d. 

D 4. We do not have current information about the entity. 

The above information does not necessarily reflect: 
• The entity's status with any other agency of the State of California, or other government agency. 
• If the entity's powers, rights, and privileges ware suspended or forfeited at any time in the past, or the entity 

did business In California at a time when it was not qualified or not registered to do business In California: 
o The status or voidablltty of any contracts made in California by the entity at a time when the entity was 

suspended or forfeited (R& TC Sections 23304.1, 23304.5, 23305a, 23305.1 }. 
o For entitles revived under R&. TC Section 23305b, any time limitations on the reviver or limitation of the 

functions that can be performed by the entity. 

Internet and Telephone Assistance 

Website: ftb.ca.gov 
Telephone: 800.852.5711 from within the United States 

916.845.6600 from outside the United States 
TTY/TDD: 800.822.6268 for persons with hearing or speech lmpalrments 

FTB 4263A WEB (NEW 02-2012) 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 
PO BOX 1286 
RANCHO CORDOVA CA 95741-1286 

March 1, 2007 

In reply refer to 
755:G :MEJ 

THE BOYS AND GIRLS CLUBS OF SAN DIEGUITO 
3800A MYKONOS LN 
SAN DIEGO CA 92150-3572 

Purpose 
Code Section 
Form of Organization 
Accounting Period Ending: 
Organization Number 

CHARlTABLE EDUCATIONAL 
23701d 
Corporation 
June 30 
0516240 

This letter confirms your previous exemption from state franchise and 
income tax under Section 23701d, Revenue and Taxation Code. In 
confirming your exempt status, we have made no examination of your 
current activities, If the organization has changed its operation, 
character, or purpose since exemption was originally granted, that 
change must be reported immediately to this office. 

You may be required to file Form 199 (Exempt Organization Annual 
Information Return) on or before the 15th day of the 5th month (4 1/2 
months) after the close of Your accounting period. See annual 
instructions with forms for requirements. 

You are not required to file state franchise or income tax returns 
unless you have income subject to the unrelated business income tax 
under Section 23731 of the Code. In this event, you are required to 
file Form 109 (Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return) by the 
15th day of the 5th month (4 1/2 months) after the close of your 
annual accounting period. 



March 1, 2007 
THE BOYS AND GIRLS CLUBS OF SAN DIEGUITO 
ENTITY ID: 0516240 
Pqge 2 

Contributions made to you are deductible by donors as provided by 
Sections 17214 through 17216~2 and 24357 through 24359 of the Code, 
unless your purpose is testing for Public Safety. 

M JORDAN 
EXEMPT ORGANIZATIONS 
BUSINESS ENT!T!ES SECTION 
TtLEPHONE (916) 845-4150 
FAX NUMBER (916) 843-0934 

RTF: 

COPY 



~i\~ J'RS Dcpmlmenl of the Trcu~11ry 
i;fcm'//J . . k Inl<'l'lllll R!•\'(•IIU(' Sl'l',·lrr 

P.O. Box 2508 
Cincinnati OH 45201 

THE BOYS AND GIRLS CLUBS OF 
SAN DIEGUITO 

In reply refer to: 0248222025 
Nov. 15, 2011 LTR 4168C EO 
95-2470435 000000 00 

00016448 
BODC: TE 

533 LOMAS SANTA FE DR 
.:t,:~ SO LAN A BE AC H CA 9 2 0 7 5 - l 3 2 3 ~.,,f:.; 

.(I": 

010296 

Employer Identification Number: 95-2470435 
Person to Cont~ct1 R CLEMONS 

Toll Free Telephone N~fber: 1-877-829-5500 

Dear TAXPAYER: 

This is in response to your Nov, 03, 2011, request for information 
regarding your tax-exempt status, 

our records indicate that you were recognized as exempt under 
section 501Cc)( 3) of the Internal Revenue Code in a determination 
letter issued in AUGUST 1967. 

Our records also indicate that you are not a private foundation within 
the meaning of section 509(a> of the Code because you are described in 
section 509(a) t2), 

Donors may deduct contributions to you as provided in section 170 of 
the Code, Bequests, legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts to you or 
for your use are deductible for Federal estate and gift tax purposes 
if they meet the applicable provisions of secti~ns 2055, 2106, and 
2522 of the Code. 

Please refer to our website www.irs.gov/eo for information regarding 
filing requirements. Specifically, section 6033Cjl of the Code 
provides that failure to file an annual information return for three 
consecutive years results in revocation of tax-exempt status as of 
the filing due date of the third return for organizations required to 
file. We will publish a list of organizations whose tax-exempt 
status was revoked under section 6033Cjl of the Code on our website 
beginning in early 2011. 



THE BOYS AND GIRLS CLUBS OF 
SAN DIEGUITD 

533 LOMAS SANTA FE DR 
SOLANA BEACH CA 92075-1323 

024822202.5 
Nov. 15t 2011 LTR 4168C EO 
95-2470435 000000 00 

I f yo u Im v e @ n y q u e st i o n s , p 1 e as e ca 11 u s at t he t e 1 e P h o n e IHI m b e r 
s how n .i. n t 11 e h e o1 d .i. n g o f t h i s let t e r • 

.. -; 

SJ.11cerely YOLll''S, 

(,_~ c:i,,u'/tt,,IJ-ci?, 

S. A, Martin, Operations Manager 
Accounts Man~gement Operations 



Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Give Form to the 
(Ri:w, Ootober 2018) Identification Number and Certlflcatlon requester. Do not 
Department of the Treas11ry 

► Goto www.lro.goy/FormW9 f9r Instructions and the latest.Information, 
send to the IRS. 

lntel'nal Revenue Service 
1 Name (as shown on your Income tax return). Name Is required on this Hne; do not leave this line blank, 

The Boys & Girts Clubs of San Dlegul1o 
2 Business ne.me/dlaregarded entity name, If dlflerent from above . . .. 

(".i 
a, 3 Cheok approprlale box for federal 18.)( claasltlcallon of the pen.on whoso name Is entered on line 1. Cheok only Oll<:I of the 4 Exemptions (cod;,s apply only to 
~ lollowlng seven boxes. certain enllll;,s, not lndlvlduals; see 
a. 

12] o Oorpomtlon D s Oorpomtlon 
II\Struollans on p&ge 3): 

§ D lndlvlduaVsole proprietor or 0 Partnership D Tl'llst/estate 
• Cl) 

a, C 
!!Ingle-member LL.C Exempt payee code ~f any) 

ii 0 Limited Pablllty company. Enter the te.x classWk:nUon (C=O corporation, Se,$ corporation, P=Pru-lnershlp) ► 

Ei Note: Oheok !h8 appropriate box In the line llllovo for the tax olasslfloatlon o/ tho slngle-member owner. Do not cheo~ Exemption from FATCA reporting 
CC 

LLC If the LLC la classlfled as a slngle-m8ffiber U.O that Is dlsr1:1g~rd&d from the owner unles$ the owner of lhQ LLC Is code Of any) "C- another LLC lhat Is not disregarded from the owner for U,S, federal lax pUrposes, Otherwise, 8slngle-member LLC that 
D. Cl Is dl!lnigarded from th8 owner ~hould ohecK the apPfoprlilta box tor the tax classlflcatlon of tts owner. 

i D Other (see Instructions) ► (A;,p/les lo OCOOllllb lnalt1talrxxi ~ /Ir, U.S./ 

t 6 Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) See Instructions. Requesters n11me end address (optiona0 
m 633 Lomas Santa Fe Dtlve 

(/) 
6 City, stme, and ZIP code 

Solana Beach, CA 92075 
7 List account number(e) hero (optlona0 .. .,., ... Taxpayer Identification N1.1mber (TIN} 

Enter your TIN In the appropriate box, The TIN provided must match the name given on fine 1 to avoid ! Social sacurity n1.1mb\lr I 
backup withholding, For Individuals, this Is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for a 
resident alien, sole proprietor, or dlsregard!lQ entity, aea the Instructions for Part I, later. For other 
entltlas, It Is your employer Identification number (EIN). ff you do not have a number, see How to get a 
TIN, later, 

DJ] -DJ -I I I I 1 · 
or 

Note: If the account Is In more than one name, see the Instructions tor Una 1. Also see What Name and 
Number To Give the Requester tor guidelines on whoso number. to enter, 

j 1:mptoyer ldenlifiontlon number 

95 -24704 

Certification · 
Under penalties of pe~ury, I oertl(y that: 
1, The number shown on this fonn Is my correct taxpayer ldenllficatlon number (or I am waltlng for a number to be lsSU!lQ to me); and 
2, I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been nollfled by the Internal Revenue 

Seivlce ORS) that I am sub)act to backup withholding as a result of a fallure to report all Interest or dividends, or (o) the IRS has notlfled me that I am 
no longer subJect to backup withholding; and 

3. lam a U.S. citizen or othar U.S. pernon (defined below); and 
4. The FATCA code{s) entered on this form Of any) Indicating that I am exampt from FATCA reporting is correct. 
Certification Instructions. You must cross cl.It Item 2 abov f you have been notf/lBQ by the IRS !hat you are currently subj8Ct to backup wlthhold!ng because 
you have failed to report all Interest and dividends r tax r um. For real estate transactions, ttem 2 doos not apply. For mortgage Interest paid, 
acquisition or abandonment of secur. property c lat/on of ebt ntrlbuilons to an Individual retirement arrangemen1 (IRA), and generally, paymenls 
other than Interest and dividends, are not r Ired o sign the I tlon, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the Inst otlons tor Part II, later, 

Sign 
Here 

General Ins 
Section relerences are to the lntemar Revenue Code unless otherwise 
noted. 
Future developments, For the latest lnfonnallon about developments 
related to Form W-9 and Its Instructions, such as legislation enacted 
after they wera pubHshed, go to www.Jrs.gov/FormW9. 

Purpose of Form 
An lndMdual or entity (Fom, W-9 requester) who Is required to flte an 
lnfonnatlon return with the IRS must obtain yaur correct taxpayer 
identifroat/on number (TIN) which may be your social security number 
(SSN), lndJvldual taxpayer ldentlf!cation number (ITIN), adoption 
taxpayer ldentlflcatk>n number (ATIN), or employer ldent/flcnt!on number 
(EIN), to report on an Information return the amount paid .to you, or other 
wnount reportable on an lnfomTa\lon return. Examples of lnfomTatlon 
returns Include, but are not limited to, the following. 
• Form 1 0S9-INT Qnterest earned or p11ld) 

Cat. No. 10231X 

Date ► 

• Form 1099-DIV {dividends, lnclu Ing tho e from stocks or mutual 
funds) 
• Form 1099-MISC (various types of Income, prizes, awards, or gross 
proceeds) 
• Fomi 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certafn other 
transactions by brokers) 
• Fon-n 1099-S (proceeds from real estata transaotlons.) 
• Fom, 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions} 
• Fonn 1098 (home mortgage Interest), 1098-E (student loan Interest), 
1098-T (tuition) 
• Fann 1099-0 (canceled debt) 
• Form 1099-A (aoqulelt!on or abandonment of secured property) 

Use Fonn W-9 only If you are a U.S. person (including a resident 
alien), to provide your correct TIN. 

It you do not return Form W-9 to th& requester with a TIN, you might 
be subfect to backup withholding. Sae What Is backup withhold Ing, 
later. 

f'onn W-9 (Rav, 10-2018) 





May 25, 2021 

Dear Mr. King, 

CASA DE AMISTAD 
CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 
Friendship House, Center for learning 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit a grant to the City of Solana Beach. 

Programmatic support from the City of Solana Beach's Community Grant Program will ensure 

the safety of Casa de Amistad students and volunteers. A grant in the amount of $5,000 will 

provide support for free academic mentoring for vulnerable youth in our community. 

Because of the COVID-19 pandemic, Casa de Amistad transitioned our services from 

an in-person program to an online tutoring and mentoring program. Casa de Amistad is now 

offering 200 weekly online sessions to low-income students in first through twelfth grade. Over 

165 volunteers dedicate their time to helping Casa de Amistad students with topics ranging 

from essay writing to physics. In addition to tutoring, volunteers and students are developing a 

special connection. It has been an honor to bear witness to the online community we have 

created. 

We appreciate your generosity and support in these trying times. Please let me know if 

you have any questions regarding our grant proposal. I can be reached 

at director@casadeamistad.org. 

My best regards, 

~b\~'rkJt., 
Nicole Mione-Green Executive Director 

Encl. 

120 Stevens Avenue· Solana Beach· CA· 92075 · 858.509.2590 · www.casadeamistad.org 



City of Solana Beach 
Community Grant Program 

Request for Financial Assistance 
FY 2021-22 APPLICATION 

All Applications MUST BE RECEIVED by 5:00 p.m. Tuesday, May 25, 2021. 
Please Print Clearly or Type 

All requests will be determined by the following criteria: 

Name of Organization: Casa de Amistad, Centro de Ensenanza 
Mailing Address: 120 Stevens Avenue 
City: Solana Beach State: CA Zip: 92075 
Contact Person: Nicole Mione-Green 
Daytime Phone: 858-509-2590 
Evening Phone: 858-509-2590 
Email Address: director@casadeamistad.org 

1. W-9 must be attached 
Summary of organization's budget must be attached 
Proposed program budget must be attached 
Financial and Tax Statements (see Application Guidelines) must be attached 

2. A copy of the California Franchise Tax Board Entity Status Letter must be attached, 
showing exemption under Section 23701d or Internal Revenue Code section 
501(c)(3) 

3. Has your organization received financial assistance from the City before? 
Yes X No 
If yes, what activities and which fiscal year? 
2020 Casa de Amistad Online Study Companions Program (see attached) 

4. Amount requested for FY 2021-22 $5,000.00 

5. Proposed Total Program Costs: $249,400.00 

(Includes all estimated costs to conduct proposed activity/program.) 

6. Title of Proposed Program/Service: Casa de Amistad Online Study Companions 
Program 

7. Grant funds must be used for services or materials directly associated to proposed 
activity. Please describe how grant funds will be used: With the stay-at-home orders and 

safety protocols in place starting in March of last year, Casa quickly pivoted to an online format to continue to 
serve our students and provide them that same sense of belonging, connection, and academic support in a virtual 
environment. We developed an infrastructure to safely connect our tutors and students on line, allowing them to 
not only help students academically as they struggled with the challenges of the distance learning model, but also 
be a vital connection to a caring community in times that have left some students feeling isolated at home with no 
support. 

(Please see attached sheet) 



8. Estimated number of S.B. residents to be served by proposed program: 
125 until we are able to return to in-person tutoring 

9. Program Dates/Location: 
Monday through Thursday starting September 7, 2021 to June 3. 2022. Students, volunteers, and staff 

will participate in the program remotely, until we can all safely be in person ( estimated January 2022). 

The Casa office address is 120 Stevens Avenue, Solana Beach, CA 92075 

10. Anticipated Program Objectives or Accomplishments: 
Through our online programming, Casa de Amistad will be supporting low-income students in their 

academic endeavors. Our objective will be greater engagement and academic success for students in 

elementary school through college. We will continue to use the benchmarks established in our Kinder 

through College Initiative to measure their progress. (Please see attached extra sheet) 

11. How will the organization acknowledge the City's financial contribution to the 
community/ beneficiaries of the proposed activity? 
Casa de Amistad will name the City of Solana Beach as a partner on its website and social media 
outlets. Council members are invited to attend an on line session in recognition of the City's financial 
contribution, and the City will be acknowledged virtually to the Casa de Amistad families, students, and 

volunteer community. 

12. Will there be any matching funds or other grants that would be applied to this 
program or service? If awarded this grant, will that enable other funding sources? 
Yes, Casa de Amistad is seeking additional funding to support our online programming. Our program is 
based on a Collective Impact Model. Therefore, we are asking the entire community to come together 
and support our most vulnerable students and families. Our partnership with the City of Solana Beach 

allows us to secure funding from other sources. 

13. Will volunteers be used for the proposed program or service and, if so, will they 
reduce expenses? 
Casa de Amistad is a Service Enterprise Organization. This designation means that Casa de Amistad 
utilizes skill-based volunteers to carry out our mission. In the online learning format, we place trained 
volunteers with students in a one-on-one session that is hosted by a Casa staff member, in accordance 
with our safety protocols of supervising and supporting all volunteers and students during the tutoring 
sessions. We anticipate serving approximately 85 Solana Beach students online each week, with a total 

of approximately 200 online weekly sessions overall. 

14. If the proposed program or service is only awarded partial funding, will it still move 
forward? Will the program or service be scaled back and/or is there a threshold at 
which it will not move forward? 
Our proposed program of online tutoring for students in first through twelfth grade will move forward 
even if only partial funding is awarded. We are committed to supporting our students as they 
persevere to succeed during this challenging time. 



Acknowledgment of Responsibility: 
Authorized Signature assumes all responsibility for developing and implementing 
proposed activities or events in this application, including public acknowledgment of the 
City's financial contribution. Authorized signature will comply with all accounting and 
budget procedures outlined by the City. Authorized signature and accompanying group 
will hold harmless the City of Solana Beach from all losses, claims, accidents and 
problems associated, directly or indirectly with the development and implementation of 
proposed activities or events. 

5/25/2021 

Authorized Signature of Organization Date 

ALL INFORMATION REQUESTED ON THIS APPLICATION MUST BE COMPLETED AS A CONDITION FOR BEING 
CONSIDERED FOR PUBLIC FUNDS BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF SOLANA BEACH. 



City of Solana Beach 
Community Grant Program 

Casa de Amistad 

2021 

3. Has your organization received financial assistance from the City before? 
2019-2020: Kinder to College Initiative 
2018-2019: Kinder to College Initiative 

2016-2017: DREAMS +Tech Initiative 
2015-2016: Study Companions Program 
2014-2015: PEP! Program 
2013-2014: Parents in Action 

2008-2009: Computer Equipment 
2006-2007 AV Equipment 

7. Please describe how grant funds will be used 
Grant funds will allow Casa de Amistad to continue our robust online tutoring program serving 
first through twelfth grade students. Our goal for the 2021-2022 school year is to serve all of the 
currently emolled online students, and take students off of the waiting list, with online "hosts" 
providing a safe learning environment for the student and volunteer. Strict policies are in place, 

so that a child is never alone with an adult. Session "hosts" host Zoom meetings for students and 
volunteers on a weekly basis. To serve all the emolled students this year, we hired an additional 
13 part-time hosts to expand our online capacity. During the 2020-2021 school year, Casa staff 
members hosted 200 online tutoring sessions every week with trained volunteers working on a 
wide range of topics, from comprehension-focused reading with our primary students, to physics 
and calculus support for our high school students. 

Funds will be used to help cover the increased staffing costs for these part-time tutoring session 

"hosts" Monday through Thursday. Keeping these additional hosts on staff for the coming year 
will allow Casa de Amistad to serve as many students as possible in the safest manner. 

10. Anticipated Program Objectives or Accomplishments: 
Casa de Arnistad programming is needed now more than ever. For low-income students, distance 
learning has increased the achievement gap, technology divide and opportunity gaps, which were 

in existence before the pandemic. Research demonstrates achievement gaps are evident as early 
as kindergarten and often persist and widen as students advance in their schooling. Studies show 
that high school students in afterschool programs exhibit more positive feelings and attitudes 
toward the pressures of teen life and are more willing to share their talents with the community. 

It is essential that we continue to serve our Study Companions students year-round as they 
struggle with online learning, increased dependence on technology, financial upheaval, 



emotional stress, and anxiety caused by the pandemic. The Solana Beach residents who serve as 
tutors in the program also benefit from the ability to be connected to their community in a 
meaningful way, especially in these times of decreased social interaction. 

The Study Companions Program is the key component of our Kinder through College Initiative, 

which provides Casa staff and volunteers a reliable means by which not only to measure, but to 
provide for student success at important junctures throughout their educational journey. The 

initiative holds the following as imperative educational objectives: 

• Kindergarten Readiness 
• Reading Proficiency by 3rd Grade 

• Mastery of Critical Math Concepts by 9th Grade 
• College and Career Readiness Upon High School Graduation 
• Enrollment and Completion of Post-Secondary Education Programs 



SUPPORT & REVENUE 
4010 · Individual contribution 
4011 · Site Contributions 
4030 · Fundraising Event Income 

4015 · Alternative Christmas Market 
4016 · Student Family Donations 
4019 · Casa Parent Raffle 
42 IO · Corporate/business grants 

4230 · Foundation/Non Profit grants 
5310 · Interest-savings/short-term inv 
5320 · Dividends & interest-securities 

Total Support & Revenue 

EXPENSES 
6001 ·Salary/Hourly Pay 
6003 · Employer Payroll taxes 

6004 · Worker. Compensation Insurance 
6007 · Staff Development 
6008 · Employee Benefits 
6002 · Payroll Processing Expenses 
6700 · Travel 
6101 · Fundraising Expenses 
6520 · Supplies 
6516 · Nutrition 

6503 · Kinder to College Initiative Curriculum 

6505 · Parties and Celebrations 
6519 · Field Trips 
6402 · Computer Hardware Supplies 
6403 · Office Equipment & Decor 

6509 · Board Meeting Expenses 
6510 · Personal Background Checks 

6511 · Gifts, Awards, Recognition 
6512 · Tutor Expense 
6103 · Casa Parent Fundraiser 
6404 · Software Expense 
6513 · Communications & Outreach 
6406 · Postage, shipping, delivery 
630 I · Development Consultant Expenses 
620 I · Storage Rental 
6006 · Insurance - other 
6501 · Advertising 

8004 · Misc. Expense 
6202 · Facilities Fee 
6405 · Web Site Expenses 

6800 · Scholarships 
6303 · Accounting 
6302 · Legal & CPA 

8001 · Square, Inc. Charges 
8002 · PayPal Charges 
8003 · Bank Charges 

Total expenses with scholarship 
Total expenses without scholarhip 

With Future Leaders Scholarship 

Difference between Income and Expenses 

Without Future Leaders Scholarship 

Difference between Income and Expenses 

155,000.00 

1,000.00 
55,000.00 
4,000.00 

0.00 
0.00 

50,000.00 
120,000.00 

0.00 

S385,000.00 

353,901.00 
28,082.00 

4,800.00 
5,000.00 

14,688.00 
500.00 

0.00 
l0,000.00 
2,000.00 
1,000.00 

2,500.00 
1,000.00 

500.00 
3,000.00 
1,500.00 

300.00 
500.00 
750.00 
500.00 

0.00 
1,500.00 
5,000.00 

1,000.00 
0.00 

1,692.00 

5,000.00 
1,500.00 

0.00 
5,500.00 
1,500.00 

125,000.00 

30,000.00 
6,200.00 

800.00 
1,500.00 
6,000.00 

S622,713.00 
S491,713.00 

-S237,713.00 

Casa de Amistad 
Organizational Budget 

2020-2021 

-SI06,713.00 



Notes: 

6800 · Scholarships 
The board of directors has traditionally allotted a budget of $125,000 for the Future Leaders 
Scholarship. Expenses tied to the scholarship are drawn from a restricted account. Restricted 
funds for the Future Leaders Scholarship are held in the Rancho Santa Fe Foundation account. 

Board of Directors' Notes: 

The Casa Board strives each year to establish and maintain a balanced budget. However, due to 
recent and unforeseen circumstances, it is recommended that the 2020-2021 fiscal budget 
without the Future Leaders Scholarship reflect a deficit of$106,713 and such deficit be funded 
by applying a portion of the 2019-2020 surplus. 

The BOD believes using this surplus aligns with Casa' s current strategic plan in building 
capacity for the organization and specifically addresses the challenges created by the COVID 19 
pandemic. This includes the likely reduction in near-term donations due to economic hardships 
experienced during the pandemic. 

More specifically, using the 2019-2020 surplus will help fund the following initiatives in 2020-
2021: 

• Creation of new fund development position to expand our network for donor funding 
sources 

• Additional expense to proctor virtual Zoom tutorial sessions in light of pandemic 
situation 



Project Budget 
Study Companions: Kinder to College Initiative 
2020-2021 

SUPPORT & REVENUE 
Individual contribution 
Site Contributions 
Fundraising Event Income 
Alternative Christmas Market 
Corporate/business grants 
Foundation/Non Profit grants 

Total Support & Revenue 

EXPENSES 
Salary/ Hourly Pay 
Employer Payroll taxes 
Worker Compensation Insurance 
Staff Development 
Payroll Processing Expenses 
Supplies 
Nutrition 
Kinder to College Curriculum 
Parties and Celebrations 
Personal Background Checks 
Tutor Expense 
Communications & Outreach 
Insurance - other 
Advertising 
Facilities Fee 

Total Expenses 

REVENUE RECEIVED 
2020-2021 
Individual Contribution 

Site Contributions 
Alternative Christmas Market 
Fundraising Event Income 

Corporate/Business Grants 
Foundation/Non Profit Grants 

Contributed Support 

95,000.00 
1,000.00 

29,400.00 
5,000.00 

29,000.41 
90,000.00 

$249,400.41 

219,333.65 
10,000.00 
2,047.37 
1,500.00 

269.39 
1,000.00 
1,000.00 
2,500.00 
1,000.00 

500.00 
500.00 

1,500.00 
2,250.00 

500.00 
5 500.00 

$249,400.41 

88,679.11 
625.00 

4,352.00 

19,721.15 
10,337.50 
29,380.00 

$153,094.76 



2170 S. El Camino Real, Suite 217 
Oceaside, CA 92054 

(760) 730-8020 
www.mungercpa.com 

CASA DE AMISTAD CENTRO 
DE ENSENANZA 

Reviewed Finandai Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

CONTENTS 

Independent Accountant's Review Report 

Statement of Financial Position 

Statement of Activities 

Statement of Functional Expenses 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Member: The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6-12 



2170 S. El Camino Real, Suite 217 
Oceaside, CA 92054 

(760) 730-8020 
www.mungercpa.com 

]NDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'§ REVIEW REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of 
Casa de Amistad Centro de Ensenanza 
Solana Beach, California 

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Casa de Amistad Centro de Ensenanza 
(a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2020, 
and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, 
and the related notes to the financial statements. A review includes primaiily applying analytical 
procedures to management's financial data and making inquiries of entity management. A review is 
substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion 
regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from mate1ial misstatement whetl1er due to 
fraud or error. 

Accountant's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagement in accordance with Statements on Standai·ds 
for Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services 
Committee of the AICPA. Those standards require us to perform procedures to obtain limited 
assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are aware of any material modifications that should be 
made to the financial statements for them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. We believe that the results of our procedures provide a 
reasonable basis for our conclusion. 

Accountant's Conclusion 

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the 
accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

~2~ 
Munger & Company, CPAs 
October 8, 2020 

Member: The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 



Casa de Amistad Centro de Esperanza 
Statements of Financial Position 

June 30, 2020 

ASSETS: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Money Market Funds 
Certificates of Deposit 
Interest Receivable 
Equities 
Bonds 
Other Assets 
Beneficial Interest in Assets Held by Ranco Santa Fe Foundation 
Property and Equipment, net of Accumulated Depreciation of S54,308 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABJILITIES: 

Accounts Payable 
Scholarship Payable 
Accrued Liabilities 
Payroll Liabilities 

TOT AL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS: 

Without Donor Restrictions 
Undesignated 
Invested in property and equipment 

With Donor Restrictions 
Purpose Restrictions 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

See independent accountant's review report and notes to the financial statements. 

2 

$ 

s 

$ 

656,364 
19,782 
40,340 

270,143 
272 

134,123 
107,866 

2,328 
621,985 

5,715 

1,858,918 

2,380 
14,500 

1,500 
13,645 

32,025 

1,179,411 
5,715 

641,767 

1,826,893 

$ 1,858,918 



Casa de Amistad Centro de Esperanza 
Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Without Donor With Donor 
Restrictions Restrictions 

REVENUES: 

Contributions $ 546,576 $ 151,486 
Grants 195,216 
Special Event Revenues 71,892 

Less Special Event Expenses (8,941) 
In-Kind Rent 43,170 
Investment Return 63,823 
Released from Restrictions I 79,124 (179,124) 

Total Revenues 1,090,860 (27,638) 

EXPENSES: 

Program Services 426,274 

Management & General 210,237 

Total Expenses 636,511 

Change In Net Assets $ 454,349 $ (27,638) 

Beginning Net Assets 730,777 669,405 

Ending Net Assets $ 1,185,126 $ 641,767 

$ 

$ 

$ 

See independent accountant's review report and notes to the financial statements. 

3 

Total 

698,062 
195,216 
71,892 
(8,941) 
43,170 
63,823 

1,063,222 

426,274 

210,237 

636,511 

426,711 

1,400,182 

1,826,893 



EXPENSES 

Salaries 
Benefits 
Payroll Taxes 
Payroll Processing Fees 

Casa de Amistad Centro de Esperanza 
Statement of Functional Expenses 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Program Management 

Services & General 

$ 165,385 $ 97,726 
399 11,766 

13,969 7,227 
427 118 

Subtotal Payroll Expenses 180,180 116,837 
Donated Rent 33,204 9,966 
Legal and Accounting 46,755 
Consultants 5,704 
Scholarships 86,721 
Advertising 100 
Operating 7,533 605 
Occupancy 4,968 3,282 
Supplies 2,991 2,387 
Insurance 1,506 4,346 
COVID-19 Relief 96,128 
Office 11,454 7,236 
Finance Charges 1,482 784 
Depreciation 6,882 
Storage 1,611 
Communication and Outreach 107 3,646 
Other 96 

Total Expenses $ 426,274 $ 210,237 

$ 

$ 

See independent accountant's review repo1i and notes to the financial statements. 
4 

Total 

263,111 
12,165 
21,196 

545 
297,017 

43,170 
46,755 

5,704 
86,721 

100 
8,138 
8,250 
5,378 
5,852 

96,128 
18,690 
2,266 
6,882 
1,611 
3,753 

96 

636,511 



Casa de Amistad Centro de Esperanza 
Statement Of Cash Flows 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

CASH FLOWS I?ROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Change In Net Assets 
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets 
to Net Cash Provided/Used by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation 
Investment Return 
Decrease I (Increase) in: 

Interest Receivable 
Change in Beneficial Interest Held by RSSF 
Other Assets 

Increase I (Decrease) in: 
Accounts Payable 
Sholarship Payable 
Accrued Liabilities 
Payroll Liabilities 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Withdrawals of Investments 
Purchases of Investments 
Purchases of Property and Equipment 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at: 
Beginning of Year 

End of Year 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Total Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORl\.1ATION: 
Cash Paid for Interest 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

See independent accountant's review report and notes to the financial statements. 

5 

426,711 

6,882 
(63,823) 

1,748 
53,861 

6,047 

(8,420) 
14,500 

(680) 
3,886 

440,712 

5,711 
(44,043) 

(l ,l 55) 

(39,487) 

274,921 

676,146 

656,364 
19,782 

676,146 

2,266 



Casa de Amistad Centro de JEnsenanza 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Note 1 - Organization and Nature of Activities 

The Casa de Amistad Centro de Ensenanza (the Organization) is a California non-profit corporation. 
The Organization's mission is dedicated to assisting the education and character development of 
underserved children, teens and their families in coastal North County San Diego. The cornerstone of 
the Organization is its Study Companions Program: an educational mentoring program designed to 
improve the academic achievement of children in grades K-12. 

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis in confonnity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
The Organization consider all cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of 
three months or less, which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-tem1 purposes, to be 
cash and cash equivalents. Cash and highly liquid financial instruments restricted to endowments that 
are perpetual in nature, or other long-term purposes are excluded from this definition. 

Receivables and Credit Policies 
Accounts receivable consist primaiily of interest receivable on investments. Vv e detennine the 
allowance for uncollectable accounts receivable based on historical experience, an assessment of 
economic conditions, and a review of subsequent collections. Accounts receivable arc written off 
when deemed uncollectable. At June 30, 2020, management detennined that no allowance was 
necessary. 

Property and Equipment 
The Organization records property and equipment additions over $1,000 at cost, or if donated, at fair 
value on the date of donation. Depreciation and amo1iization are computed using the straight-line 
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets of five years, or in the case of capitalized leased 
assets or leasehold improvements, the lesser of the useful life of the asset or the lease tenn. When 
assets are sold or otherwise disposed o( the cost and related depreciation or amortization are 
removed from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is included in the statements of activities. 
Costs of maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective 
assets are expensed currently. 

The Organization reviews the carrying values of property and equipment for impainnent whenever 
events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the 
estimated future cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. \\Then considered 
impaired, an impainnent loss is recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the 
asset. There were no indicators of asset impairment during the year ended June 30, 2020. 

6 



Casa de Amistad Centro de Ensenanza 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Beneficial Interest in Assets Held by Rancho Santa Fe Foundation (RSFF) 
The funds are held by RSFF in a managed pool of assets invested in indexed mutual funds and 
exchange traded funds (ETFs) at The Vanguard Group. The Organization has not granted variance 
power to the RSFF, which would allow the RSFF to modify any condition or restriction on its 
distributions for any specified charitable purpose or to any specified organization if, in the sole 
judgment of the RSFF's Board of Directors, such restriction or condition becomes unnecessary, 
incapable of fulfillment, or inconsistent with the charitable needs of the community. The fund is held 
and invested by the RSFF for our benefit and is reported at fair value in the statements of financial 
position, with distributions and changes in fair value recognized in the statements of activities. The 
managed pool is designed to support distributions of student scholarships, while increasing the value 
of the corpus at a rate greater than inflation, net of distributions and expenses. At June 30, 2020, the 
pool was invested in Equities (approximately 60%) and Bonds (approximately 40%). Amounts are 
restricted for scholarships to graduating seniors who plan to attend either a four-year college, a 
community college, or a vocational and technical school and other items. This balance of $621,985 is 
included in net assets with donor restrictions for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

Investments 
The Organization records investment purchases at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the date of 
donation. Thereafter, investments are reported at their fair values in the statements of financial 
position. Net investment return/(loss) is reported in the statements of activities and consists of interest 
and dividend income, realized and unrealized capital gains and losses, less external and direct internal 
investment expenses. 

Net Assets 
Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor or 
grantor imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported 
as follows: 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions Net assets available for use in general operations and not 
subject to donor ( or certain grantor) restrictions. 

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor- ( or certain grantor-) imposed 
restrictions. Some donor-imposed rest1ictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met 
by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are 
perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor
imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has 
elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both. 

7 



Casa de Amistad Centro de Enscnanza 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Revenue and Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is recognized revenue from services when the services are provided. We record special 
events revenue equal to the cost of direct benefits to donors, and contribution revenue for the 
difference. All services are transferred at a point in time. 

Contributions are recognized contributions when cash, securities or other assets, an unconditional 
promise to give, or notification of a beneficial interest is received. Conditional promises to give, that 
is, those with a measurable performance or other barrier, and a right of return, are not recognized 
until the conditions on ,vhich they depend have been substantially met. 

In-Kind Contributions 
Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to our program services, administration, and 
fundraising and development activities; however, the financial statements do not reflect the value of 
these contributed services because they do not meet recognition criteria prescribed by generally 
accepted accounting principles. Contributed goods are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. 
The Organization records donated goods, services and rent at the respective fair values of those items 
received (Note 7). 

Advertising Costs 
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. 

Functional Allocation of Expenses 
The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional basis 
in the statements of activities. The statements of functional expenses present the natural classification 
detail of expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs 
and supporting services benefited. 

Income Taxes 
The Organization is organized as a California nonprofit corporation and has been recognized by the 
IRS as exempt from federal income taxes under IRC Section 501(a) as organizations described in 
IRC Section 501(c)(3), qualify for the charitable contribution deduction under IRC Section 
l 70(b )(1 )(A)(vi), and has been determined not to be a private foundation under IRC Sections 
509(a)(1 ). The Organization is annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from 
Income Tax (Fonn 990) with the IRS and California Franchise Tax Board (Forn1s 199 and RRF-1 ). In 
addition, they are subject to income tax on net income that is derived from business activities that are 
unrelated to its exempt purposes. The Organization is not subject to unrelated business income tax 
and have not filed an Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return (Form 990-T) with the IRS 
or (Fonn 109) with California. 

The Organization has reviewed its position for all open tax years and believes that it has approp1iate 
support for any tax positions taken, and as such, does not have any uncertain tax positions that are 
material to the financial statements. 

8 



Casa de Amistad Centro de Ensenanza 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

The Organization's federal and state Exempt Organization Tax Returns are subject to examination, 
generally for three years after they were filed for federal returns and four years for state returns. 

Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the repmied 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates, and those differences could be material. 

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk 
The Organization manages deposit concentration risk by placing cash, money market accounts, and 
certificates of deposit with financial institutions believed by us to be creditworthy. At times, amounts 
on deposit may exceed insured limits or include uninsured investments in money market mutual 
funds. To date, The Organization have not experienced losses in any of these accounts. Credit risk 
associated with accounts receivable and promises to give is considered to be limited due to high 
historical collection rates and because substantial portions of the outstanding amounts are due from 
Board members, governmental agencies, and foundations supportive of our mission. Investments are 
made by diversified investment managers whose perfonnance is monitored by us and the investment 
committee of the Board of Directors. Although the fair values of investments are subject to 
fluctuation on a year-to-year basis, The Organization and the Board of Directors believe that the 
investment policies and guidelines are prudent for the long-te1m welfare of the organizations. 

Subsequent Events 
The Organization have evaluated subsequent events through October 8, 2020, the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 

Note 3. Liguiditv and Availability 

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting 
their use, within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise the following: 

Cash 
Money Market Funds 
Certificates of Deposits 
Receivables 
Equities 
Bonds 

$ 656,364 
40,340 

270,143 
272 

134,123 
107.866 

$1.209.108 

As part of our liquidity management plan, the Organization invests cash in excess of daily 
requirements in investments, CDs, and money market funds. 

9 



Note 4. 

Casa de Amistad Centro de Ensenanza 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 3 0, 2020 

Fair Va]ue Measurements and Disclosures 

The Organization reports certain assets at fair value in the financial statements. Fair value is the price 
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the 
principal, or most advantageous, market at the measurement date under current market conditions 
regardless of whether that p1ice is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. 
Inputs used to detennine fair value refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would 
use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or 
unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants would use 
in pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from sources independent of the 
reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity's o,vn assumptions 
about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best 
information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as follows: 

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that The 
Organization can access at the measurement date. 

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in 
active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, 
inputs other than quoted p1iees that are observable for the asset or liability, and market-corroborated 
inputs. 

Level 3 Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations, The Organization 
develops inputs using the best infonnation available in the circumstances. 

In some eases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorized 
within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair value measurement is 
categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is 
significant to the entire measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to entire 
measurement requires judgment, taking into account factors specific to the asset or liability. The 
categorization of an asset within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the asset and 
does not necessarily correspond to our assessment of the quality, risk, or liquidity profile of the asset 
or liability. 

A significant portion of our investment assets are classified within Level 1 because they comprise 
open-end mutual funds, certificates of deposit and money market funds with readily determinable fair 
values based on daily redemption values. 

We invest in CDs traded in the financial markets and have funds with Rancho Santa Fe Foundation. 
Those CDs and Rancho Santa Fe Foundation obligations are valued by the custodians of the 
securities using pricing models based on credit quality, time to maturity, stated interest rates, and 
market-rate assumptions, and are classified within Level 2. 

10 



Casa de Amistad Centro de Ensenanza 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Note 4. Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, (continued) 

The following table presents investments categorized according to their fair value hierarchy as of 
June 30, 2020: 

Descri12tion Level I Level 2 
Certificates of deposit $ $270,143 
Equities 134,123 
Money Market Funds 40,340 
Bonds 107,866 
Beneficial Interest in assets 
held at RSFF $62L985 

Total _$282.329 $892"128 

Note 5. Propertv and Equipment 

Property and equipment consist of the following: 

Note 6. 

Leasehold Improvements 
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 
Computer Equipment 
Website 
Computer Software 

Total 
Less Accumulated Depreciation 

Net Fixed Assets 

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 

Level 3 
$ 

Total 
Fair Value 

$ 270,143 
134,123 
40,340 

107,866 

$ 621,985 
$Ll74A57 

$17,807 
9)65 

26,474 
4,000 
2 477 

$ 60,023 
(54,308) 

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions at June 30, 2020 consisting of certain restrictions as follows: 

Scholarship Fund - Specified Purpose 
COVID-19 Relief 
Total Net Assets With Donor Restric6ons 

$ 632,127 
9,640 

$ 641.767 

Net assets released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purposes or 
by occmTence of other events specified by donors for the year ended June 3 0, 2020 are: 

Software 
COVID-19 Relief 
Scholarship Fund - Program 

Total Release of Restrictions 

11 

$ 1,500 
93,845 
83.779 



Note 7. Donated Rent 

Casa de Amistad Centro de Ensenanza 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

The Organization occupies space for classrooms and staff offices at Solana Beach Presbyterian 
Church. 

Note 8. FunctionaHzed Expenses 

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one 
program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is 
consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated salaries, benefits, payroll taxes, rent, occupancy, 
supplies, insurance, and office, which are allocated on the basis of estimates of time and effort. 

Note 9. Revenue Concentration 

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Organization received one gift representing approximately 
49% of revenues. 

12 



Return of Organization Exempt From !ncome Tax 
0MB No. 1545-0047 

Form 

(Rev. January 2D20j 

lepar1menl of the Treasury 
1ternal Revenue Service 

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations) 

► Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public. 
► Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. 

A For the 2019 calendar 7/1/2019 6/30/2020 
B Check it applicable: ll-c_N_a_m_e_o_f o_rg_a_n_iza_t_io_n __ C_A_S_A_D ___ E_A_M_IS_~_A_D_,'-C_E_N_T_R_O_D_E_E_N_S_E_N_A_N_ZA ____ --11 D Employer identification number 

D Address change Doing business as 

□ Number and street (or P.O. box ii mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite 26-0016331 
Name change 11r-1cc2""'0_S_T_E_V_E_N_S_P,:.---V---E---N_U_E _____________ ---1. _______ E Telephone number 

D Initial return City or town 

D Final return/terminated 
SOLANA BEACH 

Foreign country name 

D Amended return 

State 

CA 
Foreign province/state/county 

ZIP code 

92075 
Foreign postal code 

858-509-2590 

G Gross receipts$ 993,144 

D Application pending F Name and address ol principal officer: H(a) Is this a group return for subordinates? DYes[K] No 

NICOLE MIONE-GREEN 120 STEVENS AVENUE, SOLANA BEACH, C H(b) Are all subordinates included? 0Yes O No 

I Tax-exempt status: 0 501{c)(3) D 501(c) ) <!l (insert no.) D 4947(a)(1) or D 527 If "No," attach a list. (see instructions) 

J Website: ► WWW.CASADEAMISTAD.ORG H c) Group exemption number 1\1>, 

K Form of organization: ~ Corporation D Trust D Association D Other l'I> L Year of formation: 2001 M State of legal domicile: CA 

Cl) 
u 
C: 
m 
E 
(lJ 

> 
0 

Cl 
o;j 
m 
(l) 

:;:; 

~ u 
<t 

(fl 
(l) 
tJ'/ 
C: 

! 
l< w 

~" 0 Q 
.. u 

i] 
~Di 
15] 
z::, 

ll. 

Summa 
1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities: _PROVIDE LOW-INCOME, UNDERSERVED CHILDR[ 

TEENS AND THEIR FAMILIES IN COASTAL NORTH COUNTY SAN DIEGO WITH TUTORING, EDUCATIONAL __________________ _ 
SUPPORT, AND CHARACTER DEVELOPMENT.________ __ ___________ ___ _____ ___________ _ ________ _ 

2 Check this box ► D if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets. 

3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1 a) . 1--3--1---------'-1 _o 
4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b). 1--4--1 ________ 10-'-

5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2019 (Part V, line 2a). 1--5--1--------9-'-
6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) . . . . . . . . 1--6-1--_______ 3.:...00-'-
7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12. ,__7_a-<--________ o_ 
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, line 39. 7b 0 

8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1 h) . . . . . . . . 
9 Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g) . . 

10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d). 
11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, Be, 9c, 1 0c, and 11 e) . 
12 Total revenue-add lines 8 ihrou h 11 must e ual Part VIII, column A, line 12 
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3). . . 
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) . 
15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10). 
16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11e) . 

b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) ► _________ _ __ 
17 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24e) .. 
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) . 
19 Revenue less ex enses. Subtract line 18 from line 12. 

20 
21 
22 

Total assets (Part X, line 16) . 
Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) . 
Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20 

Signature Block 

0 

Prior Year Current Year 

804,224 936,530 
0 0 

32,200 27,974 
4,610 19,699 

841,034 984,203 
82,984 86,721 

0 0 
232,413 296,472 

0 0 

80,432 210,148 
395,829 593,341 
445,205 390,862 

Beginning of Current Year End of Year 

1,422,921 1,858,918 
22,739 32,025 

1,400,182 1,826,893 

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements. and to the best of my knowledge 

and belief, it is true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge. 

Sign 
Here 

{ 'aid 
"' "-,,.,rep,ner 

Use Only 

► Signature of officer 

► Type or print name and tide 

Print/Type preparer's name 

Roland W Mun er 

Firm's name ll> Mun er & Com an , CPAs 

Firm's address \il,> 2170 South El Camino Real, Ste, 217, Oceanside, CA92054 

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions) . 

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. 
HTA 

Date 

Date PTIN 
Check □ if 

10/30/2020 se!f-employed PO 1871456 

Firm's EIN r;,, 47-3342732 

Phone no. 760 730-8020 

~Yes D No 

Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (201sJ,.._ ____ C_A_S_A_D-E_A_M __ IS_T_A_D..._C_E_N __ T_R_O_D_E....;;;E ... N_S_E...,N_A_N_ZA _________________ 2_6_-0_0_1_6.;.33.;;..1.;..._ ___ P_a,._e __ 2 
Statement of Program Service Accomplishments 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part Ill . 

1 Briefly describe the organization's mission: 
THE _MISSION OF CASA DE AMISTAD IS TO PROVIDE LOW-INCOME, UNDERSERVED_CHILDREN, TEENS AND __________________ _ 

THEIR FAMILIES IN COASTAL NORTH COUNTY SAN DIEGO WITH TUTORING,_LEADERSHIP TRAINING, AND ____________________ _ 

CHARACTER DEVELOPMENT. WE ARE TRANSFORMING A NEW GENERATION OF LEADERS THROUGH ACADEMIC ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------·------------------------··--------------
SUPPORT, MENTORING, AND ENRICHMENT ACTIVITIES. 

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on 
the prior Form 990 or 990-EZ? . . . . . . . . . . . 

If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule 0. 

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program 
services? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule 0. 

[Kl Yes D No 

D Yes [Kl No 

4 Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by 

expenses. Section 501 (c)(3) and 501 (c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, 

the total expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reported. 

4a (Code: _______________ ) (Expenses$ _________ ?~-~.J.QQ_ including grants of$ __________________ ) (Revenue$ ___________________ ) 

STUDY COMPANIONS PROGRAM - THE CONERSTONE OF CASA DE AMISTAD IS ITS STUDY COMPANIONS PROGRAM. ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
STUDY COMPANIONS IS AN EDUCATIONAL MENTORING PROGRAM DESIGNED TO IMPROVE THE ACADEMIC ACHIEVEMENT ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
OF CHILDREN IN GRADES K-12. STUDENTS PARTICIPATING IN CASA DE AMISTAD ARE FROM SCHOOL DISTRICTS ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
THROUGHOUT COASTAL NORTH COUNTY SAN_DIEGO._THE STUDENTSARE_MATCHED WITH VOLUNTEER MENTORS WITH 

WHOM THEY MEET TWO EVENINGS PER WEEK DURING THE SCHOOL YEAR. DURING THESE MEETINGS THE MENTORS 

HELP THE STUDENTS WITH HOMEWORK AND STUDY SKILLS. THERE WERE APPROXIMATELY 240 VOLUNTEER TUTORS ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
AND EVEN MORE STUDENTS, AS WELL AS A WAITING LIST WITH APPROXIMATELY 65 _NAMES.-----------------------------------

4b (Code: _______________ ) (Expenses$ _________ __:l_~,-~1?_ including grants of$ __________________ ) (Revenue$ 

PARENTS IN ACTION - THE GOAL OF THIS PROGRAM IS TO HELP THE PARENTS OF OUR STUDENTS TO ENHANCE ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
THEIR PARENTING SKILLS AND TO ADDRESS THEIR CONCERNS FOR THE WELL-BEING OF THEIR CHILDREN. THIS ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
PROGRAM CONSISTS_OF APRPOXIMATELY TEN_MEETINGS_DURING THE_SCHOOL YEAR WITH_EACH MEETING FOCUSING __ _ 
ON ONE OR TWO MAJOR CONCERNS OF OUR PARENTS, FOR EXMAPLE: POSITIVE ALTERNATIVES TO GANGS, _______________ _ 

DETECTING AND AVOIDING_DRUG USE, AND_POSITIVE PARTENTING_SKILLS. ANY INTERESTED_PARENT_MAY ATTEND, __ 
WHETHER_OR NOT THEY HAVEACHILD_IN_OUR STUDY COMPANIONS_PROGRAM. THERE IS NO CHARGE TO ATTEND. _______ _ 

4c (Code: _______________ ) (Expenses$ _________ _)_~,.?.~?- including grants of$ ) (Revenue$ ---------·---------
SUMMER ENRICHMENT PROGRAM - THE SUMMER ENRICHMENT PROGRAM PROVIDES STUDENTS IN KINDERGARTEN ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
THROUGH_SIXTH GRADE WITHA WEEK OF STEAM iSCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY,_ENGINEERING, ART AND MATH) THEMED _____ _ 

CAMP THAT INCLUDES_FIELD TRIPS, ART,_PROJECTS, PRESENTATIONS, AND EXTRA-CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES TO ___________ _ 

BRIDGE OPPORTUNITY GAP. 

4d Other program services (Describe on Schedule 0.) 
(Expenses $ 96,255 including grants of $ 0 ) (Revenue $ 0 ) 

4e Total program service expenses e;,. 393,070 

Form 990 (2019) 



F 99 □ (2019) CASA DE AMISTAD CENTRO DE ENSENANZA orm 26 0016331 - p 3 aqe 

I ::t:hilh•a Checklist of ReQuired Schedules 
Yes No 

1 Is the organization described in section 501 (c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? If "Yes," 
complete Schedule A . 1 X 

2 Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see instructions)? . 2 X 
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to 

candidates for public office? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part I . 3 X 
4 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501 (h) 

election in effect during the tax year? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part II. 4 X 
5 Is the organization a section 501 (c)(4), 501 (c)(5), or 501 (c)(6) organization that receives membership dues, 

assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-19? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part Ill 5 X 
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors 

have the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If 
"Yes," complete Schedule D, Part I . 6 X 

7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space, 
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part II. 7 X 

8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If "Yes," 
complete Schedule D, Part Ill. 8 X 

9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a 
custodian for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt 

negotiation services? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IV. 9 X 
10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments 

or in quasi endowments? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part V. 10 X 
11 If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, 

VII, VIII, IX, or X as applicable. 

a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 1 0? If "Yes," complete 
Schedule D, Part VI . . 11a X 

b Did the organization report an amount for investments-other securities in Part X, line 12, that is 5% or more 
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VII . . 11b X 

C Did the organization report an amount for investments-program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more 
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIII . . 11c X 

d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets 
reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IX. . 11d X 

e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X. 11e X 
f Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses 

the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X. 11f X 
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If "Yes," complete 

Schedule D, Parts XI and XII . . 12a X 
b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If "Yes," 

and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XII is optional 12b X 
13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii)? If "Yes," complete Schedule E. 13 X 
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States?. 14a X 

b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, 

fund raising, business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate 
foreign investments valued at $100,000 or more? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts I and IV. 14b X 

15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or 
for any foreign organization? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts II and IV. 15 X 

16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other 
assistance to or for foreign individuals? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts Ill and IV. 16 X 

17 Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services 
on Part IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part I (see instructions). 17 X 

18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on 
Part VIII, lines 1c and Sa? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part II. 18 X 

l 
19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? 

If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part Ill. 19 X 
iOa Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If "Yes," complete Schedule H. 20a X 

b If "Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? . 20b 
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or 

domestic Qovernment on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts I and II . 21 X 
Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (20i 9) 

■ ::r.if!;!l!L'I Checklist of Required Schedules (continued) 
CASA DE AMISTAD CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 26-0016331 Pa_ge 4 

Yes No 

22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on 
Part IX, column (A), line 2? If "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts I and Ill . 22 X 

23 Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the 
organization's current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated 
employees? If "Yes," complete Schedule J. 23 X 

24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than 
$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 2002? If "Yes," answer lines 

24b through 24d and complete Schedule K. If "No," go to line 25a . 24a X 
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? . 24b 
C Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year 

to defease any tax-exempt bonds? 24c 
d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of' issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? . 24d 

25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit 
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part I. 25a X 

b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a 
prior year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 
990-EZ? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part I . 25b X 

26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current 
or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35% 
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part II. 26 X 

27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key 
employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee 
member, or to a 35% controlled entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these 
persons? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part Ill. 27 X 

28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, 
Part IV instructions, for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions): 

a A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? If 
lf"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV. 28a X 

b A family member of any individual described in line 28a? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV. 28b X 
C A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in lines 28a or 28b? If 

lf"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV. 28c X 
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If "Yes," complete Schedule M. 29 X 
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified 

conservation contributions? If "Yes," complete Schedule M . 30 X 
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If "Yes," complete Schedule N, Part I 31 X 
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? 

If "Yes, "complete Schedule N, Part II . 32 X 
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations 

sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part I. 33 X 
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part II, 

Ill, or IV, and Part V, line 1 . 34 X 
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)?. 35a X 

b If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled 
entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 35b 

36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related 
organization? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2. 36 X 

37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization 
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part VI. 37 X 

38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11 band 
19? Note: All Form 990 filers are required to comp_lete Schedule 0 .. 38 X -· Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance 

~ 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V . 
Yes No 

1 a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable . _1_a-+-----14 
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable. ~1_b~ ____ o 
c Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable 

amblin winnin s to rize winners? . . 1c X 
Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) CASA DE AMISTAD CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 26-0016331 Paqe 5 
111111 :,f:T. llU Allill Statements Reaardina Other IRS Filinas and Tax Comoliance (continued) 

2a 

b 

3a 
b 

4a 

b 

5a 
b 
C 

6a 

b 

7 
a 

b 
C 

d 
e 
f 

9 
h 

8 

9 

a 
b 

10 
a 
b 

11 
a 
b 

Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax 
Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return . 

If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? . 

Note: If the sum of lines 1 a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file. (see instructions) 

Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year?. 

If "Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If "No" to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O. 

At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, 

a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? 

If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country ► _______ ---------------------------------------------------------------
See instructions for filing requirements for FinCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR). 
Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? . 

Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is. a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? 

If "Yes" to line Sa or Sb, did the organization file Form 8886-T?. 

Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the 
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? . 

If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or 
gifts were not tax deductible? . 

Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c). 
Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods 
and services provided to the payor? . 

If "Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided?. 

Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was 
required to file Form 8282? . 

If "Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year. 

Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract?. 

Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? . 

If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? . 

If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? . 

Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the 
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? . 

Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. 
Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966? . 

Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? 

Section 501 (c)(7) organizations. Enter: 

9 

Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII, line 12. I 1oa I 
;----;------; 

Gross receipts. included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club facilities . ._1_0_b_._ ____ --1 

Section 501 (c)(12) organizations. Enter: 

Gross income from members or shareholders. 11a ,__ ______ ...... 
Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources 

against amounts due or received from them.) . ~1_1_b~-----

Yes No 

2b X 

3a X 
3b 

4a X 

Sa X 
5b X 
Sc 

6a X 

6b 

7a X 
7b X 

7c X 

7e X 
7f X 
7Q 
7h 

8 

9a 
9b 

12a Section 4947(a)(1} non-exempt charitable trusts. ls the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041?. f--1_2_a-+--+---
lf "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year. . . i 12b I b 

13 
a 

b 

C 

14a 
b 

15 

Section 501 (c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers. 
Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? . 

Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule 0. 
Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which 

---~------; 

the organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans . ,_1_3_b _____ ____, 
Enter the amount of reserves on hand . 13c 
Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? . 

If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No," provide an explanation on Schedule O . 

Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or 

excess parachute payment(s) during the year. 

If "Yes," see instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N. 

Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? 

If "Yes" comolete Form 4720, Schedule 0. 

13a 

14a X 
14b 

15 X 

16 X 

Form 990 (2019) 



Form ggo (2019) CASA DE AMISTAD, CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 26-0016331 Pa e 6 

Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through lb below, and for a "No" 
response to line Ba, Bb, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule 0. See instructions. 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI . . . . . . . . . . . . [ill 

,ection A Governma Bodv and Manaaement 

1 a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year. 
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or 
if the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar 
committee, explain on Schedule 0. 

1a 10 

b Enter the number of voting members included on line 1 a, above, who are independent. 1 b 10 

2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with 

Yes No 

any other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? . 2 X 

3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct 
supervision of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? . 3 X 

4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? . 4 X 
5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets? . 5 X 
6 Did the organization have members or stockholders? . 6 X 
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint 

one or more members of the governing body? . 7a X 

b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members, 

stockholders, or persons other than the governing body? . 7b X 
8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during 

the year by the following: 
a The governing body? . Sa X 
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body? . Sb X 

9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached 
at the organization's mailing address? If "Yes," provide the names and addresses on Schedule O. 9 X 

Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required bv the Internal Revenue Code. J 

,Oa Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? . 

b If "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, 
affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? . 

11 a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? . 

b Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990. 

12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If "No," go to line 13 . 
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to confiicts? 
c Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If "Yes," 

describe in Schedule O how this was done . 

13 Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? . 

14 Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy?. 

15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by 
independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision? 

a The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management official. 

b Other officers or key employees of the organization . 
If "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions). 

16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement 
with a taxable entity during the year? . 

b If "Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its 
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard 
the organization's exempt status with respect to such arrangements? . 

Section C. Disclosure 

10a 

10b 
11a 

12a 
12b 

12c 
13 
14 

15a 
15b 

16a 

16b 

Yes 

X 

X 
X 

X 
X 
X 

X 

17 List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed ► f~--------- _______________ _ 
18 Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (Section 501 (c) 

Jlls only) available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply. 
LJ Own website D Another's website [ill Upon request D Other (explain on Schedule OJ 

::i Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, 
and financial statements available to the public during the tax year. 

20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records ► 

TGG ACCOUNTING 760-697-1033 

No 

X 

X 

X 

~·--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------· ---------------------------------
10188 TELESIS COURT, SUITE 130. SAN DIEGO, CA 92121 

Form 990 (2019) 



CASA DE AMISTAD, CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 26-0016331 
Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated 
Employees, and Independent Contractors 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII . . . . . . . 

:,ection A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees 
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the 
organization's tax year. 

" List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount 
of compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid. 

" List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employee." 
" List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee) 

who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the 
organization and any related organizations. 

,. List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than 
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations. 

e List all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the 
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations. 

See instructions for the order in which to list the persons above. 

D Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee. 

(C) 

Position 
(do not check more than one (DJ (E) (F) 

Pae 7 

□ 

(A) 
Name and tiUe 

(B) 
Average box, unless person is both an Reportable Reportable Estimated amount 

hours 
per week 
(list any 
hours for 
related 

officer and a director/trustee) compensation 
~ 3' 3' o ;,,; m I -n from the 
o. Q, _!!?._ 3 .!;g 3 cc ~

3
° organization ,;· :s. £ "O :,-

ID o. c ~ 
3
m ~ ~ !)l (W-2/1099-MISC) 

!l"' g: a, 

organizations 
below 

dotted line) 

g!!!.::, 1<.[!)8 
2 El. Q 3 
"' 2 ~ -g 
CD en ~ 
CD (D fil 

a, l[ 

(1} ___ f\_J~~'?~~-~19!1_~:Gre_~n 
executive Director 

__ {2)__ Katherine Timm 
Board President 

_ _{3L_ Tyler Wagner __ _ 
Vice President 
_{4L_ John Sweeten ________________ _ 

Treasurer 

40.00 ---------··-
0.00 
1.00 
0.00 X 

---------- 1.00 
0.00 X 
1.00 
0.00 X 

__ {5L_ Rachel Scherba _______________________________________ 1_9_Q 
Secretarv 0.00 X 

_ _{6} --~~!7_Q~~~.rn~!___ ·----------------· --- ·---- ___________ 1_.9_Q 
Member 

_ _{7)__ David Leshner ___ _ 

Member 

0.00 X 
1.00 
0.00 X 

_ _(8}_ Jorge Sanchez _____ ---------------· ____ .. ____________ 1c9_Q 
Member 0.00 X 

__ {9L_ Jan.Wier ___________________ ---· ·--------- ___ _ 
Member 

1.00 
0.00 X 
1.00 (1 OL_ Juan Daniel Espjtia 

Member 
---------------

0.00 X 
(11) __ Dr. Melissa_Famulari ____________ _ 1.00 
Member 0.00 X 

Jt?L ________________________ ---------------------

----------------- --- --· ----------------

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

87,995 

compensation of other 
from related compensation 

organizations from the 
(W-2/1099-MISC) organization and 

related organizations 

Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) 

:F.Tilill'~I 

CASA DE AMISTAD CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 26-0016331 Page 8 
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued) 

(A) 
Name and title 

(16)_ ________ -· ·-------

_l18L_ ________ _ 

_(21 

_(23)._ ------· --

(B) 
Average 

hours 
per week 
(list any 
hours for 
related 

organizations 
below 

dotted line) 

(C) 

Position 
(do not check more than one 
box, unless person is both an 
officer and a director/trustee) 

(D) 
Reportable 

compensation 
from the 

organization 
(W-2/1099-MISC) 

(E) 
Reportable 

compensation 
from related 

organizations 
(W-2/1099-MISC) 

(F) 
Estimated amount 

of other 
compensation 

from the 
O[!)anization and 

related organizations 

1b Subtotal. l;i> f--___ 87;..:•..:..9_95-+-_____ 0-1------'o:.... 

2 

3 

4 

5 

c Total from continuation sheets to Part Vil, Section A . 
d Total (add lines 1b and 1c). 

~ 0 0 0 1------+-------+-------
f;l,, 87,995 0 0 

Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of 
reportable compensation from the organization I!!>- 0 

Yes No 
Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated 
employee on line 1 a? If "Yes, 11 complete Schedule J for such individual . 3 X 

For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from 

the organization and related organizations greater than $150,000? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such 
individual . 4 X 

Did any person listed on line 1 a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual 
for services rendered to the organization? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such person . 5 X 

Section 8. Independent Contractors 
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of 

compensation from t h R e orqanization. eport compensation for the calendar vear endinq with or within the oroanization's tax vear. 

(A) (B) (CJ 
Name and business address Description of services Compensation 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received 
more than $100,000 of compensation from the oroanization ► 0 

Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) CASA DE AMISTAD, CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 26-0016331 Page 9 

iitfli~O• Statement of Revenue 

□ 

Q;J 
::I 
C: 
(!) 

> 
& ,_ 
a, 
.c: 
5 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII. . 

1a Federated campaigns . 
b Membership dues . 
c Fundraising events . 
d Related organizations . 

e Government grants (contributions) . 
f All other contributions, gifts, grants, and 

similar amounts not included above . 

g Noncash contributions included in 
lines 1a-1f. 

h Total. Add lines 1 a-1 f 

2a 

b 
C 

d 
e 
f All other program service revenue . 

Total. Add lines 2a-2f . 

1a 0 
1b 0 
1c 43,252 
1d 0 
1e 0 

1f 893,278 

1 $ 0 

Business Code 

3 Investment income (including dividends, interest, and 

(A) 
Total revenue 

0 
0 

0 

(B) (C) (0) 
Related or exempt Unrelated Revenue excluded 
function revenue business revenue from tax under 

sections 512-514 

other similar amounts) . . ► 
------'-'-+-------1-------1----~-

4 Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds. ► i-------+------+------+------
5 Royalties . . ► 

(i) Real (ii) Personal 

Ga Gross rents Ga i----i--------;-------
b Less: rental expenses ,__6_b--+------+-------
c Rental income or (loss) ~6_c ______ 0~------
d Net rental income or (loss) ·...--~----~-----►-

7a Gross amount from (i) Securities (ii) Other 

sales of assets 
other than inventory . 7a 0 

b Less: cost or other basis 
and sales expenses . 7b O 

c Gain or (loss) . 7c 0 
d Net gain or (loss) . 

Ba Gross income from fund raising 
events (not including$ _________ 43,252_ 
of contributions reported on line 1 c). 

See Part IV, line 18. 1-B_a--1----~--i 
b Less: direct expenses. i.....c8.;.;b__,_ ____ 8"'"",9'--4_1-1 

c Net income or (loss) from fundraising event .... s_·-------►---..,..,.,--,,..,.,..,.... 
9a Gross income from gaming activities. 

See Part IV, line 19. 1--9a _____ 2"""',_97_5-1 

b Less: direct expenses . L--'-9ccb__,_ _____ ...;0-1 

c Net income or (loss) from gaming activities ..... _--.--_____ ►-,----,-.,.._~--1------1--------1--------"2:..c,9_7_5'-
10a Gross sales of inventory, less 

returns and allowances . 1 0a 0 1----1---------1 
b Less: cost of goods sold . ~1_0_b~-----0-; 
c Net income or (loss from sales of invento ► 

11a 
b 
C 

d All other revenue . 
e Total. Add lines 11a-11d. 

12 Total revenue. See instructions .. 

Business Code 

0 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

984 203 0 0 47673 

Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) CASA DE AMISTAD, CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 26-0016331 

lftfflti Statement of Functional Expenses 
Page 10 

Section 501 (c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A). 

Check if Schedule O coniains a response or note to any line in this Part IX . □ 
Do not include amounts reported on fines 6b, 7b, (A) (B) (C) (D) 

Total expenses Program service Management and Fundraising 
Bb, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. expenses general expenses expenses 

1 Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations 
domestic governments. See Part IV, line 21 0 

2 Grants and other assistance to domestic 
individuals. See Part IV, line 22 . 86,721 86,721 

3 Grants and other assistance to foreign 
organizations, foreign governments, and foreign 
individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16. 0 

4 Benefits paid to or for members . 0 
5 Compensation of current officers, directors, 

trustees, and key employees . 87,995 74,796 13,199 
6 Compensation not included above to disqualified 

persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1 )) and 
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(8) . 0 

7 Other salaries and wages . 175,116 90,589 84,527 
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include 

section 401 (k) and 403(b) employer contributions) 0 
9 Other employee benefits . 12,165 399 11,766 

10 Payroll taxes . 21,196 13,969 7,227 
11 Fees for services (nonemployees): 

a Management . 5,704 5,704 
b Legal. 0 
C Accounting . 46,755 46,755 
d Lobbying. 0 
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17 . 0 
f Investment management fees. 0 
g Other. (If line 11 g amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column 

{A) amount, list line 11 g expenses on Schedule 0.) . 0 0 
12 Advertising and promotion . 100 100 
13 Office expenses . 18,690 11,454 7,236 
14 Information technology 0 
15 Royalties. 0 
16 Occupancy. 8,250 4,968 3,282 
17 Travel. 0 
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses 

for any federal, state, or local public officials . 0 
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings . 0 
20 Interest . 2,266 1,482 784 
21 Payments to affiliates . 0 
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization . 6,882 0 6,882 0 
23 Insurance. 5,852 1,506 4,346 
24 Other expenses. Itemize expenses not covered 

above (List miscellaneous expenses on line 24e. If 
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column 
(A) amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule 0.) 

a Program Costs ______________________________ 8,138 7,533 605 --- ~ 

b COVID-19 Relief 96,128 96,128 ------------------------------------------ - --- -
C Communication and Outreach 3,753 107 3,646 ------------------------ --------------------- ---------
d Supplies Cost _______ 5,378 2,991 2,387 --- ---------------- -------------
e All other expenses ----------------------------- 2,252 427 1,825 

25 Total functional exoenses. Add lines 1 throui::ih 24e . 593,341 393,070 200,271 0 
) Joint costs. Complete this line only if the 

organization reported in column (B) joint costs 
from a combined educational campaign and 
fundraising solicitation. Check here ► 0 if 
followina SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720) . 

Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) 

iitti 
CASA DE AMISTAD, CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 26-0016331 Page 11 

Balance Sheet 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X . □ 

{A) (8) 
Beginning of year End of year 

1 Cash-non-interest-bearing . 198,923 1 151,932 
2 Savings and temporary cash investments . 311,215 2 564,554 
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net . 0 3 0 
4 Accounts receivable, net . 0 4 272 
5 Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer, director, 

trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35% 
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons . 0 5 

6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined 
under section 4958(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(8) 0 6 

.l!l 7 Notes and loans receivable, net . 0 7 0 Ql 
rn 8 Inventories for sale or use . 0 8 Ill 
<( 

9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 8,375 9 2,328 
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or 

other basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D 10a 60,023 
b Less: accumulated depreciation . 10b 54,308 11,442 10c 5,715 

11 Investments-publicly traded securities. 217,120 11 512,132 
12 Investments-other securities. See Part IV, line 11 . 675,846 12 621,985 
13 Investments-program-related. See Part IV, line 11 0 13 0 
14 Intangible assets . 0 14 0 
15 Other assets. See Part IV, line 11 . 0 15 0 
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 33) 1,422,921 16 1,858,918 
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses . 22,739 17 32,025 
18 Grants payable . 0 18 

19 Deferred revenue . 0 19 

20 Tax-exempt bond liabilities . 0 20 

21 Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D . 0 21 
(JI 22 Loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director, Cl) 

~ trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35% 
:c controlled entity or family member of any of these persons . 0 22 «I 
:J 23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties . 0 23 0 

24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties . 0 24 0 
25 Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third 

parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete 
Part X of Schedule D . 0 25 0 

26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 throuqh 25. 22,739 26 32,025 
Cl) Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here ► 0 Q) 
0 and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33. s::: 
ra 

Net assets without donor restrictions . 730,777 27 1,185,126 ia 27 
ID 

28 Net assets with donor restrictions . 669,405 28 641,767 
'O 

s::: Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here ►□ ::, 
lL and complete lines 29 through 33 . ... 
0 29 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds . 0 29 
J!l 
Q) 30 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund. 0 30 rn 
rn 31 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds . 0 31 <( ....., 32 Total net assets or fund balances . 1,400,182 32 1,826,893 (I) 

z 33 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances . 1,422 921 33 1,858,918 
Form 990 (2019) 



Form 99□ (2019) CASA DE AMISTAD, CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 26-0016331 

i:tfif31 Reconciliation of Net Assets 
Page 12 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI . □ 
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12). 1 984,203 

2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) . 2 593,341 

3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1 . 3 390,862 

4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 32, column (A)) 4 1,400,182 

5 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments . 5 35,849 

6 Donated services and use of facilities . 6 43,170 

7 Investment expenses . 7 

8 Prior period adjustments . 8 
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain on Schedule 0) . 9 -43, 170 

10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 32, 
column (B)) . 10 1,826,893 

D ::,fff. lillUI Financial Statements and Reporting 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII . . . . . . . . . . . . . [RJ 

Yes No 

1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: D Cash [K} Accrual D Other 
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explain in 
Schedule 0. 

2a Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? . 2a X 
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or 
reviewed on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both: 

[K} Separate basis D Consolidated basis D Both consolidated and separate basis 

b Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant? . 2b X 
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a 
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both: 

D Separate basis D Consolidated basis D Both consolidated and separate basis 

C If "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of 
the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? . 2c X 
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain on 
Schedule 0. 

3a As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in 
the Single Audit Act and 0MB Circular A-133?. 3a X 

b If "Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the 
required audit or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to underqo such audits . 3b 

Form 990 (2019) 



ueprec1auon ana Amoruzauon 
Form 

(Including Information on Listed Property) 
of the Treasury ► Attach to your tax return, Attachment 

(99) ► Go to www.irs. ov/Form4562 for instructions and the latest information. Sequence No. 179 
Name(s) shown on return Business or activity to which this form relates Identifying number 
CASA DE AMISTAD, CENTRO DE ENSENAN 990 26-0016331 

Election To Expense Certain Property Under Section 179 
N t If h r t d I P V b f P o e: vou ave anv 1s e propertv, comp ete art e ore vou complete art 

1 Maximum amount (see instructions) 1 
2 Total cost of section 179 property placed in service (see instructions). 2 
3 Threshold cost of section 179 property before reduction in limitation (see instructions) . 3 
4 Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. If zero or less, enter -0- 4 0 
5 Dollar limitation for tax year. Subtract line 4 from line 1. If zero or less, enter -0-. If married filing 

separately, see instructions 5 0 
6 (a) Description of property (b) Cost (business use only) (c) Elected cost 

I 
I 

7 Listed property. Enter the amount from line 29 I 7 
8 Total elected cost of section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), lines 6 and 7 8 0 
9 Tentative deduction. Enter the smaller of line 5 or line 8 9 0 

1 O Carryover of disallowed deduction from line 13 of your 2018 Form 4562. 10 
11 Business income limitation. Enter the smaller of business income (not less than zero) or line 5. See instructions . 11 
12 Section 179 expense deduction. Add lines 9 and 10, but don't enter more than line 11 . 12 0 
13 Carryover of disallowed deduction to 2020. Add lines 9 and 10, less line 12 .► I 13 0 
N e: Don't use Part II or Part Ill below for listed ro ert . Instead, use Part V. 

reciation Allowance and Other De reciation Don't include listed ro ert . See instructions. 
14 Special depreciation allowance for qualified property (other than listed property) placed in service 

during the tax year. See instructions . 
15 Property subject to section 168(f)(1) election .. 
16 Other de reciation includin ACRS 

MACRS De reciation Don't include listed ro ert . See instructions. 
Section A 

17 MACRS deductions for assets placed in service in tax years beginning before 2019 . 
18 If you are electing to group any assets placed in service during the tax year into one or more general 

asset accounts, check here 

s ect1on B A - ssets P aced in Service DurinQ 2019 T ax Year Usinq the General Depreciation System 
(b) Month and (c) Basis for depreciation 

(d) Recovery (a) Classification of property year placed (business/investment use 
period (e) Convention (f) Method 

in service only-see instructions) 

19 a 3-year property 1,155 3 FM SL 
b 5-vear property 
C 7 -Year property 
d 10-year property 
e 15-vear property 
f 20-year property 
q 25-year property 25 yrs. S/L 
h Residential rental 27.5 vrs. MM S/L 

property 27.5 vrs. MM S/L 
i Nonresidential real 39 yrs. MM S/L 

property MM S/L 
Section C -Assets Placed in Service Durina 2019 Tax Year Usino the Alternative Depreciation Svstem 

20 a Class life 
b 12-year 12 vrs. 
C 30-year 30 yrs. MM 
d 40-year 40 Yrs. MM 

II :f:Tii il!U'f R Summarv (See instructions.) 
"1 Listed property. Enter amount from line 28 

Total. Add amounts from line 12, lines 14 through 17, lines 19 and 20 in column (g), and line 21. Enter 
here and on the appropriate lines of your return. Partnerships and S corporations-see instructions . 

23 For assets shown above and placed in service during the current year, enter the 
portion of the basis attributable to section 263A costs 

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see separate instructions. 
HTA 

. ,. I 23 

S/L 
S/L 
S/L 
S/L 

14 
15 
16 

17 6,754 

(g) Depreciation deduclion 

128 

21 

22 6,882 

Form 4562 (2019) 



SCHEDULE A 
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) 

Department of the Treasury 
nternal Revenue Service 

Public Charity Status and Public Support 
Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust. 

► Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. 

► Go to www.irs. ov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. 

0MB No. 1545-0047 

Name of the organization Employer identification number 

CASA DE AMISTAD, CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 26-0016331 

Reason for Public Charit Status See instructions. 
The O,.!.[,anization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.) 

1 LJ A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 17D(b)(1 )(A)(i). 

2 DA school described in section 17D(b)(1 )(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ).) 

3 D A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 17D(b)(1 )(A)(iii). 

4 D A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1 )(A)(iii). Enter the 
hospital's name, city, and state: _____ ___ __ _ __________ _ 

5 D An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in 
section 17D(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part II.) 

6 D A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 17D(b)(1 )(A)(v). 

7 ~ An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public 
described in section 17D(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.) 

8 DA community trust described in section 17D(b)(1 )(A)(vi). (Complete Part 11.) 

9 D An agricultural research organization described in section 17D(b)(1 )(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college 
or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or 
university: 

1 D D An organizati;-;,th~t-~or~~llyr~~-eiv-es~(1)-~o~e-th~n-33·1-/:3°/o-Cit°it;·s~pportfro~ -~ontributions, membership fees, and gross 
receipts from activities related to its exempt functions-subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its 
support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses 
acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part Ill.) 

11 D An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4). 

12 D An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes 
of one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). 
Check the box in lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g. 

a D Type I. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving 
the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting 
organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B. 

b D Type II. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having 
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported 
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C. 

c D Type Ill functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with, 
its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E. 

d D Type Ill non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s) 
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness 
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V. 

e D Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type I, Type II, Type Ill 
functionally integrated, or Type Ill non-functionally integrated supporting organization. 

f Enter the number of supported organizations . . . 0 I 
g Provide the followina information about the supported organization(sl. 

(i) Name of supported organization (ii) EIN (iii) Type of organization 
(described on lines 1-10 
above (see instructions)) 

(A) 

(B) 

(C) 

) 
.. · 

(E) 

Total 

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. 
HTA 

(iv) Is the organization (v) Amount of monetary (vi) Amount of 
listed in your governing support (see other support (see 

document? instructions) instructions) 

Yes No 

0 0 
Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 



ScheduleA{Form9soorsso-EZ)201s CASADEAMISTAD, CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 26-0016331 

■@Hii Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) 
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under 
Part Ill, If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part 111.) 

c1on u IC UPDO f A P bl" S rt 
t;alendar year ( or fiscal year beginning in) ► (a) 2015 {b) 2016 le) 2017 (d) 2018 (e)2019 

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and 
membership fees received. (Do not 

include any "unusual grants.") . 526,840 209,049 775,127 804,224 936,530 

2 Tax revenues levied for the 

organization's benefit and either paid 

to or expended on its behalf. 

3 The value of services or facilities 
furnished by a governmental unit to the 

organization without charge. 

4 Total. Add lines 1 through 3 526,840 209,049 775,127 804,224 936,530 

5 The portion of total contributions by 
each person (other than a 

governmental unit or publicly 

supported organization) included on 

line 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount 

shown on line 11, column (f). 

6 Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4 

ec 10n BT IS ota uooort 
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) ► (a)2015 (b)2016 {c) 2017 (d) 2018 (el 2019 

7 Amounts from line 4. 526,840 209,049 775,127 804,224 936,530 

8 Gross income from interest, dividends, 

payments received on securities loans, 

rents, royalties, and income from 

similar sources . 62 2,259 13,380 32,200 

Net income from unrelated business 

activities, whether or not the business is 

regularly carried on. 3,880 21,491 6,619 4,610 

10 Other income. Do not include gain or 

loss from the sale of capital assets 
(Explain in Part VI.) . 

11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10 . 

12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) . 

13 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501 (c)(3) 
organization, check this box and stop here. 

Section C. Com utation of Public Su ort Percenta e 
14 Public support percentage for 2019 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column (f)) . 

15 Public support percentage from 2018 Schedule A, Part 11, line 14. 

12 I 

14 
15 

16a 33 1/3% support test-2019. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box 
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . 

27,974 

19,699 

b 33 1/3% support test-2018. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check this 
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . . . . 

17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test-2019. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 
10% or more, and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test, check this box and stop here. Explain in 
Part VI how the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported 
organization .. 

b 1 0¾-facts-and-circumstances test-2018. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line 
15 is 10% or more, and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test, check this box and stop here. 
Explain in Part VI how the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test. The organization qualifies as a publicly 
supported organization . . . . . . 

Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see 

instructions . . 

Page 2 

(f) Total 

3,251,770 

0 

0 

3,251,770 

3,251,770 

(f) Total 

3,251,770 

75,875 

56,299 

0 

3,383,944 

.. ►□ 
96.09% 

95.77% 

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 CASA DE AMISTAD, CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 26-0016331 

1Qffijjj1 Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2) 
Page 3 

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under Part II. 
If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.) 

( p bl" ,;tion A. u ,c Suooort 
_ ~,endar year (or fiscal year beginning in) 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7a 

b 

C 

8 

9 

10a 

b 

C 

11 

12 

13 

Gifts, grants, contributions, and membership fees 

received. (Do not include any "unusual grants.") 

Gross receipts from admissions, merchandise 
sold or services performed, or facilities 
furnished in any activity that is related to the 

organization's tax-exempt purpose . 

Gross receipts from activities that are not an 

unrelated trade or business under section 513 

Tax revenues levied for the 

organization's benefit and either paid to 

or expended on its behalf . 

The value of services or facilities 

furnished by a governmental unit to the 

organization without charge. 

Total. Add lines 1 through 5. 

Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and 3 

received from disqualified persons 

Amounts included on lines 2 and 3 

received from other than disqualified 

persons that exceed the greater of $5,000 

or 1% of the amount on line 13 for the year . 

Add lines 7a and 7b . 

Public support (Subtract line 7c from 

line 6.). 

• 10n B ~ t IS oa unoo rt 
ndar year (or fiscal year beginning in) 

Amounts from line 6 . 

Gross income from interest, dividends, 

payments received on securities loans. rents. 

royalties, and income from similar sources . 

Unrelated business taxable income (less 

section 511 taxes) from businesses 

acquired after June 30, 1975 

Add lines 10a and 1 Ob . 

Net income from unrelated business 

activities not included in line 10b, whether 

or not the business is regularly carried on 

Other income. Do not include gain or 

loss from the sale of capital assets 

(Explain in Part VI.) . 

Total support. (Add Jines 9, 1 De, 11, 

and 12.) . 

fl:, (a)2015 (b) 2016 fc) 2017 ld)2018 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

► (a) 2015 (b)2016 (c) 2017 (d) 2018 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
14 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501 (c)(3) 

organization, check this box and stop here. 

Section C. Com utation of Public Su ort Percenta e 
15 Public support percentage for 2019 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)). 

16 Public su ort ercenta e from 2018 Schedule A, Part Ill, line 15. . . . . . . 

Section D. Com utation of Investment Income Percenta e 
17 Investment income percentage for 2019 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)). 

Investment income percentage from 2018 Schedule A, Part Ill, line 17. 

(e) 2019 

(e) 2019 

15 
16 

17 
18 

33 1 /3¾ support tests-2019. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1 /3%, and line 17 is 

not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization. 

b 33 1/3¾ support tests-2018. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%. and 

line 18 is not more than 33 1 /3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . 

20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions . 

(f) Total 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 0 

0 

0 
0 0 

0 

(f) Total 

0 0 

0 

0 
0 0 

0 

0 

0 0 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 



ScheduleA(Form 990 or 990-EZ) 201s CASA DE AMISTAD, CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 26-0016331 Page 4 
1£tri1~j Supporting Organizations 

(Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part I. If you checked 12a of Part I, complete Sections A 
and B. If you checked 12b of Part I, complete Sections A and C. If you checked 12c of Part I, complete 
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked 12d of Part I, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.) 

S f A All S rf O . f ec 10n UPPO ma rgamza ions 
Yes 

1 Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization's governing 
documents? If "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by 
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 1 

2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status 
under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported 
organization was described in section 509{a){1) or (2). 2 

3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501 (c)(4), (5), or (6)? If "Yes," answer 
{b) and {c) below. 3a 

b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501 (c)(4), (5), or (6) and 
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If "Yes," describe in Part VI when and how the 
organization made the determination. 3b 

C Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2) 
(B) purposes? lf"Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 3c 

4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ("foreign supported organization")? If 
"Yes," and if you checked 12a or 12b in Part I, answer (b) and (c) below. 4a 

b Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign 
supported organization? lf"Yes," describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion 
despite being controlled or supeNised by or in connection with its supported organizations. 4b 

C Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination 
under sections 501 (c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization used 
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170{c){2){8) 

purposes. 4c 
5a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? lf"Yes," 

answer {b) and {c) below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN 
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ii) the reasons for each such action; 

(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action 

was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document). 5a 
b Type I or Type II only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already 

designated in the organization's organizing document? 5b 
C Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control? 5c 

6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to 
anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited 
by one or more of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also support or 
benefit one or more of the filing organization's supported organizations? If "Yes," provide detail in Parl VI. 6 

7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor 
(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity 
with regard to a substantial contributor? If "Yes," complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ). 7 

8 Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described in line 7? 
If "Yes," complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ). 8 

9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more 
disqualified persons as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described 
in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? lf"Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9a 

b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined in line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which 
the supporting organization had an interest? lf"Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9b 

C Did a disqualified person (as defined in line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit 
from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? If" Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9c 

10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section 
4943(f) (regarding certain Type II supporting organizations, and all Type Ill non-functionally integrated 
supporting organizations)? If "Yes," answer 10b below. 10a 

b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to 
determine whether the organization had excess business holdin_qs.) 10b 

No 

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 



CASA DEAMISTAD, CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 26-0016331 
anizations continued 

11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons? 
a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (b) and (c) 

below, the governing body of a supported organization? 

b A family member of a person described in (a) above? 
c A 35% controlled entit of a erson described in a or b above? If "Yes" to a, b, or c, rovide detail in Part VJ. 

Section . ype B 'T I Supportmi:i Organizations 

1 Did the directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supported organizations have the power to 
regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization's directors or trustees at all times during the 
tax year? If "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or 
controlled the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported organization, 
describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove directors or trustees were allocated among the supported 
organizations and what conditions or restndions, if any, applied to such powers dun·ng the tax year. 

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported 
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? lf"Yes," explain in Part 
VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated, 
supervised, or controlled the supporting or_qanization. 

Section C. Type II S uooortmg Organizations 

1 Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors 
or trustees of each of the organization's supported organization(s)? If "No," describe in Part VI how control 
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed 
the supoorted organization(s). 

Section D. A I Tvoe Ill Supportinq Orqanizations 

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the 
organization's tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax 
year, (ii) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the 
organization's governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided? 

2 Were any of the organization's officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported 
organization(s) or (ii) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If "No," explain in Part VI how 
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s). 

3 By reason of the relationship described in (2), did the organization's supported organizations have a 
significant voice in the organization's investment policies and in directing the use of the organization's 
income or assets at all times during the tax year? lf"Yes," describe in Part VI the role the organization's 
supported organizations played in this regard. 

Section E. Type Ill Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations 

Pae 5 

Yes No 

11a 

11b 

11 C 

Yes No 

1 

2 

Yes No 

1 

Yes No 

1 

2 

3 

1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions). 
a O The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below. 

b O The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below. 

c O The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a government entity (see instructions). 

2 Activities Test. Answer (a) and (b) below. Yes No 
a Did substantially all of the organization's activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of 

the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? lf"Yes," then in Part VI identify 
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes, 
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined 
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities. 2a 

b Did the activities described in (a) constitute activities that, but for the organization's involvement, one or more 
of the organization's supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? lf"Yes," explain in Part VI the 
reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in these 
activities but for the organization's involvement. 2b 

, Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer (a} and (b) below. 
a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or 

trustees of each of the supported organizations? Provide details in Part VI. 3a 

b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each 
of its suooorted oraanizations? lf"Yes," describe in Part VI the role olaved bv the oraanization in this regard. 3b 

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 CASA DE AMISTAD, CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 26-0016331 Paae 6 

■UMitl Type Ill Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations 
1 D Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part VI). See 

instructions. All other Type Ill non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E. 

Section A - Adjusted Net Income (A) Prior Year 
{B) Current Year 

(optional) 

1 Net short-term capital qain 1 
2 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 2 

3 Other qross income (see instructions) 3 
4 Add lines 1 throuqh 3. 4 0 0 

5 Depreciation and depletion 5 
6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or 

collection of gross income or for management, conservation, or 

maintenance of property held for production of income (see instructions) 6 
7 Other expenses (see instructions) 7 

8 Adiusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4). 8 0 0 

Section B - Minimum Asset Amount (A) Prior Year 
(B) Current Year 

(optional) 

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see 
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year): 

a Averaqe monthly value of securities 1a 

b Averaqe monthly cash balances 1b 
c Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets 1c 
d Total (add lines 1a. 1b, and 1c) 1d 0 0 
e Discount claimed for blockage or other 
factors (explain in detail in Part VI): 

2 Acquisition indebtedness aoolicable to non-exempt-use assets 2 
3 Subtract line 2 from line 1d. 3 0 0 

4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 1-1/2% of line 3 (for greater amount, 

see instructions). 4 0 0 

5 Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3) 5 0 0 
6 Multiply line 5 by .035 6 0 0 
7 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 7 0 0 

8 Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6) 8 0 0 

Section C - Distributable Amount Current Year 

1 Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, Column A) 1 0 

2 Enter 85% of line 1 2 0 

3 Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, Column A) 3 0 

4 Enter qreater of line 2 or line 3. 4 0 

5 Income tax imposed in prior year 5 
6 Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to 
emerqency temporary reduction (see instructions). 6 0 
7 D Check here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally integrated Type Ill supporting organization (see 

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 CASA DE AMISTAD CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 26-0016331 Paoe 7 
■ ~1,illl.T.III Type Ill Non-Functionally lnteqrated 509(aH3 Supportinq Orqanizations (continued) 

Section D • Distributions Current Year 

1 Amounts paid to suooorted organizations to accomplish exempt purposes 

2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported 
organizations, in excess of income from activity 

3 Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported oraanizations 
4 Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets 
5 Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS aooroval required) 
6 Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions. 

7 Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 throuqh 6. 0 
8 Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive 

(provide details in Part VI). See instructions. 

9 Distributable amount for 2019 from Section C, line 6 0 
10 Line 8 amount divided bv line 9 amount 0.000 

(i} 
(ii) (iii) 

Section E - Distribution Allocations (see instructions) 
Excess Distributions 

Underdistributions Distributable 

Pre-2019 Amount for 2019 

1 Distributable amount for 2019 from Section C, line 6 0 
2 U nderdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2019 

(reasonable cause required-explain in Part VI). See 
instructions. 

3 Excess distributions carryover, if anv, to 2019 
a From 2014. 0 
b From 2015. 0 
C From 2016. 0 
d From 2017. 0 
e From 2018. 0 
f Total of lines 3a throuqh e 0 

g Applied to underdistributions of prior years 0 
h Aoplied to 2019 distributable amount 0 
i Carryover from 2014 not applied (see instructions) 
j Remainder. Subtract lines 3a, 3h, and 3i from 3f. 0 

4 Distributions for 2019 from 
Section D, line 7: $ 0 

a Aoolied to underdistributions of prior vears 0 
b Aoolied to 2019 distributable amount 0 
C Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from 4. 0 

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2019, if 
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result 
greater than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions. 0 

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2019. Subtract lines 3h 
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in 
Part VI. See instructions. 0 

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2020. Add lines 3j 

and 4c. 0 
8 Breakdown of line 7: 

a Excess from 2015 . a 
b Excess from 2016. 0 
C Excess from 2017 . 0 
d Excess from 2018 . 0 
e Excess from 2019 . 0 

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 CASA DE AMISTAD CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 26-0016331 
Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part fl, line 10; Part II, line 17a or 17b; Pari 
Ill, line 12; Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9c, 11a, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section 
B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b, 
3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V, Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E, 
lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions.) 

Pa e 8 

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 



SCHEDULED 
(Form 990) Supplemental Financial Statements 

► Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, 
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11 b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b. 

► Attach to Form 990. 

0MB No. 1545-0047 

Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service ► Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. 

Name of the organization Employer identification number 

CASA DE AMISTAD, CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 26-0016331 
Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. 
C f IV r omplete i the on::ianization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part , Ine 6. 

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts 

1 Total number at end of year . 
2 Aggregate value of contributions lo (during year) . 
3 Aggregate value of grants from (during year) . 

4 Aggregate value at end of year. 
5 Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised 

funds are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control? . D Yes D No 
6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used 

only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose 

conferring impermissible private benefit? . . . . . . . . D Yes D No 

■@11■ Conservation Easements. 
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 7. 

1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply). 
D Preservation of land for public use (for example, recreation or education) D Preservation of a historically important land area 

D Protection of natural habitat D Preservation of a certified historic structure 

D Preservation of open space 
2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation 

easement on the last day of the tax year. Held at the End of the Tax Year 

a Total number of conservation easements . . . . 2a 
b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements . 2b 
c Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in (a) . 2c 
d Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 7/25/06, and not on a 

historic structure listed in the National Register. 2d 
3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during 

the tax year ► _________________ _ 
4 Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located ► 

5 Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of 

violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? . D Yes D No 

6 Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year 

► 
7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year 

► $ -
8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i) 

9 
and section 170(h)(4)(B)(ii)?. D Yes D No 
In Part XIII, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement and 
balance sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the 

anization's accountin for conservation easements. 

Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets. 
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 8. 

1a If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet 
works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of 
public service, provide in Part XIII the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items. 

2 

b If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet 
works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of 

public service, provide the following amounts relating to these items: 
(i) Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 . ► $ 

(ii) Assets included in Form 990, Part X . . . ► $ 
If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the 
following amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items: 

a Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 . 

b Assets included in Form 990, Part X . . . . . . . 
► $ 

$ ... ► 
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. 
HTA 

Schedule D {Form 990) 2019 



Schedule D (Form 990) 201 9 CASA DE AMISTAD. CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 26-0016331 Paae 2 

3 

4 

r anizations Maintainin Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets continued 
Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its 
collection items (check all that apply): 

a D Public exhibition 

b D Scholarly research 

c D Preservation for future generations 

d D Loan or exchange program 

e D Other _ _ _ _ __ _ _ __ ______ _ _ __ _ _ __ 

Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in Part 
XIII. 

5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar 
assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's collection? . D Yes D No 

htfl1~j Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. 
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form 

990, Part X, line 21. 
1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not 

included on Form 990, Part X? . . . . . . . . D Yes D No 
b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIII and complete the following table: 

Amount 

c Beginning balance . 1c 0 

d Additions during the year. 1d 
e Distributions during the year. 1e 
f Ending balance . 1f 0 

2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability? D Yes [TI No 

b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIII. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part XIII. □ htffli!I Endowment Funds. 
c I t ·t th r d "Y " F 990 P rt 1v 1· 1 o omp e e 1 e orqarnza 10n answere es on orm 

' 
a I ine 

(a) Current year (b) Prior year (c) Two years back {d) Three years back (e) Four years back 

1a Beginning of year balance. 0 0 

b Contributions . 
C Net investment earnings, gains, 

and losses. 
d Grants or scholarships . 
e Other expenditures for facilities 

and programs . 
f Administrative expenses. 

g End of year balance . 0 0 0 
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as: 

a Board designated or quasi-endowment ► 

b Permanent endowment ► % 
c Term endowment ► % -------------

The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%. 

3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the 

organization by: 
(i) Unrelated organizations. 

(ii) Related organizations . 
b If "Yes" on line 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R? . 

4 Describe in Part XIII the intended uses of the or anization's endowment funds. 

land, Buildings, and Equipment. 

0 0 

Yes No 
3a(i) 
3a(ii) 

3b 

c 1 ·f th r d "Y " F 990 P rt 1v r 11 s F 990 P rt x r 1 o omp ete 1 e oroaniza 10n answere es on orm 
' 

a , ine a. ee orm 
' 

a , me 

Description of property (a) Cost or other basis {b) Cost or other basis (c) Accumulated (d) Book value 

(investment) (other) depreciation 

1a Land. 0 0 0 

b Buildings. 0 0 0 0 
C Leasehold improvements 0 17,807 17.807 0 
d Equipment. 0 38,216 33,168 5,048 
e Other. 0 4,000 3,333 667 

Total. Add lines 1 a throuah 1 e. (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 1 Oc.) . ► 5,715 
Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 



Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 CASA DE AMISTAD, CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 

■iflif)j■ Investments-Other Securities. 
26-0016331 Page 3 

C l t 'fth f d "Y: " F 990 P rt IV I' 11 b S F omp e e 1 e orqaniza I0n answere es on orm 
' 

a , ine ee orm 
' 

a . ine 990 P rt X I' 12 
(a) Description of security or category (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: 

(including name of security) Cost or end-of-year market value 

(1) Financial derivatives 0 
(2) Closely held equity interests . 0 
(3) Other Rancho Santa Fe Foundation 621,985 F ------------------------------------------------
--- (A) ----------------------------------------------------
__ BJ ----------------------------------------------------
--- (C) ------------------- ------------------------------
--- (D) ________________________ ---------------

- -- - --------------------------------
--- - - - - -----------------------------

- (G) ----------------------- ---------- ------------------
(Hl 

Total. (Column (b) must eaual Form 990, Part X col. (B) line 12.). ► 621,985 
l:.F.fiiillmlll Investments-Program Related. 

C omp e e I t e organiza I0n answere I t ·t h f d "Y " es on F orm 
' 

a , ine C. ee 990 P rt IV I' 11 S F orm 
' 

a , ine 990 P rt X I' 13 

(a) Description of investment (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: 
Cost or end-of-year market value 

(1) 

{2) 

{3) 
(4) 

(5) 
(6) 

(7) 

18} 
(9) 

Total. (Column (b) must eaual Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 13.). ► 0 
■ ::.F.T.iil!II:- Other Assets. 

C I t ·t th omp e e 1 f e organIza I0n answere d"Y " es on F orm 
' 

a , ine ee 990 P rt IV I 11 d S F orm 
' 

a , ine 990 P rt X r 15 
(a) Description (b) Book value 

(1) 

(21 

(3) 
(4) 
(5) 

(6) 
m 
(8) 
(9) 

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Par1 X, col. (B) line 15.). ii> . other Liabilities . 
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X, 
line 25 

'I. (a) Description of liability (b) Book value 

(1) Federal income taxes 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 
(6) 

(7) 
(8) 
(9) 

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 25) . Iii> 

2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XIII, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that reports the 

organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FASB ASC 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIII . 

0 

0 

0 

Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 



Schedule D (Form 990) 2o19 CASA DE AMISTAD CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 26-0016331 Pae 4 
Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return. 
Complete if the orqanization answered "Yes" on Form 990 Part IV, line 12a. 

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements . 
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12: 

a Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments . 
b Donated services and use of facilities 

c Recoveries of prior year grants . 
d Other (Describe in Part XIII.) . 

e Add lines 2a through 2d . 
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 . 
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1 

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b. 
b Other (Describe in Part XIII.) . 

1 

2a 
2b 
2c 
2d 

2e 

3 

4a 
4b 

0 

0 

c Add lines 4a and 4b . 1--4-'c--+-------'--0 
5 Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part/, line 12.). 5 0 

111::,,1 .... 1111111 Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return. 
Compete if the orqanizatIon answered "Yes" on Form 

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements . 
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25: 

a Donated services and use of facilities 
b Prior year adjustments . 

c Other losses . 
d Other (Describe in Part XIII.) . 
e Add lines 2a through 2d . 

3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 . 

4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1: 
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b . 

b Other (Describe in Part XIII.) . 

c Add lines 4a and 4b . 

9 90, Part V, 

5 Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 18.) . 

1111~1.illt:-.i111111 Suoolemental Information. 

ine 12a. 
1 

2a 
2b 
2c 
2d 

2e 

3 

4a 
4b 

4c 
5 

Provide the descriptions required for Part II, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part Ill, lines 1 a and 4; Part IV, lines 1 band 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line 

2; Part XI, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information. 

Part X Line 2 THE ORGANIZATION FOLLOWS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE ---------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------------------------ ------------------

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA RELATED TO THE RECOGNITION OF UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS. THE ----------- --------------------------- ------------------------------- -------------------------- -------------------------------

ORGANIZATION RECOGNIZES ACCRUED INTEREST AND PENALTIES ASSOCIATED WITH UNCERTAIN TAX 

0 

0 

0 

0 

----------------------------------- --------------------- ------- ---------------------------------------------------------- ----------------

_POSITIONS AS_PART OF THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES, WHEN APPLICABLE._MANAGEMENT HAS ____________________________ _ 

_ DETERMINED_THAT THE_ORGANIZATION_HAS NO UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS_AT JUNE30,_2020 AND 2019 __ _ _______________ _ 

AND THEREFORE NO AMOUNTS HAVE BEEN RECORDED. -------------------- ------ ---------------------------- ----------------------- --------------------------

Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 



SCHEDULE G 
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) 

Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service 

Supplemental Information Regarding Fundraising or Gaming Activities 
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 17, 18, or 19, or if the 

organization entered more than $15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line Sa. 
► Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. 

► Go to wwi,v.irs. ov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. 

0MB No. 1545-0047 

Name of the organization Employer identification number 

CASA DE AMISTAD, CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 26-0016331 

Fund raising Activities. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 17. 
Form 990-EZ filers are not required to complete this part. 

Indicate whether the organization raised funds through a~ of the following activities. Check all that apply. 
a D Mail solicitations e LJ Solicitation of non-government grants 

b D Internet and email solicitations f D Solicitation of government grants 

c D Phone solicitations g D Special fundraising events 

d D In-person solicitations 

2a Did the organization have a written or oral agreement with any individual (including officers, directors, trustees, 
key employees listed in Form 990, Part VII) or entity in connection with professional fundraising services? D Yes D No 

b If "Yes," list the 10 highest paid individuals or entities (fundraisers) pursuant to agreements under which the fundraiser is to be 
compensated at least $5,000 by the organization. 

(iii) Did fund raiser have (v) Amount paid to 
(vi) Amount paid to (i) Name and address of individual 

(ii) Activity custody or control of 
(iv) Gross receipts (or retained by) 

(or retained by) or entity (fundraiser) from activity fundraiser listed in 
contributions? 

col. (i) organization 

Yes No 
1 

0 0 
2 

0 0 
3 

0 0 
4 

0 0 
5 

0 0 
6 

0 0 
7 

0 0 
8 

0 0 
9 

0 0 
10 

0 0 

Total. ► 0 0 
3 List all states in which the organization is registered or licensed to solicit contributions or has been notified it is exempt from 

registration or licensing. 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or990-EZ. 
HTA 

Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 



Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 CASA OE AMISTAD, CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 26-0016331 Page 2 

■@11■ Fundraising Events. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 18, or reported 

more than $15,000 of fundraising event contributions and gross income on Form 990-EZ, lines 1 and 6b. List 

. h h $5 000 events wit qross receI Jts qreater t an 
' 

(a) Event #1 (b) Event #2 (c) Other events (d) Total events 
wing Seeds of Succe NONE (add col. (a) through 

( event 1ype) (event type) (total number) 
col. (c)) 

(l) 
::, 
C 
(l) 1 Gross receipts . 68,917 0 68,917 > 
Q) 

Cl'.'. 
2 Less: Contributions 43,252 0 43,252 

3 Gross income (line 1 minus 
line 2). 25,665 0 25,665 

4 Cash prizes . 0 0 

5 Noncash prizes 0 0 

en 
(l) 

6 RenUfacility costs . 2,209 0 2,209 en 
C 
ID 
a. 
X 7 Food and beverages . 0 0 w 
0 
Q) 

8 Entertainment . 1,800 0 1,800 L. 

15 

9 Other direct expenses . 4,343 0 4,343 

10 Direct expense summary. Add lines 4 through 9 in column (d) . ► ( 8,352) 

11 Net income summarv. Subtract line 10 from line 3, column (d) . ► 17,313 -~ .. 1,illilllll! Gaming. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 19, or reported more 

' ' 
than $15 000 on Form 990-EZ line 6a 

ID 
(a) Bingo 

(b) Pull tabs~nstant 
(c) Other gaming 

(d) Total gaming (add 
::J bingo/progressive bingo col. (a) through col. (c)) C 
Q) 
> 
(l) 

0::: 1 Gross revenue. 0 

C/J 2 Cash prizes . 0 (l) 
en 
C 
(l) 
a. 3 Noncash prizes 0 X 
w 
13 4 Rent/facility costs . 0 (l) 
L. 

0 
5 Other direct expenses . 0 

D Yes D Yes % Oves 
.·. '> , .. 

□ No □ No □ No 
. 

6 Volunteer labor . . 

7 Direct expense summary. Add lines 2 through 5 in column (d). ► ( 0) 

8 Net oamino income summarv. Subtract line 7 from line 1, column (d). ► 0 

9 Enter the state(s) in which the organization conducts gaming activities: 

a Is the organization licensed to conduct gaming activities in each of these states? . 

b If "No," explain: 

·--- - ---- ----------- -- - --

0Yes D No 

10a Were any of the organization's gaming licenses revoked, suspended, or terminated during the tax year?. D Yes D No 
b If "Yes," explain: ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ . 

Schedule G (Form 990 or 990·EZ) 2019 



Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 CASA DE AMISTAD, CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 

11 Does the organization conduct gaming activities with nonmembers?. . . 

12 Is the organization a grantor, beneficiary or trustee of a trust, or a member of a partnership or other entity 

formed to administer charitable gaming? . . . . . . . . 

13 Indicate the percentage of gaming activity conducted in: 

a The organization's facility . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

b An outside facility . . . . . . . . . 

14 Enter the name and address of the person who prepares the organization's gaming/special events books and 

records: 

Name ► 

Address I> 

15a Does the organization have a contract with a third party from whom the organization receives gaming 

revenue?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

b If "Yes," enter the amount of gaming revenue received by the organization ► $ O and the 

amount of gaming revenue retained by the third party ► $ O 

c If "Yes," enter name and address of the third party: 

Name ► 

Address ► 

16 Gaming manager information: 

Name ► 

Gaming manager compensation ► $ 0 

Description of services provided 

D Director/officer D Employee D Independent contractor 

17 Mandatory distributions: 

a Is the organization required under state law to make charitable distributions from the gaming proceeds to 

retain the state gaming license? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

b Enter the amount of distributions required under state law to be distributed to other exempt organizations or 

s ent in the or anization's own exem t activities durin the tax ear ► $ 

26-0016331 Page 3 

D Yes D No 

D Yes D No 

% 

% 

D Yes D No 

Dves D No 

0 

Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part I, line 2b, columns (iii) and (v); and 
Part Ill, lines 9, 9b, 1 Ob, 15b, 15c, 16, and 17b, as applicable. Also provide any additional information. 
See instructions. 

Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 



SCHEDULE I 
(Form 990} 

Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service 

Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations, 
Governments, and Individuals in the United States 
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 21 or 22. 

► Attach to Form 990. 

► Go to www.irs.r:,ov/Form990 for the latest information. 

0MB No.1545-0047 

~®19 

Name of the organization Employer identification number 

CASA DE AMISTAD, CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 26-0016331 

General Information on Grants and Assistance 
Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees' eligibility for the grants or assistance, and 

the selection criteria used to award the grants or assistance? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ~ Yes D No 
2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedur_es f_ci_r monitorin_g__Q,e us~ of _g_rant funds in the United States. 

■iftjj■ Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Organizations and Domestic Governments. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 
990, Part IV, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part II can be duplicated if additional space is needed. 

1 (a) Name and address of organization 
or government 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(7) 

(10) 

(11) 

{12) 

(b) EIN ( c) I RC section 
(if applicable) 

( d) Amount of cash 
grant 

(e) Amount of non
cash assistance 

(f) Method of valuation 
(book, FMV, appraisal, 

other) 

(g) Description of 
noncash assistance 

2 
3 

Enter total number of section 501 (c)(3) and government organizations listed in the line 1 table. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ► 
Enter total number of other or_aanizations listed in the line 1 table . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ► 

(h) Purpose of grant 
or assistance 

0 

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. 
HTA 

Schedule t (Form 990) (2019) 



CASA DE AMISTAD, CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 
Schedule I (Form 990) (2019) 

26-0016331 

Paoe 2 
Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Individuals. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 22. 
Part Ill can be duplicated if addiU9naLspace is needed. 

{a) Type of grant or assistance {b) Number of {c) Amount of {d) Amount of (e) Method of valuation (book, (f) Description of noncash assistance 
recipients cash grant noncash assistance FMV, appraisal, other) 

Scholarships 
1 24 86,721 FMV 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

111::.P.Tiii!lllllll Supplemental Information. Provide the information required in Part I, line 2; Part Ill, column (b); and any other additional information. 

_ P9__r_!_I_ Line 2 THE ORGANIZATION HAS A SPECIFIC COMMITTEE FOR SCHOLARSHIPS THAT REVIEWS THE_PROCESSES,_REVIEWS THE STUDENT APPLICA"!"!O~! ___________ _ 

AND DETERMINES THE AMOUNT OF MONEY TO BE AWARDED EACH YEAR._ EACH STUDENT_MUST COMPLETE THE _FOLLOWING TO APPLY FOR A SCHOLARSHIP:_ 1 L_ ___ _ 

_FILL OUT APPLICATION,_2) PROVIDE_2_LETTERS_OF_RECOMMENDATION FROM NON-RELATED_INDIVIDUALS WHO CAN SPEAK TO THEIR CHARACTER,_3)_PROVIDE _______ _ 

_ ESSfWS _THAT INCLUDE: PERSONAL ACCOMPLISHMENTS - WHY ARE_THEY A LEADER?, CAREER ASPIRATIONS, REFLECTION ON THEIR TIME AT CASA DE AMISTAD _____ _ 

AND HOW IT HAS_DEVELOPED THEIR CHARACTER, AND COMMUNITY_INVOLVEMENT. SCHOLARSHIPS ARE AWARDED BASED ON THE FOLLOWING_CRITERIA:_ 1)__ _______ _ 

ACADEMIC_REQUIREMENT - 2.5_GPA,_2) PARTICIPATION_IN CASA FOR AT LEAST 2 YEARS, 3} DEMONSTRATED FINANCIAL NEED - FAFSA, 4t COMMUNITY __________________ _ 

_ INVOLVEMENT ESSAY. ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ _ 

Schedule I (Form 990) (2019) 



SCHEDULE 0 
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) 

Departmenl of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service 

Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ 
Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 

Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information. 
1:1> Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ. 

► Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. 

0MB No. 1545-0047 

Name of the organization Employer identification number 

CASA DE AMISTAD, CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 26-0016331 

_Form_990, Part Ill, Line 4d: _Program Service Expenses: 96,255,_Grants and allocations: 0, ---------------------------------------------

_Revenue: O _ COVID-19 Relief to families funding by various_fundin_g sources. ___________________________________________________________ _ 

_ Form_990, Part VI, Section B,_Line_ 11 B: THE CHAIR OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE,_BOARD_TREASURER _________________________ _ 

AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR RECEIVED THE FORM 990 FOR REVIEW THE 990 WILL BE APPROVED BY THE BOARD --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------· 

OF DIRECTORS WITH THE TREASURER PROVIDING WRITTEN APPROVAL PRIOR TO FILIING. -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------~· 

_Form_990,_part VI, Section B,_Line_ 12C: THE_CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY IS DISTRIBUTED TO THE __________________________ _ 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS ONCE A YEAR. EACH BOARD MEMBER WILL REVIEW AND SIGN THE CONFLICT OF -----------------------------------------------------------~--------------------------------------------------------------------------------· 

INTEREST POLICY -------- ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------

_Form_ 990, Part VI, Section_ B,_Line_ 15A: A SUBCOMMITTEE_FO THE_ CASA BOARD_ OF _DIRECTORS, THE ---------------------------· 

_PERSONNEL COMMITTEE, ANNUALLY_REVIEWS THE PERFORMANCE AND_COMPENSATION OF THE EXECUTIVE ____________ _ 

_ DIRECTOR AND MAKES A REPORT FOT THE _FULL BOARD OF_DIRECTORS. ______________________________________________________ _ 

_ Form 990,_Part VI, Section_C,_Line 18: AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST. _________________________________________________________ . ________ _ 

_ Form _990,_ Part VI, Section C,_ Line 19:_FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PROVIDED TO THE PUBLIC IF _____________________________ _ 

REQUESTED. ----------------

_Form_990, Part XII, Line 9:_DONATED RENT IS AN EXCLUDABLE EXPENSE PER _IRS REGULATIONS. ____________________________ _ 

_ Form_9~0, Part Ill, Line 2:_ During the year, COVID-19 impacted the entire world. As a result,--------------------------------------------

_we obtained fundin.9. to to provide_relief to families in the commun~ty, This funding_was ___________________________________________ --------· 

_receivt:id by various sources and all_received funds will_be spent for this relief effort.-------------·---------------------------------------

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. 
HTA 

Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZJ (2019) 



INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 
P. O. BOX 2508 
CINCINNATI, OH 45201 

Date: OCT 2 7 2006 

CASA DE AMISTAD CENTRO DE ENSANANZA 
120 STEVENS AVE 
SOLANA BEACH, CA 92075 0000 

Dear Applicant: 

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 

Employer Identification Number: 
26-0016331 

DLN: 
17053259778006 

Contact Person: 
JACOB A MCDONALD 

Contact Telephone Number: 
(877) 829-5500 

Public Charity Status: 
170 (b) (1) (A) (vi) 

ID# 31649 

Our letter dated May 2002, stated you would be exempt from Federal 
income tax under section 50l(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code, and you would 
be treated as a public charity, rather than as a private foundation, during 
an advance ruling period. 

Based on the information you submitted, you are classified as a public charity 
under the Code section listed in the heading of this letter. Since your 
exempt status was not under consideration, you continue to be classified as 
an organization exempt from Federal income tax under section 50l(c) (3) of the 
Code. 

Publication 557, Tax-Exempt Status for Your Organization, provides detailed 
information about your rights and responsibilities as an exempt organization. 
You may request a copy by calling the toll-free number for forms, 
(800) 829-3676. Information is also available on our Internet Web Site at 
www.irs.gov. 

If you have general questions about exempt organizations, please call our 
toll-free number shown in the heading. 

Please keep this letter in your permanent records. 

Sincerely yours, 

~o.~ 
Lois G. Lel.er 

1 

Director, Exempt Organizations 
Rulings and Agreements 

Letter 1050 (DO/CG) 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
FRANCHIS'E TAX BOARD 
PC) BOX 1286 
RANCHO CORDOVA CA 95741-1286 

June 12, 2002 

In reply refer to 
755:G :RWN 

CASA DE AMISTAD CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 
120 STEVENS AVE 
SOLANA BEACH CA 92075-2039 

Purpose 
Code Section 
Form of Organization 
Accounting Period Ending: 
Organization Number 

CHARITABLE 
23701d 
Corporation 
December 31 
2356814 

You are exempt from state franchise or income tax under the section of 
the Revenue and Taxation Code indicated above. 

This decision is based on information you submitted and assumes that 
your present operations continue unchanged or conform to those proposed 
in your application. Any change in operation, character, or purpose of 
the organization must be reported immediately to this office so that we 
may determine the effect on your exempt status. Any change of name or 
address must also be reported, 

In the event of a change in relevant statutory, administrative, judicial 
case law, a change in federal interpretation of federal law in cases 
where our opinion is based upon such an interpretation, or a change in 
the material facts or circumstances relating to your application upon 
which this opinion is based, this opinion may no longer be applicable. 
It is your responsibility to be aware of these changes should they occur. 
This paragraph constitutes written advice, other than a chief counsel 
ruling, within the meaning of Revenue and Taxation Code Section 
21012Ca)(2). 

You may be required to file Form 199 (Exempt Organization Annual 
Information Return) on or before the 15th day of the 5th month (4 1/2 
months) after the close of your accounting period. Please see annual 
instructions with forms for requirements. 

You are not required to file state franchise or income tax returns 
unless you have income subject to the unrelated business income tax 



• 

June 12, 2002 
CASA DE AMISTAD, CENTRO DE ENSENANZA 
ENTITY ID: 2356814 
Page 2 

under Section 23731 of the Code. In this event, you are required to 
file Form 109 (Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return) by the 
15th day of the 5th month (4 1/2 months) after the close of your annual 
accounting period. 

Please note that an exemption from federal income or other taxes and 
other state taxes requires separate applications. 

A c9.py of this letter has been sent to the Registry of Charitable Trusts. 

R NORTON 
EXEMPT ORGANIZATIONS 
BUSINESS ENTITIES SECTION 
TELEPHONE (916) 845-4178 

EO 
CC :K. MICHAEL GARRETT, ATORNEY AT LAW 

COPY 



Form Ws9 Request for Taxpayer Give Form to the 
(Rev. October 2018) Identification Number and Certification requester. Do not 
Department of the Treasury send to the IRS. 
Internal Revenue Service ► Go to www.irs.gov/FormW9 for instructions and the latest information. 

1 Name (as shown on your income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank. 

Casa de Amistad, Centro de Ensenanza 
2 Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above 

<.-i 
Q) 3 Check appropriate box for federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only one of the 4 Exemptions (codes apply only to 
Cl following seven boxes. certain entities, not individuals; see ro 
Q. instructions on page 3): 
C: □ Individual/sole proprietor or D C Corporation D S Corporation D Partnership D Trust/estate 0 

• 1/) single-member LLC Exempt payee code {if any) Q) C: 
0. 0 

□ ~ti Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=Partnership) ► 
... ::I Note: Check the appropriate box in the line above for the tax classification of the single-member owner. Do not check Exemption from FATCA reporting 0 ... 
~ "!ii LLC if the LLC is classified as a single-member LLC that is disregarded from the owner unless the owner of the LLC is code (If any) ·- C: another LLC that is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Otherwise, a single-member U.C that ---ll. 0 is disregarded from the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax classification of its owner. !E 

0 [Z] Other (see instructions) ► Nonprofit oraanization exempt under IRS desianation 501 c3 (Applies to accounts mainrained outside the U.S.) 
Q) 
0. 5 Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) See instructions. Requester's name and address (optional) en 
Q) 

120 Stevens Avenue Q) 
CJ) 

6 City, state, and ZIP code 

Solana Beach, CA 92075 
7 List account number(s) here (optional) 

ma Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) 
I Social security number I Enter you~ TIN in_ the app_ro~ri'.3-te box. :11~ TIN provided must_ match t~e name given on line 1 to avoid 

backup withholding. For mdIvIduals, this Is generally your social secunty number (SSN). However, for a 
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the instructions for Part I, later. For other 
entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a 
TIN, later. 

ITO -OJ -I I I I I 
or 

Note: If the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1. Also see What Name and 
Number To Give the Requester for guidelines on whose number to enter. 

! Employer identification number 

26-0016331 

Certification 
Under penalties of perjury, I certify that: 

1. The n.umber shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and 
2. I am riot subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue 

Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am 
no longer subject to backup withholding; and 

3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and 

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form ~f any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct. 

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because 
you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid, 
acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments 
other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions for Part II, later. 

Sign 
Here 

Signature of 
U.S. person ► 

General Instructions 
Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise 
noted. 

Future developments. For the latest information about developments 
related to Form W-9 and its instructions, such as legislation enacted 
after they were published, go to www.irs.gov/FormW9. 

Purpose of Form 
An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an 
information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer 
identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number 
(SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN), adoption 
taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number 
(EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other 
amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information 
returns include, but are not limited to, the following. 

• Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid) 

Cat. No.10231X 

Date ► 

• Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual 
funds) 

• Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross 
proceeds) 

• Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other 
transactions by brokers) 

• Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions) 

• Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions) 

• Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest), 
1098-T (tuition) 

• Form 1099-C (canceled debt) 

• Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property) 

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident 
alien), to provide your correct TIN. 

If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might 
be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding, 
later. 

Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018) 





uocu:::;1gn t:nve1ope 1u: l 4 l ljLlj\::lb-41Ar-4\::I r tl-A\::ljA-rL;bArol tlU\::lr4 

City of Solana Beach 
Community Grant Program 

Request for Financial Assistance 
FY 2021-22 APPLICATION 

All Applications MUST BE RECEIVED by 5:00 p.m. Tuesday, May 25, 2021. 
Please Print Clearly or Type 

All requests will be determined by the following criteria: 

Name of Organization: Community Resource Center 
Mailing Address:_6_5_0_2_n_d _S_tr_e_et ___________________ _ 
City Encinitas State _c_A __ Zip 92024 
Contact Person: John Van Cleef ---------------------------
Daytime Phone:_7_6o_-_23_o_-6_3_09 ______________________ _ 
Evening Phone: __________________________ _ 
Email address: johnvancleef@crcncc.org 

1. W-9 must be attached 
Summary of organization's budget must be attached 
Proposed program budget must be attached 
Financial and Tax Statements (see Application Guidelines) must be attached 

2. A copy of the California Franchise Tax Board Entity Status Letter must be attached, 
showing exemption under Section 23701d or Internal Revenue Code section 
501(c)(3) 

3. Has your organization received financial assistance from the City before? 
Yes [Z] No □ 
If yes, what activities and which fiscal year? FY21 - Food & Nutrition Center; FY 17, 18, 19, 
and 20 - Holiday Baskets program 

4. Amount requested for FY 2021-22 $_5_,oo_o ____________ _ 

5. Proposed Total Program Costs: $_2_53_,6_7_5 _______________ _ 

(Includes all estimated costs to conduct proposed activity/program.) 

6. Title of Proposed Program/Service: _C_R_C_F_o_od_&_N_ut_rit_io_n_C_e_nt_er ________ _ 

7. Grant funds must be used for services or materials directly associated to proposed 
activity. Please describe how grant funds will be used: 

Grant f1 mds will be 11sed far Eaad & N11tritian Center personnel casts, warebrn ,sing of faad, 
warehouse equipment, food transport and distribution, food purchase, personal protective 
equipment, and sanitation supplies in order to provide 30 Solana Beach residents with 
nutnt1ous food - fresh produce, meat, dairy - and personal hygiene items including diapers at 
·1veel<ly food distributions. 



uocu::;1gn t:nve1ope 1u: 141 t:lLt:l!:Jti-4 lAt--4!:J /1:l-A!:J::lA-t-GtiAt-ol l:lU!:Jt-4 

(Attach extra sheet, if necessary.) 

8. Estimated number of S.B. residents to be served by proposed program:_3_o ___ _ 

9. Program Dates/Location: 
Weekly, year-round at 650 2nd Street, Encinitas, CA 92024 

10. Anticipated Program Objectives or Accomplishments: 

Ibe Eood & Nutrition Center's program objective is to distrib11te □ 11tritirn1s food to 1,500 food 
insecure residents of north county San Diego including 30 who are Solana Beach residents. 

11. How will the organization acknowledge the City's financial contribution to the 
community/ beneficiaries of the proposed activity? 

For a grant award of $5,000 or more CRC offers recognition in CRC social media (2,000 
followers), webpage, monthly email newsletter (circulation 6,500), and cooperation in 
crafting a press release. For grants below $5,000, CRC provides recognition in its 
Annual Report. 

12. Will there be any matching funds or other grants that would be applied to this 
program or service? If awarded this grant, will that enable other funding sources? 

CRC has fL1nded much of this program though its annual campaign and private 
grants, but still needs additional support to fully fund the program 

13. Will volunteers be used for the proposed program or service and, if so, will they 
reduce expenses? 

Yes, voh inteers are 1.1sed for the program and will redLIce expenses. COVID-19 
restrictions severely limited CRC's ability to accept volunteer services CRC is 
rebuilding its volunteer workforce into Food & Nutrition Center operations. 

14. If the proposed program or service is only awarded partial funding, will it still move 
forward? Will the program or service be scaled back and/or is there a threshold at 
which it will not move forward? 

CRC's Food & NL1trition Center program '"'ill take place even if Solana Beach is only 
able to provide partial funding. The program would not be scaled back or canceled 



Uocu::;1gn l::nvelope IU: 1411::1~I:l!:lti-41 At--4!:l /l:l-A!:l::lA-t-GtiAt-511:lU!:lt-4 

Acknowledgment of Responsibility: 
Authorized Signature assumes all responsibility for developing and implementing 
proposed activities or events in this application/ including public acknowledgment of the 
City's financial contribution. Authorized signature will comply with all accounting and 
budget procedures outlined by the City. Authorized signature and accompanying group 
will hold harmless the City of Solana Beach from all losses/ claims/ accidents and 
problems associated/ directly or indirectly with the development and implementation of 
proposed activities or events. 

May 24, 2021 

Authorized Signature of Organization Date 

ALL INFORMATION REQUESTED ON THIS APPLICATION MUST BE COMPLETED AS A CONDITION FOR BEING 
CONSIDERED FOR PUBLIC FUNDS BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF SOLANA BEACH. 



Community Resource Center 
Budget FY 2020/2021 

Income 
Fundraising Events $170,130 
Government Grants/Contracts $2,747,437 
Other Revenue $0 
Private Grants & Foundations $270,000 
Proqram Service Revenue $8,200 
Public Support/Donations $1,062,500 
Resale Store Sales $1,001,506 

Total Income $5,259,773 

Expenses 
Automobile Expense $27,540 
Employees, Board & Volunteers $33,412 
Fundraisinq Expenses $60,225 
Occupancy Expense $600,983 
Operatinq Expense $344,288 
Personnel Expenses $2,936,277 
Professional Fees $43,910 
Cient Assistance Expense $1,453,953 
Depreciation Expense $118,592 

Total Expenses $5,619,179 

Net Income (Deficit) -$359,405 



CRC FY 21-22 
Food & Nutrition Center Program Budget 

Revenue Amount 
Government qrants/contracts 
Private grants and Private donations (campaign appeals; $248,675 
major gifts) planned, pending, or to be identified 

Solana Beach Community Grant (if awarded) $5,000 

Total $253,675 

Expenses 
Salaries (FNC Manaqer 1 FTE; Driver 1 FTE) $113,547 
Payroll Taxes, Benefits (33%) $37,471 
Occupancy $43,700 
Travel $5,816 
Supplies $21,500 
Communications & Technoloqy $8,580 
Subtotal Program Expenses $230,614 
Indirect Costs (10%) $23,061 
Total $253,675 



COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2020 and 2019 

YSR CPA GROUP, P.C. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

AUDIT + TAX + ADVISORY 



COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 and 2019 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Statements of Financial Position as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 

Statements of Activities for the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

Statements of Functional Expenses for the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

Notes to Financial Statements 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards 

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on 
Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Page No. 

3 

4-5 

6-7 

8 

9 - 21 

22 

24 

26 

27 

28 



YSR CPA GROUP, P.C. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

AUDIT + TAX + ADVISORY 

WWWYSRCPAS.COM 

Member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 

Member of California Society of Certified Public Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of 
Community Resource Center 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Community Resource Center (a California nonprofit 
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related 
statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our 
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of Community Resource Center as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows 
for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Los Angeles I 2529 Foothill Blvd, Ste 212, La Crescenta, CA 91214 San Diego I 336 Encinitas Blvd, Ste 120, Encinitas, CA 92024 

Bl B·330·9772 f: Bl 8·330·9079 760·634·1120 f: 760·452·7B60 



Emphasis of a Matter- Change in Accounting Principle 

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Organization adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board's (FASB) 
accounting standards update (ASU) 2016-01, Financial Instruments - Overall (Subtopic 825-10) Recognition and 
Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, and subsequently issued related ASU 2018-03, Technical 
Corrections and Improvements to Financial Instruments-Overall (Subtopic 825-10) and ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the 
Scope of the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, as described in Note 1. The 
changes required by the update have been applied to all periods presented. Our opinion is not modified with respect 
to that matter. 

Other Matters 

Other Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations 
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information 
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling 
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or 
to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 23, 2020, on 
our consideration of Community Resource Center's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Resource 
Center's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Community Resource Center's internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance. 

Encinitas, California 
December 23, 2020 



COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER 
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
June 30, 2020 and 2019 

6/30/20 6/30/19 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash $ 641,250 $ 273,418 
Investments 893 
Accounts receivable 320 3,000 
Grants and contributions receivable, net 571,539 308,539 
Inventory 53,815 67,781 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 78,387 57,685 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,346,204 710,423 

NON CURRENT ASSETS 
Contributions receivable, net 14,717 
Deposits 34,427 34,427 
Property and equipment, net 1,091,839 1,181,845 
Donated property 25,600 25,600 

1,151,866 1,256,589 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,498,070 $ 1,967,012 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $ 45,497 $ 52,970 
Accrued expenses 229,891 181,296 
Line of credit 100,000 
Current portion of notes payable 4,995 10,619 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 280,383 344,885 

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 
Other liabilities 3,966 4,106 
Notes payable, net of current portion 171,751 216,747 

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 175,717 220,853 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 456,100 565,738 

COMMITMENTS & CONTINGENCIES 

NET ASSETS 
Without donor restrictions 1,736,954 1,341,394 
With donor restrictions 305,016 59,880 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 2,041,970 1,401,274 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 2,498,070 $ 1,967,012 

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements. 
3 



COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Without Donor With Donor 
Restrictions Restrictions 

SUPPORT AND REVENUE 
Contributions $ 1,263,013 $ 563,361 $ 
Grants 2,338,255 
Resale shop sales, net $946,751 of cost of sales 

of donated goods 916,371 
Special events, net direct expenses of $77,535 286,580 
In kind contributions 674,217 
Program services 79,193 
Loss on disposal of fixed assets (3,278) 
Investment return (570) 
Net assets released from restrictions, 

satisfaction of program restrictions 318,225 (318,225) 

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE 5,872,006 245,136 

EXPENSES 

Program services 
Integrative services 1,997,469 
Domestic violence 1,551,472 
Resale store 822,654 

Supporting services 
Management and general 624,825 
Fund raising 480,026 

TOTAL EXPENSES 5,476,446 

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS 395,560 245,136 

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,341,394 59,880 

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $ 1,736,954 $ 305,016 $ 

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements. 
4 

Total 

1,826,374 
2,338,255 

916,371 
286,580 
674,217 

79,193 
(3,278) 

(570) 

6,117,142 

1,997,469 
1,551,472 

822,654 

624,825 
480,026 

5,476,446 

640,696 

1,401,274 

2,041,970 



COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Without Donor With Donor 
Restrictions Restrictions 

SUPPORT AND REVENUE 
Contributions $ 593,547 $ 286,620 $ 
Grants 1,526,759 
Resale shop sales, net $1,171,759 of cost of sales 

of donated goods 1,176,084 
Special events, net direct expenses of $19,650 70,798 
In kind contributions 584,844 
Program services 46,241 
Investment loss (2,919) 
Other income 3 
Net assets released from restrictions, 

satisfaction of program restrictions 307,766 (307,766) 

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE 4,303,123 (21,146) 

EXPENSES 

Program services 
Integrative services 1,417,026 
Domestic violence 1,093,537 
Resale store 927,450 

Supporting services 
Management and general 765,411 
Fund raising 426,590 

TOTAL EXPENSES 4,630,014 

DECREASE IN NET ASSETS (326,891) (21,146) 

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,668,285 81,026 

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $ 1,341,394 $ 59,880 $ 

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements. 
5 

Total 

880,167 
1,526,759 

1,176,084 
70,798 

584,844 
46,241 
(2,919) 

3 

4,281,977 

1,417,026 
1,093,537 

927,450 

765,411 
426,590 

4,630,014 

(348,037) 

1,749,311 

1,401,274 



COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER 
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Integrative 
Services 

Salaries and wages $ 621,809 
Employee benefits 122,511 
Payroll taxes 41,231 
Professional fees 27,605 
Advertising 
Office expenses 43,911 
Information technology 20,358 
Occupancy 91,728 
Travel 1,834 
Interest expense 
Depreciation 35,239 
Insurance 2,424 
Postage and shipping 197 
Direct program expense 968,589 
Fundraising expense 157 
Auto expense 8,630 
Staff and board development 4,211 
Miscellaneous 7,035 

$ 1,997,46~ 

Program Services Sueeorting Services 
Domestic 

Violence and 
Emergency Total Program Management 

Shelter Resale Stores Services and general 

$ 741,793 $ 312,633 $ 1,676,235 $ 339,162 $ 
111,855 55,922 290,288 32,550 

60,739 23,405 125,375 26,732 
7,365 930 35,900 98,158 

164 2,142 2,306 769 
141,830 37,427 223,168 35,126 
29,209 2,760 52,327 7,651 
98,891 355,273 545,892 18,098 

8,019 9,853 2,844 
10 10 15,065 

46,333 16,266 97,838 6,983 
2,790 2,895 8,109 16,310 

288 11 496 818 
260,419 1,229,008 

157 
3,071 6,315 18,016 11,023 
2,092 6,303 8,711 

36,604 6,675 50,314 4,825 

$ _ 1,551,47? $ 822,654 $ _4,371,595 $ 6?4,1325 $ 

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements. 
6 

Fund raising 

284,274 $ 
29,269 
21,612 
12,827 
2,049 

35,441 
49,996 
10,568 

659 

3,285 
1,830 
1,730 

21,483 

4,766 
237 

480,026 $ 

Total 
Supporting 
Services Total 

623,436 $ 2,299,671 
61,819 352,107 
48,344 173,719 

110,985 146,885 
2,818 5,124 

70,567 293,735 
57,647 109,974 
28,666 574,558 

3,503 13,356 
15,065 15,075 
10,268 108,106 
18,140 26,249 
2,548 3,044 

1,229,008 
21,483 21,640 
11,023 29,039 
13,477 19,780 
5,062 55,376 

1._104,Mj__ $ 5,476,446 



COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER 
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Integrative 
Services 

Salaries and wages $ 376,000 
Employee benefits 57,020 
Payroll taxes 25,718 
Professional fees 28,632 
Advertising 
Office expenses 43,446 
Information technology 26,234 
Occupancy 74,328 
Travel 4,625 
Interest expense 
Depreciation 36,629 
Insurance 3,494 
Postage and shipping 796 
Direct program expense 721,007 
Fundraising expense 
Auto expense 9,734 
Bad debt and uncollectible pledges 
Staff and board development 6,244 
Miscellaneous 3~ 

$ 1,417,026 

Program Services Sueeorting Services 
Domestic 

Violence and 
Emergency Total Program Management 

Shelter Resale Stores Services and general 

$ 608,582 $ 367,769 $ 1,352,351 $ 364,044 $ 
76,070 87,626 220,716 63,594 
53,324 27,178 106,220 19,772 

6,339 14,078 49,049 124,557 
2,932 2,932 

91,282 41,011 175,739 45,358 
21,068 2,780 50,082 21,534 
54,466 341,155 469,949 20,840 

8,046 306 12,977 2,233 
15,377 

43,748 19,179 99,556 6,828 
5,491 11,097 20,082 10,615 
1,051 13 1,860 685 

109,910 830,917 173 

3,730 5,428 18,892 509 
4,034 

5,086 1,739 13,069 44,041 
5,344 5,159 13,622 21,217 

$ 1,093,537 $ 927,450 $ 3,438,Q1] $ 765,411 $ 

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements. 
7 

Fundraising 

184,844 $ 
26,444 
14,818 
74,165 

5,492 
24,525 
22,894 

6,919 
919 

1,624 

1,034 
43,580 
13,649 

768 

3,225 
1,690 

426,590 $ 

Total 
Supporting 

Services Total 

548,888 $ 1,901,239 
90,038 310,754 
34,590 140,810 

198,722 247,771 
5,492 8,424 

69,883 245,622 
44,428 94,510 
27,759 497,708 

3,152 16,129 
15,377 15,377 
8,452 108,008 

10,615 30,697 
1,719 3,579 

43,753 874,670 
13,649 13,649 

1,277 20,169 
4,034 4,034 

47,266 60,335 
22,907 36,529 

1,192,001 $ 4,630,014 



COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

6/30/20 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Change in net assets $ 640,696 $ 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash 

provided (used) by operating activities: 
Depreciation 108,107 
Loss on sale of fixed assets 3,279 
Contributed securities (99,533) 
Proceeds from sale of contributed securities 98,284 
Loss on sale of contributed securities 356 
Loss on sale of other asset 875 
Donated resale inventory 13,966 
(Increase) decrease in operating assets 

Accounts receivable 2,680 
Grants and contributions receivable,net (248,283) 
Prepaid expenses and other assets (22,717) 
Deposits 

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities 
Accounts payable (7,473) 
Accrued expenses 48,595 
Line of credit (100,000) 
Other liabilities {140} 

CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 438,692 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds on sale of other assets 1,140 
Proceeds on sale of fixed assets 3,500 
Purchase of property and equipment (24,880} 

CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (20,240) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from note payable 
Payments on note payable (50,620} 

CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES (50,620) 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 367,832 

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 273,418 

CASH AT END OF YEAR $ 641,250 $ 

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements. 
8 

6/30/19 

(348,037) 

108,008 

(98,656) 
95,737 

2,919 

(3,107) 

11,825 
134,158 

5,666 
3,814 

25,749 
42,878 

(297) 
(19,343) 

(133,800} 
(133,800) 

50,000 
(9,025) 
40,975 

(112,168) 

385,586 

273,418 



COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature of Activities 

Community Resource Center (the "Organization") was organized as a California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation 
in 1979. Its purpose is to provide families in need, who are facing hunger, homelessness and victims of domestic 
violence with safety, stability, and a path to self-sufficiency. The Organization is supported by donor contributions, 
private and government grants and net proceeds from resale stores and events. 

The following is a brief description of the Organization's programs: 

Integrative Services 

The Organization's integrative services programs served 8,296 individuals in need in 2020. 

These comprehensive services included: 
• Homelessness prevention, providing shelter access, motel vouchers, and rental assistance. 
• Access to healthy food and nutritional education programs. 
• Employment preparation and job location assistance. 
• Service referrals to collaborating agencies. 
• Counseling. 
• Holiday Baskets Program (the largest distribution of food, essentials and toys of its kind in San Diego 

County, which served 6,409 individuals in December 2019). 

With the hands-on participation of the Organization's program staff, the Organization's clients create and 
execut~ personalized self-sufficiency plans that increase their housing and financial stability, as well as their 
level of self-sufficiency. 

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Organization secured transitional or permanent housing for 32% 
of clients who participated in the Organization's emergency shelter programs. 

The Counseling program enables clients to attain mental and emotional stability, which, in combination with 
other Organization services, enables clients to more effectively manage personalized plans for self
sufficiency. 

Domestic Violence and Emergency Shelter 

The Organization's domestic violence program includes Carol's House emergency domestic violence shelter, 
a transitional housing program, and domestic violence community services. Clients receive a wide range of 
supportive services, including case management, counseling and group therapy, life skills classes, legal 
advocacy, the therapeutic children's program, and referrals to outside services. 

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Organization served 56 households and 83 children in Carol's 
House and 7 households and 13 children in the transitional housing program. CRC also served community
based clients including 126 adults and 21 children in counseling, 57 adults in case management, and 3 adults 
in legal advocacy services for a total of 154 adults and 113 children served across the domestic violence 
programs. 

As a result of program participation, 93% of adults increased their self-esteem, 79% improved their problem
solving, communication, household management, and employment skills and 89% increased or maintained 
their financial stability. In addition, 93% of children improved their self-concept and 91 % reduced symptoms 
of depression and anxiety upon completion of the program. 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 
9 



COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Financial Statement Presentation 

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The financial statements are presented in accordance 
with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958 dated August 
2016, and the provisions of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) "Audit and Accounting 
Guide for Not-for-Profit Organizations" (the "Guide"). (ASC) 958-205 was effective January 1, 2018. 

Under the provisions of the Guide, net assets and revenues, and gains and losses are classified based on the 
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, the net assets of the Organization and changes 
therein are classified as follows: 

• Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions and 
may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization. The 
Organization's board may designate assets without restrictions for specific operational purposes from 
time to time. 

• Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors, and granters. 
Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the 
Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions may be perpetual in nature, where by 
the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. 

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a 
restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without 
donor restrictions in the statements of activities. 

Measure of Operations 

The statement of activities reports all changes in net assets, including changes in net assets from operating and 
nonoperating activities. Operating activities consist of those items attributable to the Organization's ongoing services 
and interest earned. Nonoperating activities are limited to resources that generate return from other activities 
considered to be of a more unusual or nonrecurring nature. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

Fair Value Measurement 

In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Codification No. 820 (FASB ASC 820), fair value is defined 
as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid for a liability in the principal or most advantageous 
market. The Organization applies fair value measurement to assets and liabilities that are required to be recorded at 
fair value under generally accepted accounting principles. 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 
10 



COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Fair Value Measurement (continued) 

FASB ASC 820 establishes a three-tier hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of obseivable inputs 
and minimize the use of unobseivable inputs and to establish the classification of fair value measurement for 
disclosure purposes. Inputs refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset 
or liability developed based on market date obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobseivable 
inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would 
use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best information available. 

The standard describes three-tier hierarchy of inputs that may be used to measure fair value: 

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities 
in active markets. 

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active 
markets, and inputs that are obseivable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially 
the same term of the financial instrument. 

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobseivable and significant to the fair value measurement. 

A financial instrument's categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement. 

Due to the short-term nature of cash, receivables, other assets, accounts payable and accrued expenses, fair value 
approximates carrying value. 

New Accounting Pronouncements Recently Adopted 

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-01, Financial Instruments- Overall (Subtopic 825-10: Recognition 
and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, and subsequently issued related ASU 2018-03, 
Technical Corrections and Improvements to Financial Instruments-Overall (Subtopic 825-10). These standards 
amend certain aspects of accounting and disclosure requirements for financial instruments, including the requirement 
that equity investments with readily determinable fair values are to be measured at fair value with any changes in fair 
value recognized in the statement of changes in net assets. The Organization adopted this standard on July 1, 2019 
using the prospective method for equity securities without readily determinable fair values. There was no impact to 
the statement of financial position upon adoption. 

In June 2018, the FASB released ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope of the Accounting Guidance for Contributions 
Received and Contributions Made. The update provides clarifying accounting guidance for contributions received 
and contributions made about whether a transfer of assets (or the reduction, settlement, or cancellation of liabilities) 
is a contribution or an exchange transaction. The amendments in this update include (1) evaluating whether 
transactions should be accounted for as contributions (nonreciprocal transactions) within the scope of Topic 958, 
Not-for-Profit Entities, or as exchange (reciprocal) transactions subject to other guidance (within the scope of Topic 
606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers) and (2) determining whether a contribution is conditional. 

For contributions, an entity should follow the guidance in Subtopic 958-605, whereas for exchange transactions, an 
entity should follow other guidance (for example, Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers). Thus, the 
accounting may be different depending on the guidance applied. 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 
11 



COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

New Accounting Pronouncements Recently Adopted (continued) 

The Organization adopted this standard on July 1, 2019 on a modified prospective basis in 2019. As a result, there 
was no cumulative-effect adjustment to opening net assets without donor restrictions or opening net assets with donor 
restrictions as of July 1, 2019. There was no effect of adopting the new accounting principles on contributions in 
2020. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted 

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). The ASU 
introduced a comprehensive, principle-based framework for recognizing revenue, and, when effective, will supersede 
the requirements in FASB ASC 605, Revenue Recognition, and virtually all industry-specific revenue recognition 
guidance in the FASB ASC. The ASU is intended to improve GAAP by providing a framework to address revenue 
recognition issues, creating more consistency and comparability of revenue recognition practices across entities and 
industries, and improving the usefulness of information provided to financial statement users through more robust 
disclosure requirements. The ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018. 

Subsequent to the issuance of ASU 2014-09, the FASB issued a number of ASUs clarifying certain matters in ASU 
2014-09: 

ASU No. 2015-14, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) - Deferral of the Effective Date to defer the 
effective date of ASU No. 2014-09 for one year to allow entities additional time to implement systems, gather data 
and resolve implementation questions. 

ASU No. 2016-10, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) - Identifying Performance Obligations and 
Licensing provides more detailed guidance, including additional implementation guidance and examples in the 
following key areas: 1) identifying performance obligations and 2) licenses of intellectual property. The ASU becomes 
effective concurrently with ASU 2014-09. 

ASU No. 2016-12, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)- Narrow-Scope Improvements and Practical 
Expedients clarifies the following key areas: (1) assessing collectability, (2) presenting sales taxes and other similar 
taxes collected from customers, (3) noncash consideration, (4) contract modifications at transition, (5) completed 
contracts at transition, and (6) disclosing the accounting change in the period of adoption. The effective date and 
transition requirements for ASU 2016-12 are the same as the effective date and transition requirements of Topic 606. 

On June 3, 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-05, which deferred the effective dates of the Board's standards on 
revenue (ASU 2014-09 Topic 606) to give immediate relief to certain entities as a result of the widespread adverse 
economic effects and business disruptions caused by the coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) pandemic. ASU 
2020-05 permits private entities that have not yet issued their financial statements or made financial statements 
available for issuance as of June 3, 2020, to adopt ASC 606 for annual reporting periods beginning after December 
15, 2019. The Organization will account for revenue (exchange transactions) in accordance with ASU No. 2014-09, 
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) upon adoption. 

In September 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-07, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation and Disclosures 
by Not-for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets. This ASU is meant to improve generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) by increasing the transparency of contributed nonfinancial assets for not-for-profit 
(NFP) entities through enhancements to presentation and disclosure. The amendments in this Update address certain 
concerns about the lack of transparency about the measurement of contributed nonfinancial assets recognized by 
NFPs, as well as the amount of those contributions used in an NFP's programs and other activities. An NFP will be 
required to present contributed nonfinancial assets as a separate line item in the statement of activities, apart from 
contributions of cash and other financial assets. 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 
12 



COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted (continued) 

The amendments address presentation and disclosure of contributed nonfinancial assets. The term nonfinancial 
asset includes fixed assets (such as land, buildings, and equipment), use of fixed assets or utilities, materials and 
supplies, intangible assets, services, and unconditional promfses of those assets. An NFP will be required to disclose 
a disaggregation of the amount of contributed nonfinancial assets recognized within the statement of activities by 
category that depicts the type of contributed nonfinancial assets and additional information for each category of 
contributed nonfinancial assets. The amendments in this ASU are affective for annual periods beginning after June 
15, 2021 and interim periods within annual periods beginning after June 15, 2020 and should be applied on a 
retrospective basis. Early adoption is permitted. 

Accounts and Grants Receivable 

Accounts and grants receivable arise in the normal course of business. It is the policy of management to review the 
outstanding accounts receivable at period end, as well as the bad debt write-offs experienced in the past, and 
establish an allowance for doubtful accounts for uncollectible amounts. 

Bad debts are recognized on the allowance method based on historical experience and management's evaluation of 
outstanding receivables. No allowance for doubtful accounts and grants receivable was considered necessary for the 
year ended June 30, 2020 as management determined all receivables are collectable. The allowance for doubtful 
accounts and grants receivable totaled $10,426 for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

Contributions Receivable 

Contributions receivable represent unconditional promises to give and are reported at fair value by discounting the 
expected future contribution payments at the balance sheet date. Contributions extending beyond one year are 
discounted to recognize the present value of the future cash flows. In subsequent years, this discount is recorded as 
additional contribution revenue in accordance with donor-imposed restrictions, if any. In addition, contributions are 
recorded net of an allowance. The allowance for uncollectible contributions is determined by management. There 
were no contributions receivable for the year ended June 30, 2020 therefore no allowance for uncollectible 
contributions was considered necessary. The allowance for uncollectible contributions for the year ended June 30, 
2019 was $283. Changes in the fair value of contributions receivable are reported in the statement of activities as 
contribution revenue except for changes in the allowance which are reported as program expenses at each 
subsequent reporting date. 

Resale Shop Inventory 

The resale shop inventory consists of items that have been donated by individuals in the community. Because many 
of the donations are used items, the value of donations is not readily determinable until such items are sold. Sales 
on donated items are recorded at the point of sale. Valuable donated items, such as jewelry or artwork, with a readily 
determinable fair market value are recorded at their appraised value or the value based on prices of identical or 
similar assets in the marketplace. 

Property and Equipment 

The Organization capitalizes all expenditures in excess of $2,500 for property and equipment at cost, while donations 
of property and equipment are recorded at their estimated fair values. Such donations are reported as without donor 
restriction unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit 
restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are 
reported as with donor restriction. 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 
13 



COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Property and Equipment (continued) 

Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports 
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in service as instructed by the donor. 
The Organization reclassifies net assets with donor restriction to net assets without donor restriction at that time. 

Property and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful asset lives as 
follows: 

Buildings 
Leasehold improvements 
Furniture and fixtures 
Automobile 
Software 

31.5 years 
5-15 years 

3 - 7 years 
4 years 
5 years 

Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are charged to operations as incurred. Upon sale or disposition of property, 
the asset account is relieved of the cost and the accumulated depreciation account is charged with depreciation taken 
prior to the sale of any resultant gain or loss is credited or charged to earnings. 

Compensated Absences 

Vested and accumulated personal time off (PTO) is recorded as an expense and liability as benefits accrue to 
employees. The accrued PTO liability totaled $102,924 and $84,550 at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and is 
included in accrued expenses in the statement of financial position. 

Revenue Recognition 

Government grant revenue is recognized in the period in which the related work is performed in accordance with the 
terms of the grant. 

Contributions and grants received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net assets with donor 
restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor-imposed restrictions. Contributions that are 
restricted by the donor are reported as an increase in net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in 
the reporting period in which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are reported as 
an increase in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of restriction. When a restriction expires 
(that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends, or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor 
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net 
assets released from restrictions. 

Contributed Services 

Volunteer Services 

The Organization utilizes the services of volunteers throughout the year that perform a variety of tasks that assist the 
Organization with various programs. This contribution of services by the volunteers is not recognized in the financial 
statements unless the services received (a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) require specialized skills 
which are provided by individuals possessing those skills and would typically need to be purchased if not provided 
by donation. Such services do not meet the criteria for recognition as a contribution and are not reflected in the 
financial statements. 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 
14 



COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Contributed Services (continued) 

Donated Professional Services 

A law firm that employs one of the Board members provided legal services to the Organization without charge. During 
the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, the Organization recognized revenue and related expense of 
$73,499 and $63,214 for in-kind legal services. 

Donated Goods 

Revenues from in-kind contributions are recognized in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and 
are recorded at the fair value of the products or services surrendered. Fair value is determined by using comparable 
market rates at the time of the transaction. 

In-kind contributions of goods used for program services with an estimated fair value of $605,159 and $584,844 for 
the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, are included in in-kind contributions in the statement of 
activities. 

In-kind contributions of donated goods and materials with an estimated fair value of $932,785 and $1,174,866 for the 
years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, reduce resale stores revenue on the statement of activities. 

Functional Expenses 

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to more than one program or 
supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. 
The expenses that are allocated include salaries and wages, benefits, payroll taxes, insurance and depreciation, 
which are allocated on the basis of estimates of time and effort, as well as occupancy, which is allocated on a square
footage basis. 

Income Taxes 

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and Section 
23701 (d) of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. The Organization has been determined by the Internal 
Revenue Service not to be a private foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
Income generated from activities unrelated to the Organization's exempt purpose is subject to tax under IRC Section 
511. The Organization did not have any unrelated business income for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, 
and therefore, no provision for income taxes has been made. 

The Organization follows the provision of uncertain tax positions as addressed in FASB Accounting Standards 
Codification. The Organization recognizes accrued interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax positions as 
part of the income tax provision, when applicable. The Organization believes that it has taken no significant uncertain 
tax positions for the years ended June 30, 2020. Management believes the Organization is no longer subject to 
income tax examinations by applicable taxing jurisdictions for the years prior to June 30, 2016. 

Advertising 

The Organization expenses the cost of advertising as incurred. Advertising expense for the years ended June 30, 
2020 and 2019, respectively, was $5,124 and $8,424. 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 
15 



COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Going Concern Evaluation 

Management evaluates whether there are conditions or events that raise substantial doubt about the entity's ability 
to continue as a going concern for a period of one year from the date the financial statements are available to be 
issued. 

NOTE 2. AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY 

The following represents the Organization's financial assets at June 30: 

Financial assets at year-end: 

Cash 
Investments 
Accounts and grants receivable, net 
Contributions receivable, net 

Total financial assets 

Less amounts not available to be used within one year: 

Restricted by donor with purpose restrictions 
Debt obligations to be met in less than a year 

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the 
next twelve months 

$ 

$ 

6/30/20 

641,250 
893 

571,859 

1,214,002 

305,016 
13,740 

$ 

6/30/19 

273,418 

240,039 
86,217 

599,674 

59,880 
20,052 

895,246 $ 519,742 -=====-

The Organization receives contract payments from federal and non-federal agencies and private grants and 
contributions. This money is used to meet cash needs for general expenditures. The Organization manages its 
liquidity following two guiding principles: operating within a prudent range of financial soundness and stability and 
maintaining adequate liquid assets to fund near-term operating needs. The Organization has a liquidity target to 
maintain current financial assets less current liabilities at a minimum of 30 days operating expenses. The Organization 
operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover general expenditures not 
covered by donor-restricted resources. The Organization regularly monitors the availability of resources required to 
meet its operating needs and other contractual commitments. During the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, 
respectively, the level of liquidity was close to target. 

In the event of an unanticipated liquidity need, the Organization could also draw upon its available line of credit. 

NOTE 3. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Organization to significant concentrations of credit risk consist 
principally of cash. The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts that are insured by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to a limit of $250,000 per depositor. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the 
Organization exceeded federally insured limits by $449,831 and $17,926, respectively. Management has not 
experienced any losses in the past and does not believe the Organization is exposed to any significant risk. 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 
16 



COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

NOTE 4. INVESTMENTS 

Investments consist of the following at June 30: 

Cost 

Equity stock $ 890 $ 

6/30/20 

Fair Value 

893 $ 

Unrealized 
Appreciation 

3 

6/30/19 

Fair Value 

The investments in equity stocks are Level 1 assets. Interest and dividends are recorded when earned. 

NOTE 5. GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE 

Grants and contributions receivable consist of the following at June 30: 

6/30/20 6/30/19 

Contributions receivable $ - $ 86,500 
California Office of Emergency Management 226,671 157,737 
City of Encinitas 228,169 44,303 
Department of Housing and Urban Development 69,062 20,774 
other 47,637 24,651 

Total grants and contributions receivable 571,539 333,965 
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (10,426) 
Less: discount on long term pledge (283) 

$ 571,539 $ 323,256 

There were no contributions receivable for the year ended June 30, 2020. At June 30, 2019, a contribution receivable 
from a single donor in the amount of $15,000 was due in more than one year and was discounted at 1.92%. 

NOTE 6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment consist of the following at June 30: 

6/30/20 6/30/19 

Buildings $ 1,234,827 $ 1,234,827 
Leasehold improvements 403,770 395,679 
Furniture and fixtures 82,908 74,867 
Vehicles 125,175 155,588 
Computers and software 83,005 74,258 
Equipment 50,390 74,997 

Gross fixed assets 1,980,075 2,010,216 
Less accumulated depreciation (1,428,173) (1,368,308) 

551,902 641,908 
Land 539,937 539,937 

Fixed assets, net $ 1,091,839 $ 1,181,845 

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $108,107 and $108,008, respectively. 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 
17 



COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

NOTE 7. DONATED PROPERTY 

Donated property consists of land in Apache County, Arizona donated to the Organization. The property was recorded 
at fair value based on the value of the County Tax Assessor upon acquisition. The impairment of long-lived donated 
property was $13,600 as of June 30, 2020. 

NOTE 8. LINE OF CREDIT 

The Organization executed a line-of-credit with U.S. Bank (the "Bank") in the amount of $100,000, originally dated 
September 30, 2015. On October 6, 2017, the Bank increased the line of credit to $200,000. On January 28, 2019, 
the Bank extended the maturity date to December 31, 2019 and on December 31, 2019, the Bank extended the 
maturity date to December 31, 2020 with interest calculated at the bank's prime rate plus 0.75% (4.0% and 6.5% at 
June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively). All other terms and conditions remained the same, and the line-of-credit is 
collateralized by investment in real estate. There was no balance on the line of credit as of June 30, 2020. The 
balance on the line of credit was $100,000 for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

NOTE 9. NOTES PAYABLE 

Notes payable consists of the following at June 30: 

Note payable to U.S. Bank in the amount of $197,452, 
payable in monthly installments of $1,145 including interest 
at 4.83% due on October 15, 2025. The note is collateralized 
by investment in real estate. $ 

Note payable to private party in the amount of $50,000, 
$30,000 payable in monthly installments of $526 including 
interest at 2% and $20,000 payable in monthly interest-only 
installments of $34 due on October 1, 2023. The note is 
collateralized with a security interest in a vehicle. 

Total notes payable 
Less current portion 

At June 30, 2020, principal payments are due as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30, 

2021 $ 4,995 
2022 5,259 
2023 5,519 
2024 5,792 
2025 6,078 

Thereafter 149,103 

$ 176,746 

$ 

6/30/20 

176,746 $ 

176,746 
4,995 

171 1 $ 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 
18 

6/30/19 

181,677 

45,689 
227,366 

10,619 

216,747 



COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

NOTE 10. RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS 

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, net assets with donor restrictions were available for the following 
programs or purposes: 

6/30/20 6/30/19 

COVID-19 response $ 154,462 $ 
Shelter 84,505 35,253 
Holiday baskets 19,679 
IT purchases 16,619 
Other 29,751 
Purchase of new vehicle 24,627 

$ 305,016 $ 59,880 

Net assets released from net assets with donor restrictions are as follows: 

6/30/20 6/30/19 

Purpose restriction: 
Holiday baskets $ 150,521 $ 179,100 
Integrative services 18,162 69,130 
Shelter 14,567 
IT purchases 38,175 
COVID-19 response 70,490 
Transitional housing 30,000 
Other 16,250 
Purchase of new vehicle 24,627 14,969 

$ 318,225 $ 307,766 

NOTE 11. TRANSFERS OF ASSETS TO A RECIPIENT ORGANIZATION THAT RAISES OR HOLDS 
CONTRIBUTIONS FOR OTHERS 

Beneficial Interest in Endowment Funds 

The Organization has a beneficial interest in funds held at Rancho Santa Fe Foundation (RSFF). The Organization 
has not recorded this asset in the accompanying financial statements. The Organization irrevocably transferred 
$25,000 to the Rancho Santa Fe Foundation (RSFF) on December 29, 2004 to establish the Community Resource 
Center Endowment Fund. The Organization granted variance power to RSFF to carry out the purposes of the fund 
established by the transfer including but not limited to the power to retain, invest and reinvest the funds in any manner 
within the "prudent investor" standard and the power to commingle the assets of the established fund with those of 
other funds for investment purposes. 

Further, the RSFF was granted the ability to modify any restriction or condition on the distribution of funds for any 
specified charitable purpose or to any specified organization if, in the sole discretion of the RSFF Board of Directors, 
such restriction or condition becomes unnecessary, incapable of fulfillment, or inconsistent with the charitable needs 
of the community or area served. RSFF's spending policy is to disburse 5% of the value of the fund annually, based 
on a historical average value of the fund. The calculation is based on the average value of the fund for twelve quarters 
prior to the date of the distribution. Distributions made are used to further the Organization's mission. 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 
19 



COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

NOTE 11. TRANSFERS OF ASSETS TO A RECIPIENT ORGANIZATION THAT RAISES OR HOLDS 
CONTRIBUTIONS FOR OTHERS (continued) 

Beneficial Interest in Endowment Funds (continued) 

Currently, the value of each fund in the RSFF is determined on December 31st of each year. Administrative costs 
are charged annually against the Fund in accordance with the then current fee policy identified by the RSFF. Any 
costs to the RSFF in accepting, transferring or managing property donated to the RSFF for the established fund shall 
also be paid from the established fund. The Organization did not receive any distributions for the years June 30, 2020 
and 2019 The beneficial interest in funds held at Rancho Santa Fe Foundation totaled $74,088 and $71,821, 
respectively, at June 30, 2020 and 2019. 

NOTE 12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Operating Leases 

The Organization leases administrative office facilities under operating lease agreements that expire through May 
2022. The Organization also leases several properties for resale stores under non-cancelable operating lease 
agreements through June 2021. Rent expense, including real estate taxes, maintenance and other related charges 
for operating leases totaled $406,691 and $353,416, respectively, for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 and 
is included in occupancy expenses in the statement of functional expenses. 

Minimum future lease payments required under non-cancelable operating lease agreements (exclusive of real estate 
taxes, maintenance and other related charges) for the year ended June 30, 2020 are as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30, 

2021 
2022 

Grants and Contracts 

$ 163,663 
26,098 

$ 189,761 

The Organization receives revenue from government grants and contracts which are subject to audit. No provision 
has been made for any liabilities that may arise from such audits since the amounts, if any, cannot be determined. 
Management believes that any liability which may result from these audits is not significant. 

Litigation 

In addition to commitments and obligations in the ordinary course of business, the Organization is subject to various 
claims and potential legal actions or other matters arising out of the normal course of business. When a loss is 
considered probable and reasonably estimable, the Organization records a liability in the amount of the estimated 
loss. However, the likelihood of a loss with respect to a particular contingency is often difficult to predict and 
determining a meaningful estimate of the loss or a range of loss may not be practicable based on the information 
available and the potential effect of future events and decisions by third parties that will determine the ultimate 
resolution of the contingency. Moreover, it is not uncommon for such matters to be resolved over many years, during 
which time relevant developments and new information must be reevaluated at least quarterly to determine both the 
likelihood of potential loss and whether it is possible to reasonably estimate a range of possible loss. When a loss is 
probable, but a reasonable estimate cannot be made, disclosure of the proceeding is provided. 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 
20 



COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

NOTE 12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued) 

As discussed above, development of a meaningful estimate of loss or a range of potential loss is complex when the 
outcome is directly dependent on negotiations with or decisions by third parties, such as regulatory agencies, the 
court system and other interested parties. Such factors bear directly on whether it is possible to reasonably estimate 
a range of potential loss and boundaries of high and low estimates. As of June 30, 2020, the Organization has not 
recorded any probable and reasonably estimable losses due to any potential legal actions. 

NOTE 13. RETIREMENT PLAN 

The Organization participates in a SIMPLE IRA savings plan, which is qualified under the Internal Revenue Code 
and covers substantially all employees. Employees are eligible after they have earned $5,000 during any two 
preceding years and reasonably expected to earn at $5,000 during the current year. Employees may elect to defer 
up to $12,500 of their salaries. The Organization matches 3% of the participant's elective deferrals to the Plan. The 
Organization paid contributions in the amount of $35,094 and $26,834, respectively, during the fiscal years ended 
June 30, 2020 and 2019. 

NOTE 14. RECLASSIFICATIONS 

Certain items in the 2019 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to current year classifications. Such 
reclassifications had no effect on previously reported changes in net assets. 

NOTE 15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through December 23, 2020, the date which the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 

Operations may be adversely affected by health epidemics including the recent coronavirus outbreak. 

In December 2019, an outbreak of a novel strain of coronavirus (COVID-19) originated in Wuhan, China and has 
since spread to a number of other countries, including the U.S. On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization 
characterized COVID-19 as a pandemic. In addition, several states in the U.S., including California, where the 
Organization is located, have declared a state of emergency. 

COVID-19 could adversely affect the economy and financial markets in both the short and long-term, resulting in an 
economic downturn that could affect grantors and contributors and impact operating results. The extent of the impact 
of COVID-19 on Organization's operational and financial performance will depend on certain developments, including 
the duration and spread of the outbreak and its impacts on Organization's clients, employees, and vendors, all of 
which at present, cannot be determined and the Organization cannot anticipate all of the ways in which health 
epidemics such as COVID-19 could adversely impact its operations. Any of the foregoing could harm the 
Organization. Accordingly, the extent to which COVID-19 may impact Organization's financial position and changes 
in net assets and cash flows is uncertain and the accompanying financial statements include no adjustments relating 
to the effects of this pandemic. 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 
21 



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 



YSR CPA GROUP, P.C. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

AUDIT +TAX+ ADVISORY 

WWW.YSRCPAS.COM 

Member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 

Member of California Society of Certified Public Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MA TIERS BASED ON 

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors of 
Community Resource Center 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of Community Resource Center (a nonprofit organization), 
which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related statements of 
activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 23, 2020. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community Resource Center's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Resource Center's internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Resource Center's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Resource Center's financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions 
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Los Angeles I 2529 Foothill Blvd, Ste 212, La Crescenta, CA 91214 

818·330·9772 t 818·330·9079 

San Diego I 336 Encinitas Blvd, Ste 120, Encinitas, CA 92024 

760·634·1120 t 760·452·7860 



Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Resource Center's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering Community Resource Center's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

'lS~ C2_,?A GroU-f:>,'\).C.... 

Encinitas, California 
December 23, 2020 



YSR CPA GROUP, P.C. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

AUDIT + TAX + ADVISORY 

WWW.YSRCPAS.COM 

Member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 

Member of California Society of Certified Public Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Board of Directors of 
Community Resource Center 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Community Resource Center's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in 
the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Community Resource 
Center's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020. Community Resource Center's major federal 
program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its 
federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Community Resource Center's major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could 
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about Community Resource Center's compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. 
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Community Resource Center's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Community Resource Center complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for 
the year ended June 30, 2020. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of Community Resource Center is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit 
of compliance, we considered Community Resource Center's internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for 
each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Resource Center's internal control 
over compliance. 

Los Angeles I 2529 Foothill Blvd, Ste 212, la Crescenta, CA 91214 San Diego I 336 Encinitas Blvd, Ste 120, Encinitas, CA 92024 

818·330·9772 f: 818·330·9079 760·634· 1120 f: 760· 452 • 7860 



A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. 
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that 
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

~ S'R c_,9 A GroU-f) 1 '\) • C.. · 

Encinitas, California 
December 23, 2020 



COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Federal/Pass-through Granter and Program Title 

U.S. Department of Justice 

Pass-through from California Governor's Office of Emergency Services 

Crime Victim Assistance 

Crime Victim Assistance 

Crime Victim Assistance 

Crime Victim Assistance 

Crime Victim Assistance 

Crime Victim Assistance 

Total U.S. Department of Justice 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 

Pass-through from California Governor's Office af Emergency Services 

Family Violence Prevention and Services/Domestic Violence 

Shelter and Supportive Services 

Family Violence Prevention and Services/Domestic Violence 

Shelter and Supportive Services 

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Direct Program 

Continuum of Care Program 

Continuum of Care Program 

Pass-through from City of Encinitas 

Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 

Community Development Block Grants - COVID-19 Relief 

Poss-through from City of Carlsbad 

Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

U.S. Department of Agriculture 

Poss-through from California Deportment of Socio/ Services 

State Administrative Matching Grants for the Supplemental 

Nutrition Assistance Program 

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Federal 

CFDA 

Number 

16.575 

16.575 

16.575 

16.575 

16.575 

16.575 

93.671 

93.671 

14.267 

14.267 

14.218 

14.218 

14.218 

10.561 

Agency or Pass

through Granter No. 

DV1810 8628 

DV19 11 8628 

XH16 01 8628 

XH19 02 8628 

XD18 01 8628 

XD19 02 8628 

DV1810 8628 

DV19 11 8628 

CA1598L9D011802 

CA1793D9D011800 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

18-SUB-7013 

Subrecipient 

Expenditures 

$ 

See independent auditors' report and notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 
26 

Expenditures Total 

$ 51,140 

243,644 

92,820 

58,532 

197,174 

152,941 

796,251 

$ 26,178 

11,S76 

37,754 

$ 256,221 

206,850 

13,532 

25,000 

10,000 

511,603 

29,879 

29,879 

$ 1,375,487 



COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
Year ended June 30, 2020 

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award activity of 
Community Resource Center under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2020. The 
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Community 
Resource Center it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows 
of Community Resource Center. 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are 
recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles contained in Uniform Guidance wherein certain types 
of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Pass through entity identifying numbers are 
presented where available. 

Community Resource Center has elected to use the 10% de mini mis cost rate as allowed under Uniform Guidance. 

See accompanying independent auditors' report 
27 



COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
June 30, 2020 

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditors' report issued: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Material weakness( es) identified? 

Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted? 

Federal Awards 

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs 

Internal control over major programs: 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Material weakness( es) identified? 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 

in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, 2 CFR 200.516(a)? 

Identification of major programs: 

CFDA Number 

16.575 

14.267 

Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

Domestic Violence Assistance Program 

Continuum of Care Program 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under the Uniform Grant Guidance, 

2.CFR.200.520? 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings 
None reported 

Section Ill - Federal Award Findings 
None reported 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
28 

Unmodified 

None reported 

None 

No 

Unmodified 

None reported 

None 

No 

$ 750,000 

Yes 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 
PO BOX 942857 
SACRAMENTO CA 94257-0540 

Entity Status Letter 

Why You Received This Letter 

Date: 12/30/2020 

ESL ID: 4223531376 

According to our records, the following entity information is true and accurate as of the date of this letter. 

Entity ID: 0967931 

Entity Name: COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER 

1. The entity is in good standing with the Franchise Tax Board. 

2. The entity is not in good standing with the Franchise Tax Board. 

3. The entity is currently exempt from tax under Revenue and Taxation Code (R&TC) Section 23701 d. 

4. We do not have current information about the entity. 

5. The entity was administratively dissolved/cancelled on 
Administrative Dissolution process. 

Important Information 

through the Franchise Tax Board 

• This information does not necessarily reflect the entity's current legal or administrative status with any other 
agency of the state of California or other governmental agency or body. 

• If the entity's powers, rights, and privileges were suspended or forfeited at any time in the past, or if the 
entity did business in California at a time when it was not qualified or not registered to do business in 
California, this information does not reflect the status or voidability of contracts made by the entity in 
California during the period the entity was suspended or forfeited (R& TC Sections 23304.1, 23304.5, 
23305a, 23305.1 ). 

• The entity certificate of revivor may have a time limitation or may limit the functions the revived entity can 
perform, or both (R&TC Section 23305b). 

Connect With Us 

Web: fib.ca.gov 
:>hone: 800.852.5711 from 7 a.m. to 5 p.m. weekdays, except state holidays 

916.845.6500 from outside the United States 
TTY/TDD: 800.822.6268 for persons with hearing or speech impairments 

FTB 4263A WEB (REV 12-2019) 



Form a9 Request for Taxpayer Give Form to the 

(Rev. October 2018) Identification Number and Certification requester. Do not 
Department of the Treasury send to the IRS. 
Internal Revenue Service ► Go to www.lrs.gov/FormW9 for instructions and the latest information. 

1 Nnme (as shown on your Income tax return), Name is required on this iine: do n01 le:we !his line blank. 

Community Resource Center 
2 Business name/dlnregarded entity name, If different from above 

c<-i 
Q) 3 Check appropriate box for federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only one of the 4 Exemptions (codes apply only to 
Ol iollowlng seven boxes. certain entitles, not Individuals; see ro 
Cl. Instructions on page 3): 
C □ Individual/sole proprietor or D C Corporation 0 S Corporation □ Partnership D TrusVestate 0 

. "' single-member LLC Exempt payee code (if any) 
Q) C: 
Cl. C 

~~ □ Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=Partnershlp) ► 

c .5 Note: Check the appropriate box In the line above for the tax classification of the single-member owner. Do not check Exemption from FATCA reporting 
LLC if the LLC Is classified as a single-member LLC that rs disregarded from the owner unless the owner of the LLC 1s .. "' code (if any) ·2 .5 another LLC that Is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Otherwise, a single-member LLC !ha1 

0. (.l is disregarded from the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax classification of Its owner !E 
(.l 0 Other {sell ins1n11;11onsJ ► 501 (c)(3) and 509(a)(2) Or~anlzation (Appb'o:; lo account_. maintained aulsfr:Jt1 Iha US.) 
Q) 

Cl. 5 Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) See instructions. Requester's name and adoress (opt,onnl) (/) 

al 
Cl) 

650 2nd Street 
6 City, state, and ZIP code 

Encinitas, CA 92024-3560 
7 List account number(s) here (optional) 

1111~ 11111111 Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) 
Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to avoid I Social security number 

backup withholding. For individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for a ITO -DJ -l l l resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity. see the instructions for Part I, later. For other 
entities, it is your employer identirication number (EINJ. If you do not have a number, see How to get a 
TIN, later. or 

I Employer ldenllflcatlon number Note: If the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1, Also see What Name and 
Number To Give the Requester for guidelines on whose number to enter. 

95 -34979126 

Certification 
Under penalties of perjury, I certify that: 

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and 

I 

2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue 
Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am 
no longBr subject to backup withholding; and 

3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and 

4. The FA TCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt from FA TCA reporting is correct. 

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because 
you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid, 
acquisition or abandonment of secured property. cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments 
other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correcl TIN. See the instructions tor Part II, later. 

Sign 
Here 

Signature of 
U.S. person ► 

General Instructions 
Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise 
noted. 

Future developments, For the latest information about developments 
related to Form W-9 and its instructions, such as legislation enacted 
after they were published, go to www.irs.gov/FormW9. 

Purpose of Form 
An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an 
information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer 
identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number 
(SSN), individual taxpayer identification number [!TIN). adoption 
taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number 
(EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other 
amount reportable on an Information return. Examples of information 
returns include, but are not limited to, the following. 

• Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid) 

• Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual 
funds) 

• Form 1099-MISC (various types of Income, prizes, awards, or gross 
proceeds) 

• Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other 
transactions by brokers) 

• Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions) 

• Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions) 

• Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest), 
1098· T (tuition) 

• Form 1099-C (canceled debt) 

• Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property) 

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident 
alien), to provide your correct TIN. 

If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might 
be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding, 
later. 

I 

I 

Cat. No. 10231X Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018) 





r 

( 

L 

City of Solana Beach 
Community Grant Program 

Request for Financial Assistance 
FY 2021-22 APPLICATION 

All Applications MUST BE RECEIVED by 5:00 p.m. Tuesday, May 25, 2021. 
Please Print Clearly or Type 

All requests will be determined by the following criteria: 

Name of Organization:_oisconnect Collective, Inc . 
Mailing Address: POB 433 
City_Solana Beach __________________ _ State _ cA_ 
Zip_9207s __ _ 
Contact Person:Monica Stapleton 
Daytime Phone:_858 - 525- 3152 
Evening Phone:_858 - 525-3152. ____________________ _ 

Email:stapletonmonica@yahoo . com 

1. W-9 must be attached 

2. 

Summary of organization's budget must be attached 
Proposed program budget must be attached 
Financial and Tax Statements (see Application Guidelines) must be attached 

A copy of the California Franchise Tax Board Entity Status Letter must be attached, 
showing exemption under Section 23701d or Internal Revenue Code section 
501(c)(3) 

3. Has your organization received financial assistance from the City before? 
Yes X No 
If yes, what activities and which fiscal year? __ 201s-2019; 

2019-2020 2020-2021 ------

4. Amount requested for FY 2021-22 $ __ s,ooo,_ 

5. Proposed Total Program Costs: $s , 100 and $9, 200_ 
(Includes a ll estimated costs to conductproposed activity/program.) 

6. Title of Proposed Program/Service: Mental Heal th Support Services to Solana 
Beach Immigrant Residents and Com.munity Building Opportunities . 

7. Grant funds must be used for services or materials directly associated to proposed 
activity. Please describe how grant funds will be used: Grant Funds will be used 
to continue the 4th year of the 8 month Psychosocial Educational Support 
group for Immigrant mothers , led by a licensed Bilingual LMFT . The costs 
include educational supp:ies , and promotional materials . If possible, we 
will continue to provide support and educational groups for mothers and 
attending Casa de Arnistad. Disconnect Collective will also help low income 
Solana Beach families to receive recreational and educational activities, 
and to help off set the costs of these activities . We plan to accept 
schol arship applications for families seeking personal development, 
community involvement, recreational activicies, and mental health 
improvement . We will also continue to grow our local partnerships and 
ror0~+-0 n,-.-nnr+-,1n"1 r-i ac f..--.v- r-nTilTTI11n-i ru h,,;. 1 ~; .,.,,.,.,. 



(Attach extra sheet, if necessary.) 

8. Estimated number of S.B. residents to be served by proposed program:12s-200 

9. Program Dates/Location: The Platicas de Mej orar program (Life improvement 
talks) will begin again in October 2021 and will continue until late April/ 
May 2022. The class space was generously donated by St. James and the 
program will be actively promoted throughout the Summer and Fall. We will 
continue to provide educational support groups, if possible, for mothers at 
Casa de Amistad as well. Additionally, we are working with other local 
groups to collaborate and share resources to support local immigrant 
families. 

10. Anticipated Program Objectives or Accomplishments: We anticipate having 15-20 
immigrant Mothers graduate from our group again. They have reported many 
benefits to the program. We were working with UCSD to gather data which 
hopefully we can resume soon. We would like to continue to connect these 
families with City resources and help them offset the costs of these 
programs. We will continue to provide mental health support and education 
for local immigrant families. 

11. How will the organization acknowledge the City's financial contribution to the 
community/ beneficiaries of the proposed activity? The City of Solana Beach logo 

will be proudly added to our promotional materials and to our scholarship 

applications. We would happily accept suggestions from the city as well. 

12. Will there be any matching funds or other grants that would be applied to this 
program or service? If awarded this grant, will that enable other funding sources? 
This cycle we have not done any fundraising. We are planning on doing some 
fundraising soon. 

13. Will volunteers be used for the proposed program or service and, if so, will they 
reduce expenses? At this time most of our programs are volunteer run but we 
have one employee and some teens and parents that have done hourly work. Any 
funds received from the city or fundraising will go to families and the 
costs associated with running the programs or community building events. 

14. If the proposed program or service is only awarded partial funding, will it still move 
forward? Will the program or service be scaled back and/or is there a threshold at 
which it will not move forward? Our program will continue to move forward as 
planned. We hope to be able to publish the study next Spring as well. 



Acknowledgment of Responsibility: 
Authorized Signature assumes all responsibility for developing and implementing 
proposed activities or events in this application, including public acknowledgment of the 
City's financial contribution. Authorized signature will comply with all accounting and 
budget procedures outlined by the City. Authorized signature and accompanying group 
will hold harmless the City of Solana Beach from all losses, claims, accidents and 
problems associated, directly or indirectly with the development and implementation of 
proposed activities or events. 

_ Monica Stapleton _____________ _ __ 5/23/21 ____ _ 

Authorized Signature of Organization Date 

ALL INFORMATION REQUESTED ON THIS APPLICATION MUST BE COMPLETED AS A CONDITION FOR BEING 
CONSIDERED FOR PUBLIC FUNDS BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF SOLANA BEACH. 



May 23, 2021 

Dear Mayor Heebner and Solana Beach Council Members, 

I am writing to you to summarize what we have done this year with Disconnect Collective over 

the last year. We were able to continue on with our support groups and create community 

building opportunities, despite the COVID challenges. St. Leo's was extremely supportive and 

let us use an outside space behind the medical clinic waiting area that was closed. We were 

able to gather some families and clean up the area making it very conducive and comfortable to 

a teaching area and then to be used as a more comfortable area for the people waiting at the 

clinic, when it opened in May of 2021. The Platicas de Mejorar group began in the Fall of 2020 

and we had met weekly up until late May 2021. We had about 15 group members. With your 

support, I was able to hire a participant from the group to assist me as a 'Community Liaison' 

for the second year in a row. Her help and support has been invaluable to the group. She was 

able to attend many local virtual and in person meetings to promote the group and also share 

resources with other mothers. 

In addition to continuing on with the groups, we also provided several community building 

opportunities. We also launched a new campaign and partnered with St. James/St. Leo's to 

beautify St. Leo's. We had several people volunteer to clean up some trash, paint the walls and 

plant flowers in the garden. One local Solana Beach Girl Scouts troop planted several plants and 

flowers all over St. Leo's church. 

We are eagerly planning to resume our program in a classroom space we had previously used at 

Saint James Church. We are looking into providing some outside services such as Art Therapy 

and other speakers to diversify the group and provide new therapeutic tools and support. I will 

be reaching out to Casa de Amistad and Pathways to citizenship to see how we can provide 

support services and share resources as well. 

Here are some pictures from the room we decorated and from some clean up work we did as 

well. I hope you get a chance to drive by and see how nice it looks at St. Leo's. 

Thank you again for your support. It's an honor to serve the City of Solana Beach. 



( 

L 





( 

L 



Fiscal Year 2021 

Program Budget for Disconnect Collective Mental Health, 

Parenting & Support Groups and Community Building Opportunities 

Expense Item Description Low Estimate High Estimate 

Creating welcoming meeting spaces $ 300 $ 800 
Community outreach $ 400 $ 800 

Promotional materials $ 400 $ 600 
Staffing $ 500 $ 1,000 

Educational materials $ 1,500 $ 2,500 
Education Scholarship $ 1,000 $ 1,500 

Educational Partnerships $ 1,000 $ 2,000 
Estimated Totals $ 5,100 $ 9,200 

Please note this is both the overall and program budget. 



Disconnect Collective 

Statement of Financial Position 

Assets 

Cash 

Inventory/ Assets 

Pledges Receivable- Short Term 

Liabilities 

Accounts Payable 

Net Assets 

31-Dec-20 

$ 1,545 

$ 925 

$ 1,500 

$ 

$ 3,970 

Please note that the 2020 Tax Return has not been filed yet. 



Disconnect Collective 

Statement of Financial Activities 

Revenue 

City of Solana Beach Grant 

COVID Relief Donations 

Total Revenue 

Expenses 

Program Expenses 

Educational Expenses 

COVID Relief Funds - Donor Specified Requests 

Community Outreach 

Pay Pal/ Bank Fees 

Total Expenses 

Net Income/ Surplus 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

31-Dec-20 

2,500 

15,836 

18,336 

4,395 

516 

15,400 

225 

80 

20,616 

2,280 

Please note that the 2020 Tax Return has not been filed yet. 



( 

L 

--BANK OF AM ERICA q ~ 

P.O. Box 15284 
Wilmington, DE 19850 

DISCONNECT COLLECTVE, INC. 
514 VIA DE LA VALLE STE 210 
SOLANA BEACH, CA 92075-2717 

Your Business Fundamentals Checking 
for December 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020 

DISCONNECT COLLECTVE, INC. 

Account summary 
Beginning balance on December 1. 2020 $1,570.77 

Deposits and other credits 0.00 

Withdrawals and other debits -0.00 

Checks -0.00 

Service fees -16.00 

Ending balance on December 31 , 2020 $1 ,554.77 



Submission of Exemption Request ■ 
CALIFORNIA FORM 

Exemption Based on Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Sections 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), 501(c)(S), 
501(c)(6), 501(c)(7), or 501(c)(t9), Federal Determination Letter 

3500A 
Enclose a copy of the Federal Determination Letter. 

Organization Information 
California corporation number/California Secretary of State file number 

C4142642 
Name of organization as shown in the organization's creating document 

Disconnect Collective, Inc. 
Street address (suite, room, or PMB no.) 

514 Via De La Valle, Ste. 210 
City 

Solana Beach 
Telephone 

(213) 235-0601 
Representative Information 
Name of representative 

David Stapleton 
Representative's mailing address (suite, room, or PMB no.) 

514 Via De La Valle, Ste. 210 
City 

Solana Beach 
Telephone 

(213) 235-0601 

Part I - Entity Information. See instructions. 

Second telephone 

Second telephone 

FEIN 

8 2 5 4 6 4 9 9 
Web address 

www.disconnectcollective.com 

State ZIP code 

CA92075 
Fax 

213 235-0620 

Email address 

david@stapletoninc.com 

State ZIP code 

CA92075 
Fax 

1 Has the Franchise Tax Board (FTB) previously revoked the entity's tax-exempt status? .... . ............ . ............ 1 D Yes 

If ''Yes," STOP. File form FTB 3500. 

6 

[ii No 

2 Is the entity a trust? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 □ Yes 121 No 

3 When did the organization establish, incorporate, organize, or conduct business in California? ..... . . . . .............. 3 0 4 / 1...§_ I 2 ( 

4 Provide gross receipts for the current year and the three immediately preceding taxable years in existence. Gross receipts 
are defined as the total amounts the organization received from all sources during its annual account period without 
subtracting any costs or expenses. If the organization has been in existence for less than one year, provide the projected 
amount of gross receipts for the entire year. List the account period beginning to the account period ending. Example: mm/dd/yyyy 

Current Year or Projected Gross Receipts for the three immediately preceding taxable years: 
Gross Receipts 

From: 4/16/18 From: From: From: 
To: 12/31/18 To: To: To: 

6,000 

Part II - Group Exemption. See instructions. 

5 Is the parent organization applying for a group exemption? ................ ....... .... ...... .... . ............ 5 □ Yes 

If "Yes," attach the federal group determination letter and a list of all California subordinates. Include each subordinate's name, 
corporation number, Federal employer identification number (FEIN), address, and affiliation date. 

6 Is a subordinate unit applying for tax-exempt status using a parent's IRS group determination letter? 
If "Yes," see instructions ........................................... . .................. . • ..... . ....... 6 D Yes 

Mail form FTB 3500A and a copy of the federal determination letter to: 
EXEMPT ORGANIZATIONS UNIT. MS F120, FRANCHISE TAX BOARD, PO BOX 1286, RANCHO CORDOVA CA 95741-1286. 

0 No 

IZINo 

Under penalties of perjury, I declare I have examined this submission for exem 
501{c)(6), 501(c)(7), or 501(c)(19), federal determination , tter, and to the best o 

Jon based on the IRC Sections 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), 
y knowledge and belfef, ft Is true, correct, and complete. 

DAT~/1//4, .....:S:.....:e:...:.c-'re:...c.ta.:....;ry..,__ _____ ___,( 
TITLE 

■ 8091183 FTB 3500A 2018 Side 1 ■ 



Part Ill - Purpose and Activity 

1 Exemption based on IRC 501 (c)(3) Federal Determination Letter 
Check the organization's primary purpose and activity: 

Ill Charitable □ Educational □ Literary 
□ Testing for public safety □ Religious □ Scientific 
□ Hospital □ Health care center 

2 Exemption based on IRC 501 (c)(4) Federal Determination Letter 
Check the organization's primary purpose and activity: 

□ Civic league □ Local association of 
employees 

□ Legislative activities □ Festival organizations 

□ Social welfare 

□ Municipal building 
corporation 

3 Exemption based on IRC 501(c)(5) Federal Determination Letter 
Check the organization's primary purpose and activity: 

□ Prevent cruelty to animals 
□ Church 
D Qualified sports organization 

□ Service clubs 

□ Police, sheriff, 
volunteer firemen 
association 

□ Agriculture □ Horticulture □ Labor □ Agriculture or horticulture county fair 

□ AFL-CIO □ Independent □ Transportation 
workers 

4 Exemption based on IRC 501 (c)(6) Federal Determination Letter 
Check the organization's primary purpose and activity: 

□ Teamsters 

□ Prevent cruelty to children 
□ School 

□ Veterans.' organization 

□ Quasi governmental 

□ Public employees union 

□ Board of trade □ Business league □ Chamber of commerce □ Real estate board □ Professional association or society 

5 Exemption based on IRC 501 (c)(7) Federal Determination Letter 
Check the organization's primary purpose and activity: 

□ Social and recreational □ Golf club □ Camps 

□ Car, motorcycle, 
trailer club 

□ Hunting or 
fishing club 

□ Common recreational 
area 

6 Exemption based on IRC 501 (c)(19) Federal Determination Letter 
Check the organization's primary purpose and activity: 

□ Veterans' organization 

■ FTB 3500A 2018 Side 2 8092183 

□ Fraternity or sorority □ Dog or horse club 

□ Flying or airplane club 

■ 



INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 
P. 0. BOX 2508 
CINCINNATI, OH 45201 

Date: MAR 1 5 2019 

DISCONNECT COLLECTIVE INC 
C/O MONICA STAPLETON 
PO BOX 433 
SOLANA BEACH, CA 92075 

Dear Applicant: 

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 

Employer Identification Number: 
82-5464996 

DLN: 
17053260320018 

Contact Person: 
CHRIS BROWN 

Contact Telephone Number: 
( 877) 829-5500 

Accounting Period Ending: 
December 31 

Public Charity Status: 
170 (b) (1) (A) (vi) 

ID# 31503 

Form 990/990-EZ/990-N Required: 
Yes 

Effective Date of Exemption: 
April 17, 2018 

Contribution Deductibility: 
Yes 

Addendum Applies: 
No 

We're pleased to tell you we determined you're exempt from federal income tax 
under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(c) (3). Donors can deduct 
contributions they make to you under IRC Section 170. You're also qualified 
to receive tax deductible bequests, devises, transfers or gifts under 
Section 2055, 2106, or 2522. This letter could help resolve questions on your 
exempt status. Please keep it for your records. 

Organizations exempt under IRC Section SOl(c) (3) are further classified as 
either public charities or private foundations. We determined you're a public 
charity under the IRC Section listed at the top of this letter. 

If we indicated at the top of this letter that you're required to file Form 
990/990-EZ/990-N, our records show you're required to file an annual 
information return (Form 990 or Form 990-EZ) or electronic notice (Form 990-N, 
thee-Postcard). If you don't file a required return or notice for three 
consecutive years, your exempt status will be automatically revoked. 

If we indicated at the top of this letter that an addendum applies, the 
enclosed addendum is an integral part of this letter. 

For important information about your responsibilities as a tax-exempt 
organization, go to www.irs.gov/charities. Enter "4221-PC" in the search bar 
to view Publication 4221-PC, Compliance Guide for 501(c) (3) Public Charities, 
which describes your recordkeeping, reporting, and disclosure requirements. 

Letter 947 



2-

DISCONNECT COLLECTIVE INC 

Sincerely, 

Director, Exempt Organizations 
Rulings and Agreements 

Letter 947 



Confirmation 

Print this page for your records. The Confirmation Number below is proof that you successfully filed your 199N 
e-Postca rd. 

We received your 199N e-Postcard on 6/30/2020 4:19:10 PM. 

Confirmation Number: 414264218202 

Entity ID: 4142642 
Entity Name: DISCONNECT COLLECTIVE, INC. 

Account Period Information 
Account Period Beginning: 
Account Period Ending: 

1/1/2019 
12/31/2019 

This is not your entity's first year in business. 

Your entity has not terminated or gone out of business. 

Your entity has not changed the account period. 

Gross Receipts: $4909 

This is not an amended return. 

An IRS Form 1023/1024 is not pending. 

Entity Information 
FEIN: 
Doing Business As: 
Website Address: 

Entity's Mailing Address 

PO Box433 
Solana Beach CA 92075 

Principal Officer's Information 

Monica Stapleton 
PO Box 433 

Solana Beach CA 92075 

Contact Information 
Name: 
Phone: 

825464996 

https://www.d isconnectcollective.c 

om/ 

david stapleton 
2132350601 

After we process your 199N e-Postcard, you may receive a bill if the three year gross receipt average is greater 
than the amount allowed for filing a 199N e-Postca rd. 

~' I Logout I 

1/2 



Confirmation 

Home I SecurilY. Profile I Logout 

Your Form 990-N(e-Postcard) has been submitted to the IRS 

• Organization Name: DISCONNECT COLLECTIVE INC 

• EIN: 825464996 

• Tax Year: 2019 

• Tax Year Start Date: 01-01-2019 

• Tax Year End Date: 12-31-2019 

• Submission ID: 10065520201823838900 

• Filing Status Date: 06-30-2020 

• Filing Status: Pending 

Note: Print a copy of this filing for your records. Once you leave this page, you will not be able to do so. 

MANAGE FORM 990-N SUBMISSIONS 



INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 
P. 0. BOX 2508 
CINCINNATI, OH 4520l 

Date: 

DISCONNECT COLLECTIVE INC 
C/O MONICA STAPLETON 
PO BOX 433 
SOLANA BEACH, CA 92075 

Dear Applicant: 

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 

Employer Identification Number: 
82-5464996 

DLN: 
l70532603200l8 

Contact Person: 
CHRIS BROWN 

Contact Telephone Number: 
( 877) 829-5500 

Accounting Period Ending: 
December 3l 

Public Charity Status: 
l 70 (b) (l) (A) (vi) 

ID# 3l503 

Form 990/990-EZ/990-N Required: 
Yes 

Effective Date of Exemption: 
April l 7, 20l8 

Contribution Deductibility: 
Yes 

Addendum Applies: 
No 

We're pleased to tell you we determined you're exempt from federal income tax 
under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 50l(c) (3). Donors can deduct 
contributions they make to you under IRC Section l70. You're also qualified 
to receive tax deductible bequests, devises, transfers or gifts under 
Section 2055, 2l06, or 2522. This letter could help resolve questions on your 
exempt status. Please keep it for your records. 

Organizations exempt under IRC Section 50l(c) (3) are further classified as 
either public charities or private foundations. We determined you're a public 
charity under the IRC Section listed at the top of this letter. 

If we indicated at the top of this letter that you're required to file Form 
990/990-EZ/990-N, our records show you're required to file an annual 
information return (Form 990 or Form 990-EZ) or electronic notice (Form 990-N, 
thee-Postcard). If you don't file a required return or notice for three 
consecutive years, your exempt status will be automatically revoked. 

If we indicated at the top of this letter that an addendum applies, the 
enclosed addendum is an integral part of this letter. 

For important information about your responsibilities as a tax-exempt 
organization, go to www.irs.gov/charities. Enter "422l-PC" in the search bar 
to view Publication 422l-PC, Compliance Guide for 50l(c) (3) Public Charities, 
which describes your recordkeeping, reporting, and disclosure requirements. 

Letter 947 



DISCONNECT COLLECTIVE INC 

Sincerely, 

Director, Exempt Organizations 
Rulings and Agreements 

Letter 947 



Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Give Fonn to the 

(Rev. December 2014) Identification Number and Certification 
requester. Do not 

Department of the Treasury send to the IRS. 
Internal Revooue Servtce 

1 Nallie (!IS shown on your Income tax return). Name is A!qulred on lhls llne: do not leave this line blank. 

Disconnect Collective, Inc. 

c\j 2 B•Jslness Mme/disfogardtld entity name, If difforcnt from above 

Cl) 

g> 
C. 3 Check appropriate box for federal tax classification: check only one of the following seven boxes: 4 Exemptions (codes apply only to 
C: certain entities, not Individuals; see 0 0 lndividuaVsole proplietoror D C C0<poration D S Corporation D Partnership D Trust/estate 

Cl)"' single-member LLC 
instrllclions on page 3): 

ij D Umited llablllty company. Enter the tax alassifioation (C=C oorporatian, S=S corporation. P=partnershlp) ► 
Exempt payee code Qf any) 

... (.) 
Note. For a single-member LLC that is disregarded, do not check U.C: check the appropriate box in the line above for 

Exemption from FATCA reporting og 
e"' the tax classification of the single-member owner. oode(lf any) 
'C: .5 D Other (see instructions) ► (Apptias to accauots-n-Jn/,o}(Je(;J wtslde the U.SJ 
Q, 0 

!E 5 Address (number, street. and apt. or suite no.) Requester's name and address (optional) 
(.) 
Cl) 514 Via de la Valle, Suite 210 a. 

1/1 6 cny, state, and ZlP code 
al 

(/J Solana Beach, CA 92075 
7 List account number(s) here (optional) 

mu Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) 
I Social security number I Enter you~ TIN in the app_roi:nate bo)(. '!'h~ TIN provided must_ match t~e name given on line 1 to avoid 

backup withholding. For individuals, this 1s generally your social secunty number (SSN). However, for a 
resident alien. sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the Part I Instructions oh page 3. For other 
entitles, It is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a DTI -[D -I I I I I 
nN on page 3. ,..o,,..r___,,_....,..-=---,--------.. 
Note. If the account is in more than one name, see the Instructions for line 1 and the chart on page 4 for I Employer Identification number 
guidelines on whose number to enter. 

8 2 - 5 4 6 4 9 9 6 

Certification 
Under penalties of perjury, I certify that: 

1. The number shown on this form Is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am wailing for a number to be Issued to me); and 

2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue 
Seivice QRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a faflure to report all Interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am 
no longer subject to backup withholding; and 

3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and 

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (If anY) Indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting Is correct. 

Certification instructions. You must cross out Item 2 above If you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup w ithholding 
because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage 
Interest paid, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an Individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and 
generally, payments other than Interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the 
Instructions on page 3. 

Sign I Signature of 
Here . u.s. person ► 

General Instructions 
Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise noted. 

Future developments. lnfO<mation about developments affecting Form W-9 (such 
as legislation enacted after we release it) Is at www.irs.gov/fw9. 

Purpose of Fann 
An lndJvldual 0< entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an information 
retum with the IRS must obtafn your correct taxpayer Identification number (TIN) 
which may be your socfal security number (SSN), Individual taxpayer identification 
number (ITIN), adoption taxpayer Identification number (ATIN), or employer 
identification number (EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to 
you, or other amount reportable on an information return. Examples of Information 
returns include, but are not lfmited to, the following: 

• Form 1099-IITT (interest earned or paid) 

• Form 1099-DIV (dividends, Including those from stocks or mutual funds) 

• Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross proceeds) 
• Form 1099-8 (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other transactions by 
brokers) 

• Fo1m 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions) 

• Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactlo11S) 

Date ► 
,- J 

• Form 1098 (home mortgage Interest), 1098-E (student loan Interest), 1098-T 
(tuition) 

• Form 1099-C (canceled debt) 

• Form 1099-A (acquisitton or abandonment of secured property) 

Use Fom1 W-9 only if you are a U.S. person Qncluding a resident alien), to 
provide your correct TIN. 

If you do not return Form W-9 to t/te requester with a TIN, you might be subject 
to backup withholding. See What is bacl<tJp with/lo/ding? on page 2. 

By signing the filled-out form, you: 

1. Certify that the TIN you are giving is correct (or you are wal~ng for a number 
to be issued}, 

2. Certify that you are not subject to backup wltnholding, or 

3. Claim exemption ((om backup withholding if you are a U.S. exempt payee. If 
applicable, you are also certifying that as a U.S. person, your allocable share of 
any partnership income from a U.S. trade or business Is not subject to the 
w~hholding tax on foreign partners' share of effectively connected income, and 

4. Certify that FATCA code(s) entel ed on this form Qt any) Indicating that you are 
exempt from the FATCA reporting, Is correct. See What Is FATCA reporting? on 
page 2 for further information. 

Oat. No. 10231X Form W-9 (Rev. 12-2014) 





( 

L 

City of Solana Beach 
Community Grant Program 

Request for Financial Assistance 
FY 2021-22 APPLICATION 

All AppllciJtions MUST BE RECEIVED by s.·oo p.m. Tuesday, May 25, 2021. 
Please Priflt Oeilrfy or Type 

AH requests wil be dt!tl!rmlned t,y the following aiteria: 

Name of Organli.ation: Gir1s on the Run San Diego 

Mailing Address:_;P_.o.;;...;...;;Box;..;;.;.;..232=---- ------------ -----
aty PfN(8'J State _CA __ Zip 9207-4 

Contact Person: CaiU'yn McTaggart, Fundraislng Manager 

Daytime Phone:..!..(858~)_53.;..1_-2_a1_0 __________________ _ 

Evening Phone:_Sa_me_as_oell ____________________ _ 
Email address: carttyn@gotrsd.org 

1. W-9 must be attached 

2. 

3. 

4. 

s. 

6. 

7. 

Summary of organiZation's budget must be attached 
Proposed program budget must be attached 
Financial and Tax Statements (see Application Guidelines) must be attached 

A copy of the Califomla Franchise Tax Board Entity Status Letter must be attached, 
showing exemption under Section 23701d or Internal Revenue Code section 
501(c)(3) 

Has your organization received financial assistance from the Chy before? 
Yes O No ug 
If yes, what activities and which fiscal year? _____ _______ _ 

Amount requested for FY 2021-22 $_5_,ooo ___________ _ 

Proposed Total Program Costs: $_146 ___ ,4_2_6 ____________ _ 

(Indudes all estimated costs to conduct proposed activity/program.) 

Title of Proposed Program/Service: _Gi_r1s_on_the_R_u_n __________ _ 

Grant funds must be used for services or materials directly associated to proposed 
activity. Please describe how grant funds will be used: 
A grant from the City of Solana Beach wlll be used to provide girts in grades 3rd-5th grades 
rrom Solana Beach with the opporturwty to participate In Gilts on the Run, a fun, evidence-based youth 
development program that uses physical activity as a platfoon tor teaching social emotional 

sldlls and promoting holistic health outcomes. The gir1s meet with volunteer coaches twice a week for 
10 weeks, at which point they complete a Community Impact Project and community SK. 



(Attach extra sheet, If necessary.) 

8. Estimated number of S.B. residents to be served by proposed program:_40 __ _ 

9. Program Dates/Location: 
Skyline Bemente,y and Solana Hghlande Bamentary. Seeson begins September 7, 2021 and ends 

Oec:ember 4, 2021 

10. Anticipated Program Objecttves or .Accomplishments: 
PrtVwam outcomes Include, but are not limilecl to, Increased self-<x>nfidenc, salf-esteem, 
physJcaf adlv ~ .. heathy body image, and 1he formation of poeltlve adlAbJ and peer reldooshipa. 

100% of pertldpMls will comC)leCe the 5K at the end, knowfng they can achieve anything. 

11. How will the organization acknowledge the aty's financial contribution to the 
community/ beneficiaries of the proposed ad:Mty? 

12. 

Girt& on the Rlll San ~will~ the of Solana Beach and ltS PP!? to a 
network of rrN 5,000 indMduala and farnlles roua mon fl: e-newslettera, 

eledronlc blalta. webdlJ and sodal medle t9COgf'llk)n. ewnt malerlals, etc. GOTRSO can allo 
include 1he City of Soa1a Beach es a auppoi1er rl the fal Ma1011 on the program t-etir1s. 

WIii there be any matching funds or other grants that would be applied to this 
program or service? If awarded this grant, will that enable other funding sources? 
Girls on the Run malntaira a c:twne revenue bae that indUdes numerous loyal indlvldual• and 
Solana Beach is fuly funded. A grant from ht Cly d Solana Beech wll pnMde lewrage to encourage 
other locll fomdadona and Wldlw:&1811 wtChlr\ the GOTRSO network_, support the effort Proepec:bt 

lndude the Coelllal Cornn'Ullly Founddon, SOG&E, 1he City of Enciritaa and 1he Solana Beach Fund. 

13. WIii volunteers be used for the proposed program or service and, if so, will they 
reduce expenses? 
Vok.lnteers are used as coaches tor Gil1s on the Run. which resutts In a dramatic ooet !198 
for the program. vo1u.,..,. wll atlo be UNd to orgamze and execute the end of Ma1011 SK, 1he 

Cormlooly Impact Project. and to teMJ • l\l"lnlng buddies and'or cheer 1he gkis on during the SK. 

14. If the proposed program or service is only awarded partial funding, wiH It still move 
forward? Will the program or servkE be scaled bade and/or is there a threshold at 
whidl it will net move forward? 
GOTRSO ia committed _, prow:Slng Girils on the Run to girts from Solsne Beach during the fell 2021 

and . 2022 seasons. The Ol"nmli7m1r~ ~ be thrlled with amount of from the 
C of Solana Beach and wll lnveet as much effort as rvrv,ll'Affl is 
fulty funded. 





INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 
P.O. BOX 2508 
CINCINNATI, OH 45201 

Date: 

GIRLS ON THE RON OF SAN DIEGO 
1465 CST STB 3518 
SAN DIEGO, CA 92101 

Dear Applicant: 

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 

Employer Identification Number: 
.... 20-3588183 

DLN: 
17053346040015 

Contact Person: 
GWEIIDOLYN SH.AW ID# 75078 

Contact Telephone Number: 
{877) 829-5500 

Accounting Period !roding: 
December 31 

Public Chari Status: 
1.70(:b) (1) (vi) 

Form 990 Required; 
Yes 

Effective Date of Exemption: 
November 17, 2005 

Contribution Deductibility: 
Yes 

Advance Ruling Ending Date: 
December 31, 2009 

We are pleased to inform you that upon review of your application for tax 
exempt status we have determined that you are exempt from Federal income tax 
under section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Contributions to you are 
deductible under section 170 of the Code. You are also qualified to receive 
tax deductible bequests, devises, transfers or gifts under section 2055, 2106 
or 2522 of the Code. Because this letter could help resolve any questions 
regarding your exempt status, you should keep it in your permanent records. 

Organizations exempt under section S0l(c) {3} of th~ Code are further classified 
as either public charities or private foundations. During your advance ruling 
period, you will be treated as a public charity. Your advance ruling period 
begins with the effective date of your exemption and ends with advance ruling 
ending date shown in the heading of the letter. 

Shortly before the end of your advance ruling period, we will send you Form 
8734, Support Schedule for Advance Ruling Period. You will have 90 days after 
the end of your advance ruling period to return the completed form. We will 
then notify you, in writing, about your public charity status. 

Please see enclosed Information tor Exempt Organizations Under section 
501{c) (3) for some helpful information about your responsibilities as an exempt 
organization. 

Letter 1045 (00/CG) 



r -2-

( 

l 

GIRLS ON THE RUN OF SAN DIEGO 

Sincerely, 

Lois G. Lerner 
Director, Exempt Organizations 
Rulings and Agreements 

En.closures: Information for Organizations Exempt Under Section 50l(c} (3} 
Statute Extension 



Girls On The Run San Diego Organizational Budget 

July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 

INCOME 

Individuals 
Grants 
Corporation 
Monika Courage Scholarship Fund 
Soard GMng 
SoteMates Program 
Special Events 
Interest 
Program Revenue 

Total Income 

EXPENSES 
Merchandise 
Mal'keti"lg 
ProfessiOnal Se!Vk:es 
Insurance 
Travel & Meals 
Operations 
Office Admnistratlon 
Special Events 
SoleMetes Program 
Personnel 
Program 

Total Expenses 

$32.362 
$122,500 

$30,000 
$1,000 
$7,000 

$15,000 
$5,000 

$20 
$79,450 

$292,332 

$2.200 
$3,200 
$7,725 
$6.463 
$4,100 

$17,945 
$19,856 

$1,500 
$300 

$82.617 
$146,426 

$292,332 



( 

Glrls On The Run San Diego Program Budget 

July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 

INCOME 

Individuals 
Grants 
Sponsorships 
Program Revenue 

Total Income 

EXPENSES 
Merchandise 
Advertisilg/Publications 
Piint Materials 
Staff Mileage Reimbursement 
Program Staff Pey,-o& & Benefits 
Site Outreach 
Cuniculum 
Coach and Volunteer Appreciation 
Coach Training 
Supplies 
Shirts 
Shoes for Funded Teams 
Facility Usage Fee 
5K 

Total EJtpenaes 

$30,000 
$70,000 
$15.000 

$31.426 

$146,426 

$2,200 
$2,900 

$300 
$3,600 

$80,710 
$300 

$1,937 
$1,100 

$325 
$2,000 
$4,965 

$16,100 
$2,500 

$27,489 

$146,426 



ATTOLERO, LLC 
2105 WATER RIDGE PARKWAY, SUITE 570 

CHARLOTTE, NC 28217 
888-326-3920 

Girls on the Run of San Diego 
PO Box 230544 
Encinitas, CA 92023 

Dear Client: 

October 13, 2020 

Your 2019 Federal Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax will be 
electronically filed with the Internal Revenue Service upon receipt of a 
signed Form 8879-EO - IRS e-file Signature Authorization. No tax is 
payable with the filing of this return. 

Your 2019 California Exempt Organization Annual Information Return will 
be electronically filed with the State of California upon receipt of a 
signed Form 8453-EO. There is a balance due of $10 payable by November 
16, 2020. Mail your California payment voucher, Form 3586, on or before 
November 16, 2020 to: 

FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 
P.O. BOX 942857 

SACRAMENTO, CA 94257-0531 

Enclosed is your California Registration/Renewal Fee Report to the 
Attorney General. The original should be signed at the bottom of page 
one. There is a fee due of $75 payable by November 16, 2020. Make the 
check or money order payable to "Attorney General's Registry of 
Charitable Trusts" and mail your California report on or before November 
16, 2020 to: 

REGISTRY OF CHARITABLE TRUSTS 
P.O. BOX 903447 

SACRAMENTO, CA 94203-4470 

Please be sure to call us if you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

Robert Bales 



2019 Federal Exempt Organization Tax Summary 

Girls on the Run of San Diego 

2019 2018 
REVENUE 
Contributions and grants ....................... . 228,822 251,657 
Program service revenue ........................ . 123,167 124,216 
Investment income .................................. . 15 19 

Total revenue ....................................... . 352,004 375,892 

EXPENSES 
Salaries, other compen. , emp. benefits .. . 183,509 174,589 
Other expenses ...................................... . 136, 798 161,562 

Total expenses ...................................... . 320,307 336,151 

NET ASSETS OR FUND BALANCES 
Revenue less expenses ............................ . 31,697 39,741 
Total assets at end of year .................. . 280,056 216,554 
Total liabilities at end of year ........... . 32,132 583 
Net assets/fund balances at end of year. 247,924 215,971 

Page 1 

20-3588183 -
l' 

Diff 

-22,835 
-1,049 

-4 

-23,888 

8,920 
-24,764 

-15,844 

-8,044 
63,502 
31,549 
31,953 

\ 



2019 California 199 Tax Summary 

Girls on the Run of San Diego 

REVENUE 
Other income.... . . .................................. . 
Gross contributions, gifts, & grants ..... . 

Total income ......................... . 

EXPENSES AND DISBURSEMENTS 
Compensation of officers, etc ............... . 
Other salaries and wages ....................... . 
Taxes .................................................... . 
Rents .................................................... . 
Other deductions ................................... . 

Total deductions ................................... . 

Excess of receipts over disbursements ... . 

FILING FEE 
Filing fee ............................................ . 
Balance due ........................................... . 

2019 

123,182 
228,822 

352,004 

73,022 
94,633 
12,758 

5,848 
134,046 

320,307 

31,697 

10 
10 

Page 1 

20-3588183 

2018 Diff 

124,235 -1,053 
251,657 -22,835 

375,892 -23,888 

71,909 1,113 
80,068 14,565 
12,390 368 

5,592 256 
166,192 -32,146 

336,151 -15,844 

39,741 -8,044 

10 0 
10 0 



2019 

Form 990, Part Ill, Line 4e 
Program Services Totals 

Total Expenses 
Grants 
Revenue 

Form 990, Part IX, Line 11g 
Other Fees For Services 

Background Checks 
Prof Memberships & Licenses 

Form 990, Part IX, Line 24e 
Other Expenses 

Merchandise Purchases 

Federal Worksheets 

Girls on the Run of San Diego 

Page 1 

20-3588183/ 

Program 
Services 

Total 

229,676. 
0. 

123,167. 

(A) 

Form 990 Source 

229,676. Part IX, Line 25, Col. B 
0. Part IX, Lines 1-3, Col. B 

123,167. Part VIII, Line 2, Col. A 

(B) (C) (D) 
Program Management Fund-

Total Services & General raising 

1,881. 1,764. 117. 
284. 284. 

Total $ 2,165. $ 1,764. $ 401. $ 0. 

(A) (B) (C) (D) 
Program Management 

Total Services & General Fundraising 

1,960. 1,590. 370. 
Total$ 1,960. $ 1,590. $ 0. $ 370. 

~ ~) 



Form 8879-EQ 

Jepartment of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service 

IRS e-fi/e Signature Authorization 
for an Exempt Organization 

For calendar year 2019, or fiscal year beginning _ }lOJ __ , 2019, and ending_ ..§l3_Q __ , 20 2 0 2 0 
► Do not send to the IRS. Keep for your records. 

► Go to www.irs.gov/Form8879EO for the latest information. 

0MB No. 1545-1878 

2019 
Name of exempt organization Employer identification number 

Girls on the Run of San Die o 20-3588183 
Name and title of officer 

KASEY MACNAIR Executive Director 
I Part I · I Type of Return and Return Information (Whole Dollars Only) 
Check the box for the return for which you are using this Form 8879-EO and enter the applicable amount, if any, from the return. If you 
check the box on line la, 2a, 3a, 4a, or Sa, below, and the amount on that line for the return being filed with this form was blank, then 
leave line lb, 2b, 3b, 4b, or Sb, whichever is applicable, blank (do not enter -0-). But, if you entered -0- on the return, then enter -0- on 
the applicable line below. Do not complete more than one line in Part I. 

1 a Form 990 check here. .... ► ~ b Total revenue, if any (Form 990, Part VIII, column (A), line 12) ........ . 

2 a Form 990-EZ check here ..... ► D b Total revenue, if any (Form 990-EZ, line 9) ....................... . 

3 a Form 1120-POL check here ...... ► D b Total tax (Form 1120-POL, line 22) ........................... . 

4 a Form 990-PF check here ..... ► D b Tax based on investment income (Form 990-PF, Part VI, line 5). .. . 

Sa Form 8868 check here ... ► D b Balance Due (Form 8868, line 3c) ................................... . 

1 b ___ 3_52~,_0_0_4_. 
2b 
---------

3b 
---------

4b 
---------

Sb 

I Part II· I Declaration and Signature Authorization of Officer 
Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I am an officer of the above organization and that I have examined a copy of the organization's 2019 
electronic return and accompanying schedules and statements and to the best of my knowledge and belief, they are true, correct, and complete. 
I further declare that the amount in Part I above is the amount shown on the copy of the organization's electronic return. I consent to allow my 
intermediate service provider, transmitter, or electronic return originator (ERO) to send the organization's return to the IRS and to receive from 
the IRS (a) an acknowledgement of receipt or reason for rejection of the transmission, (b) the reason for any delay in processing the return or 
refund, and (c) the date of any refund. If applicable, I authorize the U.S. Treasury and its designated Financial Agent to initiate an electronic 
funds withdrawal (direct debit) entry to the financial institution account indicated in the tax preparation software for payment of the 
organization's federal taxes owed on this return, and the financial institution to debit the entry to this account. To revoke a payment, I must 
contact the U.S. Treasury Financial Agent at 1-888-353-4537 no later than 2 business days prior to the payment (settlement) date. I also 
authorize the financial institutions involved in the processing of the electronic payment of taxes to receive confidential information necessary to 
answer inquiries and resolve issues related to the payment. I have selected a personal identification number (PIN) as my signature for the 
organization's electronic return and, if applicable, the organization's consent to electronic funds withdrawal. 

Officer's PIN: check one box only 

~ I authorize Attolero, LLC to enter my PIN 
ERO !inn name 

43672 las my signature 
Enter five numbers, but 
do not enter all zeros 

on the organization's tax year 2019 electronically filed return. If I have indicated within this return that a copy of the return is being filed with 
a state agency(ies) regulating charities as part of the IRS Fed/State program, I also authorize the aforementioned ERO to enter my PIN on 
the return's disclosure consent screen. 

D As an officer of the organization, I will enter my PIN as my signature on the organization's tax year 2019 electronically filed return. If I have 
indicated within this return that a copy of the return is being filed with a state agency(ies) regulating charities as part of the IRS Fed/State 
program, I will enter my PIN on the return's disclosure consent screen. 

Officer's signature ► Date ► 

I Part III I Certification and Authentication 
ERO's EFIN/PIN. Enter your six-digit electronic filing identification 
number (EFIN) followed by your five-digit self-selected PIN ..................................................... . 61978969849 

Do not enter all zeros 

I certify that the above numeric entry is my PIN, which is my signature on the 2019 electronically filed return for the organization indicated 
above. I confirm that I am submitting this return in accordance with the requirements of Pub. 4163, Modernized e-File (MeF) Information for 
Authorized IRS e-file Providers for Business Returns. 

ERO's signature ► Robert Bales Date ► 

ERO Must Retain This Form - See Instructions 
Do Not Submit This Form to the IRS Unless Requested To Do So 

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions. Form 8879-EO (2019) 

TEEA7401L 06/27/19 



Form 990 0MB No. 1545-0047 

2019 (Rev. January 2020) Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax 
Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(l) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations) 

Department of the Treasury ► Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public. 
Internal Revenue service ► Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. 

Open to Public 
Inspection 

A For the 2019 calendar year, or tax year beginning 7 / 0 1 , 2019, and ending 6 / 3 0 , 2020 
8 Check if applicable: C D Employer identification number 

-
Address change Girls on the Run of San Diego 20-3588183 -
Name change PO Box 230544 E Telephone number 

I- Encinitas, CA 92023 Initial return 614 816-6991 -Final return/terminated ,-
Gross receipts $ Amended return G 352,004. -

~No Application pending F Name and address of principal officer: H(a) Is this a group return for subordinates?~ Yes - H(b) Are all subordinates included? Yes Same As C Above No 
If "No," attach a list. (see instructions) 

I Tax-exempt status: !XI 501(c)(3) I I s01cc) ( )◄ (insert no.) I l4947(a)(l) or I I s27 

J Website: ► WWW.GOTRSD.ORG H(c) Group exemption number ► 

K Form of organization: I I Corporation I I Trust I I Association I I Other ► I L Year of formation: I M State of legal domicile: 

!Part If- ,,summary 
1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities:GIRLS ON THE RUN OF SAN DIEGO INSPIRES 

Cll GIRLS TO BE JOYFUL, HEALTHY AND CONFIDENT, USING A FUN EXPERIENCE-BASED CURRICULUM 
0 WHICH CREATIVELY INTEGRATES RUNNING C: 
C'CI ---------------------------------------------------------------C: 

cii ---------□- ------------------ -------------------- --------
> 2 Check this box ► if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets. 
0 

CJ 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line la) ................................... 3 16 
ad 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1 b) ....................... 4 16 en 
~ 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2019 (Part V, line 2a) .......................... 5 3 
·s; 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) ................................................... 6 750 :;::::; 
0 7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12 .................................. 7a 0. <( 

b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 99O-T, line 39 ...................................... 7b 0. 
Prior Year Current Year 

8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line lh) .......................................... 251,657. 228,822 
Q) 
::, 9 Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g) ......................................... 124,216. 123, 1671. C 
Q) 

10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d) ......................... 19. 15. > 
Q) 

C: 11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, Sc, 9c, 10c, and 11 e) ................ 
12 Total revenue - add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) ..... 375,892. 352,004. 
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) ...................... 

14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) ......................... 

15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10) ..... 174,589. 183,509. 
<I) 
Q) 16 a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11 e) .......................... <I) 
C 
Q) 

b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) ► 45,270. it \;0:,'.,.1J.~>;,}05},{{i, li,f~cf ,-'i ~i'i"t;i~r~Iit}.!rxf:{i< C. 
>C 
w 

17 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11 a-11 d, 1 lf-24e) ......................... 161,562. 136,798. 
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) ............. 336,151. 320,307. 
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12 ................................ 39, 741. 31,697. 

~: Beginning of Current Year End of Year 
mu 
d 20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) ....................................................... 216,554. 280,056. 
m" mm 21 Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) ..................................................... 583. 32,132. -,:"O 
~§ 

22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20 ............................ 215,971. 247,924. Zu. 

I Part II · I Signature Block 
Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is true, correct, and 
complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge. 

► I 
Sign Signature of officer Date 

Here 
► KASEY MACNAIR Executive Director 

Type or print name and title 

PrinVType preparer's name I Preparer's signature I Date Check LJ if I PTIN 

Paid Robert Bales Robert Bales self-employed PO216O1O8 

Preparer Firm's name ► Attolero, LLC 
Use Only Firm's address ► 2105 Water Ridqe Parkway, Suite 570 Firm's EIN ► 81-5169849 

Charlotte, NC 28217 Phone no. 888-326-3920 
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions) ...................................... IXI Yes I I No 

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. TEEA0101L 01/21/20 Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) Girls on the Run of San Die o 20-3588183 Page 2 

Part Ill Statement of Program Service Accomplishments 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part Ill ................................................ . 

1 Briefly describe the organization's mission: 

GIRLS ON THE RUN OF SAN DIEGO_INSPIRES GIRLS TO BE JOYFUL, HEALTHY AND CONFIDENT, ___ _ 
USING A FUN EXPERIENCE-BASED CURRICULUM WHICH CREATIVELY INTEGRATES RUNNING -----------------------------------------------------------------

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the prior 

Form 990 or 990-EZ?. ........................................................................................ D Yes [RJ No 

If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule 0. 
3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services?.... D Yes [RJ No 

If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule 0. 

4 Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses. 
Section 501 (c)(3) and 501 (c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, 
and revenue, if any, for each program service reported. 

4a(Code: ____ )(Expenses$ 229,676. including grants of $ _______ )(Revenue $ 123,167.) 
YOUTH DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS: PROVIDE SPRING AND FALL TRAINING SESSIONS AND SPRING AND -----------------------------------------------------------------
FALL SK RUNNING EVENTS 

4 b (Code: ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ 
---- -------- -------- --------

4 c (Code: ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ ---- -------- -------- --------

4 d Other program services (Describe on Schedule 0.) 

(Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ 

4 e Total program service expenses ► 229,676. 
BAA TEEA0102L 07/31/19 Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) Girls on the Run of San Dieqo 20-3588183 p age 3 

I Part IV I Checklist of Required Schedules 

1 Is the organization described in section 501 (c)(3) or 4947(a)(l) (other than a private foundation)? If 'Yes,' complete 
Schedule A. ..................................................................................................... . 

2 Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see instructions)? ..................... . 

3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates 
for public office? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule C, Part l .................. ........................................... . 

4 Section 501(cX3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501 (h) election 
in effect during the tax year? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule C, Part JI ...... ........................................... . 

5 Is the organization a section 501 (c)(4), 501 (c)(5), or 501 (c)(6) organization that receives membership dues, 
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-19? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule C, Part /II ...... . 

6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right 
to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, 
Part I ........................................................ •••••••••••·••••···································· 

7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space, the 
environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule 0, Part IL ........................ . 

8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If 'Yes,' 
complete Schedule 0, Part Ill ..................................................................................... . 

9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a custodian 
for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation 
services? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule 0, Part IV. .... .............................................................. . 

10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments 
or in quasi endowments? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule 0, Part V. .................................................... . 

11 If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is 'Yes', then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII, VIII, IX, 
or X as applicable. 

a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 1 O? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule 
0, Part VI ........................................................................................................ . 

b Did the organization report an amount for investments - other securities in Part X, line 12, that is 5% or more of its total 
assets reported in Part X, line 16? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule 0, Part VII .. ......................................... . 

c Did the organization report an amount for investments - program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more of its total 
assets reported in Part X, line 16? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule 0, Part VIII . ......................................... . 

d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets reported 
in Part X, line 16? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule 0, Part IX .............. ............................................ . 

e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule 0, Part X. .... . 

f Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses 
the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule 0, Part X ... 

12 a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If 'Yes,' complete 
Schedule 0, Parts XI and XII ..................................................................................... . 

b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If 'Yes,' and 
if the organization answered 'No' to line 12a, then completing Schedule 0, Parts XI and XII is optional ................ . 

13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(l )(A)(ii)? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule E ...... ................ . 

14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? .......................... . 

b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising, 
business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued 
at $100,000 or more? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule F, Parts I and JV ................................................. . 

15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for any 
foreign organization? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule F, Parts II and IV. ... ............................................. . 

16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistance to 
or for foreign individuals? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule F, Parts Ill and IV ............................ ................ . 

17 Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part IX, 
column (A), lines 6 and 11 e? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule G, Part I (see instructions) ................................. . 

18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part VIII, 
lines 1 c and Sa? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule G, Part II .. ........................................................... . 

19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? If 'Yes,' 
complete Schedule G, Part Ill .................................................................................... . 

20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule H ........................... . 

b If 'Yes' to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? ............... . 

21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or 
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule I, Parts I and II ...... ............... . 

BAA TEEA0103L 07/31/19 

Yes No 

1 X 

2 X 

3 X 

4 X 

5 X 

6 X 

7 X 

8 X 

9 X 

10 X 
I / .•• ... ,. t:;zii lf,i :> .,.:.;:· 
l<l', 't. ".};' fi;~i) 

11 a X 

11 b X 

11 C X 

11 d 

11 e X 

11 f X 

12a X 

12b X 

13 X 

14a X 

14b X 

15 X 

16 X 

17 X 

18 X 

19 X 

20a X 

20b 

21 .c· 
Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) Girls on the Run of San Dieqo 20-3588183 Page 4 

I Part IV I Checklist of Required Schedules (continued) 
Yes No 

22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on Part IX, 
column (A), line 2? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule I, Parts I and Ill..................................................... 22 X 

t---+---+---

23 Did the organization answer 'Yes' to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the organization's current 
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? If 'Yes,' complete 
Schedule J. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 X 

t---+--+---
24 a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of 

the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 2002? If 'Yes,' answer lines 24b through 24d and 
complete Schedule K. If 'No, 'go to line 25a........................................................................ 24a X 

1---+---+---
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception?.................. 24b 

t---+--+---
c Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defease 

any tax-exempt bonds? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24c 
1---+--+--

d Did the organization act as an 'on behalf of' issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24d 
t---+---+---

25 a Section 501 (cX3), 501 (cX4), and 501 (cX29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit 
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part I ....... .................... ,__25_a-+-_-+_X_ 

b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior year, and 
that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? If 'Yes,' complete 
Schedule L, Part I . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25b X 

I---+--+---
26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current or 

former officer, director, trustee, key emploree, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35% controlled entity X 
or family member of any of these persons. If 'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part II ..................................... t--26_+--+---

27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key 
employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee 
member, or to a 35% controlled entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these 
persons? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part Ill.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27 X 

28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part IV 
instructions, for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions): 

a A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? If 

1---1---+---

'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part IV. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28a X 

b A family member of any individual described in line 28a? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part IV ... ................... . 28b X 

c A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in lines 28a or 28b? If 
Yes,' complete Schedule L, Part IV. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28c X 

t---+---+---
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule M.............. 29 X 

t---+--+---
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation 

contributions? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule M..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30 X 
t---+--+--,,..,,.-

31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule N, Part I....... 31 X 
t---+---+---

32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If 'Yes,' complete 
Schedule N, Part fl . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32 X 

33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations sections 
301 .7701 -2 and 301 .7701 -3? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part I .................................................. . 33 X 

t---+---+---

34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part II, Ill, or IV, 
and Part V, line 7.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 34 X 

t---+---+---
35 a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(l 3)?.... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35a X 

1---+--+---
b If 'Yes' to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled 

entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2......................... 35b 
t---+--+---

36 Section 501(cX3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related 
organization? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2....... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 36 X 

t---+---+---

37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization and that is 
treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part VI....... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 37 X 

t---+---+---

38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11 b and 19? 
Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule 0............................ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 38 X 

I Part VI Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V ................... . 

Yes No 
1 a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable .............. ,__l_a,,__ _______ ---13 

b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1 a. Enter -0- if not applicable........... 1 b Q 
'---"----------=-l 

c Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming 
(gambling) winnings to prize winners? ............................................................................. . 1 c X 

BAA TEEA0104L 07/31/19 Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) Girls on the Run of San Die o 20-3588183 Page 5 

Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (continued) 
Yes No 

2 a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax State-
ments, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return.. . . . 2 a 3 

1---+------------t----+----11--:-;--~·•/"" 
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns?.... . . . . . . . . . 2 b 

f---+--+---
N o t e: If the sum of lines 1 a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions) 

X 3 a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 a 
f---+--+---

b If 'Yes,' has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If 'No' to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 b 
l---+----+----

4 a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a 
financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)?......... 4a X 

f---+----,---1----,--,-
b If 'Yes,' enter the name of the foreign country ► 

See instructions for filing requirements for FinCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR). 

5 a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? ................... f--S_a+--+--=--
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction?............ 5 b X 

f---+--+---
c If 'Yes,' to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T?...................................................... Sc 

l---+---+----

6 a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the organization 
solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions?....... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 a X 

1---+---+----

b If 'Yes,' did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts were 
not tax deductible?................................................................................................ 6 b 

f-:;,-..,.,..,t--,=-t----,-
7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c). 

a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and 
services provided to the payor? ................................................................................... . 

1---+---+----
b If 'Yes,' did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? .......................... f---+--+---

c Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required to file 
Form 8282? ..................................................................................................... . 

f-:;,----,--t--,..,.,..,-t-----,--..-
d If 'Yes,' indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year .......................... L__7_::dL__ _______ --f:=:.:.q.=-'-'-"f-.;.;..c.;_ 

e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract?.......... 7 e 
f---+--+--=--

f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract?.............. 7f X 
1---+---+---

g If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 
as required? ...................................................................................................... f--7_.;:.g+--+--ll; .. 

h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a 
Form 1098-C?.............. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 h 

8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the sponsoring f-:;,--,--,-t--,-,--,--t---,--,-..-

organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? ............................................ . 

9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. 

a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966? ................................. . 
1---+---+---

b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? ..................... . 
f-:;,--,--,-t--,--,--t---,--,-;::-

10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter: 

a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII, line 12 ...................... 10a 
f---+---------+ •-'; 

b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club facilities..... 10 b 
'----.1.---------+fic 

11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter: 

a Gross income from members or shareholders. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11 a 
f--t--,--------+,c• 

b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources 
against amounts due or received from them.) ............................................ .___11_b.__ _______ --4-"--'-'"-4--'-'-'--'-f---"--' 

12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. ls the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041 ? ............. . 
f-:;,--,--,-t--,-,--,--t---,--,--,

b If 'Yes,' enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year... . . . . 12 b 
I---+----------< 

13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers. 

a Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? .................................. . 
1----+---+---

N o t e: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule 0. 

b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in 
which the organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans.......................... 13 b 

f---+-----------i 
c Enter the amount of reserves on hand.................................................. 13c 

'----.1.---------+---+"---f---,'--
14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14a 

f---+--+--
b If 'Yes,' has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If 'No,' provide an explanation on Schedule 0............... 14b 

t---+---+---

15 Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or 
excess parachute payment(s) during the year?.... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 ------X 
If 'Yes,' see instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N. 

16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? 16 X 
If 'Yes,' complete Form 4720, Schedule 0. 

BAA TEEA0105L 07131119 Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) Girls on the Run of San Diego 20-3588183 Page 6 

I PartVI I Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each 'Yes' response to lines 2 through lb below, and for 
a 'No' response to line Ba, Bb, or /Ob below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on 
Schedule 0. See instructions. 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI........ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . [x] 

Section A. Governing Body and Management 
Yes No 

1 a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year. . . . . . 1 a 16 
If there are material differences in voting rights among members t---+----------, 
of the governing body, or if the governing body delegated broad 
authority to an executive committee or similar committee, explain on Schedule 0. 

b Enter the number of voting members included on line 1 a, above, who are independent..... 1 b 16 
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other 

officer, director, trustee, or key employee?......................................................................... 2 X 
I---+----+---

3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision 
of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person?......................... 3 X 

t---+----+---
4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents 

since the prior Form 990 was filed?........................ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 X 
t---+----+---

5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets?.............. 5 X 
1---1---+---

6 Did the organization have members or stockholders?........ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 X 
t---+----+---

7 a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or more 
members of the governing body? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 a X 

1---1---+---

b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members, 
stockholders, or persons other than the governing body?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 b X 

1---1---+---

8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by 
the following: 

a The governing body? ............................................................................................. . Ba X 
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body? .............................................. . Sb X 

9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at the 
organization's mailing address? If 'Yes,' provide the names and addresses on Schedule O ........................... . 9 X 

Section 8 Pohc1es (This SectJOn B requests mformatJOn about po 1c1es not reqwred by the Internal Revenue Code.) 
Yes No 

10 a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? .................................................... . 10 a X 
b If 'Yes,' did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, affiliates, and branches to ensure their 

operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? ............................................................... . 10b 
11 a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? ..................... . 11 a X 

b Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990. See Schedule O 

12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If 'No,' go to line 73 ................................... . 12a X 
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise 

to conflicts? ..................................................................................................... . 12b X 
c Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If 'Yes,' describe in 

Schedule O how this was done ... . Se.e .. Schedule. 0 .......................................................... . 12c X 
13 Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? ........................................................... . 13 X 
14 Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? ...................................... . 14 X 
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent 

persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision? 

a The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management official. ............................................ . 15a X 
b Other officers or key employees of the organization ... S.ee. Schedule .. 0 ........................................ . 15b X 

If 'Yes' to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions). 

16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a 
taxable entity during the year? .................................................................................... . 16a X 

b If 'Yes,' did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its 
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the 
organization's exempt status with respect to such arrangements? ................................................... . 16b 

Section C. Disclosure 
17 List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed ► CA ------------------------------
18 Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (Section 501 (c)(3)s only) 

available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply. 

D Own website D Another's website IRJ Upon request D Other (explain on Schedule 0) 

19 Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial statements available to 
the public during the tax year. See Schedule O 

20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records ► 

KASEY MACNAIR PO BOX 230544 ENCINITAS CA 92023 619 816-6991 
BAA TEEA0106L 07/31/19 Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) Girls on the Run of San Die o 20-3588183 Page 7 
Part VII Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and 

Independent Contractors 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII ................................................ . □ 

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees l 
l_a_C_o_m_p-le-te_t_h-is_t_a_b_le_f_o--'r _a_ll _p-er_s_o-ns-re"""q-u-ire-d-to_b_e___;lis-t-ed-. .=.R_e_p_o_rt.,_c_o_m=-p-e_n_s"""at-io_n_f_o_r -th--=e=-c-a-le_n_d_a_r -ye_a__,r'-e-n-d-in_g_w_i-th-or-w-'-ith_i_n=-th_e _________ \•.~·-· · 

organization's tax year. 
• List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of 

compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid. 

• List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of 'key employee.' 
• List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee) 

who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the 
organization and any related organizations. 

• List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000 
of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations. 

• List all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the 
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations. 

See instructions for the order in which to list the persons above. 

D Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee. 

(C) 

(A) (B) Position (do not check more (D) (E) than one box, unless person (F) 
Name and title Average is both an officer and a Reportable Reportable Estimated amount hours director/trustee) compensation from compensation from of other per Qg 3± 

the organization related orianizations compensation from week :::J 0 ~ 6' (:N-2/1099-MISC) (:N-2/10 9-MISC) 
U> 3, ~ the organization (list any ~< = "2.~ 3 c 0 (1) and related hours for ~ g = ~ 3 ~"' ~ organizations related (I) -

organiza~ Qi g 'O (I) n 
~ ~ 0 

tions (1) 3 
below er (1) 'O 

C (I) 

dotted <1> U> ::, 

line) <1> ,;;- fil 
<t> g 

(1) KASEY MACNAIR 40 -- ----------------------Executive Dir. 0 X 73,022. 0. 0. 
(2) ALI TAYLOR 3 ------------------- -- --

Director 0 X 0. 0. 0 
_(3) CHRISTY BOWLES ____________ 3 

Director 0 X 0. 0. 0. 
_(4) DENE_GRENON ______________ 6 

Treasurer 0 X X 0. 0. 0. 
_ (5) JERALIN CARDOSO ___________ 6 

Secretarv 0 X X 0. 0. 0. 
_(6) JILLIAN BASINGER ___________ 3 

Director 0 X 0. 0. 0. 
_(7) MEGAN HUMPHREYS ___________ 3 

President 0 X X 0. 0. 0. 
_(8) KIM MARTINI ______________ 3 ----

Director 0 X 0. 0. 0. 
_ (9) ANDREA VALJI ______________ 6 ----

Vice President 0 X X 0. 0. 0. 
(10) HILLARY KLEINER 3 ----- -- --------------- ----

Director 0 X 0. 0. 0. 
(11) JADE_NEWTON ______________ 3 ----

Director 0 X 0. 0. 0. 
(12) TRACY BIDOT 3 --------------------------

Director 0 X 0. 0. 0. 
(13) NICOLE BORAMANAND 3 --------------------------Director 0 X 0. 0. 0. 
(14) KIM LAWS 3 --- ----------- - --------

Director 0 X 0. 0. 0. 
BAA TEEA0107L 07/31/19 Form 990 (201 



Form 990 (2019) Girls on the Run of San Dieqo 20-3588183 Page 8 

I Part VII I Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued) 

(8) (C) 
Position (D) (E) (A) Average (do not check more than one 

Name and title 
hours box, unless person is both an Reportable Reportable 
per officer and a director/trustee) compensation from compensation from 

week the organization related orijanizations (list any 0 - :::, 0 ;:,.; (1) :r ;;i ~~ U> (0 .g~ (W-2/1099-MISC) (W-2/10 9-MISC) 
hours 9:< = ~ '< 3 for Cb a c <, <"i) ~~ related =· ~ 3 ~ nc 0 

organiza s~ :::, u 
(1) 8 

~ 2 ~ 0 
- lions '< 3 
below ~ (0 u 

la C: <"i) (1) 

dotted (1> !!!. ::, 
U> 

line) (1> <l> 0) 
<1> g 

(15) SAM BRUMIT _______________ 3 ----· 
Director 0 X 0. 0. 

(16) HEATHER SHELDON 3 -------------------------- ----· 
Director 0 X 0. 0. 

(17) JOHN HOST 3 -------------------------- ----· 
Director 0 X 0. 0. 

(18) -------------------------- ----· 

(19) -------------------------- ----· 

(20) _______________________ 
----· 

(21) _______________________ 
----· 

(22) --- ___ -- _ -- ____ -- __ --- _ ----· 

~~ ----------------------- ----· 

(24) _________ --- __ -- ---- ___ ----· 

~~ ----------------------- ----· 

1bSubtotal ................................................................. ► 73,022. 0. 
c Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A........ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ► 0 . 0 . 
dTotal(addlines1band1c) ................................................ ► 73,022. 0. 

(F) 

Estimated amount 
of other 

compensation from 
the organization 

and related 
organizations 

0. 

0. 

0. 

0. 
0. 
0. 

2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable compensation 

from the organization ► O 

3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee 
on line 1 a? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule J for such individual .... ..................................................... 

4 For any individual listed on line la, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from 
the organization and related organizations greater than $150,000? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule J for 
such individual ........................................................................................... ........ 

5 Did any person listed on line 1 a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual 
for services rendered to the organization? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule J for such person .... .......................... 

Section B. Independent Contractors 
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of 

compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year. 

(A) 
Name and business address 

(8) 
Description of services 

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than 

$100,000 of compensation from the organization ► 0 
BAA TEEA0108L 07/31/19 

Yes No 

3 X 
.· 

4 X 

5 X 

(C) 
Compensation 

Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) Girls on the Run of San Die o 20-3588183 Page 9 

Part VIII Statement of Revenue 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII. ................................................ D 

1 a Federated campaigns......... 1 a 
!---+---------; 

b Membership dues............. 1 b 
1---+--------

c Fundraising events............ 1 c 13 525. 
1---+------'=-=-'-==-='-'-l ··. 

d Related organizations. . . . . . . . . 1 d 
1---+--------

e Government grants (contributions) . . . . 1 e 
f All other contributions, gifts, grants, and 1---+---------; 

similar amounts not included above... 1 f 215,297 . 
g Noncash contributions included ln >---+-----+------<.' 

lines 1 a-1 f. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ,__1~g--------; 
h Total. Add lines 1 a-1 f ............................... ► 

Business Code 

(A) (8) (C) (D) 
Total revenue Related or Unrelated Revenue 

exempt business excluded from 
function revenue under sections 
revenue 512-514 

2 a Earned Income___ -f-=9""0""0""0=9=9----+---=l=0=0.L....=.0=3-'-7-'-. +------'1=-0""'0"-'-'0""'3"""7-'.-+------+-------
b SK S.I?ons orshiQ Income_ -~9-'0-'0-'0~9~9----+--~1-'-9~6_7_4-'-. +--__ 1_9~6_7_4_·-,-------1-------
c Merchandise Sales ____ -f-=9"-"0C.::0"-"0;..;:9..:;9 __ --+----=3-'----"'4=5-=-6-'-. +-------'3"-'--4=5""'6""'.'-+------+-------
d 

e 

f All other program service revenue .... 
--------;---------t======~===----,==~=====~ 

g Total. Add lines 2a-2f . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ► 

3 Investment income (including dividends, interest, and 
other similar amounts) .............................. ► 

l------~'-'-l-----~-+-------+-------
4 Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds .. ►--------i-------+-------+-------
5 Royalties. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ► 

(i) Real (ii) Personal 

6 a Gross rents . . . . . . . . 6a 
!---+-------+-------! 

b Less: rental expenses 6 b 
>---+-------+-------< 

c Rental income or (loss) Ge 
C..::..::...L _____ ...J.... _____ -+-...c..;;.:-"'-'-'-'-"---"-'-'~-"-"-4-'-"'--'-'-"'-"---==...:.=+--'-""'-'-"'--"'----"--'-'c;.;.;.i-'-'"'-""-===-'--'-""'-

d Net rental income or (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ► 

7 a Gross amount from 
sales of assets 
other than inventory 

b Less: cost or other basis 

(i) Securities (ii) Other 

7a 

and sales expenses 7b 
1---+-------+-------l 

c Gain or (loss} . . . . . . 7 c 
L--'------....l....------+-=-'-'-"-....:..:.:."---'....:.:....=-::.+---'-"--'---'-"-'-'-"' 

d Net gain or (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ► 

8 a Gross income from fund raising events 
(not including $ ______ _ 
of contributions reported on line 1 c). 

See Part IV, line 18. ........... . Ba 
b Less: direct expenses ..... . Bb 
c Net income or (loss) from fundraising events ......... ► 

;::-,-------1===.,..-==+':':':~~~~~±-:,.-:-. ..... -;cc,-:>-;;--=,..,.,,,+':',':==,..,.,,,==-; 
9 a Gross income from gaming activities. 

See Part IV, line 19. ........... . 9a 
b Less: direct expenses ..... . 9b 
c Net income or (loss) from gaming activities ........... ► 

.---,-------+-,---,,--:-.,.-:----+--,,------,----,----,----,+,-----,.,.-.,,.--,-----,----,----,t,,,-,:.,.-.,,.----,,,--,-----,~ 

10 a Gross sales of inventory, less ..... 
returns and allowances Oa 

b Less: cost of goods sold .... Ob 
c Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory. . . . . . . . . . ► 

i!11a ______________________________________ _ 

t I : ======-==========-

Business Code 

!;! Cl:: d All other revenue. .................. -1--------+--------+-------+-------1-------➔ 

i e Total. Add lines 11 a-11 d . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ► 
12 Total revenue. See instructions ...................... ► 352 004. 123 182. 0. 0. 

BAA TEEA0109L 07/31/19 Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) Girls on the Run of San Die o 20-3588183 Page 10 
Part IX Statement of Functional Expenses 
Section 507 (c)(3) and 507 (c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A). 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX ........................................... J I 
Do not include amounts reported on lines 

(A) (B) (C) (D) 
Total expenses Program service Management and Fundraising 6b, 7b, Bb, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. expenses general expenses expenses 

1 Grants and other assistance to domestic 
organizations and domestic governments. 
See Part IV, line 21 ........................ 

2 Grants and other assistance to domestic 
individuals. See Part IV, line 22. ............ 

3 Grants and other assistance to foreign 
.. 

organizations, foreign governments, and for-
eign individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16 

4 Benefits paid to or for members ............ 

5 Compensation of current officers, directors, 
trustees, and key employees ............... 73,022. 43,814. 14,604. 14,604. 

6 Compensation not included above to 
disqualified persons (as defined under 
section 4958(f)(l )) and persons described 
in section 4958(c)(3)(B) .................... 0. 0. 0. 0. 

7 Other salaries and wages .................. 94.633. 70 409. 6,479. 17,745. 
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions 

(include section 401 (k) and 403(b) 
employer contributions) .................... 

9 Other employee benefits ................... 3.096. 856. 2 240. 
10 Payroll taxes .............................. 12,758. 8 776. 1,488. 2,494. 
11 Fees for services (nonemployees): 

a Management .............................. 

b Legal ..................................... 

c Accounting ................................ 4,693. 4,693. 
d Lobbying .................................. 

e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17 ... . 
f Investment management fees .............. 

g Other. (If line 1 lg amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column 
2,165. 1,764. 401. (A) amount, list line llg expenses on Schedule 0.) ..... 

12 Advertising and promotion .................. 4,599. 649. 3,950. 
13 Office expenses ........................... 12,769. 4,938. 5,191. 2,640. 
14 Information technology ..................... 1,237. 186. 1,051. 
15 Royalties .................................. 

16 Occupancy ................................ 5,848. 2,924. 1,462. 1,462. 
17 Travel. .................................... 4,846. 3,328. 1,503. 15. 
18 Payments of travel or entertainment 

expenses for any federal, state, or local 
public officials ............................. 

19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings .... 

20 Interest ................................... 

21 Payments to affiliates ...................... 

22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization. ... 

23 Insurance ................................. 7,112. 3,556. 1,778. 1,778. 
24 Other expenses. Itemize expenses not 

I covered above (List miscellaneous expenses 
on line 24e. If line 24e amount exceeds 10% 
of line 25, column (A) amount, list line 24e 
expenses on Schedule O.} ................. .. 

a Pro_gsam Efil2._ense _________ 45 468. 45.468. 
b SK Exgenses ____________ 23 825. 23 825. 
c Ogerational E~enses _____ 19 471. 17.293. 321. 1 857. 
d Sgecial Event Expense _____ 2 805. 2 805. 
e All other expenses ......................... 1,960. 1,890. 200. -130. 

25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e .... 320,307. 229,676. 45,361. 45,270. 
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if 

the organization reported in column (B) 
joint costs from a combined educational 
campaign and fundraising solicitation. 
Check here ► D if following 
SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720) ................... 

BAA TEEAOl lOL 07/31/19 Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) Girls on the Run of San Die o 20-3588183 Page 11 

Part X Balance Sheet 

Ill 
.!I! 
:1: :c 
~ 

::J 

Ill s 
C 
~ 

"i 
al ,, 
C 
:I u. ... 
0 
Ill -$ 
Ill 
<( -Q) z 

BAA 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X ................................................. . 

1 Cash - non-interest-bearing ................................................. . 

2 Savings and temporary cash investments ..................................... . 

3 Pledges and grants receivable, net. .......................................... . 

4 Accounts receivable, net .................................................... . 

5 Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer, director, 
trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35% 
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons .................... . 

6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under 
section 4958(f)(l )), and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B). ............ . 

7 Notes and loans receivable, net. ............................................. . 

8 Inventories for sale or use ................................................... . 

9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges ...................................... . 

10 a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other basis. 

(A) 
Beginning of year 

216,554. 1 
2 
3 

4 

(B) 
End of year 

Complete Part VI of Schedule D. ................... 1--l_0_a+--------..µ::;=======-+"-=-+"-=======-"-
10c b Less: accumulated depreciation .................... '--l_0_b-'-----------1----------+---+---------

11 Investments publicly traded securities ...................................... . 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 
18 
19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

Investments other securities. See Part IV, line 11 ........................... . 

Investments - program-related. See Part IV, line 11 .......................... . 

Intangible assets ............................................................ . 

Other assets. See Part IV, line 11 ............................................ . 

Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 33) ...................... . 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses ..................................... . 
Grants payable ............................................................. . 
Deferred revenue ........................................................... . 

Tax-exempt bond liabilities .................................................. . 

Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D .......... . 

Loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director, trustee, 
key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35% 
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons .................... . 

Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties ............... . 

Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties .................. . 

Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third parties, 
and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X of Schedule D. 

Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 ...................................... . 

Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here ► X 
and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33. 

Net assets without donor restrictions ......................................... . 

Net assets with donor restrictions ............................................ . 

Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here ► D 
and complete lines 29 through 33. 

Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds ............................... . 

Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund ................. . 

Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds ........... . 

Total net assets or fund balances ............................................ . 

Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances .................................. . 

TEEA0111L 07/31/19 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

216,554. 16 280,056. 

583. 17 
18 

22 
23 

24 

29 

30 

31 

215,971. 32 247,924. 
216,554. 33 280,056. 

Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) Girls on the Run of San Die o 20-3588183 Page 12 

Part XI Reconciliation of Net Assets 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI. ................................................. n 

1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) ................................................. 1 352 004. 
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) ................................................. 2 320 307. 
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1 ...................................................... 3 31 697. 
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 32, column (A)) .................. 4 215 971. 
5 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments ............................................................ 5 
6 Donated services and use of facilities ................................................................... 6 
7 Investment expenses .................................................................................. 7 
8 Prior period adjustments ............................................................................... 8 256. 
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain on Schedule 0) .................................... 9 0. 

10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 32, 
column (B)) ........................................................................................... 10 247 924. 

I Part XII I Financial Statements and Reporting 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII........ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . n 
1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: [RJ Cash 0Accrual Oother 

If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked 'Other,' explain 
in Schedule 0. 

2 a Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? ................... . 

If 'Yes,' check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on a 
s~arate basis, consolidated basis, or both: 
LJ Separate basis D Consolidated basis D Both consolidated and separate basis 

b Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant? ................................. . 

l f 'Yes,' check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate 
basis, consolidated basis, or both: 
D Separate basis D Consolidated basis D Both consolidated and separate basis 

c If 'Yes' to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit, 
review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? ........................ . 

If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain 
on Schedule 0. 

3 a As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the Single 

Yes No 

2a X 
t---+--+---

2b X 
1---+---+---

2c 
t---+--+---

Audit Act and 0MB Circular A-133?.... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 a X 
1---+---+---

b If 'Yes,' did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the required audit 
or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 b 

BAA TEEA0112L 01/21/20 Form 990 (2019) 



0MB No. 1545-0047 

SCHEDULE A 
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) 

Public Charity Status and Public Support 
Complete if the organization is a section 501(cX3) organization or a section 

4947(aX1) nonexempt charitable trust. 
2019 

► Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. 
Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service ► Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. 

Open to Public 
· Inspection· 

'. .. ... ' 

Name of the organization I Employer identification number 

Girls on the Run of San Dieqo 20-3588183 
I Part 11 Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions. 
The organization Is not a private foundation because ,t Is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.) 

1 
2 

3 

4 

5 

6 
7 

8 

9 

10 

~ 
A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i). 

A school described in section 170(b)(l)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ).) 

A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(bX1XAXiii). 

A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(bX1XAXiii). Enter the hospital's 
name, city, and state: 

D An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in 
section 170(bX1XAXiv). (Complete Part II.) 

DA federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(bX1XAXv). 

D An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described 
in section 170(bX1XAXvi). (Complete Part II.) 

DA community trust described in section 170(bX1XAXvi). (Complete Part II.) 

D An agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(l)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college 
or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or 
university: 

~ An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33-1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts 
from activities related to its exempt functions-subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33-1 /3% of its support from gross 
investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after 
June 30, 1975. See section 509(aX2). (Complete Part Ill.) 

11 

12 8 An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(aX4). 

An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of one 
or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(aX1) or section 509(aX2). See section 509(aX3). Check the box in 
lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines l 2e, l 2f, and 12g. 

a D Type I. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving the supported 
organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting organization. You must 
complete Part IV, Sections A and 8. 

(A) 

(8) 

(C) 

(D) 

(E) 

b D Type II. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having control or 
management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported organization(s). You 
must complete Part IV, Sections A and C. 

c D Type Ill functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with, its supported 
organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E. 

d D Type Ill non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s) that is not 
functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness requirement (see 
instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V. 

e D Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type I, Type II, Type Ill functionally 
integrated, or Type Ill non-functionally integrated supporting organization. 

f Enter the number of supported organizations ........................................................................ I 
g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s). ,__ ____ __. 

(i) Name of supported organization (ii) EIN (iii) Type of organization (iv) Is the (v) Amount of monetary (vi) Amount of other 
(described on lines 1-10 organization listed support (see instructions) support (see instructions) 
above (see instructions)) in your governing 

document? 

Yes No 

c· ✓ 
.. ·. 

Total 

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 
TEEA0401 L 07/03/19 



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 Girls on the Run of San Die o 20-3588183 
Part II Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(bX1 )(AXiv) and 170(bX1 XAXvi) 

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Ill. If the 
organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part Ill.) 

Section A. Public Support 

Page 2 

Calendar year (or fiscal year 
beginning in) ► 

(a) 2015 (b) 2016 (c) 2017 (d) 2018 (e) 2019 (f) Total 

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and 
membership fees received. (Do not 
include any 'unusual grants.) ....... . 

2 Tax revenues levied for the 
organization's benefit and 
either paid to or expended 
on its behalf ................. . 

3 The value of services or 
facilities furnished by a 
governmental unit to the 
organization without charge .. . 

4 Total. Add lines 1 through 3 .. . 

5 The portion of total 
contributions by each person 
(other than a governmental 
unit or publicly supported 
organization) included on line 1 
that exceeds 2% of the amount 
shown on line 11, column (f). .. 

6 Public support. Subtract line 5 
from line 4 .................. . 

Section B. Total Support 

Calendar year (or fiscal year 
beginning in) ► 

7 Amounts from line 4 . ......... 

8 Gross income from interest, 
dividends, payments received 
on securities loans, rents, 
royalties, and income from 
similar sources ............... 

9 Net income from unrelated 
business activities, whether or 
not the business is regularly 
carried on .................... 

10 Other income. Do not include 
gain or loss from the sale of 
capital assets (Explain in 
Part VI.) ...................... 

11 Total support. Add lines 7 
through 1 O ................... 

(a) 2015 (b) 2016 (c) 2017 (d) 2018 

12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) .................................... 

(e) 2019 (f) Total 

. ............. I 12 

13 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501 (c)(3) 
organization, check this box and stop here .. .................................................................................. ► D 

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage 
14 Public support percentage for 2019 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column (f))..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 % 

l---+-------
15 Public support percentage from 2018 Schedule A, Part II, line 14............................................. 15 % ~-~------
16a 33-1/3% support test-2019. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33-1 /3% or more, check this box 

and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ................................................... ► D 
b 33-1/3% support test-2018. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33-1 /3% or more, check this box 

and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ► D 
17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test-2019. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is 1 0% 

or more, and if the organization meets the 'facts-and-circumstances' test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how 
the organization meets the 'facts-and-circumstances' test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ......... . 

b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test-2018. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line 15 is 10% 
or more, and if the organization meets the 'facts-and-circumstances' test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the 
organization meets the 'facts-and-circumstances' test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ............. . 

18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see instructions .. . 

►□ 

BAA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 

TEEA0402L 07 /03/19 



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 Girls on the Run of San Die o 20-3588183 Page 3 

Part Ill Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2) 
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under Part II. If the organization 
fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.) 

_S_e_c_ti_o_n_A_._P_u_b_l_ic_S_u---'p~p~o_rt __ .-------,--------,---------.---------.------.---------;( ) 
(a)2015 (b) 2016 (c)2017 (d) 2018 (e)2019 (f)Total '"¾=··' Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) ► 

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, 
and membership fees 

f-----'--'-------1---'-..:..._----+------+---'-'-----+----'-'-----+----'--'-----

received. (Do not include 
any 'unusual grants.')......... 122 514. 102 959. 241 613. 251 657. 228 822. 947 565 

2 Gross receipts from admissions, 1---=-=..r...::~'-'-!---=-=.L...::.=-==--=-+--=--=-=-L..==..:+--=-='-=-''-="-'-..:...+--=-=-'--=-==-=-=-+----=-....::....c....<..;::..=::...,...• 
merchandise sold or services 
performed, or facilities 
furnished in any activity that is 
related to the organization's 
tax-exempt purpose .......... . 

3 Gross receipts from activities f---=~-'-"'=-"'-'-l--=~.L.-=.~--=-+-~~~~-+-~~~~-+--=~~'---+-----------~--
126 128. 120 171. 138 699. 124 216. 123 167. 632 381. 

that are not an unrelated trade 
or business under section 513. 0. 

4 Tax revenues levied for the f----------1-------+------+------+-------+-------~ 
organization's benefit and 
either paid to or expended on 
its behalf .................... . 0. 

5 The value of services or f----------1-------+------+------+-------+---------'=--'--
facilities furnished by a 
governmental unit to the 

0. organization without charge ... 1--------1-------+-------+------+-------+--------
6 Total. Add Ii nes 1 through 5 . . . f---=-=-=-L-:'-==-=-1--==-=.L.-=.=-=--=..+---=-.c=-=--'-==....:+--=-'--=--'-"-'-=--+--=-=c.=..L-=-.c'--"-"-+--=-'--=---'--"-'----''-=-"--'-
7a Amounts included on lines 1, 

2, and 3 received from 

248 642. 223 130. 380 312. 375 873. 351 989. 1 579 946. 

disqualified persons ........... f--------='-'-l------=--=-+------"'-+-----=--+------"--"-+------=--'--0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 
b Amounts included on lines 2 

and 3 received from other than 
disqualified persons that 
exceed the greater of $5,000 or 
1 % of the amount on line 13 
for the year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . O . O • 

1-----.....aa..:...i-------=--=-+--------"..:+----...;;.""+-----"-=-+------;;...;... 
c Add lines 7a and 7b... . . . . . . . . 0. 

8 Public support. (Subtract line rr7tl7tl7tl~~7tl7tl7tl7tlticti7tlJ"t:;;:-;-;r::-;•;:-:>~/;:-,f;J.t;rt,;;:fl•;-;;-:,,:;7tl~7tl7tl7tls""tc:;:7tl7tl7tl7tl~i---------
7c from line 6.) .............. . 1 579 946 

Section B. Total Support 
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) ► (a) 2015 (b) 2016 (c)2017 (d) 2018 (e)2019 (f) Total 

9 Amounts from line 6 .......... 248,642. 223,130. 380,312. 375,873. 351,989. 1,579,946. 
1 0a Gross income from interest, dividends, 

payments received on securities loans, 
rents, royalties, and income from 
similar sources .................. 32. 23. 18. 19. 15. 107. 

b Unrelated business taxable 
income (less section 511 
taxes) from businesses 
acquired after June 30, 1975 .. 0. 

c Add lines 1 Oa and 1 Ob ........ 32. 23. 18. 19. 15. 107. 
11 Net income from unrelated business 

activities not included in line 10b, 
whether or not the business is 
regularly carried on ............... 0. 

12 Other income. Do not include 
gain or loss from the sale of 
capital assets (Explain in 
Part VI.} ..................... 0. 

13 Total support. (Add lines 9, 
10c, 11, and 12.} ............. 248,674. 223,153. 380,330. 375,892. 352,004. 1,580,053. 

14 ~~~~tnV::tro~~rZh~~ihfhi~ob~ 9inod1~t~~ hhirt~a_nizat1_o_n·~. ~lr~t,_ ~~~~n_d_,. ~hl~d'. f~urth,_ ~r_f_1fth_ tax -y~ar _a_s_ a_ sect1-~n _5_01_ (~)-(3) .......... ► □ 
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage 
15 Public support percentage for 2019 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) ......................... . 15 99.99 ~ 0 

16 Public support percentage from 2018 Schedule A, Part Ill, line 15 ............................................ . 16 99.99 % 

Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage 
17 Investment income percentage for 2019 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) ................... . 17 0.01 % 
18 Investment income percentage from 2018 Schedule A, Part Ill, line 17 ........................................ '----'-----"--'-~----·· 18 0.01 % 
19a 33-1/3% support tests-2019. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33-1 /3%, and line 17 

is not more than 33-1 /3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ........... ► 

b 33-1/3% support tests-2018. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33-1 /3%, and 
line 18 is not more than 33-1 /3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization .... ► D 

20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions. ............ ► D 
BAA TEEA0403L 07103119 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 Girls on the Run of San Die o 20-3588183 Page 4 
Part IV Supporting Organizations 

(Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part I. If you checked 12a of Part I, complete Sections 
A and B. If you checked 12b of Part I, complete Sections A and C. If you checked 12c of Part I, complete 
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked 12d of Part I, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.) 

Section A. All Supporting Organizations 
Yes No 

1 Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization's governing documents? 
If 'No,' describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by class or purpose, describe 
the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 1 

2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status under section 
509(a)(l) or (2)? If 'Yes,' explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported organization was 
described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 2 

·.• 

3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501 (c)(4), (5), or (6)? If 'Yes,' answer (b) 
and (c) below. 3a 

b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501 (c)(4), (5), or (6) and 
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If 'Yes,' describe in Part VI when and how the organization 
made the determination. 3b 

c Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section l 70(c)(2)(B) 
purposes? If 'Yes,' explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 3c 

4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ('foreign supported organization')? If 'Yes' and 
if you checked 72a or 72b in Part I, answer (b) and (c) below. 4a 

b Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign supported 
organization? If 'Yes,' describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion despite being controlled 
or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations. 4b 

c Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination under ·. 
sections 501 (c)(3) and 509(a)(l) or (2)? If 'Yes,' explain in Part VI what controls the organization used to ensure that 
all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section l 70(c)(2)(B) purposes. 4c 

. 
. · . 

Sa Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If 'Yes,' answer (b) 
. 

and (c) below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN numbers of the supported 
. 

' 
organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ii) the reasons for each such action; (iii) the authority under the 

.... 

organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action was accomplished (such as by 
amendment to the organizing document). Sa 

b Type I or Type II only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already designated in the ... · 

organization's organizing document? Sb 

c Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control? Sc 

6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to .· 

anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited by one 
or more of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also support or benefit one or more of 
the filing organization's supported organizations? If 'Yes,' provide detail in Part VJ. 6 

7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor 
(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with 
regard to a substantial contributor? If 'Yes,' complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ). 7 

8 Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described in line 7? If 'Yes,' 
complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ). 8 

9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more disqualified persons 
as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described in section 509(a)(l) or (2))? 
If 'Yes,' provide detail in Part VI. 9a 

b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined in line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which the 
supporting organization had an interest? If 'Yes,' provide detail in Part VI. 9b 

c Did a disqualified person (as defined in line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit from, 
assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? If 'Yes,' provide detail in Part VI. 9c 

1 0a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section 4943(f) (regarding 
certain Type II supporting organizations, and all Type Ill non-functionally integrated supporting organizations)? If 'Yes,' 
answer 10b below. 10a 

b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to determine 
whether the organization had excess business holdings.) 10b 

BAA TEEA0404L 07 /03/19 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 



Shdl AF c e u e ( arm or ) 990 990 EZ 2019 G' l ir s on t h R e un 0 f s an D' ieqo -20 3588183 
I Part IV I Supporting Organizations (continued) 

11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons? 

a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (b) and (c) below, the 
governing body of a supported organization? 

b A family member of a person described in (a) above? 

c A 35% controlled entity of a person described in (a) or (b) above? If 'Yes' to a, b, or c, provide detail in Part VI. 

Section B. Type I Supporting Organizations 

1 Did the directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint 
or elect at least a majority of the organization's directors or trustees at all times during the tax year? If 'No,' describe in 
Part VI how the supported organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization's activities. 
If the organization had more than one supported organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove 
directors or trustees were allocated among the supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, 
applied to such powers during the tax year. 

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported organization(s) 
that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If 'Yes,' explain in Part VI how providing such 
benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the 
supporting organization. 

Section C. Type II Supporting Organizations 

1 Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors or trustees 
of each of the organization's supported organization(s)? If 'No,' describe in Part VI how control or management of the 
supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed the supported organization(s). 

Section D. All Type Ill Supporting Organizations 

Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the 
organization's tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax 
year, (ii) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the 
organization's governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided? 

2 Were any of the organization's officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported 
organization(s) or (ii) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If 'No,' explain in Part VI how 
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s). 

3 By reason of the relationship described in (2), did the organization's supported organizations have a significant 
voice in the organization's investment policies and in directing the use of the organization's income or assets at 
all times during the tax year? If 'Yes,' describe in Part VI the role the organization's supported organizations played 
in this regard. 

Section E. Type Ill Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations 

1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions). 

a D The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below. 

b D The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below. 

p age 

Yes No 

.. 

11a 

11 b 

11c 

Yes No 

c D The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a government entity (see instructions). 

2 Activities Test. Answer (a) and (b) below. 

a Did substantially all of the organization's activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of the 
supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If 'Yes,' then in Part VI identify those supported 
organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes, how the organization was 
responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined that these activities constituted 
substantially all of its activities. 

b Did the activities described in (a) constitute activities that, but for the organization's involvement, one or more of 
the organization's supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? If 'Yes,' explain in Part VI the reasons for 
the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in these activities but for the 
organization's involvement. 

3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer (a) and (b) below. 

a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or trustees of 
each of the supported organizations? Provide details in Part VI. 

b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each of its 

2b 

3a 

supported organizations? If 'Yes,' describe in Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard. 3b 

Yes No 

5 

BAA TEEA0405L 07103119 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 Girls on the Run of San Die o 20-3588183 
Part V Type Ill Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations 

1 D Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part VI). See 
instructions. All other Type Ill non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E. 

Page 6 

Section A - Adjusted Net Income (A) Prior Year (B) Current Year 
(optional) 

1 Net short-term capital gain 1 

2 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 2 

3 Other gross income (see instructions) 3 

4 Add lines 1 through 3. 4 

5 Depreciation and depletion 5 

6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or collection of gross 
income or for management, conservation, or maintenance of property held for 
production of income (see instructions) 6 

7 Other expenses (see instructions) 7 

8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4) 8 

Section B - Minimum Asset Amount (A) Prior Year (B) Current Year 
(optional) 

.. 
1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see instructions for short 

tax year or assets held for part of year): 

a Average monthly value of securities 1a 

b Average monthly cash balances 1b 

c Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets 1c 

d Total (add lines 1 a, 1 b, and 1 c) 1d 

e Discount claimed for blockage or other 
factors (explain in detail in Part VI): ·. .· 

2 Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets 2 

3 Subtract line 2 from line 1 d. 3 

4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 1-1 /2% of line 3 (for greater amount, 
see instructions). 4 

5 Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3) 5 

6 Multiply line 5 by .035. 6 

7 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 7 

8 Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6) 8 
.. 

Section C - Distributable Amount Current Year 
. ·. . 

1 Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, Column A) 1 

2 Enter 85% of line 1. 2 
' 

•.· 

3 Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, Column A) 3 

4 Enter greater of line 2 or line 3. 4 .· ··• 

5 Income tax imposed in prior year 5 

6 Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to emergency 
.. '.· 

temporary reduction (see instructions). 6 .. 

7 D Check here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally integrated Type Ill supporting organization 
(see instructions). 

BAA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 

TEEAD406L 07/03/19 



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 Girls on the Run of San Die o 20-3588183 Page 7 

Part V Type Ill Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued) 
Section D - Distributions Current Year 

1 Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes 

2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported organizations, 
in excess of income from activity 

3 Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations 

4 Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets 

5 Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required) 

6 Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions. 

7 Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6. 

8 Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive (provide details 
in Part VI). See instructions. 

9 Distributable amount for 2019 from Section C, line 6 

10 Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount 

Section E - Distribution Allocations (see instructions) 

1 Distributable amount for 2019 from Section C, line 6 

2 Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2019 (reasonable 
cause required - explain in Part VI). See instructions. 

3 Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2019 

a From 2014 .............. . 

b From 2015 .............. . 

c From 2016 .............. . 

d From 2017. .............. . 

e From 2018 .............. . 

f Total of lines 3a through e 

g Applied to underdistributions of prior years 

h Applied to 2019 distributable amount 

i Carryover from 2014 not applied (see instructions) 

j Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from 3f. 

4 Distributions for 2019 from Section D, 
line 7: $ 

a Applied to underdistributions of prior years 

b Applied to 2019 distributable amount 
c Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from 4. 

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2019, if any. 
Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result greater than 
zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions. 

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2019. Subtract lines 3h and 4b 
from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in Part VI. See 
instructions. 

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2020. Add lines 3j and 4c. 

8 Breakdown of line 7: 

a Excess from 2015 ...... . 
b Excess from 2016 ...... . 

c Excess from 2017 ...... . 

d Excess from 2018 ..... . 

e Excess from 2019 ...... . 

(i) 
Excess 

Distributions 

(ii) 
Underdistributions 

Pre-2019 

(iii) 
Distributable 

Amount for 2019 

BAA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 

TEEA0407L 07103119 



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 Girls on the Run of San Die o 20-3588183 Page 8 

Part VI Supplemental Information. Provide the ex.Planations required by Part II, line 10; Part II, line 17a or 17b;Part Ill, line 12; Part IV, 
Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, Sa, 6, 9a, 9b, 9c, 11 a, 11 b, and 11 c; Part IV, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, line 1; 
Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines le, 2a, 2b, 3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line le; Part V, 
Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E, lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. 
(See instructions.) 

BAA TEEA0408L 07103/19 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 



Schedule B 

(Form 990, 990-EZ, 
or 990-PF) 

Schedule of Contributors 

► Attach to Form 990, Form 990-EZ, or Form 990-PF. 

0MB No. 1545-0047 

2019 
Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service ► Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. 
Name of the organization Employer identification number 

Girls on the Run of San Die o 20-3588183 
Organization type (check one): 

Filers of: Section: 

Form 990 or 990-EZ IB] 501 (c)( 3 ) (enter number) organization 

Form 990-PF 

D 4947(a)(l) nonexempt charitable trust not treated as a private foundation 

D 527 political organization 

D 501 (c)(3) exempt private foundation 

D 4947(a)(l) nonexempt charitable trust treated as a private foundation 

D 501 (c)(3) taxable private foundation 

Check if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule. 

Note: Only a section 501 (c)(7), (8), or (10) organization can check boxes for both the General Rule and a Special Rule. See instructions. 

General Rule 

IB] For an organization filing Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF that received, during the year, contributions totaling $5,000 or more (in money 
or property) from any one contributor. Complete Parts I and II. See instructions for determining a contributor's total contributions. 

Special Rules 

□ 

□ 

□ 

For an organization described in section 501 (c)(3) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that met the 33-1/3% support test of the regulations 
under sections 509(a)(l) and 170(b)(l)(A)(vi), that checked Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ), Part II, line 13, 16a, or 16b, and that 
received from any one contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of (1) $5,000; or (2) 2% of the amount on (i) 
Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 h; or (ii) Form 990-EZ, line 1. Complete Parts I and II. 

For an organization described in section 501 (c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor, 
during the year, total contributions of more than $1,000 exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific, literary, or educational 
purposes, or for the prevention of cruelty to children or animals. Complete Parts I, II, and Ill. 

For an organization described in section 501 (c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor, 
during the year, contributions exclusively for religious, charitable, etc., purposes, but no such contributions totaled more than 
$1,000. If this box is checked, enter here the total contributions that were received during the year for an exclusively religious, 
charitable, etc., purpose. Don't complete any of the parts unless the General Rule applies to this organization because 
it received nonexclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions totaling $5,000 or more during the year. ► $ ________ _ 

Caution: An organization that isn't covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules doesn't file Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 
990-PF), but it must answer 'No' on Part IV, line 2, of its Form 990; or check the box on line Hof its Form 990-EZ or on its Form 990-PF, 
Part I, line 2, to certify that it doesn't meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF). 

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF. Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2019)"·-/ 

TEEA0701 L 08/09/19 



Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2019) 1 1 Page 2 
Name of organization Employer identification number 

Girls on the Run of San Die o 20-3588183 

I Part I I Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part I if additional space is needed. 

(a) (b) (c) (d) 
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total Type of contribution 

contributions 

1 Clare Rose Foundation Person IBl 
--- -------------------------------------- Payroll □ _5060 Shoreham PLace, Suite_350 _______________ $ ----- 50,000. Noncash □ 

Jan Di~q_o, CA 92122 _______________________ (Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

(a) (b) (c) (d) 
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total Type of contribution 

contributions 

2 Rite Aid Person IBl --- -------------------------------------- Payroll □ 30 Hunter Lane $ ------ 5,000. Noncash □ --------------------------------------
_ca~_ Hill, PA 17011 -----------------------

(Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

(a) (b) (c) (d) 
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total Type of contribution 

contributions 

3 _!3irdwell Family Foundation __________________ Person IBl 
--- Payroll □ 309 Belle Meade Blvd $ ----- 10,000. Noncash □ --------------------------------------

_Nashville, TN 37205-3419 ___________________ (Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

(a) (b) (c) (d) 
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total Type of contribution 

contributions 

4 _yang1rnrd _______________________________ Person IBl --- Payroll □ 
2525 Camino Del Rio S#260 $ ----- 10,000. Noncash □ --------------------------------------
Jan Di~q_o, CA 92108 _______________________ (Complete Part II for 

noncash contributions.) 

(a) (b) (c) (d) 
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total Type of contribution 

contributions 

5 
~i@a ---------------------------------

Person IBl 
--- Payroll □ }636 Nobel Drive #150 ______________________ $ ----- 10,000. Noncash □ 

_San Di~q_o, CA 92122 _______________________ (Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

(a) (b) (c) (d) 
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total Type of contribution 

contributions 

6 Gamma Phi Beta Person IBl 
--- -------------------------------------- Payroll □ 12737 E.Euclid Drive $ ----- 10,500. Noncash □ --------------------------------------

_Centennial, CO _80111-6445 ___________________ (Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

BAA TEEA0702L 08/09/19 Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2019) 



Schedule B (Farm 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2019) 1 1 Page 3 
Name of organization Employer identification number 

Girls on the Run of San Die o 20-3588183 

I Part II I Noncash Property (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part II if additional space is needed. 

(a) No. 
from 
Part I 

(a) No. 
from 
Part I 

(a) No. 
from 
Part I 

(a) No. 
from 
Part I 

(a) No. 
from 
Part I 

(a) No. 
from 
Part I 

BAA 

(b) 
Description of noncash property given 

PIA __________________________ _ 

~-------------------------- -------------
$ 

(c) 
FMV (or estimate) 
(See instructions.) 

(d) 
Date received 

~----------------- ---------------------- --------------------
(b) 

Description of noncash property given 

~---------------------------------------
----------------------------------------- $ 

(c) 
FMV (or estimate) 
(See instructions.) 

(d) 
Date received 

~------------------------------------- ----------------

(b) 
Description of noncash property given 

~------------------------- --------------

$ 

(c) 
FMV (or estimate) 
(See instructions.) 

(d) 
Date received 

~---------------------------- ----------- ------------- ------

(b) 
Description of noncash property given 

~------------- -------------------------
~---------------------------------------

(c) 
FMV (or estimate) 
(See instructions.) 

(d) 
Date received 

~---------------------------------------- $ 
~------------------- -------------------- --------------------

(b) 
Description of noncash property given 

~----------------------------------------
~----------------------------------------
~-----

$ 

(b) 
Description of noncash property given 

------------ ----------------------------
$ 

---------- ---------------------

(c) 
FMV (or estimate) 
(See instructions.) 

(c) 
FMV (or estimate) 
(See instructions.) 

(d) 
Date received 

(d) 
Date received 

Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2019) 

TEEA0703L 08/09/19 



Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2019) 1 1 Page 4 
Name of organization Employer identification number 

Girls on the Run of San Die o 20-3588183 
Part Ill Exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions to organizations described in section 501(c)(7), (8), 

or (10) that total more than $1,000 for the year from any one contributor. Complete columns (a) through (e) and 

(a) 
No. from 

Part I 

(a) 
No. from 

Part I 

(a) 
No. from 

Part I 

(a) 
No. from 

Part I 

BAA 

the following line entry. For organizations completing Part Ill, enter the total of exclusively religious, charitable, etc., 
contributions of $1,000 or less for the year. (Enter this information once. See instructions.) ............ ► $ ________ _NlA 
Use duplicate copies of Part Ill if additional space is needed. 

(b) 
Purpose of gift 

(c) 
Use of gift 

(d) 
Description of how gift is held 

~/A ________________ --------------------

-----------------------------------------

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 

(e) 
Transfer of gift 

Relationship of transferor to transferee 

~----------------------------------~---------------------------
~--------------------------------------------------------------
~----------------------------------~---------------------------

(b) 
Purpose of gift 

(c) 
Use of gift 

(d) 
Description of how gift is held 

~---------------------------------------- ---------------------

~---------------------------------------- ---------------------

(e) 
Transfer of gift 

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee 

~---------------------------------- --------------------------· 

~---------------------------------- --------------------------· 
(b) 

Purpose of gift 
(c) 

Use of gift 
(d) 

Description of how gift is held 

~---------------------------------------- --------------------· 

(e) 
Transfer of gift 

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee 

-----------------------------------~--------------------------· 
-----------------------------------r--------------------------· 
-----------------------------------~--------------------------· 

(b) 
Purpose of gift 

(c) 
Use of gift 

(d) 
Description of how gift is held 

----------------------------------------- --------------------· 

(e) 
Transfer of gift 

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee 

-----------------------------------~--------------------------· 

-----------------------------------~--------------------------· 
Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2019) 

TEEA0704L 08/09/19 



SCHEDULED 
(Form 990) 

Supplemental Financial Statements 
► Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, 

Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11 a, 11 b, 11 c, 11 d, lle, llf, 12a, or 12b. 
► Attach to Form 990. 

0MB No. 1545-0047 

2019 
Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service ► Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. 

Open to Public 
Inspection 

Name of the organization Employer identification number 

Girls on the Run of San Dieoo 20-3588183 
!Part I I Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. 

Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 6. 
(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts 

1 Total number at end of year ................ 

2 Aggregate value of contributions to (during year) ....... 

3 Aggregate value of grants from (during year) ......... 

4 Aggregate value at end of year ............. 

5 Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds 
are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control?................. . . . . . . . . . . D Yes 

6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only 
for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring 
impermissible private benefit?............................... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . D Yes D No 

!Part 11>,j Conservation Easements. 
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 7. 

1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply). 

§ Preservation of land for public use (for example, recreation or education) D Preservation of a historically important land area 

Protection of natural habitat D Preservation of a certified historic structure 

Preservation of open space 

2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the 
last day of the tax year. 

Held at the End of the Tax Year 

a Total number of conservation easements............... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 a t----+--------------b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements............ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 b 
t----+---------------'1 

c Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in (a) . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 c 
1------t------------,,,-/ 

d Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 7/25/06, and not on a historic 
structure listed in the National Register............................ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 d ~-~-------------3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the 
tax year ► 

4 Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located ► 

5 Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of violations, 
and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds?..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . D Yes D No 

6 Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year 
► 

7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year 
► $ 

---------
8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i) 

and section 170(h)(4)(B)(ii)?......................................... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . D Yes 

9 In Part XIII, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement and balance sheet, and 
include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the organization's accounting for 
conservation easements. 

jPartUI I Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets. 
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 8. 

1 a If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art, 
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide in 
Part XIII the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items. 

b If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art, 
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide the 
following amounts relating to these items: 

(i) Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 ........................................................ ► $ 
(ii) Assets included in Form 990, Part X .................................................................. ► $---------

2 If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the following 
amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items: 

a Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1. ........................................................... ► $ 
b Assets included in Form 990, Part X ...................................................................... ► $---------

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. TEEA3301L s,22119 Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 



Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 Girls on the Run of San Die o 20-3588183 Page 2 
Part Ill Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued) 

3 Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its collection 
items (check all that apply): 

a § Public exhibition 
b Scholarly research 

c Preservation for future generations 

d D Loan or exchange program 

e D Other 

4 Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in 
Part XIII. 

5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets D D 
to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's collection?... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Yes No 

!Part IV I Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, 
line 9, or reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21. 

1 a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included 
on Form 990, Part X? ..... ................................................................................... D Yes 

b If 'Yes,' explain the arrangement in Part XIII and complete the following table: 

Amount 

c Beginning balance. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 c 
t---+-------------

d Additions during the year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 d ,__ _____________ _ 
e Distributions during the year....... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 e 

t---+-------------
f Ending balance............................................................................ 1 f 

~-~----,---,,--------,---,---
2 a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability?..... Yes No 

b If 'Yes,' explain the arrangement in Part XIII. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part XIII. .. ................. . 

!Part V I Endowment Funds. Complete if the or 1anization answered 'Yes' on Form 990 Part IV line 10. 
(a) Current year (b) Prior year (c) Two years back 

1 a Beginning of year balance ...... 

b Contributions .................. 

c Net investment earnings, gains, 
and losses .................... 

d Grants or scholarships ......... 

e Other expenditures for facilities 
and programs ................. 

f Administrative expenses ....... 

g End of year balance ........... 

2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1 g, column (a)) held as: 

a Board designated or quasi-endowment ► 

b Permanent endowment ► 

c Term endowment ► ______ % 

9-
0 

The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%. 

9-
0 

(d) Three years back 

3 a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the 
organization by: 
(i) Unrelated organizations ................................................................................... . 

(ii) Related organizations ..................................................................................... . 

b If 'Yes' on line 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R? ............................. . 

4 Describe in Part XIII the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds. 

IPartVI I Land, Buildings, and Equipment. 

(e) Four years back 

Yes No 
3a(i) 
3a(ii) 
3b 

Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 11 a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10. 
Description of property (a) Cost or other basis (b) Cost or other (c) Accumulated (d) Book value 

(investment) basis (other) depreciation 
1 a Land ...................................... 

b Buildings .................................. 

c Leasehold improvements ................... 

d Equipment ................................ 

e Other ..................................... 

Total. Add lines 1 a through 1 e. (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (BJ, line /De.) ..................... ► 0. 
BAA Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 

TEEA3302L 8122/19 



Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 Girls on the Run of San Die o 20-3588183 Page 3 

Part VII Investments - Other Securities. N/A 
C I t .f th . f d 'Y ' F ompe e I e orqanIza I0n answere es on orm 

' 
ar 

' 
me 990 P t IV r 11 b S ee orm 

' 
ar 

' 
me F 990 P t X r 12 

(a) Description of security or category (including name of security) (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value 

(1) Financial derivatives ................................ f 
(2) Closely held equity interests ......................... \. 
(3) Other ----------------------(A) ----------------------------(B) ------------------------- -
(C) 
----------------------------
(D) 
----------------------------
(E) 
----------------------------
(F) 
----------------------------(G) 
----------------------------
(H) -----------------------(I) ----------------------------
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (8) line 12.) ... ► >;:; '. ;,,:7t)'?.:i;,:3l,:E' '":, t:2·· ·{{;/ '/h •. i ·•·· ' IParfVlll-1 Investments - Progr~m Related. N/A 

' ' Com lete 1f the or anIzatIon answered Yes on Form 990, Part IV, line 11 c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13. 
(a) Description of investment (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

(7) 

(8) 

(9) 

(10) 

Parf.lX~ Other Assets. N/A 
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 11 d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15. 

(a) Description (b) Book value 
(1) 
(2) 
(3) 

(4) 
(5) 

(6) 
(7) 
(8) 

(9) 
(10) 

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (BJ line 15.). ............................................. ► 

IPart'X :;1 Other Li_abilities. 
' ' Complete 1f the organization answered Yes on Form 990, Part IV, line 11 e or 1 lf. See Form 990, Part X, line 25. 

1. (a) Description of liability (b) Book value 
(1) Federal income taxes 

(2) Lona term debt 32,132. 
(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

(7) 
(8) 

(9) 
(10) 
(11) ( 

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (8) line 25.) . ............................................................ ► 32,132. 
2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XIII, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that reports the organization's liability for uncertain 
tax positions under FASS ASC 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIII. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0 
BAA TEEA3303L s,22119 Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 



Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 Girls on the Run of San Die o 20-3588183 
Part XI Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return. N/A 

Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a. 
1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements .................................. 1 
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12: 

a Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments ................................. 2a 
b Donated services and use of facilities ........................................ 2b 
c Recoveries of prior year grants .............................................. 2c .· 

d Other (Describe in Part XIII.) ................................................ 2d 

e Add lines 2a through 2d .. .............................................................................. 2e 
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 ............................................... .............................. 3 
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1: 

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b .............. 4a 
b Other (Describe in Part XIII.) ................................................ 4b 

c Add lines 4a and 4b ................................................................................ ... 4c 
5 Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 72) ........................... 5 

IPartXll>I Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return. N/A 
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a. 

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements ................... ........... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25: 

a Donated services and use of facilities ................................ ........ 2a 
b Prior year adjustments .............................................. ........ 2b 
c Other losses ................................................................ 2c 
d Other (Describe in Part XIII.) ................................................ 2d 
e Add lines 2a through 2d . .............................................................. ................. 2e 

3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 ...................................................................... ....... 3 

4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1: 
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b .............. 4a 
b Other (Describe in Part XIII.) ................................................ 4b 
c Add lines 4a and 4b ................................................................................... 4c 

5 Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 78) ........................... 5 

!Part XIII I Supplemental Information. 
Provide the descriptions required for Part II, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part Ill, lines la and 4; Part IV, lines lb and 2b; Part V, 

Page 4 

line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information. 

BAA Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 

TEEA3304L 8/22/19 



SCHEDULE 0 
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) 

Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service 

Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ 
Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 

Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information. 
► Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ. 

► Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. 

0MB No. 1545-0047 

2019 
Open to Public 
Inspection .· 

Name of the organization 

Girls on the Run of San Dieao I 
Employer identification number 

20-3588183 

Form 990, Part VI, Line 11 b - Form 990 Review Process 

A DRAFT OF THE FORM 990 IS REVIEWED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD TO PROVIDE ANY 

CORRECTIONS OR ADDITIONS BEFORE BEING FINALIZED 

Form 990, Part VI, Line 12c - Explanation of Monitoring and Enforcement of Conflicts 

THE ORGANIZATION'S BYLAWS REQUIRE THE REVIEW OF POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST ON A 

TRANSACTION SPECIFIC BASIS. THIS IS NO SECTION OF THE BYLAWS THAT REQUIRE REGULAR, 

CONSISTENT MONITORING. 

Form 990, Part VI, Line 15b- Compensation Review & Approval Process - Officers & Key Employees 

CHANGES IN COMPENSATION FOR ALL KEY EMPLOYEES ARE DISCUSSED AMONG THE EXECUTIVE 

COMMITTEE AND RESULTING RECOMMENDATIONS ARE SUBMITTED TO FULL BOARD FOR APPROVAL. 

Form 990, Part VI, Line 19 - Other Organization Documents Publicly Available 

No other documents available to the public. 

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. TEEA4901L 08/19/19 Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2019) 



Voucher at bottom of page. 

DO NOT MAIL A PAPER COPY OF THE CORPORATE OR EXEMPT ORGANIZATION 
TAX RETURN WITH THE PAYMENT VOUCHER. 

WHERE TO FILE: 

If the amount of payment is zero, do not mail this voucher. 

Using black or blue ink, make check or money order payable to the 
"Franchise Tax Board." Write the corporation number, FEIN, CA SOS file 
number and "2019 FTB 3586" on the check or money order. Detach 
voucher below. Enclose, but do not staple, payment with voucher and 
mail to: 

FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 
PO BOX 942857 
SACRAMENTO CA 94257-0531 

Make all checks or money orders payable in U.S. dollars and drawn against a U.S. financial institution. 

WHEN TO FILE: Corporations - File and Pay by the 15th day of the 4th month following the 
close of the taxable year. 

S corporations - File and Pay by the 15th day of the 3rd month following the 
close of the taxable year. 

Exempt organizations - File and Pay by the 15th day of the 5th month following 
the close of the taxable year. 

When the due date falls on a weekend or holiday, the deadline to file and pay without penalty is extended 
to the next business day. 

ONLINE SERVICES: Corporations can make payments online using Web Pay for Businesses. Corporations 
can make an immediate payment or schedule payments up to a year in advance. Go 
to ftb.ca.gov/pay for more information. 

___ DETACH HERE ___________ IF NO PAYMENT IS DUE, DO NOT MAIL THIS VOUCHER ___________ DETACH HERE __ _ 

CAUTION: You may be required to pay electronically, see instructions. 

TAXABLE YEAR 

2019 
Payment Voucher for Corporations 
and Exempt Organizations e-filed Returns 

3557329 GIRL 20-3588183 
TYB 07-01-19 TYE 06-30-20 
GIRLS ON THE RUN OF SAN DIEGO 
KASEY MACNAIR 
PO BOX 230544 
ENCINITAS 

614 816-6991 

CA 92023 

000000000000 19 

AMOUNT OF PAYMENT 

■ 059 6181196 CACA 1201 L 11 /15/19 

CALIFORNIA FORM 

3586 (e-file) 

FORM 3 

10. 

FTB 3586 2019 ■ 



TAXABLE YEAR 

2019 
C alendar Y 2019 ear 

California Exempt Organization 
Annual Information Return 

or fiscal year beginning (mm/dd yyyy) 7/01/2019 

FORM 

199 
, an en ing (mm/d /yyyy) d d d 6/30/2020 

Corporation/Organization name California corporation number 

GIRLS ON THE RUN OF SAN DIEGO 3557329 
Additional information. See instructions. FEIN 

20-3588183 
Street address (suite or room) PMS no. 

PO BOX 230544 
City State Zip code 

ENCINITAS CA 92023 
Foreign country name Foreign province/state/county Foreign postal code 

A First Return . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . B Yes I'' J If exempt under R& TC Section 23701 d, has the 

B Amended Return. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • Yes No 
organization engaged in political activities? 

• 0Yes ~No See instructions ................................ 
C IRC Section 4947(a)(l) trust ........................... 0Yes No 
D Final Information Return? 

• 0Yes ~No • D Dissolved D Surrendered (Withdrawn) D Merged/Reorganized K Is the organization exempt under R& TC Section 23701 g? ... 
If "Yes," enter the gross receipts from 

Enter date: (mm/dd/yyyy) • nonmember sources ..................... $ 
E Check accounting method: L If organization is a public charity exempt under 

1 ~ Cash 2 D Accrual 3 D Other 

3 • □ Sch H (990) 
R& TC Section 23701 d and meets the filing fee 

•□ F Federal return filed? 1 • D 990T 2 • D 990-PF exception, check box. No filing fee is required .......... 

4 D Other 990 series M Is the organization a Limited Liability Company? ......... • 0Yes ~No 
G Is this a group filing? See instructions .................. • 0Yes ~ No N Did the organization file Form 100 or Form 109 to report 

taxable incomeZ ................................ • 0Yes ~No 
H Is this organization in a group exemption .................. 0Yes ~ No 0 Is the organization under audit by the IRS or has the IRS 

If "Yes," what is the parent's name? audited in a prior year? ........................... • 0Yes ~No 
p Is federal Form 1023/1024 pending? ................... 0Yes □ No 

I Did the organization have any changes to its guidelines 
• 0Yes ~ No 

Date filed with IRS 
not reported to the FTB? See instructions ................ 

Part I Complete Part I unless not required to file this form. See General Information B and C. 

1 Gross sales or receipts from other sources. From Side 2, Part II, line 8 ..................... • ,___1-+ _____ 1_2_3_,__1_8_2_ 

Receipts 
and 

Revenues 

Expenses 

Filing 
Fee 

Sign 
Here 

2 Gross dues and assessments from members and affiliates ................................. • t---+----------
3 Gross contributions, gifts, grants, and similar amounts received ........... . SEE .. S.CH ... B. • 

1---,-,~,,_,..,--,-,-,-,.,,.-==.,.,..,==,-= 
4 Total gross receipts for filing requirement test. Add line 1 through line 3. 

This line must be completed. If the result is less than $50,000, see General Information B .. • ,----,-----------;,,,,-,.,...,.,..,~=,.,.,..,~..,,.,...,..,,..,--,,..,.,.,.,,,., 
5 Cost of goods sold ......................................... • f-5"--+----------1',,,>> 

6 Cost or other basis, and sales expenses of assets sold ....... • L-6~.J._--------~=~========= 
7 Total costs. Add line 5 and line 6 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 
8 Total gross income. Subtract line 7 from line 4 ............................................ • 8 352 004. 
9 Total expenses and disbursements. From Side 2, Part 11, line 18 ........................... • t---9-+-------3 ___ 2_0_,_ ___ 3---0_7-'-. 

1 O Excess of receipts over expenses and disbursements. Subtract line 9 from line 8 ........... • 10 31 6 9 7 • 

11 Total payments ......................................................................... • t--1_1-+---------
12 Use tax. See General Information K ...................................................... • 12 

t-=-c--+----------
13 Payments balance. If line 11 is more than line 12, subtract line 12 from line 11 ............. • 13 t----+----------
14 Use tax balance. If line 12 is more than line 11, subtract line 11 from line 12 ............... • 14 t----+----------

10. 15 Filing fee $10 or $25. See General Information F............................................ 15 t----+----------
16 Penalties and Interest. See General Information J.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 t---+----------
17 Balance due. Add line 12 line 15 and line 16. Then subtract line 11 from the result ......................... @ 17 10. 

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is true, 
correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than taxpayer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge. 

Signature ► 
of officer 

Title Date 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
• Telephone 

614 816-6991 
Date Check if e PTIN 

Preparer's ► self• □ 
Paid signature ROBERT BALES employed ► P02160108 
Preparer's Firm's name -"A-"-Tcc..-T...cO...cLc.cE=R~O.J----L=L=-..cC _________________________ • Firm's FEIN 
Use Only (or yours, if ► 2105 WATER RIDGE PARKWAY 

~~IJ-:~Jr~f;d) CHARLOTTE NC 28217 
SUITE 570 81-5169849 

• Telephone 

888-326-3920 
May the FTB discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See instructions............... . . . . . • X Yes No 

■ CACA1112L 12113/19 059 I 3651194 Form 199 2019 Page 1 ■ 



GIRLS ON THE RUN OF SAN DIEGO 20-3588183 
Part II Organizations with gross receipts of more than $50,000 and private foundations 

regardless of amount of gross receipts - complete Part II or furnish substitute information. 

1 Gross sales or receipts from all business activities. See instructions ......................... • 1 

2 Interest ................................................................................. • 2 

3 Dividends ............................................................................... • 3 
Receipts 

4 Gross rents .............................................................................. • 4 from 
Other 5 Gross royalties .............................. , ............................................ • 5 
Sources 

6 Gross amount received from sale of assets (See Instructions) ............................... 6 • 
7 Other income. Attach schedule .................................... _$j!:_l;:_ .$'.l'.~'.l'.~MPfl .. ;L, • 7 123,182. 
8 Total gross sales or receipts from other sources. Add line 1 through line 7. Enter here and on Page 1, Part I, line 1. ..... 8 123,182. 
9 Contributions, gifts, grants, and similar amounts paid. Attach schedule ............ , ........................ • 9 

10 Disbursements to or for members ......................................................... • 10 
11 Compensation of officers, directors, and trustees. Attach schedule .......... :SE_E .. ST_MT_. 2. • 11 73,022 . 
12 Other salaries and wages ................................................................. • 12 94,633 . 

Expenses 13 Interest ................................................................................. • 13 and 
Disburse- 14 Taxes ................................................................................... • 14 12,758 . 
ments 15 Rents ......... , ......................................................................... • 15 5,848 . 

16 Depreciation and depletion (See instructions) .............................................. • 16 

17 Other Expenses and Disbursements. Attach schedule .............. _$j!:_!;:_ .$'.l'.~'.l'.~M~.:WI' .. 3. • 17 134,046 . 
18 Total expenses and disbursements. Add line 9 through line 17. Enter here and on Page 1, Part I, line 9 ............... 18 320 307. 

Schedule L Balance Sheet Beginning of taxable year End of taxable year 

Assets (a) (b) (c) (d) 

1 Cash ...... 
,, 

216.554. • 280,056. . . . . . . . . . . . ' . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ',• .· ', 

2 Net accounts receivable ....................... 
.. 

' . .. 
'' ' 

3 Net notes receivable. . , ....................... 
'' ', -cc,,,',, • ' ' . 

4 Inventories .......................... , ..... I•• ' • . 
5 Federal and state government obligations .......... ' . ' ' ,'' 

' • I • ,' ' ', ,', 

6 Investments in other bonds .................... 
... 
·•·· • 

7 Investments in stock ......................... ·• 
,· . • ,, ' 

8 Mortgage loans ............................. .. • 
9 Other investments. Attach schedule. .............. ', • 

10 a Depreciable assets ........................... 

b Less accumulated depreciation .................. 

Land ..................................... 
,, ', • 11 ', . 

12 Other assets. Attach schedule .. , ................ 
. ' • ,, ', 

13 ' ', ', 

216,554. ; • 280,056. Total assets . ........................ ' . . . . . . '," ,' 

Liabilities and net worth 
·'' ·' . 

14 Accounts payable ............................ 583. • 
15 Contributions, gifts, or grants payable ............. •• 
16 Bonds and notes payable ...................... • 

Mortgages payable ........................... 
,' • 17 .,, 

18 Other liabilities. Attach schedule. , ........ i:l.+M .. 4 
' ... 32,132. ' 

Capital stock or principal fund .................. 
\'. 215,971. 

-;: = • 19 247,924. 
20 Paid-in or capital surplus. Attach reconciliation ...... 

,,, • 
21 Retained earnings or income fund ................ • 
22 Total liabilities and net worth ................. 216,554. 280,056. 

Schedule M-1 Reconciliation of income per books with income per return 
Do not complete this schedule if the amount on Schedule L, line 13, column (d), is less than $5D,ODD 

1 Net income per books ....................... • 31. 697. 7 Income recorded on books this year not included 

2 Federal income tax. ......................... • in this return. Attach schedule ............ • 
3 Excess of capital losses over capital gains ........ • 8 Deductions in this return not charged 

4 Income not recorded on books this year. against book income this year. 

Attach schedule ............................ • Attach schedule ....................... • 
5 Expenses recorded on books this year not deducted 9 Total. Add line 7 and line 8 .............. 

in this return. Attach schedule ................. • 10 Net income per return. 

6 Total. Add line 1 through line 5 ................. 31, 697. Subtract line 9 from line 6 .......... 31,697. 

■ Page 2 Form 199 2019 059 3652194 CACA1 l 12L 12/13/19 ■ 



Schedule B 

(Form 990, 990-EZ, 
or 990-PF) 

California Copy 
Schedule of Contributors 

► Attach to Form 990, Form 990-EZ, or Form 990-PF. 

0MB No. 1545-0047 

2019 
Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service ► Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. 
Name of the organization Employer identification number 

Girls on the Run of San Die o 20-3588183 
Organization type (check one): 

Filers of: Section: 

Farm 990 or 990-EZ [R] 501 (c)( 3 ) (enter number) organization 

Form 990-PF 

D 4947 (a)(l) nonexempt charitable trust not treated as a private foundation 

D 527 political organization 

D 501 (c)(3) exempt private foundation 

D 4947(a)(l) nonexempt charitable trust treated as a private foundation 

D 501 (c)(3) taxable private foundation 

Check if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule. 

Note: Only a section 501 (c)(7), (8), or (10) organization can check boxes for both the General Rule and a Special Rule. See instructions. 

General Rule 

[R] For an organization filing Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF that received, during the year, contributions totaling $5,000 or more (in money 
or property) from any one contributor. Complete Parts I and II. See instructions for determining a contributor's total contributions. 

Special Rules 

□ 

□ 

□ 

For an organization described in section 501 (c)(3) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that met the 33-1 /3% support test of the regulations 
under sections 509(a)(l) and 170(b)(l)(A)(vi), that checked Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ), Part II, line 13, 16a, or 16b, and that 
received from any one contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of (1) $5,000; or (2) 2% of the amount on (i) 
Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 h; or (ii) Form 990-EZ, line 1. Complete Parts I and II. 

For an organization described in section 501 (c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor, 
during the year, total contributions of more than $1,000 exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific, literary, or educational 
purposes, or for the prevention of cruelty to children or animals. Complete Parts I, 11, and Ill. 

For an organization described in section 501 (c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor, 
during the year, contributions exclusively for religious, charitable, etc., purposes, but no such contributions totaled more than 
$1,000. If this box is checked, enter here the total contributions that were received during the year for an exclusively religious, 
charitable, etc., purpose. Don't complete any of the parts unless the General Rule applies to this organization because 
it received nonexclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions totaling $5,000 or more during the year. ► $ ________ _ 

Caution: An organization that isn't covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules doesn't file Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 
990-PF), but it must answer 'No' on Part IV, line 2, of its Form 990; or check the box on line Hof its Form 990-EZ or on its Form 990-PF, 
Part I, line 2, to certify that it doesn't meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF). 

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF. Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2019J"----i 

TEEA0701 L 08/09119 



Schedule B (Farm 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2019) 1 1 Page 2 
Name of organization Employer identification number 

Girls on the Run of San Die o 20-3588183 

I Part I I Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part I if additional space is needed. 

(b) (a) 
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 

1 Clare Rose Foundation 
--- --------------------------------------

(c) 
Total 

contributions 

5060 Shoreham PLace, Suite 350 $ 50,000. ----------- ----- --------------- -----

_San Dieg9, CA 92122 ______________________ _ 

(a) (b) 
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 

2 Rite Aid --- ~-------------------------------------

(a) 
No. 

3 

(a) 
No. 

4 

(a) 
No. 

5 

30 Hunter Lane ~-------------------------------------

,_ca~ Hill, PA 17011 -----------------------

(b) 
Name, address, and ZIP + 4 

J3irdwell Family Foundation _________________ _ 

309 Belle Meade Blvd --------------------------------------

_Nashville, TN 37205-3419 __________________ _ 

(b) 
Name, address, and ZIP + 4 

_yanguard ______________________________ _ 

2525 Camino Del Rio S#260 --------------------------------------

_San Diegs,, CA 92108 ______________________ _ 

(b) 
Name, address, and ZIP + 4 

~i@a ---------------------------------

3636 Nobel Drive #150 --------------------------------------
_San Diegs,, CA 92122 ______________________ _ 

(a) (b) 
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 

6 Gamma Phi Beta --- --------------------------------------
12737 E.Euclid Drive ~-------------------------------------

Centennial, CO 80111-6445 ~-------------------------------------

(c) 
Total 

contributions 

$ 5,000. ------

(c) 
Total 

contributions 

$ 10,000. -----

(c) 
Total 

contributions 

$ 10,000. -----

(c) 
Total 

contributions 

$ 10,000. -----

(c) 
Total 

contributions 

$ 10,500. -----

(d) 
Type of contribution 

Person 

Payroll 

Noncash 

IBl 
□ 
□ 

(Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

(d) 
Type of contribution 

Person IBl 
Payroll □ 
Noncash □ 

(Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

(d) 
Type of contribution 

Person IBl 
Payroll □ 
Noncash □ 

(Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

(d) 
Type of contribution 

Person IBl 
Payroll □ 
Noncash □ 

(Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

(d) 
Type of contribution 

Person IBl 
Payroll □ 
Noncash □ 

(Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

(d) 
Type of contribution 

Person IBl 
Payroll □ 
Noncash □ 

(Complete Part II for 
noncash contributions.) 

BAA TEEA0702L 08/09/19 Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2019) 



Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2019) 1 1 Page 3 
Name of organization Employer identification number 

Girls on the Run of San Die o 20-3588183 

I Part II I Noncash Property (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part II it additional space is needed. 

(a) No. 
from 
Part I 

(a) No. 
from 
Part I 

(a) No. 
from 
Part I 

(a) No. 
from 
Part I 

(a) No. 
from 
Part I 

(a) No. 
from 
Part I 

BAA 

(b) 
Description of noncash property given 

~/A _____________________________________ _ 

-----------------------------------------

$ 

(c) 
FMV (or estimate) 
(See instructions.) 

(d) 
Date received 

~---------------------------------------- --------------------

(b) 
Description of noncash property given 

~----------------------------------------
$ 

~----------------------------------------

(b) 
Description of noncash property given 

--- --------------------------------------
------------------------------------- -$ 
-------- ---------------------------------

(b) 
Description of noncash property given 

--------------------- ----- -------------
$ ------------------------

(b) 
Description of noncash property given 

------------------------------------
----------------------------------- -----
~----------------------------------- $ 

(c) 
FMV (or estimate) 
(See instructions.) 

(c) 
FMV (or estimate) 
(See instructions.) 

(c) 
FMV (or estimate) 
(See instructions.) 

(c) 
FMV (or estimate) 
(See instructions.) 

(d) 
Date received 

(d) 
Date received 

(d) 
Date received 

(d) 
Date received 

~------------------------------- -------- --------------------

(b) 
Description of noncash property given 

~----------------------------------------

$ 

(c) 
FMV (or estimate) 
(See instructions.) 

(d) 
Date received 

~---------------------------------------- -------------------
Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2019) 

TEEA0703L 08/09/19 



Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2019) 1 1 Page 4 
Name of organization Employer identification number 

Girls on the Run of San Die o 20-3588183 
Part III Exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions to organizations described in section 501(c)(7), (8), 

or (10) that total more than $1,000 for the year from any one contributor. Complete columns (a) through (e) and 

(a) 
No. from 

Part I 

(a) 
No. from 

Part I 

(a) 
No. from 

Part I 

(a) 
No. from 

Part I 

BAA 

the following line entry. For organizations completing Part Ill, enter the total of exclusively religious, charitable, etc., 
contributions of $1,000 or less for the year. (Enter this information once. See instructions.). . . . . . . . . . . . ► $ _ _______ _NL A 
Use duplicate copies of Part Ill if additional space is needed. 

N/A 

(b) 
Purpose of gift 

(c) 
Use of gift 

(d) 
Description of how gift is held 

~---------------------------------------- ---------------------

~---------------------------------------- ---------------------

(e) 
Transfer of gift 

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee 

~---------------------------------- --------------------------· 

(b) 
Purpose of gift 

(c) 
Use of gift 

(d) 
Description of how gift is held 

----------------------------------------- ---------------------
----------------------------------------- --------------------· 
----------------------------------------- ---------------------

(e) 
Transfer of gift 

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee 

----------------------------------- ---------------------------

----------------------------------- ---------------------------
(b) 

Purpose of gift 
(c) 

Use of gift 
(d) 

Description of how gift is held 

----------------------------------------- ---------------------

(e) 
Transfer of gift 

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee 

----------------------------------- ---------------------------

-----------------------------------~---------------------------

(b) 
Purpose of gift 

(c) 
Use of gift 

(d) 
Description of how gift is held 

----------------------------------------- ---------------------

(e) 
Transfer of gift 

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee 

-----------------------------------~---------------------------

-----------------------------------~---------------------------
Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2019) 

TEEA0704L 08109119 



2019 California Statements Page 1 

Girls on the Run of San Diego 20-3588183 

'\ 

Statement 1 
Form 199, Part II, Line 7 
Other Income 

Other Investment Income ...................................................................... $ 15. 
Program Service Revenue ...................................................................... 123,167. 

Total $ 123,182. 

Statement 2 
Form 199, Part II, Line 11 
Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees and Key Employees 

Current Officers: 
Title and Total Contri- Expense 

Average Hours Campen- bution to Account/ 
Name and Address Per Week Devoted sation EBP & DC Other 

ALI TAYLOR Director $ 0. $ 0. $ 0. 
PO Box 230544 3.00 

' 
CHRISTY BOWLES Director 0. 0. 0. 
PO Box 230544 3.00 

' 
DENE GRENON Treasurer 0. 0. 0 
PO Box 230544 6.00 

' 
JERALIN CARDOSO Secretary 0. 0. 0. 
PO Box 230544 6.00 

' 
JILLIAN BASINGER Director 0. 0. 0. 
PO Box 230544 3.00 

' 
MEGAN HUMPHREYS President 0. 0. 0. 
PO Box 230544 3.00 

' 
KIM MARTINI Director 0. 0. 0. 
PO Box 230544 3.00 

' 
KASEY MACNAIR Executive Dir. 73,022. 0. 0. 
PO Box 230544 40.00 

' 
ANDREA VALJI Vice President 0. 0. 0. 
PO Box 230544 6.00 

' 



2019 California Statements 

Girls on the Run of San Diego 

Statement 2 (continued) 
Form 199, Part II, Line 11 
Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees and Key Employees 

Current Officers: 
Title and Total Contri-

Average Hours Campen- bution to 
Name and Address Per Week Devoted sation EBP & DC 

HILLARY KLEINER 
PO Box 230544 
, 

JADE NEWTON 
PO Box 230544 
, 

TRACY BIDOT 
PO Box 230544 
, 

NICOLE BORAMANAND 
PO Box 230544 
, 

KIM LAWS 
PO Box 230544 
, 

SAM BRUMIT 
PO Box 230544 
, 

HEATHER SHELDON 
PO Box 230544 
, 

JOHN HOST 
PO Box 230544 
, 

Statement 3 
Form 199, Part II, Line 17 
Other Expenses 

Director $ 0. $ 0. 
3.00 

Director 0. 0. 
3.00 

Director 0. 0. 
3.00 

Director 0. 0. 
3.00 

Director 0. 0. 
3.00 

Director 0. 0. 
3.00 

Director 0. 0. 
3.00 

Director 0. 0. 
3.00 

Total$ 73,022. $ 0. 

SK Expenses.......................................................................................... $ 
Accounting Fees ................................................................................... . 
Advertising and Promotion .................................................................... . 
Information Technology ........................................................................ . 
Insurance ............................................................................................ . 
Merchandise Purchases .......................................................................... . 
Office Expenses ................................................................................... . 
Operational Expenses ............................................................................ . 
Other Employee Benefit. ........................................................................ . 
Other fees ........................................................................................... . 
Program Expense ................................................................................... . 

$ 

$ 

Page2 

20-3588183 

Expense 
Account/ 

Other 

23,825. 
4,693. 
4,599. 
1,237. 
7,112. 
1,960. 

12,769. 
19,471. 
3,096. 
2,165. 

45,468. 

0. 

0. 

0. 

0. 

0. 

0. 

0. 

0. 

0. 



2019 

Statement 3 (continued) 
Form 199, Part II, Line 17 
Other Expenses 

California Statements 

Girls on the Run of San Diego 

Page3 

20-3588183 

Special Event Expense ........................................................................... $ 2,805. 
Travel.................................................................................................. 4,846. 

Statement 4 
Form 199, Schedule L, Line 18 
Other Liabilities 

Total$ 134,046. ========== 

Long term debt................................................................................... 32,132. 
Total$ 32,132. =====:::::::::::====== 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
RRF-1 
(Rev 09/2017) 
IN 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 
PAGE 1 of 5 

MAIL TO: 
ANNUAL REGISTRATION RENEWAL FEE REPORT 

(For Registry Use Only) 
Registry of Charitable Trusts 
P.O. Box 903447 

TO ATTORNEY GENERAL OF CALIFORNIA Sacramento, CA 94203-4470 
(916) 210-6400 

Sections 12586 and 12587, California Government Code 
STREET ADDRESS: 
1300 I Street 11 Cal. Code Regs. sections 301-306, 309,311, and 312 
Sacramento, CA 95814 Failure to submit this report annually no later than four months and fifteen after the end of the 
(916) 210-6400 organization's accounting period may result in the loss of tax exemption and the assessment of a 

WEBSITE ADDRESS: minimum tax of $800, plus interest, and/or fines or filing penalties. Revenue & Taxation Code 

WWW ag ca go:\llcbatitiesl section 23703; Government Code section 12586.1. IRS extensions will be honored. 

Check if: 

GIRLS ON THE RUN OF SAN DIEGO D Change of address 
Name of Organization 

D Amended report 

List all DBAs and names the organization uses or has used 

PO BOX 230544 State Charity Registration Number 129701 
Address (Number and Street) 

ENCINITAS, CA 92023 Corporation or Organization No. 3557329 
City or Town, State and ZIP Code 

614 816-6991 KASEY@GOTRSD.ORG 
Telephone Number E-mail Address Federal Employer ID No. 20-3588183 

ANNUAL REGISTRATION RENEWAL FEE SCHEDULE (11 Cal. Code Regs. sections 301-307, 311, and 312) 
Make Check Payable to Department of Justice 

Gross Aaaual Be'ileaue lli Gross Aaaual Be'ileaue lli Gross Aaaual Be'ileaue lli 

Less than $25,000 0 Between $100,001 and $250,000 $50 Between $1,000,001 and $10 million $150 
Between $25,000 and $100,000 $25 Between $250,001 and $1 million $75 Between $10,000,001 and $50 million $225 

Greater than $50 million $300 

PART A-ACTIVITIES 
For your most recent full accounting period (beginning 7/01/19 ending 6/30/20 ) list: 

Gross Annual Revenue $ 352,004. Noncash Contributions $ 0. Total Assets $ 280,056. 

Program Expenses $ 229!676. Total Expenses $ 320!307. 

PART B - STATEMENTS REGARDING ORGANIZATION DURING THE PERIOD OF THIS REPORT 
Note: All questions must be answered. If you answer "yes" to any of the questions below, you must attach a separate page 

providing an explanation and details for each "yes" response. Please review RRF-1 instructions for information required. Yes No 

1 During this reporting period, were there any contracts, loans, leases or other financial transactions between the organization and any 

□ !RI officer, director or trustee thereof, either directly or with an entity in which any such officer, director or trustee had any financial interest? 

2 During this reporting period, was there any theft, embezzlement, diversion or misuse of the organization's charitable property or funds? □ !RI 
3 During this reporting period, were any organization funds used to pay any penalty, fine or judgment? □ !RI 
4 During this reporting period, were the services of a commercial fundraiser, fundraising counsel for charitable purposes, or commercial 

coventurer used? □ !RI 
5 During this reporting period, did the organization receive any governmental funding? □ !RI 
6 During this reporting period, did the organization hold a raffle for charitable purposes? □ !RI 
7 Does the organization conduct a vehicle donation program? □ !RI 
8 Did the organization conduct an independent audit and prepare audited financial statements in accordance with 

□ !RI generally accepted accounting principles for this reporting period? 

9 At the end of this reporting period, did the organization hold restricted net assets, while reporting negative unrestricted net assets? □ !RI 
I declare under penalty of perjury that I have examined this report, including accompanying documents, and to the best of my knowledge 
and belief, the content is true, correct and complete, and I am authorized to sign. 

KASEY MACNAIR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
Signature of Authorized Agent Printed Name Title Date 

CAEA9801 L 03/19/20 



059 

Date Accepted DO NOT MAIL THIS FORM TO THE FTB 

GIRLS ON THE RUN OF SAN DIEGO 20-3588183 
Part I Electronic Return Information (whole dollars only) 

1 Total gross receipts (Form 199, line 4) .................................................................... 1 
2 Total gross income (Form 199, line 8) ..................................................................... 2 
3 Total expenses and disbursements (Form 199, Line 9)...... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 

Part II Settle Your Account Electronically for Taxable Year 2019 

4 D Electronic funds withdrawal 4a Amount 4b Withdrawal date (mm/dd/yyyy) 

Part Ill Banking Information (Have you verified the exempt organization's banking information?) 

5 Routing number 

6 Account number 

Part IV Declaration of Officer 

7 Type of account: D Checking D Savings 

352,004. 
352,004. 
320,307. 

I authorize the exempt organization's account to be settled as designated in Part II. If I check Part II, Box 4, I authorize an electronic funds 
withdrawal for the amount listed on line 4a. 

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I am an officer of the above exempt organization and that the information I provided to my electronic 
return originator (ERO), transmitter, or intermediate service provider and the amounts in Part I above agree with the amounts on the 
corresponding lines of the exempt organization's 2019 California electronic return. To the best of my knowledge and belief, the exempt 
organization's return is true, correct, and complete. If the exempt organization is filing a balance due return, I understand that if the Franchise 
Tax Board (FTB) does not receive full and timely payment of the exempt organization's fee liability, the exempt organization will remain liable 
for the fee liability and all applicable interest and penalties. I authorize the exempt organization return and accompanying schedules and 
statements be transmitted to the FTB by the ERO, transmitter, or intermediate service provider. If the processing of the exempt organization's 
return or refund is delayed, I authorize the FTB to disclose to the ERO or intermediate service provider the reason(s) for the delay. 

Sign 
Here 

► ► EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
~- .. ,. 

----------------~------Signature of officer Date Ti tie 

Part V Declaration of Electronic Return Originator (ERO) and Paid Preparer. See instructions. 

I declare that I have reviewed the above exempt organization's return and that the entries on form FTB 8453-EO are complete and correct to 
the best of my knowledge. (If I am only an intermediate service provider, I understand that I am not responsible for reviewing the exempt 
organization's return. I declare, however, that form FTB 8453-EO accurately reflects the data on the return.) I have obtained the organization 
officer's signature on form FTB 8453-EO before transmitting this return to the FTB; I have provided the organization officer with a copy of all 
forms and information that I will file with the FTB, and I have followed all other requirements described in FTB Pub. 1345, 2019 Handbook for 
Authorized e-file Providers. I will keep form FTB 8453-EO on file for four years from the due date of the return or four years from the date the 
exempt organization return is filed, whichever is later, and I will make a copy available to the FTB upon request. If I am also the paid preparer, 
under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined the above exempt organization's return and accompanying schedules and 
statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, they are true, correct, and complete. I make this declaration based on all information 
of which I have knowledge. 

ERO 
Must 
Sign 

ERO's ► 
signature ROBERT BALES 

I Date 

. ATTOLERO, LLC 
Firm's name (or yours ► 
itselt-employedl 2105 WATER RIDGE PARKWAY, SUITE 570 
and address 

CHARLOTTE 

I 

Check if 
also paid 
preparer !

Check if IERO's PTIN 

[RI !~f;loyed □ P02160108 
Firm's FEIN 

81-5169849 
NC ZIP code 2821 7 

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined the above orgarnzat1on's return and accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, they 
are true, correct, and complete. I make this declaration based on all information of which I have knowledge. 

Paid 
Preparer 
Must 
Sign 

Paid 
preparer's ► 
signature 

Firm's name ► 
(or yours if self-

:~Jr~fsed) and 

For Privacy Notice, get FTB 1131 ENG/SP. 

CAEA7001 L 09/13/19 

Date 

Check if □ 
self-employed 

Paid preparer's PTIN 

Firm's FEIN 

ZIP code 

FTB 8453-EO 201 

~j 





( 



City of Solana Beach 
Community Grant Program 

Request for Financial Assistance 
FY 2021-22 APPLICATION 

All Applications MUST BE RECEIVED by 5:00 p.m. Tuesday, May 25, 2021. 
Please Print Clearly or Type 

All requests will be determined by the following criteria: 

Name of Organization: df\ L1 5 c ;,f,;vc,~ fu4 vr wilrc A:<14 O a'1 V: ; 

Mailing Address: .~_,19 7'171' .s-,. 
City S&N MAIZ..co > state SA Zip 9-zLJ 78 
Contact Person: fL-BA JJLo ..u ,e;.:s. 
Daytime Phone: 7tia - t;;l 3 - 'Ze> S='7 
Evening Phone: 7& o · 6 i 3 , z.n 5-7 
Email address: eJ bet_a.d,y'tc CJ....fl q , z 2 o @;3ffJc?,..,,tL . c,.oq..---, 

1. W-9 must be attached 
Summary of organization's budget must be attached 
Proposed program budget must be attached 
Financial and Tax Statements (see Application Guidelines) must be attached 

2. A copy of the California Franchise Tax Board Entity Status Letter must be attached, 
showing exemption under Section 23701d or Internal Revenue Code section 
501(c)(3) 

3. Has your organization received financial assistance from the City before? 

Yes ~ No □ ___, 
If yes, what activities and which fiscal year? r 0 ~L-Qfi- r C C.41: S S 

Fy zo)JJ.- zozt, 

4. Amount requested for FY 2021-22 $__,,ft+'_s_~,__10_6_'0_J:,...-_"' ________ _ 

5. Proposed Total Program Costs: $._;J-11--, ---=l_,,
1
_,0=--=6_,' Q""--:_;:;----_ ... ___________ _ 

(Includes all estimated costs to conduct proposed activity/program.) 

6. Title of Proposed Program/Service: fot.-t--<.. L O f7. t L Cl.1-\-SS l f-( u 51 c /f--1...)D /l-fe T 

7. Grant funds must be used for services or materials directly associated to proposed 
activity. Please describe how grant funds will be used: 
().J I L l-- rf-;,p v ; S /-1 o f: s. b {L 5 7'V v c re ... rr 5 , /1 o s I c. $ ·:y 5 T ~Cci 
Ft-cc,£ >Diz .. /£ "),, ll -{,tu't r IAJ SLJ<lftt'Jc£1 'L.94:-PmP Po fl. t'.f,{U.$tc, 



(Attach extra sheet, if necessary.) 

8. Estimated number of S.B. residents to be served by proposed program: h\ov:1 26 - Sci 

9. Program Dates/Location: 

/-1 D/J OAY A-tt)1) St}:10 flOA:o/ 

10. Anticipated Program Objectives or Accomplishments: 

't?&(DIL/V\ i & '.d;2u4:IJA 6\1 f;N1,~'5 /(., re.£ , J2i A- P '1E Hu {flZ1S5' 

11. How will the organization acknowledge the City's financial contribution to the 
community/ beneficiaries of the proposed activity? 

·:,c f;,~c?rAI ~1 1? DoT ~ A-N h "'~ 04-o ' 
A::!fJ J2 (j)f?...of;,L-~cA-1 ') · 

12. Will there be any matching funds or other grants that would be applied to this 
program or service? If awarded this grant, will that enable other funding sources? 

13. Will volunteers be used for the proposed program or service and, if so, will they 
reduce expenses? 

14. If the proposed program or service is only awarded partial funding, will it still move 
forward? Will the program or service be scaled back and/or is there a threshold at 
which it will not move forward? 

iJJ f-z Cf4dU .uo v ~ ~a.tw4ti) 0ur /:i.uiA, rG:J2 Accie:ss 
-µ l" H t- l4-, 12 s fk:0 v EAv-11 t, ,t:,5 



Acknowledgment of Responsibility: 
Authorized Signature assumes all responsibility for developing and implementing 
proposed activities or events in this application, including public acknowledgment of the 
City's financial contribution. Authorized signature will comply with all accounting and 
budget procedures outlined by the City. Authorized signature and accompanying group 
will hold harmless the City of Solana Beach from all losses, claims, accidents and 
problems associated, directly or indirectly with the development and implementation of 
proposed activities or events. 

~ rized Signature of Organization 

All INFORMATION REQUESTED ON THIS APPLICATION MUST BE COMPLETED AS A CONDITION FOR BEING 
CONSIDERED FOR PUBLIC FUNDS BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF SOLANA BEACH. 



5-24-2021 

To who may concern 

The follow is the program we have proposed for the year 2021-2022. 

We will teach new states of the folklore, Guanajuato, Tijuana, Nayarit, Guerrero to complement the rest 

of the states we are performing already; we want the kids to have knowledge of the Mexican culture 

and traditions, we are teaching how to do pifiatas and figures of paper, we are preparing to perform in 

different events around the city of Solana beach, where the kids can demonstrate what they learn and 

invite more kids to join the group. 

The cost of each custom varies between $100.00 - $250.00 depends of the part where we ordered. 

The hats cost is of $60.00 - $150.00 

Shoes for dance the cost is from $70.00--$120.00 

Rebosos the cost is $10.00 - $50.00 

The braids cost $30.00 - $60.00 

We have right now 20 girls and 5 boys 

5 adults performing in the group and we need to have customs for everyone. 

Thank you. 

Elba Montes 



ITEM 

CLASS ROOM RENT 

PHOTO COPIES 

PRACTICE SKIRT 

CUSTOMS 

ACCESSORIES 

INSURANCE 

LAPTOP 

SHOES FOR KIDS 

TOTAL 

JALISCIENCE FOLKLORIC ACADEMY 

BUDGET 2021-2022 

DESCRIPTION 

FEE OF THE CLASS ROOM IN LA 
COLONIA EDEN GARDEN PARK 

WE NEED TO PRINT FLYER TO 
PROMOTE THE GROUP AND GET 

MORE KIDS 

THE PRACTICE SKIRT FOR THE 
GIRLS TO PRACTICE MOVEMENT 

WE NEED CUSTOMS FOR THE 
DIFERENT STATES WE ARE 

GOING TO TEACH AND PERFORM 
AT DIFFERENT EVENTS 

NEED BOWS, EARINGS, 
REBOSOS, BAN DANAS, AND 

HATS, MISCELLANEOUS. 

PAY INSURANCE FOR TO KEEP 
THE CLASS ROOM 

STORAGE MUSIC, PICTURES, 
DOCUMENTS OF THE GROUP. 

NEW SHOES FOR KIDS FOR THE 

PERFORMS. 

COST 

$950.00 

$250.00 

$500.00 

$3,000.00 

$358.00 

$692.00 

$850.00 

$400.00 

$7,000.00 



AGUILERAS BOOKKEEPING 

April 18, 2021 

Jaliscience Folkloric Academy 
3629 9th St 
San Marcos, CA 92078 

610 S MELROSE DR 
Vista, CA 92081 

roberto@aguilerasbookkccping.com 
Phone: (760)630-2256 I Fax: (760)630-2893 

Your privacy is important to us. Read the following privacy policy. 

We collect nonpublic personal information about you from various sources, including: 

* Interviews regarding your tax situation 

* Applications, organizers, or other documents that supply such information as your name, address, telephone number, 
Social Security Number, number of dependents, income, and other tax-related data 

* Tax-related documents you provide that are required for processing tax returns, such as Forms W-2, 1099R, 1099-
INT and 1099-DIV, and stock transactions 

We do not disclose any nonpublic personal information about our clients or former clients to anyone, except as 
requested by our clients or as required by law. 

We restrict access to personal information concerning you, except to our employees who need such information in 
order to provide products or services to you. We maintain physical, electronic, and procedural safeguards that comply 
with federal regulations to guard your personal information. 

If you have any questions about our privacy policy, contact our office at (760)630-2256. 

Sincerely, 

Melecio S Salas 
AGUJLERAS BOOKKEEPING 



Short Form 0MB No 1545-0047 

Form 990-EZ Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax 2020 
Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations) 

e~d1 u "'" of the Treasury 
ternal Revenue Service 

► Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public. 

► Go to www.irs.gov/Form990EZfor instructions and the latest information. 

Qp~ntQ Pt1blic 
:11nsij~£tipr1 

A For the 2020 calendar year, or tax year beginning , 2020, and ending , 20 

B Check if applicable C Name of organization D Employer identification number 

D Address change JALISCIENCE FOLKLORIC ACADEMY 83-3577492 
D Name change Number and street {or PO box 1f mail is nol delivered to street address) Room/suite E Telephone number 

D Initial return 

D F,nal return/terminated 3629 9TH ST (760)613-2059 
D Amended return City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code F Group Exemption 

D Application pending SAN MARCOS CA 92078 Number ► 
G Accounting Method: ~ Cash LJ Accrual Other (specify) ► H Check ► □ if the organization is not 

I Website: ► required to attach Schedule B 

J Tax-exempt status (check only one) - ~ 501(C)(3) Dso,(c)( ) ◄ (insert no I D 4947(a)(1) or □ 527 (Form 990, 990-EZ. or 990-PF). 

K Form of organization: ~ Corporation D Trust D Association D Other 

L Add lines 5b, 6c, and 7b to line 9 to determine gross receipts. If gross receipts are $200,000 or more, or if total assets 

(Part 11, column (B)) are S500,000 or more, file Form 990 instead of Form 990-EZ ..................... ► $ 

I Part I I Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets or Fund Balances (see the instructions for Part I) 
2,000 

Check if the organization used Schedule Oto respond to any question in this Part I 
: 1 Contributions, gifts, grants, and similar amounts received 

2 Program service revenue including government fees and contracts 

3 Membership dues and assessments 

4 Investment income 

5a Gross amount from sale of assets other than inventory I 5a I 
b Less: cost or other basis and sales expenses I 5b I 
C Gain or (loss) from sale of assets other than inventory (subtract line 5b from line 5a) 

6 Gaming and fundraising events: 

a Gross income from gaming (attach Schedule G if greater than 

I I 
a, 

$15.000) 6a ::s 
C: 
a, b Gross income from fundraising events (not including $ of contributions > a, 

from fund raising events reported on line 1) (attach Schedule G if the c:: 
sum of such gross income and contributions exceeds $15,000) I 6b I 

C Less: direct expenses from gaming and fundraising events I 6c I 
d Net income or (loss) from gaming and fundraising events (add lines 6a and 6b and subtract 

line 6c) 

7a Gross sales of inventory, less returns and allowances I 7a I 
b Less: cost of goods sold I 7b I 
C Gross profit or (loss) from sales of inventory (subtract line 7b from line 7a) 

8 Other revenue (describe in Schedule 0) 

9 Total revenue. Add lines 1, 2, 3, 4, 5c, 6d, 7c, and 8 

10 Grants and similar amounts paid (list in Schedule 0) . 

11 Benefits paid to or for members 

VJ 
12 Salaries, other compensation, and employee benefits 

Q) 13 Professional fees and other payments to independent contractors en 
C: 
a, 14 Occupancy, rent, utilities, and maintenance 0.. 
X 15 Printing, publications, postage, and shipping UJ 

16 Other expenses (describe in Schedule 0) 

17 Total expenses. Add lines 10 through 16 

18 Excess or (deficit) for the year (subtract line 17 from line 9) 
.l!l 19 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (from line 27, column (A)) (must agree with Q) 
rJ) 
VJ end-of-year figure reported on prior year's return) <( 

+-' 20 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule 0) a, 
z 

21 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 18 through 20 
-or Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. 
=A 

1 2 000 
2 

3 

4 i 
·. 

I 
Sc 

1,,: 
I' 
1. 

: 
I' ' 

6d 

I'; 
,, 

' 

7c 

8 

.► 9 2.000 
10 

11 

12 

13 
14 

15 

16 750 
.► 17 750 

18 1 250 

19 

20 

.► 21 1,250 
Form 990-EZ (2020) 



Form 990-EZ (2020) JALISCIENCE FOLKLORIC ACADEMY 83-3577492 Page 2 

! Part II j Balance Sheets (see the instructions for Part II) 
Check if the organization used Schedule O to respond to any question in this Part II .. ·□ 

(A) Beginning of year (B) End of year 

22 Cash. savings, and investments 0 22 1 25 
23 Land and buildings 0 23 ' 24 Other assets (describe in Schedule OJ 0 24 

25 Total assets 0 25 1 250 
26 Total liabilities (describe in Schedule OJ 0 26 0 
27 Net assets or fund balances (line 27 of column (B) must agree with line 21) 0 27 1 250 
I Part Ill I Statement of Program Service Accomplishments (see the instructions for Part Ill) 

Expenses 
Check If the organization used Schedule Oto respond to any question in this Part Ill ....... D ; 

What is the organization's primary exempt purpose? 
(Required for section 

TEACH CHILDREN MEXICAN CULTURE 
501 (c)(3) and 501 (c)(4) 

Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, organizations; optional for 
as measured by expenses. In a clear and concise manner, describe the services provided, the number of others.) 
persons benefited. and other relevant information for each program title. 

28 21 CHILDREN AND THEIR PARENTS ARE ENROLLED IN ART, DANCE AND 
CULTURE. 

(Grants $ ) If this amount includes foreign grants. check here ► D 28a 0 
29 

(Grants $ ) If this amount includes foreign grants, check here ► □ 29a 

30 

(Grants $ ) If this amount includes foreign grants, check here ► □ 30a 

31 Other program services (describe in Schedule OJ .. . . 
(Grants $ ) If this amount includes foreign grants, check here ► □ 31a 

32 Total program service expenses (add lines 28a through 31a) .. ► 32 

!ParUVI List of Officers, Directors, Trustees, and Key Employees (list each one even if not compensated - see the instructions for Part IV) 

Check if the organization used Schedule Oto respond to any question in this Part IV .. 
(b) Average (c) Reportable (d) Health benents, 

compensation contribulions to employee (e) Estimated amount of 
(a) Name and titie hours per week 

(Forms W-211099-MISC) benefit plans, and other compensation 
devoted to position 

lif not oaid enter -0~\ deferred comnensation 

MARISELA VALENCIA, OFFICER STMA01 
SECRETARY 1.00 0 0 0 
AZUCENA HERNANDEZ LOPEZ, OFFICER STMA02 
VICE-PRESIDENT 1.00 0 0 0 
ELBA MONTES, OFFICER STMA03 
PRESIDENT 2.00 0 0 0 

I 

I 

-·-- ~ 

: 
i 

! 
l 

I 
I I 

I 
I I I 

F'nrm 990-F7 /?O?O\ 



Form 990-EZ (2020) JALISCIENCE FOLKLORIC ACADEMY 83-357 7 492 

j Part V l Other Information (Note the Schedule A and personal benefit contract statement requirements in the 
instructions for Part V.) Check if the organization used Schedule Oto respond to any question in this Part V 

33 Did the organization engage in any significant activity not previously reported to the IRS? If ''Yes," provide a 

detailed description of each activity in Schedule 0 

34 Were any significant changes made to the organizing or governing documents? If "Yes," attach a conformed 

copy of the amended documents if they reflect a change to the organization's name. Otherwise, explain the 

change on Schedule 0. See instructions 

35 a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of S1 ,000 or more during the year from business 

activities (such as those reported on lines 2, 6a, and 7a, among others)? 

b If "Yes," to line 35a, has the organization filed a Form 990-T for the year? If "No," provide an explanation in Schedule 0 

c Was the organization a section 501 (c)(4), 501 (c)(5), or 501 (c)(6) organization subject to section 6033(e) notice, 

reporting, and proxy tax requirements during the year? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part Ill 

36 Did the organization undergo a liquidation, dissolution. termination, or significant disposition of net assets 

during the year? If "Yes," complete applicable parts of Schedule N 

► i 37a I 

33 

I
I 34 

35a 

35b 

35c 

36 
! 
i 37 a Enter amount of political expenditures, direct or indirect, as described in the instructions 

b Did the organization file Form 1120-POL for this year? 37b i 
38 a Did the organization borrow from, or make any loans to, any officer, director, trustee, or key employee or were 

any such loans made in a prior year and still outstanding al the end of the tax year covered by this return? 

b If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part II, and enter the total amount involved ,__3_8_b_._ _____ _ 

39 Section 501 (c)(7) organizations. Enter: 

a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on line 9 . 1--3_9_a+--------J 

b Gross receipts, included on line 9, for public use of club facilities ~3_9_b~-------1 

40 a Section 501 (c)(3) organizations. Enter amount of tax imposed on the organization during the year under 

section 4911 ► ________ ; section 4912 ► ________ ; section 4955 ► 

b Section 501 (c)(3), 501 (c)(4), and 501 (c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in any section 4958 

excess benefit transaction during the year, or did it engage in an excess benefit transaction in a prior year 

that has not been reported on any of its prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part I 

c Section 501 (c)(3), 501 (c)(4), and 501 (c)(29) organizations. Enter amount of tax imposed 

on organization managers or disqualified persons during the year under sections 4912, 

4955, and 4958 

d Section 501 (c)(3), 501 (c)(4). and 501(c)(29) organizations. Enter amount of tax on line 

40c reimbursed by the organization ► 

38a 

40b 

e All organizations. At any time during the tax year, was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter 

transaction? lf"Yes," complete Form 8886-T 
I i 40e 

I 

Page 3 

.. o 
Yes I No 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

I X 

l 
X 

. 

X 

X 

41 List the states with which a copy of this return is filed ► -=C=A'---------------------------------
42 a The organization's books are in care of ► v_I_C_T_O_R_M_O_N_T_E_S~,_O_F_F_I_C_E_R ________ _ Telephone no. 

Located at ► 3629 9TH ST SAN MARCOS CA ZIP+ 4 ► 

b At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in or a signature or other authority over 

a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? 

If "Yes." enter the name of the foreign country ► 

See the instructions for exceptions and filing requirements for FinCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and 

Financial Accounts (FBAR). 

c At any time during the calendar year, did the organization maintain an office outside the United States? 

If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country ► 

43 Section 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trusts filing Form 990-EZ in lieu of Form 1041-Check here 

and enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the tax year . . . . . . . 

44 a Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds during the year? If "Yes," Form 990 must be 

completed instead of Form 990-EZ 

b Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities during the year? If "Yes," Form 990 must be 

completed instead of Form 990-EZ 

C Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the year? 

d If "Yes." to line 44c, has the organization filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No," provide an 

explanation in Schedule 0 

'5 a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? 

b Did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled entity within the 

meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If "Yes," Form 990 and Schedule R may need to be completed instead of 

Form 990-EZ. See instructions 

EEA 

► 760-613-2059 

92078 

Yes No 
42b X 

42c I X 

► I 43 

..... ► □ 
Yes No 

44a X 

•· 
44b X 

I 44c X 

44d ' 
' 

I, 45a X 

45b X 

Form 990-EZ (2020) 



Form 99D-EZ (2020) JALISCIENCE FOLKLORIC ACADEMY 83-3577492 Page4 

46 Did the organization engage, directly or indirectly, in political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition 

to candidates for public office? If "Yes," complete Schedule C. Part I 

Part VI Section 501(c)(3) Organizations Only 
46 

I Yes No 

X 

All section 501 (c)(3) organizations must answer questions 47 - 49b and 52, and complete the tables for lines 
50 and 51. 
Check if the organization used Schedule O to respond to any question in this Part VI .............. D 

47 Did the organization engage in lobbying activities or have a section 501 (h) election in effect during the tax 

year? If "Yes," complete Schedule C. Part 11 

48 Is the organization a school as described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii)? lf"Yes," complete Schedule E 

49a Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related organization? 

b If "Yes," was the related organization a section 527 organization? 

50 Complete this table for the organization's five highest compensated employees (other than officers, directors, trustees and key 

employees) who each received more than $100,000 of compensation from the organization. If there is none, enter "None." 

{b) Average {c) Reportable {d) Health benefits, 
contributions to employee 

(a) Name ar1d lille of each employee hours per week compensation ber,efit plans, and deferred 
devoted to position (Forms W-2/7099-MISC) compensation 

NONE 

Total number ofolher employees paid over $100,000 ....•.• ► 

Yes No 

47 X 
48 X 

49a X 

49b 

(e) Estimated amount of 

other compensation 

51 Complete this table for the organization's five highest compensated independent contractors who each received more than () $100,000 of compensation from the organization. If there is none, enter "None." 

NONE 

d 

52 

{a} Name and business address of each independent contractor (b) Type of service 

! 

i 

Total number of other independent contractors each receiving over :j;100,000 ••.... p,, 

Did the organization complete Schedule A? Note: All section 501(c)(3) organizations must attach a 

completed Schedule A , , , . , . , , . • • • • . , • • • • • • • • • • • • • • ••• , , • 

(c) Compensation 

~ Yes D No 
Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief. it is 

true correct and complete Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge 

► 
VICTOR MONTES, OFFICER I 04-18-2021 

Sign Signature of officer Date 

Here 

► 
VICTOR MONTES OFFICER TREASURER 
Type or print name and t,tle 

PrintfType preparers name l:eparer's signature 

6
oate I Check Ii] 1f I PTIN 

Paid MELECIO S SALAS LECIO S SALAS 4-18-2021 self-employed !P00790794 
Preparer Firm's name ► AGUILERAS BOOKKEEPING Firm's EIN ► 
Use Only Firm's address p,, 610 S MELROSE DR 

Vista CA 92081 Phone no. 760 630-2256 
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See 1nstruct1ons ~ Yes D No 
EEA Form 990-EZ (2020) 

cc, 



SCHEDULE A 
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) 

Public Charity Status and Public Support 
0MB No. 1545-0047 

2020 Complete if the organization is a section 501 (c}l3) organization or a section 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust. ~--------

Department of the Treasury 

Internal Revenue Service 

► Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open t(l P.ubHc 
► Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. ,· !\lhspection 

of the organization j Employer identification number 

.LISCIENCE FOLKLORIC ACADEMY I 83-3577492 
! Part 11 Reason for Public Charity Status. (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions. 
The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12. check only one box.) 

1 0 A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i). 

2 D A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ).) 

3 0 A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). 

4 0 A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the 

hospital's name, city, and state: 

5 

6 
7 

8 

9 

D An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in 

section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part II.) 

0 A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v). 

~ 

□ 
□ 

An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public 

described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.) 

A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.) 

An agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college 

or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or 

university: 

10 0 An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross 

receipts from activities related to its exempt functions - subject to certain exceptions; and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its 

support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses 

acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part Ill.) 

11 0 An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4). 

12 0 An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes 

of one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). 

Check the box in lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g. 

a D Type I. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s). typically by giving 

(A) 

(B) 

(C) 

(D) 

(E) 

Total 

the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the 

supporting organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B. 

b O Type II. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having 

control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported 

organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C. 

c D Type Ill functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with, 

its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E. 

d D Type Ill non-functionally integrated, A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s) 

that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness 

requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V. 

e O Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type I, Type II, Type Ill 

functionally integrated, or Type Ill non-functionally integrated supporting organization. 

Enter the number of supported organizations 

g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s). 

(i) Name of supported organization (ii) EIN (iii) Type of organization 

(described on lines 1-10 

above (see instructions)) 

(iv) Is lhe organization 

listed in your governing 

document? 

Yes No 

(v) Amount of monetary 

support (see 

instructions) 

c__ ___ _j 

(vi) Amount of 

other support (see 

instructions) 

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. 
EEA Schedule A (Form sso or W0·EZ} 2020 



ScneduleA(FormS90or99D-EZ)2020 JALISCIENCE FOLKLORIC ACADEMY 83-3577492 Page z 
I Part II I Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1 )(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1 )(A)(vi) 

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under 
~~-~~P_a_rt~ll_l.~l,_f t_h_e_o_r~ga_n_i_za_t_io_n_f_a_il_s_to____,!.q_ua_l-'ify~u_nd_e_r_t_he_te_s_ts_lis_t_e_d_b_e_lo_w-'-,...,_P_le_a_s_e_c_o_m--'p_l_et_e_P_a_rt_ll-'1. )'----------,< 
Section A. Public Support { 
-C-a-le-n-da_r_y_e_a-r(_o_r_fi_sc_a...!.l...!.y_ea_r_b_e_g_in-n-in_g_i_n_)_►~-(a-)-20_1_6_-,----(b_)_2_0_17--,--(c_)_2_0_1_8_.--(_d_)2.,....0_1_9_,---_(e-)-20--2=-=o--,----(f)=-=T,---ot,---a,.....l-'I"··~····/ 

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and 
membership fees received. (Do not 
include any "unusual grants.") ... 

2 Tax revenues levied for the 
organization's benefit and either paid to 
or expended on its behalf . . . . . . . 

3 The value of services or facilities 
furnished by a governmental unit to the 
organization without charge 

4 Total. Add lines 1 through 3 
5 The portion of total contributions by 

each person (other than a 
governmental unit or publicly 
supported organization) included on 
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount 
shown on line 11, column (f) . . . . . 

6 Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4 
Section B. Total Support 
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) ► 
7 Amounts from line 4 ........... 
8 Gross income from interest, dividends, 

payments received on securities loans, 
rents, royalties, and income from 
similar sources ............ 

9 Net income from unrelated business 
activities, whether or not the business 
is regularly carried on . . . . . . . . . . . 

10 Other income. Do not include gain or 
loss from the sale of capital assets 
(Explain in Part VI.) . . . . . . . . . . .. 

11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10 . . 

(a) 2016 

! 

I 
I 
I 

.. 
I . .. 

12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) 

24 058 2 000 

(b) 2017 (c) 2018 (d) 2019 (e) 2020 

24 058 2 000 

! 

.. J .. ····· .;.•· .. .. . .. . ... 
. . ....... . . . . . . . . . . . 12 I 

13 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501 (c)(3) 
organization, check this box and stop here . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage 
14 Public support percentage for 2020 (line 6, column (f), divided by line 11, column (f)) 

15 Public support percentage from 2019 Schedule A, Part II, line 14 .......... . 
I 14 I 
l 1s 1 

1 Sa 33 1/3% support test - 2020. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1 /3% or more, check this 

26 058 

26 058 

26 058 

(f) Total 

26 058 

26 058 

►□ 
100.00 % 

% 

box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , . . . , . . . 

b 33 1 /3% 5upport te5t - 2019, If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33 1 /3% or more, check 
this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ................. . 

17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test - 2020. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is 
10% or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in 
Part VI how the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported 

► □ 

organization . , . . . . . . . . . . . . , . . . . . . , . . , . . , . . . . . . , . . , . . . . , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ► O 
b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test - 2019. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line 

15 is 10% or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain 
in Part VI how the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported 
organization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see 

instructions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

EEA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990,EZI 2020 



ScheduleA(Form990or990.EZ)2020 JALISCIENCE FOLKLORIC ACADEMY 83-3577492 Page3 
: Part Ill I Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2) 

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under Part II. 
If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.) 

3ection A. Public Support 
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) ► 

1 Gifts. grants. contributions. and membership fees 

received. (Do not include any "unusual grants.") 
2 Gross receipts from admissions, merchandise 

sold or services performed, or facilities 
furnished in any activity that is related to the 
organization's tax-exempt purpose . . . . . 

3 Gross receipts from activities that are not an 
unrelated trade or business under section 513 

4 Tax revenues levied for the 

organization's benefit and either paid to 
or expended on its behalf . . . . . . . 

5 The value of services or facilities 

furnished by a governmental unit to the 
organization without charge 

6 Total. Add lines 1 through 5 

7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and 3 

received from disqualified persons 
b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3 

received from other than disqualified 

persons that exceed the greater of $5,000 

or 1 % of the amount on line 13 for the year 

c Add lines 7a and 7b ......... . 

8 Public support. (Subtract line 7c from 
line 6.) ................ . 

Section B. Total Support 
.'.:alendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) ► • 
9 Amounts from line 6 .......... i 

0a Gross income from interest. dividends. 

payments received on securities loans, rents, 

royalties. and income from similar sources 
b Unrelated business taxable income (less 

section 511 taxes) from businesses 

acquired after June 30, 1975 ... 
C Add lines 10a and 10b ....... 

1 Net income from unrelated business 

activities not included in line 1 Ob, whether 
or not the business is regularly carried on 

2 Other income. Do not include gain or 
loss from the sale of capital assets 
(Explain in Part VI.) ......... . . 

1 3 Total support. (Add lines 9, 1 0c, 11, 

and 12.) ............... . . . : 

(a) 2016 (b) 2017 (c) 2018 (d) 2019 (e) 2020 (f) Total 

(a) 2016 (b) 2017 (c)2018 (d) 2019 (e) 2020 (f) Total 
! 

i 

I 
14 First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second. third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501 (c)(3) 

organization. check this box and stop here ............................ . ► □ 
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage 
15 Public support percentage for 2020 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) 15 i % 
16 Public support percentage from 2019 Schedule A, Part Ill, line 15 . . . . . . . . . . 16 I % 
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage 
17 Investment income percentage for 2020 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) 17 ! % 
18 Investment income percentage from 2019 Schedule A, Part Ill, line 17 . . . . . • . . . . • 18 . % 
1 9a 33 1/3% support tests - 2020. If the organization did not check the box on line 14. and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line 

17 is not more than 33 1 /3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . ► D 
b 33 1/3% support tests - 2019. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and 

line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ► D 
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions ► D 
EEA sc11edule A (Form 990 or 990-EZJ 2020 



ScheduleA{FormS90or99D-EZ)2020 JALISCIENCE FOLKLORIC ACADEMY 83-3577492 Page4 
I Part IV j Supporting Organizations 

(Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part I. If you checked box 12a, Part I, complete Sections A 
and B. If you checked box 12b, Part I, complete Sections A and C. If you checked box 12c, Part I, complete 
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked box 12d, Part I, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.) 

Section A. All Supporting Organi.zations 

1 Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization's governing 
documents? If "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by 
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 

2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status 

under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported 
organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 

3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501 (c)(4), (5), or (6)? If "Yes," answer 
lines 3b and 3c below. 

b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501 (c)(4), (5), or (6) and 
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If "Yes, 11 describe in Part VI when and how the 
organization made the determination. 

c Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(8) 
purposes? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 

4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ("foreign supported organization")? If 
"Yes," and if you checked 12a or 12b in Part I, answer lines 4b and 4c below. 

b Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign 
supported organization? If ''Yes, 11 describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion 
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its suppoited organizations. 

c Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination 
under sections 501 (c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization used 
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B) 
purposes. 

5a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If "Yes," 
answer lines 5b and 5c below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN 
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ii) the reasons for each such action; 
(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action 
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document). 

b Type I or Type II only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already 
designated in the organization's organizing document? 

c Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control? 
6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of seNices or facilities) to 

anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited 
by one or more of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also support or 
benefit one or more of the filing organization's supported organizations? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 

7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor 
(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity 
with regard to a substantial contributor? If "Yes," complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ). 

8 Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4956) not described in line 7? 

If "Yes," complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ). 

9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more 
disqualified persons, as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations 
described in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 

b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined in line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which 
the supporting organization had an interest? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 

c Did a disqualified person (as defined in line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit 
from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 

1 Oa Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section 
4943(f) (regarding certain Type II supporting organizations, and all Type Ill non-functionally integrated 
supporting organizations)? If "Yes," answer 10b below. 

b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to 
determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.) 

9c 

EEA Schedule A {Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020 



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020 JALISCIENCE FOLKLORIC ACADEMY 83-3577492 
I Part IV I Supporting Organizations (continued) 

11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons? 

a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in lines 11 band 
11c below, the governing body of a supported organization? 

b A family member of a person described in line 11 a above? 
c A 35% controlled entity of a person described in 11 a or 11 b above? If "Yes" to line 11 a, 11 b, or 11 c, provide 

detail in Part VI. 
Section B. Type I Supporting Organizations 

1 Did the governing body, members of the governing body, officers acting in their official capacity, or membership of one or 

more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization's officers, 

directors, or trustees at all times during the tax year? If "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s) 

effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization's activities. ff the organization had more than one supported 

organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove officers, directors, or trustees were allocated among the 

supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year. 

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported 
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If ''Yes," explain in Part 
VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated, 
supervised, or controlled the supporting organization. 

Section C. Type II Supporting Organizations 

Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors 
or trustees of each of the organization's supported organization(s)? If "No," describe in Part VI how control 
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed 

the supported organization(s), 
Section D. All Type Ill Supporting Organizations 

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the 
organization's tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax 
year, (ii) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the 
organization's governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided? 

2 Were any of the organization's officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported 
organization(s) or (ii) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If "No," explain in Part VI how 
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s). 

3 By reason of the relationship described in line 2, above, did the organization's supported organizations have 
a significant voice in the organization's investment policies and in directing the use of the organization's 
income or assets at all times during the tax year? If "Yes," describe in Part VJ the role the organization's 
supported organizations played in this regard. 

Section E. Type Ill Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations 

Page 5 

Yes No 

f> .' 
!''' 

i 11a 
I 11 b 1 

, l 
I l 
I 11c 1 

Yes No 

2 

Yes No 

; 

Yes No 

1 

2 

3 

1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions), 
a D The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below. 
b D The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below. 
c D The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VJ how you supported a government entity (see instructions). 

2 Activities Test. Answer lines 2a and 2b below. Yes No 

a Did substantially all of the organization's activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of 
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If "Yes," then in Part VI identify 

those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes, 
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined 
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities. 

b Did the activities described in line 2a, above, constitute activities that, but for the organization's involvement, 
one or more of the organization's supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? If ''Yes," explain in 

Part VI the reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in 
these activities but for the organization's involvement. 

3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer lines 3a and 3b below. 
a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or 

2b 

trustees of each of the supported organizations? If "Yes" or "No," provide details in Part VI. 3a 
r------+--

b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each 
of its supported organizations? If "Yes," describe in Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard. i 3b 

EEA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020 



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020 JALI SC I ENCE FOLKLORIC ACADEMY 83-3577492 
I Part V I Type Ill Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations 

1 0 Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part VI). See 
instructions. All other Type Ill non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E. 

Page 6 

Section A -Adjusted Net Income (A) Prior Year 
(B) Current 

(optional) 
1 Net short-term capital gain 
2 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 
3 Other gross income (see instructions) 
4 Add lines 1 through 3. 
5 Depreciation and depletion 
6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or collection 

of gross income or for management, conseNation, or maintenance of 
property held for production of income (see instructions) 

7 Other expenses (see instructions) 
8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4) 

Section B - Minimum Asset Amount 

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see 
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year): 

a Average monthly value of securities 
b Average monthly cash balances 
c Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets 
d Total (add lines 1 a, 1 b, and 1 c) 
e Discount claimed for blockage or other factors 

(explain in detail in Part VJ): 
2 Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets 
3 Subtract line 2 from line 1 d. 
4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 0.015 of line 3 (for greater amount, 

see instructions). 
5 Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3) 
6 Multiply line 5 by 0.035. 
7 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 
8 Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6) 

Section C - Distributable Amount 

1 Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, Column A) 
2 Enter 0.85 of line 1. 

1 
2 
3 
4 

5 

6 
7 

8 

, 1a 
1b 
1c 
1d 

3 

4 
5 
6 

7 
8 

1 
2 

3 Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section 8, line 8, Column A) 3 
4 Enter greater of line 2 or line 3. 4 
5 Income tax imposed in prior year 5 
6 Distributable Amount Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to 

emergency temporary reduction (see instructions). 6 

(A) Prior Year 

Current Year 

7 D Check here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally integrated Type Ill supporting organization 
(see instructions). 

EEA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020 



ScheduleA(Form 998 or990-EZ) 2020 JALISCIENCE FOLKLORIC ACADEMY 83-3577492 Page 7 

, Part V Type Ill Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued) 

Section D - Distributions Current Year 

1 Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes 
2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported 

organizations, in excess of income from activity 
3 Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations 
4 Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets 
5 Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required) - provide details in Part VI) 
6 Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions. 
7 Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6. 
8 Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive 

(provide details in Part VI). See instructions. 
9 Distributable amount for 2020 from Section C, line 6 

10 Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount 

Section E - Distribution Allocations (see instructions) 

1 Distributable amount for 2020 from Section C, line 6 
2 Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2020 

(reasonable cause required - explain in Part VI). See 
instructions. 

3 Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2020 
a From 2015 
b From2016 
c From 2017 
d From 2018 
e From 2019 
f Total of lines 3a through 3e 

Carryover from 2015 not applied (see instructions) 
j Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from line 3f. 

4 Distributions for 2020 from 
Section D, line 7: $ 

a Applied to underdistributions of prior years 
b Applied to 2020 distributable amount 
c Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from line 4. 

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2020, if 
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result 
greater than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions. 

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2020. Subtract lines 3h 
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in 
Part VI. See instructions. 

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2021. Add lines 3j 
and 4c. 

8 Breakdown of line 7: 
a Excess from 2016 
b Excess from 2017 
c Excess from 2018 
d Excess from 2019 
e Excess from 2020 

EEA 

(i) 

1 

2 
3 
4 
5 

6 
7 

8 

9 

10 
(ii) (iii) 

Distributable 
Amount for 2020 

Schedule A {Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2020 



8879-EO 
IRS e-fi/e Signature Authorization 

for an Exempt Organization 0MB No. 1545-0047 
Form 

Department of the Treasury 

Internal Revenue Service 

For calendar year 2020. or fiscal year beginning ________ , and ending _______ _ 

► Do not send to the IRS. Keep for your records. 2020 
► Go to www.irs.gov/Form8879EO for the latest information. 

Name of exempt organization or person subject to tax Taxpayer identification number 

JALISCIENCE FOLKLORIC ACADEMY 83-3577492 
Name and title of officer or person subject to tax 

VICTOR MONTES, OFFICER, TREASURER 
I Part I ! Type of Return and Return Information (Whole Dollars Only) 
Check the box for the return for which you are using this Form 8879-EO and enter the applicable amount, if any, from the return. If you 

check the box on line 1a, 2a, 3a, 4a, Sa, Sa, or 7a, below, and the amount on that line for the return being filed with this form was 

blank, then leave line 1 b, 2b, 3b, 4b, Sb, Sb, or 7b, whichever is applicable, blank (do not enter -0-). But, if you entered -0· on the 

return, then enter -0· on the applicable line below. Do not complete more than one line in Part I. 

1a Form 990 check here ► 0 b Total revenue, if any (Form 990, Part VIII, column (A), line 12) 

2a Form 990-EZ check here ► ~ b Total revenue, if any (Form 990-EZ, line 9) 

3a Form 1120-POL check here ► D b Total tax (Form 1120-POL, line 22) 

4a Form 990-PF check here ► D b Tax based on investment income (Form 990-PF, Part VI, line S) 

Sa Form 8868 check here ► D b Balance due (Form 8868, line 3c) •. 

Sa Form 990-T check here ► 0 b Total tax (Form 990-T, Part Ill. line 4) ............. . 

7a Form 4720 check here ► 0 b Total tax (Form 4720, Part 111, line 1) ............. . 

1b 

2b 

3b 

• 4b 

Sb 

Sb 

7b 

I Part II I Declaration and Signature Authorization of Officer or Person Subject to Tax 
Under penalties of perjury, I declare that O I am an officer of the above organization or O I am a person subject to tax with respect to 

(name of organization) ___________________ , (EIN) _____ and that I have examined a copy 

of the 2020 electronic return and accompanying schedules and statements, and, to the best of my knowledge and belief, they are 

true. correct, and complete. I further declare that the amount in Part I above is the amount shown on the copy of the electronic return. 

I consent to allow my intermediate service provider, transmitter, or electronic return originator (ERO) to send the return to the IRS and 

to receive from the IRS (a) an acknowledgement of receipt or reason for rejection of the transmission, (b) the reason for any delay in 

processing the return or refund, and (c) the date of any refund. If applicable, I authorize the U.S. Treasury and its designated Financial 

Agent to initiate an electronic funds withdrawal (direct debit) entry to the financial institution account indicated in the tax preparation 

software for payment of the federal taxes owed on this return, and the financial institution to debit the entry to this account. To revoke 

a payment. I must contact the U.S. Treasury Financial Agent at 1-888-353-4537 no later than 2 business days prior to the payment 

(settlement) date. I also authorize the financial institutions involved in the processing of the electronic payment of taxes to receive 

confidential information necessary to answer inquiries and resolve issues related to the payment. I have selected a personal 

identification number (PIN) as my signature for the electronic return and, if applicable, the consent to electronic funds withdrawal. 

PIN: check one box only 

0 I authorize _____________________ to enter my PIN ________ as my signature 
ERO firm name Enter five numbers, but 

do not enter all zeros 

on the tax year 2020 electronically filed return. If I have indicated within this return that a copy of the return is being filed with a 
state agency(ies) regulating charities as part of the IRS Fed/State program, I also authorize the aforementioned ERO lo enter my 
PIN on the return's disclosure consent screen. 

~ As an officer or person subject to tax with respect to the organization, I will enter my PIN as my signature on the tax year 2020 
electronically filed return. If I have indicated within this return that a copy of the return is being filed with a state agency(ies) 
regulating charities as part of the IRS Fed/State program, I will enter my PIN on the retum's disclosure consent screen. 

16702 
Signature of officer or person subject to tax ► 

I Part III j Certification and Authentication 
ERO's EFIN/PIN. Enter your six-digit electronic filing identification 

number (EFIN) followed by your five-digit self-selected PIN. 

~~ ► 04-18-2021 

307339 06122 
Do not enter all zeros 

I certify that the above numeric entry is my PIN, which is my signature on the 2020 electronically filed return indicated above. I confirm 

that I am submitting this return in accordance with the requirements of Pub. 4163, Modernized e-File (MeF) Information for Authorized 

IRS e-file Providers for Business Returns. 

ERO's s,gnature ► MELECIO SALAS Date ► 04-18-2021 

ERO Must Retain This Form - See Instructions 
Do Not Submit This Form to the IRS Unless Requested To Do So 

2 000 

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions. 

EEA 
Form 8879-EO (2020) 





City of Solana Beach 

Community Grant Program 

Request for Financial Assistance 

FY 2021 ~2022 

APPLICATION 

Name of Organization: La Goiania Community Foundation, Inc. 

Mailing Address: 816 Juanita Street 

City: Solana Beach State: California ZIP: 92075 

Contact Persons: Priscilla Rojo, Lisa Montes 

Daytime Phone: 760-650-6491, 858-519-6645, 
Evening Phone: same same 
Email address: Jacoloniacommunitvandpriscil/a@gmail.com. la 
coloniacommunitva ndlisa@gmail.com 

1. W-9 must be attached 
Summary of organization's budget must be attached 
Proposed program budget must be attached 

Financial Statements (see Application Guidelines) must be attached 

2. A copy of the certification Nonprofit Corporation must be attached 
OR, California Non-profit 501 (C)3 Certificate Number: 83-2489325 

3. Has your organization received financial assistance from the City before? YES 

4. Amount requested FY 2021-22: $5,000.00 

5. Proposed Total Program Costs: (Includes all estimated costs to conduct proposed 
activity/program.)$5,560.00 

6. Title of Proposed Program/Service: Latino Youth Empowerment Conference & Career 
Expo 

7. Grant funds must be used for services or materials directly associated with 
proposed activity. Please describe how the funds will be used:. 

We anticipate spending $480 for marketing and printing of our flyers, conference program, and 
workshop materials. Our opening and closing keynote speakers will cost us $400 each for a 
total of $800. The cost of food for the conference will be our greatest expense costing us 



approximately $1,500.00 for continental breakfast and lunch. We will need to rent items tents, 
audio visual equipment, and tablecloths and we anticipate it to cost us $800.00. Our 
conference supplies will cost us $700.00 and this will include presentation office supplies, such 
as expo markers, large poster sized post it sheets, and career expo supplies for our 
presenters, and certificate supplies for our student attendees and volunteers. Each student 
participant will receive a Latino Youth Empowerment and Career Expo conference t-shirt to 
proudly wear in the community and at school with the City of Solana Beach logo proudly 
displayed. The total expected cost of the conference is $5,660.00 

SBC&HS GRANT APPLICATION for 2019-2020- Page 2 

8. Estimated number of S.B. residents to be served by proposed program: 75 middle 
and high school students and their parents for a total of 150 individuals. 

9. Program Dates/Location: 10. Anticipated Program Objectives or Accomplishments: 

Saturday, May 7, 2022- La Colonia Community Center and Park 

Objectives: 

To encourage Latino youth to explore careers and to begin preparing for either a 
vocational or college education. 

To educate parents about higher education for their youth and the importance of preparing 
now. 

Demystify the college financial aid and scholarship process. 

11. How will the organization acknowledge the City's financial contribution to the 
community/beneficiaries of the proposed activity? 

We will proudly display the City of Solana Beach's logo on all conference marketing 
material, as well as the conference t-shirts and will acknowledge the City as our sponsor at 
the opening session of the conference. 

12. Will there be any matching funds or other grants that would be applied to this 
program or service? If awarded this grant, will that enable other funding sources? 

We will apply for a Coastal Community foundation grant to cover the remaining conference 
expenses. 



13. Will volunteers be used for the proposed program or service, and if so, will they 
reduce expenses? SBC&HS GRANT APPLICATION for 2021-22 - Page 3 

Yes, due to the fact that the conference is volunteer based and run, this has allowed for us 
to reduce our cost to $5660. All workshop presenters and career expo exhibitors are 
professionals from our community who will volunteer their time to share their careers with 

student participants and parents. 

14. If the proposed program or service is only awarded partial funding, will it still 
move forward? Will the program or service be scaled back and/or is there a threshold 
at which it will not move forward? If we receive only a portion of our requested funds, we 
will move forward with the conference and career expo, but will need to scale back our 
costs. 

Thank you for the opportunity to apply for this Grant! 

~~ f?? ~--2'-/ -2-0ol-/ 



La Colonia Community Foundation 

Proposed Program Budget for Youth 
Empowerment Conference 

2021-22 

Marketing and Printing $460 

Keynote Speaker Honorarium 2 x $400 $800 

Food $1500 

Rentals $800 

Supplies $700 

Conference T-shirts $1400 

Total $5660 

Conference Supplies 

Total 



Treasurer's Report 
LA COLON/A COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 

General Membership Meeting 
For the period July 1st, 2020 to June 30th, 2021 

Income 
Contributions, Gifts and Grants 

Corporate Donations 
Individual Donations 

Fundraising (Ways and Means) 
RESTRICTED FUNDS 

Total Income 

Expenditures 
Administrative and Operations 

Insurance 
Postage 
Bank Fees 
GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE 
Office Supplies 

Fundraising (Ways and Means) 
RESTRICTED FUNDS 

Programs 
DIA DE LOS MUERTOS 

Total Expenditures 

Opening balance as of July 1st, 2020: 
Balance on hand as of June 30th, 2021: 

$250.00 
$175.00 

$23,704.29 

$325.00 
$52.63 
$30,00 

-$110.92 
-$12.58 

$10,408.89 

$540.00 

$24,129.29 

$11,233.02 
$12,896.27 

$13,347.61 
$26,243;!1~ 

LA COLONIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION $26,243.88 

/4 __ .,_·:-',C'-; __ 7.c._.c_,_,_,_~_~-'-/1-~_;:~_--~➔j-) ?{,_._<-_· '--"'--~+(-'<·~/"-•--~------ Treasurer's Signature 

/ .. 

LA COLONIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION Page 1 of 1 



,.,. IRS DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 
~ INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 

CINCINNATI OH 45999-0023 

LA COLONIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 
1092 GOLDEN RD 
ENCINITAS, CA 92024 

Date of this notice: 11-09-2018 

Employer Identification Number: 
83-2489325 

Fonn: SS-4 

Number of this notice: CP 575 E 

For assistance you may call us at: 
1-800-829-4933 

IF YOU WRITE, ATTACH THE 
STUB AT THE END OF THIS NOTICE. 

HE ASSIGNED YOU AN EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER 

Thank you for applying for an Employer Identification Number (EIN). We assigned 
you EIN 83-2489325. This EIN will identify you, your business accounts, tax returns, 
and documents, even if you have no employees. Please keep this notice in your 
permanent records .• 

When filing tax documents, payments, and related correspondence, it is very 
important that you use your EIN and complete name and address exactly as shown above. 
Any variation may cause a delay in processing, result in incorrect infonnation in your 
account, or even cause you to be assigned more than one EIN. If the information 
is not correct as shown above, please make the correction using the attached tear-off 
stub and return it to us. 

When you submitted your application for an EIN, you checked the box indicating 
you are a non-profit organization. Assigning an EIN does not grant tax-exempt status 
to non-profit organizations. Publication 557, Tax-Exempt Status for Your 
Organization, has details on the application process, as well as information on 
returns you may need to file. To apply for recognition of tax-exempt status under 
Internal Revenue Code Section 50l(c) (3), organizations must complete a Form 
1023-series application for recognition. All other entities should file Form 1024 if 
they want to request recognition under Section 501(a). 

Nearly all organizations claiming tax-exempt status must file a Form 990-series 
annual information return (Fenn 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) or notice (Form 990-N) 
beginning with the year they legally form, even if they have not yet applied for or 
received recognition of tax-exempt status. 

Onless a filing exception applies to you (search www.irs.gov for Annual Exempt 
Organization Return: Who Must File), you will lose your tax-exempt status if you fail 
to file a required return or notice for three consecutive years. We start calculating 
this three-year period from the tax year we assigned the EIN to you. If that first 
tax year isn't a full twelve months, you're still responsible for submitting a return 
for that year. If you didn't legally form in the same tax year in which you obtained 
your EIN, contact us at the phone number or address listed at the top of this letter. 

For the most current information on your filing requirements and other important 
. information, visit www.irs.gov/charities. 



Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Give Fonn to the 

(Rev. October 2018) Identification Number and Certification requester. Do not 
send to the IRS. Department of the Treasury 

Internal Revenue Service ► Goto www.irs.gov/FormW9 for instructions and the latest information. 
1 Name (as shown on your income tax return), Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank. 

La Colonia Community Foundation, Inc. 
2 Business name/disregarded entity name. if different from above 

(') 
(lJ 3 Check appropriate box for federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only one of the 4 Exemptions (codes apply only to 
Cl following seven boxes. certain entities, not individuals; see ro 
a. instructions on page 3): 
C □ lndividuaVsolo proprietor or D C Corporation D S Corporation D Partnership D Trust/estate 0 

• Iii single-member LLC Exempt payee code 61 any) (I) C 
Q. 0 z;-:.: u □ Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=Partnershlp) ► .. :::, Note: Check the appropriate box In the line above for the tax classification of the single-member owner. Do not check Exemption from FATCA reporting 0 .. 

C t; 
•- C 

LLC if the LLC is classified as a single-member LLC that is disregarded from the owner unless the owner of the LLC is code 61 any) another LLC that is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Otherwise, a single-member LLC that .. -
0.. u 

:E is disregarded from the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax classification of its owner. 

"' □ Other (see instructions) ► tApp/ios. to 4:ICCOllnb trulntJJJncd cut!Jdo tho U.S.) 
(lJ 
Q. 5 Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) See instructions. Requester's name and address (optional) en 
(lJ 

816 Juanita Street (lJ 

en 
6 City, state, and ZIP code 

Solana Beach, CA 92075 
7 List account number(s) here (optional) 

■:r.T •• Taxpayer Identification Number fflN) 
Enter you~TIN in_the app:o~ri_ate box. !h~ TIN provided must.match t~e name given on line 1 to avoid I Socio! security number I 
backup withholding. For individuals, this Is generally your social secunty number (SSN). However, for a DJ] [[] I I I I I 
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the instructions for Part I, later. For other - -
entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a . . . . . 
TIN, later. or 
Note: If the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1. Also see What Name and '""I E-m-pl-o-ye-r-id_e_ntm_·_,-cat-io_n_n_u_m_b_e_r ----. 

Number To Give the Requester for guidelines on whose number to enter. 
83 -2489325 

Certification 
Under penalties of perjury, I certify that: 

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and 
2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (bl I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue 

Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (cl the IRS has notified me that I am 
no longer subject to backup withholding; and 

3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and 

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form {if any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct. 

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because 
you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid, 
acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments 
other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions for Part II, later. 

Sign 
Here 

Signature of 
U.S. person ► 

General Instructions 
Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise 
noted. 

Future developments. For the latest information about developments 
related to Form W-9 and its instructions, such as legislation enacted 
after they were published, go to www.irs.gov/FormW9. 

Purpose of Form 
An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester} who is required to file an 
information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer 
identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number 
(SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN), adoption 
taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number 
(EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other 
amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information 
returns include, but are not limited to, the following. 

• Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid) 

Cat. No. 10231X 

Date ► 

• Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual 
funds) 

• Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross 
proceeds) 

• Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other 
transactions by brokers) 

• Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions) 

• Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions) 

• Form 1098 (home mortgage interest}, 1098-E (student loan interest), 
1098-T (tuition) 

• Form 1099-C (canceled debt) 

• Form 1 ogg_A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property) 

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident 
alien), to provide your correct TIN. 

If you do not retum Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might 
be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding, 
later. 

Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018) 



( 



City of Solana Beach 
Community Grant Program 

Request for Financial Assistance 
FY 2021-22 APPLICATION 

All Applications MUST BE RECEIVED by s.·oo p.m. Tuesday, May 25, 2021. 
Please Print Clearly or Type 

All requests will be determined by the following criteria: 

Name of Organization :_N_at_u_re_C_o_l_le_c_tiv_e __________________ _ 
Mailing Address:_P_._o_. _B_ox_2_3_0_6_34 ____________________ _ 
City Encinitas State _C_A __ Zip 92023 
Contact Person :=E=la=+yn=a =-Fl=a=n=de=r=s _____________________ _ 
Daytime Phone:_8_5_8_-7_0_4_-4_s_so _____________________ _ 
Evening Phone:_8_5_8_-_70_4_-4_5_5_0 _____________________ _ 
Email address: elayna@thenaturecollective.org 

1. W-9 must be attached 
Summary of organization's budget must be attached 
Proposed program budget must be attached 
Financial and Tax Statements (see Application Guidelines) must be attached 

2. A copy of the California Franchise Tax Board Entity Status Letter must be attached, 
showing exemption under Section 23701d or Internal Revenue Code section 
50l(c)(3) 

3. Has your organization received financial assistance from the City before? 
Yes ~ No D 
If yes, what activities and which fiscal year? Open space for all at Harbaugh Seaside Trails 
FY 2020-21 

4. Amount requested for FY 2021-22 $ s,ooo 

5. Proposed Total Program Costs: $ 9,830 

(Includes all estimated costs to conduct proposed activity/program.) 

6. Title of Proposed Program/Service: Volunteer Ambassador Program at Annie's Canyon Trail 

7. Grant funds must be used for services or materials directly associated to proposed 
activity. Please describe how grant funds will be used: 

Funds are to be used to support the Volunteer Ambassador Program at Annie's Canyon Trail 
in Solana Beach. The Rios Avenue Trail, which leads to the ever-popular Annie's Canyon Trail 
is a high use trail, especially on the weekends. This pilot program utilizes a group of trained 
volunteers to greet visitors from 9-11 am on Saturday and Sunday mornings.These dedicated 
volunteers help answer questions about easy-to-spot plants and animals that guests might 
encounter along the trail and provide information about the important role this State Marine 
Conservation Area plays in protecting the diversity and abundance of marine life. In addition, 
volunteers will encourage visitors to keep Solana Beach beautiful and clean by picking up trash 
and staying on the trail. 



8. 

9. 

10. 

Estimated number of S.B. residents to be served by proposed program:_4-'-,s_o_o __ _ 

Program Dates/Location: Saturday and Sunday mornings 9-11 am 

Anticipated Program Objectives or Accomplishments: 

The Volunteer Ambassador Program aims to provide public outreach and education to Solana 
Beach residents visiting Annie's Canyon Trail in Solana Beach. Nature Collective will recruit, 
train and retain volunteer ambassadors. By increasing the number of trained Volunteer 
Ambassadors, we will be able to provide outreach and engagement every weekend and all major 
holidays. We recognize the importance of training and retaining passionate volunteers to share 
their love nature with others. Sadly, many nonprofit organizations struggle to find adequate time 
and funding to dedicate to a volunteer program. Realizing this, Nature Collective has invested in 
adding a dedicated Volunteer Director to our staff. This director recruits, manages, creates 
curriculum and provides recognition to all of our dedicated volunteers. A minimum of 30 
volunteers will participate in year-round training to ensure outreach events are implemented and 
covered. These volunteers will be trained to educate the public on ways to respect nature by 
staying on the trail, not littering and picking up trash when you see it. 

11. How will the organization acknowledge the City's financial contribution to the 
community/ beneficiaries of the proposed activity? 
Nature Collective will acknowledge the City's financial contribution through promotional social 
media posts highlighting the contributions made. 

12. Will there be any matching funds or other grants that would be applied to this 
program or service? If awarded this grant, will that enable other funding sources? 
Yes, Nature Collective and funding through the Ocean Protection Council will provide matching 
funds. This grant will not enable other funding sources. 

13. Will volunteers be used for the proposed program or service and, if so, will they 
reduce expenses? 

Nature Collective staff will train Volunteers Ambassadors to engage the public at Annie's 
Canyon Trail on weekends therefore reducing expenses that would otherwise incur from paying 
staff members. 

14. If the proposed program or service is only awarded partial funding, will it still move 
forward? Will the program or service be scaled back and/or is there a threshold at 
which it will not move forward? 

Yes, but in a reduced impact and with a longer time line as we seek additional funding sources to 
meet our total program costs. We currently partner with the California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife, WILDCOAST, City of Encinitas, San Diego County Parks and Recreation, Wildlife 
Conservation Board, California State Parks, the California Coastal Commission, and the Ocean 
Protection Council. As the program grows these partnerships strengthen. With successful 
programs and increased partnerships, organizations work together to ensure programs continue 
after specific grant funding is no longer available. Invested organizations do not want the 
time investment to be lost after funding has run out. This provides a strong incentive to build 
sustainable programing from the beginning. 



Acknowledgment of Responsibility: 
Authorized Signature assumes all responsibility for developing and implementing 
proposed activities or events in this application, including public acknowledgment of the 
City's financial contribution. Authorized signature will comply with all accounting and 
budget procedures outlined by the City. Authorized signature and accompanying group 
will hold harmless the City of Solana Beach from all losses, claims, accidents and 
problems associated, directly or indirectly with the development and implementation of 
proposed activities or events. 

:::::,, 05.25.2021 

Authorized Signature of Organization Date 

ALL INFORMATION REQUESTED ON THIS APPLICATION MUST BE COMPLETED AS A CONDITION FOR BEING 
CONSIDERED FOR PUBLIC FUNDS BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF SOLANA BEACH. 



NATURE COLLECTIVE 

BUDGET SUMMARY 

1/1/2021-12/31/2021 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec TOTAL 

Expenses 

Administration 18,569 18,389 24,691 21,295 24,446 9,665 9,887 9,692 9,654 9,877 12,154 10,907 179,227 

Development 7,624 11,468 7,697 7,237 7,337 7,237 7,282 7,320 7,652 7,237 7,337 7,237 92,663 

Outreach 17,632 16,620 17,108 17,973 17,508 17,208 16,958 16,665 17,258 16,658 16,658 16,658 204,906 

Education 32,833 21,107 17,860 15,529 15,968 16,232 16,129 15,881 17,798 17,181 22,734 20,057 229,308 

Operations 17,206 24,258 21,278 16,390 16,419 16,383 16,383 16,389 16,383 16,481 17,544 17,377 212,491 

Habitat Management 88,567 145,663 90,386 109,054 69,609 95,596 156,229 93,149 71,817 104,555 97,033 189,320 1,310,976 

San Elijo Lagoon Restoration 165,978 165,958 167,202 165,937 165,919 166,122 165,906 165,922 165,909 171,750 165,980 166,121 1,998,704 

Strawberry Fields 6,083 6,083 6,083 6,083 6,083 6,083 6,083 6,083 6,083 6,083 6,083 6,083 73,000 

Total Expenses 354,492 409,546 352,304 359,497 323,288 334,526 394,857 331,101 312,555 349,822 345,523 433,760 4,301,276 

Revenue 
Fee For Service 9,912 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 9,912 6,000 6,900 8,200 8,200 9,504 91,129 
Program Revenue 409,964 291,883 291,883 291,883 291,883 291,883 314,814 291,883 291,883 291,883 291,883 299,527 3,651,248 

Support Services Revenue 40,226 40,226 40,226 40,226 40,226 40,226 40,226 40,226 40,326 40,476 40,476 40,476 483,563 

Total Revenue 460,103 338,109 338,109 338,109 338,109 338,109 364,953 338,109 339,109 340,559 340,559 349,507 4,225,939 

Overage (Shortfall) 105,610 (71,438) (14,195) (21,389} 14,821 3,583 (29,905) 7,008 26,554 (9,263) (4,965) {84,253) (77,832) 



Project Budget 

Item Name Grant Request Matching Funds Total Project Cost 

Storage containers $ 260 $ 190 $ 450 

Small tables $ 120 $ 60 $ 180 

Tablecloths $ 125 $ 125 $ 250 

Printing, handbooks, flyers, stickers $ 1,000 $ 510 $ 1,510 

Pens $ 400 $ - $ 400 

Brochure Holders $ 150 $ - $ 150 

Field Flags $ 225 $ 225 $ 450 

Tent $ - $ 500 $ 500 

Misc Meeting/Training Expenses $ 1,720 $ 720 $ 2,440 

Volunteer Snacks $ 500 $ - $ 500 

Annual Volunteer Award Ceremony $ - $ 1,000 $ 1,000 

30 Volunteer Ambassador Uniforms (backpacks, hats, vests, pins, patches) $ - $ 1,000 $ 1,000 

Non Profit Soluntions Volunteer Management Training $ 500 $ 500 $ 1,000 

Total $ 5,000 $ 4,830 $ 9,830 



Nature Collective 
Financial Statements 

Year Ended December 37, 2079 



NATURE COLLECTIVE 
Financial Statements 
Year Ended December 31, 2019 

Table of Contents 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Financial Statements: 

Statement of Financial Position 

Statement of Activities 

Statement of Functional Expenses 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Page 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 



( 

l 

Aldrich.M 

To the Board of Directors 
Nature Collective 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Aldrich CPAs - Advisors LLP 

7676 Hazard Drive, #1300 

San Diego, California 92108 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nature Collective (a nonprofit organization), which 
comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2019, and the related statements of activities, 
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting princfples generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal controls. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management. as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Nature Collective as of December 31 , 2019, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis-of-Matter Regarding a Change in Accounting Principles 

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2019, Nature Collective adopted Accounting Standards Update 
(ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (ASC Topic 606), and ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope 
and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made (ASC Topic 958). Our opinion is not 
modified with respect to these matters. 

San Diego, California 
September 1, 2020 



NATURE COLLECTIVE 
Statement of Financial Position 
December 31, 2019 

ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash 
Grants receivable, net of allowance 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 
Short-term investments 

Total Current Assets 

Non-Current Assets: 
Long-term investments 
Beneficial interests in assets 
Other assets 
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 

Total Non-Current Assets 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Current Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Deferred revenue 

Total Current Liabilities 

Net Assets: 
Without donor restrictions 
With donor restrictions 

Total Net Assets 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

$ 668,459 
2,687,356 

2,767 
1,257,207 

4,615,789 

1,762,271 
2,707,981 

19,660 
5,317,864 

9,807,776 

$ 14,423,565 

$ 1,950,133 
54,517 
68,362 

2,073,012 

10,377,447 
1,973,106 

12,350,553 

$ 14,423,565 

2 



NATURE COLLECTIVE 
Statement of Activities 
Year Ended December 31, 2019 

Without Donor With Donor 
Restrictions Restrictions Total 

Revenue and Support: 
Government grants $ 4,842,518 $ - $ 4,842,518 
Contributions 1,154,840 664,240 1,819,080 
Investment gain 427,870 215,658 643,528 
Change in value of beneficial interests in assets 76,648 76,648 
Released from restriction 754,301 (754,301) 

Total Revenue and Support 7,256,177 125,597 7,381,774 

Operating Expenses: 
Program services: 

Lagoon restoration 4,414,284 4,414,284 
Habitat restoration 1,144,309 1,144,309 
Education 224,754 224,754 

Supporting services: 
Management and general 408,968 408,968 
Fundraising 300,167 300,167 

Total Expenses 6,492,482 6,492,482 

Change in Net Assets 763,695 125,597 889,292 

Net Assets, beginning 9,613,752 1,847,509 11,461,261 

Net Assets, ending $ 10,377,447 $ 1,973,106 $ 12,350,553 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 3 



NATURE COLLECTIVE 
Statement of Functional Expenses 
Year Ended December 31, 2019 

Pro9rams Services Sueeortin9 Services 
Lagoon Habitat Management 

Restoration Restoration Education and General Fundraisin9 Total 

Contract services $ 3,947,043 $ 798,770 $ 1,440 $ 14,187 $ 29,791 $ 4,791,231 
Salaries and related expenses 412,216 209,232 182,606 189,403 150,085 1,143,542 
Community events 400 20,265 29,961 2,171 64,898 117,695 
Rent 113,341 113,341 
Supplies 24,032 40,496 4,569 3,778 14,183 87,058 
Marketing 4,416 6,660 567 117 28,943 40,703 
Bad debt 36,186 36,186 
Miscellaneous 3,280 10,125 3,858 10,624 7,820 35,707 
Equipment 8,522 10,312 8,112 636 27,582 
Insurance 21,262 21,262 
Utilities 5,213 2,345 7,373 14,931 
Accounting 1,500 12,000 13,500 
Depreciation 11,747 11,747 
Telephone 200 624 60 10,099 429 11,412 
Taxes 7,283 2,132 1,059 355 10,829 
Travel 5,758 1,693 472 7,923 
Legal 117 3,082 3,027 6,226 
Automotive 179 1,287 141 1,607 

Total Expenses $ 4,414,284 $ 1,144,309 $ 224,754 $ 408,968 $ 300,167 $ 6,492,482 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 4 



NATURE COLLECTIVE 
Statement of Cash Flows 
Year Ended December 31, 2019 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Change in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets 

to net cash used by operating activities: 
Net realized and unrealized gains on investments 
Change in value of beneficial interests in assets 
Depreciation 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Grants receivable 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 
Prepaid rent 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Deferred revenue 

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Purchases of investments 
Proceeds on sales of investments 

Cash, beginning 

Cash, ending 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 

Net Decrease in Cash 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

$ 889,292 

(363,833) 
(395,600) 

11,747 

(839,830) 
10,991 
(1,846) 

485,792 
(10,714) 
(68,689) 

(282,690) 

(103,494) 
140,578 

37,084 

(245,606) 

914,065 

$ ===6=68='=45=9= 

5 



NATURE COLLECTIVE 
Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended December 31, 2019 

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Activities 
Nature Collective (Organization) is a tax-exempt organization formed in 1987 with the mission to preserve, protect, and 
enhance the natural resources of the San Elijo Lagoon Ecological Reserve and its watershed. The Organization raises 
funds through membership dues and solicitation of private donations and public and private grants. Funds are used to 
support projects that directly benefit the health of the lagoon and watershed or upgrade services available to visitors. 
The Organization is one of San Diego County's largest coastal wetlands covering approximately 1,000 acres of diverse 
habitat composed of six distinct plant communities. 

New Accounting Pronouncement 
In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers (Topic 606). This standard update, along with related subsequently issued updates, clarifies the principles 
for recognizing revenue and develops a common revenue standard under accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America (US GAAP). During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Organization adopted ASU 
2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). 

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions 
Received and Contributions Made (Topic 958). This standard update, along with related subsequently issued updates, 
clarifies and improves the scope and the accounting guidance for contributions received and contributions made under 
US GAAP. During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Organization adopted ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope 
and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made (Topic 958). 

Financial Statement Presentation 
The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with US GAAP, which require the 
Organization to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net asset 
classifications: 

Net assets without donor restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions and may 
be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may 
be used at the discretion of the Organization's management and the board of directors. 

Net assets with donor restrictions - Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors, and grantors. Some 
donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by 
the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, where by the donor has stipulated the 
funds be maintained in perpetuity. 

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a restriction 
expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the 
statement of activities. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, 
actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Grants Receivable 
Grants receivable arise in the normal course of business. It is the policy of management to review the outstanding 
grants receivable at year-end, as well as the bad debt write-offs experienced in the past, and establish an allowance for 
doubtful accounts for uncollectible amounts. At December 31, 2019, management had determined that grants 
receivable were fully collectible; therefore no allowance for doubtful accounts was considered necessary. 

6 



NATURE COLLECTIVE 
Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended December 31, 2019 

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Investments 
The Organization carries investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and investments in 
debt securities at fair values in the statement of financial position. Investments acquired by gift are recorded at their fair 
market value at the date of the gift. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are included in the changes in net assets 
in the statement of activities. 

Beneficial Interest in Assets 
The Organization has transferred assets to the Rancho Santa Fe Foundation (RSFF) for the benefit of the 
Organization. The Organization has granted RSFF variance power which gives RSFF's Board of Directors the power to 
use the funds for other purposes in certain circumstances, however the Organization is named as the beneficiary of 
these funds. The Organization reports the fair value of the beneficial interest in assets held at RSFF in the statement of 
financial position and reports distributions received as investment income. Changes in the value of the funds are 
reported as gains or losses in the statement of activities. 

Fair Value Measurements 
Accounting standards provide the framework for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy 
that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to 
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the lowest 
priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). 

The three levels are defined as follows: 

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in 
active markets. 

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active 
markets, and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the 
same term of the financial instrument. 

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement. 

A financial instrument's categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement. 

As a practical expedient, certain financial instruments may be valued using net asset value (NAV) per share. NAV is 
the amount of net assets attributable to each share of outstanding capital stock at the end of the period. 

The carrying value of cash, receivables, and payables approximates fair values as of December 31, 2019, due to the 
relative short maturities of these instruments. 

Property and Equipment 
The Organization capitalizes all expenditures for property and equipment in excess of $1,000. Equipment and 
improvements are recorded at cost or at estimated fair value at date of gift if donated. Expenditures for maintenance 
and repairs are charged against operations. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful 
lives of the assets of five years. 

Donated Materials and Salaries 
The Organization receives donated materials from various individuals and organizations. In-kind contributions of these 
materials that do not meet the criteria for capitalization are recorded at estimated fair market value as support and 
expense in the period in which the materials are contributed. Many individuals volunteer their time and perform a 
variety of tasks that assist the Organization with various programs. These services do not meet the criteria for 
recognition as a contribution, and are not reflected in the financial statements. The fair market value of contributed 
professional services is reported as support and expense in the period in which the services are performed. 

7 



NATURE COLLECTIVE 
Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended December 31, 2019 

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Income Taxes 
The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and from 
California franchise and income tax under section 23701 (d) of the Revenue and Taxation code. The Organization may 
be subject to tax on income which is not related to its exempt purpose. For the year ended December 31, 2019, no 
such unrelated business taxable income was reported and, therefore, no provision for income taxes has been made. 
The Organization is not a private foundation. 

The Organization recognizes accrued interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax positions as part of the 
income tax provision, when applicable. There are no amounts accrued in the financial statements related to uncertain 
tax positions. 

Functional Expense Allocations 
The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to more than one program or 
supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. 
The expenses that are allocated include salaries and benefits, contract services, marketing and administrative 
expenses. Salaries are allocated on the basis of time and effort and contract services and marketing and administrative 
expenses are broken out by accounts and can be directly charged to the appropriate function based on actual 
expenses. 

Revenue and Support 
Revenues are accounted for under Topic 606, which the Organization adopted on January 1, 2019. The new guidance 
was applied retrospectively to the contracts that were not completed as of the adoption date. Management has 
determined that there is no impact on net assets as of January 1, 2019 due to the adoption of the new policy. 
Management has analyzed the provisions of the FASB's ASC Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, and 
has concluded that no changes are necessary to conform with the new standard. 

Contributions and grants received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net assets with donor 
restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor-imposed restrictions 

The Organization recognizes contributions when cash, securities or other assets; an unconditional promise to give; or a 
notification of a beneficial interest is received. Grants and conditional promises to give - that are, those with a 
measurable performance or other barrier and a right of return - are not recognized until the conditions on which they 
depend have been met. 

Support that is restricted by the donor is reported as an increase in net assets without donor restrictions if the 
restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support is recognized. All other donor-restricted support is 
reported as an increase in net assets with donor restrictions. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time 
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to in net 
assets without donor restrictions. 

Management has analyzed the provisions of the FASB's ASC Topic 958, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting 
Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, and has implemented the new standard on a modified 
prospective basis. 

8 



NATURE COLLECTIVE 
Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended December 31, 2019 

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Future Accounting Standards 
The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) has issued one substantial ASU which will become effective in 
future years. 

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases. The primary change in US GAAP addressed by ASU 2016-
02 is the requirement for a lessee to recognize on the statement of financial position a liability to make lease payments 
("lease liability") and a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term. ASU 
2016-02 also requires qualitative and quantitative disclosures to enable users of the financial statements to assess the 
amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. ASU 2016-02 is effective for fiscal years beginning 
after December 15, 2020. Lessees must apply a modified retrospective transition approach for leases existing at, or 
entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the financial statements, although there 
are optional practical expedients that entities may elect to apply. The Organization is evaluating the effect that the 
provisions of ASU 2016-02 will have on its financial statements and related disclosures. 

Subsequent Events 
The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through September 1, 2020, which is the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 

Due to national and world-wide disruptions caused by COVID-19, the Organization may be adversely impacted. The 
Organization is making adjustments to its operations to compensate for disruptions on an ongoing basis. At this time, 
any financial impact of potential COVID-19 related disruptions are not known. 

The Organization was notified on April 17, 2020 that its application for a loan under the Paycheck Protection Program 
(PPP) was approved by the Small Business Administration (SBA). The loan terms require interest at 1 % per annum, 
due in monthly principal and interest payments that amortize the loan balance, net of any amounts forgiven, over 24 
months. There are no prepayment penalties and the loan is unsecured. The Organization intends to request 
forgiveness for loan proceeds used to pay qualifying payroll expenses during the 24 weeks following loan 
disbursement. The loan forgiveness is exempt from federal income tax. 

Note 2 - Concentrations 

Cash 
The Organization maintains cash accounts at various financial institutions. The balances at times may exceed Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) limits. Accounts at each financial institution are insured by the FDIC up to 
$250,000 

Revenues 
The Organization relies on grant revenue to assist in funding its programs. For the year ended December 31, 2019, 
65% of total revenue was derived from two sources. 

Note 3 - Grants Receivable 

Most of the Organization's grant expenses are reimbursed by the granter after the expense has been incurred. Grants 
receivable consist of the following (by source): 

San Diego County agencies 
State agencies 
Other 

$ 1,941,696 
565,127 
180,533 

$ 2,687,356 

9 



NATURE COLLECTIVE 
Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended December 31, 2019 

Note 3 - Grants Receivable, continued 

The grants receivable balances include a 10% hold back on all grant expenses, which will be paid upon the completion 
of the work performed as outlined in the grant agreements. 

Note 4 - Fair Value Measurements and Investments 

Beneficial interest in assets - The interest in assets held by RSFF has been valued, as a practical expedient, at the fair 
value of the Organization's share of RSFF's investment pool as of the measurement date using Net Asset Value (NAV) 
per share. RSFF values securities and other financial instruments on a fair value basis of accounting. The estimated 
fair values of certain investments of RSFF, which includes private placements and other securities for which prices are 
not readily available, are determined by the management of RSFF and may not reflect amounts that could be realized 
upon immediate sale, nor amounts that ultimately may be realized. 

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable value or 
reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the RSFF believes its valuation methods are appropriate and 
consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value 
of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date. 

The fair market value of investments is categorized as follows: 

Description 

Money market funds $ 
Beneficial interests in assets 
Equity securities: 

Large cap - domestic 
Large cap - international 
Mid cap - domestic 
Mid cap - international 
Small cap - international 

Exchange-traded funds: 
Large cap - domestic 
Mid cap - domestic 
Small cap - domestic 

Fixed income: 
Government bonds - domestic 
Corporate bonds - domestic 

Mutual funds: 
Fixed income - domestic 

Level 1 

677,920 $ 

613,825 
224,718 

9,759 
15,486 

8,452 

453,828 
115,203 
113,960 

503,608 

Level2 

- $ 

161,993 
120,726 

Level3 NAV Total 

- $ 677,920 
2,707,981 2,707,981 

613,825 
224,718 

9,759 
15,486 

8,452 

453,828 
115,203 
113,960 

161,993 
120,726 

503,608 

$ 2,736,759 $ 282,719 $ ====-= $ 2,707,981 $ 5,727,459 

The following schedule summarizes the investment return and its classification for the year: 

Without Donor With Donor 
Restrictions Restrictions Total 

Interest and dividends $ 74,603 $ 35,525 $ 110,128 
Investment expenses (23,787) (18,399) (42,186) 
Net unrealized gains 475,482 41,551 517,033 
Net realized gains (98,428} 156,981 58,553 

$ 427,870 $ 215,658 $ 643,528 

10 



NATURE COLLECTIVE 
Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended December 31, 2019 

Note 5 - Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment consist of the following: 

Machinery and equipment 
Furniture and fixtures 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Land 

Note 6 - Net Assets with Donor Restrictions 

Net assets with donor restrictions are as follows: 

Purpose Restrictions: 
Lake drive trails restoration 
Harbaugh seaside trails 

Endowments: 
Subject to appropriation and expenditure when a specified event occurs: 

General use 

Total Assets with Donor Restrictions 

$ 222,551 
13,841 

236,392 
(196,788) 

39,604 

5,278,260 

$ ===5=,3=17='=86=4= 

$ 121,804 
89,031 

210,835 

1,762,271 

$ 1,973,106 ========= 
Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purpose specified by 
the donors are as follows for the year ended December 31, 2019: 

Satisfaction of purpose restrictions: 
Harbaugh seaside trails 
Lake drive trails restoration 

Note 7 - Endowments 

$ 651,621 
102,680 

$ 754,301 ======== 

In September 1999, the Organization received $1,000,000 from the California State Coastal Conservancy (CSCC) and 
received an additional $700,000 from CSCC in September 2001. The purpose of this endowment is to support the 
Organization's San Elijo Lagoon Tidal Circulation Program. The agreement stipulates that within the first 60 days of 
each calendar year, 5% of the market value of the endowment (calculated on the first business day of that calendar 
year) shall be set aside for the lagoon maintenance program. However, the fund is to have a protected base of at least 
$1.7 million before the 5% is set aside. 

11 



NATURE COLLECTIVE 
Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended December 31, 2019 

Note 7 - Endowments, continued 

The Board of Directors of the Organization has interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act 
(UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted 
endowment funds while supporting the operations of the Organization through a set spending rate. As a result of this 
interpretation, the Organization retains in perpetuity (a) the original value of gifts donated to the endowment, (b) the 
original value of subsequent gifts to the endowment, and (c) accumulation to the endowment made in accordance with 
the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining 
portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not retained in perpetuity is subject to appropriation for 
expenditure by the Organization in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. In 
accordance with UPMIFA, the Organization considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or 
accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: 

1) The duration and preservation of the fund 
2) The purposes of the Organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund 
3) General economic conditions 
4) The possible effect of inflation and deflation 
5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments 
6) Other resources of the Organization 
7) The investment policies of the Organization 

The endowment net assets composition by type of fund consists of the following: 

Without Donor 
Restrictions 

With Donor 
Restrictions Total 

$ - $ 1,762,271 $ 1,762,271 
=========== ====== 

Changes in endowment net assets consist of the following: 

Endowment net assets, beginning of year 

Investment return: 
Interest and dividends 
Investment expenses 
Net realized and unrealized gains 

Total investment return 

$ 

Without Donor 
Restrictions 

- $ 

With Donor 
Restrictions 

1,546,613 

35,525 
(18,399) 
198,532 

215,658 

Endowment net assets, end of year 1,762,271 $=====- $=========== 

Total 

$ 1,546,613 

35,525 
(18,399) 
198,532 

215,658 

$ 1,762,271 

12 



NATURE COLLECTIVE 
Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended December 31, 2019 

Note 7 - Endowments, continued 

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters 
The Organization has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to provide funding 
for the operating expenses of programs supported by its endowments and increase the value of the original contributed 
capital by an amount not less than the annual increase in the Consumer Price Index (CPI). In order to meet this 
objective, the endowment asset portfolio is structured to achieve a compounded annual return, net of investment 
management expenses, of 6% plus the annual rate of inflation (Target Return) over ten years. In achieving the Target 
Return, the Organization seeks to maintain a level of portfolio risk, as measured by the annualized monthly standard 
deviation, commensurate with the portfolio's market-related index. The market-related index is made up of selected 
market indices that are representative of the asset classes in which the portfolio is invested and which is weighted in 
the same percentages as the asset classes in which the portfolio is invested. 

Investment Strategy 
The investment strategy of the Organization is to develop a diversified portfolio of investments. For equity investments, 
the selection of such holdings is based on the merits of long-term ownership without the intent of short-term trading. To 
achieve the Target Return, the Organization relies on a total return strategy in which investment returns are achieved 
through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield (interest and dividends). 

Spending Policy 
The Organization has a policy of appropriating for distribution each year an amount, which varies from year to year, up 
to 5% of the average balance of the assets associated with the endowments. In establishing this policy, the 
Organization considered the long-term expected return on its endowment. Accordingly, over the long-term, the 
Organization expects the current spending policy to allow its endowment to grow at the average annual rate of inflation 
over ten years. This is consistent with the Organization's objective to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment 
assets held in perpetuity as well as to provide additional real growth through new gifts and investment return. The 
spending rate policy is reviewed annually by the Finance Committee. 

Note 8 - Operating Leases 

The Organization leases office space that expires in April 2021. Total rent expense for the year ended December 31, 
2019 was $113,341 and monthly rent expense was $8,154 from January 1, 2019 through April 31, 2019 and $8,399 
from May 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019. 

Minimum future lease payments are due as follows: 

Year Ending 
December 31, 

2020 
2021 

Thereafter 

$ 102,801 
34,604 

$ ===1=37='=40=5= 

Note 9 - Retirement Plan 

The Organization's 401 (k) retirement plan covers all employees who have completed at least 1,000 hours in any given 
year. Under the plan, employees can contribute and defer taxes on compensation contributed. Employer contributions 
will be allocated based on the qualifying participant's compensation in relation to the total compensation of all qualifying 
participants. Retirement plan expense was $11,013. 

13 



NATURE COLLECTIVE 
Notes to Financial Statements 
Year Ended December 31, 2019 

Note 10 - Distributions from Endowment Funds 

The Organization has Board of Directors and donor designated endowment funds with the Rancho Santa Fe 
Foundation and the San Diego Foundation established for its benefit that has irrevocable designations of the income. 

The Organization is entitled to receive a 5% annual distribution from these endowment funds. The Organization does 
not have variance power over the funds. 

Note 11 -Availability and Liquidity of Assets 

The following represents the Organization's financial assets at December 31, 2019: 

Financial Assets at Year End: 
Cash 
Grants receivable, net of allowance 
Short-term investments 

Total Financial Assets 

Less amounts not available to be used within one year for general purposes: 
Purpose restricted funds 

Financial Assets available to meet general expenditures 
over the next twelve months 

$ 

$ 

668,459 
2,687,356 
1,257,207 

4,613,022 

(210,835) 

4,402,187 

The Organization manages its liquidity and reserves following two guiding principles: 1) Operating within a prudent 
range of financial soundness and stability, and 2) maintaining adequate liquid assets to fund near-term operating 
needs. The Organization's Board is committed to a strong financial position which includes reviewing the endowment 
policy and ensuring the endowments are designed to support future grant and program expenses. 

14 



Form 990 
(Rev. January 2020) 
Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service 

EXTENDED TO NOVEMBER 16, 2020 
Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax 

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations) 

► Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public. 

► Go to www.irs.aov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. 
Cl. For the 2019 calendar year, or tax year beginning and ending 

0MB No. 1545-0047 

2019 
Open to Public 

Inspection 

B Check if C Name of organization D Employer identification number 
applicable: 

Address NATURE COLLECTIVE change 
Name 

Doino business as 33-0358660 change 
Initial 

Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address) I: Room/suite E Telephone number return 

Final 777 so HIGHWAY 101 112 (760) 436-3944 return/ 
termin-

City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code ated G Gross receipts $ 7,669,482. 
Amended SOLANA BEACH, CA 92075 H(a) Is this a group return return 
Applica- F Name and address of principal officer: DAVID KRAMER for subordinates? Yes [X] No tion ...... 
pending SAME AS C ABOVE H(b) we all subordinates included? Yes No 

I Tax-exempt status: [X] 501(c)(3) 501(c) ( )◄ (insert no.) 4947(a)(1) or 527 If "No," attach a list. (see instructions) 

J Website: ► WWW. THENATURECOLLECTIVE. ORG H(c) Grouo exemotion number ► 

K Form of oraanization: I X I Corporation Trust Association Other ► I L Year of formation: 19 8 Bl M State of leoal domicile: CA 
I Part I I Summary ' 

1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities: NATURE COLLECTIVE'S MISSION IS 
Q) 

TO DRIVE A PASSION FOR NATURE, FOR ALL. (.) '< C: 
(II 

► 
,:· '" ,, 

C: 2 Check this box if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed o(mon:J'than 25% of its net assets. 
l!i 15 > 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1 a) 3 
0 .................. -~"'"~,, ....... ~ ............................ 
Cl 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1 b) "' 4 15 
a!! ·········"'······--························· 
Cl) 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2019 (Part V, line 2a) 5 34 
Q) 

500 .:: 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) 6 ·s: 
·.;::; 7 a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12 7a 0 . (.) 

< b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, line 39 ::;:; ... 0 . .. ... .. .. .. ..... 7b 
.··,.:) 

Prior Year Current Year 

Q) 
8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1 h) 6,555,372. 6,646,162. 

:I 9 Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g) 0 . 0 . C: ........................ ·-- ......... -~- ......................... 
Q) 

Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d) ... '::.',,::.: ............................ 105,490. 168,681. ai 10 
a: 11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, Sc., 9c, 1 0c, and 11 e) 364. -75,394. ························ :. 6,661,226. 6,739,449. 12 Total revenue - add lines 8 throuqh 11 (must eaual Part VIII column (Al, line 12) ......... 

13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX,,column.(A), '1fnes 1-3) ................................. 0 . 0. 
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, ~~lumn (A); line 4) ······································· 0 . 0 . 

Cl) 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee oenefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10) ......... 1,108,034. 1,133,070. 
Q) 

16a Professional fund raising fees (Partl.X, colum11 (A), line 11 e) .......................................... 0 . 0 . Cl) 
C 
(!) 

b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, colu\Tin(D), line 25) ► 209,337. C. 
>C 

5,435,507. w 17 Other expenses (Part IX, co_lumo (A), lines 11 a-11 d, 11 f-24e) 5,310,768. ....................................... 
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13:17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,543,541. 6,443,838. 
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12 ················································ 117,685. 295,611. 

ij 
Beainnina of Current Year End of Year 

20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) ···················································································· 13,127,884. 14,423,565. 

:;~ 21 Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) ················································································· 1,666,623. 2,073,012. 
<l>_ 

22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20 11,461,261. 12,350,553. z., ·········································· 
I Part II I Signature Block 
Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is 

true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer ( other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge. 

Sign ► Signature of officer Date 

Here 

► 
DAVID KRAMER, TREASURER 
Type or print name and title 

Print/Type preparer's name ~reparer's signature I Date I Check ~ PTIN 

Paid ERIN S. MAFFIA, CPA, PFS RIN S. MAFFIA, CPA , 11 / 0 3 / 2 0 ~elf-employed O O 614 9 2 8 
're parer Firm's name ~MAFFIA CONSULTING Firm's EIN ~ 8 2-2 513 9 3 8 

Use Only Firm's address ► 3481 CORTE SONRISA 
CARLSBAD, CA 92009 Phone no. 8 5 8 - 9 4 5 - 6 9 6 4 

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions) [X] Yes No 

932001 01-20-20 LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 2019 NATURE COLLECTIVE 3 3 - 0 3 5 8 6 6 0 Pa e 2 
Part Ill Statement of Program Service Accomplishments 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part Ill 

::;;;s~rib;;~~~a;i;;;~ ~~si;~SSION IS TO DRIVE A PASSION FOR NATURE, FOR ALL• r· =~;.;;;.;;__.;;_;;_=___;;-.....;____;~-=----___;;-----------------------''---------.. -.. / 
WE BELIEVE IN A WORLD WHERE EVERYONE EXPERIENCES, CONNECTS WITH, AND 
PROTECTS NATURE. 

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the 

prior Form 990 or 990-EZ? ............ .............................................. .......... ................................................ ............... .......... D Yes [X] No 
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule 0. 

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services? .................. D Yes [X] No 

If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule 0. 

4 Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses. 

Section 501 (c)(3) and 501 (c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and 

revenue, if any, for each program service reported. 
4a (Code: ___ ) (Expenses$ 4 , 414 , 2 8 4 • including grants of$ ________ ) (Revenue$ _______ _ 

HABITAT CONSERVATION: 
NATURE COLLECTIVE MANAGES INVASIVE PLANTS AND NATIVE RE-VEGETATION 
ACTIVITIES THROUGHOUT THE 1,000-ACRE RESERVE. OUR,.STEWARDSHIP WITH 
LANDOWNERS ASSISTS THOSE LIVING ADJACENT TO THEJi,,RESERVE WITH INVASIVE 
SPECIES MANAGEMENT. EACH SPRING, THE TIDAL INBET)[S BREACHED WITH 
MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT TO IMPROVE TIDAL FLOW AND~WATER QUALITY IN THE 
ESTUARY. THIS WORK IS CONDUCTED AT THE LAG00N,~:s•z~NLY INLET TO THE OCEAN 
LOCATED AT CARDIFF STATE BEACH. THE COMMUWITY HABITAT RESTORATION 
PROGRAM ENGAGES MORE THAN 500 UNIQUE V:0BUNW:EEas ANNUALLY TO HELP 
RESTORE TRAILS, COLLECT NATIVE SEEDS :e'OR THE.SAN ELIJO NURSERY, REMOVE 
INVASIVE PLANTS AND REPLANT HABITATS WjTH.NATIVE SPECIES. INTERNS 
RECEIVE LEADERSHIP AND CONSERVATION. TR.AIN:l:NG, MENTORED BY STAFF 

4b ~~;-S-ER_V_A-~iO;ses~DUCATI;;; , 7 5 4 • :cluq!pg grants ol,$ ________ ) (Revenue$--------(~) 

THE MISSION OF THE EDUCATION PRQGR:AM'IS TO CONNECT, EDUCATE, AND ENGAGE 
THE COMMUNITY TO ACT TO ENS.URE THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING OF THEIR 
WATERSHED. K-12 STUDENTS .AND!":.THE? GENERAL PUBLIC CAN EXPLORE THE WETLAND 
THROUGH NATURALIST-LED )l'OURS ,·,~:,EVENTS AND FAMILY PROGRAMS. 
CURRICULUM-BASED CONSERVATION EDUCATION PROGRAMS, CALLED OUR LIVING 
WATERSHED, MEET CALIFORNIA.,'.A:CADEMIC CONTENT STANDARDS AND NEXT 
GENERATION SCIENCE'STANDARDS. A PRIMARY COMPONENT IN OUR LIVING 
WATERSHED ARE FAMI'Tu\¥ ✓~EIELD TRIPS CALLED GET OUT IN NATURE (GOIN' ) . 
GOIN' CONNECTS 3·RD0iTO 5TH GRADERS IN TITLE ONE SCHOOLS IN ESCONDIDO 
WITH THEIR LAGOON~l;AND WATERSHED. WE INSPIRE UPSTREAM ESCONDIDO 
WATERSHED COMMUNITIES TO ENJOY PARKS AND OPEN SPACES, AND TAKE ACTIONS 

4c (Code: ___ ) (Expenses$ 1 , 14 4 , 3 0 9 • including grants of$ ________ ) (Revenue$ _______ _ 
LAND TRUST: 
A KEY PRIORITY IS TO PROTECT LANDS IN THE ESCONDIDO WATERSHED, AND IN 
LANDS BEYOND, BY MANAGING HABITATS AND THE IMPORTANT SERVICES THAT 
NATURE PROVIDES. THE GREATEST THREAT TO THE DIVERSITY OF LIFE IS LOSS 
OF HABITAT. AS A LAND TRUST WE ACQUIRE AND PROTECT LANDS IN THE 
WATERSHED, INCLUDING THE LATEST ADDITION OF 77 ACRES THAT IS CONSERVING 
RARE COASTAL SAGE SCRUB AND SOUTHERN COASTAL BLUFF SCRUB HABITATS. IN 
THESE ACRES, SPECIAL STATUS PLANTS SURVEYED INCLUDE: DEL MAR MANZANITA 
(FEDERALLY ENDANGERED), SEA DAHLIA AND NUTTALL'S SCRUB OAK. AT LEAST 
TWO SPECIAL STATUS SPECIES OF CONCERN CALL THIS PLACE HOMETHE SAN DIEGO 
POCKET MOUSE AND THE CALIFORNIA GNATCATCHER. NATURE COLLECTIVE OWNS 143 
ACRES THROUGH FEE-TITLE OWNERSHIP, AND HOLDS MORE THAN 70 ACRES OF ,r< -------------------~---------------------,, 

4d Other program services (Describe on Schedule 0.) \"'~·· 
(Expenses$ including grants of$ ) (Revenue$ 

4e Total program service expenses ► 

932002 01-20-20 

5,783,347. 

SEE SCHEDULE O FOR CONTINUATION(S) 
2 

13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE 

Form 990 (2019) 

NATURECl 



Form 99012019) NATURE COLLECTIVE 33-0358660 Paae 3 
I Part IV I Checklist of Required Schedules 

1 Is the organization described in section 501 (c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? 

If "Yes," complete Schedule A ............................................................................................................................................ . 

2 Is the organization required to complete Schedule a, Schedule of Contributors? ................................................................. . 
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates for 

public office? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part I ........................................................................................................... . 
4 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501 (h) election in effect 

during the tax year? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part II .................................................................................................. . 
5 Is the organization a section 501 (c)(4), 501 (c)(5), or 501 (c)(6) organization that receives membership dues, assessments, or 

similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-19? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part Ill ......................................... . 

6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right to 

provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If "Yes," complete Schedule 0, Part I 

7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space, 

the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If "Yes," complete Schedule 0, Part II ......................................... . 

8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If "Yes," complete 

Schedule 0, Part Ill ........................................................................................................................................................... . 
9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a custodian for 

amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or del:>t negotiation services? 

If "Yes," complete Schedule 0, Part IV ............................................................................... ,.,f,:'., .......... '::., ........................... . 
10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor•restrictec:l endowments 

or in quasi endowments? If "Yes," complete Schedule 0, Part V ...............................•....... c,,:.·, ............................................ . 
11 If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then compl~tJSchedyle D, Parts VI, VII, VIII, IX, or X 

as applicable. 

a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment i~part X, lihl:j,1Q? it "Yes," complete Schedule o, 

Yes No 

1 X 
2 X 

3 X 

4 X 

5 X 

6 X 

7 X 

8 X 

9 X 

10 X 

Part VI ...................................................................................................•.......................................................................... 11a X 
b Did the organization report an amount for investments· other securities in Part X, line 12, that is 5% or more of its total 

assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule 0,Part VII ..... ....................... ......................... .............. ........ 11b X 
c Did the organization report an amount for investments· program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more of its total 

assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIII ............. ................................. .... .......... ..... ... ....... 11c X 
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part.><, li~e1s: that is 5% or more of its total assets reported in 

Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule 0, Part IX, ......................................................................................................... 11d X 
e Did the organization report an amount for other li~l:>.ilitiesin Pa.rtX, line 25? If "Yes," complete Schedule o, Part X .................. 11e X 
f Did the organization's separate or consolidated fin~ncial,.statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses 

the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes," complete Schedule o, Part X 
'' ·. ~ ' 

12a Did the organization obtain separate, independenta!,Jdited financial statements for the tax year? If "Yes," complete 

Schedule 0, Parts XI and XII 
b Was the organization included in consolidated; independent audited financial statements for the tax year? 

If "Yes," and if the organization'af'Jswered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule 0, Parts XI and XII is optional .............. . 

13 Is the organization a school describ'ed in section 170(b)(1 )(A)(ii)? If "Yes," complete Schedule E ......................................... . 

14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? ............................................... . 

b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fund raising, business, 

investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued at $100,000 

or more? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts I and IV ........................................................................................................ . 
15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for any 

foreign organization? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts II and IV ................................................................................... . 
16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistance to 

or for foreign individuals? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts Ill and IV ............................................................................. . 
17 Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part IX, 

column (A), lines 6 and 11 e? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part I ...................................................................................... . 
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fund raising event gross income and contributions on Part VIII, lines 

1 c and Ba? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part II ............................................................................................................. .. 
19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? If "Yes," 

complete Schedule G, Part Ill ............................................................................................................................................ . 

20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If "Yes," complete Schedule H .................................................. . 

b If "Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? 

21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or 

domestic qovernment on Part IX, column (A), line 1? /f "Yes " comolPt"' ~ "'~ r Parts I and II ......................................... . 

932003 01·20·20 

3 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE 

11f X 

12a X 

12b X 
13 X 

14a X 

14b X 

15 X 

16 X 

17 X 

18 X 

19 X 
20a X 
20b 

21 X 
Form 990 (2019) 

NATURECl 



Form 990 2019 NATURE COLLECTIVE 33-0358660 Pa e4 
Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules continued 

22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on 

Part IX, column (A), line 2? /f "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts I and Ill ............................................................................. . 

23 Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the organization's current 

and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? If "Yes," complete 

Schedule J ....................................................................................................................................................................... . 

24a Did the organization have a tax·exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of the 

last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 2002? If "Yes," answer lines 24b through 24d and complete 

Schedule K. If "No," go to line 25a ...................................................................................................................................... . 

b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? 

c Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defease 

Yes No 

22 X 

23 X 

24a X 
24b 

any tax·exempt bonds? ..... ......................................... ...................... ... ..... ....................................... ......... ...................... .... r2=-4-'--'c=-+---+--
d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? ........................ .. .. ..... r2=4~d=-+---+--

25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit 

transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part J ••••••..••. ........•.........•••••••• .••••.• •••• r2=5~a=-+_--+_X_ 
b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in ? prior year, and 

that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990·EZ? 1rlJYes," complete 

Schedule L, Part I ................................................................................................................. ,::;j,,· .•.. ·A........ ......... .............. .....2S_b-+---1--X_ 
26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables'tg an·/~Urrent 

or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributorz%~r 35% 

controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? If "Yes," complete Schedu 

27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former offi .itrustee, key employee, 

creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection c~r:nmi *: mber, or to a 35% controlled 

entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these perspf\s? Ji'?,'(~lrcimplete Schedule L, Part Ill ........ . 

28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the follqJving partjfs (see Schedule L, Part IV 

instructions, for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions): 

a A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creat£f•Qr,Jounde~:'I6l'tGbstantial contributor? If 

"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV ....................................... !!. ...........• ,. ............................................................................ . 
b A family member of any individual described in line 28a? lf{":'(.e;;1t?om~ljte Schedule L, Part JV ............................................ . 
c A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or orJfuJiz1tionstl~scribed in lines 28a or 28b? If 

"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV ....................... ,;,, •............ ·.~\~: ...................................................................................... . 

29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000j!JTJ)~n'1~<lh c~ntributions? If "Yes," complete Schedule M .......................... . 

30 Did the organization receive contributions of artrhi~Jq~i_<::al'tt:i~~ures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation 

31 

32 

33 

contributions? If 11 Yes, II complete Schedulev ······•,~!!. .................................................................................................... . 
Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or diSJ,olJearl8 cease operations? If "Yes," complete Schedule N, Part I ................. . 

<'.'\,, ';\'i>, ,"v 

Did the organization sell, exchang.~:."?~SRC,~: of, gr transfer more than 25% of its net assets? ff "Yes," complete 

Schedule N, Part II ............... . ✓:t'.'..;:t, ... ·'. . .<: .. :,/ .................................................................................................................. . 
Did the organization own 100"/4tRJag;~ntity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations 

sections 301.7701-2 and 301.776'1{~? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part I ....................................................................... . 

34 Was the organization related to an/tax-exempt or taxable entity? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part II, 1/1, or IV, and 

26 X 

X 

28a X 
28b X 

28c X 
29 X 

30 X 
31 X 

32 X 

33 X 

Part V, line 1 . . .. . .. . .. . ... . . . . ... . . . . . .. . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . .. . .. . . . . . . . .. . .. . ...... .. . ... . . . . . . .. . .. . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. .....34_,___-+--_X_ 

35 a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? . . . . .. . . .. . . . . . . . .. . .. . . . . . . . . . ... . . . . .. . .. . . . . . . . . . . . r35=a=-+_--+_X_ 
b If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled entity 

within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 ......................................................... r35=b=-+---+--
36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related organization? 

If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . ............. ....................... ................................................ ............ .................. ..... 1-36=-1---+--X_ 
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization 

and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? ff "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part VI ........... ........ ..... 1--=3:.:.7--+--1--X_ 

38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11 b and 19? 

Note: All Form 990 filers are re uired to com lete Schedule O ............................................................................................ . 
Part Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V 

1 a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable ................................ . 

b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1 a. Enter -0- if not applicable ............................. . 

1a 

1b 

c Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming 

932004 01-20-20 

4 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE 

29 
0 

38 X 

D 
Yes No 

1c X 
Form 990 (2019) 

NATURECl 



Form 990 <2019\ NATURE COLLECTIVE 33-0358660 Paae5 
I Part VI Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance rcontinued! 

Yes No 

2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax Statements, 

filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return ............................. . 34 
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? ................. ......... .... 2b X 

Note: If the sum of lines 1 a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions) ................................ . 

3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? ........................................ .. 3a X 
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If "No" to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O .............................. f-"3"'b'--+---+--

4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a 

financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? ............ ......... 4a X 
b If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country ► ___________________________ _ 

See instructions for filing requirements for FinCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR). 

Sa Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? ....... ................ ..... ........ f-"5=a'--+_--+_X_ 

b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. ... . . .. . . .. 1--S_b--+-_--+_X_ 

c If "Yes" to line Sa or Sb, did the organization file Form 8886-T? ............................................................................................ . 

6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the organization solicit 

7 

any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? 

b If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributio11s or gifts 

were not tax deductible? 

Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c). , 

a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for gClods a~i:f services provided to the payor? 

b If "Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? ' ............................................ . 

c Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal propertytci(whihh)t was required 

to file Form 8282? .......................................................................................................................................................... .. 

d If "Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year . I 7d I ........... ,t:::.:.·: ..... '.·.',;,.,,s;:............ '--'-"'--'--------+ 
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiUf11S on a PJ3rsonal benefit contract? 

f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, cm cl pers9nal benefit contract? .......................... . 

g If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did th°e'tJrganization file Form 8899 as required? .. . 

h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098·C? 

8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds . . Did a donor advised fund maintained by the 

9 

sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any tirne durfng the year? 

Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.' 

a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable,disttibutions under section 4966? 

b Did the sponsoring organization make a distriputio~;fQ a donor, donor advisor, or related person? ...................................... . 

10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter: 

a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on part VIII, line 12 .. .. . .. . . . . . . . . .. .. . . .. .. ... . . .. .. . . . . . .. . .. . lt--1o~a'--+l ______ ---l 

b Gross receipts, included on Form 990; r:>art VIII, line 12, for public use of club facilities 10b 

11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter: 

a Gross income from members or sh;:u-eholders 11a 

b Gross income from other sources(Qo not net amounts due or paid to other sources against 

amounts due or received from them.) .......................................................................................... ~1_1b~--------< 
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041? 

b If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year .......... ...... .. I 12b I ~-~-------< 
13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers. 

a Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? 

Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule 0. 

b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which the 

organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans ................................................................. . 

c Enter the amount of reserves on hand 

I 13b I 
13c 

6a X 

6b 

7a X 
7b X 

7c X 

7e X 
7f X 

7h 

8 

9a 

9b 

12a 

13a 

14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? ................................................ 1--14_a--+-_--+_X_ 

b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No," provide an explanation on Schedule O ........................... t--14~b.c..+---+--
15 Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or 

excess parachute payment(s) during the year? .................................................................................................................... . 15 X 
If "Yes," see instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N. 

16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? 16 X 
If "Yes " complete Form 4720 Schedule 0. 

Form 990 (2019) 

932005 01-20-20 

5 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



Form 990 2019 NATURE COLLECTIVE 33-0358660 Pae 6 
Part VI Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through lb below, and for a "No" response 

to line Ba, Bb, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule 0. See instructions. 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI ................................................................................ . 
Section A. Governing Body and Management 

Yes No 

1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year . . .. . .. . .. . . . . . . . . 1--1~a-+ ______ 1_5., 
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or if the governing 

body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar committee, explain on Schedule 0. 

b Enter the number of voting members included on line 1 a, above, who are independent .................. ~1_b~ ______ 1_5, .............. 
1 
...... . 

2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other 

officer, director, trustee, or key employee? 

3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision 

of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? ............................................ . 

4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? .............. . 

5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets? 

6 Did the organization have members or stockholders? ........................................................................................................ . 
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or apppint one or 

more members of the governing body? .......................................................................................... 1 ............................... . 
b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) memb~[S,;~\9~kholders, or 

persons other than the governing body? .......................................................................... ,JI.Sfd:t •.... ·:·'..~.~~~ •........................... 
Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken df~g:~~year by the following: 

a The governing body? ..................................................................................................... :~:': .. ,;? ......................................... . 
8 

b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body? 

9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, -«tio can 

or anization's mailin 

Section B. Policies 

10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? /.,:JC:: .................................................................................. . 
b If "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedur~~ governing the activities of such chapters, affiliates, 

and branches to ensure their operations are consistent witl:t;the'l~rganizati~n's exempt purposes? ...................................... . 

11a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 999 tb'aWmembers of its governing body before filing the form? 

b Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by ti)e organi~fitipn to review this Form 990. 

12a Did the organization have a written conflict of in\~!:Et1>ttbl[py? Lf;"No," go to line 13 .............................................................. . 

b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employe~'s requ[redfci,dlsclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts? ................. . 

c Did the organization regularly and consisteoti;>ingriitor.~hd enforce compliance with the policy? If "Yes," describe 

in Schedule O how this was done ............... \,-... ~;'..<,-;::: ....................................................................................................... . 
13 Did the organization have a written wAi~leblo~~r,policy? .................................................................................................. . 

14 Did the organization have a wri1ten'd~9~i!ner;itref~ntion and destruction policy? ................................................................. . 
15 Did the process for determinin[,9or11pensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent 

persons, comparability data, and·i::~ntemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision? 

a The organization's CEO, Executive D~ector, or top management official ............................................................................. . 

b Other officers or key employees of the organization ........................................................................................................... . 
If "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions). 

16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a 

taxable entity during the year? ......................................................................................................................................... . 
b If "Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its participation 

in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the organization's 

exem t status with res ect to such arran ements? ........................................................................................................... . 
Section C. Disclosure 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7a 

8a X 
8b X 

9 

Yes 

10a 

10b 

X 

12a X 
12b X 

12c X 
13 X 

X 

16a 

16b 

X 

X 
X 
X 
X 

X 

X 

X 

No 
X 

X 

17 List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed ►CA -------------------------
18 Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1 024 or 1024·A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (Section 501 (c)(3)s only) available 

for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply. 

[X] Own website D Another's website [X] Upon request D Other (explain on Schedule OJ 

19 Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial 

statements available to the public during the tax year. 

20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records ► ________ _ 
THE ORGANIZATION - (760) 436-3944 
777 SO HIGHWAY 101, NO. 112, SOLANA BEACH, CA 92075 

932006 01-20-20 

6 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE 

Form 990 (2019) 

NATURECl 



Form990 2019 NATURE COLLECTIVE 33-0358660 Pae 7 
Part VI Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated 

Employees, and Independent Contractors 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII 

3ection A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees 
D 

1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year. 

• List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of compensation. 
Enter -0· in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid. 

• List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employee." 

• List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee) who received report
able compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the organization and any related organizations. 

• List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000 of 
reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations. 

• List all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the organization, 
more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations. 

See instructions for the order in which to list the persons above. 

D Ch k h. b .f . h h d ec t IS ox I neIt er t e orqarnzatIon nor any re ate orqarnzatIon compensate d ff. any current o Icer, d' ,rector, or trustee. 

(A) (8) (CJ (D) (E) 

Name and title Average Position Reportable Reportable 
(do not check more than one 

hours per box, unless person is both an compensation compensation 
week officer and a director/trustee) from from related 

(list any the organizations 
hours for 

~ 
organization 

·•. 
(W-2/1099-M ISC) '5 = 

related 1 (W-2/j 099;MISC) 
organizations -"' E - I 

~ 
0 

~~ below ~ ci 

·s; !a ~-@_ ~ ,, 

line) 'g a = -~E & :i ,: !;;! I~ 

( 1} NICOLLE SELBY-THOMAS 1.00 \. i 

PRESIDENT X 
// . 

0 . 0. " 
( 2} MATTHEW ADAMS 1.00 ... / ' VICE PRESIDENT X 0 . 0. 
( 3} DAVID KRAMER 1.00 .... . 
.:'REASURER X ·•··· 0 . 0. 
( 4) DOUG GILLINGHAM 1.00 :: 

IMMEDIATE PAST PRESIDENT . X ·,\ 0 . 0. 
( 5) SUSAN HEDRICK 1 ... 00 .h 

SECRETARY /'• 
... .. ,x 0 . 0. 

( 6) ANITA HAYWORTH \1. 00 
BOARD MEMBER '/ X 0 . 0. J •••• 

( 7} JASON SCHINGLER 1.00 
BOARD MEMBER • . X 0 . 0. 
( 8} MICHAEL LEA . . 1.00 
BOARD MEMBER X 0 . 0. 
( 9} JOHN HELMER \ 1.00 
BOARD MEMBER X 0 . 0. 
( 10} PAUL WORTHINGTON 1.00 
BOARD MEMBER X 0 . 0. 
(11) NATHALIE HALL 1.00 
BOARD MEMBER X 0 . 0. 
(12) MEGAN o'TOOLE LYONS 1.00 
BOARD MEMBER X 0 . 0. 
(13) KEVIN JOHNSON 1.00 
BOARD MEMBER X 0 . 0. 
(14) INGRID FLORES 1.00 
BOARD MEMBER X 0 . 0. 
( 15} BRENDA HALL 1.00 
BOARD MEMBER X 0 . 0. 

16) JOHN OSBORNE 1.00 
BOARD MEMBER X 0 . 0. 
( 17} DOUG GIBSON 40.00 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR X 171,380. 0. 
932007 01-20-20 

7 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE 

(F) 

Estimated 
amount of 

other 
compensation 

from the 
organization 
and related 

organizations 

0 . 

0 . 

0 . 

0 . 

0 . 

0 . 

0 . 

0 . 

0 . 

0 . 

0 . 

0 . 

0 . 

0 . 

0 . 

0 . 

3,140. 
Form 990 (2019) 

NATURECl 



Form99012019l NATURE COLLECTIVE 33-0358660 Page8 

I Part VII I Section A. Officers Directors Trustees Kev Employees and HiQhest Compensated Emplovees /contin"nr11 

(A) (BJ (CJ (DJ (E) (F) 

Name and title Average Position 
(do not check more than one 

hours per box, unless person is both an 

week officer and a director/trustee) 

(list any 
hours for e 

S3 = 
related I organizations - I 

~ E 
below ~ 

0 ~l 
line) 

·,; I ~~ ~ 'g = ~ ~ffi i5 .'2 

Reportable 
compensation 

from 
the 

organization 
0fv-2/1099-MISC) 

Reportable 
compensation 
from related 

organizations 
0/v-2/1099-MISC) 

Estimated 
amount of 

other 
compensation 

from the 
organization 
and related 

organizations 

(~--+-------t--

1 b Subtotal },~,·~ 
c Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A At,.:··:· 
d Total (add lines 1b and 1c) ... .. ... ... ..... .. "¾-"-... .. .. 

► 
► 
► 

171,380. 
0 • 

171,380. 
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited.is>, those lisf~9 above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable 

com ensation from the or anization 

3 Did the organization list any former officer;:-9i~_t&,'tr~~ee, key employee, or highest compensated employee on 

0 • 
0 • 
0. 

line 1 a? If "Yi " I • S h d I J' ·+.;;-h,'-·· ·dt;i: •. d·<·I . es, comp e,e c e u e ,or sue .Jn 1vt ua .................................................................................................. . 

4 For any individual listed on line 1 a, is·• m of;teportable compensation and other compensation from the organization 

and related organizations greay~p;tlY~rj $ ,pQO? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual ...................................... . 

5 Did any person listed on line 1'8:ir.ecei/e or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for services 
rendered to the or anization? '<~~\s/)v' 

Section B. Independent Contractors 

3,140 

3,140. 

1 
Yes No 

5 X 

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of compensation from 
h R f d d. . h . h. h t e oroanization. eoort compensation or the calen ar year en 1nq wit or wit 1n t e orqarnzat1on s tax year. 

(A) (BJ (CJ 
Name and business address Description of services Compensation 

MOFFATT & NICHOL, 4225 E CONANT STREET !ENVIRONMENTAL 
#101, LONG BEACH, CA 90808 !ENGINEERING 3,123,926. 
LB WEBB INC. 
PO BOX 461330, ESCONDIDO, CA 92046 ~RADING SERVICES 221,082. 
ACS ENVIRONMENTAL INC, 4011 AVENIDA DE LA 
PLATA #301, OCEANSIDE, CA 92056 !HABITAT RESTORATION 213,193. 
T.B. PENNICK & SONS, INC, 15435 INNOVATION ~ONCRETE 
DRIVE #200, SAN DIEGO, CA 92128 !SUBCONTRACTOR 133,125. 

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than 

$100 000 of comoensation from the oroanization ► 4 
Form 990 (201 9) 

932008 01-20-20 

8 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



Form 990 2019 NATURE COLLECTIVE 33-0358660 Page 9 
Part Ill Statement of Revenue 

C k .f S h d I 0 hec I C e ue contains a response or note to any me In this art . P VIII ··········································································· D 
(A) (B) (C) 

Total revenue Related or exempt Unrelated 
function revenue business revenue 

~{ 1 a Federated campaigns ............... 1a 

~~ b Membership dues ····················· 1b 
C Fundraising events 1c 306,674. en ci ..................... 

~ ~ d Related organizations ............... 1d 

~J e Government grants (contributions) 1e 4,842,518. 
r::· 

f All other contributions, gifts, grants, and 0 

i~ similar amounts not included above ... 1f 1,496,970. 
g Noncash contributions included in lines 1a-1f 1ci $ 35,670. 

,~] h Total. Add lines 1a-1f ··················································· ► 6,646,162. 
Business Code 

Cl) 2 a 
0 

-~ g b 

ii 
·.•· 

C 

d . ·: 

5>C: e .. \ 

0 ... > .· 
C. f All other program service revenue ............... 

Cl Total. Add lines 2a-2f ................................................... ► 
3 Investment income (including dividends, interest, and .•<"'. :•; 

other similar amounts) ................................................... ► 110,1.28. 
4 Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds ► /: ... <,_: ... . ... > 

.. 
5 Royalties ..................................................................... ► .·• ·: 

(i) Real (ii) Personal 

6 a Gross rents 6a •.c:• ............... 
b Less: rental expenses ... 6b ;: 

C Rental income or (loss) 6c •: 

Net rental income or (loss) 
•/· 

► :;2:'' d ·········································· 
7 a Gross amount from sales of (i) Securities . (ii) Other: 

assets other than inventory 7a 897,756. ··,·, 

Less: cost or other basis 
• .. ,, . b 

Cl) and sales expenses 7b 839<, 203. ::I ......... 
r:: 

Gain or (loss) 58,553 • . : Cl) C ............... 7c > 
Cl) d Net gain or (loss) .................... :•.· ............ -~; .. _ ................... ► 58,553. cc: ... 

8 a Gross income from fundraising event;'{not < Cl) 
.r:: 
0 including$ 306,674. of 

contributions reported on linE! 1 c). See 

Part IV, line 18 ···································· 8a 15,436. 
b Less: direct expenses ........................... 8b 90,830. 
C Net income or (loss) from fundraising events ............... ► -75,394. 

9 a Gross income from gaming activities. See 

Part IV, line 19 .................................... 9a 
b Less: direct expenses ........................ 9b 
C Net income or (loss) from gaming activities .................. ► 

10 a Gross sales of inventory, less returns 

and allowances 10a .................................... 

b Less: cost of goods sold ..................... 10b 
C Net income or (loss) from sales of inventorv .................. ► 

Business Code 
(/) 
::I 11 a 0 g 

ii b 
Q) ( C 
file d All other revenue 
~ ....................................... 

e Total. Add lines 11a-11d ............................................. ► 
12 Total revenue. See instructions ······································· ► 6,739,449. 0. 0. 

932009 01-20-20 

9 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE 

(D) 
Revenue excluded 

from tax under 
sections 512 - 514 

110,128. 

58,553. 

-75,394. 

93,287. 
Form 990 (2019) 

NATURECl 



Form 990 2019 NATURE COLLECTIVE 3 3 - 0 3 5 8 6 6 0 Pa e 10 

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns All other organizations must complete column (A) 

IXI Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to anv line in this Part IX .............................................................................. 

Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, 
7b, Bb, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. 

1 Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations 

and domestic governments. See Part IV, line 21 ... 

2 Grants and other assistance to domestic 

individuals. See Part IV, line 22 ..................... 
3 Grants and other assistance to foreign 

organizations, foreign governments, and foreign 

individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16 ......... 
4 Benefits paid to or for members ..................... 

5 Compensation of current officers, directors, 

trustees, and key employees ........................ 

6 Compensation not included above to disqualified 

persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and 

persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(8) ......... 
7 Other salaries and wages .............................. 
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include 

section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions) 

9 Other employee benefits .............................. 
10 Payroll taxes ................................................ 

11 Fees for services (nonemployees): 

a Management ................................................ 
b Legal ............................................................ 
C Accounting ................................................... 
d Lobbying ...................................................... 
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17 

f Investment management fees ........................ 

g Other. (If line 11 g amount exceeds 10% of line 25, 

column (A) amount, list line 11 g expenses on Sch 0.) 

12 Advertising and promotion ........................... 
13 Office expenses ""{ 14 Information technology 

15 Royalties ::i~,: 16 Occupancy 

17 Travel 

18 Payments of travel or penses 

for any federal, state, or local pu 
"<0., 

fficials ... 
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings ...... 
20 Interest ...................................................... 

21 Payments to affiliates .................................... 

22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization ...... 
23 Insurance ··················································· 
24 Other expenses. Itemize expenses not covered 

above (List miscellaneous expenses on line 24e. If 
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column (A) 
amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule 0.) 

a SUPPLIES 
b COMMUNITY EVENTS 
C BAD DEBT 
d MISCELLANEOUS 
e All other expenses 

25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 throuqh 24e 

26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the organization 

reported in column (B) joint costs from a combined 

educational campaign and fundraising solicitation. 
Check here ► n if following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720) 

932010 01-20-20 

13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 

(A) (8) (C) 
Total expenses Program service Management and 

expenses oeneral expenses 

· ... 

. ·•·· . • 

.· 

174,520. 135,803. 37,965. 

~ 
760,363. 518,284 ... ~. 122,411. 

.,, 

9,815. 6, 1,611. 
63,936. 48, 0'8.1.6~7 6,653. 

124,436. "a:1·;1~'l 4'~,, 18,991. 

,;1:(ic;,fs ~t~\$/ ) 
6,226. f ·,t. 117. 3,082. 

13,500. ··~&>. Jzil,500. 12,000. 
/C'j'j, 

'·<,t:;;y;;• 

.t· . , .. ,,;,, ;' 
.. . ' · . 

. 42}y186. I 42,186. 

.4 , 8 ;$i\;1;;•:~ 4,754,584. 15,959. 
.,>,. <;'tt, 4 004/ 7 0 3 0 11,643. 117. 

J',,;g;., '<It~£/" 
1ii l 
"<,;i:'f:tff 

139,684. 8,442. 130,813. 
7,923. 7,451. 472. 

11,747. 11,747. 
21,262. 21,262. 

. ; ' 

87,058. 69,097. 3,778. 
62,535. 50,626. 2,171. 
36,186. 36,186. 
35,707. 17,263. 10,624. 
4,348. 29,715. 9,312. 

6,443,838. 5,783,347. 451,154. 

10 
2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE 

. 

I" 

' 

(D) 
Fundraising 
expenses 

.. 
. . 

752. 

119,668. 

1,428. 
9,197. 

17,671. 

3,027. 

() 
31,160. 
28,943. 

429. 

14,183. 
9,738. 

7,820. 
-34,679. 
209,337. 

Form 990 (2019) 

NATURECl 



Form 990 (2019) NATURE COLLECTIVE 
I Part X I Balance Sheet 

1/j .... 
Q) 
1/j 
1/j 

<t 

1/j 
Q) 

~ 
:a 
n, 
:i 

1/j 
Q) 
u 
C: 
n, 
iii 
ID 
"C 
C: 
::I 

u.. ,_ 
0 
1/j .... 
Q) 
1/j 
1/j 

<t .... 
Q) 

z 

1 
2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

Check if Schedule O contains a resoonse or note to anv line in this Part X 

Cash - non-interest-bearing .......................................................................... . 

Savings and temporary cash investments ..................................................... . 

Pledges and grants receivable, net .............................................................. . 

Accounts receivable, net ............................................................................. . 
Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer, director, 

trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35% 

controlled entity or family member of any of these persons 

Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined 

under section 4958(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) 

Notes and loans receivable, net .................................................................... . 

Inventories for sale or use ............................................................................. . 

Prepaid expenses and deferred charges ..................................................... . 

10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D 

b Less: accumulated depreciation 

10a 
10b 

5,514,652. 
196,788. 

Investments - publicly traded securities ........................................................ . 

Investments - other securities. See Part IV, line 11 

Investments - program-related. See Part IV, line 11 

Intangible assets 

Other assets. See Part IV, line 11 ................................................................. . 
Total assets. Add lines 1 throuoh 15 (must eoual line 33) • c<.. ·~ 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Grants payable 

Deferred revenue 

Tax-exempt bond liabilities 

Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part I.Y of Schedule.D ........... . 

Loans and other payables to any current or former offic~r,. director, 

trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35% 

controlled entity or family member of any ?ttl}e;~pers~?s .......................... . 

Secured mortgages and notes payable to unr~lcited third parties ................. . 

Unsecured notes and loans payable to unr~l~ted il,ird parties ....................... . 

Other liabilities (including feder~I incometax;payables to related third 

parties, and other liabilities not incl_uded oitlines 17-24). Complete Part X 

of Schedule D .............•.................•............................................................. 
Total liabilities. Add lines 17 throuoh 25 ..................................................... . 

Organizations that follow FJ\SB ASC 958, check here ► [X] 
and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33. 

Net assets without donor restrictions 

Net assets with donor restrictions ................................................................. . 

Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here ► D 
and complete lines 29 through 33. 

Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds ............................................ . 

Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund ....................... . 

Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 

Total net assets or fund balances ................................................................. . 

Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances ............................................... . 

932011 01-20-20 

11 

33-0358660 P~e11 

D 
(A) 

Beginning of year 

914,065. 1 

673,921. 2 

1,847,526. 3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 
13,758. 9 

5,329,611. 10c 
.4, 196\.8 8 5 • 11 

12 

13 
14 

/ 17,814. 15 
.. d 3 , 12 7 , 8 8 4 . 16 

1 , 5 2 9 / 5 7 2 • 17 

18 
137,051. 19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
1,666,623. 26 

9,613,752. 27 
1,847,509. 28 

29 

30 

31 
11,461,261. 32 
13,127,884. 33 

(8) 
End of year 

668,459. 
677,920. 

2,687,356. 

2,767. 

5,317,864. 
4,928,813. 

120,726. 

19,660. 
14,423,565. 

2,004,650. 

68,362. 

2,073,012. 

10,377,447. 
1,973,106. 

12,350,553. 
14,423,565. 

Form 990 (2019) 

13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



Form 990 2019 NATURE COLLECTIVE 3 3 - 0 3 5 8 6 6 0 Pa e 12 
Part XI Reconciliation of Net Assets 

Check if Schedule O contains a resoonse or note to anv line in this Part XI 

Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) 

Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 

Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1 ................................................................................... . 

[X] 

6,739,449 
2 6,443,838. 
3 295,611. 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 32, column (A)) ............................. . 4 11,461,261. 
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 5 517,033. 
Donated services and use of facilities 6 

7 Investment expenses ................................................................................................................................ . 7 

8 Prior period adjustments .......................................................................................................................... . 8 

9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain on Schedule 0) ..................................................... . 9 76,648. 
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 32, 

column (Bl) ............................................................................................................................................... . 10 12,350,553. 
I Part XIII Financial Statements and Reporting 

Check if Schedule O contains a res onse or note to an line in this Part XII D 
Yes No 

Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: D Cash [X] Accrual D Other 

If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explaip:in"s'9hedule 0. 

2a Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accouptaqt? ... :i~_ ............................ . 
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were,d'§~pi!~ or reviewed on a 

separate basis, consolidated basis, or both: 

D Separate basis D Consolidated basis D Both consolidated ar1li _asis 

b Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accounta~? 

If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements forJlie>ye;}i:~ElL 
,,,,> ,'c1/S:: 

ited on a separate basis, 

consolidated basis, or both: 

[X] Separate basis D Consolidated basis D Both consJ~ated aJ~ separate basis 

c If "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee tlla!assum~s~re§honsibility for oversight of the audit, 

review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection cifan independent accountant? ............................................ . 

If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection procJls during the tax year, explain on Schedule 0. 
"'.::f:: '"<"·,,,' ,:'·:}" 

3a As a result of a federal award, was the organization required totµndergoan audit or audits as set forth in the Single Audit 

Act and 0MB Circular A-133? ·································'"'-··············.-,., ...................................................................................... . 3a X 
b If "Yes," did the organization undergo the requirep,l:luditzpr aucjits? If the organization did not undergo the required audit 

,fi>"" -<;,~"Y ''<t;t" ',~j,>> 

or audits, ex lain wh on Schedule O and describe an .ste' staken to under o such audits ............................................... . 3b 

Form 990 (2019) 

932012 01·20-20 

12 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



SCHEDULE A 
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) 

Department of the Treasury 
'lternal Revenue Service 

Public Charity Status and Public Support 
Complete if the organization is a section 501(cl(3) organization or a section 

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust. 
► Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. 

► Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. 

0MB No. 1545-0047 

2019 
Open to Public 

Inspection 

Name of the organization Employer identification number 

NATURE COLLECTIVE 33-0358660 

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.) 

1 D A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170{b)(1)(A)(i). 

2 D A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ).) 

3 D A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). 

4 D A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170{b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital's name, 

city, and state:-----------------------------------------------
5 D An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in 

section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part II.) 

6 D A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v). 

7 [X] An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit qr from the general public described in 

section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part 11.) 

8 D A community trust described in section 170(bl(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.) 

9 D An agricultural research organization described in section 170(bl(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction"w,ith a land-grant college 

or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the narrie, city, and state of the college or 

university: , " · 

10 0 An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support fromC:-ontribJtions, membership fees, and gross receipts from 

activities related to its exempt functions - subject to certain exceptions, and (2tno more_than 33 1/3% of its support from gross investment 

income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) frorrPbusinEl_ss~s acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. 

See section 509(al(2). (Complete Part Ill.) 

11 D An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509{a)(4). 

12 D An organization organized and operated exclusively for the t>ElnElfit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of one or 

more publicly supported organizations described in sectioil° 509(a)C1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509{a)(3). Check the box in 

lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g. 

a D Type I. A supporting organization operated, supervi;ed,,o;controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving 

the supported organization(s) the power to reglJlarly appoirit or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting 

organization. You must complete Part 1\1,~ctions A c1nd B. 

b D Type II. A supporting organization sup13fvis~~Qf p6n~rcilled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having 

control or management of the supporti~g qrganiia.tion vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported 

organization(s). You must complete Part
0

IV;;Sections A and C. 
'<<:, 

c D Type Ill functionally integratJc:i, A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with, 

its supported organization(s)(seeinstructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E. 

d D Type Ill non-functionally inu{grated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s) 

that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness 

requirement (see instructions); You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V. 

e D Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type I, Type II, Type Ill 

functionally integrated, or Type Ill non-functionally integrated supporting organization. 

f Enter the number of supported organizations .............................................................................................................. . 

a Provide the followina information about the suooorted oraanization(s). 
(i) Name of supported (ii) EIN (iii) Type of organization \11

0
1s tne organizanon 11sie □ (v) Amount of monetary 

in our oovernino document? 
organization (described on lines 1-10 

Yes No support (see instructions) 
above !see instructions1\ 

Total 

(vi) Amount of other 

support (see instructions) 

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. 932021 09-25-19 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 

13 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



rgamzat1ons 
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Ill. If the organization 

fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part Ill.) ✓-· 
..,.S_e_c-ti_o_n_A,....."""p"""u"""b...,l"""ic_S..,.....u_p_p_o_rt ___________________________________ ( ' 

'"""'~~'"'',,/ 
Galen d ar year ( or fiscal ye a r beginning in) ► 1--___.a=...c2c..c0....c.1.c..5_-+-_....=c.b'--'2""'0""'1...c6_-+_-'-'c""-"'20"'-1'""'7_---1---"d=-cc2=0--'-18"--_1--__,_e=.L..C2c..c0'""1--'-9_-+-_ ___.__._T'""'o'""ta=l--

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and 

membership fees received. (Do not 

include any "unusual grants.") ...... 3 0 7 2 2 9 9 • 3 5 7 2 5 8 0 • 5 9 0 0 8 0 6 • 6 5 5 5 3 7 2 • 6 6 4 616 2 • 5 7 4 7 219 . 
2 Tax revenues levied for the organ-

ization's benefit and either paid to 

or expended on its behalf 

3 The value of services or facilities 

furnished by a governmental unit to 

the organization without charge 

4 Total. Add lines 1 through 3 ......... 

5 The portion of total contributions 

by each person (other than a 

governmental unit or publicly 

supported organization) included 

on line 1 that exceeds 2% of the 

amount shown on line 11, 

column (f) 

6 Public SU Ort. Subtract line 5 from line 4. 

Section B. Total Support 

5747219. 

2967129. 
2780090. 

Ca le ndar year ( or fisca I year beginning in) ► 1--__.=-a '--'2::.:0;..;1..::.5_-+----=~;;..;..:'----+_;,;_---'-'CL.::"'-"'-='-'-'1----'-=...c~..;:;_-+-__."'"'""~;..;;__-+--,>;L,..;..;;;.;;.;;;;.... __ 

7 Amounts from line 4 .. .. .... ... .. ........ 3 0 7 2 2 9 9 • 
8 Gross income from interest, 

dividends, payments received on 

securities loans, rents, royalties, 

and income from similar sources 49,090. 47,011. 60,100. 110,128. 311,175 
9 Net income from unrelated business 

activities, whether or not the 

business is regularly carried on -68,642. -75,394.-124,797. 
10 Other income. Do not include gain 

or loss from the sale of capital 

assets (Explain in Part VI.) .......... .. 3,132. 364. 3,496. 
11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10 5937093. 
12 Gross receipts from related acti~ij:iij~:'~!c:"(!i~!:l}Ostructions) ................................................................... .. 

13 First five years. If the Form 990£i~,fqt;<the org~~ization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501 (c)(3) 

or anization check this box and stci here ...................................................................................................................................... . ► 

14 Public support percentage for 2019 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column (f)) .................................... ,__14 ______ 8_7_._8_3 __ % 
15 Public support percentage from 2018 Schedule A, Part II, line 14 ............................................................... '---'-15c...i. _____ 8_6_._6_3_----'-'-% 
16a 33 1/3% support test - 2019. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box and 

stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization .......................................................................................... ► [X] 
b 33 1/3% support test - 2018. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box 

and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization .......... .......................... ................................................ ► D 
17a 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2019. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is 10% or more, 

and if the organization meets the "facts•and-circumstances" test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the organization 

meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ................... .......................... ► D 
b 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2018. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line 15 is 10% or 

more, and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the 

organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ................. ....... ► D 
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see instructions .... ..... ► D[· 

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 201(, 

932022 09-25-19 

14 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



TURE COLLECTIVE 3 3 - 0 3 5 8 6 6 0 Pa e 3 
rgamzat1ons 

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under Part II. If the organization fails to 

qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.) 
Section A. Public Support 
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) ► Cal 2015 /bl 2016 /cl 2017 /di 2018 /el 2019 m Total 

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and 

membership fees received. (Do not 

include any "unusual grants.") ...... 

2 Gross receipts from admissions, 
merchandise sold or services per-
formed, or facilities furnished in 
any activity that is related to the 
organization's tax-exempt purpose 

3 Gross receipts from activities that 

are not an unrelated trade or bus-

iness under section 513 ............... 
4 Tax revenues levied for the organ-

ization's benefit and either paid to 

or expended on its behalf ............ 

5 The value of services or facilities 

furnished by a governmental unit to 
I, 

the organization without charge ... ,: 
' 

6 Total. Add lines 1 through 5 ......... !:,,'.:' 
7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and ' • < h ,,,<:<: 

3 received from disqualified persons 
'{ 

'>, 
,, 

b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3 received 

from other than disqualified persons that 

exceed the greater of $5,000 or 1% of the 

amount on line 13 for the year .................. ', 
c Add lines 7a and 7b " 

·:,,,,,:;: ,,.,, 
····················· 

8 Public suooort. !Subtract line 7c from line 6.l 

3ection B. Total Support ,' ;,, 
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) ► /al 2015 (b)2O16 ,2'' /cl 2017 /di 2018 /el 2019 m Total 

9 Amounts from line 6 ................ -.... ,, "",::: 
10a Gross income from interest, 1:. 

dividends, payments received on 

t\ "'I< securities loans, rents, royalties, 
and income from similar sources ,'. ., ,, ... 

b Unrelated business taxable income 
':, 

1,i ,,' 

(less section 511 taxes) from businesses 

acquired after June 30, 1975 ........ ,. ... ' ,, 

c Add lines 10a and 10b .......... \., ... ,,, 
11 Net income from unrelated business 

activities not included in line 1 Ob, 
whether or not the business is 
regularly carried on ..................... 

12 Other income. Do not include gain 
or loss from the sale of capital 
assets (Explain in Part VI.) ............ 

13 Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c, 11, and 12.) 

14 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501 (c)(3) organization, 

check this box and stop here .. .. ... .. .. .. .. . ... .. . .. . ... ... .. .. .. ... .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . . . . . . . ... . .. .. . . . . .. . . .. .. . . . . . . . ... ... .. . . .. .. . . . .. .. .. . ... ... .. .. .. ... .. .. .. .. .. .. ... .. . ... . .. .. . . . ► D 
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage 
15 Public support percentage for 2019 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) 15 % 

% 
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage 
17 Investment income percentage for 2019 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) ........................ l---'-17'-+------------'--=-% 

18 Investment income percentage from 2018 Schedule A, Part Ill, line 17 ...................................................... ~18~-----------'-"-% 
19a 33 1/3% support tests - 2019. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 is not 

more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ►□ 
b 33 1/3% support tests - 2018. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and 

line 18 is not more than 33 1 /3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ............ ► D 
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions ........................ ► D 
932023 09-25-19 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 

15 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



Form 990 or 990-EZ 2019 NATURE COLLECTIVE 
Supporting Organizations 
(Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part I. If you checked 12a of Part I, complete Sections A 

and B. If you checked 12b of Part I, complete Sections A and C. If you checked 12c of Part I, complete 

Sections A, D, and E. If you checked 12d of Part I, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.) 
Section A. All Supporting Organizations 

1 Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization's governing 

documents? If "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by 

class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 

2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status 

under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported 

organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 

3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501 (c)(4), (5), or (6)? ff "Yes," answer 

(b) and (c) below. 

b Did.the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501 (c)(4), (5), or (6) and 

satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If "Yes," describe in Part VI when and how the 

organization made the determination. 

c Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 17Q(c)(2)(B) 

purposes? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use! •• J1 
4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ("foreign supported org~pizatipn';)?''.)t, 

"Yes," and if you checked 12a or 12b in Part I, answer (b) and (c) below. 

b Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make.gi~~fs•,to the foreign 

supported organization? If "Yes," describe in Part VI how the organization had suctPr;;{l;J1·a;&ciiscretion 

despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported orgari~tions. } 

c Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does ~of•tiave•!aoJ§~;~etermination 

under sections 501 (c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI w§~t controJs th; organization used 

to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used excltJ~ively.fibr section 170(c)(2)(B) 

purposes. 

5a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported 1fganizat~~;ns during the tax year? ff "Yes," 

answer (b) and (c) below (if applicable). Also, provide detail iflf:~~,VI, i:cJ:uding (ij the names and EIN 

numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, br::('.emove,!f (ii) the reasons for each such action; 

(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing dqcument a
0

Dtb9rizing such action; and (iv) how the action 

was accomplished (such as by amendment to theprga~{zinR d,<;?f51.Jment). 

b Type I or Type II only. Was any added or su tits§lJpport'eid organization part of a class already 

designated in the organization's organizingidocuqi~~t? }: 

C Substitutions only. Was the substitution th@'"~§~lfofan event beyond the organization's control? 

6 Did the organization provide suppo~(Wh~ther i~~the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to 

anyone other than (i) its suppo1~'\J~f~i~!le>r1t (ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class 

benefited by one or more of it~·: rted organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also 

support or benefit one or more o 

Part VI. 

filing organization's supported organizations? If "Yes," provide detail in 

7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor 

(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with 

regard to a substantial contributor? If "Yes," complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ). 

8 Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described in line 7? 

If "Yes," complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ). 

9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more 

disqualified persons as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described 

in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 

b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined in line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which 

the supporting organization had an interest? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 

c Did a disqualified person (as defined in line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit 

from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 

10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section 

4943(f) (regarding certain Type II supporting organizations, and all Type Ill non-functionally integrated 

supporting organizations)? If "Yes," answer 10b below. 

b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to 

33-0358660 Pa e4 

Yes No 

2 

8 

9a 

9b 

9c 

10a 

10b 
932024 09-25-19 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 

16 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



Form 990 or 990-EZ 2019 NATURE COLLECTIVE 33-0358660 Pa es 
Supporting Organizations 

11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons? 

a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (b) and (c) 

below, the governing body of a supp~rted organization? 

b A family member of a person described in (a) above? 

c A 35% controlled entit of a erson described in a or b · · PartVI. 
Section B. Type I Supporting Organizations 

1 Did the directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supported organizations have the power to 

regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization's directors or trustees at all times during the 

tax year? If "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or 

controlled the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported organization, 

describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove directors or trustees were allocated among the supported 

organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year. 
2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported 

organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If "Yes," explain jn 

Part VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated, 

~· r,r 
.. 

+ha N '" - . ·- . 

Section C Type II Supporting Orgamzat1ons 
.. 

.. 

1 Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a r11~j~rity'of1he directors 

or trustees of each of the organization's supported organization(s)? If "No " descritie in °Part v1:how control , ,," \, ,, 

or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons thatcontrollea or managed 
, .. :: •.. ; ·.. / 

Section D All Type Ill Supporting Orgamzat1ons 

",\;"'.~, '\ ',,"'"' 
Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizatiorii,,by the lasfday of the fifth month of the 

organization's tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amouri} of support provided during the prior tax 

year, (ii) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of,the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the 

organization's governing documents in effect on the date of'110JJfi'dation,to the extent not previously provided? 

2 Were any of the organization's officers, directors, or trustees eitlie~ (i) appointed or elected by the supported 

organization(s) or (ii) serving on the governing bodygf a supported organization? If "No," explain in Part VI how 

the organization maintained a close and contin,qous vvorking.feJationship with the supported organization(s). 
3 By reason of the relationship described in (2), did.the organization's supported organizations have a 

significant voice in the organization's investmerit policies and in directing the use of the organization's 

income or assets at all times during the tax year? If "Yes," describe in Part VI the role the organization's 
-· ,., nkn,orl int/ii." ro;:,'<>rrl 

Section E. Type Ill Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations 
1 Check the box next to the methodthat the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions). 
a D The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below. 

b D The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below. 

Yes No 

11a 
11b 
11c 

Yes No 

1 

2 

Yes No 

Yes No 

2 

3 

c D The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a government entity (see instructions),__ ___ _ 

2 Activities Test. Answer (a) and (b) below. Yes No 

a Did substantially all of the organization's activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of 

the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If "Yes," then in Part VI identify 

those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes, 

how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined 

that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities. 
b Did the activities described in (a) constitute activities that, but for the organization's involvement, one or more 

of the organization's supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? If "Yes," explain in Part VI the 

reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in these 

activities but for the organization's involvement. 
3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer (a) and (b) below. 

a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or 

trustees of each of the supported organizations? Provide details in Part VI. 

b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each 

of its su orted or anizations? · Part VI 

2a 

2b 

3a 

3b 
932025 09-25-19 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 

17 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



ScheduleA Form990or990-EZ 2019 NATURE COLLECTIVE 33-0358660 Pa e6 
art Type Ill Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations 

1 D Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part VI). See instructions. All 

other T e Ill non-functionall 

Section A - Adjusted Net Income 

6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or 

collection of gross income or for management, conservation, or 

mainten roduction of income see instructions 

7 Other ex 

Section B - Minimum Asset Amount 

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see 

instructions for short tax ear or assets held for art of ear : 

a Avera e month! value of securities 

b Avera e month! cash balances 

c Fair market value of other non-exem t-use assets 

d Total add lines 1 a, 1 b, and 1 c 

e Discount claimed for blockage or other 

factors ex lain in detail in Part VI : 

2 Ac uisition indebtedness a licable to non-exem t-use assets 

3 Subtract line 2 from line 1 d. 

4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 1-1 /2% of line 3 (for greJlter,.amount,·x · "· 

see instructions . 

8 Minimum Asset Amount add line 7 to line 6 

Section C - Distributable Amount 

3 

4 Enter reater of line 2 or line 

5 Income tax im osed in rior 

6 Distributable Amount. Subtract lint's from line 4, unless subject to 

lete Sections A throu h E. 

(A) Prior Year 

6 

7 

8 

(A) Prior Year 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

emer enc tern ora reduction see instructions . 6 

(B) Current Year 
(optional) 

(B) Current Year 
(optional) 

Current Year 

7 D Check here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally integrated Type Ill supporting organization (see 

instructions . 

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 

932026 09-25-19 

18 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 NATURE COLLECTIVE 33 0358660 - Paoe7 
I Partv I Type Ill Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a}(3) Supporting Organizations fr.nnfin, 1P.ril 

Section D - Distributions Current Year 

1 Amounts paid to suooorted oraanizations to accomplish exempt purposes 

2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported 

orqanizations, in excess of income from activitv 

3 Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of suooorted oroanizations 

4 Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets 

5 Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required) 

6 Other distributions (describe in Part Vil. See instructions. 

7 Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 throuqh 6. 

8 Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive 

(provide details in Part Vil. See instructions. 

9 Distributable amount for 2019 from Section C, line 6 

10 Line 8 amount divided bv line 9 amount 

(i) (ii) (iii) 

Section E - Distribution Allocations (see instructions) Excess Distributions Underdistributions Distributable 
Pre-2019 Amount for 2019 

1 Distributable amount for 2019 from Section C, line 6 

2 Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2019 (reason-

able cause required- explain in Part Vil. See instructions. / .: ' 
3 Excess distributions carrvover, if anv, to 2019 

a From 2014 

b From 2015 

C From 2016 

d From 2017 

e From 2018 

f Total of lines 3a throuqh e :• t 
a Annlied to underdistributions of orior vears 

h Aoolied to 2019 distributable amount 

Carrvover from 2014 not annlied (see instructions) i 
.. 

i 

i Remainder. Subtract lines 3q, 3h, and 3i from 3f. t '< • . : :, 

4 Distributions for 2019 from Section D, 

line 7: $ ""· ·'.: .. 
a Aoolied to underdistributions of prior years < \ .... •:.,;; 
b Aoolied to 2019 distributable amount ·oz;, .... :••· : 
C Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from 4'.' <':.,:./: 

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2019, if 

any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a f~om liM 2: For rE:Jsult greater 

than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions. 

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2Q19. Subtract lines 3h 

and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in 

Part VI. See instructions. 

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2020. Add lines 3j 

and 4c. 

8 Breakdown of line 7: 

a Excess from 2015 

b Excess from 2016 

C Excess from 2017 

d Excess from 2018 

e Excess from 2019 

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 

932027 09-25-19 

19 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



Form 990 or990-EZ 2019 NATURE COLLECTIVE 3 3 - 0 3 5 8 6 6 0 Pa e 8 

Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part II, line 1 0; Part II, line 17a or 17b; Part Ill, line 12; 
Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9c, 11 a, 11 b, and 11 c; Part IV, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, 
line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1 c, 2a, 2b, 3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1 e; Part V, 
Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E, lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. 
See instructions. 

(~) 
-----------------------"--'---='------"-----------------------

-------------------------------------------------;f:;f'J""-"~-, 

'"'~,~-~/'' 

932028 09-25-19 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 
20 

13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



SCHEDULED 
(Form 990) 

Supplemental Financial Statements 0MB No. 1545-0047 

2019 
Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service 

► Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, 
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 111, 12a, or 12b. 

► Attach to Form 990. 
Go to www.irs. ov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. 

Open to Public 
Inspection · 

\Jame of the organization Employer identification number 

NATURE COLLECTIVE 33-0358660 
Part I Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. complete if the 

organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 6. 

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts 

1 Total number at end of year ............................................. 

2 Aggregate value of contributions to (during year) ............ 

3 Aggregate value of grants from (during year) .................. 

4 Aggregate value at end of year ······································· 
5 Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds 

are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control? ...................................................... D Yes 0No 

6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only 

for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring 

im ermissible rivate benefit? ................................................................................................................................... . Yes No 
Part II Conservation Easements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 7. 

1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply). . 

[X] Preservation of land for public use (for example, recreation or education) D Pres~rvat,ion· ~fa nistorically important land area 

[X] Protection of natural habitat D Preservation of a certified historic structure 

[X] Preservation of open space . . 

2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contributiorliri tfie form of a conservation easement on the last 

day of the tax year. \ ;" Held at the End of the Tax Year 

a Total number of conservation easements ................................................ _,:.::.'.: ..... '.::.,,-. .. ;) ...................... . 2a 9 
b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements ........................... "':: ........... :,_ ................................ . 2b 69.30 
c Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure includ~djri (a) }: ................................. . 2c 

d Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 7/25/06, and1101:on a historic structure 

listed in the National Register ................................................................................................................. . 2d 

3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, r~leas~d, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the tax 

year ► ______ _ 
4 Number of states where property subject to conserv~tion easenierit is located ► 1 
5 Does the organization have a written policy regarding tli!l periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of 

0No 

6 Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monit()ring,.ihspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year 

► 500 . 

violations, and enforcement of the conservatioh ~a;~ment'§if holds? [X] Yes 

7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year 

► $ 4, 200"~ 
8 Does each conservation easement _reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i) 

and section 170(h)(4)(B)(ii)? ........ ,................................................................................................................................. D Yes 
9 In Part XIII, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement and 

balance sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the 

or anization's accountin for conservation easements. 
Part Ill Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets. 

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 8. 

1a If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works 

of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public 

service, provide in Part XIII the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items. 

b If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of 

art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, 

provide the following amounts relating to these items: 

0No 

(i) Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 ................. ................................ ......................... .......... ► $ _________ _ 

(ii) Assets included in Form 990, Part X ........... ........... ... .................................... ............. .......... ............... ► $ _________ _ 

2 If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide 

the following amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items: 

a Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 ......................................................................................... . 

b Assets included in Form 990, Part X 

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. 

932051 10-02-19 

26 

► $ _______ _ 

► $ 
Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 

13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



Schedule D Form 990 2019 NATURE COLLECTIVE 
Part III Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets 
3 Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its 

collection items (check all that apply}: 

a D Public exhibition d D Loan or exchange program 

e D Other b D Scholarly research ------------------------
c D Preservation for future generations 

4 

5 

Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in Part XIII. 

During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets 

to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as art of the or anization's collection? .... ......... ... ............... ... .. Yes No 

Part IV Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or 
reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21. 

1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included 

on Form 990, Part X? .. .................................................................................................................... ............................. D Yes D No 
b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIII and complete the following table: 

Amount 

c Beginning balance ................................................................................................................................ . 1c 

d Additions during the year ....................................................................................................................... . 1d 

e Distributions during the year .......................................................................................................... ~> ..... . 1e 

1f f Ending balance ....................................................................................................................... ,,,;,
0 

••• :,\ •••• 

2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial,clcqpunt llabiJ\ty? ............... D Yes 

b If "Yes " ex lain the arran ement in Part XIII. Check here if the ex lanation has been rovide'd onlPart XIII .· ...................................... . 

0No 

Part V Endowment Funds. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 99Q;Part IV line 10. 

a Current ear Three ears back e Four ears back 

1a Beginning of year balance 1,546,613, 1,710,752. 1,805,590, 

b Contributions ......................................... . 81,641, 

c Net investment earnings, gains, and losses 231,146, 149,843, 

d Grants or scholarships .......................... . 
e Other expenditures for facilities 

and programs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 7 , 3 31 ~ 16 7 , 4 9 3 • 

f Administrative expenses . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . 19 , 7 9 9''/:, 18 , 9 9 2. 

g Endofyearbalance .............................. 1,762,2-Z;O,. 1,632,820. 

2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year,~nd bala~&'(line 1 g, column (a)) held as: 

a Board designated or quasi-endowment ► '"""· •. % 

b Permanent endowment ► 1 0 0 . 0 0 
c Term endowment ► ,;;_ %~; 

The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and le sh~t.1lg,~&tic1!11ooo/o. 

68,286, 

85,536, 

24,040, 

1,669,462. 

3a Are there endowment funds not in the'p"e>ssessic,i:1 of the organization that are held and administered for the organization 
by: ··,;,"' .•. " 

:::) ~:;::::e:r;:~~;~::t~~n~.:::;:~;~i;<::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: 

b If "Yes" on line 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R? 

4 Describe in Part XIII the intended uses of the or anization's endowment funds. 
Part VI Land, Buildings, and Equipment. 

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11 a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10. 

Description of property (a) Cost or other (b) Cost or other (c) Accumulated 
basis (investment) basis (other) depreciation 

1a Land ............................................................ 5,278,260. 
b Buildings ······················································ 
C Leasehold improvements .............................. 

d Equipment ................................................... 236,392. 196,788. 
e Other ............................................................ 

Total. Add lines 1a throuah 1e. /(:n/11mn fr/) m,,,,+,,,-,,,,,/ Fnrm aan P:art X r,n/11mn /Al lino 1n,- I ....................................... ► 

25,222, 

90,279 

29,781 

1,710,752, 

Yes No 

3a(i) X 
3a(ii) X 

3b 

(d) Book value 

5,278,260. 

39,604. 

5,317,864. 
Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 

932052 10-02-19 

27 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATUREC1 



Schedule D Form 990 2019 NATURE COLLECTIVE 3 3 - 0 3 5 8 6 6 0 Pa e 3 
Part VII Investments - Other Securities. 

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11 b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12. 
(a) Description of security or category (including name of security) (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value 

:1) Financial derivatives ............................................. 

(2) Closely held equity interests ................................. 

(3) Other 

(Al 

(B) 

(Cl 

(D) 

/Fl 

(F) 

(Gl 

(H) 

Total. <Col. (bl must eaual Form 990 Part X col. /Bl line 12.l ► 

I Part VIII I Investments - Program Related. 
C "fth omp ete 1 . f e oraanIza I0n answere d "Y " F es on orm a , Ine C. ee 990 P rt IV r 11 S F orm 

' 
a , Ine 990PrtXr 13 

(a) Description of investment (b) Book value (c) Method of vah.i.iation: Cost or end-of-year market value 

(1) ; :. 

(2) .· .. ; '.. 

(3) 

(41 ·· ...... ) 

(5) •. :• ···• : .. . ;\ 
(61 ' 

·,z 

(7) .1. ,:~i- . 

(81 
:· 

;,. 

(9) :;; > 

Total. (Col. (bl must eaual Form 990 Part X col. /Bl line 13.l ► 
•; 

; 

I Part IX I Other Assets. 
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11 d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15. 

(a) Description ·•· •; (b) Book value 
·.·. 

(11 .: ;,• 

(2) .· .. 
(31 ' .. : 
(4) . ; 

(5) .. ·· .... ·· 

(6) 
; 

; 

(7) ·. 
.· 

{8) ·' . 
(9) 

Total. lf"'r.l,1mn /hi m11.c;t anu<>I l=nrm oon P<>r+ X ,_,.., (Rl lini:, 1fi.l ···················································································· ► 
I PartX I Other Liabilities. 

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11 e or 11 f. See Form 990, Part X, line 25. 

1. (a) Description of liability (b) Book value 

(1) Federal income taxes 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

(7) 

(8) 

(9) 

Total. /f"'nl,1mn /hl m"«tar,,i,:,/ Fnrm oon P,:,rt X ,_,.., /RI /;nc, ?.''i.l ···················································································· ► 
!. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XIII, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that reports the 

organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FASB ASC 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIII ... 00 
Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 

932053 10-02-19 

28 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



Schedule D Form 990 2019 NATURE COLLECTIVE 3 3-0 3 5 8 6 6 0 Pa e 4 
Part XI Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return. 

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a. 

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements 

2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12: 

a Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . f--=2=a-+-__ 5_1_7 ..... , ..... 0_3_3_.--1 
b Donated services and use of facilities . . .. . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . .. . . . . .. . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . .. . . . . .. . . f--=2=b-+----------1 

c Recoveries of prior year grants . . .. . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . .. . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . f--=2=c-+----------l 

7,381,774. 

d Other (Describe in Part XIII.) .............................................................................. ........_2 ___ d........_ __ 1_6_7 ..... , ..... 4_7_8_.--1 
e Add lines 2a through 2d ........ ......................................................................................................................... ,__2e__,_ ___ 6_8_4~, _5_1_1_._ 

3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 .......................................................................... .. ........ ...................................... .... 1----,-"3'--+ __ 6_,_,_6_9_7--'-, _2_6_3_._ 
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1: 

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line ?b ........................ f---'4=a-+-___ 4_2 ..... , ..... 1_8_6_.--1 
b Other (Describe in Part XIII.) ........................................................... ................... ~4b---------t 
c Add lines 4a and 4b 4c 

Part XII Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return. 
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a. 

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements 

2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25: 

a Donated services and use of facilities 

b Prior year adjustments ...................................................................................... . 
c Other losses 

d Other (Describe in Part XIII.) 

e Add lines 2a through 2d 

3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 

a Investment expenses no 

b Other (Describe in Part 

c Add lines 4a and 4b 

5 Total ex enses. Add lines 3 and 4c. 
Part XIU Supplementa.1 Information. 

42,186. 
6,739,449. 

6,492,482. 

90,830. 
6,401,652. 

42,186 
6,443,838 

Provide the descriptions required for Part II, lines 3, 5, and,9,; Part Ill, 'fihil~ 1 a and 4; Part IV, lines 1 b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI, 

lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also comp~et~tl;Jjs par;t,to provide any additional information. 
<>It<:e~::r 

PART II, LINE 5: 

THE ORGANIZATION HAS; *At WRI~TEN POLICY REGARDING THE PERIODIC MONITORING, 
<> _,J:\-X 

INSPECTION, HANDLING~ •• DF VIOLATIONS, AND ENFORCEMENT OF ITS CONSERVATION 

EASEMENTS. 

PART II, LINE 9: 

NATURE COLLECTIVE USES THE "ZERO VALUATION" APPROACH TO BOOKING 

CONSERVATION EASEMENTS. THE ORGANIZATION HAS NOT BOOKED ANY EXPENSES FOR 

THE CONSERVATION EASEMENTS BECAUSE IT HAS NOT PURCHASED ANY. ALL THE 

_E_A_S_E_M_E_N_T_S_H_A_V_E_B_E_E_N_G_I_V_E_N_T_O_T_H_E_O_R_G_AN_I_Z_A_T_I_O_N_B_Y_G_O_V_E_R_NM_E_N_T_A_L_A_G_E_N_C_I_E_S_. ___ E-. 

(,~---✓/ THE LAND TRUST ALLIANCE (LTA) DESCRIBES THE REASONING BEHIND USING A ZERO 

VALUATION APPROACH AS, BECAUSE THE CONSERVATION EASEMENT DOES NOT HAVE ANY 
932054 10-02-19 Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 

29 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



Form 990 2019 NATURE COLLECTIVE 3 3 - 0 3 5 8 6 6 0 Pa e 5 
Supplemental Information 

MARKET VALUE IT IS NOT CONSIDERED TO BE SUPPORT. 

PART X, LINE 2: 

NATURE COLLECTIVE FOLLOWS THE PROVISIONS OF UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS AS 

ADDRESSED IN FASB ACCOUNTING STANDARDS CODIFICATION. NATURE COLLECTIVE 

RECOGNIZES ACCRUED INTEREST AND PENALTIES ASSOCIATED WITH UNCERTAIN TAX 

POSITIONS AS PART OF THE INCOME TAX PROVISION, WHEN APPLICABLE. THERE ARE 

NO AMOUNTS ACCRUED IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATED TO UNCERTAIN TAX 

POSITIONS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018. 

PART XI, LINE 2D - OTHER ADJUSTMENTS: 

CHANGE IN VALUE OF BENEFICIAL INTERESTS IN,ASSE.TS 76,648. 

SPECIAL EVENT EXPENSES NETTED WITH RELATED REVENUE 90,830. 

TOTAL TO SCHEDULED, PART XI, LINE 2D 167,478. 

PART XII, LINE 2D - OTHER ADJUSTMENTS: 

SPECIAL EVENT EXPENSES NETTED WITH RELATED REVENUE 90,830. 

Schedule D (Form 990) 2019 

932055 10-02-19 

30 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



SCHEDULE G 
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) 

Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service 

Supplemental Information Regarding Fundraising or Gaming Activities 

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 17, 18, or 19, or if the 
organization entered more than $15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a. 

► Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. 

► Go to www.irs. ov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. 

0MB No. 1545-0047 

2019 
Open to Public 
Inspection 

Name of the organization Employer identification number 

NATURE COLLECTIVE 33-0358660 
I Part I I Fundraising Activities. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 17. Form 990-EZ filers are not 

required to complete this part. 

1 Indicate whether the organization raised funds through any of the following activities. Check all that apply. 

a D Mail solicitations e D Solicitation of non-government grants 

b D Internet and email solicitations f D Solicitation of government grants 

c D Phone solicitations g D Special fundraising events 

d D In-person solicitations 

2 a Did the organization have a written or oral agreement with any individual (including officers, directors, trustees, or 

key employees listed in Form 990, Part VII) or entity in connection with professional fundraising services? D Yes 

b If "Yes," list the 10 highest paid individuals or entities (fundraisers) pursuant to agreements under which the fundraiser is to be 

compensated at least $5,000 by the organization. 

(i) Name and address of individual 
or entity (fundraiser) 

(ii) Activity 

(iiil Did 
funcfraiser 

have custody 
or control of 

contributions? 

Yes 

To~ .................................................................................................................. ► 

(iv) Gross,reQ~ip,l$ 
from:activity' · 

)>',:'' ,,,"><, 

(v) Amount paid 
to (or retained by) 

fund raiser 
listed in col. (i) 

ONo 

(vi) Amount paid 
to (or retained by) 

organization 

3 List all states in which the organization is registered or licensed to solicit contributions or has been notified it is exempt from registration 
or licensing. 

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 

932081 09-11-19 

31 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



Schedule G Form 990 or 990-EZ 2019 NATURE COLLECTIVE 3 3-0 3 5 8 6 6 0 Pa e 2 

Part II Fundraising Events. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 18, or reported more than $15,000 
of fundraising event contributions and gross income on Form 990-EZ, lines 1 and 6b. List events with gross receipts greater than $5,000. 

(a) Event #1 (b) Event #2 (c) Other events 
(d) Total events 

IBIRDS OF A NONE (add col. (a) through 
!FEATHER 

(event type) (event type) (total number) 
col. (cl) 

a, 
:::J 
C 
a, 

322,110. 322,110. > 1 Gross receipts .......................................... a, 
a: 

2 Less: Contributions ································· 306,674. 306,674. 

3 Gross income (line 1 minus line 2) ........•..• 15,436. 15,436. 

4 Cash prizes ....•••.•............•....•.................. 

5 Noncash prizes ....................................... 35,670. 35,670. 
en 
a, 
en 
C 6 Rent/facility costs 
~ ···································· 
X /_ w 
u 7 Food and beverages .............................. 30,618. ) . 30,618. 
~ . 
0 .. · 

8 Entertainment ·········································· 9,309. · .. 9,309. 
9 Other direct expenses .............................. 15,234. ·<;:, •• , ··._\- 15,234. 
10 Direct expense summary. Add lines 4 through 9 in column (d) 

.-,,/?;, . {.~~: ... ·:)· ► 90,831. 
11 Net income summarv. Subtract line 10 from line 3 column (dl ► -75,395. 

I Part Ill I Gaming. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part \Y, line 19, or reported more than 

' ' 
$15 000 on Form 990-EZ line 6a ... .. 

a, (a) Bingo 
(I:>) Pdll tabs/instant 

(c) Other gaming 
(d) Total gaming (add 

:::J bingo/progressive bingo col. (a) through col. (cl) 
C 
a, 
> a, 
a: 

1 Gross revenue .......................................... " 
'::-:: 

·, 

en 2 Cash prizes ............................................. -·· z<:_,, /:. 
a, 

.•·• 
-.. r· 

en 
C 

~ 3 Noncash prizes .................................. -~ ... ·-1, : 
X 
w I ,; 

. 

..... 
u /, 

~ 4 Rent/facility costs 
0 

5 Other direct expenses </ 
',, Dves % Dves % Dves % 

6 Volunteer labor ······································· D No nNo 0No 

7 Direct expense summary. Add lines 2 through 5 in column (d) ........................................................................ ► 

8 Net qaminq income summary. Subtract line 7 from line 1 column (d) ............................................................... ► 
9 Enter the state(s) in which the organization conducts gaming activities: ________________________ _ 

a Is the organization licensed to conduct gaming activities in each of these states? 

b If "No," explain: 

10a Were any of the organization's gaming licenses revoked, suspended, or terminated during the tax year? 

Dves 0No 

Dves 0No 

b If "Yes," explain:--------------------------------------------

932082 09-11-19 Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 

32 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZl 2019 NATURE COLLECTIVE 33-0358660 
11 Does the organization conduct gaming activities with nonmembers?................................................................................. D Yes 
12 Is the organization a grantor, beneficiary or trustee of a trust, or a member of a partnership or other entity formed 

to administer charitable gaming? ................................................................................................................................... . 0Yes 

Page 3 

0No 

D No ✓-
{ . 

13 Indicate the percentage of gaming activity conducted in: 

a The organization's facility ............................................................................................................................................ . 

b An outside facility ........................................................................................................................................................ . 
f-1 ~=:=:-+I----.:..::.~--/ 

14 Enter the name and address of the person who prepares the organization's gaming/special events books and records: 

Name ► 

Address ► ---------------------------------------------
15a Does the organization have a contract with a third party from whom the organization receives gaming revenue? .................. DYes 0No 

b If "Yes," enter the amount of gaming revenue received by the organization ► $ and the amount -------
of gaming revenue retained by the third party ► $ ______ _ 

c If "Yes," enter name and address of the third party: 

Name ► 

16 Gaming manager information: 

Name ► 

Gaming manager compensation ► $ ______ _ 

/~-- .. _ 
Description of services provided ► ----------"'------'----------------------------;,~) 

D Director/officer D Employee •• 

17 Mandatory distributions: 

a Is the organization required under state law to'''rnake'J:li~;itable distributions from the gaming proceeds to 

retain the state gaming license? ....... ~'~i, ......... ~;i............................................................................................................. D Yes D No 
b Enter the amount of distribution~;reqDi[l:ldUIJ\=!Eltstate law to be distributed to other exempt organizations or spent in the 

or anization's own exem t actfv)i:ies d~rin th~ tax ear $ 

Part IV Supplemental lnforitl;1:1tion. Provide the explanations required by Part I, line 2b, columns (iii) and (v); and Part Ill, lines 9, 9b, 1 Ob, 

15b, 15c, 16, and 17b, as ap~licable. Also provide any additional information. See instructions. 

932083 09-11-19 Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2019 

33 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



Schedule G Form 990 or 990-EZ NATURE COLLECTIVE 3 3 - 0 3 5 8 6 6 0 Pa e 4 

Part IV Supplemental Information continued 

Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 

932084 04-01-19 

34 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



SCHEDULE J 
(Form 990) 

Compensation Information 
For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest 

Compensated Employees 
► Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 23. 

► Attach to Form 990. 

0MB No. 1545-0047 

2019 
Open to Public 

Inspection 
Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service 

Name of the organization 
Go to www.irs. ov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. 

Employer identification numbe;'•···~·/ 

NATURE COLLECTIVE 33-0358660 
Part I Questions Regarding Compensation 

1a Check the appropriate box(es) if the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed on Form 990, 

Part VII, Section A, line 1 a. Complete Part Ill to provide any relevant information regarding these items. 

D First-class or charter travel D Housing allowance or residence for personal use 

D Travel for companions D Payments for business use of personal residence 

D Tax indemnification and gross-up payments D Health or social club dues or initiation fees 

D Discretionary spending account D Personal services (such as maid, chauffeur, chef) 

b If any of the boxes on line 1 a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment or 

2 

3 

4 

reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If "No," complete Part Ill to explain ................................ . 

Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all dir~tors, 

trustees, and officers, including the CEO/Executive Director, regarding the items checked on lineJa,,?. Jr ................................ . 

Indicate which, if any, of the following the organization used to establish the compensation:bf{~:~rgan;::il;n's 

CEO/Executive Director. Check all that apply. Do not check any boxes for methods usecjJi;~JEi~fed organization to 

establish compensation of the CEO/Executive Director, but explain in Part Ill. ·:,, ·t~, 
D Compensation committee [X] Written employment corytract 

D Independent compensation consultant [X] Comp
2
ensatio~s!,JJ;¥~Y,/6r study 

D Form 990 of other organizations [X] Apprgval by the. b;~'rd or compensation committee 

During the year, did any person listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section & line '~;;:,
0

\vith{:spect to the filing 

organization or a related organization: 

a Receive a severance payment or change-of-control payment.'? ~L ....... ..!: ............................................................................ . 
b Participate in, or receive payment from, a supplemental nonqoialifi~~iretif~ment plan? ........................................................... . 

c Participate in, or receive payment from, an equity-baSEi~(compe~~~tion arrangement? ........................................................... . 

If "Yes" to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and J)rovidetp~ apJ)licable amounts for each item in Part Ill. 
' ,,,, ,,,,,, ,'.;'" 

Only section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c){~),:,fG;~~k:;~:s must complete lines 5-9. 

5 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VU, Sectii>1'1,A~;·lil'l,e1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation 

contingent on the revenues of: 

a The organization? ................... ,.{:.:'.~L .. ~~!t•,.;::{:"'. ................................................................................................................ . 
b Any related organization? .... :i.~:c,·,;'.P' ........ : ....................................................................................................................... . 

If "Yes" on line 5a or 5b, describe'in~J?art Ill. 

6 For persons listed on Form 990, Part'v11, Section A, line 1 a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation 

contingent on the net earnings of: 

a The organization? .............................................................................................................................................................. . 

b Any related organization? .................................................................................................................................................. . 
If "Yes" on line 6a or 6b, describe in Part Ill. 

7 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1 a, did the organization provide any nonfixed payments 

not described on lines 5 and 6? If "Yes," describe in Part Ill .................................................................................................. . 
8 Were any amounts reported on Form 990, Part VII, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was subject to the 

initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53.4958-4(a)(3)? If "Yes," describe in Part Ill ............................... .. 

9 If "Yes" on line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in 

6a 
6b 

7 

8 

Re ulations section 53.4958-6 c ? . .. . . .. .. . . . . . .. .. . . .. . . . . .. .. . . . . . . . . .. .. . ... . . .. .. .. . . .. . . . ... .. . ... .. . ... ... .. . .. . .. . . .. .. . .. .. . .. .. .. .. . . ... . .. . .. .. .. .. . .. .. .. . . .. 9 

Yes No 

X 
X 

X 

X 

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule J (Form 990) 2019 

932111 10-21-19 

35 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



Schedule J (Form 990) 2019 NATURE COLLECTIVE 33-0358660 Paqe 2 
Part II I Officers,_Qirectors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees. Use duplicate copies if additional space is needed. 

For each individual whose compensation must be reported on Schedule J, report compensation from the organization on row (i) and from related organizations, described in the instructions, on row (ii). 
Do not list any individuals that aren't listed on Form 990, Part VII. 

Note: The sum of columns (B)(i)·(iii) for each listed individual must equal the total amount of Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1 a, applicable column (D) and (E) amounts for that individual. 

(B) Breakdown of W-2 and/or 1099-MISC compensation (C) Retirement and (D) Nontaxable (E) Total of columns (F) Compensation 
other deferred benefits (B)(i)·(D) in column (B) 

(A) Name and Title 
(i) Base (ii) Bonus & (iii) Other compensation reported as deferred 

compensation incentive reportable on prior Form 990 
compensation compensation 

(1) DOUG GIBSON (i) 151,380. 20,000. 0. 1,200. 1,940. 174,520. 0. 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (ii} 0. 0. o. .. o .. 0. 0. 0. 

(i) .! 
.. 

{ii} ·;:. ;. 

(i) :":' '•'.•• 
. ·. 

{ii} 

(i) I\ . 

i {ii} ;; ' 
I 

(i) '.t• · .. 

I rm . ·· 
,,,,,,,,,,, 

. 
(i) ( 

I rm l'L 

(i) · ..•.... 
" 

.:· 

lrm i' 

.... 

. . 
(i) 

I fiil .. ... . ',.:; . .' 

(i) ·.·. ; 

I fiil Ii> .. 
(i) 

1ml . · . .. 
(i) 

I rm •• .. • : 

(i) . 
lfiil 

(i) 

lrm 
(i) 

{ii} 

(i) 

{iil 

(i) 

{ii} 

Schedule J (Form 990) 2019 

932112 10-21-19 

36 



Schedule J (Form 990) 2019 NATURE COLLECTIVE 33-0358660 Paqe 3 

Part Ill I Supplemental Information 

Provide the information, explanation, or descriptions required for Part I, lines 1 a, 1 b, 3, 4a, 4b, 4c, Sa, Sb, 6a, 6b, 7, and 8, and for Part II. Also complete this part for any additional information. 

Schedule J (Form 990) 2019 

932113 10-21-t,f}tHo/!:1)," 



SCHEDULE M Noncash Contributions 0MB No. 1545-0047 

(Form 990) 2019 ► Complete if the organizations answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, lines 29 or 30. 
Department of the Treasury ► Attach to Form 990. Open to Public 
Internal Revenue Service 

► Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection 

Name of the organization I Employer identification number 

NATURE COLLECTIVE 33-0358660 
I Part I I Types ot Property 

(a) (b) (c) (d) 
Check if Number of Noncash contribution Method of determining 

applicable contributions or amounts reported on noncash contribution amounts 
items contributed Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 q 

1 Art - Works of art ······································· X 7 1,615. ESTIMATED FMV 
2 Art - Historical treasures ........................... 

3 Art - Fractional interests .............................. 

4 Books and publications .............................. 

5 Clothing and household goods .................. 

6 Cars and other vehicles ······························ 
7 Boats and planes ....................................... 

8 Intellectual property ................................. " 
9 Securities - Publicly traded ........................ '. 

10 Securities - Closely held stock ..................... 
''.· 

.< 

11 Securities - Partnership, LLC, or 
: 

trust interests . . /· 
...•...................................... 

12 Securities - Miscellaneous v•\ ·-.,. ........................ 

13 Qualified conservation contribution -

Historic structures i .• -.. / .................................... . .... 
14 Qualified conservation contribution - Other . •·· ... 

15 Real estate - Residential • • . ........................... 

16 Real estate - Commercial .,, .. _ 
I:. <,:· .. 

........................... 

17 Real estate - Other •. : 
···································· 

18 Collectibles • 
. 

················································ .. 
·•\,,,•.'.'.-' . 19 Food inventory .......................................... , .... 

20 Drugs and medical supplies ........................ > 

21 Taxidermy ................................................ ·\· .. · 
22 Historical artifacts .................................... •. ·.; "••· : :. .. i 

23 Scientific specimens ·····························"·· i;. .·• 

24 Archeological artifacts .............................. •• •· .. · 
25 Other ► ( GIFT CARDS FO ) ··•·. X 51 22,780. IFAIR MARKET VALUE 
26 Other ► ( GIFT CARDS FO.) X 29 10,135. IFAIR MARKET VALUE 
27 Other ► ( JEWELERY - EA ) X 15 1,140. IFAIR MARKET VALUE 
28 Other ► ( .· ) 

29 Number of Forms 8283 received by the organization during the tax year for contributions 

I 291 for which the organization completed Form 8283, Part IV, Donee Acknowledgement ............ 
Yes No 

30a During the year, did the organization receive by contribution any property reported in Part I, lines 1 through 28, that it 

must hold for at least three years from the date of the initial contribution, and which isn't required to be used for 

exempt purposes for the entire holding period? .••••••••..••.•....•.•.••.......•..........................................•...•..•..••.•.••••..••••••..•••••••••• 30a X 
b If "Yes," describe the arrangement in Part II. 

31 Does the organization have a gift acceptance policy that requires the review of any nonstandard contributions? .................. 31 X 
32a Does the organization hire or use third parties or related organizations to solicit, process, or sell noncash 

contributions? .................................................................................................................................................................. 32a X 
b If "Yes," describe in Part II. 

33 If the organization didn't report an amount in column (c) for a type of property for which column (a) is checked, 

describe in Part II. 

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule M (Form 990) 2019 

932141 09-27-19 

38 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



Schedule M Form 990 2019 NATURE COLLECTIVE 3 3-0 3 5 8 6 6 0 Pa e 2 

Part I Supplemental Information. Provide the information required by Part I, lines 30b, 32b, and 33, and whether the organization 
is reporting in Part I, column (b), the number of contributions, the number of items received, or a combination of both. Also complete 
this part for any additional information. 

------------------.....,,...-___, ___________________ r,\, 
~-) 

932142 09-27-19 Schedule M (Form 990) 2019 

39 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



SCHEDULE 0 
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) 

Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ 0MB No. 1545-0047 

Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information. 2019 

Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service 

► Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ. 
Go to www.irs. ov/Form990 for the latest information. 

Open to Public 
Ins ection 

\Jame of the organization Employer identification number 
NATURE COLLECTIVE 33-0358660 

FORM 990, PART III, LINE 4A, PROGRAM SERVICE ACCOMPLISHMENTS: 

BIOLOGISTS. THESE ACTIVITIES INVOLVE THE PUBLIC IN COMMUNITY 

CONSERVATION, IN PARTNERSHIP WITH STATE AND REGIONAL AGENCIES. IN OUR 

SAN ELIJO NURSERY, WE CAN ENSURE GENETIC INTEGRITY OF THE NATIVE PLANTS 

UNIQUELY THRIVING IN THE DIVERSE HABITATS OF THE WETLAND. BY SOURCING 

SEEDS AND REPLANTING NATIVE SPECIES IN DISTURBED HABITATS, WE WILL 

CONTINUE TO REDUCE OUR CARBON FOOTPRINT BY NOT RELYING ON OUTSIDE 

NURSERIES. NATIVE HABITATS WILL CONTINUE TO BE ENHANCED IN THESE LOCAL 

EFFORTS. NATURE COLLECTIVE TEAM SCIENTISTS MONITORiINDICATORS OF 

ECOSYSTEM HEALTH AND FUNCTION IN SAN ELIJO•LAGOONECOLOGICAL RESERVE, 

AND IN LANDS AND WATERS BEYOND. MONITORING ACTIVITIES INCLUDE SURVEYS 

')F THE CONDITIONS OF MULTIPLE PLANT COMMUNITIES, WILDLIFE POPULATIONS, 

WATER QUALITY, AND HYDROLOGIC CHANGES.IN THE RESERVE. DATA ARE SHARED 
v,'\,,, ',< 

WITH REGIONAL AND STATE AGENCIES FOR WATERSHED MONITORING. 

;·, ',' ,~ 

FORM 990, PART III, LINE 4B,.
0

iROGRAM SERVICE ACCOMPLISHMENTS: 

TO ENSURE THAT THESE PLACES ARE PROTECTED IN PERPETUITY. OUR GOALS ARE 

TO INCREASE THE NUMBER OF STUDENTS WHO PARTICIPATE IN OUTDOOR NATURE 

EXPERIENCES IN ESCONDIDO; TO CONNECT STUDENTS TO NATURE THROUGH 

WATERSHED LITERACY AND RELEVANCY LESSONS AND PROGRAMS; AND TO INSTILL A 

LIFE-LONG CONSERVATION ETHIC AMONG STUDENTS AND THEIR FAMILIES IN 

PARTNERING ESCONDIDO SCHOOLS. WE MENTOR HIGH SCHOOL STUDENTS WHO 

VOLUNTEER IN FAMILY PROGRAMS; DEMONSTRATING LEADERSHIP AND CONNECTIONS 

WITH YOUNGER CHILDREN. TEACHER EVALUATIONS AND A TEACHER COMMITTEE MEET 

~EGULARLY TO EVALUATE THE PROGRAM. EVALUATIONS WILL CONTINUE TO GUIDE 

PLANNING IN CONSERVATION EDUCATION. 
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. 

932211 09-06-19 

Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2019) 

40 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



Schedule O Form 990 or 990-EZ 2019 Pa e2 
Name of the organization Employer identification number 

NATURE COLLECTIVE 33-0358660 

FORM 990, PART III, LINE 4C, PROGRAM SERVICE ACCOMPLISHMENTS: 

CONSERVATION EASEMENTS ON PRIVATE AND PUBLIC PROPERTY LANDOWNERS WHO 

WANT TO MAKE SURE THEIR LAND IS PROTECTED FOR GENERATIONS CAN CONTACT 

NATURE COLLECTIVE ABOUT WAYS WE CAN HELP CONNECT CONSERVATION GOALS. 

THE NOW-SECURED HARBAUGH SEASIDE TRAILS WILL NEVER BE DEVELOPED. 

RESTORATION OF THIS COASTAL OVERLOOK WILL ENHANCE NATIVE HABITAT, 

PUBLIC TRAILS AND SCENIC VIEWS. THIS WORK WILL BE OVERSEEN BY OUR 

AWARD-WINNING HABITAT MANAGEMENT TEAM AND WILL Iml;:tTE;THE ACTIVE 

PARTICIPATION OF COMMUNITY VOLUNTEERS. AS A NONPR0Ea:>T LAND TRUST, 

NATURE COLLECTIVE COLLABORATES IN RESERVE 

DIEGO DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND OF 

FISH AND WILDLIFE. 

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B,.LINE;
10
11B: 

THE FORM 990 IS PROVIDED T0~/THE.'F'••INANCE COMMITTEE AND TREASURER, PREPARED 

BY AN OUTSIDE ACCOUNTANT JWJj'.ftREVIEWED BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR. THE BOARD 

GIVES FINAL REVIEW ANDf;AP.P~~VAL. 

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 12C: 

DIRECTORS AND STAFF ARE REQUIRED TO SIGN ANNUAL ACKNOWLEDGEMENT STATEMENTS 

DECLARING THEY HAVE RECEIVED THE CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY, THEY HAVE 

READ AND UNDERSTAND THE POLICY, AND THEY AGREE TO COMPLY WITH ALL OF ITS 

PROVISIONS. 

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 15: 

THE PROCESS FOR DETERMINING COMPENSATION FOR THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

INCLUDES AN ANNUAL REVIEW, A COMPENSATION COMPARABILITY STUDY (PAY IS 
932212 09-06-19 Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2019) 

41 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



Schedule O Form 990 or 990-EZ 2019 Pa e2 
Name of the organization Employer identification number 

NATURE COLLECTIVE 33-0358660 

:OMPARED TO SIMILAR PROFESSIONALS), AND APPROVAL BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. 

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION C, LINE 19: 

THE 990 IS PUBLISHED ON THE ORGANIZATION'S WEBSITE AND IS AVAILABLE TO 

ANYONE WHO REQUESTS A COPY. THE 990 IS ALSO PUBLISHED ON GUIDESTAR, AN 

ONLINE PLATFORM THAT DISTRIBUTES NONPROFIT INFORMATION AND TRANSPARENCY. 

THE ORGANIZATION MAKES ITS GOVERNING DOCUMENTS, CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY 

AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC UPON REQUEST. 

FORM 990, PART IX, LINE llG, OTHER FEES: 

40l(K) ADMIN FEES: 

PROGRAM SERVICE EXPENSES 1,322. 

MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL EXPENSES 320. 

FUNDRAISING EXPENSES 247. 

TOTAL EXPENSES 1,889. 

CONTRACT SERVICES: 

PROGRAM SERVICE EXPENSES, 4,747,253. 

MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL EXPENSES 14,187. 

FUNDRAISING EXPENSES 29,791. 

TOTAL EXPENSES 4,791,231. 

PAYROLL SERVICE FEES: 

PROGRAM SERVICE EXPENSES 6,009. 

MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL EXPENSES 1,452. 

FUNDRAISING EXPENSES 1,122. 

TOTAL EXPENSES 8,583. 

TOTAL OTHER FEES ON FORM 990, PART IX, LINE llG, COL A 4,801,703. 
932212 09-os-19 Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2019) 

42 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



Schedule O Form 990 or 990-EZ 2019 Pae 2 

Name of the organization Employer identification number 

NATURE COLLECTIVE 33-0358660 

FORM 990, PART XI, LINE 9, CHANGES IN NET ASSETS: 

CHANGE IN VALUE OF BENEFICIAL INTERESTS IN ASSETS 76,648. 

\;', ',,;, 
;;/';'JS;:,,, 

-------------------------------------------✓-
\ 

932212 09-06-19 Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2019) 

43 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



Form 8868 
(Rev. January 2020) 

Application for Automatic Extension of Time To File an 
Exempt Organization Return 0MB No. 1545-0047 

Department of the Treasury 
1nterna! Revenue Service 

► File a separate application for each return. 

► Go to www.irs.gov/Form8868 for the latest information. 

Electronic filing (e-file). You can electronically file Form 8868 to request a 6-month automatic extension of time to file any of the 

forms listed below with the exception of Form 8870, Information Return for Transfers Associated With Certain Personal Benefit 

Contracts, for which an extension request must be sent to the IRS in paper format (see instructions). For more details on the electronic 

filing of this form, visit www.irs.gov/e-fi/e-providers/e-fi/e-for-charities-and-non-profits. 

Automatic 6-Month Extension of Time. Only submit original (no copies needed). 

All corporations required to file an income tax return other than Form 990-T (including 1120-C filers), partnerships, REMICs, and trusts 

must use Form 7004 to request an extension of time to file income tax returns. 

Type or Name of exempt organization or other filer, see instructions. Taxpayer identification number (TIN) 

print 
NATURE COLLECTIVE 33-0358660 

File by the 
Number, street, and room or suite no. If a P.O. box, see instructions. due date for 

filing your 777 so HIGHWAY 101, NO. 112 
return. See .. 
instructions. City, town or post office, state, and ZIP code. For a foreign address, see instructions. 

SOLANA BEACH, CA 92075 . 
Enter the Return Code for the return that this application is for (file a separate application for each return) ··············· .................................... IO 111 . 
Application Return Application Return 

Is For Code Is For .· ' Code 

Form 990 or Form 990-EZ 01 Form 990-"rt {corporation) 07 

Form 990-BL 02 Form.1041-A'.> ... -· (. 08 

Form 4720 (individual) 03 Form 4720 (oth;r than individual) 09 

Form 990-PF 04 Form5227 f 10 

Form 990-T (sec. 401 (a) or 408(a) trust) 05 Form 6089 11 

i=orm 990-T /trust other than above) 06 Form 8870 12 
<• \ .. THE ORGANIZATI(:)N < 

• Thebooksareinthecareof ► 777 SO HIGHWAY 101; NO. 112 - SOLANA BEACH, CA 92075 
Telephone No. ► ( 7 6 0 ) 4 3 6 - 3 9 4 4 Fax No. ► 

• If the organization does not have an office or place qfJiusiness in the United States, check this box ................................................... ► 

• If this is for a Group Return, enter the organizatiof, foiird_igif(,roup Exemption Number (GEN) ____ . If this is for the whole group, check this 

box ► D . If it is for part of the group, check.this box: ► D and attach a list with the names and TINs of all members the extension is for. 

I request an automatic 6-month extension of time until NOVEMBER 16, 2020 , to file the exempt organization return for 

the organization named above. The extension-is for the organization's return for: 

► [X] calendar year 2 0 19 or 
► tax year beginning _____________ , and ending _____________ _ 

2 If the tax year entered in line 1 is for less than 12 months, check reason: Initial return Fin al return 

Change in accounting period 

3a If this application is for Forms 990-BL, 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter the tentative tax, less 

anv nonrefundable credits. See instructions. 3a $ 
b If this application is for Forms 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter any refundable credits and 

estimated tax oavments made. Include anv orior vear overoavment allowed as a credit. 3b $ 
C Balance due. Subtract line 3b from line 3a. Include your payment with this form, if required, by 

usino EFTPS (Electronic Federal Tax Pavment Svsteml. See instructions. 3c $ 

0. 

0. 

o. 
Caution: If you are going to make an electronic funds withdrawal (direct debit) with this Form 8868, see Form 8453-EO and Form 8879-EO for payment 
instructions. 

LHA For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions. Form 8868 (Rev. 1-2020) 

923841 12-30-19 

44 
13261103 151396 NATURECOLLECTIV 2019.04030 NATURE COLLECTIVE NATURECl 



California Secretary of State 
Electronic Certified Copy 

I, ALEX PADILLA, Secretary of State of the State of California, 
hereby certify that the attached transcript of 2 pages is a full, true 
and correct copy of the original record in the custody of the 
California Secretary of State's office. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I execute 
this certificate and affix the Great 
Seal of the State of California on 
this day of July 17, 2020 

ALEX PADILLA 
Secretary of State 

Verification Number: KWBXBVK 
Entity (File) Number: C1557324 

To verify the issuance of this Certificate, use the Verification Number above 
with the Secretary of State Electronic Verification Search available at 
bizfile.sos. ca.gov 



California Secretary of State 
Electronic Filing Secretary of State 

State of Californi&< 
I 

Corporation - Statement of Information 

Entity Name: NATURE COLLECTIVE 

Entity (File) Number: 

File Date: 

Entity Type: 

Jurisdiction: 

Document ID: 

Detailed Filing Information 

1. Entity Name: 

2. Business Addresses: 

a. Street Address of Principal 
Office in California: 

b. Mailing Address: 

3. Officers: 

a. Chief Executive Officer: 

b. Secretary: 

C1557324 

07/15/2020 

Corporation 

CALIFORNIA 

GH03184 

NATURE COLLECTIVE 

777 S. Highway 101 Suite 112 
Solana Beach, California 92075 
United States of America 

PO Box 230634 
Encinitas, California 92023 
United States of America 

Doug Gibson 
PO Box 230634 
Encinitas, California 92023 
United States of America 

Susan Hedrick 
PO Box 230634 
Encinitas, California 92023 
United States of America 

Use bizfile.sos.ca.gov for online filings, searches, business records, and resources. 

"Q" 
00 ...... 
C"') 
0 
I 
(9 

0 

\ 



California Secretary of State 
Electronic Filing 

Officers (Cont'd): 

c. Chief Financial Officer: 

4. Agent for Service of Process: 

Doug Gibson 
PO Box 230634 
Encinitas, California 92023 
United States of America 

Kevin Johnson 
138 Juniper Ave. 
Carlsbad, California 92008 
United States of America 

By signing this document, I certify that the information is true and correct and that I am authorized by 
California law to sign. 

Electronic Signature: Jennifer Bright 

Use bizfi/e.sos.ca.gov for online filings, searches, business records, and resources. 

~ 
> 
CX) 

>< co 

~ 
L.: 
Q.) 
..c 
E 
::J 
z 
C 
0 ..... 
co 
(.) 

t+= ·c 
Q.) 

> 
Q.) ..... 
co 
(.) 

~ 
t 
Q.) 
() 

"""" CX) 
....... 
('t") 
0 
I 
(9 

0 
..... 
C 
Q.) 

E 
::J 
(.) 
0 
0 

>, 
c.. 
0 
0 
-0 
Q) 

<+= 
t 
Q) 
0 
Q) 

£ 
c 
·;::: 
Q) 
> 
.8 
> 
0 
CJ) 

cci 
0 
ui 
0 
If) 

~ 
<+= 
.!::! 
..0 
Q) 
If) 

:::J 



Form W-9 
(Rev. October 2018) 
Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service 

Request for Taxpayer 
Identification Number and Certification 

Give Form to the 
requester. Do not 
send to the IRS. 

► Go to www.irs.gov/FormW9 for instructions and the latest information. 
1 Name (as shown on your income tax return). Narne is required on this line; do not leave this line blank. 

Nature Collective 
2 Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above 

C') 
QJ 3 Check appropriate box for federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only one of the 4 Exemptions (codes apply only to 

certain entities, not individuals; see 
instructions on page 3): 

g> following seven boxes. 
Q. 

§ D Individual/sole proprietor or 0 C Corporation D S Corporation D Partnership D Trust/estate 

Qi ~ single-member LLC Exempt payee code (if any) ___ _ 
C. 0 
~ 15 D Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=Partnership) ► ___ _ 
o 2 Note: Check the appropriate box in the line above for the tax classification of the single-member owner. Do not check 
E ti LLC if the LLC is classified as a single-member LLC that is disregarded from the owner unless the owner of the LLC is 

Exemption from FATCA reporting 

code (if any) ·c .E another LLC that is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Otherwise, a single-member LLC that 
D.. ~ is disregarded from the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax classification of its owner. 

·0 □ Other (see instructions) ► (Applies to accounts maintained outside the U.S.) 1 f-'5=A=d.,..d.,..re_s_s_(~nu_m_b_e_r_, s-t-re-e-t,-a-nd..,..-a-pt-. -o-r s-u-,-it_e_n_o.,.._)"""S-ee-in-st-ru_c_f,-10-ns-.-------------,--=R-eq_u_e_s.,..te"""'r',-s_n_a_m_e~a-n...,.d-a...,.dd_r_e-ss-(:-o-p7tio_n_a71) _____ _ 

Q) 

~ PO Box 230634 
6 City, state, and ZIP code 

Encinitas, CA 92023 
7 List account number(s) here (optional) 

Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) 
Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to avoid 
backup withholding. For individuals, this Is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for a 
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the instructions for Part I, later. For other 
entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a 
TIN, later. 

I Social security number 

[II] -[D -I I I I I 
or 

Note: If the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1. Also see What Name and 
Number To Give the Requester for guidelines on whose number to enter. 

I Employer identification number 

33 -0358660 

Certification 
Under penalties of perjury, I certify that: 

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and 
2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: {a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue 

Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am 
no longer subject to backup withholding; and 

3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and 

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct. 

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because 
you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid, 
acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments 
other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions for Part 11, later. 

Sign 
Here 

Signature of 
U.S. person ► 

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise 
noted. 

Future developments. For the latest information about developments 
related to Form W-9 and its instructions, such as legislation enacted 
after they were published, go to www.irs.gov/FormW9. 

Purpose of Form 
An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an 
information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer 
identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number 
(SSN), individual taxpayer identification number {ITIN), adoption 
'axpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number 
_EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other 
amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information 
returns include, but are not limited to, the following. 

• Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid) 

Cat. No. 10231X 

Date ► 

• Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual 
funds) 

• Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross 
proceeds) 

• Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other 
transactions by brokers) 

• Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions) 

• Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions) 

• Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest), 
1098-T (tuition) 

• Form 1099-C (canceled debt) 

• Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property) 

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident 
alien), to provide your correct TIN. 

If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might 
be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding, 
later. 

Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018) 





City of Solana Beach 
Community Grant Program 

Request for Financial Assistance 
FY 2021-22 APPLICATION 

All Applications MUST BE RECEIVED by 5:00 p.m. Tuesday, May 25, 2021. 
Please Print Clearly or Type 

All requests will be determined by the following criteria: 

Name of Organization: /\lo,-fh (15Q'5f Ne, (,--fu/ 11,., fq fre 
Mailing Address: 9 &" 7 l-o,* q 5 Jct,,_ fq J•.J i /.e_ D 

__ Zip V.070 City 5o 1.--,+;v A 736AC 1J 

Contact Person: ']3 /LL )(E!fLl/1/ 
Daytime Phone: 'ifS:8' -Lj ff/ - ;;_;.si;- X ll..1_ 

Evening Phone: ___ S_/f-_M_t_· __ ~--~--------------
Email address: "B ,·j) e! ;10 / fh cou 5 f r-c fJ,, c5,,. 51: 

r 7T 
1. W-9 must be attached / 

Summary of organization's budget must be attached ✓ 
Proposed program budget must be attached ✓ 
Financial and Tax Statements (see Application Guidelines) must be attached 

2. A copy of the California Franchise Tax Board Entity Status Letter must be attached, 
showing exemption under Section 23701d or Internal Revenue Code section ~ 
501(c)(3) 

3. Has your organization received financial assistance from the City before? 

Yes ~ No □ J 
If yes, what activities and which fiscal year? __ J_e_e_Q..;;_/f_«_c_~_<, _______ _ 

4. Amount requested for FY 2021-22 $ __ 6-+-_a_o_O __________ _ 

5. Proposed Total Program Costs: $ __ 2 __ 8'_7_0 __ 0_ 6_0 _________ _ 
(Includes all estimated costs to conduct proposed activity/program.) 

6. Title of Proposed Program/Service: __ '-l_o_r_h_j_.,,_11 _i v_-e_,_s_a_j.,,_'f_S_t_fi_S_O_r) ___ _ 
I 

7. Grant funds must be used for services or materials directly associated to proposed 
activity. Please describe how grant funds will be used: 

. otrh Cou.Ji '( hcts bt-('\ ..ser1rit, s·c:,Jq.,,_"{Bt<fc'1 res;J,, .. )) .{~., ~/ 
ytqT.S- /1((.Jl-,:,,,,fydo 1,vfc.edd 1,v-'«l1 l-y of ),'fe h-1/'C>vyA C?rf,'o.J-,c 

"· <-.f-.<,l-c11"t1t f1.-cctt-r1_ h'"'rw .d 1
o adv. :/-c., he -t'cc-,,..v/Vltc- v,/..Ji')t 

f 5, . b r,V;Vl /2//t)lt1cSSfo /o{c( r-c~fci~rc-,i./5 a. .. d1)'k~ S, V-ralsu 
vrc\,,'15( 5v )1c. .e-ec, (),; ,...'(, l-0 ""d Cl-t (A..I, W{ a..r{ C( v~J,i) 

c,:,J ,-A f~.p /,t/h~-<}.i p '{"o(q,rq '.be~ch co,.,.rvie1c,'<i/7 ti.r,c{ u.rh:rf 1 ccrlj/, 



8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

(Attach extra sheet, if necessary.) 

Estimated number of S.B. residents to be served by proposed program: 1 0° 6 

Anticipated Program Objectives or Accomplishments: 

How will the organization acknowledge the City's financial contribution to the 
community/ beneficiaries of the proposed activity? 

kl t<.ct',1c,..,/<cf. { -

Will there be any matching funds or other grants that would be applied to this 
program or service? If awarded this grant, will that enable other funding sources? 

Tl--t'('. ...,:ti jl{_of he ff;'C1'iic J,Mr,.)-c,~;.,_I t..,{J.s). '1~t o--.,,,r~"'j}-ef 11.-\C/-Je'S 

c;v,<r/),vt-<>,t( 5 .. .,rrc-eJ ~..,,_ af-,c-rS , c~/ 7"rqf,•c-15 

Will volunteers be used for the proposed program or service and, if so, will they 
reduce expenses? 

<5 ,vxln,,.q1'-cl 00 va/v*}-<'-e/ v1sh-1r.S l..,c../~ 0 h.._ I 

v 

14. If the proposed program or service is only awarded partial funding, will it still move 
forward? Will the program or service be scaled back and/or is there a threshold at 
which it will not move forward? 

, ..., 7 / f ,,..,A a../ { +: r--.,, c::.: r i"-= ,-.II q II-,< ~ '-' ~ q 1,, \. t:, J c' <. 'l tJ ·<' J ,/ / f }{,:e if 
,t1 k,'-1 'h<- f_,._ 1/1 - =e ct'f 1/1 re-... f,';;q,,,_ ocP '4<-1 f 

q_ ,'d, _,;-fl,, Y<'- C h ~} {J <-v-f Ca',, h .,:/ d cJ,t o,- I q J,. i /I·),_/ f-= CJ/c;v• ( 

S'uvtc-e5 
1t~ 5,,,,( 9.1'-'( 'Be"i" ch, J,..,,f ~<{ ✓ {' 5u1viv-<d 7cov/D/j c,,J 

veir{'l~}o f'L . .---j•ve /1t o!!qfq i,fc,£ 



Acknowledgment of Responsibility: 
Authorized Signature assumes all responsibility for developing and implementing 
proposed activities or events in this application, including public acknowledgment of the 
City's financial contribution. Authorized signature will comply with all accounting and 
budget procedures outlined by the City. Authorized signature and accompanying group 
will hold harmless the City of Solana Beach from all losses, claims, accidents and 
problems associated, directly or indirectly with the development and implementation of 
proposed activities or events. 

Authorized Signature of Organization Date 

ALL INFORMATION REQUESTED ON THIS APPLICATION MUST BE COMPLETED AS A CONDITION FOR BEING 
CONSIDERED FOR PUBLIC FUNDS BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF SOLANA BEACH. 



QUESTION 3 

Financial Assistance has been received from the City of 
Solana Beach in the following years for the project listed 
below: 

• 2004-Educational Outreach Program, "Behind the Mask" 

• 2005-Planning costs for Cedros Crossing 

• 2006-Educational Outreach Program, "Behind the Mask" 

• 2008-Education Outreach program, "Behind the Mask" 

• 2010-Educational Play about Solana Beach 

• 2011-Educational Outreach Program, "Behind the Mask" 

• 2012-Education outreach program "Anti-Bullying" 

• 2013-Theatre School Holocaust Production, "Anne Frank" 

• 2014-Theatre School Literacy Project, "Seussical" 

• 2015-Theatre School Literacy Project, "Aladdin Jr." 

• 2016-Theatre School Literacy Project, "Peter and the Starcatcher" 

• 2017-Theatre School, "The Secret Garden" 

• 2018-Theatre School, "She Kills Monsters" 

• 2019-Theatre School, "Comedy of Errors" and "Three Muskateers" 

• 2020-Theatre School, "The Tempest" and "The Neverending Story" 

• 2020-Small Business COVID Relief Grant 



MORJHCOASI 

UNRESTRICTED OPERATING FUND 

SUPPORT AND REVENUE 

Contributed Revenue 

Ticket Revenue - Mainstage 

Ticket Revenue - Variety 

Theatre School Revenue 

Other Revenue 

Patron Service Revenue 

Special Events Revenue 

Total Supe_ort & Revenue 

EXPENSES 

Personnel - Adm in 

Personnel - Artistic 

Personnel - Taxes & Benefits 

Cost of Tix & CC Donations 

General & Ad min Expenses 

Development Expenses 

Marketing Expenses 

Production Expenses 

Theatre School Productions 

Variety Night Expenses 

Total Expenses 

Net 

bud 

SEP 

2020 

75,724 

29,411 

1,250 

11,860 

8,258 

4,959 

0 

131,462 

AS OF 10.1.18 

58,905 

19,549 

14,736 

11,906 

32,954 

1,350 

50,Q78 

42,490 

4,660 

0 

236,627 

{105,165) 

bud 

OCT 

2020 

250,982 

23,883 

0 

12,090 

1,148 

483 

0 

288,586 

as af lJ.1.lS 

61,843 

17,242 

14,830 

7,786 

22,254 

20,600 

11,128 

11,590 

1,000 

4,170 

172,443 

116,144 

bud 

NOV 

2020 

43,850 

14,274 

6,800 

0 

1,332 

1,050 

0 

67,306 

73,033 

9,014 

15,273 

2,339 

27,754 

2,350 

13,078 

400 

1,000 

0 

144,240 

(76,934) 

NORTH COAST REPERTORY THEATRE - OPERATING BUDGET - BOARD APPROVED 

SEASON 39 - FISCAL YEAR 2020-21 

bud 

DEC 

2020 

91,350 

0 

119,140 

4,000 

5,769 

5,357 

0 

225,616 

73,593 

24,402 

20,251 

3,948 

26,654 

600 

17,878 

400 

5,392 

72,833 

bud 

JAN 

2021 

48,850 

122,735 

0 

7,260 

6,857 

6,414 

0 

192,116 

74,538 

45,558 

27,525 

15,726 

23,726 

1,350 

21,778 

16,148 

1,000 

4,185 

bud 

FEB 

2021 

94,350 

46,183 

14,275 

7,260 

3,710 

3,609 

0 

169,386 

74,538 

44,829 

24,901 

8,530 

22,526 

1,600 

16,628 

16,580 

7,100 

10,533 

bud 

MAR 

2021 

145,850 

120,996 

14,850 

12,050 

7,786 

7,218 

0 

308,750 

73,593 

33,957 

22,070 

17,428 

22,726 

350 

19,128 

16,480 

1,000 

(1,980) 

bud 

APR 

2021 

167,350 

65,036 

4,375 

7,260 

5,010 

3,997 

0 

253,027 

74,538 

33,886 

21,230 

12,059 

22,501 

1,600 

22,478 

11,840 

4,414 

2,163 

bud 

MAY 

2021 

66,350 

117,064 

0 

10,650 

7,452 

6,117 

0 

207,633 

73,593 

34,551 

21,204 

15,040 

23,801 

90,281 

14,253 

400 

1,000 

0 

bud 

JUN 

2021 

146,350 

122,400 

33,775 

0 

9,643 

8,785 

0 

320,953 

88,593 

29,365 

22,323 

17,802 

23,361 

350 

21,428 

5,500 

0 

12,618 

bud 

JUL 

2021 

41,350 

73,745 

0 

90,000 

4,220 

4,104 

0 

213,419 

88,593 

61,123 

25,039 

12,077 

23,661 

5,350 

13,003 

31,172 

2,925 

1,980 

245,950 231,533 227,764 I 204,751 206,709 274,123 221,340 264,922 

(20,334) (39,417) {58,378)1 103,999 46,318 (66,490) 99,613 (51,503) 

bud 

AUG 

2021 

33,850 

111,955 

4,375 

3,450 

8,635 

6,199 

0 

168,464 

79,530 

43,335 

23,164 

13,716 

24,560 

350 

28,321 

0 

500 

2,162 

215,637 

(47,172) 

bud 

TOTAL 

FY 20-21 

1,206,206 

847,682 

198,840 

165,880 

69,820 

58,292 

0 

2,5~6,7191 

894,886 

396,811 

252,546 

138,356 

296,477 

126,131 

249,179 

153,000 

29,991 

108,663 

2,646,0391 

(99,320)1 



NORTHCOISJ NORTH COAST REPERTORY THEATRE - OPERATING BUDGET- BOARD APPROVED 

SEASON 39 - FISCAL YEAR 2020-21 

bud bud bud bud bud bud bud bud bud bud bud bud bud 

SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG TOTAL 

2020 2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 FY20-21 

accrual based budget - see separate cash flow statement 

CAP GRANT INCOME 0 0 0 0 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,000 

ITEX TRADE$ IN 0 0 0 0 0 5,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,000 

RESTRICTED INC 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

CAP EQUIP EXPENSE 0 0 0 0 (10,000) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (10,000) 

ITEX TRADE$ OUT 0 0 0 0 0 (S,000) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (5,000) 

CONTINGENCY 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (8,000) (8,000) 

DEPRECIATION 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (12,000) (12,000) 

RESTRICTED EXPS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

ADJUSTED NET (105,165) 116,144 (76,934) (20,334) (39,417) (58,378) 103,999 46,318 (66,490) 99,613 (51,503) (67,172) I (119,320)1 

NOTE: Although our original Budget above for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 anticipated a loss/ our current actuals and projections 

as of May 18/ 2021 show an anticipated surplus of $300/000 



-;39 

SEASON 40 

NORTH COAST 

539 Actuals: Sep - Apr 

539 Projections: May -Aug 

Ticket Revenue - Mainstage 

Ticket Revenue - Variety 

Theatre School Revenue 

Other Revenue 

Patron Service Revenue 

Total Support & Revenue 

Personnel - Taxes & Benefits 

Cost ofTix & CC Donations 

General & Adm in Expenses 

Marketing Expenses 

Production Expenses 

Theatre School Productions 

Variety Night Expenses & Spec Proj 

PROJECT BUDGET 

as of 5/18/21 

OPERATING FUND & OTHER FUNDS 

Preliminary Budget Draft for FY 2021-22 (S40} vs. 

Current Actuals/Projections for FY 2020-21 (S39} 

DRAFT PRELIM 

BUDGET 

21-22 

S40 

950,000 

1,250,000 

400,000 

180,000 

85,000 

70,000 

2,935,000 

950,000 

450,000 

220,000 

150,000 

300,000 

125,000 

300,000 

170,000 

35,000 

170,000 

2,870,000 

CURRENT 

ACT/PROJC 

20-21 

S 39 

1,806,262 

255,685 

13,158 

124,148 

13,534 

1,998 

2,214,784 

818,072 

107,577 

173,055 

71,852 

262,836 

121,898 

157,191 

148,300 

25,412 

34,719 

1,920,912 

VAR 

ANNUAL 

S40 vs. S39 



s 

SEASON 40 

NORTH COAST 

S39 Actuals: Sep - Apr 

S39 Projections: May- Aug 

NON OPERATING AND RESTRICTED FUNDS 

SUPPORT AND REVENUE 

Capital Grant Income 

ltex Trade $ in 

Restricted Income - Foundation Account 

Restricted Income - Large Gifts Cash Resrv. 

Restricted Income - New Venue 

Total Support & Revenue {NON OPERATING) 

EXPENSES 

Capital Grant Expense 

ltex Trade $ out 

Restricted Expenses - New Venue 

Depreciation Expense 

Contingency 

I Total Expenses (NON-OPERATING) 

INETCHANGE-OTHERFUNDS 

INET CHANGE-ALL FUNDS 

accrual based budget 

as of 5/18/21 

OPERATING FUND & OTHER FUNDS 

Preliminary Budget Draft for FY 2021-22 {S40) vs. 

Current Actuals/Projections for FY 2020-21 {S39) 

DRAFT PRELIM 

BUDGET 

21-22 

S 40 

12,000 

5,000 

5,000 

0 

0 

22,000 I 

(12,000) 

(5,000) 

(20,000) 

(15,000) 

(10,000) 

(62,000)1 

{40,000)1 

25,000 I 

CURRENT 

ACT/PROJC 

20-21 

S 39 

194,545 

5,000 

57,564 

0 

0 

257,1081 

(195,557) 

(5,000) 

(20,000} 

(12,000) 

(18,000) 

(250,557)1 

6,5521 

300,4251 

VAR 

ANNUAL 

S40 vs. S39 

(182,545) 

0 

(52,564) 

0 

0 

(235,109)1 

183,557 

(O) 

0 

(3,000) 

8,000 

188,5571 

{46,552)1 

{275,427)1 s 



North Coast Repertory Theatre, 
A Non-Profit Corporation 

Financial Statements 
and 

Independent Auditor's Report 

For the Year Ended August 31, 2020 



Table of Contents 

Independent Auditor's Report .......................................................................................... 1-2 

Financial Statements: 

Statement of Financial Position ............................................................................... 3 

Statement of Activities and Change in Net Assets ...................................... .4 

Statement of Cash Flows ......................................................................................... 5 

Statement of Functional Expenses ........................................................................... 6 

Notes to the Financial Statements .................................................................................. 7-14 



5l. Jvl Owens, CP.Jl 
.'A. Trofessiona[ Coryoration 

9830 :N. :Magno[ia .'Ave., #188 Santee, C.Jl 92071 '.Phone & :fax (619)698-2401 

Board of Directors 
North Coast Repertory Theatre 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Dear Members of the Board: 

Report on the Financial Statements 

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of North Coast Repertory Theatre, which comprise 
the statement of financial position as of August 31, 2020, and the related statement of activities and change 
in net assets, cash flows and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
.ccordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 

design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my 
audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in the United States of America. Those 
standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statement, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. Accordingly, I express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting principles used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit 
opinion. 

-1-



Opinion 

In my opinion, the financial statements refe1Ted to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of North Coast Repertory Theatre as of August 31, 2020, and the results of its activities 
and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in 
the United States of America. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

I have previously audited North Coast Repertory Theatre's August 3 1, 2019 financial statements and I 
expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements in my report dated January 1, 2020. In my 
opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended August 31, 
2019, consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it ~has been 
derived. 

San Diego, California 
December 16, 2020 

-2-

Afvt o~c.:PA 
A M Owens, CPA 

A Professional Corporation 



North Coast Repertory Theatre, 
A Non-Profit Corporation 

Statement of Financial Position 
August 31, 2020 

With Comparative Totals as of August 31, 2019 

CURRENT AS SETS 
Cash 

- without donor restrictions 
- with donor restrictions 

Investments 
- without donor restrictions 
- with donor restrictions 

Receivables 
- without donor restrictions 

Prepaid expenses 
Prepaid production costs 
Deposits 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

(Note 2) 

Total Assets 

ASSETS 

$ 

$ 

669,877 
41,216 

333,180 
50,808 

7,123 
93,577 

105,423 
7,682 

1,308,886 

110,526 

1,419,412 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable, trade 
Accrued wages and expense 
Deferred revenue (Note 3) 
Accrued vacation payable 

Total Cun-ent Liabilities 

LONG-TERM DEBT 

NET EQUITY (DEFICIT) 
Net assets with donor restrictions 
Net assets without donor restrictions 

Total Net (Equity) 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 

$ 

$ 

33,071 
1,377 

853,710 
52,223 

940,381 

0 

92,024 
387,007 

479,031 

1,419,412 

See the Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements. 
-3-

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2019 

438,548 
44,313 

297,769 
49,640 

23,957 
51,216 

205,648 
7,682 

1,118,773 

102,146 

1,220,919 

21,152 
4,414 

842,447 
41,458 

909.471 

0 

93,953 
217,495 

311,448 

1,220,919 



North Coast Repertory Theatre, 
A Non-Profit Corporation 

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 
For the Year Ended August 31, 2020 

With Comparative Totals as of August 31, 2019 

Without With 
Donor Donor 

Restrictions Restrictions 
SUPPORT AND REVENUE 

Public Support: 

Admissions $ 972,223 $ 0 $ 
Theatre school 115,619 0 
Concessions and other support 35,892 0 
Contributions (Note 11) 1,101,575 283,876 
Investment income 13,904 1,172 

2,239,213 285,048 

Net Assets Released From Restrictions 286,977 ( 286,977 ) 

Total Support & Revenue 2,526,190 ( 1,929 ) 

EXPENDITURES 
Production costs 1,979,841 0 
General and administrative 154,198 0 
Fund raising 222,639 0 

Total Expenditures 2,356,678 0 

Change in net assets 169,512 ( 1,929 ) 

Net Assets (Deficit), Begin of Year 217,495 93,953 

Net Assets (Deficit), End of Year $ 387,007 $ 92,024 $ 

2020 

Combined 

Totals 

972,223 

115,619 

35,892 

1,385,451 

15,076 

2,524,261 

0 

2,524,261 

1,979,841 
154,198 
222,639 

2,356,678 

167,583 

311,448 

479,031 

See the Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements. 
-4-

2019 

Combined 

Totals 

$ 1,736,802 

176,225 

46,938 
1,028,672 

3,483 

2,992,120 

0 

2,992,120 

2 -os 08~-, ,:, , ,, \ 
141,321',~j 
287,813 

2,934,223 

57,897 

253,55 I 

$ 311,448 



North Coast Repertory Theatre, 
A Non-Profit Corporation 
Statement of Cash Flows 

For the Year Ended August 31, 2020 
With Comparative Totals as of August 31, 2019 

2020 2019 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERA TING ACTIVITIES 

Change in Net Assets $ 167,583 $ 57,897 

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to 

net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 3,771 11,883 
(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets: 

Receivables 16,834 ( 5,833 ) 
Prepaid expenses ( 42,361 ) ( 19,110) 
Prepaid production costs 100,225 ( 16,564 ) 
Deposits 0 274 

Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 11,919 2,924 
Accrued wages ( 3,037 ) 1,247 
Deferred Revenue 11,263 109,213 
Accrued vacation 10,765 6,522 

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY 

OPERA TING ACTIVITIES 276,962 148,453 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchases of property and equipment ( 12,151 ) 0 

Investments purchased ( 1,169 ) 0 

NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES ( 13,320 ) 0 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Payments on debt 0 0 

NET CASH USED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 0 0 

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 263,642 148,453 

BEGINNING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 780,631 632,178 

ENDING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 1,044,273 $ 780,631 

Interest Paid $ 188 $ 129 

Taxes Paid $ 0 $ 0 

See the Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements. 
-5-



Salaries 

Payroll Taxes 

Employee Benefits 

Total Payroll Expenses 

Outside Contractors 

Volunteer Hours Expense 

Professional Services 

Occupancy 

Utilities 

Janitorial 
Supplies/Misc. 
Concession Supplies 

Communications 
Postage and Shipping 
Printing and Copying 
Travel and Meals 

North Coast Repertory Theatre, 
A Non-Profit Corporation 

Statement of Functional Expenses 
For the Year Ended August 31, 2020 

Production General Fund-
Costs Admin. Raising 

$ 877,868 $ 80,566 $ 132,123 
84,329 7,739 12,692 

154,506 14,180 23,253 

1,116,703 102,485 168,068 

41,933 1,482 588 
31,518 0 0 

221 7,580 0 
140,486 7,805 7,805 

18,106 2,130 1,065 
2,814 156 156 

10,882 9,794 1,028 
11,870 0 0 
4,513 564 564 
3,400 1,133 6,788 

37,635 11,889 13,592 
73,979 1,402 3,322 

Credit Card Processing/Bank Fees 46,574 208 0 

Insurance 11,498 1,437 1,437 

Membership Dues 5,506 0 0 

Interest 0 1,842 0 

Repairs and Maintenance 9,431 0 0 

Advertising and Marketing 151,741 0 236 

Royalties 82,779 0 0 

Special Events 0 0 17,990 

Mainstage Events 147,370 0 0 

Theatre School 27,111 0 0 

Taxes/Licenses 0 4,291 0 

Total Expenses 

Before Depreciation 1,976,070 154,198 222,639 

Depreciation 3,771 0 0 

Total Expenses $ 1,979,841 $ 154,198 $ 222,639 

2020 

Total 

$ 1,090,557 

104,760 

191,939 

1,387,256 

44,003 
31,518 

7,801 

156,096 

21,301 
3,126 

21,704 
11,870 
5,641 

11,321 
63,116 

78,703 

46,782 
14,372 

5,506 
1,842 
9,431 

151,977 

82,779 

17,990 
147,370 
27,111 

4,291 

2,352,907 

3,771 

$ 2,356,678 

See the Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements. 
-6-

2019 

Total 

$ 1,226,329 

131,015 

208,538 

1,565,882 

64,953 
47,148 

8,021 
152,246 

29,054 

5,225 
30,076 
15,671 
4,971 

18,431 
/"~'•,,, 

82,44( ) 
93 897~#,/ 

' 
58,677 
17,018 

6,627 
129 

4,836 

220,869 

137,577 

78,229 

239,429 
36,425 

4,501 

2,922,340 

11,883 

$ 2,934,223 

,{'"/'°'-,-, 

t 
'l-+~ 



North Coast Repertory Theatre, 
A Non-Profit Corporation 

Notes to Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended August 31, 2020 

Note I - Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies 

General 

North Coast Repertory Theatre, a Non-Profit Corporation (the Theatre) is a non-profit 
organization incorporated in California in 1982. Its stated purpose is to educate the public in an 
appreciation of the theatre arts through stage productions of consistent quality, to be recognized 
as the premier professional regional live theatre in San Diego North Coastal County, to provide 
educational services for audiences of all ages, focusing on the youth if the community and to 
provide an opportunity for actors and theatre professionals to develop their artistic skills through 
participation in the Theatre's productions. 

Basis of Accounting 

The financial statements of the Theatre have been prepared on the accrual basis in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America. 

Basis of Presentation 

The Theatre is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities 
according to two classes of net assets: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with 
donor restrictions. 

The Theatre's program expenses are shown as production costs in the accompanying statements 
of activities. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles includes the use of estimates that affect the financial statements. Accordingly, actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

Contributions 

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net assets with 
donor restrictions, depending on the existence or nature of any donor restrictions. Net assets 
with donor restrictions are reported in Note 4. 

All donor-restricted contributions are reported as net assets with donor restrictions. When a 
restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is 
accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor 
restrictions and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. 

-7-



North Coast Repert01y Theatre, 
A Non-Profit Corporation 

Notes to Financial Statements 
( continued) 

For the Year Ended August 31, 2020 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Promises to Give 

Unconditional promises to give are recognized as contribution revenue in the period received 
and as assets, decreases of liabilities, or expenses depending on the form of the benefits 
received. Promises to give are recorded at net realizable value if expected to be collected in one 
year and at fair value if expected to be collected in more than one year. Conditional promises to 
give are recognized when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met. 

Property and Equipment 

Depreciation of buildings and equipment is provided over the estimated useful lives of the 
respective assets using the straight-line method. 

Acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of $500 are capitalized. Donated equipment 
is recorded at fair market value at the date of the donation. Purchased equipment is recorded at 
cost. 

Ticket Sales 

Ticket sales received prior to the fiscal year to which they apply are not recognized as revenues 
until the year earned. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents include time deposits, certificates 
of deposit and all highly liquid debt instruments with original maturities of three months or less. 

Income Tax Status 

The Theatre is classified as a Section 50l(c) (3) Organization under the Federal Internal 
Revenue Code and Section 13.2210 (e) of the State Revenue and Taxation Code. As a result, it 
has been determined to be exempt from federal income and state franchise taxes. Tax years 
2016-2018 are open to examination by taxing authorities. 

Functional Allocation of Expenses 

The costs of providing the various programs and activities have been summarized on a 
functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated 
among the programs and supporting services benefited. 

-8-



North Coast Repertory Theatre, 
A Non-Profit Corporation 

Notes to Financial Statements 
( continued) 

For the Year Ended August 31, 2020 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Donated Services 

Donated services valued at $31,518 are stated as revenue and as an offsetting expense to give 
accounting recognition to this significant resource of the Theatre. Such donated time is valued 
at $12.00 per hour. 

Investments 

Investments with readily determined market value are carried at market value and unrealized 
gains and losses are treated as current items in the year in which they occur. Investments without 
readily determined market values are carried at cost. 

The F ASB issued authoritative guidance relating to fair value measurements which establishes 
a common definition for fair value to be applied to U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles requiring use of fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and 
expands disclosures about such fair value measurements. 

The Theatre measures fair value at the price that would be received upon sale of an asset or paid 
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market and participants at the measure 
date. The guidance establishes a hierarchy for ranking the quality and reliability of the 
information used to determine fair values. 

A summary of the fair value hierarchy under the authoritative guidance is described in Note 5. 

Comparative Totals for August 31, 2019 

The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total 
but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a 
presentation in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such 
information should be read in conjunction with the Theatre's financial statements for the year 
ended August 31, 2019, from which the summarized information was derived. 

Note 2 - Property and Equipment 

The following is a summary of property and equipment less accumulated depreciation and 
amortization at August 31, 2020: 

Construction in progress 
Leasehold improvements 
Furniture and equipment 

Accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Property and Equipment - Net 

-9-

$ 

$ 

( 

2020 
47,194 

161,576 
319,000 

527,770 
417,244 ) 

110,526 



Note 3 -Deferred Revenue 

North Coast Repertory Theatre, 
A Non-Profit Corporation 

Notes to Financial Statements 
( continued) 

For the Year Ended August 31, 2020 

The Theatre had received $853,710 at August 31, 2020, on advance ticket sales for the next 
theater season. As each production is presented, the portion of the advance sales collections that 
pertains to that production will be recognized as revenue. In the event any of the scheduled 
productions for the season are not presented, the advance ticket collections for that production 
will be available for refund to the ticket holders. 

Note 4 -Net Assets with Donor Restrictions 

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes as of August 31, 
2020: 

Purpose of Restricted Donations 
Capital Campaign 
Endowment Funds 

Total 

Note 5 -Endowment Funds 

$ 

$ 

41,216 
50,808 

92,024 

Endowment funds were $50,808 as of August 31, 2020. These funds are held in an agency 
endowment fund at The Jewish Community Foundation (JCF). 

No later than April 1st of year commencing after the fair market value of the fund reached the 
amount of $50,000, JCF shall distribute to the Theatre an amount equal to the JCF payout rate 
multiplied by the fair market value of the fund (the "available amount"). The term "fair market 
value of the fund" shall mean the value of all cash and securities held by the fund, including all 
earnings and unrealized appreciation thereon, as determined by JCF. The tern1 "JCF payout 
rate" shall mean the percentage rate determined by the Board of Directors of JCF pursuant to 
California law with respect to distributions from endowment funds. 

JCF shall have all powers necessary to carry out the purposes of the fund, including, but not 
limited to, the power to retain, invest and reinvest the fund in any manner consistent with the 
California Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act, and shall have the power 
to commingle the assets of the fund with those of other funds for investment purposes, provided 
that such commingling shall not contravene the purpose and limitations set forth in this 
agreement. JCF shall have the ultimate authority and control over all property in the fund, and 
the income derived therefrom, subject to the terms of this agreement and the standards for 
investment governing nonprofit public benefit corporations under California Corporations Code 
Section 5240. The fund shall be administered under and subject to the procedures and/or rule(- i 

for the operation of permanent endowment funds as the same may be adopted, or modified frolh/,: 
time to time, by JCF. 

-10-



North Coast Repertory Theatre, 
A Non-Profit Corporation 

Notes to Financial Statements 
( continued) 

For the Year Ended August 31, 2020 

Note 5 - Endowment Funds (continued) 

The fund shall be administered under and subject to the Bylaws, Articles of Incorporation and 
the endowment policies of JCF in effect from time to time. JCF shall have the power to modify 
and restriction or condition on the distribution of funds for any specified charitable purpose or 
to any specified organization if, in the sole discretion of the Board of Directors (without the 
necessity of the approval of the Theatre or any beneficiary organization), such restriction or 
condition becomes unnecessary, incapable of fulfillment, or inconsistent with the charitable 
needs of the community or area served. All money and property in the fund shall be assets of 
JCF, and not a separate trust, and shall be subject only to the control of JCF. Even though the 
fund may not be segregated, separate accounting records will be maintained for the fund. 
Nothing in this agreement is intended to be inconsistent with the status of JCF as an 
organization described in Sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. 
JCF is authorized to amend this agreement to conform to the provisions of any applicable law 
or government regulation in order to carry out the foregoing intention. 

For the year ended August 31, 2020, the Theatre received $2,374 in distributions from the fund. 

Note 6 -Fair Value Measurements 

The Fair Value Measurements Topic if the F ASB Accounting Standards Codification 
establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes inputs to valuation techniques used to measure 
fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level I measurements) and the lowest priority to 
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are 
described below: 

Level 1 Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or 
liabilities in active markets. 

Level 2 Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and 
liabilities in active markets, and inputs that are observable for the assets or liability, either 
directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument. 

Level 3 Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value 
measurement. 

A financial instrument's level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement. 

The following details the level within the fair value hierarchy of the Theatre's assets as fair 
value as of August 3 1, 2020. Level 1 investment consists of equities and CDS and totaled 
$354,255. There were no Level 2 or Level 3 investments. 

-11-



North Coast Repertory Theatre, 
A Non-Profit Corporation 

Notes to Financial Statements 
( continued) 

For the Year Ended August 31, 2020 

Note 6 -Fair Value Measurements (continued) 

Investments at fair market value at August 31, 2020, consist of the following: 

Adjusted Fair Market Fair Value 
Cost Value (Level 1) 

Equities (Level 1) 
Fund at JCF $ 47,799 $ 50,808 $ 50,808 

Money Market Funds 
CDS - Pacific Premier 303,447 303,447 303,447 

Fair Value 
(Level 2) 

$ 0 

0 

Investment return for the year ended August 31, 2020 included in the statements of activities 
is comprised of the following: 

Realized and unrealized gains 
Interest and dividends (net of fees of $297) 

$ 

2020 

7,953 
7,123 

$ 15,076 

Note 7 - Cash and Equivalents 

At August 31, 2020, cash was held in the following institutions: 

Change Funds $ 570 

Union Bank - checking (2 accounts) 317,132 

Wells Fargo (2 accounts) 73,953 

US Bank ( 4 accounts) 349,070 

Pacific Premier ( 4 accounts) 303,447 

IFG Financial (1 account) 101 

$ 1,044,273 

Concentration of Credit Risk 
The Theatre maintains its cash in bank accounts and brokerage accounts, which, at times, may 
exceed federally insured limits. The Theatre has not experienced any losses in such accounts. 
The Theatre believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash 
equivalents. 

Each account is insured by the FDIC for amounts up to $250,000. 

-12-



North Coast Repertory Theatre, 
A Non-Profit Corporation 

Notes to Financial Statements 
( continued) 

For the Year Ended August 31, 2020 

Note 8 - Restricted Assets - San Diego Foundation 

Total assets with a fair market value of $33,831 are held in the North Coast Repertory Theatre 
endowment fund of the San Diego Foundation and invested by the Foundation. The Theatre 
has no ownership rights over the principal and does not include these funds on the statement of 
financial position. However, the Theatre receives investment income annually from these 
assets. Total investment income received from the San Diego Foundation for the year ended 
August 31, 2020 was $1,360. 

Note 9 - Operating Lease 

The Theatre leases its facilities under a month-to-month rental agreement. Total rental 
expense was $154,163 for the year ended August 31, 2020. 

Note 10-Retirement Plan 

The Theatre maintains a tax deferred contribution plan qualified under Section 403 (b) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. Eligible employees may contribute a percentage of their 
compensation to the Plan. Employer contributions totaled $5,650 for the year ended August 
31, 2020. 

Note 11-PPP Loan and Covid-19 

On April 15, 2020, the Theatre received loan proceeds in the amount of $282,222 under the 
Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP"). The PPP, established as part of the Coronavirus Aid, 
Relief and Economic Security Act ("CARE Act"), provides for loans to qualifying business for 
amounts up to 2.5 times of the average monthly payroll expenses of the qualifying business. 
The loans and accrued interest are forgivable as long as the borrower uses the loan proceeds 
for eligible purposes, including payroll, benefits, rent and utilities, and maintains its payroll 
levels. The amount of loan forgiveness will be reduced if the borrower terminates employees 
or reduced salaries during the eight-week period. 

The unforgiven portion of the PPP loan is payable over two years at an interest rate of 1 %, 
with a deferral of payments for the first six months. The Theatre has used the PPP Loan funds 
consistent with the loan requirements for forgiveness. Subsequent to the August 3 1, 2020 year 
end, the Theatre received notification that the full amount of the PPP Loan and accrued interest 
of$1,654 has been forgiven. Therefore, the Theatre has included $283,876 in grants for the 
year ended August 3 1, 2020. 

Due to Covid-19, the Theatre had to cancel shows and events during the fiscal year. Due to the 
generosity of supporters and responsive management, the Theatre believes it is in a fiscal 
position to be able to cover its expenses until shows and events can begin again. 

-13-



Note 12-S ubsequent Events 

North Coast Repertory Theatre, 
A Non-Profit Corporation 

Notes to Financial Statements 
( continued) 

For the Year Ended August 31, 2020 

Events subsequent to August 31, 2020 have been evaluated through December 16, 2020, the 
date these financial statements were available to be issued, to determine whether they should 
be disclosed to keep the financial statements from being misleading. Management found no 
subsequent events other than those related to the PPP Loan and the effects from Covid 
disclosed in Note 11. 

-14-



990 Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax 0MB No. 1545-0047 

Form 2019 (Rev. January 2020) 
Under section 501 (c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations) 

Department of the Treasury ► Do not enter social security numbers on this fonn as it may be made public. Open to Public 
Internal Revenue Service ► Go to www.irs.aov/Fonn990 for instructions and the latest infonnation. lnsoection 
A For the 2019 calendar vear. or tax vear beainnincO 9/01 / 19 and endina 08/31/20 
B Check if applicable: C Name of organization D Employer identification number 

D Address change NORTH COAST REPERTORY THEATRE 

D Name change 
Doing business as 95-3819307 
Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address) I Room/suite E Telephone number 

D Initial return 987-D LOMAS SANTA FE DRIVE 858-481-2155 
D Final return/ City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code 

tenminated 
SOLANA BEACH CA 92075 2,489,882 D Amended return 

G Gross neceiotsS 
F Name and address of principal officer 

H(a) Is this a group return for subordinatesQ Yes ~ No D Application pending SHARON STEIN 
987 LOMAS SANTA FE DRIVE H(b) Are all subordinates included? □ Yes □ No 

SOLANA BEACH CA 92075 If "No," attach a list. (see instructions) 

I Tax-exempt status: IXI so1(c)(3) I I so1(c) ( ) ◄ (insert no.) I I 4947(a)(1) or I I 527 

J Website: ► WWW.NORTHCOASTREP.ORG H(c) Group exemption number ► 

K Fonm of ornanizalion: IXI Corooration I I Trust I I Association I I Other ► IL Year of fonmation: 19 8 2 I M State of leoal domicile: CA 
P rt I a s ummarv 

1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities: . 
Q) TO OPERATE A NOT-FOR-PROFIT PROFESSIONAL THEATRE FOR THE PROMOTION OF THE (.J 

C: PUBLIC APPRECIATION AND EDUCATION REGARDING THEATRE ARTS. CII 
C: 
:ii 
> 

Ch~~ !hi~ b~; ►□ if th~ ;rg~~i;~ti~~ di~~~ti~~~d ii; ;p~~~ii~~~ ·~~ di~p;~~d ~f ~~~~ th~~ 253/o ~f it~ ~ei ~~~~i~ .. 0 2 (!) 

ca 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) 3 18 
tJJ 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1 b) 4 18 
~ 
~ 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2019 (Part V, line 2a) 5 121 .. 

0 (.J 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) . 6 < 
7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12 7a 0 
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Fomn 990-T, line 39. 7b 0 

Prior Year Current Year 

Q) 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h) 981,524 1,353,933 
::I 9 Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g) 1. 959. 965 1.123 734 C: 
Q) 
> 10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d) 7,434 12.215 Q) 

0:: 11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, Be, 9c, 1 De, and 11 e) . -78 229 0 
12 Total revenue - add lines 8 throuqh 11 (must equal Part VIII column (A), line 12) 2,870,694 2,489,882 
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) 0 
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) 0 

tJJ 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10) 1. 565. 882 1.387 256 
Q) 
tJJ 16a Professional fund raising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11 e) 0 C: 
Q) 

b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) ► 
·••······· 222··639 .. 

C. 
>< ................. , ........ 
w 17 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24e). 1,242,964 938,201 

18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 2,808,846 2,325,457 
19 Revenue less exoenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12 61,848 164,425 

0~ Beginning of Current Year End of Year 
.l!lfii 
lllro 20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) 1. 220. 919 1 419 412 
~co 21 Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) . 909 471 940.381 -"" (l)C: 

Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20 311 448 479,031 za: 22 
Part II Signature Block 
Under penalties of perjury, I dedare that I have examined this return, induding a=mpanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is 
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all infonnation of which preparer has any knowledge. 

Sign ► Signature of officer 

Here 

► 
SHARON STEIN 

Type or print name and title 

Print!T ype preparers name I Preparers ~~ 711,. 
Paid Alicia M. Owens Alicia M. Owens 
Preparer Firm's name ► A.M. Owens CPA APC 
Use Only 9830 N Magnolia Ave # 188 

Firm's address ► Santee, CA 92071 
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions) . 

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. 
DAA 

I 
Date 

President 

o~ I Date .I Check LJ if I PTIN 

01/05/21 se~-employed P01212923 

Firm's EIN ► 45-4128534 

Phone no. 619-698-2401 
IX!Yes I !No 

Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) NORTH COAST REPERTORY THEATRE 95-3819307 Page 2 
Part Ill Statement of Program Service Accomplishments 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part Ill D ~···· 
1 Briefly describe the organization's mission: l , 
TO OPERATE A NOT-FOR-PROFIT PROFESSIONAL THEATRE FOR THE PROMOTION OF THE\-... ) 
PUBLIC APPRECIATION AND EDUCATION REGARDING THEATRE ARTS. 

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the 

prior Form 990 or 990-EZ?. 

If ''Yes," describe these new services on Schedule 0. 
3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program 

services? 

If ''Yes," describe these changes on Schedule 0. 
4 Describe the organization's program service a=mplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by 

expenses. Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, 

the total expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reported. 

D Yes~ No 

D Yes~ No 

4a (Code: . ) (Expenses$ ..... . 1.l 9.48, 323. including grants of$ . ) (Revenue $ ... . 1.l 1.2.3l73.4 ) 
THE ORGANIZATION OPERATES A NOT-FOR-PROFIT PROFESSIONAL THEATRE FOR 
PROMOTION OF THE PUBLIC APPRECIATION OF EDUCATION REGARDING THEATRE ARTS. 
THEY .. PRODUCED .. a· MAINSTAGE:'··siiows··AND·· MAIN .. OTHER··coi."LABORATIVE .. EVENTS~·· THE 
ORGANIZATION ALSO TEAMS WITH COMMUNITIES THROUGHOUT SAN DIEGO COUNTY TO 
PROVIDE ARTS AND EDUCATION PROGRAMS TO CHILDREN AND TEENS OF ALL 
BACKGROUNDS AND SOCIOECONOMIC LEVELS. IN-SCHOOL RESIDENCY PROGRAMS PROVIDE 
STUDENTS WITH EXPOSURE TO THE DRAMATIC ARTS AND WORKSHOPS INCORPORATE 
AFFORDABLE. :i?ilonssioNAi.·· INSTRticii'IoN··ANri··ARt··ofriREo··oful:i:Nci··ANri/oR··AFTER. 
SCHOOL ..... DURING. TiiE .. FYE . B/3i/2b ... THE THEATRE . WAS .. CLOSED. DUE. To'. covto:..:19 .. 

. . . . . . .. . ~ . 
THE THEATRE PERFORMED SEVERAL ONLINE PRODUCTIONS IN LIEU OF IN PERSON 
PERFORMANCES. 

············1\ 
----------------------------------------------1. ? 

) ~"> •. -./ 4b (Code: 
N/1>.. . . 

) (Expenses $ . including grants of$ . ) (Revenue $ . 

4c (Code: 

N/7!>.. . . 
) (Expenses $ including grants of$ ) (Revenue $ 

4d Other program services (Describe on Schedule 0.) 

(Expenses $ including grants of$ ) (Revenue $ 
4e Total program service expenses ► 1 948 323 

DAA Fam, 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) NORTH COAST REPERTORY THEATRE 95-3819307 
Part IV Checklist of Reauired Schedules 

1 Is the organization described in section 501 (c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? If "Yes," 

complete Schedule A 

2 Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see instructions)? 

3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to 

candidates for public office? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part I 

4 Section 501 (c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501 (h) 

election in effect during the tax year? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part II . 

5 Is the organization a section 501 (c)(4), 501 (c)(5), or 501 (c)(6) organization that receives membership dues, 

assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-19? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part Ill 

6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors 

have the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If 

"Yes," complete Schedule D, Part I 

7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, induding easements to preserve open space, 

the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part II 

8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If "Yes," 

complete Schedule D, Part Ill 

9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a 

custodian for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or 

debt negotiation services? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IV 

10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments 

or in quasi endowments? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part V 

11 If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, 

VII, VIII, IX, or X as applicable. 

a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? If "Yes," 

complete Schedule D, Part VI . 

b Did the organization report an amount for investments-other securities in Part X, line 12, that is 5% or more 

of its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VII .. 

c Did the organization report an amount for investments-program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more 

of its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIII 

d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets 

reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IX .. 

e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X 

f Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year indude a footnote that addresses 

the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 7 40)? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X. 

12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If "Yes," complete 

Schedule D, Parts XI and XII . 

b Was the organization induded in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If 

"Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XII is optional 

13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii)? If "Yes," complete Schedule E 

14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? 

b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, 

fundraising, business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate 

foreign investments valued at $100,000 or more? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts I and IV .. 

15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or 

for any foreign organization? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts II and IV_ 

16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other 

assistance to or for foreign individuals? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts Ill and IV 

17 Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on 

Part IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part I (see instructions) 

18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on 

Part VIII, lines 1 c and 8a? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part II 

19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? 

If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part Ill . 

20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If "Yes," complete Schedule H 

b If 'Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? 

21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or 

domestic aovemment on Part IX column /A). line 1? if "Yes," comolete Schedule I, Parts I and II . 

Page 3 

Yes No 

1 X 
2 X 

3 X 

4 X 

5 X 

6 X 

7 X 

8 X 

9 X 

10 X 

11a X 

11b X 

11c X 

11d X 
11e X 

11f X 

12a X 

12b X 
13 X 
14a X 

14b X 

15 X 

16 X 

17 X 

18 X 

19 X 
20a X 
20b 

21 X 
Form 990 (2019) 



Fonn 990 (2019) NORTH COAST REPERTORY THEATRE 95-3819307 Paae 4 
Part IV Checklist of Reauired Schedules (continued) 

Yes No 
22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on 

Part IX, column (A), line 2? If ''Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts I and Ill 22 X 
23 Did the organization answer ''Yes" to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the 

organization's current and fonner officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated 

employees? If "Yes," complete Schedule J . 23 X 
24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than 

$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 2002? If "Yes," answer lines 24b 

through 24d and complete Schedule K. If "No," go to line 25a 24a X 
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? . 24b 
C Did the organization maintain an escrow a=unt other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year 

to defease any tax-exempt bonds? 24c 
d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of' issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? 24d 

25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit 

transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part I .. 25a X 
b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior 

year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Fonns 990 or 990-EZ? 

If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part I 25b X 
26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current 

or fonner officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35% 

controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? If ''Yes," complete Schedule L, Part II . 26 X 
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or fonner officer, director, trustee, key 

employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee 

member, or to a 35% controlled entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these 

persons? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part Ill 27 X 
28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part 

IV instructions, for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions): 

a A current or fonner officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? If 

"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part JV 28a X 
b A family member of any individual described in line 28a? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV . 28b X 
C A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in lines 28a or 28b? If 

"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part JV 28c X 
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If "Yes," complete Schedule M 29 X .. 
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified 

conservation contributions? If ''Yes," complete Schedule M. 30 X 
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If "Yes," complete Schedule N, Part I 31 X 
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If "Yes," 

complete Schedule N, Part II 32 X 
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations 

sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part I, 33 X 
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If ''Yes," complete Schedule R, Part II, Ill, 

or IV, and Part V, line 1 34 X 
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)?. 35a X 

b If ''Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a 

controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If ''Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2. 35b 
36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable 

related organization? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 36 X 
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization 

and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If ''Yes," complete Schedule R, Part VI . 37 X 
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11 b and 

19? Note: All Fonn 990 filers are reauired to comolete Schedule 0. 38 X 
Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance 

Check if Schedule O contains a res onse or note to an line in this Part V .. □ 
Yes No 

1 a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable . 1a 38 
b Enter the number of Fonns W-2G included in line 1 a. Enter -0- if not applicable ... 1b 0 
c Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and 

winnin s to rize winners? . 1c 
DAA Fann 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) NORTH COAST REPERTORY THEATRE 95-3819307 
Part V Statements Reaardina Other IRS Filinas and Tax Comoliance (continued) 

2a Enter the number of employees reported on Fann W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax 

Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return 

b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? . 

Note: If the sum of lines 1 a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions) 

3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? . 

b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If "No" to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O. 

121 

4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, 

a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? . 

b If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country ► . 
See instructions for filing requirements for FinCEN Fann 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR). 

Sa Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? . 

b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? . 

c If "Yes" to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Fann 8886-T? 

6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the 

organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? . 

b If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or 

gifts were not tax deductible? . 

7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c). 

a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods 

and services provided to the payor? 

b If "Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . 

c Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was 

required to file Fann 8282? 

d If "Yes," indicate the number of Fonns 8282 filed during the year 

e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? . 

f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? 

g If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Fann 8899 as required? . 

h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Fann 1098-C? 

8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the 

sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? 

9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. 

a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966? 

b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? 

1 O Section 501 (c)(7) organizations. Enter: 

a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII, line 12 . I 1oa I 
b Gross receipts, included on Fann 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club facilities 10b 

11 Section 501 (c)(12) organizations. Enter: 

a Gross income from members or shareholders 11a 

b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources 

against amounts due or received from them.) ~1_1b~----------< 

Paqe 5 

Yes No 

2b X 

3a X 
3b 

4a X 

Sa X 
Sb X 
Sc 

6a X 

6b 

7a 
7b 

7c 

7e 

7f 

7Q 

7h 

8 

9a 
9b 

12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Fann 990 in lieu of Fann 1041? 1-1"'2;;.:a-+---+---
b If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year............ I 12b I '-'-=--'----------! 

13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers. 
a Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? 13a 

Note: See the instructions for additional infonnation the organization must report on Schedule 0. 
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which 

the organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans I 13b I 
c Enter the amount of reserves on hand '-'-13.;;..c"--'-----------1--1---+--

14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? 

b If "Yes," has it filed a Fann 720 to report these payments? If "No," provide an explanation on Schedule O . 

15 Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or 

excess parachute payment(s) during the year?. 

If "Yes," see instructions and file Fann 4720, Schedule N. 

16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? 

If "Yes" comolete Fann 4720 Schedule 0. 

DAA 

14a X 
14b 

15 X 

16 X 

Fam, 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) NORTH COAST REPERTORY THEATRE 95-3819307 Page 6 
Part VI Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through lb below, and for a "No" 

response to line Ba, Bb, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule 0. See instructions./·~ .. 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI . ~( 

Section A Governma Bodv and Manaaement "··--
Yes No 

1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year . 

If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or 

if the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar 

committee, explain on Schedule 0. 

b Enter the number of voting members included on line 1 a, above, who are independent 

2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with 

any other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? . 

3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct 

supervision of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? 

1a 

1b 

4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed?. 

5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets? 

6 Did the organization have members or stockholders? 

7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint 

one or more members of the governing body? 

b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members, 

stockholders, or persons other than the governing body? . 

18 

18 

8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by the followin£: 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7a 

7b 

a The governing body? 8a X 
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body? 8b X 

9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at 

X 

X 
X 
X 
X 

X 

X 

the oraanization's mailina address? If "Yes," orovide the names and addresses on Schedule O 9 X 
Section B. Policies (This Section B reauests information about oolicies not reauired bv the Internal Revenue Code.) 

1 Oa Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? 

b If "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, 

affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? . 

11a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? . 

b Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990. 

12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If "No," go to line 13 . 

b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts? 

c Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If 'Yes," 
describe in Schedule O how this was done 

13 Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? . 

14 Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? 

15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by 

independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision? 

a The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management official 

b Other officers or key employees of the organization 

If "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions). 

16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement 

with a taxable entity during the year? 

b If ''Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its 

participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the 

oraanization's exemot status with respect to such arranqements? . 

Section C. Disclosure 
17 List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed ► CA 
18 Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (Section 501 (c) 

(3)s only) available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply. 

D Own website D Another's website ~ Upon request D Other (explain on Schedule 0) 

19 Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and 

financial statements available to the public during the tax year. 

20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records ► 
WILLIAM KERLIN 987 LOMAS SANTA FE DRIVE 

Yes No 
10a X 

10b 
11a X 

12a X 
12b X 

12c X 
13 X 
14 X 

15a X 
15b X 

16a X 

16b 

SOLANA BEACH CA 92075 858-481-2155 
DAA Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) NORTH COAST REPERTORY THEATRE 95-3819307 Page 7 
Part VII Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and 

Independent Contractors 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII D 

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees 

1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the 
organization's tax year. 

• List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of 
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid. 

• List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employee." 
• List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee) 

who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Fann W-2 and/or Box 7 of Fann 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the 
organization and any related organizations. 

• List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than 
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations. 

• List all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a fonner director or trustee of the 
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations. 
See instructions for the order in which to list the persons above. 

~ Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee. 

(A) (B) (C) (0) (E) 

Name and title Average Position Reportable Reportable 
hours (do not check more than one compensation compensation 

per week box, unless person is both an from the from related 

(list any officer and a director/trustee) organizatlon organizations 
hours for 

Q 5. :, 0 ;,;: li 
.,, (W-2/1099-MISC) (W-2/1099-MISC) 

related ~ 3, CD a 
9: <t " 

'< 3 organtzations ro a: s:· f!l CD om m~ f!l 
below 

0 C ,r 3 
Q QL :, " 8 

dotted line) [ 
!!. ~ 3 

[ 
CD 

~ ro CD 

CD ro 1G 
CD ~ 

(1)JAY SARNO 
0.00 

Office of the Pres b.bo X X 0 0 
(2)WILLIAM KERLIN 

40.00 
Manaqinq Director ·····o .oo· X 106.333 0 
(3)PETER HOUSE 

2.00 
Director b.bo X X 0 0 
(4)SHARON STEIN 

2.00 
President o.oo X X 0 0 
(S)MARILYN TEDESCO 

2.00 
Director ·····o .oo· X X 0 0 
(6)DAVID ELLENS TEI ~ 

40.00 
Artistic Director o.oo X 133 000 0 
(7) PATRICIA MOISES 

2.00 
Secretary o.oo X X 0 0 
(B)STEVE CHAPMAN 

2.00 
Director o.oo X 0 0 
(9)MARION DODSON 

2.00 
Director 0.00 X 0 0 
(10)RICH LEIB 

2.00 
Director o.oo X 0 0 
(11)SUSAN ROTH 

2.00 
Director ·····o .oo· X 0 0 

□AA 

(F) 

Estimated amount 
of other 

compensation 
from the 

organization and 
related organizations 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
Fam, 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) NORTH COAST REPERTORY THEATRE 95-3819307 Page 8 
Part VII Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued) 

(A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F) 

Name and title Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimated amount 
hours (do not check more than one compensation compensation of other 

per week 
box, unless person is both an from the from related compensation 

(list any 
officer and a director/trustee) organization organizations from the 

hours for 
~~ 0 ;>< ii 

.,, (W-2/1099-MISC) (W-211099-MISC) organization and 
related ::l! CD 0 

related organizations '< 3 --< ~ oCD 
organizations ma: CD m!a. fl? oC 3 

below 
_., 

-c:, Q- 0 8 
dotted line) 2 ~ 3 

!<?. CD 1il 
CD ~ CD 

~ 
(12) MARC TAYER 

2.00 
Vice President b.bb X X 0 0 0 
(13) BERIT DURLER 

2.00 
Treasurer o.oo X X 0 0 0 
(14) BEVERLY LIBE RMAN 

2.00 
Director b.bb X 0 0 0 
(15) HARV KAUFFMA~ 

2.00 
Director ·····o.bb. X 0 0 0 
(16) MARINA PASTOR 

2.00 
Director . b. ob X 0 0 0 
(17) JUDY WHEATLE'l 

2.00 
Director b. ob X 0 0 0 
(18) ELIZABETH TR ~SP 

2.00 
Director ·····o.oo· X 0 0 0 

............... 

1b Subtotal ► 239 333 
C Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A . ► 
d Total (add lines 1 b and 1 cl ► 239,333 

2 Total number of individuals (induding but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of 
rt bl f f th . f ► 2 repo a e compensa I0n rom e orgarnza I0n 

Yes No 

3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated 
employee on line 1 a? if "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual. 3 X 

4 For any individual listed on line 1 a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the 
organization and related organizations greater than $150,000? if "Yes," complete Schedule J for such 

X individual 4 
5 Did any person listed on line 1 a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual 

for services rendered to the oraanization? If "Yes "comolete Schedule J for such oerson. 5 X 
Section 8. Independent Contractors 

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of 
. fr h . . R . i h I d d. "th "th· th . f ' t compensation om t e oraarnzatIon. eport compensation or t e ca en ar year en Ing WI or WI In e oraarnza !On s ax vear. 

(A) 
Name and Business address Descriotid~) of services 

(C) 
Comoensation 

2 Total number of independent contractors (induding but not limited to those listed above) who 
received more than $100 000 of comoensation from the oraanizalion ► 0 

DAA Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) NORTH COAST REPERTORY THEATRE 95-3819307 Page 9 
Part VIII Statement of Revenue 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII □ {A) (B) {C) (D) 
Total revenue Related or exempt Unrelated Revenue excluded 

function revenue business revenue from tax under 
sections 512-514 

•ft ·-1:-e 1a Federated campaigns. 1a e::::i 
(!)o b Membership dues 1b E 
1~ c Fundraising events 1c 
·- ra (!)::: d Related organizations . 1d 

-E e Government grants (contributions) UI•-
C:C/) 

1e 300,876 

~~ f All other contributions, gifts, grants, 
::::i.c and similar amounts not included above . 1f 1,053,057 ,c .... ·c:o .... g Noncash contributions included in lines 1 a-11 1a $ 13,896 C:'0 
0 C: 

h Total. Add lines 1a-1f ► 1,353,933 CJ ra 

Business Code 
\ 972,223 972,223 Q) 2a ADMISSIONS (.) 

·;; b THEATRE SCHOOL 115,619 115,619 

~ C CONCESSIONS AND OTHER SUPPORT 35,892 35,892 
ctl d 
e e 
a.. 

f All other program service revenue 

q Total. Add lines 2a-2f . ► 1,123,734 
3 Investment income (including dividends, interest, and 

other similar amounts) ► 12,215 12,215 
4 Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds ► 
5 Royalties ► 

{i) Real {ii) Personal 

Ga Gross rents Ga 
b Less: rental expen~ Gb 
C Rental inc. or (loss) Ge 
d Net rental income or loss). ► 7a Gross amount from (i) Securities (ii) Other 

sales of assets 
other than inventory 7a 

Cl) b Less: cost or other ::I 
C: 
Cl) basis and sales exps. 7b > 
Cl) 

Gain or (loss) 7c 0:: C 

~ d Net gain or (loss) ► .c 
0 Ba Gross income from fundraising events 

(not including $ 
of contributions reported on line 1 c). 

See Part IV, line 18 Ba 
b Less: direct expenses Bb 
C Net income or (loss) from fundraising events . ► 

9a Gross income from gaming activities. 

See Part IV, line 19 9a 
b Less: direct expenses 9b 
C Net income or (loss) from gaming activities ► 

10a Gross sales of inventory, less 

returns and allowances 10a 
b Less: cost of goods sold 10b 
C Net income or (loss) from sales of inventorv. ► 

UI Business Code 
::I 
0 Cl) 11a 
QI ::I 
C: C: b .!5! QI 
'Gl6'j C ~o:: 

d All other revenue :E 
e Total. Add lines 11a-11d. ► 

12 Total revenue. See instructions .. ► 2,489,882 1,135,949 0 0 
Form 990 (2019) 

DAA 



Form 990 (2019) NORTH COAST REPERTORY THEATRE 95-3819307 
Part IX Statement of Functional Expenses 

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) orqanizations must complete all columns. All other oraanizations must complete column (A). 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX . 

Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, 
7b, Sb, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. 

1 Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations 

and domestic governments. See Part IV, line 21 

2 Grants and other assistance to domestic 
individuals. See Part IV, line 22 

3 Grants and other assistance to foreign 
organizations, foreign governments, and foreign 
individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16 

4 Benefits paid to or for members 
5 Compensation of current officers, directors, 

trustees, and key employees ... 
6 Compensation not included above to disqualified 

persons (as defined under section 4958(D(1)) and 
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) . 

7 Other salaries and wages 
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include 

section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions) 
9 Other employee benefits 

1 O Payroll taxes . 
11 Fees for services (nonemployees): 

a Management 
b Legal 
c Accounting 
d Lobbying. 

(A) (B) 
Total expenses Program service 

expenses 

1,090,557 877,868 

5,650 4,536 
186 289 149,970 
104 760 84 329 

7.580 

(C) 
Management and 
general expenses 

80,566 

157 
14,023 

7.739 

7,580 

Page 10 

(D) 
Fundraising 
expenses 

I I 

132,123 

957 
22,296 
12.692 

e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line t-7 ______ 
2 
__ 

9 
__ 
7
-+----------+-------

2
_
9
_

7 
________ _ 

f Investment management fees 
g Other. (If line 11 g amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column 

(A) amount, list line 11g expenses on Schedule 0.) 

12 Advertising and promotion . 
13 Office expenses 
14 Information technology. 
15 Royalties 
16 Occupancy 
17 Travel 
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expense 

221 
151,977 
114,131 

5,641 
82 779 

180,523 
78,703 

221 
151,741 236 

51,917 22,816 39,398 
4,513 564 564 

82 779 
161.406 10.091 9.026 

73,979 1.402 3,322 

for any federal, state, or local public officials 1----------+---------+--------+---------
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings . 
20 Interest 
21 Payments to affiliates .. 
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 
23 Insurance 
24 Other expenses. Itemize expenses not covered 

above (List miscellaneous expenses on line 24e. If 
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column 

1 842 

3,771 
14,372 

1.842 

3 771 
11,498 1,437 1,437 

(A) amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule 0.) t-----------+----------+--------+---------
a MAINSTAGE 147,370 147,370 
b . BANK FE:ES/cc PROCESSING 46,782 46,574 
c OUTSIDE CONTRACTORS 44,003 41,933 
d THEATRE SCHOOL 27 , 111 27, 111 
e All other expenses 31,098 2 6, 807 

25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 lhrouQh 24e. 2,325,457 1,948,323 
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the 

organization reported in column (B) joint costs 
from a combined educational campaig\l_epd 
fundraising solicitation. Check here ► LJ if 
followina SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720) ........ . 

DAA 

208 
1,482 588 

4.291 
154,495 222.639 

Form 990 (2019) 



Fann 990 (2019) NORTH COAST REPERTORY THEATRE 95-3819307 Page 11 
Part X Balance Sheet 

Check if Schedule O contains a resoonse or note to anv line in this Part X n 
(A) (B) 

Beginning of year End of year 

1 Cash-----flon-interest-bearing 437.905 1 669,877 
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 342.725 2 374,396 .. 
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net. 3 

4 Accounts receivable, net 23,957 4 7,123 
5 Loans and other receivables from any current or fonner officer, director, 

trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35% 

controlled entity or family member of any of these persons . 5 

6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined 

J!l under section 4958(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B). 6 
Q) 
II) 7 Notes and loans receivable, net 7 
II) 
<( 8 Inventories for sale or use 8 

9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges .. 256,864 9 199,000 
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other 

basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D 10a 527,770 
b Less: accumulated depreciation 10b 417.244 102.146 10c 110,526 

11 Investments-publicly traded securities . 49.640 11 50 808 
12 Investments-other securities. See Part IV, line 11 12 
13 Investments-program-related. See Part IV, line 11 13 .. 
14 Intangible assets 14 

15 Other assets. See Part IV, line 11 7 682 15 7,682 
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 throuah 15 /must eaual line 33) . 1 220 919 16 1,419,412 
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses . 67,024 17 86 671 
18 Grants payable 18 

19 Deferred revenue 842,447 19 853,710 
20 Tax-exempt bond liabilities 20 

21 Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D 21 
II) 22 Loans and other payables to any current or fonner officer, director, 
Q) 

~ trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35% 
:E controlled entity or family member of any of these persons 22 ra 
:.J 23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties 23 

24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 24 

25 Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third 

parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X 

of Schedule D 25 

26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 throuah 25 . 909,471 26 940,381 
II) Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here ~ 
Q) 
(.) and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33. 
C: 
ra 27 Net assets without donor restrictions 217.495 27 387,007 iii 

CD 28 Net assets with donor restrictions 93.953 28 92 024 
't:I 

Organizations that do not folio~ FASS ASC ssa: ~h~~k h~r~ .CJ . C: 
::i 
u.. and complete lines 29 through 33 . ... 
0 

29 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds 29 
JJl 30 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund . 30 
II) 
II) 

31 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 31 <( .... 
32 Total net assets or fund balances 311.448 32 479 031 Q) 

z 1.220 919 1,419,412 33 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances . 33 
Form 990 (2019) 

DAA 



Form 990 (2019) NORTH COAST REPERTORY THEATRE 95-3819307 
Part XI Reconciliation of Net Assets 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to anv line in this Part XI . 
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A}, line 12) 1 
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 2 
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1 3 
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 32, column (A)) 4 .. 
5 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 5 
6 Donated services and use of facilities 6 
7 Investment expenses . 7 
8 Prior period adjustments . 8 
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain on Schedule 0) 9 

10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 

32, column (Bl) . 10 
Part XII Financial Statements and Reporting 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to anv line in this Part XII . 

1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: D Cash ~ Accrual D Other ___________ _ 

If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explain in 

Schedule 0. 

2a Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? .. 

If ''Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or 

reviewed on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both: 

D Separate basis D Consolidated basis D Both consolidated and separate basis 

b Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant? 

If ''Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a 

separate basis, consolidated basis, or both: 

~ Separate basis D Consolidated basis D Both consolidated and separate basis 

c If "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of 

the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? 

If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain on 

Schedule 0. 

3a As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in, the 

Single Audit Act and 0MB Circular A-133? 

b If ''Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the 

reauired audit or audits exolain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to underao such audits 

DAA 

Page 12 

Ix] 
2 489.882 
2 325.457 

164,425 
311,448 

3,158 

479,031 

n 
Yes No 

2a X 

2b X 

2c X 

3a 

3b 

Fem, 990 (2019) 



Internal Revenue Service 

Date: July 21, 2004 
Department of the Treasury 
P. 0. Box 2508 
Cincinnati, OH 45201 

North Coast Repertory ThEATRE A Non Profit 
Corporation 

Person to Contact: 
Sylvia A. Williams 31-07817 
Customer Service Representative 

Toll Free Telephone Number: 
987 Lomas Santa Fe. Dr. D 
Solana Beach, CA 92075-2125 

Dear Sir or Madam: 

8:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m. EST 
877-829-5500 

Fax Number: 
513-263-3756 

Federal Identification Number: 
95-3819307 

This is in response to your request of July 21, 2004, regarding your organization's tax-exempt 
status. 

In November 1983 we issued a determination letter that recognized your organization as 
exempt from federal income tax. Our records indicate that your organization is currently 
exempt under section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 

Our records indicate that your organization is also classified as a public charity under 
sections 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1 )(A)(vi) of the Internal Revenue Code. 

Our records indicate that contributions to your organization are deductible under section 170 
of the Code, and that you are qualified to receive tax deductible bequests, devises, transfers 
or gifts under section 2055, 2106 or 2522 of the Internal Revenue Code. 

If you have any questions, please call us at the telephone number shown in the heading of 
this letter. 

Sincerely, 

Jwuit.~ 
Janna K. Skufca, Director, TE/GE 
Customer Account Services 



, _ __. 
·-;;.---·-

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

FRMICHISE TAX BOARD 
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95367 
octobe:r tz, 198!.J 

Ko:i:th Coast Repe:rto:rf Theatre, 
A Honp:rofit Co:rpo:ration 

P. o. Box 389 
·Solana Beach, CA 9 2 07 s, 

Pu:cpose 
ro:rm of o:rganization 
Tl.ccounting P.e:ciod Endi.ngt 
?:rganization Kumbe% 

Educational 
Corpo:i:ation 
J\p:ril 30 
1070451 

In :reply :reie:r to 
34ZlAPP:PTS::rjs:g 

On the basis of the info:rmation submitied and p:rovided you:r ]?:resent 
ope:cations continue unchanged or con£o~m to those p:ropos~d in you:r 
application, you a:re exempt from state franchise or income tax und~:r 
Section 23701d, Revenue and Taxation Code. •nny change in operation, 
cha:racte:r o:r pu:rpose of the o:rganization must be :repo:rted immediately 
to ~his of£ice so that we may dete:rmin• the e££ect on youz exempt 
status. Any change of name o:r address· also must be :repo:rted. 

You a:i:e requi:red to file Fo:rm 199 (Exempt O:rganization Annual 
Information Retu:rn) o:r Fo:rm 199B (Exem~t o:z:gani=ation Annual 
In:fo:i::mation Statement) on o:z: be:i:.o:i::e tl\'e 15th day of the 5th month C 4 
1/2 months) aftez the close of you:z: accounting pe:z:iod. see annual 
inst:ructions with fo:rms io:z: requi:z:ements. 

You ai:e not :z:equi:red to file state frinchise ~:z: income tax :z:etu:rns 
unless you have income subject to the un:z:elated business ~ncome taH 
unde:z: Section 23731 oi the Code, :Cn this event, you a:re :z:equired to 
fiJ.e Fo:z:m 109 (Exempt O:z:ganization Bu9 iness Income Tax Retu:rnl by th,e 
1Sth day of the 5th month (4 1/2 months) afte:r the close of you% 
annual accounting pe:riod. 

:C:f the o:rgani:c:ation is inco:i:po:z:ating,; this app:z:ovnl will e!<pi:z:e unless 
incorpo:ratio~ is completea with the S~c:retn:z:y o:i:. state within 60 days. 

Exemption f:ro~-federal income o:z: othe~ taxes and othe:z: state taxes 
requi:res sepa:i:ate applicntions . 

.. -·--------------------. ·-----------------~ 
~ 

! 



Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Give Form to the. 

(Rev. October 2018) Identification Number and Certification requester. Do not 
Depar1ment of the Treasury send to the IRS. 
Internal Revenue Service ► Goto www.irs.gov/FormW9 for instructions and the latest information. 

1 Name (as shown on your Income tax return). Name Is required on this line; do not leave this line blank. 

North Coast Repertory Theatre 
2 Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above 

(') 
Q) 3 Check appropriate box for federal tax classification of the person whose name Is entered on line 1. Check only one of the 4 Exemptions (codes apply only to 
la1 following seven boxes, certain entitles, not Individuals; see 
C. instructions on page 3}: 
C: 
□ Individual/sole proprietor or 0 C Corporation D S Corporation D Par1nership D TrusVestate 0 

• II', single-member LLC Exempt payee code (if any) Q) C: 

g~ □ Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=Par1nershlp) ► 
S 2 Note: Check the appropriate box In the line above for the lax classification of the single-member owner. Do not check Exemption from FATCA repor1Ing 
.... 'Iii LLC If the LLC Is classified as a single-member LLC that Is disregarded from the owner unless the owner of the LLC Is code {If any) •E.s another LLC that Is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Otherwise, a single-member LLC that 
C. 0 Is disregarded from the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax classification of its owner. !E 

0 

□ Other (see Instructions) ► (App!ios to accounts malntalnfd outsJds lho U.S.} 
Q) 
C. 5 Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) See Instructions. Requester's name and address (optionaQ (/) 
Q) 

987 Lomas Santa Fe Drive Suite D Q) 
Cl) 

6 City, state, and ZIP code 

Solana Beach, CA 92075 
7 List account number(s) here (optlonaQ 

IZD Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) 
I Social security number I Enter your TIN in_ the app_ro~ri~te box. :h~ TIN provided must. match t~e name given on line 1 to avoid 

backup withholding. For mdIvIduals, this 1s generally your social security number (SSN). However, for a 
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the instructions for Part I, tater. For other 
entities, It is your employer Identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a 
TIN, later. 

[TI] -DJ -I I I I I 
or 

Note: If the account is In more than one name, see the instructions for line 1. Also see What Name and 
Number To Give the Requester for guidelines on whose number to enter. 

/ Employer identification number 

Certification 
Under penalties of perjury, I certify that: 

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be Issued to me); and 
2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue 

Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am 
no longer subject to backup withholding; and 

3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and 

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (If any) Indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting Is correct. 

Certification Instructions. You must cross out Item 2 above If you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because 
you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, Item 2 does not apply. For mortgage Interest paid, 
acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an Individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments 
other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions for Part II, later. 

Sign 
Here 

Signature of 
U.S. person ► 

General Instructions 
Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise 
noted. 

Future developments. For the latest information about developments 
related to Form W-9 and its instructions, such as legislation enacted 
after they were published, go to www.irs.gov/FormW9. 

Purpose of Form 
An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an 
information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer 
Identification number (flN) which may be your social security number 
(SSN), individual taxpayer Identification number (ITIN), adoption 
taxpayer Identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number 
(EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other 
amount reportable on an Information return. Examples of information 
returns include, but are not limited to, the following. 

• Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid) 

Cat. No. 10231X 

Date ► 

• Form 1099-DIV (dividends, Including those from stocks or mutual 
funds) 

• Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross 
proceeds) 

• Form 1099-8 (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other 
transactions by brokers) 

• Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions) 

• Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions) 

• Form 1098 (home mortgage Interest), 1098-E (student loan interest), 
1098-T (tuition) 

• Form 1099-C (canceled debt) 

• Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property) 

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident 
alien). to provide your correct TIN. 

If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might 
be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding, 
later. 

Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018) 



( 



City of Solana Beach 
Comm unity Grant Program 
Request for Financial Assistance 
FY 2021-22 APPLICATION 

All Applications MUST BE RECEIVED by 5:00 p.m. Tuesday, May 25, 2021. 
Please Print Clearly or Type 

All requests will be determined by the following criteria: 

Name of Organization: Pathways to Citizenship (formerly NCI CC) 
Mailing Address: 120 Stevens Ave, Solana Beach, CA 92075 
Contact Person: Sonya Williams, Executive Director 
Daytime Phone: 858-519-2882 
Evening Phone: 858-519-2882 
Email address: sonya@pathwayssd.org 

1. W-9 must be attached 
Summary of organization's budget must be attached 
Proposed program budget must be attached 
Financial and Tax Statements (see Application Guidelines) must be attached 

2. A copy of the California Franchise Tax Board Entity Status Letter must be attached, 
showing exemption under Section 23701d or Internal Revenue Code section 501(c)(3) 

3. Has your organization received financial assistance from the City before? Yes 

If yes, what activities and which fiscal year? 

2020-21: NCICC Solana Beach Immigrant Family COVID-19 Recovery Project 
2019-20: Legal Immigration Services Scholarships for Solana Beach residents 
2018-19: Educational Program Coordinator 

4. Amount requested for FY 2021-22: $4,968 

5. Proposed Total Program Costs: $ (Includes all estimated costs to conduct proposed 
activity/program.) $9,968 ($5,000 donated by Boaz Allen Hamilton) 

6. Title of Proposed Program/Service: Supporting Solana Beach Dreamers: Outreach and 
Legal Assistance for DACA Applicants in Solana Beach 

7. Grant funds must be used for services or materials directly associated to proposed 
activity. Please describe how grant funds will be used: 



Funds will provide three hours/week of outreach, education and legal immigration 
services to Solana Beach youth who are now eligible to apply for Deferred Action for 
Childhood Arrivals (DACA) protections and work authorization. After a two-year hiatus, 
U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS) began accepting initial (new) DACA 
applications in December 2020. DACA eligibility is complex, and many local 
immigrants (both young people and their parents) are confused and intimidated by the 
requirements and the legal process. 

Outreach and legal services will be provided by Pedro Enriquez, Pathway's case 
manager, who is a trained Marriage and Family Therapist and a DOI-accredited legal 
representative, as well as a DACA recipient himself. Goretty Enriquez, our Outreach 
Manager, is a licensed social worker, as well as a DOI-accredited legal representative, 
and trusted confidant to immigrant families in Solana Beach. 

USCIS DACA application fees are $495, and through this program, we will offer four 
50% scholarships at $250 each. 

8. Estimated number of S.B. residents to be served by proposed program: 20 immigrant 
families in Solana Beach 

9. Program Dates/Location: August 2021 - May 2022 / Solana Beach, CA 

10. Anticipated Program Objectives or Accomplishments: 

Pathways staff will reach out to Casa de Amistad families, St. Leo's parishioners, Girls 
and Boys Club families and the La Colonia de Eden Gardens community to educate 
young people and their families who may be eligible for DACA, and we'll help them 
apply to USCIS protections. 

10+ immigrant youth in Solana Beach will apply for DACA protections. Four will 
receive partial scholarship. 

11. How will the organization acknowledge the City's financial contribution to the 
community/ beneficiaries of the proposed activity? We will submit press releases to local 
North County and San Diego newspapers and inform all beneficiaries of our partnership 
with the City of Solana Beach, plus acknowledge the City of Solana Beach's support on 
our website, blogs, social media, etc. 

12. Will there be any matching funds or other grants that would be applied to this program or 
service? If awarded this grant, will that enable other funding sources? 

Scholarships from World Relief and Booz Allen Hamilton will be offered to Solana 
Beach residents for legal immigration services. 

13. Will volunteers be used for the proposed program or service and, if so, will they reduce 
expenses? 



Yes, whenever possible, including Solana Beach residents. 

14. If the proposed program or service is only awarded partial funding, will it still move 
forward? Will the program or service be scaled back and/or is there a threshold at which 
it will not move forward? 

Yes, we will continue to serve our immigrant neighbors in Solana Beach no matter what. 

Acknowledgment of Responsibility: 
Authorized Signature assumes all responsibility for developing and implementing proposed 
activities or events in this application, including public acknowledgment of the City's financial 
contribution. Authorized signature will comply with all accounting and budget procedures 
outlined by the City. Authorized signature and accompanying group will hold harmless the City 
of Solana Beach from all losses, claims, accidents, and problems associated, directly or 
indirectly with the development and implementation of proposed activities or events. 

Sonya Williams 
Authorized Signature of Organization 

May 25, 2021 
Date 

ALL INFORMATION REQUESTED ON THIS APPLICATION MUST BE COMPLETED AS A 
CONDITION FOR BEING CONSIDERED FOR PUBLIC FUNDS BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
SOLANA BEACH. 



City of Solana Beach Community Grant Program 2021-22 

Pathways Proposal Budget: Supporting Solana Beach Dreamers 

DACA: Outreach, Education and Legal Assistance per week 50 Week Total 

Case Manager, Pedro Enriquez: 1 hr/wk@ $22/hr $22 $1,100 

Outreach Manager, Goretty Enriquez: 2 hrs/wk@ $20/hr $40 $2,000 

Total Hourly Wages $62 $3,100 
28% CA payroll taxes 

Personnel Total 

USCIS DACA filing fees: 4 50% scholarships @ $250/each 

Total Request 

-----------
$17 $868 

$79 $3,968 

$1,000 

$4,968 



Pathways to Citizenship BUSINESS PLAN AND CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT TOOL 

2021 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total 
INCOME 
SBPC Office Provision Non-cash 400.00 400.00 400.00 400,00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400,00 400.00 400.00 4,800.00 
SBPC Phone / Internet Provision Non-cash 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 1,200.00 
SBPC Subtotal Provisions Non-cash 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500,00 SOD.OD 500.00 500,00 500.00 500.00 500,00 6,000.00 

Grant Funds Available 

Coastal Community Foundation, Solana Fund 5,000.00 5,000.00 
Kingdom Builder Foundation 7,000.00 5,000.00 12,000.00 
Legacy Gift (Adrian through KBF) 30,000.00 30,000.00 
City of Solana Beach 3,000.00 3,000.00 
Other Grants (Boaz Allen Social Equity) 

Lazarus - Direct Distribution 
Individual Donations (restricted) 875.37 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 4,000.00 
Donor Specific Distributions ( 500.00) ( 495,00) (500.00) (500.00) (500.00) (500.00) (500.00) (500,00) (500.00) (500.00) (4,995.00) 

Donations 
SBPC Donations 5,695.77 5,500.00 500.00 11,695.77 
Individual Donations 1,826.38 300,00 2,050.00 2,583.03 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 30,759.41 
Fundraising (incl FB & Amazon Smile) 140,00 32.18 140,00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 5,000.00 200.00 200.00 6,712.18 
Board of Directors 2,000.00 2,500.00 2,117.70 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 14,617, 70 
Cost of 1·undraisincJ (incl. pilypill fees) <n.ss (41.20) (50.00) (50,00) (50.00) (50.00) (50.00) (50.00) (50.00) (50.00) (173.08) 

Operating Income 
World Relief Contract (CDSS) 1,058.25 2,645.62 8,000.00 5,000.00 15,645.62 
Legal Income 70,00 400.00 400.00 840.00 300.00 300,00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 4,110.00 
PPP Loan from US Treasury 16,700.00 16,700.00 
Other Income, Reimbursements 484.95 484.95 

!TOTAL INCOME 40,504.50 19,932.18 9,867.27 4,966.23 7,095.62 9,950.00 15,450.00 4,450.00 4,450.00 14,250.00 9,450.00 9,950.00 150,315.80 

EXPENSES 
Staffing 6,625.32 6,495.11 6,985.46 7,328.06 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 75,433.95 
Withholding, FICA & Workman's Comp 30.00% 1,790.93 1,717.11 1,870.58 1,973.85 1,800.00 1,800.00 1,800.00 1,800.00 1,800.00 1,800.00 1,800.00 1,800.00 21,752.47 
Heartland Fees 103.50 103,50 108.00 108.00 103.50 103.50 103.50 103.50 103.50 103.50 103.50 103.50 1,251.00 
Office Rent 0.00 
Insurance - Liability, E&O, etc 5,000.00 5,000.00 
Legal Practice Management System 5,024.00 5,024.00 
World Relief Membership (annual) 1,500.00 1,500.00 
Legal Training (incl Erin Lee) 100.00 300.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100,00 100.00 100.00 1,000.00 
Interns 0.00 
Office Supplies, Mailing, etc. 194.50 609.99 272.92 193.86 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200,00 200.00 200.00 2,871.27 
Website & Marketing 11.16 20.00 141.62 33.50 58.00 58.00 58.00 58.00 58.00 58.00 58.00 58.00 670.28 
Bank Charges 7.50 7,50 7.50 7.50 7.50 7,50 7,50 7.50 7.50 7.50 7.50 7.50 90,00 
Other Expenses 25.00 35.00 

!TOTAL EXPENSES 8,732.91 10,578.21 9,386.08 9,979.77 8,269.00 8,269.00 8,169.00 8,269.00 13,269.00 8,269.00 8,269.00 13,193.00 114,652.97 

!GAIN OR (LOSS) ON OPERATIONS 31,771.59 9,353.97 481.19 (5,013.54) (1,173.38) 1,681.00 7,281.00 (3,819.00) (8,819.00) 5,981.00 1,181.00 (3,243.00) 35,662.83 1 



Short Form 0MB No. 1545-0047 

Form 990-EZ Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax 
Under section 501 (c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations) 

Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service 

► Do not enter social security numbers on this form, as it may be made public. 

► Goto www.irs.gov/Form990EZfor instructions and the latest information. 

Open to Public 
Inspection 

A For the 2020 calendar year, or tax year beginning Jan. 1 , 2020, and ending Dec.31 ,20 20 

B Check if applicable: C Name of organization D Employer identification number 

D Address change North County Immigration and Citizenship Center 462522640 
D Name change Number and street (or P .0. box if mail is not delivered to street address) I Room/suite E Telephone number 
D Initial return 120 Stevens Avenue (858) 509 2589 D Final return/terminated 

D Amended return 
City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code F Group Exemption 

D Application pending Solana Beach, CA 92075 Number ► 
G Accounting Method: 0 Cash D Accrual Other (specify) ► H Check ► D if the organization is not 
I Website: ► www.northcountycitizenship.org required to attach Schedule B 

J Tax-exempt status (check only one) - 0 501 (c)(3) D 501(c) ( ) ◄ (insert no.) D 4947(a)(1) or □s21 (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF). 

K Form of organization: 0 Corporation D Trust D Association D Other 
L Add lines Sb, 6c, and 7b to line 9 to determine gross receipts. If gross receipts are $200,000 or more, or if total assets 

(Part II, column (B)) are $500,000 or more, file Form 990 instead of Form 990-EZ . ► $ 

■@I■ Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets or Fund Balances (see the instructions for Part I) 
Check if the organization used Schedule Oto respond to any question in this Part I 

Q) 
::I 
C: 
Q) 

~ 
a: 

1 Contributions, gifts, grants, and similar amounts received . 
2 Program service revenue including government fees and contracts 
3 Membership dues and assessments . 
4 Investment income 

Sa Gross amount from sale of assets other than inventory t-=5'-=a'-+-------
b Less: cost or other basis and sales expenses . .__5.;..;;b_,__ ______ _ 
c Gain or (loss) from sale of assets other than inventory (subtract line 5b from line 5a) 

6 Gaming and fundraising events: 
a Gross income from gaming (attach Schedule G if greater than 

$15,000) . 6a 
'---.1--------t 

b Gross income from fundraising events (not including $ o of contributions 
from fund raising events reported on line 1) (attach Schedule G if the 
sum of such gross income and contributions exceeds $15,000) . 6b 

f---+--------
c Less: direct expenses from gaming and fundraising events 6c 

.>---":-:::-:----:---:--:---:--b 
d Net income or {loss) from gaming and fundraising events (add lines 6a and 6b and subtract 

line 6c) 

7a Gross sales of inventory, less returns and allowances . ,__7_a--+-----------< 

1 
2 
3 
4 

b Less: cost of goods sold L..:..7.:::.b_J_ _______ +•'· 
c Gross profit or (loss) from sales of inventory (subtract line 7b from line 7a) 

8 Other revenue (describe in Schedule 0) . 
9 Total revenue. Add lines 1, 2, 3, 4, 5c, 6d, 7c, and 8 ► 

10 Grants and similar amounts paid (list in Schedule 0) 

(/) 
Q) 
(/) 
C: 

11 
12 
13 

[ 14 
>< w 

(/) -Q) 
(/) 
(/) 

<( 

15 
16 
17 
18 
19 

a, 20 
z 21 

Benefits paid to or for members . 
Salaries, other compensation, and employee benefits 
Professional fees and other payments to independent contractors 
Occupancy, rent, utilities, and maintenance 
Printing, publications, postage, and shipping 
Other expenses (describe in Schedule 0) . 
Total expenses. Add lines 1 O through 16 . ► 

Excess or (deficit) for the year (subtract line 17 from line 9) 
Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (from line 27, column (A)) (must agree with 
end-of-year figure reported on prior year's return) 

Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule 0) . 
Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 18 through 20 ► 

7c 
8 
9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 

19 
20 
21 

□ 
140,762 

3,389 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

144,151 

0 

0 

89,014 

13,882 

0 

2,839 

105,735 

38,416 

33,481 

0 

71,897 

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Cat. No. 106421 Fornn 990-EZ (2020) 



Form 990-EZ (2020) Page 2 
■Rffljj■ Balance Sheets (see the instructions for Part II) 

Check if the organization used Schedule O to respond to any question in this Part II □ 
(A) Beginning of year (B) End of year 

22 Cash, savings, and investments 33,481 22 71,891 

23 Land and buildings . 23 
24 Other assets (describe in Schedule 0) 24 
25 Total assets . 33,481 25 71,897 

26 Total liabilities (describe in Schedule 0) 26 
27 Net assets or fund balances (line 27 of column (B) must agree with line 21) 33,481 27 71,897 

l::F.tii1111 ■ Statement of Program Service Accomplishments (see the instructions for Part Ill) 
Check if the organization used Schedule Oto respond to any question in this Part Ill 

What is the organization's primary exempt purpose? To provide legal and educational services 
□ 

Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, 
as measured by expenses. In a clear and concise manner, describe the services provided, the number of 
persons benefited, and other relevant information for each program title. 
28 Limited_lmmigration_Services: N-400, 1-90, FOIA, 1-751, 1-812D, 1-130, 1-485, Client Consulation, Document ________ _ 

Preparation,_ and CI ien t Rep rese ntatio n -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Approximately_ 1 86 CI ie nts served --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Expenses 
(Required for section 
501 (c)(3) and 501 (c)(4) 
organizations; optional for 
others.) 

(Grants $ ) If this amount includes foreign grants, check here ► D 28a 55,800 

29 Neighborhood Covid _Relief Project: Provided educational resources, and _legal and financial assistance to ______ _ 

clients _and community memebers heavily imapcted by the pandemic-----------------------------------------------------

A pp ro xi mate ly _ 8 2 Fam i I ies served --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
(Grants $ ) If this amount includes foreign grants, check here ► D 29a 37,880 

30 Education Services:_English as_a Second Language_classes,_Citizenship_preparation, and Civics tutoring ________ _ 

Approximately_ 61 s tu dents served--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

(Grants $ ) If this amount includes foreign grants, check here 
31 Other program services (describe in Schedule 0) 

(Grants $ ) If this amount includes foreign grants, check here 
32 Total program service expenses (add lines 28a through 31 a) 

►□ 

►□ 
► 

30a 

31a 
32 

9,216 

•~liiill • List of Officers, Directors, Trustees, and Key Employees (list each one even if not compensated-see the instructions for Part IV) 
Check if the organization used Schedule Oto respond to any question in this Part IV □ 

(a) Name and title 

Sonya Wi 11 i ams-----------------------------------------------------
Exec u ti ve Director 

Morgan Principi ----------------------------------------------------
Director of Legal and Operations 

Judy Enns------------------------------------------------------------
Boa rd President 

Paula Nance 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------
Boa rd Secretary 

Jack J eager----------------------------------------------------------
Boa rd Treasurer 

Pedro Enriquez _____________________________________________________ _ 

Center Coordinator 

Maria Enriques-----------------------------------------------------
Educational Services and Outreach Coordinator 

(b)Average 
hours per week 

devoted to position 

20 

12 

2 

2 

2 

22 

22 

(c) Reportable (d) Health benefits, 
compensation contributions to employee (e) Estimated amount of 

(Forms W-2/1099-MISC) benefit plans, and other compensation 
(if not paid, enter -0-) deferred compensation 

17,475.00 

11,925.00 

0 

0 

0 

18,660.00 

19,440.00 

Form 990-EZ (2020) 



Form 990-EZ (2020) Page 3 
■ Rffll'I Other Information (Note the Schedule A and personal benefit contract statement requirements in the 

instructions for Part V.) Check if the organization used Schedule O to respond to any question in this Part V D 
Yes No 

33 Did the organization engage in any significant activity not previously reported to the IRS? If "Yes," provide a 
detailed description of each activity in Schedule O . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33 ✓ 

f-----ff-----f---"--

34 Were any significant changes made to the organizing or governing documents? If "Yes," attach a conformed 
copy of the amended documents if they reflect a change to the organization's name. Otherwise, explain the 
change on Schedule 0. See instructions . . . . . . . . . . 34 ✓ 

f-----ff-----f---"--

35a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year from business 
activities (such as those reported on lines 2, 6a, and 7a, among others)? . . . . . . . . . . . 35a ✓ 

f-----ff-----1---"--,--

b If "Yes" to line 35a, has the organization filed a Form 990-T for the year? If "No," provide an explanation in Schedule O ,_3_5_b-+---+-~✓-
c Was the organization a section 501 (c)(4), 501 (c)(5), or 501 (c)(6) organization subject to section 6033(e) notice, 

reporting, and proxy tax requirements during the year? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part Ill . . . . . 35c ✓ 
f-----fl-----f---"--

36 Did the organization undergo a liquidation, dissolution, termination, or significant disposition of net assets 
during the year? If "Yes," complete applicable parts of Schedule N 36 

f-----ff-----!~.,.,.-

37a Enter amount of political expenditures, direct or indirect, as described in the instructions ► c..:3::..:7--=a:...,_ ____ --l ,ce,,,,:,ci:,,:,,:.+s.'¼,:,:,,,., 

b Did the organization file Form 1120-POL for this year? . . . . . . . . . . 
38a Did the organization borrow from, or make any loans to, any officer, director, trustee, or key employee; or were 

any such loans made in a prior year and still outstanding at the end of the tax year covered by this return? 

b If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part 11, and enter the total amount involved 1-3_8_b.,+-------L 
39 Section 501 (c)(7) organizations. Enter: 

a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on line 9 . . . . . 1-3_9_a.,+--------1 
b Gross receipts, included on line 9, for public use of club facilities ~3_9_b~-----

40a Section 501 (c)(3) organizations. Enter amount of tax imposed on the organization during the year under: 
section 4911 ► _______ ; section 4912 ► _______ ; section 4955 ► 

b Section 501 (c)(3), 501 (c)(4), and 501 (c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in any section 4958 
excess benefit transaction during the year, or did it engage in an excess benefit transaction in a prior year 
that has not been reported on any of its prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part I 

c Section 501 (c)(3), 501 (c)(4), and 501 (c)(29) organizations. Enter amount of tax imposed 
on organization managers or disqualified persons during the year under sections 4912, 
4955, and 4958 . . . . . . . . . . . . . ► 

d Section 501 (c)(3), 501 (c)(4), and 501 (c)(29) organizations. Enter amount of tax on line 
40c reimbursed by the organization . . . . . . . . . . . . . ► 

e All organizations. At any time during the tax year, was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter 
transaction? If "Yes," complete Form 8886-T . . . . . 

41 List the states with which a copy of this return is filed ► 

42a The organization's books are in care of ►------------------------------------------------------------ Telephone no. ► ------------------------------
Located at ► ZIP+ 4 ► 

b At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in or a signature or other authority over 
a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? 

If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country ► 
See the instructions for exceptions and filing requirements for FinCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and 
Financial Accounts (FBAR). 

c At any time during the calendar year, did the organization maintain an office outside the United States? 
If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country ► 

43 Section 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trusts filing Form 990-EZ in lieu of Form 1041-Check here ►□ 
and enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the tax year . . . ► ~43~-------

44a Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds during the year? If "Yes," Form 990 must be 
completed instead of Form 990-EZ . . . . 

b Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities during the year? If "Yes," Form 990 must be 
completed instead of Form 990-EZ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

c Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the year? . . 
d If "Yes" to line 44c, has the organization filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No," provide an 

explanation in Schedule O . . 

45a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? 
b Did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled entity within the 

meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If "Yes," Form 990 and Schedule R may need to be completed instead of 
Form 990-EZ. See instructions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 45b ✓ 

Form 990-EZ (2020) 



Form 990-EZ (2020) Page 4 
Yes No 

46 Did the organization engage, directly or indirectly, in political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition 
to candidates for public office? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part I . 

Section 501 (c)(3) Organizations Only 
All section 501 (c)(3) organizations must answer questions 47-49b and 52, and complete the tables for lines 
50 and 51. 
Check if the organization used Schedule O to respond to any question in this Part VI □ 

Yes No 
47 Did the organization engage in lobbying activities or have a section 501 (h) election in effect during the tax 

year? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part II 47 ✓ 
48 Is the organization a school as described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii)? If "Yes," complete Schedule E 48 ✓ 
49a Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related organization? 49a ✓ 

b If "Yes," was the related organization a section 527 organization? 49b 
50 Complete this table for the organization's five highest compensated employees (other than officers, directors, trustees, and key 

employees) who each received more than $100,000 of compensation from the organization. If there is none, enter "None." 

(a) Name and title of each employee 
(b) Average 

hours per week 
devoted to position 

(d) Health benefits, 
(c) Reportable contributions to employee (e) Estimated amount of 
compensation 

(Forms w-2/ 1099_MISC) benefit plans, and deferred other compensation 
compensation 

None 

.► f Total number of other employees paid over $100,000 ---------
51 Complete this table for the organization's five highest compensated independent contractors who each received more 

$100,000 of compensation from the organization. lfthere is none, enter "None." 

(a) Name and business address of each independent contractor (b) Type of service (c) Compensation 

none 

d Total number of other independent contractors each receiving over $100,000 .► ----------------
52 Did the organization complete Schedule A? Note: All section 501 (c)(3) 

completed Schedule A 
0 r g an i z at ions must attach a 

. ► 0 Yes D No 
Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is 
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge. 

Sign 
Here 

► Signature of officer 

► Judy Enns 
Type or print name and title 

I 
Date 

P · t/T , I Preparer's signature I Date I D 
I 

I Paid rm ype preparers name Check if 

Preparer 1---------------__,_---------------'----~---'-s_e_lf-_e_m_pl_o_ye_d..L..-_____ ~/· 

PTIN 

Use Only 1-F_i_rm_'s_na_m_e __ ►----------------------------+I_F_ir_m_'s_E_IN_► __________ I, 
I Phone no. Firm's address ► 

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See instructions ► D Yes D No 

Form 990-EZ (2020) 



C') 
(t) 
;:1,. 

r 
C') 
0 

"C 
~ 

Certificate of Amendment of Articles of Incorporation 

The undersigned certify that: 

FILED 
Secretary of State 
State of California 

A0860025 

rihni <\Zumbcr 

0313ono21 

Filin!I Dale 

1. They are the president and the secretary, respectively, of NORTH COUNTY IMMIGRATION 
AND CITIZENSHIP CENTER, a California corporation, with California Entity Number C3567665 

2. Article 1 of the Articles of Incorporation of this corporation is amended to read as follows: The 
name of the corporation is PATHWAYS TO CITIZENSHIP 

3. The foregoing amendment of Articles of Incorporation has been duly approved by the board 
of directors 

4. The foregoing amendment of Articles of Incorporation has been duly approved by the 
required vote of the members as stated in the By-Laws. 

DATE: March 30, 2021 

ms . 
Executive · irector 

i2t. L Afart~,, 
Paula Nance 
Secretary 



( 

l 

INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 
P. 0. BOX 2508 
CINCINNATI, OH 45201 

iJate: 

NORTH COUNTY U'.!MIGRATION AND 
CITIZENSHIP CENTER 

120 STEVENS AVE 
SOLANA BEACH, CA 92075 

Dear Applicant: 

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 

Employer Identification Nu.T~er: 
46 2522640 

DLN: 
17053212384023 

Contact Person: 
SCOTT P BANTLY 

Contact Telephone Number: 
(877) 829 5500 

Accounting Period Ending: 
December 31 

Public Charity Status: 
170 (bl (1) (A) (vl) 

Form 990 Required: 
Yes 

Effective Date of Exemption: 
April 29, 2013 

Contribution Deductibility: 
Yes 

Addendum Applies: 
No 

ID# 31398 

We are pleased to inform you that upon review of your application for tax 
exempt status we have determined that you are exempt from ~ederal income tax 
under section S0l(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Contributions to you are 
deductible under section 170 of the Cede. You are also qualified to receive 
tax deductible bequests, devises, transfers or gifts under section 2055, 2106 
or 2522 of the Code. Because this letter could help resolve any questions 
regarding your exempt status, you should keep it in your permanent records. 

Organizations exempt under section 501(c) (3) of the Code are further classified 
as either public charities or private foundations. We determined that you are 
a public charity under the Code section(s) listed in the heading of this 
letter. 

Please see enclosed Publication 4221-PC, Compliance Guide for S0l(c) (3) Public 
Charities, for some helpful informatior1 about your responsibilities as an 
exempt organization. 

Sincerely, 

Director, Exempt Organizations 

Enclosure: Pub~ication 4221-PC 

Letter 941 (~0/CG} 



ARTS-PB 

- i-. S30 

Articles of Incorporation of a 
Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation 

/.:.. separate. ;1on-r~.~f!_;r:oaDie $15 s,:;rv1ce fee c~:s~.: r-r·1~,;s: lJ:.--: 1:1c:iuned. 
y,:;;L droi cf• !ii(~ cvrnp1eteci forn1 oi aocurLe;1! 

or 

"""5r-ir1 ("C°1 j. b /oo ... , 
,v:/ rt\ 

FILE oL-tJ 
il1 THE OFFiCE Of THE 

S£CRU/-.RY OF SH.TE 
THE ST f, TE o;: C ALIFORHIA 

APR 2 9 20/3 
frnportanU ~~,· r)r,1f1: ::~;r;:"Jorat,ons 1n Caiiforn1a are not autornal!ca!ly exernrH 
~rc:rr pa,_ ;np C:0!1fCJr~11c: fr~P-!cnise iax or incorne t0;,: ea~t-; year For 1nforrnar1on 

Corporate Purpo~c, ;Herr; :-::.J ~:r-:~c~- unt (H lAJlh !<.fx(:!., /t~}fL 

!lU!/'t~sc::. o; J' u1l•,•:1c :,, ... H:~)J\ !:f J;:1.~.~8xt.:1::ip: s:atu~, :;, -Cnii!r:~:n,-~ 

for the pnvats gain of any person. It 1s 

.:=J public 0 charitable purposes. 

ucate ang__fhci_mabl assist immigrants on citizenship 

Service of Process (L:sl z, Caiiforrna res1do11! o; an ~1cuvR 1505 corr,orat•oP in California a1,.;L i1gree:; to bf::' your initial agent to accept service of process 
:i~r r;:

1
~

4

~r~~
1
~\~:~~~;~~~:c;:,

1
~
1
~~~ You rnay lls~ any aduH v/nr; !,vus ,., Ca!ii:>rn;a You may not !isl J"):Jf O'.\T corporation as t1~1e agent Do not list an address 1f 

t, 1318 Wa!nutview D'.· Enc:nitas 

Corpo,ate Addresses 

120 Stevens Avenue . Solana _Beach, CA 9207_5 ___ _ 
fnn abiJrev1aticns) Zip 

-----------
tnj(I_ 1 · .-/,::·L .-;.:.,.,--f,o-;;<;:,, ,1 1 ('"o: ,Jt•-- .-~,,~ r Zip 

o hJC: sut)sc1;:;:r1!1a! p<.fft of tnf:', act:v1tlt-~~. o: Uu~~ c:(:irporaticn st·1ali cons1s: oi c2.rry1rlfJ on propagancia. o;-- otherv,ise attempting 
tc 1nf1ue,;cv leg!sial1on. anc! t111s corp:Jrat,on shall not parucipate o: !'ltervene 1n any political can1paIgr, (including the 

any d1r8cto1, officer or rnen1be: tr1ereof or to the 

1'.,f1iii-S • ,:r:·:,.;' :,;Jh;:,· w,:v,,- 'rJ,c'rJ ,:; !-C:;a 

!Jfr~. ni q~ t, 1_· ;:-,!~J/H~G U\ ,~ilcr: H)(:,:-;qJo,..,.i_r i: v·h •;,•t' 

!!C; > ~ ~·, l..11 .1rt.-.. chrn(•n:: r1r'.· •:;w:;~ .1:-· 

r.,::7H:·· sr;e.:t;/rnrJney 01(1-...:r ;J~l/Z1!.)!t· !C: Secrc:tary of St:::1t2 By hiai:' 

U;K fdlilfj \Vf:, Vr'll' ret:..irr, 0..-1~ '.1 \ L:n:::ertifieC :::;)pv o: 
hiec e1oc:urr,en: k)r frr1c- tine! v.:;il cen+: \'.1:/ 





C 

L 

krm W-9 Request for Taxpayer 
Identification Number and Certification m,,,. Otuirw201~ 

~ ol tl,f T~ 
~ Rlwlu~ ►Go.., _Jn.govlFomrWI to, lnllNCUonsand the '-1Nt Womurtlon. 

Give Fom, to the 
requester. Do not 
aend to the IRS. 

I ChedL~• DOX tar~ IIIHl!IHIIICalicn Qt,,.. pe!!JOn llflOMIWNI • 11111etectan lne 1 Cl..:il ont, anect UM ' i:AOfl'rA,Ottetcods ..,on~ U> 
tclb'11"9 le>'ell boN& CIIRain .-t•• nat tnl.hllfUA. tell 

~ll'Won~ 

Taxpayer Identification Nwnber (TIN) _ ___ _ 

~~~ 
LUJ-[l]-LL_IJ 

f:ntef yair TIN ~ tlle apf)l'Opn.-11• boll TII& TIN l)IOli'IOed fflJlt INl.ch 11111 r,,ame glYIO on -ne 1 to in'Old 
lleclwp wlthholcli~ fot lndlvkaJals, th• ls GOne"lllY '/041 ~ .!HIO.lrcy numb« (SS~ 1<1-.r, fore 
nsdllnt lllln. 9CJlli propteor o, d.aregarded ant ty, tee the lnsttua10nl ,or Patt I, bier. For Qlhlf 
~ •••)QI ~ldlnllr.caton n~(i:fl) If you do r,ot fllf"e •~.-How 10 gef • 
TIN,la"M 

Note: ,. the acoaunt la In mot~ then 009 name, 91!11 the lnstf\lC1iorll '.or llne , . Also - What Ntltrtt: 111'\tf 
foAJmbef To Gnw a,,. Re,qc;....., b ~.,,_ on ~ r&1mber to..-«. 

Certification -;..;..,;;.;.;;.;,;._ __________ _ 
Under penaltln OI p«ilJIY, l~rfycnat. 
1. The ninc>er atlOWII on tl'1lf fOffl'I • my ~ ta11peyer ldtntit'Glllon nlnlOe' 401 I am ,.,.rig for a nll!WMY ,o be IUU9d to me); and 
2. I Im not IUbjlct to baekup w•tttolOlng baC11UH; (a) I .im MefflPI ffom b.lckup wllltloldlng, « lb) I ri ..... not been notified by Ule IMtm'II Rl,\-.nu41 

Service CIRS) ltlll I ;am ~ect 10 b:N:Kap Wltnholdlng M ll mu• of I tatur• to ,epon llU r,t.,..t O!' dlvlderds, « (0) ttle IRS ft8S oolted me Cllat I am 
'10 lanOef Mljtcl 10 bidGJp wllhholdng: llrld 

3. I ,m I U,S.. clliun o, ottie, U,S, penon 4d8f\ned btlcW) • .-,cl 

.c. Tile FATCA eodo{$I entered OIi this lorm(lt anyi Jnclcating 1h.,t I lf1\8K~ flam FATC,.IIO()(tln,g II 00f'NICI. 

c.tNIGatlon ~ Ycu ~ CRIii out llern 2 ~ti yo11 hlYI beell l'Olffi9d IJVOII IRSthll you.-~ afJfect IO~ wtttmlcll,ig beel&JoJI 
~ llaY9 IISed to~ al IIIC#llitelld cto;lder'los an ,p, i.,c t9flll'II. For ia cute 1renMCti0m, llem 2 dOM no, 11>1> '/ fOf mc111!J1V1 Int.,_ lllkl, 
e,cqi.ieClCln Of~ of NCU'1ld , c:en0!l1ltllon QI o.tic. contrl)IA(WIS to II\ tnd11•dall rallrem"1111tr9Cl1Wlt fl'W, and~- pllyfflen'.J 
O'llter 11\an lnt.rmt •rid dvlClet'ldS . 019 19111-'red to siw, the -1ttleallCt1, but yo.a ITMlt p~dl ycu, COffllCt TIN S.. Clle ll!tlniet.ons fO' Po,t , lillar 

Sign 
Here 

$9CUoi1 rwlefenoes - to the Internal An1!n"9 Co0e lll~S Cllhetvnl:e 
"otecs 
F\mn di ~elapmenta fi-Of the 121'.m:: ll'lbma1kltl lil>cXa ~ 
~ 10 F-orm W-9 end Its lnslvcrionl, IUCh • ~lelt'I IOIC!ec! 
aftef lheiy-. ~ . go 10 .,_n oo,/formM. 

Purpose of Form 
An 1rolllella 01 enuy (Rlrm w-11 ~-..t,o • ~Ired to :m ;iri 

lr'.ormMlcn mum WCh 1M IRS n-u:;t oocaln yo.II CO'Tl!Ci t~ 
lcleO!irlcillboi n"'1bel' (TIN) v.t'llch m.y be ycor 100lol $«Nr11Y nl.fl'lber 
(SSH). incliYlcillli ~• ldlmci1b:kltl number OTINl, odoptlOO 
taxpaycir oent."ICWln IV!W(ATIN). or ffllPbJer ocnt"'1C1110n l'U'T'lbef 
IEINl, to rwl)Qft en _.. lmo-ntmicn rllC..n> Ill& l!lmCUlt pald to yo4,1 CY OClle, 
amoum f111P011aible on an lr,farm;ulorl rteum. Eumple$ ot flfo!mllbO!I 
1'11Urris ioclucle but are not limlteo to, I.lie faUawing 

• f orm 1~T ~ mmed or palcl) 

C.t. No l0?31'1t 

2;, 

• Fom- 1099 DIV td"lldends, lncud,ig t:ION t!on'l llOCks Of ITVba. "',. 
• Fc,,m 1099 MISC (Vif10ill types of flCQffl9, prtzN, av.arda, 0t g,o11 
prooeedsl 
• fem, 1-.e ~U>ek or mi.m:il ~ A.181 and t:ertair other 
tr1Slacitiol'ta by bfO'll!rll 

• Ferm 1099-S CPfOCOlld• tom re,: e91ate tnnuational 
• Form 1099-f( (mllf'Cham card anct lhftl p1W1y retoAm ttansaciol9> 
• Fenn 1C98 ~ mo,toagi, ~). 1088-f Cll!Jdln( kW\ nta~ 
1098 T (turUorlf 
• Fonn 1098-C (canceled dl'CIC) 

• fOffT' 1098-A (llcq.sisll10n r, ~ d -=incl~ 
UM Form W-9 «'If 'you CINI a us, ()8t80n j rtaudng. r-.oen1 

ai.,,f. to prCW>de ~ cormc::t TIN 

H)'O<I do riottetumFOlffl w.o ro lfie~"l!\'w/Ut1 ril\J, .rou mtjll'lr 
OIi ~ CO l>8CkllP WIVIIIOl'dl'IO S.. Whal a~ wilhtio~ 
IQl'W 

F«:,i w-e,.... ,0-201 111 

Soom > J1t,a.i fdir 101; 





( 

L 

City of Solana Beach 
Community Grant Program 

Request for Financial Assistance 
FY 2021-22 APPLICATION 

All Applications MUST BE RECEIVED by 5:00 p.m. Tuesday, May 25, 2021. 
Please Print Clearly or Type 

All requests will be determined by the following criteria: 

Name of Organization: San Diego Green Building Council (SDGBC) 

Mailing Address: 3830 Valley Centre Dr, Suite 705 PMB 285 
City San Diego State CA Zip 92130 
Contact Person: Colleen Fitzsimons 
Daytime Phone:_8_5_8_-3_5_7_-3_0_1_1 __________________ _ 
Evening Phone:_9_1_7_-6_9_0_-1_4_0_9 _______________ ___ _ 

Email address: colleen@sd-gbc.org 

1. W-9 must be attached 

2. 

Summary of organization's budget must be attached 
Proposed program budget must be attached 
Financial and Tax Statements (see Application Guidelines) must be attached 

A copy of the California Franchise Tax Board Entity Status Letter must be attached, 
showing exemption under Section 23701d or Internal Revenue Code section 
501(c)(3) 

3. Has your organization received financial assistance from the City before? 
Yes □ No [g] 

If yes, what activities and which fiscal year? _ _ _ _ ___ _ _____ _ 

4. Amount requested for FY 2021-22 $ 5,000 - Solana Beach staff time including overhead 

5. Proposed Total Program Costs: $ $11 ,505 - 2021 operational budget including overhead 

(Includes all estimated costs to conduct proposed activity/program.) 

6. Tltle of Proposed Program/Service: Electric Home Cooktop Program (EHCP) 

7. Grant funds must be used for services or materials directly associated to proposed 
activity. Please describe how grant funds will be used: 

The Electric Home Cooktop Program, is a free program providing 3-week loans 
of portable induction cooktops (in a kit with a compatible pan and magnet to test 
personal pots and pans). Grant funds are being requested to staff the reservation, 
distribution, intake and sanitizing / cleaning of the loaner kits. The specific grant 
request 1s based on the average staff time required every 3 week - 5 hours 



8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

(Attach extra sheet, if necessary.) 

Estimated number of S.B. residents to be served by proposed program: 52 - 104 max 

Program Dates/Location: 
The EHCP has a distribution event every 3 weeks at the La Goiania Community 
Center, 715 Valley Ave, Solana Beach, CA 92075 

Anticipated Program Objectives or Accomplishments: 

The objective of the program is to allow Solana Beach residents the opportunity to 
try out induction cooking at home to better understand the benefits of using this new 
technology to more efficiently cook while also reducing harmful gases in the home. 
Add1t1onally, this supports the overall reduction of greenhouse gases m the atmosphere 
and helps the City of Solana Beach meet GHG reduction goals. 

How will the organization acknowledge the City's financial contribution to the 

community/ beneficiaries of the proposed activity? 
The City of Solana Beach will be acknowledged on the program website as a 
partner in the program. The cit of Solana Beach logo can also be added to the 
flyer for the program that is used to let the La Goiania community know about the 
program. 

12. Will there be any matching funds or other grants that would be applied to this 
program or service? If awarded this grant, will that enable other funding sources? r, 

During fund raising at the launch of the program, we were fortunate to receive a l ... 
matching funds grant from Futures Unbound. The successful operation of the program~,/ 
will garner attention & donations for the program. However, at this time there is no 
matching grant program that we are aware of or at least none which we are 
pursuing at this time. 

13. Will volunteers be used for the proposed program or service and, if so, will they 

reduce expenses? 
We would like to use volunteers to staff the distribution events but as the program 
has just recently launched we are still relying on SDGBC staff to do this work and 
thus we are requesting the grant to help support that cost and the associated 

overhead. 

14. If the proposed program or service is only awarded partial funding, will it still move 

forward? Will the program or service be scaled back and/or is there a threshold at 
which it will not move forward? 

We will still contune to provide this community serving program even without this 
grant. However, the grant will make all the difference in our ability to continue to 

do outreach and other demonstrations to bring awareness of the program to 
Solana Beach residents. 



( 

( 

L 

Acknowledgment of Responsibility: 
Authorized Signature assumes all responsibility for developing and implementing 
proposed activities or events in this application, including public acknowledgment of the 
City's financial contribution. Authorized signature will comply with all accounting and 
budget procedures outlined by the City. Authorized signature and accompanying group 
will hold harmless the City of Solana Beach from all losses, claims, accidents and 
problems associated, directly or indirectly with the development and implementation of 
proposed activities or events. 

~~ May 25, 2021 

Authorized Signature of Organization Date 

ALL INFORMATION REQUESTED ON THIS APPLICATION MUST BE COMPLETED AS A CONDITION FOR BEING 
CONSIDERED FOR PUBLIC FUNDS BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF SOLANA BEACH. 



Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Give Form to the 
(Rev. August 2013) Identification Number and Certification 

requester. Do not 
Department of the Treasury send to the IRS. 
Internal Revenue Service 

{~_¥) Name (as shown on your income tax return) 

U. S. Green Building Council - San Diego Chapter 

C\i Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above 
Q) $an Diego Green Building Council Cl 
ro 
Cl. Check appropriate box for federal tax classification: Exemptions (see instructions): 
C 
0 D Individual/sole proprietor [Z] C Corporation D S Corporation □ Partnership D Trust/estate 

Ill 1/J 
C. § Exempt payee code (if any) 
~.:: 

□ Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=partnership) ► ,._ (..) Exemption from FATCA reporting 
0 2 

code (if any) ........ 
C: 1/J 
·- C: 

□ 
,.__ 

Other (see instructions) ► D. (..) 

:E 
(..) 

Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) Requester's name and address (optional) 
Ill 3830 Valley Centre Dr. Ste 705 PMB 285 C. 
rn City, state, and ZIP code Q) 
Q) 

$an Diego, CA 92130 Cf) 

List account number(s) here (optional) 

-~· -■ Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) 
Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on the "Name" line I Social security number I . . . . . . . . . . 
to avoid backup withholding. For 1nd1v1duals, this 1s your social security number (SSN). However, for a 
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the Part I instructions on page 3. For other 
entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a 
TIN on page 3. 

[II] -[D -I I I I I 
Note. If the account is in more than one name, see the chart on page 4 for guidelines on whose 
number to enter. 

I Employer identification number 

20 -2614848 

Certification 
Under penalties of perjury, I certify that: 

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me), and 

2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue 
Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am 
no longer subject to backup withholding, and 

3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below), and 

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct. 

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding 
because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage 
interest paid, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and 
generally, payments other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the 
instructions on page 3. 

Sign Signature of ~ ~ 
Here U.S. person ► · J - Date ► 2/15/2021 

General Instructions 
Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise noted. 

Future developments. The IRS has created a page on IRS.gov for information 
about Form W-9, at www.irs.gov/w9. lnfonnation about any future developments 
affecting Form W-9 (such as legislation enacted after we release it) will be posted 
on that page. 

Purpose of Form 
A person who is required to file an information return with the IRS must obtain your 
correct taxpayer identification number (TIN) to report, for example, income paid to 
you, payments made to you in settlement of payment card and third party network 
transactions, real estate transactions, mortgage interest you paid, acquisition or 
abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, or contributions you made 
to an IRA. 

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident alien), to 
provide your correct TIN to the person requesting it (the requester) and, when 
applicable, to: 

1. Certify that the TIN you are giving is correct (or you are waiting for a number 
to be issued), 

2. Certify that you are not subject to backup withholding, or 

3. Claim exemption from backup withholding if you are a U.S. exempt payee. If 
applicable, you are also certifying that as a U.S. person, your allocable share of 
any partnership income from a U.S. trade or business is not subject to the 

withholding tax on foreign partners' share of effectively connected income, and 

4. Certify that FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that you are 
exempt from the FATCA reporting, is correct. 

Note. If you are a U.S. person and a requester gives you a form other than Form 
W-9 to request your TIN, you must use the requester's form if it is substantially 
similar to this Fann W-9. 

Definition of a U.S. person. For federal tax purposes, you are considered a U.S. 
person if you are: 

• An individual who is a U.S. citizen or U.S. resident alien, 

• A partnership, corporation, company, or association created or organized in the 
United States or under the laws of the United States, 

• An estate (other than a foreign estate), or 

• A domestic trust (as defined in Regulations section 301. 7701-7). 

Special rules tor partnerships. Partnerships that conduct a trade or business in 
the United States are generally required to pay a withholding tax under section 
1446 on any foreign partners' share of effectively connected taxable income from 
such business. Further, in certain cases where a Form W-9 has not been 
the rules under section 1446 require a partnership to presume that a partner is a 
foreign person, and pay the section 1446 withholding tax. Therefore, if you are a 
U.S. person that is a partner in a partnership conducting a trade or business in the 
United States, provide Form W-9 to the partnership to establish your U.S. status 
and avoid section 1446 withholding on your share of partnership income. 

Cat. No. 10231X Form W-9 (Rev. 8-2013) 



SAN DIEGO GREEN BUILDING COUNCIL BUDGET TOTAL 
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jan '21 - Jun '21 

Income 

Contract Income 
Energy Innovation Center 3,000.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 7,500.00 

Regional Green Business Network 500.00 500.00 500.00 1,500.00 

SD Workforce Partnership 1,500.00 1,500.00 

SDG&E 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 4,000.00 

SD County 0.00 

Greenbuild (lnforma) 0.00 

Legacy Project 0.00 

Total contract income 0.00 0.00 4,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 4,500.00 14,500.00 

Corp Membership & Sponsorship 

Member Dues Companies (USGBC national) 3,000.00 3,000.00 6,000.00 

Corporate Sponsorship Income 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 15,000.00 

Total Corp Membership & Sponsorship 2,500.00 2,500.00 5,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 5,500.00 21,000.00 

Individual contributions 

lndvidual Membership 725.00 725.00 725.00 725.00 725.00 725.00 4,350.00 

Individual Program support 2,500.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 2,900.00 

Individual sponosorships 315.00 315.00 315.00 315.00 315.00 315.00 1,890.00 

Total individual contributions 1,040.00 3,540.00 1,140.00 1,140.00 1,140.00 1,140.00 9,140.00 

Events/Education 

Education 0.00 

Event Ticket sales 100.00 100.00 100.00 500.00 100.00 100.00 1,000.00 

Event sponsorships 750.00 250.00 5,000.00 250.00 6,250.00 

Total events income 1 DO.DO 850.00 350.00 5,500.00 100.00 350.00 7,250.00 

Grant Income 

San Diego Foundation (NZW) 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 4,000.00 
Environmental Champions I SDG&E 1,875.00 1,875.00 1,875.00 1,875.00 1,875.00 1,875.00 11,250.00 
Ronald McDonald House GAP 1,000.00 1,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 10,000.00 

NEW GRANT(SJ 2,500.00 5,000.00 7,500.00 
Total grant income 3,875.00 3,875.00 4,875.00 7,375.00 3,875.00 8,875.00 32,750.00 

In-Kind Income 1,500.00 750.00 2,250.00 

Interest Income 0.00 

PPP#1 Loan Forgiveness 33,000.00 

PPP#2 Loan Forgiveness 36,000.00 

Loan Forgiveness 33,000.00 36,000.00 69,000.00 

Total Income 9,015.00 11,515.00 48,865.00 19,515.00 10,615.00 56,365.00 155,890.00 

Gross Profit 155,890.00 

Expense 
Event & Program Expenses 

Website (monthly hosting fee) 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 3,000.00 
Education 2,000.00 2,000.00 
Green Assistance Program - S3 1,000.00 1,000.00 
Net Zero Water 0.00 
Committees (GADS, LFC, WiG, GHT) 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 300.00 
Socials/ SDGBC Events 500.00 500.00 
Regional GBN Expenses (decals, events) 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 300.00 
Legacy Project 0.00 
Cooktop Loaner Program 8,500.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 8,700.00 
Marketing and PR program expenses 0.00 
Member benefits 0.00 

Total Event & Program Expenses 600.00 9,100.00 1,650.00 650.00 650.00 3,150.00 15,800.00 

Strategic development 

Board of Directors 0.00 

Staff 0.00 0.00 675.00 675.00 0.00 0.00 1,350.00 

Total strategic developemnt 0.00 0.00 675.00 675.00 0.00 0.00 1,350.00 

General & Administrative 

Accounting 

Bookkeeping 600.00 600.00 600.00 600.00 600.00 600.00 3,600.00 

Accounting - Other (Taxes) 1,300.00 1,300.00 

Total Accounting 600.00 600.00 600.00 600.00 1,900.00 600.00 4,900.00 



SAN DIEGO GREEN BUILDING COUNCIL BUDGET TOTAL 
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jan '21 - Jun '21 

Bank Charges 

1,2° 1 Credit Card Processing Fees 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 
Service charges 20.00 20.00 20.00 20.00 20.00 20.00 121J.v0 

Total Bank Charges 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 220.00 1,320.00 
Computers and Software 

Computers 0.00 
Software 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 900.00 

Total Computers and software 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 900.00 
Insurance 

General Liability 853.00 853.00 
Insurance - D&O 0.00 
Insurance - E&O 0.00 
Insurance - Workers Comp 638.00 1,150.00 1,788.00 
Special insurance (events) 500.00 500.00 

Total Insurance 1,491.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 1,150.00 3,141.00 
Other administrative 

License and subscriptions (zoom) 400.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 650.00 
Office Supplies 0.00 
Postage & Delivery 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 30.00 
Rent or Lease (mailbox) 172.00 172.00 
Telephone 130.00 130.00 130.00 130.00 130.00 130.00 780.00 
Travel/Parking 0.00 
Meeting expenses Uimbos) 0.00 
Storage 181 .00 181 .00 181.00 181.00 181.00 181.00 1,086.00 
Utilities 0.00 

Total other administrative 888.00 366.00 366.00 366.00 366.00 366.00 2,718.00 
Total General & Administrative 3,349.00 1,336.00 1,336.00 1,836.00 2,636.00 2,486.00 12,979.00 
In-Kind Expense 1,500.00 750.00 2,250.00 
Independent Contractors 

1,50 

Programming 

Education 500.00 500.00 500.00 
Advocacy 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 2,000.00 
Programs 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 2,000.00 
Strategic 0.00 

Indirect 
Marketing 100.00 100.00 100.00 200.00 100.00 100.00 700.00 
Photography 0.00 

Total Independent contractors 600.00 1,100.00 1,100.00 1,700.00 600.00 1,100.00 6,200.00 
Personnel 

Payroll Expenses - Other 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 6,000.00 
Salaries 18,275.00 18,275.00 18,275.00 18,275.00 18,275.00 18,275.00 109,650.00 

Total Personnel 19,275.00 19,275.00 19,275.00 19,275.00 19,275.00 19,275.00 115,650.00 
Reserves (planned 'savings') 0.00 

Total Expense 25,324.00 31,561.00 24,036.00 24,136.00 23,161.00 26,011.00 154,229.00 
Net Income (16,309.00) (20,046.00) 24,829.00 (4,621.00) (12,546.00) 30,354.00 1,661.00 

MONTHLY ----- -- 276.83 



( 

L 

SDGBC Electric Home Cooktop Loaner Program Budget E rrRIC 
H@ME 
COOKTOP 
PROGRAM 

PHASE ONE - Launch March 2021 
$3,005 12 Cooktop Kits + 10 additional donated 
$1 ,500 Website Development ($1,500 site design, hybrid res system) 

$250 Insurance/Waiver review 
$700 Outreach & Marketing Materials 

$3,000 Program Development 
$8,455 Fixed Startup Costs 

$3,900 Labor - Solana Beach distribution site (17days*5hours*$45/hr) 
$3,900 Labor - SD downtown distribution site (17days*5hours*$45/hr) 

$500 Website maintenance 
$300 Cleaning supplies 
$250 Replacement equipment & materials 

$8,850 Annual Operating Costs 
$5,192 30% Overhead 

$22,497 Total Year 1 - Phase One Costs 



Accrual Basis US Green Building Council, San Diego Chapter Balance Sheet As of February 28, 2021 

ASSETS 

Current Assets 

Checking/Savings 

Checking-UBOC 3811 

Money Market-UBOC 1826 

Total Checking/Savings 

Accounts Receivable 

Accounts Receivable 

Total Accounts Receivable 

Other Current Assets 

Prepaid D & 0 Insurance 

Prepaid E&O Insurance 

Prepaid Liability Insurance 

Prepaid Workers Comp Insurance 

Total Other Current Assets 

Total Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES & EQUITY 

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 

Accounts Payable 

Accounts Payable 

Total Accounts Payable 

Other Current Liabilities 

Accrued Vacation Payable 

Deferred Revenue E. C. 

Deferred Revenue SDF NZW 

Loan Disb/AFS 

Total Other Current Liabilities 

Total Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Equity 

Unrestricted Net Assets 

32000 · Retained Earnings 

Net Income 

Total Equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 

Feb 28, 21 

78,207.71 

109,248.32 

187,456.03 

4,441.67 

4,441.67 

847.49 

1,742.48 

1,226.24 

1,187.00 

5,003.21 

196,900.91 

196,900.91 

13,767.74 

13,767.74 

3,320.43 

7,500.00 

1,344.07 

47,792.00 

59,956.50 

73,724.24 

73,724.24 

91,589.78 

77,813.33 

-46,226.44 

123,176.67 

196,900.91 

Page of1 



03/22/21 Accrual Basis US Green Building Council, San Diego Chapter Profit Loss July 2020 through February 2021 
Jul20 Au220 Sep 20 Oct 20 Nov20 Dec20 Jan 21 Feb 21 TOTAL 

Income 

Contract & Grant Income 

Contract Income 

Energy Innovation Center -60.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 -60.00 2,940.00 0.00 2,566.67 8,386.67 

Green Build Conference 

Legacy Project 0.00 11,043.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 25.00 11,068.75 

Green Build Conference - Other 2i727.27 2i727.27 2i727.27 2i727.27 2i727.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 131636.38 

Total Green Build Conference 2,727.27 13,771.02 2,727.27 2,727.27 2,727.30 0.00 0.00 25.00 24,705.13 

Local Gov. Partnership 

City of Chula Vista 8,130.00 3,889.70 7,650.00 7,780.00 0.00 7,020.00 0.00 0.00 34,469.70 

City of San Diego 5,400.00 5,540.00 7,116.00 5,390.00 6,260.00 6,775.00 0.00 0.00 36,481.00 

Local Gov. Partnership - Other -418.30 -229.06 -77.50 0.00 -263.40 0.00 -265.60 -135.50 -11389.36 

Total Local Gov. Partnership 13,111.70 9,200.64 14,688.50 13,170.00 5,996.60 13,795.00 -265.60 -135.50 69,561.34 

Ronald McDonald House 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10 000.00 0.00 10 000.00 

Total Contract Income 15,778.97 22,971.66 17,415.77 18,897.27 8,663.90 16,735.00 9,734.40 2,456.17 112,653.14 

Grant Income 

BPCP 2,100.00 1,500.00 2,025.00 1,650.00 0.00 875.00 0.00 0.00 8,150.00 

Environmental Champions/SDG&E 1,875.00 1,875.00 1,875.00 1,875.00 1,875.00 1,875.00 1,875.00 1,875.00 15,000.00 

San Diego Foundation 269.70 267.24 682.49 \176.48 \330.72 330.87 659.67 683.97 51401.14 

Total Grant Income 41244.70 31642.24 41582.49 4?01.48 31205.72 31080.87 21534.67 21558.97 281551.14 

Total Contract & Grant Income 20,023.67 26,613.90 21,998.26 23,598.75 11,869.62 19,815.87 12,269.07 5,015.14 141,204.28 

Corp Membership & Sponsorship 

Green Schools 0.00 4,000.00 2,750.00 9,960.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 16,710.00 

Living Building Collaborative 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 35.00 35.00 

Member Dues Companies 

USGBC-National 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.272.50 0.00 0.00 1 792.50 0.00 4 065.00 

Total Member Dues Companies 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,272.50 0.00 0.00 1,792.50 0.00 4,065.00 

Sponsorship Income Corp Don. 51000.00 21000.00 0.00 250.00 0.00 51060.00 0.00 31500.00 151810.00 

Total Corp Membership & Sponsorship 5,000.00 6,000.00 2,750.00 12,482.50 0.00 5,060.00 1,792.50 3,535.00 36,620.00 

Events and Educational Income 

Events/Education Income 

Green Meets 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 

Lunch and LEED 0.00 0.00 0.00 565.00 15.00 15.00 45.00 80.00 720.00 

Socials 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10.00 40.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 

Women in Green 0.00 0.00 280.00 279.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 70.00 1,129.00 

Events/Education Income - Other 11109.87 0.00 0.00 650.29 21509.46 453.41 0.00 308.85 51031.88 

Total Events/Education Income 1,109.87 0.00 280.00 1,494.29 3,034.46 1,008.41 45.00 458.85 7,430.88 

Ticket Sales 0.00 50.00 50.00 0.00 85.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 185.00 

Total Events and Educational Income 1,109.87 50.00 330.00 1,494.29 3,119.46 1,008.41 45.00 458.85 7,615.88 

In-Kind Income 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 12,000.00 

lndv. Membership & Donations 

Donation Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 29.92 70.00 1,905.00 180.00 2,184.92 

Individual Sponsorships 1,000.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 2,500.00 

Member Dues Individual 

Membership Income 315.00 809.36 434.88 1i265.00 435.00 11185.00 882.41 \300.00 61626.65 

Total Member Dues Individual 315.00 809.36 434.88 11265.00 435.00 \185.00 882.41 11300.00 61626.65 

Total lndv. Membership & Donations 1,315.00 1,309.36 934.88 1,265.00 464.92 1,255.00 2,787.41 1,980.00 11,311.57 

Interest Income 4.00 4.00 3.87 3.87 4.00 4.00 7.65 8.37 39.76 

Total Income 281952.54 351477.26 271517.01 401344.41 161958.00 281643.28 181401.63 121497.36 208i791.49 

Gross Profit 28,952.54 35,477.26 27,517.01 40,344.41 16,958.00 28,643.28 18,401.63 12,497.36 208,791.49 

Expense Page 1 of 2 



03/22/21 Accrual Basis US Green Building Council, San Diego Chapter Profit Loss July 2020 through February 2021 
Jul20 Au!il20 see 20 Oct 20 Nov20 Dec20 Jan 21 Feb21 TOTAL 

Event & Program Expenses 
/""• 

Committees (GADS, LFC, WIG) 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,079.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,079/ 

Education/Socials 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 200.~o--'/ 

Educational Materials Exp 0.00 0.00 2,376.00 3,000.00 4,085.00 675.00 1,250.00 0.00 11,386.00 

Legacy Project Supplies 0.00 0.00 4,000.00 2,165.72 0.00 1,526.60 2,728.84 0.00 10,421.16 

Marketing and PR Program Expens 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,947.00 0.00 0.00 1,947.00 

Supplies-Events/Activities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,972.93 2,972.93 

Website 739.97 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 539.99 524.00 41303.96 

Total Event & Program Expenses 739.97 500.00 6,876.00 20,745.68 4,585.00 4,848.60 4,518.83 3,496.93 46,311.01 

Event Registration Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 278.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 278.50 

General & Administrative 

Accounting 

Accountant 600.00 600.00 600.00 600.00 600.00 600.00 600.00 600.00 41800.00 

Total Accounting 600.00 600.00 600.00 600.00 600.00 600.00 600.00 600.00 4,800.00 

Bank Charges 

Credit Card Processing Fees 119.99 119.99 119.99 119.99 119.99 127.80 212.78 45.00 985.53 

Service Charges 10.50 10.50 10.50 10.50 10.50 15.75 14.00 88.99 171.24 

Total Bank Charges 130.49 130.49 130.49 130.49 130.49 143.55 226.78 133.99 1,156.77 

Computers and Software 0.00 0.00 339.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 339.75 

Insurance 

General Liability 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 373.26 0.00 0.00 373.26 

Insurance• D&O 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 282.51 0.00 0.00 282.51 

Insurance• E&O 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1 742.52 0.00 0.00 

Total Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,398.29 0.00 0.00 2,398 

License & Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 20.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Office Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Organizational/Prof/Development 25.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 379.50 0.00 12.54 0.00 417.04 

Postage & Delivery 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 177.25 177.25 

Rent or Lease 168.00 168.00 168.00 181.00 181.00 181.00 181.00 181.00 1,409.00 

Subscriptions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 347.75 31.25 379.00 

Telephone 34.52 34.49 591.66 35.07 35.07 591.94 35.59 35.59 11393.93 

Total General & Administrative 958.01 932.98 1,829.90 966.56 1,326.06 3,914.78 1,403.66 1,159.08 12,491.03 

In-Kind Expense 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 12,000.00 

Independent Contractors 

Marketing 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 3,500.00 

Programs 71350.00 31500.00 71000.00 71000.00 0.00 7i700.oo 0.00 750.00 331300.00 

Total Independent Contractors 7,850.00 4,000.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 500.00 8,200.00 500.00 750.00 36,800.00 

Meeting Expense 0.00 0.00 10.00 20.00 0.00 43.29 0.00 250.00 323.29 

Personnel 

Insurance 

Workmans Comp 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 549.00 0.00 0.00 549.00 

Total Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 549.00 0.00 0.00 549.00 

Payroll Expenses• Other 

Health 924.00 924.00 924.00 924.00 924.00 1,424.00 1,270.00 1,116.00 8,430.00 

Staff Salary & Wages 15,208.32 15,208.32 15,208.32 15,208.32 15,208.32 17,977.49 16,516.66 15,816.66 126,352.41 

Taxes-Employer \234.12 11234.13 11234.11 1i234.13 11234.13 21089.68 1?90.75 11431.64 11 1482.(jP 

Total Payroll Expenses• Other 171366.44 171366.45 171366.43 171366.45 171366.45 21i491_17 19i577.41 
Ci: 

181364.30 1461265.\ 
<)w_~,- / 

Total Personnel 171366.44 171366.45 171366.43 171366.45 171366.45 221040.17 191577.41 181364.30 1461814.10 

Total Expense 281414.42 241299.43 351082.33 481098.69 251556.01 401546.84 271499.90 251520.31 2551017.93 

Net Income 538.12 11,177.83 -7,565.32 -7,754.28 -8,598.01 -11,903.56 -9,098.27 -13,022.95 -46,226.44 

Page 2 of 2 



Form 990 Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax 
Under section 501 (c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations) 

0MB No. 1545-0047 

(Rev. January 2020) 

► Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public. 
► Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. 

Open to Public 
Inspection 

For the 2019 ca endar vear or tax vear beammna 7/1/2019 and endina 6/30/2020 
B Check if applicable: C Name of organization U. S. Green Build in a Council San Dieoo Chapter D Employer identification number 

[x] Address change Doing business as San Dieoo Green Buildina Council 
Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address) 20-2614848 D Name change 

D Initial return 

!
Room/suite 

.,_3 ___ 8 ___ 3 __ 0_\/;_a_lle_N'--C_e_n_tr_e_D_ri_v_e ... , _S_u_it_e ..... 7_0 __ 5 _________ ___,c._P_M_B_2_8_5 ____ E Telephone number 

City or town State ZIP code 

San Dieqo CA 92130 
858-357-3011 

Foreign country name Foreign province/state/county Foreign postal code 

G Gross receipts S 530.736 

D Final return/terminated 

D Amended return 

D Application pending 0Yes[x] No 

Colleen FitzSimons 3830 Valley Centre Drive PMB 285, San Dieqo, CA ! H(b) Are all subordinates included? D Yes D No 

F Name and address of principal officer: H(a) Is this a group return for suoordinates? 

I Tax-exempt status: [xJ 501(c)(3) D 501(c) ( ) ◄ (insert no.) D 4947(a)(1) or D 527 If "No," attach a list. (see instructions) 

J Website: ► www.sd-qbc.orq H(c) Group exemption number ► 

K Form of organization: [xJ Corporation D Trust D Association D Olher ► I L Year of formation: 2005 I M State of legal domicile: CA 

n.mJI Summarv 

Q) 
::J 
C: 
Q) 

> 
Q) 

0:: 

Ill 
Q) 
Ill 
C: 
Q) 
C. 
X 
w 

LOI 
0" 

1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities: _lnspjre, educate and_collaborate toward ______________ _ 
true sustainabiltty of our_ build environment. We support the cause of workin.9 toward ________________________________________________ _ 
_g_reener builidin_g_s and healthier comm unities. _______________________________________________________________________________________ _ 

2 Check this box • D if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets. 
3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1 a) . 3 15 
4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1 b) . 4 15 
5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2019 (Part V, line 2a) . 5 6 
6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) . 6 50 
7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12 . 7a 0 

b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 99O-T, line 39 7b 0 

8 

9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16a 

b 
17 
18 
19 

Prior Year Current Year 

Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h). 416,626 476,664 
Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g) . 26,083 54,025 
Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d) . 47 47 
Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9c, 1 Oc, and 11 e) . 0 0 
Total revenue-add lines 8 throuah 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12). 442,756 530,736 
Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) . 0 0 
Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) . 0 0 
Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10). 192,009 269,695 
Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11 e) . 0 0 

Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) ► __ .o __ ~-·•-··· .. ···_•··--'-:_.<_ .. ·_.·•_.:.__,>,...}_·\_Y:_C,_, .. :·"-·<_?_ ···-"~··•-·-

Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24e). 190,203 243,772 
Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25). 382,212 513,467 
Revenue less exoenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12. 60,544 17,269 

Beginning of Current Year End of Year 
n g 
0

" 20 :-a 
:::! 21 

Total assets (Part X, line 16) . 
Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) . 

181,818 279,871 
29,684 110,468 

"C: 
z~ 22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20 152,134 169,403 

DHIIll _ _..;;;cS..;;.,ia .... n"'a=t=u'""r-"e_B--'-'lo_c'-k ____________________________________ _ 
Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge 
and belief, it is true, correc nd complete. De aration of rep rer (other than officer) is based on all information of which re arer has any knowled e. 

Sign 
Here 

Paid 

l reparer 
Jse Only 

Signature of officer 

Colleen FitzSimons 
Type or print name and title 

Print/Type preparer's name 

Ma F Jose h 

Fimn's name ► MFJ S stems 

Preparers signature 

Fimn's address ► 2356 Moore Street, San Die o, CA 92110 

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions) . 

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. 
HTA 

Date 

Executive Director 

Date 

5/14/2021 

5/14/2021 

PTIN 
Check [xJ if 

self-employed PO127O486 

Firm's EIN ► 95-3081496 

Phone no. 619-298-8280 

[xJ Yes 

Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019'-) ___ U_._S_._G""r""e""e-n""'B'-'u-il_d_in..._C-o_u;;.;n..;c;.;,.;il-'S-a-n;.,;D""i-e.,.o ___ C;.;.h;.;;a=te""r _________________ 2;;;.0 ... --2_6.;.14.;.8 ... 4..;8;;.._ __ P;.,;a=.e.:;;..2 

Statement of Program Service Accomplishments 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part Ill . □ 

1 Briefly describe the organization's mission: 

lns_pire,_educate and collaborate toward true sustainability of our build environment. We--------------------------------------------· f
suf?port the cause of working towardgreener builidings _ and healthier communities.----------------------------------------------------'·~j 

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on 
the prior Form 990 or 990-EZ? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule 0. 

D Yes 0 No 

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program 
services? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . D Yes 0 No 

If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule 0. 

4 Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by 
expenses. Section 501 (c)(3) and 501 (c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, 
the total expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reported. 

4a (Code: _______________ ) (Expenses$ _________ 19.Z.~1~- including grants of$ __________________ ) (Revenue$ ___________________ ) 

USGBC San Diego's mission is to inspjre, educate and_collaborate within our communi!)'. to transform ___________________________________ _ 
our built environment toward true sustainabilJty~.The oi:ganization, with a staff of four_peqple, _____________________________________________ _ 

is governed by a volunteer Board of Directors._ In FY2019-2020 the organization promoted _green----------------------------------------
buildings in the San Diegu re.9.ion t}y comptetin_g_programs such as educational events, __________________________________________________ _ 

sustainability prolects and_ other collaborations_ with local or.9.anizations. ___________________________ ----------------------------------------

__________________________________________________ (.''; 
4b (Code: _______________ ) (Expenses$ __________________ including grants of$ __________________ ) (Revenue$ ___________________ ) ,w/ 

During the_year we saw a _growth in our education I pro_g_rammin_g culminating_in our best attended _______________________________________ _ 

annual conference and_ expo in October of 2019. Topjcs included Health_ and Wellness, Resiliency ___ -----------------------------------
and New Zero. ____ Other i:iro9Iams such as Green A_pple _Day of Service, the Green Assistance------------------------------------------
Program and the Green Homes Tour all_ exganded _in 2019._ As we transitioned into 2020 we continued-----------------------------------
to provide education even when all of our_events and_[?ro9Iams had_togo virtual, successfulty ___________________________________________ _ 

makirlg the transition to new pJatforms and delivery _models.-------------------------------------------------------------------------------

4c (Code: _______________ ) (Expenses$ __________________ including grants of$ __________________ ) (Revenue$ ___________________ ) 

------ ---- -- ----- --- ----- ------------ ------------ ----- --- --- ----- --- --- -- --- --- -- ------------ ---- ---- ------------ ---- ----- -- ----- ---- --- ("•. 
4d Other program services (Describe on Schedule 0.) 

(Expenses $ 0 including grants of $ 0 ) (Revenue $ 0 ) 
4e Total program service expenses ► 4671813 

Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) U S Green Buildina Council San Dieqo Chanter 20-2614848 Page 3 
l:a.illllm1 Checklist of Reauired Schedules 

1 Is the organization described in section 501 (c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? If "Yes," 
complete Schedule A . 

~ Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see instructions)? . 

3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to 

candidates for public office? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part I . 
4 Section 501 (c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501 (h) 

election in effect during the tax year? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part II. 
5 Is the organization a section 501 (c)(4), 501 (c)(5), or 501 (c)(6) organization that receives membership dues, 

assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-19? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part Ill 
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors 

have the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If 
"Yes," complete Schedule 0, Part I . 

7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space, 
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If "Yes," complete Schedule 0, Part II . 

8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If "Yes," 
complete Schedule 0, Part Ill . 

9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a 
custodian for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt 
negotiation services? If "Yes," complete Schedule 0, Part IV. 

1 O Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments 
or in quasi endowments? If "Yes," complete Schedule 0, Part V. 

11 If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, 
VII, VIII, IX, or X as applicable. 

a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? If "Yes," complete 
Schedule 0, Part VI . . 

b Did the organization report an amount for investments-other securities in Part X, line 12, that is 5% or more 
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes, 11 complete Schedule 0, Part VII . . 

c Did the organization report an amount for investments-program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more 
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule 0, Part VIII . . 

d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets 
reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule 0, Part IX. . 

e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If "Yes," complete Schedule 0, Part X. . 
f Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses 

the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 7 40)? If "Yes,• complete Schedule D, Part X. 
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If "Yes," complete 

Schedule D, Parts XI and XII . . 
b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If "Yes," 

and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule 0, Parts XI and XII is optional . 
13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1 )(A)(ii)? If "Yes," complete Schedule E. 
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States?. 

b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more .than $10,000 from grantmaking, 
fundraising, business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate 
foreign investments valued at $100,000 or more? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts I and IV. 

15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or 
for any foreign organization? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts II and IV. 

16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other 
assistance to or for foreign individuals? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts Ill and IV. 

17 Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services 
on Part IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11 e? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part I (see instructions). 

18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on 
Part VIII, lines 1 c and Ba? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part II. 

19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? 

If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part Ill. 
Ja Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If "Yes," complete Schedule H. 
b If "Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? . 

21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or 
domestic qovernment on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts I and II. 

Yes No 

1 X 
2 X 

3 X 

4 X 

5 X 

6 X 

7 X 

8 X 

9 X 

10 X 
t 

I' 

11a X 

11 b X 

11c X 

11d X 
11e X 

11f X 

12a X 

12b X 
13 X 

14a X 

14b X 

15 X 

16 X 

17 X 

18 X 

19 X 
20a X 
20b 

21 X 

Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 2019) U S Green Buildina Council San Dieao Chaoter 

■:r.n•~'• Checklist of Reauired Schedules (continued) 

22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on 
Part IX, column (A), line 2? If "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts I and Ill. 

23 Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the 

organization's current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated 

employees? If "Yes," complete Schedule J . 
24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than 

$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 2002? If "Yes," answer Jines 
24b through 24d and complete Schedule K. If "No," go to line 25a . 

b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? . 

c Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year 
to defease any tax-exempt bonds? . 

d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of' issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? . 

25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit 
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part I . 

b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a 
prior year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 

990-EZ? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part I . 

26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current 

or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35% 
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part II. 

27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key 
employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee 

member, or to a 35% controlled entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these 
persons? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part Ill. 

28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, 
Part IV instructions, for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions): 

a A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? If 
lf"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV. 

b A family member of any individual described in line 28a? If "Yes, 11 complete Schedule L, Part IV. 

c A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in lines 28a or 28b? If 
lf"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV. 

29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If "Yes," complete Schedule M. 
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified 

conservation contributions? If "Yes, 11 complete Schedule M. 
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If "Yes," complete Schedule N, Part I 

32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? 
If "Yes," complete Schedule N, Part II. 

33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations 
sections 301.7701-2 and 301. 7701-3? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part I . 

34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part II, 
Ill, or IV, and Part V, line 1 . 

35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? . 

b If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled 
entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 

36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related 
organization? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . 

37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization 

and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part VJ. 

38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11 band 
19? Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule 0 .. 

■::r.1•••• Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V . 

1a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable. . . . . . . . 1a 

b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1 a. Enter -0- if not applicable . . . . . . . 1b 
c Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable 

amblin winnin s to rize winners? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

20-2614848 Page 4 

Yes No 

22 

23 X 

24a X 
24b X 

24c X 
24d X 

25a X 

25b X 

26 X 

27 X 

28c X 
29 X 

30 X 
31 X 

32 X 

33 X 

34 X 
35a X 

35b 

36 X 

37 X 

38 X 

8 
0 

1c X 
Form 990 (2019) 



2a 

.) 

3a 
b 

4a 

b 

5a 
b 
C 

6a 

b 

7 
a 

b 
C 

d 
e 

f 
g 
'1 

J 

9 
a 
b 

10 
a 
b 

11 
a 
b 

12a 
b 

13 
a 

b 

C 

14a 
b 

15 

20-2614848 Pae 5 
Statements Re Other IRS Filin s and Tax Com liance continued 

Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax 
Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return . 2a 6 

If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? . 

Note: If the sum of lines 1 a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file. (see instructions) 

Yes No 

Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? . . . . . ,__3a __ --+-_X_ 
If "Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If "No" to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O. . . . . 1--3b--+--+---
At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, 
a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? 

If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country ► ---------------------------------------------------------------------
See instructions for filing requirements for Fin GEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR). 

X 

Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? . . . . . . . . ,__5a __ --+-_X_ 

Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? . . . . . 1--Sb--+--+--X

lf "Yes" to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1--5c--+--+--
Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the 
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? . . . . . 6a X 

1----+--+---
lf "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or 
gifts were not tax deductible? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c). 
Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods 
and services provided to the payor? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

If "Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . . . . . 

Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was 
required to file Form 8282? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

lf"Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year. . . . . . . . . . . . . ~7d~------i 
Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? . . . . 

Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? . . . . . 

If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? . . 
If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? . 
Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the 
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? . . . . . . . . . . 

Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. 
Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966? . . . . . . 

Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? . 

Section 501 (c)(7) organizations. Enter: 

Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII, line 12. . . . . . . . . . . 

Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club facilities. 
Section 501 (c)(12) organizations. Enter: 

Gross income from members or shareholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources 

10a 
10b 

11a 

against amounts due or received from them.) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ._1_1_b_L.-____ _ 
Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041? . 

If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year. . . . . ~1_2_b~------t 
Section 501 (c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers. 
Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? . . . . . . 
Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule 0. 
Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which 
the organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Enter the amount of reserves on hand . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? . 

13b 
13c 

If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No," provide an explanation on Schedule O. . . 

Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or 

excess parachute payment(s) during the year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

If "Yes," see instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N. 

Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? . 

If "Yes." com lete Form 4720, Schedule 0. 

X 

X 

X 

14a X 
14b 

15 X 

16 X 

Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) U. S. Green Buildin Council San Die o Cha ter 20-2614848 Pa e 6 
Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through lb below, and for a "No" 
response to line Ba, Bb, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule 0. See instructions. 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI . . . . . . . . . . . . . [K] 

Section A. Governin Bod and Mana ement f" · 

1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year . 
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or 
if the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar 
committee, explain on Schedule 0. 

1a 15 

b Enter the number of voting members included on line 1 a, above, who are independent . 1 b 15 
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with 

,Y,, ... 

X any other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 
t----i--+--

3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct 
X supervision of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person?. 3 

t----+--+---
X 4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? . 1--4---1---+---

X 5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets?. t--5--+--+---

X 6 Did the organization have members or stockholders? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1--6---1---+---

7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint 
X one or more members of the governing body?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1---7_a4--+--

b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members, 
stockholders, or persons other than the governing body? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7b 

8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during 
the year by the following: 

X 

X a The governing body? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Ba 
t----t---i---

X b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1---8_b4--+--

9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part Vil, Section A, who cannot be reached 
at the or anization's mailin address? If "Yes, 11 provide the names and addresses on Schedule O . . . . . . 9 

Section B. Policies This Section B re uests information about olicies not re uired b the Internal Revenue Code. 

1 Oa Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
b If "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, 

affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? . 
11a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? . 

b Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990. 

Yes 

12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If "No," go to line 13. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12a X 
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts? 12b X 
c Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If "Yes," 

describe in Schedule O how this was done . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12c X 
13 Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
14 Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by 

independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision? 
a The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management official. . . . . 
b Other officers or key employees of the organization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

If "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions). 
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement 

with a taxable entity during the year? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

b If "Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its 
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard 
the or anization's exempt status with res ct to such arran ements? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16b 

Section C. Disclosure 
17 List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed ► 

18 Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (Section 501(c) 
ms only) available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply. 
LJ Own website D Another's website (KJ Upon request D Other (explain on Schedule OJ 

19 Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, 
and financial statements available to the public during the tax year. 

20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records ► 

X 

X 

No 

X 

. __________ Colleen Fitz Si mans ______________________________________________________________ (917)_ 690-1409 ________________ _ 

3830 Valley Centre Dr. Suite 705, San Diego, CA 92130 

Form 990 (2019) 



Pae 7 
Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated 
Employees, and Independent Contractors 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII . . . . . . . . . . 

ction A. Officers, Directors, Trustees 1 Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees 
.... Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the 
organization's tax year. 

, List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount 
of compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid. 

• List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employee." 
• List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee) 

who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the 
organization and any related organizations. 

, List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than 
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations. 

• List all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the 
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations. 

See instructions for the order in which to list the persons above. 

D Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee. 

(CJ 

Position 
(A) (B) (do not check more than one (0) (E) 

□ 

(F) 
Name and title Average box, unless person is both an Reportable Reportable Estimated amount 

hours officer and a director/trustee) compensation compensation of other 
per week 0 5" 0 " ro I 7 from the from related compensation 
{list any ~ C. 

~ "' 3 (0 Cl 
organization organizations from the C. - -< .,,~ 3 

hours for =;- ~ 
~ "' - ID ;i (W-2/1099-MISC) (W-2/1099-MISC) organization and 

"' C. 3 ~~ 
related ~ 

C 
related organizations !!l. 'O "' 0 

organizations 0 "' 0 

2 -< 3 
below '" 

CD 'O 

<ii CD (tJ 

dotted line) :, 
ID en 

Q) 

cii 
a. 

·1 L _ Joshua Dean __________________________________ 40.00 ----------------
acutive Director 0.00 X X 86,196 0 0 

__ (2L John Ambert __________________________________ 2.00 ----------------
Member 0.00 X 0 0 0 

__ (3L_ Elizabeth_ Carmichael _________________________ 2.00 ----------------
Member 0.00 X 0 0 0 
_ _{4L_ Courtney Bonas _______________________________ 2.00 ----------------
Member 0.00 X 0 0 0 

_ _{SL_ Calin a _Ferraro ________________________________ 2.00 ----------------
Member 0.00 X 0 0 0 

_ _{GL_ Colleen FitzSimons ___________________________ 2.00 ----------------
Member 0.00 X 0 0 0 

_ _{7L_ An.9.ela Hansen _______________________________ 2.00 ----------------
Member 0.00 X 0 0 0 

__ (B} __ Xun Jia --------------------------------------- 2.00 ----------------
Member 0.00 X 0 0 0 

__ (9}__ Douglas Kot ___________________________________ 2.00 ----------------
Member 0.00 X 0 0 0 
l1 OL_ Bob Secrest ____________________________________ IQ 
Member 0.00 X 0 0 0 

l11 L_ Steven Shinn--------------------------------- 2.00 ----------------
Member 0.00 X 0 0 0 

l12L_ Bryon Stafford -------------------------------- 2.00 ----------------
Treasurer 0.00 X 0 0 0 
l13L_ Rebecca BapJiste _____________________________ 2.00 ----------------
Vice President 0.00 X 0 0 0 

\L_ Katy_Hamilton --------------------------------- 2.00 -------------------•-- 0.00 X 0 0 0 ---·· 
Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) U S Green Buildina Council San Dieao Chaoter 20-2614848 Page 8 
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued) 

(A) 
Name and title 

(B) 
Average 

(C) 

Position 
(do not check more than one 
box, unless person is both an 
officer and a director/trustee) 

(E) 
Reportable 

compensation 
from related 

organizations 

(F) 
Estimated 

hours 
per week 
(list any 
hours for 

(D) 
Reportable 

compensation 
from the 

organization 
(W-2/1099-MISC) (W-2/1099-MISC) 

of other 
compensation 

from the 
organization and 

related organizations related 
organizations 

below 
dotted line) 

_l1 SL_ Ravi Balaj ______________________________________________ _2.00 

President 0.00 

(16} __________________________________________________ ----------------

_l17} ______________________________________________________ _ 
------

l18} _________________________________________________________________ _ 

(19} __________________________________________________ ----------------

l20} _________________________________________________________________ _ 

(21} __________________________________________________ ----------------

(22} __________________________________________________ ----------------

·---· ----------------

---- ----------------
l25} _________________________________________________________________ _ 

X 0 0 0 

1 b Subtotal . ► 1-----86_.,'--1_96 ______ 0 ______ 0.c... 
c Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A . 
d Total (add lines 1b and 1c). 

► 0 0 0 
► 86,196 0 0 

2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of 
re ortable compensation from the or anization ► 

3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated 
employee on line 1a? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual. . . . . . . . . 

4 For any individual listed on line 1 a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from 
the organization and related organizations greater than $150,000? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such 

individual . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

5 Did any person listed on line 1 a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual 
for services rendered to the or anization? If "Yes," com lete Schedule J tor such erson . . . . . . . . . 

Section B. Independent Contractors 
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of 

0 
Yes No 

5 X 

compensation from the organization. RePort compensation for the calendar vear endina with or within the oraanization's tax vear. 

(A) (B) (C) 
Name and business address Description of services Compensation 

0 
0 
0 

{ 
\,,-

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received , L more than $100 000 of compensation from the oraanization ► 0 •,••, ... :, <' ' 

Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) U. S. Green Buildin Council San Die o Cha ter 20-2614848 Pa e 9 

.!!I .fl 
C C 
ra :::, 
.... 0 

Cl_ E 
~ <( ·- .... Cl~ 
.,; .E 
C •-
0 V) ·- .... ... Ql 
:::, .c 
.!l ... 
;:: 0 
c " 0 C 
0 ra 

Q) 
u 
-~ Q) 

Q) :::, 

en C 

E ~ 
C1l Q) 

ma: 
0 ... 

a.. 

Q) 
:::, 
C 
Q) 
> 
Q) 

a: 
a, 
.c 
0 

rn 
::J 
0 a, 
Q) :::, 

l. -~ 
,✓ Q) 

~a: 
~ 

Statement of Revenue 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII .. 

1a Federated campaigns. . . . . . . . 

b Membership dues . . . . . . . . . 
c Fundraising events . . . . . . . 
d Related organizations . . . . . . . . 
e Government grants (contributions) . . . 
f All other contributions, gifts, grants, and 

similar amounts not included above . 

g Noncash contributions included in 
lines 1a-1f. . . . . 

h Total. Add lines 1 a-1 f 

1a 

1b 
1c 

1d 

1e 

1f 

1 $ 

(A) 
Total revenue 

0 

46,202 
0 

0 

139,717 

290,745 

0 

► 
Business Code 

(B) 
Related or exempt 

(C) 
Unrelated 

function revenue business revenue 

□ 
(D) 

Revenue excluded 

2a Events/Education 900099 54,025 54,025 
·----------------------------------------------· l----'----------+----'---'------'-l------'------'-1--------+-------

3 

b 0 
C 

d 
e 

f All other program service revenue . . . . 
Total. Add lines 2a-2f. . . . . . . . . . 
Investment income (including dividends, interest, and 
other similar amounts) . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

0 
0 
0 

► 

4 Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds . . . ► 
t-------+------+------+-------

5 Royalties . . . . . . . . ► 
(i) Real 

Ga Gross rents . Ga 
b Less: rental expenses . Gb 
C Rental income or (loss) Ge 0 
d Net rental income or (loss) . 

7a Gross amount from (i) Securities 

sales of assets 
other than inventory . 7a 0 

b Less: cost or other basis 
and sales expenses . . 7b O 

c Gain or (loss) . . . . . 7c O 
d Net gain or (loss) . 

Sa Gross income from fundraising 
events (not including $ _______________ Q_ 
of contributions reported on line 1c). 

(ii) Personal 

(ii) Other 

0 

► 

0 

0 

► 

See Part IV, line 18 . . . . ,__B_a ______ _, 
b Less: direct expenses . . . . . . ..._B_b_,_ _____ --t 

c Net income or (loss) from fundraising evenrts_._•r-·-· _. _. ---►------,-,---,i--,----,--,--,,--,-i--------1------
9a Gross income from gaming activities. 

See Part IV, line 19. . . . . . . . . l----'9_a--+--------t 

b Less: direct expenses . . . . . . . . ~9_b~-----
c Net income or (loss) from gaming activities,...._·--.-·-·_. _._. __ ►--1------l----'-----+--,----,----1,,.------

10a Gross sales of inventory, less 
returns and allowances . . . . . 10a 

t---1--------1 
b Less: cost of goods sold . . . . . ._1_0_b__._ _____ --1 

c Net income or (loss from sales of invento 

11a 

b 
C 

d All other revenue . . . . . . . 
e Total. Add lines 11a-11d. . . . 

12 Total revenue. See instructions .. 

...... ► 
Business Code 

► 
► 

0 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

530,736 54 025 0 47 

Form 990 (2019) 



20-2614848 Pa e 10 
Statement of Functio 

Section 501 (c)(3) and 501 (c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A). 

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX . . . . . 

Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, 7b, 
Bb, 9b, and 10b of Part VI/I. 

1 Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations 
domestic governments. See Part IV, line 21 . 

2 Grants and other assistance to domestic 
individuals. See Part IV, line 22 . . . . . . 

3 Grants and other assistance to foreign 
organizations, foreign governments, and foreign 
individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16 . . 

4 Benefits paid to or for members . . . . . 
5 Compensation of current officers, directors, 

trustees, and key employees. . . . . . 
6 Compensation not included above to disqualified 

persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and 
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) . . . 

7 Other salaries and wages . . . . . . . . . . 
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include 

section 401 (k) and 403(b) employer contributions) . 
9 Other employee benefits . . . . . . . . . . . 

10 Payroll taxes . . . . . . . . . 
11 Fees for services (nonernployees): 

a Management . 
b Legal ........... . 
c Accounting . . . . . . . . . . 
d Lobbying. . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... 
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17 . 
f Investment management fees . . . . . . . . . 

g other. (If line 11 g amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column 
(A) amount, list line 11g expenses on Schedule 0.) .. 

12 Advertising and promotion. . . 
13 Office expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . 
14 Information technology. . . . . . . . . 
15 Royalties . . 
16 Occupancy. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
17 Travel. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses 

for any federal, state, or local public officials . . 
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings . . . 
20 Interest. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
21 Payments to affiliates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization . . . . . . 
23 Insurance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
24 Other expenses. Itemize expenses not covered 

above (List miscellaneous expenses on line 24e. If 
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column 
(A) amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule 0.) 

a 

b Bank & Credit Card Fees--------------------------------
c Professional_ Development ______________________________ _ 

d 
e All other expenses 

25 Total functional ex enses. Add lines 1 throu h 24e . 
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the 

organization reported in column (B) joint costs 
from a combined educational campaign and 
fundraising solicitation. Check here ► D if 
followin SOP 98-2 ASC 958-720 . . . . .. 

(A) (8) 
Total expenses 

0 

0 

0 
0 

86,196 

0 
147,250 

0 
16,706 
19,543 

0 
0 

12,000 

0 

43,033 
10,925 
10,378 
6,469 

0 
1,839 
3,463 

0 
1,689 

0 

118,519 
2,317 

27,862 

0 
513,467 

Program service 

expenses 

76,714 

129,580 

15,201 
17,393 

8,040 

43,033 
10,925 

8,925 
6,469 

0 
3,463 

1,689 

118,519 

27,862 

467,813 

(C) 

9,482 

17,670 

1,505 
2,150 

3,960 

0 
0 

1,453 
0 

1,839 
0 

0 

0 

0 
2,317 

0 

45,654 

□ 
(D} 

Fund raising 

0 

Form 990 (2019) 



£l 
Ill 
1/) 
1/) 
<( 

.J 
Ill 

~ 
:a 
(II 

:J 

1/) 
Ill 
0 
C 

.!!! 
Ill 
m 
"tJ 
C 
::J 
IL ... 
0 

£l 
Ill 
1/) 
1/) 
<( 

ai 
z 

Balance Sheet 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X . 

1 Cash-non-interest-bearing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

2 Savings and temporary cash investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

3 Pledges and grants receivable, net. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
4 Accounts receivable, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
5 Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer, director, 

trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35% 
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons . . . . . . 

6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined 
under section 4958(f)(1 )), and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(8) 

7 Notes and loans receivable, net . . . . . 
8 Inventories for sale or use . . 
9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges . . 

1 Oa Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or 
other basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D _1o_a-+-_____ 3_0 __ ,_oo_o-1 

(A) 
Beginning of year 

53,828 1 

59,161 2 
0 3 

20-2614848 Pa e 11 

□ 
(B) 

End of year 

151,245 

59,209 

b Less: accumulated depreciation . . . . . ~1 _0b~ ______ 3_0~, o_o_o ________ ---1---t----0 10c 0 

11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 

23 
24 
25 

lnvestments-publicly traded securities . . . 
Investments-other securities. See Part IV, line 11 . 
Investments-program-related. See Part IV, line 11 . . . . . . . . . . 

Intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Other assets. See Part IV, line 11 . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Total assets. Add lines 1 throu h 15 must e ual line 33 . . 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses . . 

Grants payable . . . . . . . . . . . 

Deferred revenue . . . . . . . . . 
Tax-exempt bond liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . 
Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D . 

Loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director, 
trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35% 
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons . . . 

Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties . . . 
Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties . . . . 
Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third 
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete 
Part X of Schedule D . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 throu h 25. . . . . . . . 

27 
28 

29 
30 
31 
32 
33 

Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here ► [Rj 
and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33. 
Net assets without donor restrictions . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Net assets with donor restrictions . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here ► D 
and complete lines 29 through 33 . 
Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds. . . . . . . 
Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund . 
Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds . 
Total net assets or fund balances . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances . . . . . . . . . . . . 

0 11 0 
0 12 0 
0 13 0 
0 14 0 
0 15 0 

181,818 16 279,871 

18,050 17 67,586 

0 18 
11,634 19 42,882 

0 20 

0 22 
0 23 0 
0 24 0 

0 29 
0 30 
0 31 

152,134 32 169,403 

181,818 33 279,871 
Form 990 (2019) 



Form 990 (2019) U. S. Green Buildin Council San Die o Cha ter 

Reconciliation of Net Assets 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI . 

1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) . 

2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column {A), line 25) . 

3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1 . 
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 32, column (A)) . 
5 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments . 
6 Donated services and use of facilities . 
7 Investment expenses . 
8 Prior period adjustments . 
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain on Schedule 0) . 

10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 32, 
column (B)) . 

l:.F.Ti• Financial Statements and Reporting 
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII . . . . 

1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: 0 Cash [2s] Accrual O Other 
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explain in 
Schedule 0. 

2a Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? . 
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or 
reviewed on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both: 

0 Separate basis O Consolidated basis O Both consolidated and separate basis 

b Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant? . . . . . . 
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a 
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both: 

0 Separate basis [2s] Consolidated basis O Both consolidated and separate basis 

c If "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of 
the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? . . 
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain on 
Schedule 0. 

3a As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in 
the Single Audit Act and 0MB Circular A-133? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

b If "Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the 
re uired audit or audits, ex lain wh on Schedule O and describe an ste s taken to under o such audits . 

20-2614848 Pa e 12 

□ 
1 530,736. 

2 513.4( 
3 17,26::,~ 
4 152,134 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 169,403 

3a X 

3b X 
Form 990 (2019) 



INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 
P. 0. BOX 2508 
CINCINNATI, OH 45201 

Date~AY ?. 1 2007 

US GREEN BUILDING COUNCIL-SAN 
DIEGO CHAPTER 

5560 RUFFIN RD STE 1 
SAN DIEGO, CA 92123 

Dear Applicant: 

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 

Employer Identification Number: 
20-2614848 

DLN: 
17053209017006 

Contact Person: 
DONNA ELLIOT-MOORE 

Contact Telephone Number: 
(877) 829-5500 

Accounting Period Ending: 
DECEMBER 31 

Public Charity Status: 
509 (a) (2) 

~arm 990 Required: 
YES 

Effective Date of Exemption: 
JANUARY 4, 2005 

Contribution Deductibility: 
YES 

Advance Ruling Ending Date: 
DECEMBER 31, 2009 

ID# 50304 

We are pleased to inform you that upon review of your application for tax 
exempt status we have determined that you are exempt from Federal income tax 
under section 50l(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Contributions to you are 
deductible under section 170 of the Code. You are also qualified to receive 
tax deductible bequests, devises, transfers or gifts under section 2055, 2106 
or 2522 of the Code. Because this letter could help resolve any questions 
regarding your exempt status, you should keep it in your permanent records. 

Organizations exempt under section 50l(c) (3) of the Code are further classified 
as either public charities or private foundations. During your advance ruling 
period, you will be treated as a public charity. Your advance ruling period 
begins with the effective date of your exemption and ends with advance ruling 
ending date shown in the heading of the letter. 

Shortly before the end of yo~r advance ruling period, we will send you Form 
8734, Support Schedule for Advance Ruling Period. You will have 90 days after 
the end of your advance ruling period to return the completed form. We will 
then notify you, in writing, about your public charity status. 

Please see enclosed Information for Exempt Organizations Under Section 
501(c) (3) for some helpful information about your responsibilities as an exempt 
organization. 

Letter 1045 (DO/CG) 



-2-

US GREEN BUILDING COUNCIL-SAN 

Sincerely, 

Director, Exempt Organizations 
Rulings and Agreements 

Enclosures: Information for Organizations Exempt Under Section S0l(c) (3) 
Statute Extension 

Letter 1045 (DO/CG) 





City of Solana Beach 

Community Grant Program 

Request for Financial Assistance 

FY 2021-2022 

APPLICATION 

Name of Organization: Solana Beach Civic and Historical Society 

(SBC&HS) Mailing Address: P. 0. Box 504 

City: Solana Beach State: California ZIP: 92075 

Contact Persons: Lisa Montes, Cindi Clemons 

Daytime Phone: 858-519-6645, 619-952-0268 

Evening Phone: same same 

Email address: montes/isa1964@gmail.com cindiclemons@gmail.com 

1. W-9 must be attached 
Summary of organization's budget must be attached 
Proposed program budget must be attached 

Financial Statements (see Application Guidelines) must be attached 

2. A copy of the certification Nonprofit Corporation must be attached 
OR, California Non-profit 501(C)3 Certificate Number: 95-1950979 

3. Has your organization received financial assistance from the City before? YES 

4. Amount requested FY 2021-22: $5,000.00 

5. Proposed Total Program Costs: (Includes all estimated costs to conduct proposed 
activity/program.) We anticipate a total cost this year of $5,500 for digitization and recording 

of oral histories of Solana Beach's longtime residents. The digitization project includes postage 

fees to mail our archives to Backstage Library Works in PA, as well as labor costs,hard drives 

and USB cables. The costs for the oral histories project include labor costs for videotaping and 

editing. 

6. Title of Proposed Program/Service: "Preserving Solana Beach 

History by Digitization of Printed Historical Materials and Recording Oral Histories of Residents 
and Making Materials Available Online for Research Purposes." 

7. Grant funds must be used for services or materials directly associated with 
proposed activity. Please describe how the funds will be used:. The digitization includes 

postage fees and mailing supplies to mail our archives to Backstage Library Works in PA, as 



well as labor costs and hard drives and USB cables. The oral histories include labor costs for 
videotaping and editing and any hard drives or USB thumb drives as needed. 

SBC&HS GRANT APPLICATION for 2019-2020 - Page 2 

8. Estimated number of S.B. residents to be served by proposed program: All residents 
of Solana Beach will have access to our collection of oral histories and archives when our 
collection is made available on the web. We anticipate that school age children within our 
community and researchers will use our resources, ensuring that our community history will 
be shared and appreciated. 

9. Program Dates/Location: This is a continuation of an ongoing project. We started 
digitizing in 2016 and have completed 90% of the materials currently in our collection. 
The oral history videotaping and editing will begin July 2021 and will continue until we 
have a diverse collection for interviews. All originals for both will be housed as they 

are now in our Heritage Museum, La Co/onia de Eden Gardens, Solana Beach. They 
will be stored in archival boxes within our archives room. 

10. Anticipated Program Objectives or Accomplishments: The objective of the project is 
to digitize data of historical value to the City and to record oral histories of residents within the 
City. We have accomplished the digitization of over 30 scrapbooks, 2 published local history 
books, hundreds of historical newspapers,a newspaper from 1953,and other individual 
articles. 

11. How will the organization acknowledge the City's financial contribution to the 
community/beneficiaries of the proposed activity? We will report to the City Council as 
soon as our Program is launched. Our original goal was to partner with our County Library 
system so they could maintain the database of archives for the public to access, however they 
have not been able to move forward with this project. We are researching other opportunities 
for the public to access our archives via the Web. Currently, the public can contact the Solana 
Beach Civic and Historical Society via email if they would like to view archives at the Heritage 
Museum upon appointment. 

12. Will t~ere be any matching_ funds or other gran~s that would be appl~ed to 
this program or service? If awarded this grant, will that enable other funding 
sources?_We are applying for a Coastal Community Grant, however the deadline is at 
the end of June 2021 and we do not know if we will be able to secure it. Last year, 
many of the grants they approved were to help organizations who were directly 
assisting families in great need due to job loss and housing needs due to the 
pandemic. However, we will definitely apply again this year. 



13. Will volunteers be used for the proposed program or service, and if so, will they 
reduce expenses? SBC&HS GRANT APPLICATION for 2021-22 - Page 3 
Yes, we have several volunteers who assist us with the digitization of newspaper articles 
and other archives. Some of our volunteers help clip our newspaper articles to prepare 
them for digitization, as well as prepare the scrapbooks and other materials for 
digitization. Volunteers will begin organizing the digitized material into searchable files this 
summer. Our plan is to seek volunteers to capture the oral histories, however we may 
have to pay for editing of the videos, because it is time consuming and technical. 

14. If the proposed program or service is only awarded partial funding, will it still move 
forward? Will the program or service be scaled back and/or is there a threshold at which 
it will not move forward? If we receive only a portion of our requested funds, we will move 
forward with Digitization of our data and the Oral Histories that the Grant funding will allow for. 
Thank you for the opportunity to apply for this Grant! 

'-

~ Ju:i ! f /'-tf) ZOd--1 
~~-~ 
~~-~ 
~ ~ 



ATTACHMENT D: W-9 
(TO BE REPLACED WITH SIGNED SCAN UPON RECEIPT} 

,:,..,-.~"r;•.t-·• ~: •:·,~ '.-t;,:;; 
·'<<? ~-,-.,,·,~ s ._,,.,_,,. 

: i;::,C .. ~N·....-•r,f 

Request for Taxpayer 
Identification Numo?r and Certification 

)./,~ f,t(~-~ - ••~-•---r· --••----~•---------• 

Genera! Instructions 
·.,:,. ?;.·':.': ./:,<,,~,,;,;<. ,;.,:, ~,· ·.~-, -,, .. ,_, .. ,:,, i•,:; . ..;~~:.y;; ,: ~:,_:,·. ~· ✓-0;, 

·-.:-~'.":: 

f 01vn r-c1m (iJ u10 
! r'$-..1U{>t.t~r . .(J.!;) net 

~ ;e:,~::i fa 1htJ1 ms. 



Solana Beach Civic & Historical Society 

Estimated Results 2019-2020 

Income 

Membership 

Social Out Reach 

Donations 

Post Office Garden 

Grant for Archiving 

Grant for El Vineto Park 

Expense 

Adm in/Operations 

Social Community Outreach 

Scholarships 

School Buses 

Community Improvement 

Boutique 

Annual BBQ 

Holiday Party 

Poinsettias 

Total Income 

Post Office Garden 

El Vineto Park 

Digitalization of Historical Records 

Total Expense 

Gain 

3165 
14749 

8260 
1486 
1650 
3353 

1500 
2600 
4570 
4000 

30584 

2764 
4629 
4000 
1308 
4979 

2514 
2465 

4101 
21781 
8803 



Solana Beach Civic & Historical Society 

Proposed Program Budget for Digitization and Oral 
Histories 

2021-22 

Digitization (Backstage Library) 

Postage for Digitization 

$2,000 

$80 

Videography and Editing of Oral Histories $3,250 

Supplies (hard drives and USB's) $80 

Total $5410 


	6-9-21 Mtg. Agenda
	A. Consent (A1 - A12)
	A.1. Minutes
	A.2. List of Demands
	A.3. Budget Update
	A.4. MID Fees
	A.5. Fire Benefit Fee
	A.6. WageWorks Amd.
	A.7. City Hall & Fire Station Repair Proj. NOC
	A.8. Glenmont UUD
	A.9. Streetlight Maint. & Repairs Agmt.
	A.10. SEA Decertification
	A.11. Community Dev. Professional Agmts
	A.12. Bldg. Services Agmt
	B. Public Hearings (B1)
	B.1. 512-538 S. Nardo, Ocean Ranch Estates
	C. Staff Reports (C1)
	C.1. Community Grant Prog.



